
 
 

 

 

 

LOCAL REVIEW BODY 
MONDAY, 18 OCTOBER 2021 

 
 

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held on MONDAY, 18 OCTOBER 

2021 at 10.00 am.   The meeting will be conducted remotely by Microsoft Teams. 

Arrangements are in place to stream the meeting for public viewing. A link will be provided on 

the Council's website before the meeting.  

 
J. J. WILKINSON, 
Clerk to the Council, 
 
11 October 2021 
 
 

BUSINESS 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence.  
 

2.  Order of Business.  
 

3.  Declarations of Interest.  
 

4.  Continuation: Consider request for review  of refusal of application for erection of 
ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse and installation of 12KW ground 
mounted solar array at Penvalla, Broughton -  21/00137/FUL and 21/00013/RCOND  
Copies of the following papers attached:- 
 

 

 (a)   Submissions by Planning Officer and Roads Planning Officer to new 
information and response from applicant   (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 (b)  Review Papers                                                                   (Pages 21 - 56)  
Copies of papers re-circulated as follows:-  
Notice of Review  
Decision Notice  
Officer’s Report  
 

 

 (c)   Papers referred to in Officers Report                               (Pages 57 - 64) 
 

 (d)   Consultation Replies                                                          (Pages 65 - 70) 
 

 (e)   List of Policies                                                                     (Pages 71 - 76) 
 

5.  Continuation: Consider request for review of refusal of application for Part Change 
of Use of ground floor to class 10 and alterations to form additional office space 
from attic floor at 3 Rowan Court Suite, 3 Cavalry Park, Peebles - 21/00486/FUL and 
21/00015/RREF  

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
  

 
Copies of the following papers attached:- 
 

 (a)   Submissions by Planning Officer and Chief Social Work Officer to new 
information and response from applicant                      (Pages 77 - 118) 
 

 (b)    Review Papers                                                                  (Pages 119 - 206)  
Copies of papers re-circulated:-  
 

 (c)   Papers referred to in Officers Report                             (Pages 207 - 238) 
 

 (d)   Consultation Replies                                                       (Pages 239 - 244) 
 

 (e)   List of Policies                                                                  (Pages 245 - 250) 
 

6.  Consider request for review of refusal of application in Principle for residential 
dwellings with associated amenity, parking , Infrastructure and Access on Land 
South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston Road, Stow 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF  
 
Copies of the following papers attached:-  
 

 (a)  Notice of Review                                                               (Pages 251 - 448) 
  
Including:-  
Decision Notice  
Officer’s Report  
 

 (b)   Papers referred to in Officer's report                              (Pages 449 - 450) 
 

 (c)   Objection Comments                                                       (Pages 451 - 520) 
 

 (d)   Further Objection Comments and Applicant Response   (Pages 521 - 530) 
 

 (e)   Additional Information                                                         (Pages 531 - 582) 
 

 (f)   Consultation Replies                                                            (Pages 583 - 614) 
 

 (g)   Correspondence                                                                   (Pages 615 - 642) 
 

 (h)   List of Policies                                                                      (Pages 643 - 654) 
 

7.  Consider request for review of refusal of application for the erection of a 
dwellinghouse on Land Adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton - 20/01327/FUL and 
21/00019/RREF  
 
Copies of the following papers attached:-  
 

 

 (a)   Notice of Review                                                                  (Pages 655 - 1107)  
Including:-  
 
Decision Notice 
Officer’s Report  



 
 
  

 
 
 

 (b)   Objections                                                                              (Pages 1109 - 1116) 
 

 (c)   Further Objection Comments and Applicant Response    (Pages 1117 - 1130) 
 

 (d)   General Comment                                                                  (Pages 1131 - 1132) 
 

 (e)   Other Information                                                                   (Pages 1133 - 1142) 
 

 (f)   List of Policies                                                                        (Pages 1143 - 1148) 
 

8.  Any Other Items Previously Circulated  
 

9.  Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 
 
NOTE 
 
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting. 
 

 
Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Mountford (Chair), A. Anderson, J. A. Fullarton, 
S. Hamilton, H. Laing, D. Moffat, C. Ramage, N. Richards, E. Small. 
 

 
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson 01835 826502 
email fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Dods, Ranald 
Sent: 06 September 2021 12:48 
To: Henderson, Fiona 
Subject: Local Review  - Review of 21/00013/RCOND 

Dear Fiona, 

In response to your email, my comments are below. 

The subject of the review (21/00137/FUL) was described by the appellant on the planning application 
form as, amongst other things, “…construction of detached A Frame annex building to provide additional 
living accommodation…”.  The proposed building was assessed on that basis.  The review statement 
proposes that condition 2 be amended to allow the use of the building for holiday 
accommodation.  Given the character of holiday use would be fundamentally different to ancillary 
residential accommodation, that proposal would need to be subject of a separate application rather 
than a review of the condition. 

The review statement states that no objection was raised by Roads.  Whilst that is true, their response 
was based on the building being ancillary to the house, used occasionally by family members and not on 
a regular basis by paying guests.  Had the application been made for the erection of a holiday let 
building, it is likely that an objection would have been lodged by Roads on road safety 
grounds.  Regarding the current access, it is worth noting that the appellant stated previously “…its [sic.]
impossible to see on coming [sic.] traffic and even though its a 20MPH road people still fly past and its 
like Russian roulette sometimes pulling out of the drive and if turning right I need to pull out and reverse 
back then turn right so increases the chance of an accident”.  The appellant provides no evidence within 
the review statement to back up his assertion that the “…development can be operated safely…”. 

Ranald 

Ranald Dods
Planning Officer
Development Management
Planning Housing and Related Services  
Scottish Borders Council

Tel:       01835 825 239
E-mail:  ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk

Please do not print this e-mail unless absolutely necessary - SAVE PAPER

Find out more about Scottish Borders Council: Web | Twitter | Facebook | Flickr | YouTube

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



From: Henderson, Fiona <FHenderson@scotborders.gov.uk>  
Sent: 20 August 2021 11:57 
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Subject: Local Review - Review of 21/00013/RREF 

Hello Ranald, 

Penvalla, Broughton, - Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse and 
installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 

Please see attached letter regarding the review of the above application. Please send any comments to 
the above email address by 6 September at the latest. 

Thanks 
Fiona 

Fiona Henderson 
Democratic Services Officer 
Democratic Services  
Resources 
Council Headquarters 
NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA 

 DDI : 01835 826502 

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 6



From: Grigor, Paul 
Sent: 06 September 2021 13:12 
To: localreview 
Cc: Henderson, Fiona 
Subject: 21/00013/RCOND - Penvalla Broughton 

Good afternoon, 

In response to the review of the conditions through the Local Review Body process, please see below my 
response. 

The original proposal was for ancillary accommodation along with a new access. During the consultation 
process the Roads Planning Service had no objections in principle to the ancillary building but objected 
to a new access as it was unacceptable to have two accesses serving a single unit and there was 
insufficient detail to demonstrate that the new access met current guidance. The proposed access was 
then removed from the proposed works. 

The review is in relation to the condition imposed restricting the use of the building as ancillary 
accommodation only. The appellant wishes this condition to be amended to allow the building to be 
used as a holiday let.  

Had the application been for a holiday let at the start of this process, the Roads Planning Service would 
of objected on the grounds of road safety. The existing access is not of a sufficient standard to 
accommodate traffic movements generated by holidaymakers and the original proposal was only 
supported due to the building being ancillary to the main dwelling. In terms of traffic generation, there 
is a significant difference between annexe accommodation and a holiday let. 

Please see below an excerpt from an email sent by the appellant to Carlos Clarke on the 19th April 2021 
regarding the existing access to Penvalla. This clearly highlights the concerns the appellant has with the 
existing access and to introduce further traffic would only increase the problems. 

“Also could you maybe ask Highways as to the viability of getting a mirror installed opposite the existing 
entrance, as with the bend it’s impossible to see oncoming traffic and even though it’s a 20MPH road 
people still fly past and it’s like Russian roulette sometimes pulling out of the drive and if turning right I 
need to pull out and reverse back then turn right so increases the chance of an accident. If not could you 
provide me with contact details so I can chase this myself “ 

I trust the above is enough for Members to proceed, should you require any further information, please 
contact me. 

Kind regards 
Paul Grigor 
Roads Planning Officer 
Planning, Housing & Related Services 
Scottish Borders Council  
Telephone: 01835 826663 
Email address: pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk
Web | Twitter | Facebook | Flickr | YouTube

Page 7



How are you playing #yourpart to help us keep the Borders thriving? 

Page 8



Statement of Mr Bradley Clarke MCIAT, Appellant: 

 

Comments of Bradley Clarke in answer to the response received from Ranald Dods (appointed 

Planning Officer) and Paul Grigor (Roads Planning Officer) in reference to my planning appeal for the 

amendment of Condition 2 to Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL. 

 

The initial planning application 21/00137/FUL was set out to cover three main aspects that myself and 

my Girlfriend wised to achieve after purchasing the property in September 2020 with a view to living 

here forever, firstly we wanted the opportunity to potentially provide ourselves with clean electricity 

in the form of a solar panel array which was approved under the planning permission.  

 

Secondly we wanted an annex for friends and family members to stay in when they visit us, as I’m 

originally from Manchester, England and have made the move as my girlfriend is originally from 

Edinburgh and all her family live in Edinburgh and the Lothians. The Garden annex was designed so 

that the form and massing of the structure was acceptable under Permitted Development rights and 

to have minimal impact to neighbours whilst maintaining a high quality design which we thought 

would complement the woodland that we own. We had to submit a house holder application due to 

the proposed use of the building as we wanted it to both accommodate a bedroom, ensuite and small 

kitchen and also be used as design study / home office. The Garden annex approved under Planning 

Permission 21/00137/FUL has had a non-standard condition attached by the appointed Planning 

Officer. The condition reads as below: 

 

“The development hereby approved shall remain as permanent ancillary accommodation to 

the principal dwelling (known currently as Penvalla) and shall be occupied only by persons 

of the same household. There shall be no subdivision of this single residential planning 

unit and it shall not be used for independent residential or holiday rental purposes. 

Reason: The planning authority considers that the development hereby permitted is the 

maximum that can be reasonably allowed without causing detriment to infrastructure 

provision and an intensification of use of the road/access by increased vehicle movements 

would not be appropriate in this location” 

 

It is worth noting at this stage that the rationale for the wording of Condition 2 remains unclear. It is 

accepted that the Council may reasonably seek to prevent subdivision of the existing dwelling and its 

curtilage however preventing guests from using an annex for short-term overnight accommodation 

(perhaps for as little as one or two nights) appears to be disproportionate, unreasonable, and risks 

even being perceived as self-indulgent. 

 

During the planning application it was discussed with the Planning Officer that the annex was to be 

built for friends and family visiting from Manchester, however this was obviously ignored as the 

section of the condition that states “shall be occupied only by persons of the same household” limits 

this to use by myself and my girlfriend. In response to this non-standard condition where I requested 

that is be amended / removed, the response below was provided which can be seen on the Councils 

planning portal  

 

 

Page 9



“For condition 2 we note that you state that you intend to allow family members to stay there 

on occasion. I assume you are not intending that to be the likes of the son-in-law of your great 

auntie’s cousin, rather it would be for use by more immediate family members.”  

Ranald Dods – Scottish Borders Council, 2021 

 

As I’m sure anyone can agree, this is not only outrageous that the appointed Planning Officer feels 

they have the right to dictate which Family members are allowed to stay in an ancillary building at my 

home but is also very scary. This was the main focus of the appeal initially so that this would be lifted 

and in discussion with my Planning consultant they advised me to put forward a standardly worded 

condition which both enables friends and family to use the annex and also if in the event I wish to rent 

it to a potential holiday maker then I could. The holiday let was never discussed until the non-standard 

condition was places upon the Planning Permission. 

 

This brings me now to the third reason for my original application which was to fix the only issue my 

house had when we purchased it, which is the current access. Due to the topography of my house and 

the land it sits on, the access point has a very acute angle when turning right out of my driveway onto 

the A701, this together with the fact it’s on a bend makes it difficult to see on coming traffic when you 

pull out.   

 

As part of the original planning application I submitted a request to install a new access point but I 

was instructed to remove this access from the proposal as between Ranald Dods and Paul Grigor it 

was deemed that having two entrances to one house was unacceptable? Personally I have done 

various planning applications where two access points for one dwelling have been approved all be it 

in England.  

 

As a compromise I proposed to erect a fence between the existing access and my driveway from the 

current entrance to my dwelling, but in doing so still maintain the existing access point to the road for 

maintenance purposes of the circa 1 acre woodland that the access point sits on, which also is on a 

separate Land Title held by Land Register Scotland.  However, this was discounted and at which point 

Ranald then requested full detailed information for the proposed access point although in his words 

the proposed access point didn’t seem viable in principle and or detail. This seemed to be contrary to 

common sense as my next door neighbour has access to his house in a similar location from the main 

road which if anything is an extension of the row of houses which my property bookends at this end 

of the village.  

 

The proposed access which didn’t have much design information at that point in terms of detailed 

design levels etc. could have been approved in principle controlled with a pre-start condition for 

detailed construction information as any other element is dealt with, which was again put forward to 

Ranald at the time of the initial application but was again discounted and or further information be 

requested before the decision be made. 

 

As the situation seemed to be at a stalemate and Ranald was going to just proceed with a refusal, it 

was agreed between myself and Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer for the West Borders) that the 

proposed access be removed so that the annex and solar array could be approved with a view to 

submitting a separate application for the access in future. At this point there was no indication of any 

non-standard conditions being place on the Decision Notice so I was happy to proceed. 

 

Page 10



We then received the Decision Notice which restricted the use of the annex and didn’t include the 

access as this element had been withdrawn. Following the submission of the appeal further comments 

from both Ranald and Paul were requested and on reading these I can only say that I’m shocked and 

very concerned with both sets of comments. The comments from both Ranald and Paul are centered 

around a statement I made early on in the original planning application where the proposed access 

was being discussed, the comment was sent to Carlos Clarke in email and reads as follows, 

 

“Also could you maybe ask Highways as to the viability of getting a mirror installed opposite the 

existing entrance, as with the bend it’s impossible to see oncoming traffic and even though it’s a 

20MPH road people still fly past and it’s like Russian roulette sometimes pulling out of the drive and if 

turning right I need to pull out and reverse back then turn right so increases the chance of an accident. 

If not could you provide me with contact details so I can chase this myself ” 

 

There were obvious concerns on my existing access hence the need to submit a planning application 

to request a new driveway. I now wonder how this concern can be used to suggest the access is not 

safe to use for potential holiday makers, when in refusing the proposed driveway – and asserting that 

continuing to use the existing access would be preferable to putting a new access (benefiting from 

longer visibility sightlines onto the highway) in place – surely by default this proposes that my current 

access is safe to use by me, my family and friends?  If at this point the access was deemed by the Roads 

Planning team to be safe enough for use by myself and my visiting family / friends it does not stand to 

reason that the access is not safe enough for use by potential holiday makers.  

 

I think it is plainly unreasonable that I can be told that my existing access is safe and refused 

planning permission for a new access – before being told that my existing access is not safe. 

The Roads Planning team have a responsibility to be consistent in their assessment of case 

work. It is a matter of fact that I was (and remain) prepared to put new access arrangements in 

place for my house. This is not an assertion on my part – the originally submitted application 

plans explicitly demonstrate it to be the case. The only reason that the existing access 

arrangements have been retained as part of the application is because the Roads Planning team 

insisted that they were.  

 

If the statement expressing my concerns regarding the access to Carlos Clarke on my initial planning 

application is the centre / main focus of the Scottish Borders Council’s reasoning for refusing the 

potential occasional use of the approved annex as a holiday let, then I would urge someone to please 

explain in detail why this concern hasn’t been followed up in terms of road safety and why it has been 

deemed acceptable to put my safety and the safety of any friend and or family visiting my house at 

risk when both the Development Management and Roads Planning teams have known about the 

potential danger for some time? If they consider the access to be un-safe then safety measures should 

be put in place or the access that I applied for should have been looked into further? The Roads 

Planning team either think the existing access is safe to use or its not? 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Statement of Mr Ruaraidh Thompson MRTPI, Ferguson Planning: 

 

The appointed Planning Officer has commented that “the character of holiday use would be 

fundamentally different to ancillary residential accommodation”. 

 

This assertion is considered to be factually inaccurate. 

 

There are no physical differences in the on-site built form between the proposed and approved 

developments (i.e. neither development requires any more or less buildings or any changes to existing 

buildings). There are no alterations required to the supply of water, electricity, gas, or any other utility 

to Penvalla. No alteration is required to the existing foul water or surface water drainage 

arrangements serving the property. 

 

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed revision of the wording of Condition 2 would not alter – 

fundamentally or otherwise – the character of the development approved by Planning Permission 

21/00137/FUL. 

 

In respect of the response of the Roads Planning team, it must be noted that the responses is prepared 

on the assumption that the existing access arrangements are safe but sitting just below the threshold 

of becoming dangerous. The response contains no evidence that this assumption has been established 

or justified by an assessment of objective or empirical evidence. 

 

It must be understood that the opinion/complaint of an Applicant (who is neither a Highways Engineer 

or a Transport Planner) is a subjective estimation and cannot replace the requirement for an objective, 

evidence-based assessment. 

 

A technical assessment prepared by Steven Oxford (the Applicant’s Transport Planning consultant) has 

been provided below. The assessment provided establishes that the proposed revision to Condition 2 

would not have a significant impact on the operation of the existing access and would not present an 

unacceptable risk to road safety. 

 

It is considered that greater weight should be given to the objective assessment submitted herein than 

to the complaint of the Appellant to Mr Clarke of 19th April 2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



Statement of Mr Steven Oxford PgDipTEP, MBIAT, CMILT: 

 

 

 

 

 

HIGHWAYS TECHNICAL NOTE PENVALLA, BROUGHTON 

 

 

 

SITE LOCATION 

The site lies to the east of the A701 and is accessed via an unmade track.  The A701 is lit and has a 

footway along its eastern side.   The speed limit along the site frontage is 20mph.  The A701 provides 

a link between The A74 and Edinburgh. 

It is accepted that visibility is restricted at the junction with the A701 due to the angle at which the 

track meets A701, the horizontal alignment of the A701, and vegetation to the south side of the 

junction.  The land south of the track lies within the applicants control and shrub clearance could be 

carried out to improve intervisibility to/from the south.  Stopping sight distances within “Designing 

Streets: A Policy Statement for Scotland”  suggest that visibility splays should be 2m x 33m based on 

25mph vehicle speeds, (allowing for a degree of speeding) or 25m for the permitted 20mph.   

 

 

 

 

THE APPROVAL 

The Planning Approval (21/00137/FUL) includes the following condition restricting occupancy/use of 

the accommodation: 

The development hereby approved shall remain as permanent ancillary accommodation to the 

principal dwelling (known currently as Penvalla) and shall be occupied only by persons of the same 

household. There shall be no subdivision of this single residential planning unit and it shall not be used 

for independent residential or holiday rental purposes. Reason: The planning authority considers that 

the development hereby permitted is the maximum that can be reasonably allowed without causing 

detriment to infrastructure provision and an intensification of use of the road/access by increased 

vehicle movements would not be appropriate in this location. 

The primary reason for the inclusion of restriction of occupancy/use of the building is that use other 

than by immediate family would result in additional vehicular use of the access with a detrimental 

impact on the highway safety. This report explores the anticipated impact of the use of the consented 

development beyond that conditioned. 

The impact of the development as both holiday let and non-ancillary dwelling are assessed. 

Page 13



POTENTIAL TRAFFIC GENERATION 

There is limited TRICS data available in respect of holiday lets, with what information there is relating 

to large “resort” type accommodation such as Butlins or caravan sites rather than individual lets.  

TRICS suggests daily trip rates to holiday lets of 2.4 trips per day per accommodation, being 1.24 

arrivals and 1.17 departures.  

In comparison an individual dwelling would be expected to generate 4.5 trips per day.  As a worst-

case, use beyond that conditioned would therefore result in an additional 4.5 trips per day.  With the 

existing use this would result in a car every 2.5 hours entering or leaving. 

This level of traffic in both instances would not result in any significant impact on the safety or 

operation of the local highway network given existing traffic levels on the A701. 

To minimise vehicular use by occupants it is suggested that two cycles for use by any occupants be 

provided in a secure weather tight store.  In support of aspirations to support reductions in emissions 

and greener travel the applicant is also willing to install an Electric Vehicle charging point with use as 

a holiday let. 

(TRICS data in Appendices.) 

 

 

 

 

ROAD SAFETY 

The A701 is signed as a 20mph zone in the area of the site and through Broughton. 

Existing highway signage alerts drivers approaching from the south to the presence of a junction on 

the left and the possibility therefore of vehicles entering the carriageway from the left (including the 

site).  The junction to which this sign refers is assumed to be Kibucho Rd approximately 60m after the 

site access.  There is no distance plate on the sign indicating the proximity of the junction. 

An interrogation of accident records shows no recorded accidents in the vicinity of the development; 

2 serious accidents were recorded north of Broughton (see below). It would appear therefore that 

danger when emerging from the access may be more perceived than real.  This perception is likely to 

encourage suitable caution being taken when using the access. 

There remains the possibility of creating a new access onto the A701 with improved visibility.  It is 

accepted that this would necessitate a further application.  And has already been the subject of 

discussion between the applicant and officers.  There would seem to be potential benefit for all users 

in investigating options for an improved access. 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



 

Page 15



APPENDICES- TRICS DATA 

 

Page 16



 

 

 

Page 17



 
Page 18



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4b



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 22



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 23



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 24



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

LOCAL REVIEW STATEMENT  

REF: 21/00137/FUL  

 

 

LAWFUL USE OF ANNEX AS  
HOLIDAY ACCOMMODATION 

 
 

 PENVALLA, BROUGHTON,  
SCOTTISH BORDERS 

 

 

ON BEHALF OF: MR BRADLEY CLARKE 

 

 

JUNE 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

CONTENTS 
 

 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL SUMMARY      

 

2.0 REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH BORDERS      

 COUNCIL AND PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

 

3.0 GROUNDS  OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR THE APPELLANT    

   

4.0 CONCLUSIONS         
 
 

 

 
  

Page 28

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This Statement is submitted in support of a Notice of Review of the delegated decision of 

Scottish Borders Council to attach Condition 2 to Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL which 

prohibits the lawful use of the approved annex as holiday let accommodation. All Core 

Documents (CD) are referenced in Appendix 1. 

Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL granted approval for erection of a new residential annex 

and array of solar panels within the curtilage of the existing dwelling Penvalla. Despite the 

Appellant disclosing that use of the annex would involve overnight stays by friends and family, 

the second of four conditions attached to the Decision Notice requires that the annex is 

occupied “only by persons of the same household”. 

The appeal site is the existing dwelling Penvalla and its curtilage which sit in the village of 

Broughton in west Peeblesshire, approximately 7 kilometres east of Biggar. The site lies fully 

within the Development Boundary of the village and no development is proposed beyond the 

established curtilage. 

During the course of the Application’s determination, the following consultee responses were 

received from Council Officers: 

• Roads Planning team – No objection. 

• Landscape Architect – No objection. 

Proposed Revision of Condition 2 

It is accepted that conditions are required to manage the use of the approved annex. 

However, the position of the Appellant is that a minorly edited version of the Councils’ standard 

condition for managing the use of holiday let accommodation would be appropriate to this case. 

The standard use wording is more lenient that the current wording of Condition 2 and is 

replicated below: 

“The occupation of the approved annex shall be restricted to use incidental to the residential 

occupation of the principal dwelling as well as genuine holidaymakers – any person staying for 

a maximum of 4 weeks in total within any consecutive period of 13 weeks. A register of 

holidaymakers shall be kept and made available for inspection by an authorised officer of the 

Council at all reasonable times.” 

Page 29

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

The supporting justification for the current wording of Condition 2 identifies road safety 

impacts. While the response of the Roads Planning team (copied in section 2) did raise issue 

with part of the proposal – a proposed new access to the public road – that element was 

withdrawn prior to the granting of planning permission. The consultation response identified 

no disagreement or concern with the erection and use of the residential annex. 

Given that the Roads Planning team have raised no issues with the approved annex, it is the 

position of the Appellant that the wording of Condition 2 is dis-proportionate and unduly 

restrictive. It is considered that the proposed wording would allow the Planning Authority to 

appropriately manage the approved development in accordance with the standards and 

expectations set out in the Local Development Plan 2016 and Supplementary Guidance. 

The Local Review Body, having considered the detail contained within the Planning Application 

package, together with the information set out herein, will be respectfully requested to allow 

the Appeal and grant Planning Permission. 

 

  

Page 30

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This Statement supports a Notice of Review of the delegated decision of Scottish 

Borders Council to word Condition 2 of Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL so as to 

prohibit lawful use for holiday let accommodation at Penvalla, Broughton. 

1.2 The appeal site is an existing dwelling which sits to the west of the A701 within 

Broughton village. Penvalla is a detached dwelling arranged over two storeys. The house 

is set in a substantial garden and benefits from significant set back distances from 

neighbouring dwellings.  

1.3 The site is served by an existing access to the A701 and sufficient surrounding 

hardstanding apron to accommodate the parking and turning of four cars minimum.  

The Gallow Knowe, a small belt of woodland, extends across the north boundary of the 

site which gives even greater amenity to the dwelling and its occupiers. 

1.4 Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL grants consent for an annex and an array of solar 

panels. The annex has been approved in the garden of the existing dwelling to the north 

of the house. It lies fully within the residential curtilage of Penvalla and is supported by 

the existing infrastructure and amenity benefits. 

1.5 While the Planning Authority and the Appellant are largely in agreement – that the 

annex is an ancillary building to be occupied in association with the primary residential 

use of Penvalla – it is the Appellant’s position that the wording of the condition is too 

onerous and slightly tips the balance beyond being proportionate.  

1.6 It is the Appellant’s position that the annex can be used and maintained as an annex for 

residential and holiday let use managed by a standard condition which restricts the use 

and frequency with which any person can domicile themselves in the building. While it 

is accepted that it would not be suitable for the approved annex to be used as an 

independent dwelling, it is considered that there is no substantive justification 

preventing regular, regulated residential and holiday let use of the annex.    

 

 

 

Page 31

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

2.0  REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL AND 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 
2.1 Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL was approved on 19th April 2021. Four conditions 

were attached the Decision Notice, including Condition 2 copied below: 

“2. The development hereby approved shall remain as permanent ancillary 
accommodation to the principal dwelling (known currently as Penvalla) and shall be 
occupied only by persons of the same household. There shall be no subdivision of this 
single residential planning unit and it shall not be used for independent residential or 
holiday rental purposes.” 

2.2 The supporting reason identifies both the maximum extent of development that can be 

reasonably allowed without causing detriment to infrastructure provision and road 

safety concerns around use of the existing access. 

2.3 The response of the Roads Planning team and criticism contained therein has been 

copied below: 

“Whilst I have no objections to the ancillary accommodation, I do have concerns over a 

proposed new access onto the A701. The property is currently served by the existing 

access to the north and it would not be good practice to have multiple accesses to a 

single dwelling onto a principal road.” 

 

 

 

  

Page 32

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

3.0 GROUNDS FOR APPEAL AND CASE FOR THE APPELLANT 
 
3.1 The decision of the Planning Authority to draft Condition 2 in its current form is 

challenged on the basis of the Ground of Appeal set out below. It is the submission of 

the Appellant that the proposed wording of the revised condition is appropriate and 

reasonable for the purposes of regulating the use of the approved annex. 

3.2 During the course of the Application’s determination, the following consultee responses 

were received from Council Officers: 

• Roads Planning team – No objection. 

• Landscape Architect – No objection. 

 GROUND 1: THE APPROVED DEVELOPMENT CAN BE OPERATED SAFELY AS A 

RESIDENTIAL ANNEX INCLUDING BOTH INCIDENTAL TO THE RESIDENTIAL USE OF THE 

PRINCIPAL DWELLING ON-SITE AND AS HOLIDAY LET ACCOMMODATION. 

 
3.3 It is the Appellant’s position that it is reasonable and proportionate to revise Condition 

2 to a tailored revision of the Council’s standard condition for holiday let 

accommodation. The proposed wording is set out below: 

“The occupation of the approved annex shall be restricted to use incidental to the 

residential occupation of the principal dwelling as well as genuine holidaymakers – any 

person staying for a maximum of 4 weeks in total within any consecutive period of 13 

weeks. A register of holidaymakers shall be kept and made available for inspection by 

an authorised officer of the Council at all reasonable times.” 

3.4 It is acknowledged that the appointed Planning Officer has attempted to address the 

limited capacity of the site’s existing highway access. However, it is considered that the 

attempt to do so has slightly tipped the balance and does represent dis-proportionate 

use of a condition to manage approved development. 

3.5 It is recognised that the originally submitted application proposed a second access to 

the highway while retaining the existing access – arrangements which were of concern 

to the Roads Planning team. However, the application proposal was revised during 

determination to retain the existing access and exclude the previously proposed new 

access.  

Page 33

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

Those arrangements have now been approved and locked into the granted Planning 

Permission – this Notice of Review does not attempt to revisit that. 

3.6 Rather the rationale supporting revision of Condition 2 is that the Roads Planning team 

have not identified erection or use of the approved annex to pose a threat to road 

safety. The consultation response states that “I have no objections to the ancillary 

accommodation”. 

3.7 Given the absence of concern about the road safety element of the approved 

development, it is considered that an unduly restrictive condition is not required in this 

case. 

3.8 The supporting reason also identifies the causing of “detriment to infrastructure 

provision”. It should be noted that existing connections to the public water, electricity, 

and sewerage networks already serve the principal dwelling. It is considered that these 

connections are sufficient to serve the approved development. 

3.9 It is considered that the impact (if any) that rewording Condition 2 would have on road 

safety would be acceptable. The existing dwelling is already served by an existing access 

to the public road network which has been assessed by the Roads Planning team to be 

acceptable. Existing connections to the utilities networks are in place and are 

considered to be sufficient for the Appellant’s purposes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

4.0 CONCLUSIONS 

 
4.1 The Notice of Review, supported by this Statement, requests that the Council amends 

Condition 2 of Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL to enable the lawful use of the 

approved annex at Penvalla, Broughton as holiday let accommodation. 

4.2 The proposed revision of Condition 2 would enable the lawful residential and holiday 

let use of the approved annex. The consultation response of the Roads Planning team 

has not identified an unacceptable road safety impact associated with the annex. 

Existing connections to other infrastructure networks already serve the principal 

dwelling on-site and are considered to be sufficient for the purposes of the Appellant. 

The proposed revision of Condition 2 is considered to be reasonable and proportionate. 

4.3 It is considered that Condition 2, as currently worded is dis-proportionate in that in 

imposes a restriction which is not based on professional advice. While it is accepted that 

the appointed Planning Officer’s intentions in attaching the Condition were well 

meaning, it is considered that the Condition is not justifiable in it’s current form.  

4.4 The Local Review Body is respectfully requested to allow the appeal and revise the 

wording of Condition 2 of Planning Permission 21/00137/FUL. 

  

Page 35

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


 

 

Main Office: 

Shiel House | 54 Island Street | Galashiels | TD1 1NU 

NI Office: 

61 Moyle Road | Ballycastle | Co. Antrim | BT54 6LG 

T 01896 668 744 

M    07586 807 973 

E Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W www.fergusonplanning.co.uk 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Core Documents 

The following drawings, documents, and plans have been submitted to support the appeal: 

• Appeal Form; 

• CD1 Local Review Statement; 

• Application Form; 

• CD2 PL-001-P5 Location Plan and As Proposed Plans and Elevations; 

• CD3 Roads Planning team consultation response to Application 21/00137/FUL;  

• CD4 Report of Handling 21/00137/FUL; and 

• CD5 Decision Notice 21/00137/FUL. 

 

Page 36

mailto:kate@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/


P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Paul Grigor 
Roads Planning Officer 

pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826663 

Date of reply 1st March 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00137/FUL Case Officer: Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Bradley Clarke  

Agent N/A 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse, formation of new access, 
and installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 

Site Location Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

• Access 

Assessment Whilst I have no objections to the ancillary accommodation, I I do have concerns 
over a proposed new access onto the A701. The property is currently served by the 
existing access to the north and it would not be good practice to have multiple 
accesses to a single dwelling onto a principal road. 
 
In light of the above, I would be willing to support the new access providing the 
existing access which is substandard is permanently closed off. The precise details 
of the new access will also need to be agreed. 
 
As the requirement above is different to that proposed, I must seek further 
information from the applicant before I can make a recommendation. The applicant 
must confirm they are prepared to permanently close off the existing access to 
allow the formation of the new access and provide more detail in terms of geometry 
and construction make-up for the new access. 
 
Until the above points have been satisfactorily addressed I am not in a position to 
comment further. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

AJS 

Page 45

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 46

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 
 

 

 

Mr Bradley Clarke 
Penvalla 
Broughton 
Biggar 
Scottish Boders 
ML12 6HQ 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Ranald Dods 
01835 825239 

Our Ref: 21/00137/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 20th April 2021 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse and 

installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Bradley Clarke 
 
 

Please find attached the decision notice for the above application. 

 

Please read the schedule of conditions and any informative notes carefully.  

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ .  Please see the requirement for notification 

of initiation and completion of development as well as for Street naming and numbering as 

appropriate. 
 
It should be noted that before works commence, where applicable, all necessary consents should 
be obtained under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003.  If you require any further information in this 
respect, please contact the relevant Building Standards Surveyor. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 47

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                      

Regulatory Services 

   
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 21/00137/FUL 

 

To :    Mr Bradley Clarke Penvalla Broughton Biggar Scottish Boders ML12 6HQ  

 
With reference to your application validated on 29th January 2021 for planning permission under 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse and installation of 12 KW 
ground mounted solar array 
 

 

 
at :   Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders  ML12 6HQ   
 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the 
approved plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), subject to the following 
direction:  
  

 That the development to which this permission relates must be commenced within three 
years of the date of this permission. 

 
And subject to the conditions on the attached schedule imposed by the Council for the reasons 
stated 
 
Dated 19th April 2021 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   
                     
 

 John Hayward 
 Planning & Development Standards Manager 

 

Page 48



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   
 

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  21/00137/FUL 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 
 
Plan Ref   Plan Type    Plan Status 
 

Panel elevation Proposed Elevations   Approved 

PL-001 REV P5 Proposed Plans & Elevations  Approved 
 
REASON FOR DECISION 

 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the 
relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations 
that would justify a departure from these provisions. 

 
SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 

accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the planning authority.  
 Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved 

details. 
 
 2 The development hereby approved shall remain as permanent ancillary accommodation to 

the principal dwelling (known currently as Penvalla) and shall be occupied only by persons 
of the same household.  There shall be no subdivision of this single residential planning 
unit and it shall not be used for independent residential or holiday rental purposes. 

 Reason:  The planning authority considers that the development hereby permitted is the 
maximum that can be reasonably allowed without causing detriment to infrastructure 
provision and an intensification of use of the road/access by increased vehicle movements 
would not be appropriate in this location. 

 
 3 No development shall be commenced until a detailed 'method statement' in relation to all 

works within the root protection area (RPA) of retained trees has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority.  Specific issues to be dealt with in the method 
statement: 

 a)  A scaled plan (minimum of 1:200) showing the position, size, RPA, species and unique 
identification reference of each retained tree affected by the works and including details of 
the extent and nature of all works within the RPA of retained trees.  The Tree Protection 
Plan (as required in BS 5837:2012) to be submitted should show location of all tree 
protection in relation to the proposed development, fencing and with hatching or other to 
show ground protection and there should be a statement about hand digging only within 
RPAs - when excavations are absolutely necessary; 

 b)  a written statement detailing the proposed works including hand digging, use of filter 
cloth, timber edging, cellular ground reinforcement, porous surfaces etc. as relevant; 

 c)  a specification for protective fencing to safeguard trees during the construction phases 
and a plan indicating the alignment of the protective fencing; 

 d)  a specification for ground protection within RPAs. 
 The development thereafter shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved 

details. 
 Reason: To ensure that the trees to be retained and which are of value to the national 

scenic area will not be damaged during construction operations. 
 

Page 49



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   
 4 No development should commence until evidence has been provided to the planning 

authority that the ancillary building is to be connected to the public water supply and foul 
drainage system, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority.  
Thereafter, the ancillary building shall not be occupied until the connections are made to 
those networks. 

 Reason:  To ensure that the development is adequately serviced with a sufficient supply of 
wholesome water and to ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect 
on amenity and public health. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
  
N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the 
proposed development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the 
development should not be commenced until all consents are obtained. 
 
Under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Council recommends the following hours for noisy 
construction-related work: 
Monday-Friday   0700-1900 
Saturday            0800-1300 
Sunday and Public Holidays   -   no permitted work (except by prior agreement with the Council) 
 
Contractors will be expected to adhere to the measures contained in BS 5228:2009 “Code of 
Practice for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites”. 
 
For more information or to make a request to carry out works outside the above hours, please 
contact an Environmental Health Officer at the Council. 
 
Notice of Initiation of Development 
 
Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any 
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and 
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the 
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable.  A form is 
available on the Council’s website for this purpose. 
 
Notice of Completion of Development 
 

Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that 
any person who completes a development for which planning permission (including planning 
permission in principle) has been given must, as soon as practicable after doing so, give notice of 
completion to the planning authority. 
 
When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the 
permission is to be granted subject to a condition  that as soon as practicable after each phase, 
other than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that 
completion to the planning authority.   
 
In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose 
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake.  Contacts include: 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   
 
Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD 
Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA 
Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU 
British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke 
on Trent, ST1 5ND 
Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, 
TD6 0SA 
Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL 
BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo’ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH 
THUS, Susiephone Department, 4th Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD 
Susiephone System – 0800 800 333 
 
If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at 
the following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield, 
Nottinghamshire NG18 4RG. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice. 
 
The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The 
Local Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells. TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk.  The 
standard form and guidance notes can be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision.  Appeals to 
the Local Review Body can also be made via the Scottish Government Planning and 
Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).  
 
 

Page 51

mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20050/planning_applications/533/appeal_a_planning_decision
https://www.dpea.scotland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     21/00137/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Bradley Clarke 

 
AGENT :    
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse and installation of 12 
KW ground mounted solar array 
 
LOCATION:  Penvalla 

Broughton 
Scottish Borders 
ML12 6HQ 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:  Late Submission of Information 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
Panel elevation  Proposed Elevations Approved 
PL-001 REV P5  Proposed Plans & Elevations Approved 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No representations were received.   
 
Consultation responses were received from:  Roads - no objection to the revised proposal; Landscape 
Architect - no objection to the revised proposal, subject to conditions. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
PMD2 - Quality standards 
HD3 - Protection of residential amenity 
EP4 - National scenic areas  
EP13 - Trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
IS9 - Waste water treatment standards and sustainable urban drainage 
 
The site is not strategic, therefore the policies contained within SESplan have not been considered. 
 
The following council guidance is material: 
Placemaking and design; 
Privacy and sunlight guide; 
Sustainable urban drainage systems; 
Trees and development. 
  
 

Page 53



Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 19th April 2021 
 
Site  
Penvalla is a detached villa located to the west of the A701 in Broughton and is within the Upper Tweeddale 
national scenic area (NSA). To the north of the garden associated with the house is a parcel of mature 
woodland, which is roughly 0.34 of a hectare in area.  There are residential properties to the north and 
south, whilst agricultural land lies to the west.  
 
Proposal  
The proposal is for a small A frame building, approximately 5m by 7m and 4m to ridge, located within the 
garden approximately 14m to the north west of the house.  Also included in the application is a solar array 
on the southern boundary of the site, although that element would be permitted development in terms of 
class 3B of the GPDO.  The applicant originally proposed an additional access in the south west corner of 
the property.  In their initial consultation response, Roads noted that they did not object to the principle of the 
building but expressed concern about the proposed access.  That element was subsequently deleted from 
the proposal and revised drawings submitted. 
 
Planning history  
There is some planning history associated with this site.  That can be summarised as follows: 
 
20/01370/CLPU, Erection of ancillary building within garden ground, refused, 19 Nov 20. 
 
Principle 
The construction of an ancillary building containing primary residential accommodation requires planning 
permission.  The applicant has stated that the building will serve as additional an accommodation annex to 
the main house.  The building would be within the curtilage and share the same garden and parking areas.  
The key consideration with this proposal would be the potential impact on residential amenity under policy 
HD3.   
 
In this instance the proposed building is sufficiently distant from the neighbouring properties not to be 
detrimental to the amenity currently enjoyed by them.  A condition is recommended in order to ensure the 
building remains as ancillary to Penvalla.  Taking the above factors into consideration and subject to 
conditions, I conclude that this development would comply with policy HD3.   
 
Design 
The proposed development would be an A frame building which would provide a living space, a kitchen 
area, a WC and a shower.  The building would be located at the northern edge of the garden, some 14m 
from the house and orientated approximately east to west.  The roof of the building would be formed with 
black profile steel sheeting.  That is acceptable and the colour is one which can be found on small 
outbuildings elsewhere and the building will have no visibility of note in any case.  The gable elevations of 
the building would be plain, with one being almost completely glazed and the other having black horizontal 
timber boarding and a door to give entry.   
 
Visual impact 
The building would not be seen from the public realm as a result of the topography of the site and the hedge 
on the boundary with the public road.  Even were it to be, the size of the building is not one which would 
cause a significant visual impact.  The drawings show that as a 9 panel door which appears overly fussy for 
such a simple building but that is not a matter which I see as needing revision given the lack of visibility that 
the building will have.  It's unclear from the drawings which direction the glazed gable will face but it is 
assumed that will be the westerly gable, given that is the view to the countryside.  Again, because of the lack 
of visibility to the building and the relationship to the adjoining properties, that is not a matter which causes 
me concern. The proposed design is simple and visually acceptable. 
 
The solar array in the south west of the site would be permitted development.  Even were it to require 
planning permission, the drawings which the applicant has provided suggest that the visual impact would not 
be significant and that it would not be seen from the public realm. 
 
Amenity and privacy 

Page 54



The building would be sufficiently distant from other houses and the only window proposed faces into the 
applicant's garden and countryside beyond.  As such, the proposed development would not be detrimental 
to residential amenity or privacy nor would it result in overshadowing or loss of daylight.  
 
Impact on the NSA 
The design is simple and would have the appearance of a small, utilitarian outbuilding building.  That, 
coupled with the lack of visibility from the public realm, leads me to conclude that the proposed development 
would not be detrimental to the objectives or overall integrity of the NSA.  
 
Trees 
As the proposal would impact a number of trees, especially the initial submission, the applicant was asked to 
submit further information on the trees in order to make a proper assessment.  That was submitted and 
assessed by the Landscape Architect who had concerns about the quality of the report.  However, as the 
proposals have been revised to exclude the access, the only area of possible concern relating to trees would 
be that in the immediate vicinity of the ancillary building.  Whilst those are within the control of the applicant, 
they do form a part of a woodland which makes a positive contribution to Broughton and the wider NSA.  I 
have spoken to the Landscape Architect about the revised scheme and she did not object but recommended 
a condition.  I have no reason to disagree with that assessment.   
 
Services 
The application form does not refer to water or foul drainage services.  It is assumed that connections will be 
made to the existing public water and foul drainage systems.  A condition is recommended in that regard. 
Surface water drainage should not have implications that need accounted for here.   
 
Conclusion 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the relevant 
provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations that would justify a 
departure from these provisions. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the relevant 
provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations that would justify a 
departure from these provisions. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance 

with the plans and specifications approved by the planning authority.  
 Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
 2 The development hereby approved shall remain as permanent ancillary accommodation to the 

principal dwelling (known currently as Penvalla) and shall be occupied only by persons of the same 
household.  There shall be no subdivision of this single residential planning unit and it shall not be 
used for independent residential or holiday rental purposes. 

 Reason:  The planning authority considers that the development hereby permitted is the maximum 
that can be reasonably allowed without causing detriment to infrastructure provision and an 
intensification of use of the road/access by increased vehicle movements would not be appropriate 
in this location. 

 
 3 No development shall be commenced until a detailed 'method statement' in relation to all works 

within the root protection area (RPA) of retained trees has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority.  Specific issues to be dealt with in the method statement: 

 a)  A scaled plan (minimum of 1:200) showing the position, size, RPA, species and unique 
identification reference of each retained tree affected by the works and including details of the extent 
and nature of all works within the RPA of retained trees.  The Tree Protection Plan (as required in 
BS 5837:2012) to be submitted should show location of all tree protection in relation to the proposed 

Page 55



development, fencing and with hatching or other to show ground protection and there should be a 
statement about hand digging only within RPAs - when excavations are absolutely necessary; 

 b)  a written statement detailing the proposed works including hand digging, use of filter cloth, timber 
edging, cellular ground reinforcement, porous surfaces etc. as relevant; 

 c)  a specification for protective fencing to safeguard trees during the construction phases and a 
plan indicating the alignment of the protective fencing; 

 d)  a specification for ground protection within RPAs. 
 The development thereafter shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved details. 
 Reason: To ensure that the trees to be retained and which are of value to the national scenic area 

will not be damaged during construction operations. 
 
 4 No development should commence until evidence has been provided to the planning authority that 

the ancillary building is to be connected to the public water supply and foul drainage system, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority.  Thereafter, the ancillary building shall not be 
occupied until the connections are made to those networks. 

 Reason:  To ensure that the development is adequately serviced with a sufficient supply of 
wholesome water and to ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect on amenity 
and public health. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 56



P
age 57

A
genda Item

 4c



P
age 58



 
Ref No 20/01370/CLPU 

 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

SECTION 150 AND 151 
 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) 
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013 

REGULATION 44 (6) 
 

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL PROPOSED USE OR DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby certify that on 10th November 2020 the 
use/operation/matter described in the First Schedule hereto in respect of the land specified in 
the Second Schedule hereto and identified in red on the submitted plan would not have been 
lawful within the meaning of section 150 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997 (as amended), for the following reasons(s) 
 
 

 1 The application outlines proposed operational development that would not constitute 
permitted development under The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, as amended. 

 
 
N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the proposed 
development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the development 
should not be commenced until all consents are obtained. 
  
John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 
On behalf of Scottish Borders Council 
 
Date 19th November 2020 
 
First Schedule 
 
Erection of ancillary building within garden ground 
 
Second Schedule 
 
Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ  
 
  
 

Page 59



 
Notes 
 
1. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of section 150/151 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
2. It certifies that the use/operations/matter described in the First Schedule taking place 

on the land specified in the Second Schedule will not be lawful, on the specified date 
and, thus, will be liable to enforcement action under section 127 of the 1997 Act on 
that date. 

 
3. This certificate applies only to the extent of the use/operations/matter  

described in the First Schedule and to the land specified in the Second Schedule and 
identified on the submitted plan.  Any use/operations/matter which is materially 
different from that described or which relates to other land may render the owner or 
occupier liable to enforcement action. 
 

4.  The effect of the certificate is also qualified by the proviso in section 151(4) of the 1997 
Act (as amended), which states that the lawfulness of a described use or operation is 
only conclusively presumed where there has been no material change, before the use 
is instituted or the operations begun, in any of the matters relevant to determining 
such lawfulness. 

 

 

Page 60



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/01370/CLPU 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Bradley Clarke 

 
AGENT :    
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of ancillary building within garden ground 
 
LOCATION:  Penvalla 

Broughton 
Scottish Borders 
ML12 6HQ 
 

 
TYPE :    CLPU Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
PL-001 rev P1  Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
There were no representations received.  No consultations were required. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, as amended. 
 
Circular 1/2012: Guidance on Householder Permitted Development Rights. 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 19th November 2020 
 
Site  
Penvalla is a detached villa located to the west of the A701 in Broughton. To the north of the garden 
associated with the house is a parcel of mature woodland, which is roughly 0.34 of a hectare in area.  There 
is a small summerhouse in the south western corner of the woodland, some 75m from the house.   Although 
there is some doubt about that being within the curtilage of the house, the application is stated as relating to 
ancillary accommodation within the woodland area.  There are residential properties to the north and south, 
whilst agricultural land lies to the west.  
 
Proposal  
The proposed development would see the replacement of the existing summerhouse with an A frame 
building.  Within the building would be a living space, a kitchen area, a WC and a shower.  A flue for a solid 
fuel stove would project through the eastern roofplane.  
 
Planning history  

Page 61



There is no planning history associated with this site.  
 
Assessment  
In determining whether the proposed development is permitted development it must be assessed against 
the appropriate class within the Town and Country (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 
(as amended).   
 
Class 3A(1) permits:  The provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of a building for any purpose 
incidental to the enjoyment of that dwellinghouse or the alteration, maintenance or improvement of such a 
building.   
 
Although it is arguable whether the proposed development actually falls within the curtilage of the 
dwellinghouse (being sited within a woodland strip) the proposed development more categorically fails to 
meet the criteria outlined above for the following reason:   An incidental use under Class 3A is one that has 
a supportive functional relationship with the primary use of the planning unit.  However, habitable 
accommodation is not incidental but is primary accommodation.  As the proposal is for a building which 
comprises wholly of habitable accommodation, it cannot be deemed to be incidental.   
 
Taking all of the considerations and evidence submitted with the application into account, the proposed 
development is not permitted development under Class 3A of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, as amended.  The proposed development therefore 
requires planning permission. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The application outlines proposed operational development that would not constitute permitted development 
under The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, as 
amended. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The application outlines proposed operational development that would not constitute permitted 

development under The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) 
Order 1992, as amended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 62



Sinks

Cottage

Firknowe

Carnmhor

Bruaichean

Penvalla

Springhill

Station

The Schoolhouse

Cairn View

Church

The Birches

Burnside

Pav

3

1

Ardbucho

Calzeat

Craikhope

Caolila

Galavale

Cottages

Greenfield

Thornbank

A 701

Gallow Knowe

Tennis Court

Bowling
Green

Broughton

Tr
ac

k

MP

200.3m

200.9m

TCB

FB

Weir

Broughton Bridge

War
Meml

North

30
00

Proposed lodge min. 
3m from boundary

WC

Shower

Living space

29
7

68
50

Ground Floor
0

Rdige
4000

checkeddrawnscale

rev date

job number

project

dwg purpose

drawing number revision

@ sheet size A1

drawing title

client

location

NOTES
ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS ARE TO BE CHECKED ON 
SITE

ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE REPORTED TO THE 
PROJECT MANAGER BEFORE ANY WORK COMMENCES

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE SCALED TO ASCERTAIN ANY 
DIMENSIONS WORK TO FIGURED DIMS ONLY

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT 
EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM Clarkes Bespoke 
Design LTD.

C
la

rk
es

 B
es

po
ke

 D
es

ig
n 

LT
D

T: 07402266305  E: 
brad@cbdarchitecture.com

As indicated
16.10.20

P1- PL-001

BCBC

Location Plan and As Propsoed
Plans and Elevations

A Frame

-

Penvalla
Broughton, ML12 6HQ

Rev
No.

Rev
Date

Rev By Description

P1 16.10.20 BC First Issue

1 : 1250
Location plan1

1 : 50
Proposed Plan2

1 : 50
Front Elevation3 1 : 50

LHS Elevation4 1 : 50
Rear Elevation5 1 : 50

RHS Elevation6

Rear / LHS 3D View7

Horizontal timber cladding in black Profile Steel Sheet 
cladding in black

Timber fascias painted black Glazed curtain wall 
with clear double 
glazed units

PLANNING

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Landscape Architect 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   15th February 2021 
 
Contact:  Ranald Dods       01835 825239  Ref:  21/00137/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 8th March 2021, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 8th March 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Bradley Clarke  
  
Agent:  N/A 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse, formation of new 
access, and installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 
Site:  Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ   
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 4d

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Landscape Architect 
S McDermott 

 

Date of reply 5th April 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00137/FUL Case Officer: 
Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Bradley Clarke  

Agent N/A 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse, formation of new access, 
and installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 

Site Location Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

Penvalla is a large detached house set in large garden and the property includes a 
mature woodland along the north boundary - woodland that was evident on the 
early OS maps of the area. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Can the proposals be accommodated without having a negative impact on 
the existing tree resource and on the setting of Penvalla and wider 
streetscape? 

Assessment Broughton lies towards the western edge of the Upper Tweeddale National 
Scenic Area (NSA) an area designated at national level for the quality of the 
landscape.  It is important that development within this area does not have a 
negative impact on the qualities that make the area special. 
The Tree Survey and Arboricultural Constraints Report covers a very limited 
number of trees and, particularly in the area proposed for the cabin and the 
solar panels, it is not clear whether all the trees that potentially could be 
affected by the proposals have been surveyed.   
With regard the report itself, BS 5837:2012 recommends at Section 4 
Feasibility: surveys and preliminary constraints that ideally the tree survey is 
recorded on a topographical survey with scale of the drawing shown.  In my 
opinion the recording of the survey information on a very small scale aerial  
imagery plan is not adequate (although in this instance it usefully 
demonstrates the number of unsurveyed trees around the proposed 
development) 
The recording conventions as listed in Section 4.4.2.5 of BS 5837:2012 have 
not been totally followed – while the Tree Survey Plan shows trees crown 
spread and RPAs , it does not give the dimensions of each tree from which 
the RPA were developed, nor provide measurement information to allow the 
RPAs to be accurately located on the ground.  The Tree Summary report is 
cursory – not providing any in depth assessment of the trees as might have 
been expected and the recommendation that a Tree Protection Plan and 
Arboricultural Method Statement should be follow up work rather than part of 
the overall assessment is less than helpful and prolongs the process - no real 
assessment of potential impacts has been carried out. 
 

Page 66

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

The following are my concerns about this development:- 
1. The cabin towards the northern edge of the garden ground is located 

within an area where there are trees and it would appear from the 
Tree Report that already some trees have been felled and excavations 
have been commenced in the area - it is not clear the scale or extent 
of these but the excavations are likely to have already impacted on 
the surrounding tree resource. There is no detail about the 
foundations for the cabin – I can only assume a strip foundation is 
proposed which would be inappropriate within the RPA of 
surrounding trees. I would be unlikely to object to a cabin somewhere 
in the garden ground of Penvalla, if it was shown that it would not 
impact on the existing trees (the garden ground is extensive enough 
to accommodate a small cabin without a detrimental impact on the 
trees) however the current proposal is lacking in information and it 
appears it will impact on quite a number of trees. 

2. It is not clear what the purpose of the new access at the SE corner of 
the property is – it does not show it (on the latest Location Plan) 
connecting to the existing driveway, nor does it appear large enough 
to accommodate 5 cars as was detailed in the application.  An 
additional concern about the location of the new access and parking 
is that it is proposed on what is currently banking and there is no 
detail of existing and proposed levels that would be required to 
achieve this. I would be unlikely to support the removal of a mature 
beech tree to accommodate a new access and parking area in this 
location without a lot more detail, and given that there is an existing 
useable access, I suggest the proposed access, requiring the loss of 
a mature roadside tree and a new opening, could potentially have 
quite a negative visual impact on the character of the road. The 
proposal to build a red brick boundary wall would not in my opinion 
be appropriate to the area. Although there is a brick wall between the 
properties along the south boundary, this is hardly visible.  A 
masonry wall along the west boundary would be more in keeping 
with the character of the village and wider area.) 

3. The proposal to locate the solar panel array in the SW corner of the 
garden ground should  consider and demonstrate that any existing 
trees to the south (including those in the neighbouring property will 
not interfere with solar gain – it may be that a different location is 
required to avoid overshadowing by trees. 

 
In summary, I would only support this application if it could be 
demonstrated that the impact on existing tree resource and visual impacts 
on receptors using the A701 was minimal and at the moment I do not think 
this is the case.  

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Page 67

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 68

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Paul Grigor 
Roads Planning Officer 

pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826663 

Date of reply 1st March 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00137/FUL Case Officer: Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Bradley Clarke  

Agent N/A 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of ancillary accommodation to dwellinghouse, formation of new access, 
and installation of 12 KW ground mounted solar array 

Site Location Penvalla Broughton Scottish Borders ML12 6HQ   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Access 

Assessment Whilst I have no objections to the ancillary accommodation, I I do have concerns 
over a proposed new access onto the A701. The property is currently served by the 
existing access to the north and it would not be good practice to have multiple 
accesses to a single dwelling onto a principal road. 
 
In light of the above, I would be willing to support the new access providing the 
existing access which is substandard is permanently closed off. The precise details 
of the new access will also need to be agreed. 
 
As the requirement above is different to that proposed, I must seek further 
information from the applicant before I can make a recommendation. The applicant 
must confirm they are prepared to permanently close off the existing access to 
allow the formation of the new access and provide more detail in terms of geometry 
and construction make-up for the new access. 
 
Until the above points have been satisfactorily addressed I am not in a position to 
comment further. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

AJS 

Page 69

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 70

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


List of Policies 

Local Review Reference: 21/00013/RCOND 
Planning Application Reference: 21/00137/FUL 
Development Proposal:  Erection of ancilliary accommodation to dwellinghouse 
and installation of 12KW ground mounted solar array 
Location: Penvalla, Broughton 
Applicant: Mr Bradley Clarke 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
 
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that: 
 
Sustainability  
a)  In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in 
accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of 
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, 
b)  it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure, 
c)  it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance, 
d)  it encourages minimal water usage for new developments, 
e)  it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities, 
f)  it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider 
environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be 
required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development 
and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
maintenance, 
g)  it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces. 
 
Placemaking & Design 
h)  It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not 
exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design, 
i)  it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building, 
j)  it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building, 
k)  it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form, 
l)  it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site, 
m)  it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
development that will help integration with its surroundings, 
n)  it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’. 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 4e



List of Policies 

Accessibility  
o)  Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths, 
p)  it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties, 
q)  it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 
site access, 
r)  it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible 
to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable 
travel patterns, 
s)  it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes. 
 
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity 
t)  It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an 
up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution 
to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by 
appropriate arrangements for maintenance, 
u)  it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements. 
 
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate. 
 
POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT 
 
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied: 
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking. 
All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate. 
 
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and 
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against: 
 
a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space 

that would be lost; and 
b)  the details of the development itself particularly in terms of: 

Page 72



List of Policies 

(i)  the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential 
area, 
(ii)  the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding 

properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting 
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden 
ground or ‘backland’ development,  

(iii)  the generation of traffic or noise, 
(iv)  the level of visual impact. 
 
POLICY EP4: NATIONAL SCENIC AREAS 
 
Development that may affect National Scenic Areas will only be permitted where: 
 
a) the objectives of designation and the overall landscape value of the site and its 
surrounds will not be compromised, or 
b) any significant adverse effects on the qualities for which the site or its surrounds 
have been designated are clearly outweighed by social or economic benefits of national 
importance. 
 
POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS 
 
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value. 
 
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should: 
 
a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and 
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and 
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource. 
 
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS 
 
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards.  
 
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety. 
 
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes. 
 
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE 
 
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS 
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority: 
 
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that: 

Page 73



List of Policies 

b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that: 
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that: 
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater. 
 
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied. 
 
Development will be refused if: 
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements, 
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure. 
  
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features. 
 
POLICY ED9: RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT 
 
RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS 
The council will support proposals for both large scale and community scale renewable 
energy development including commercial wind farms, single or limited scale wind turbines, 
biomass, hydropower, biofuel technology, and solar power where they can be 
accommodated without unacceptable significant adverse impacts or effects, giving due 
regard to relevant environmental, community and cumulative impact considerations. 
 
The assessment of applications for renewable energy developments will be based on the 
principles set out in Scottish Planning Policy (2014), in particular, for onshore wind 
developments, the terms of Table 1: Spatial Frameworks. Renewable energy developments, 
including wind energy proposals, will be approved provided that there are no relevant 
unacceptable significant adverse impacts or effects that cannot be satisfactorily mitigated. If 
there are judged to be relevant significant adverse impacts or effects that cannot be 
satisfactorily mitigated, the development will only be approved if the council is satisfied that 
the wider economic, environmental and other benefits of the proposal outweigh the potential 
damage arising from it. 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE 
The council will produce statutory Supplementary Guidance on wind energy and renewable 
energy. This shall be submitted to Ministers within 12 months of adoption of the plan. The 
guidance will accord with Scottish Planning Policy (2014), and will set out the detailed policy 
considerations against which all proposals for wind energy and other forms of renewable 

Page 74



List of Policies 

energy will be assessed, based on those considerations set out at paragraph 169. The 
guidance on wind energy will contain the onshore spatial framework as required by Scottish 
Planning Policy (2014), identifying areas where wind farms will not be acceptable, areas of 
significant protection, and areas with potential for wind farm development, and indicating the 
minimum scale of onshore wind development that the framework applies to. 
 
The council will produce statutory Supplementary Guidance to update the landscape and 
visual guidance for single and groups of 2 or 3 wind turbines in Berwickshire so that it 
accords with Scottish Planning Policy (2014). 
  
CONSIDERATION OF WIND ENERGY PROPOSALS 
The assessment of wind energy proposals will include the following considerations: 
 
• the onshore spatial framework which identifies those areas that are likely to be most 
appropriate for onshore wind turbines; 
• landscape and visual impacts, to include effects on wild land, and taking into account 
the report on Landscape Capacity and Cumulative Impact (July 2013) as an initial reference 
point, the landscape and visual impact assessment for a proposal (which should 
demonstrate that it can be satisfactorily accommodated in the landscape, and should 
properly address the issues raised in the 2013 report), and other relevant landscape, visual 
and cumulative impact guidance, for example that produced by Scottish Natural Heritage; 
• all cumulative impacts, including cumulative landscape and visual impact, 
recognising that in some areas the cumulative impact of existing and consented 
development may limit the capacity for further  development; 
• impacts on communities and individual dwellings (including visual impact, residential 
amenity, noise and shadow flicker); 
• impacts on carbon rich soils (using the carbon calculator), public access, the historic 
environment (including scheduled monuments and listed buildings, and their settings), 
tourism and recreation, aviation and defence interests and seismological recording, 
telecommunications and broadcasting installations, and adjacent trunk roads and road 
traffic; 
• effects on the natural heritage (including birds), and hydrology, the water 
environment and flood risk; 
• opportunities for energy storage; 
• net economic impact, including local and community socio-economic benefits such 
as employment, associated business and supply chain opportunities; 
• the scale of contribution to renewable energy generation targets, and the effect on 
greenhouse emissions; 
• the need for conditions relating to the decommissioning of developments, including 
ancillary infrastructure, and site restoration; and 
• the need for a robust planning obligation to ensure that operators achieve site 
restoration. 
 
Developers must demonstrate that they have considered options for minimising the 
operational impact of wind turbine proposals, including ancillary development such as tracks. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF OTHER RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS 
Small scale or domestic renewable energy developments including community schemes, 
single turbines and micro-scale photovoltaic/solar panels will be encouraged where they can 
be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings in accordance with the protection of 
residential amenity and the historic and natural environment. 
 
Renewable technologies that require a countryside location such as the development of bio 
fuels, short crop rotation coppice, “biomass” or small scale hydro-power will be assessed 

Page 75



List of Policies 

against the relevant environmental protection and promotion policies, and other relevant 
policies in the local development plan. 
 
Waste to energy schemes involving human, farm and domestic waste will be assessed 
against Policy IS10 Waste Management Facilities. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on SUDS 2020 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Renewable Energy 2017 

 

Page 76



From:Easingwood, Stuart
Sent:9 Sep 2021 14:29:10 +0100
To:localreview
Subject:RE: Local Review - Review of 21/00015/RREF

My sincere apologies for this omission, this was entirely my doing as I had thought the response 
had been made but in fact it was still sitting with me.  Officers have provided me with the 
following response:

 

The main issue with the supporting paper is that we believe it is making a business case and 
not a planning proposal. The HSCP have not commissioned this, yet DDL are proposing a 
business case as though it is of financial benefit to the HSCP. It is also written as if it is entirely 
in line with the HSCP strategic plan but there are elements which are not at this point in time. 
The proposal makes claims but does not provide the evidence behind those claims.

 

The planning aspects of it are considerable as the Hub is not only a building based service. The 
hub is proposing a Hub and spoke style of delivery with additional staffing to provide therapeutic 
input as well as nursing and AHP staffing. It is offering services that are described as being to 
the benefit of the HSCP, but the paper does not set out how the HSCP has been involved in the 
planning paper presented; what the funding approach for the proposal would look like.  What 
are the operating hours, will it have overnight workforce etc..

 

The Paper sets out a proposal for a one-stop-shop and, given the critical and individual level of 
need, we think that part needs further clarity for planning purposes e.g. a range of professionals, 
equipment and medication is proposed to be stored and used. Given the high level of needs, 
then what type of equipment is proposed and what would a ‘spa’ like range of services be as 
this would be critical for building i.e. flooring, glass usage, sound proofing, track & hoists etc…..

 

DDL are one of our commissioned care at home providers in the area of Innerleithen and 
Peebles. They are a good quality provider.

 

In this instance We do not believe the planning proposal or business case has been presented 
to HSCP and therefore the claims made in the report would need to be presented for HSCP 
consideration.

 

There are a couple of sections which are important to clarify. In section 3.2 “Demise of 
Provision” this is in relation to Day centre closure. This is not a demise in provision, the 

Page 77

Agenda Item 5a



provision is in accordance with the national and local personalisation agenda as we move 
towards supporting people to have greater choice and control on how they live well. It was a 
move from buildings based services towards a Local Area Coordinator model.

 

In section 3.3 the paper refers to RVS as a day service provision and that it does not cater for 
people with higher level needs.  RVS are not a Day Centre and therefore do not require 
registration with the Care Inspectorate. However, people who would like to or choose 
attendance at a social centre can do this if their assessed needs can be met through Self 
Directed Support personal assistants for example.

 

I hope this response is helpful

 

Stuart C. Easingwood

 

 

Stuart C. Easingwood

Director of Social Work & Practice

Scottish Borders Council

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 09 September 2021 14:18
To: Easingwood, Stuart <seasingwood@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Local Review - Review of 21/00015/RREF
Importance: High

 

Good Afternoon Stuart

 

I do not appear to have received a response to my e-mail below dated 20 August 2021 in respect of the 
above.  

 

Page 78



The comments require to be forwarded to the Applicant for comment prior to the meeting which is due 
to be held on Monday. 18 October 2021.  

 

You will note from the e-mail below that the deadline was Monday, 6 September 2021.

 

Regards Fiona 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: localreview 
Sent: 20 August 2021 13:29
To: Easingwood, Stuart <seasingwood@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Local Review - Review of 21/00015/RREF

 

Hello Stuart,

 

3 Cavalry Park, Peebles - Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to 
form additional office space from attic floor

 

Page 79

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:seasingwood@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Please see attached letter regarding the review of the above application. Please send any comments to 
the above email address by 6 September at the latest.

 

Thanks

Fiona

 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

Page 80

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk


From:Dods, Ranald
Sent:3 Sep 2021 15:06:00 +0100
To:localreview
Subject:RE: Local Review - Review of 21/00015/RREF

Dear Fiona,

 

Thank you for your email.

 

I note the list of companies in Cavalry Park provided by the appellant.  I also note that they are uncertain 
of the nature of many the businesses.  In any event, the nature of those businesses is predominantly 
class 4 or would be considered complimentary commercial activity to the Cavalry Park strategic high 
amenity site which would enhance the quality of the business park as an employment location.  A day 
centre for the elderly does not fit comfortably within that definition.

 

In terms of the document submitted as a “business plan”, this is not a detailed business plan which I 
might expect to see with an application in support of a sound business proposal.  Rather it is a statement 
about what services would be provided by DLL Care Hub ltd, what facilities would be provided within the 
building.  Within the 11 page document, it is only at page 9 that any monetary figures appear and even 
then, the figures do not set out any start-up costs; profit and loss forecast; sourcing of finance; 
management of financial risks or; cash flow forecasts.  It does not provide any detailed analysis of how 
the business would be run in terms of things such as:  staffing; suppliers; equipment or; managing 
operational risk.  No real detail is given of market research; customer profiling; competitor profiling; 
managing market risks; pricing or; promotion and advertising.  In short, this is not appear to be a 
business plan which can be relied upon.

 

Ranald

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 20 August 2021 13:30
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Local Review - Review of 21/00015/RREF

 

 

Page 81



Hello Ranald,

 

3 Cavalry Park, Peebles  - Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to 
form additional office space from attic floor

 

 

Please see attached letter regarding the review of the above application. Please send any comments to 
the above email address by 6 September at the latest.

 

Thanks

Fiona

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

Page 82

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk


 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY 

RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION REQUEST BY 

DDL CARE SERVICES 

Development: Planning Permission for Part Change of Use 

Ground Floor to Class 10 and Alteration to Form Additional 

Office Space from Attic Floor (21/00486/FUL) 

Location: 3 Rowan Court, Suite 3, Cavalry Park, Peebles,  

EH54 9BU 

Date:22nd September 2021 

 

  
 

HolderPlanning 

Page 83



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

1 
 

 

1.1 This document is a statement by DDL Care Services in respect to the Review which was 

deferred by the Local Review Body at their meeting on 16th August 2021 for the purpose 

of seeking further information on the following matters: 

• DDL Care Hub Business Plan 

• Cavalry Park List of companies 

1.2 The background to this is that our Local Review submission included new documents 

related to the above points, and the LRB wished to seek the comments of the following 

Council departments on their content: 

• Planning 

• Economic Development 

• Social Work 

1.3 We have been invited to respond to the comments of these parties. At the time of writing, 

we have not received any comments from Economic Development, so this document can 

only respond to the comments of the other two parties. 

1.4 Before considering these comments, it is important to highlight that the submitted 

Business Plan is not a business plan in the sense of including detailed financial projections, 

marketing and operational plans. DDL Care do have a more detailed Business Plan, but the 

submitted document was written by DDL in direct response to a request of the Health & 

Social Care Partnership in the form that they required. 

1.5 DDL submitted the Business Plan to the Local Review Body simply to provide a helpful 

overview of the nature of the operation as proposed. 

1.6 We provide a response to the Council’s Social Work Department below, and in our view 

they do not raise any matters to suggest the planning permission should be refused. 

Indeed, they identify DDL as a quality service provider. The matters raised in their response 

relate to the operation of the facility in terms of the care regime, and are not in our view 

particularly material to the town planning matters which the LRB is concerned with.  

1.7 Notwithstanding this, we recognise that the LRB will be keen to understand if the proposed 

use is one that should be considered favourably from a care point of view, and in that 

regard DDL have received supporting correspondence from the following parties, which 

we think it is important that the LRB should be aware of. 

• Robert McCulloch Graham – Chief Officer of Integrated Joint Board (IJB) Health and 

Social Care Partnership (HSCP). 

• Peebles & District Community Council 

• David Mundell MP 

• Other Supporting Correspondence 

1.0 RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION REQUEST 

Page 84



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

2 
 

1.8 Robert McCulloch Graham has indicated that he wishes DDL to communicate the following 

to the LRB: 

“DDL Care Services, are a well respected commissioning partner of the Health and Social 

Care Partnership of the Scottish Borders. Their intentions to widen their service within 

Peebles and Innerleithen is an exciting development and I am sure it will be welcomed 

by our more vulnerable families within that area.  

Keeping people both mentally and physically active fits with the first objective of the 

Integration Joint Board’s Strategy, and the range of activities proposed by DDL based in 

people’s homes, in community venues and their own premises would I am sure be very 

attractive to a lot of residents. 

I would therefore be supportive of their application for building permission to allow this 

first step towards their vision.” (full correspondence attached) 

1.9 Peebles and District Community Council have provided the following comments, in 

summary (full correspondence attached): 

• We have reviewed the information on the planning portal and researched the 

quality service of DDL, and believe the plans are worthy of support. 

• The officer’s report says that the proposal would set an undesirable precedent. 

The precedent has already been set several times, with permissions for a Training 

Centre, Gym, Beauty Therapy, a Dental Surgery and a Nursery. 

• To say there will be a loss for the future is wrong. There will be the conversion of 

currently unused space into useable office space in the attic. 

• DDL own the building, and to move premises would be costly and disruptive. 

• Policy ED1 allows for “an alternative use that offers significant community 

benefits that are considered to outweigh the need to maintain the original 

proposed use”. No-one could argue that DDL Care Services are not providing a 

vital service to their clients. 

• The proposals are designed to expand their care provision, which will relieve 

pressure on the NHS and services historically provided by SBC 

• 10 jobs will be created. Where is the loss in that? 

 

1.10 David Mundell MP has provided the following comments: 

I am therefore supportive of the proposal for a care hub at 3 Rowan Court, Peebles and 

urge that the appeal by DDL Care Services be upheld. 

I believe that the range of services that DDL Care are seeking to provide within the 

community would be of considerable benefit to many adults and older people locally who 

are at risk from social isolation, impaired mobility due to inactivity and other physical 

and mental health problems. 

Page 85



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

3 
 

● All care needs will be accommodated, no one will be excluded because of a need for 

equipment or have a special requirement. 

● a nutritious meal and snacks throughout the day while engaging in the social 

opportunities being offered. 

● invite the local Children’s Nursery to engage with participants, it is a proven fact that 

this interaction benefits both generations through friendships and play. 

● a Sensory Garden with raised beds to allow participants to plant flowers or vegetables 

to stimulate their mental and physical health by remaining active. 

● challenge people by becoming more active through the use of IT tools, other activities, 

discussions and interaction with others. 

● supervised mobility, and free movement throughout the Care Hub, which will increase 

mobility and strengthen muscles. 

● an exercise room offering armchair aerobics, stretching, yoga or Thai Chi to help reduce 

falls and strengthen muscle function. 

● showering facility for those with no access to shower or those requiring support to 

shower 

● A therapy room will facilitate health services such as District Nurse visits, Opticians, 

Podiatry, and other holistic treatments. 

● a secure, caring, safe environment to interact with other participants and staff. 

As they have set out for me, these services would seek to provide: 

Given the loss of care facilities in Tweeddale over recent years, such as the Dunwhinny 

Day Care facility, the reduction in services provided by the NHS at Firholm and the loss of 

the SBC operated facility first at Hay Lodge Hospital and subsequently at Victoria Park, it 

does seem to me that there is a clear need for services in the community such as those 

being proposed by DDL Care Services. 

My understanding is that DDL Care Services’ proposal is to provide a care hub which 

would offer a broad range of services including a therapy room, exercise room, main hub 

room, quiet room, kitchen area, showering and bathing facilities and transportation to 

and from the facility for its clients. 

I am writing in support of the appeal against the refusal of a planning application lodged 

by DDL Care Services, who are seeking to create a care hub at 3 Rowan Court, Peebles. 

 

1.11 We have also provided a separate attachment that contains supportive communications 

from users, their families, other health care professionals and people living in the Peebles 

community associated with DDL’s existing operation. 

 

 

Page 86



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

4 
 

Response to Scottish Borders Council Social Work Department 

1.12 We have included the full response of the Social Work Department below in quotations, 

inserting our comments in red type below each paragraph. 

“The main issue with the supporting paper is that we believe it is making a business case 
and not a planning proposal. The HSCP have not commissioned this, yet DDL are 
proposing a business case as though it is of financial benefit to the HSCP.” 

We are not exactly sure what this comment means, and we think there may be a 
misunderstanding here. As we have indicate above, the Business Plan has been 
presented in the format specifically requested by the Health and Social Care Partnership. 
For the sake of clarification, DDL is a private Care at Home company, who would work 
with service users directly and would not be reliant on the Scottish Borders Council or 
HSCP for client referrals or commissioning. 

The DDL operation will be of financial benefit to existing care and social services as people 
using their services are less likely to need visits paid for by the social work department.  

“It is also written as if it is entirely in line with the HSCP strategic plan but there are 
elements which are not at this point in time. The proposal makes claims but does not 
provide the evidence behind those claims.” 

This response does not say what claims are being referred to, so it is impossible to 
provide a response on this point. However, we would refer to HSCP’s (Robert McCulloch 
Graham’s) support for the DDL Care Hub and their vision. We reiterate that the Business 
Plan was requested by HSCP, and they have indicated no dissatisfaction with it. 

“The planning aspects of it are considerable as the Hub is not only a building based 
service. The hub is proposing a Hub and spoke style of delivery with additional staffing to 
provide therapeutic input as well as nursing and AHP staffing.” 

The Care Hub is a building-based service which will operate from 10.00 hrs to 15.00 hrs 
Monday to Friday for service users using the facilities. To begin with it will employ 1 
manager, up to 8 qualified support/care staff with a minimum qualification of SVQ3 level 
in Health and Social Care, a part time driver who will collect service users from their homes 
and then return them home around 16.00 hrs. It is anticipated that this will link in with 
other services within Cavalry Park and they will come to the Hub to see services users such 
as a hairdresser, beauticians, dentists, opticians, fitness trainers etc.  

As part of the Hub, in the therapy room the local District Nurses have expressed an interest 
in what we are proposing, and they have asked if they could have a secure cupboard to 
keep some of their supplies in i.e., bandages and dressings. The Hub will not employ 
nursing or AHP staff but will act as one location where they can undertake visits directly 
with their service users if they attend the Hub. 

“It is offering services that are described as being to the benefit of the HSCP, but the 
paper does not set out how the HSCP has been involved in the planning paper presented; 

Page 87



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

5 
 

what the funding approach for the proposal would look like. What are the operating 
hours, will it have overnight workforce etc..” 

The Business Plan was requested by the HSCP, and they support it. See our comments 
above on operating hours etc. 

“The Paper sets out a proposal for a one-stop-shop and, given the critical and individual 
level of need, we think that part needs further clarity for planning purposes e.g. a range 
of professionals, equipment and medication is proposed to be stored and used. Given the 
high level of needs, then what type of equipment is proposed and what would a ‘spa’ like 
range of services be as this would be critical for building i.e. flooring, glass usage, sound 
proofing, track & hoists etc…..” 

This is perhaps more detail than required by the LRB to determine this application, but 
DDL is content to provide the following further information. 

There will be a training suite for all our moving and handling training and the equipment 
involved will be as follows. 

• Profiling Bed 

• Mobile Hoist 

• Mackworth Stand Aid 

• Arjo steady  

• Free standing bath for training purposes only (will not be plumbed in) 

• Aqua Joy Bath Lift 

• Elk Mangar emergency lifting cushion 

No medication will be stored on the premises and only those attending the Hub with 
prescribed medication will be supported to take this medication. As part of the Hub, there 
would be showering facilities on the premises as many service users cannot access their 
baths/shower in their own homes. Users can have a shower when they attend the hub 
along with a hairdressing chair within the shower room. 

If a user attending the hub is faecally incontinent and are unable to weight bare there is 
equipment from the training suite to carry out any transfers and personal care needed. 
Regarding the building, each area of the Hub will have the correct type of flooring coverings 
and furniture in place to allow service users to be actively involved in that area for example 
in the arts and craft area there would be an anti-slip flooring which can be cleaned if any 
spills occur. 

Other than the Support staff working directly with the care Hub, any other professionals 
will be employed by the Scottish Borders Social Work department, or the NHS or 
privately.  

“DDL are one of our commissioned care at home providers in the area of Innerleithen and 
Peebles. They are a good quality provider. 

Page 88



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

6 
 

In this instance we do not believe the planning proposal or business case has been 
presented to HSCP and therefore the claims made in the report would need to be 
presented for HSCP consideration. 

As indicated above, there appears to be a misunderstanding here. The Business Plan has 
been presented to the HSCP at their request. They support its vision and wish to see the 
planning permission granted. 

There are a couple of sections which are important to clarify. In section 3.2 “Demise of 
Provision” this is in relation to Day centre closure. This is not a demise in provision, the 
provision is in accordance with the national and local personalisation agenda as we move 
towards supporting people to have greater choice and control on how they live well. It 
was a move from buildings based services towards a Local Area Coordinator model.” 

This issue is perhaps not critical to the LRB’s determination of the application. However, 
DDL consider that it is worth mentioning that the move from a buildings-based service to 
a local area coordinator model will not and cannot always meet the social, physical, and 
cognitive needs of all the service users it supports. 
 
As a current private care provider, they have noticed a large number of service users who 
are not in receipt of the relevant support due to staff shortages, and there has also been a 
rise in social isolation following this change. 

“In section 3.3 the paper refers to RVS as a day service provision and that it does not cater 
for people with higher level needs. RVS are not a Day Centre and therefore do not require 
registration with the Care Inspectorate. However, people who would like to or choose 
attendance at a social centre can do this if their assessed needs can be met through Self 
Directed Support personal assistants for example.” 

Again, this comment is not particularly relevant to the determination of the Review. It is 
agreed that RVS is a day service, not a day centre. However, it does NOT cater for people 
with higher care needs. DDL’s operation does need to be registered with the Care 
Inspectorate. 

DDL as a private care provider, have supported some of council service users to attend the 
RVS which they have paid for themselves. 

 

1.13 In summary, we do not consider that there are any comments provided by the Council’s 

Social Work Department which would suggest that planning permission should be refused. 

 

Response to Scottish Borders Council Planning Department 

1.14 We have included the full response of the Planning Department below in quotations, 

inserting our comments in red type below each relevant section. 

Page 89



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY RESPONSE TO FURTHER INFORMATION 

REQUEST BY DDL CARE SERVICES 

  

 

 

7 
 

“I note the list of companies in Cavalry Park provided by the appellant. I also note that they 

are uncertain of the nature of many the businesses. In any event, the nature of those 

businesses is predominantly class 4 or would be considered complimentary commercial 

activity to the Cavalry Park strategic high amenity site which would enhance the quality of 

the business park as an employment location. A day centre for the elderly does not fit 

comfortably within that definition.” 

The final sentence above perhaps highlights a misconception by the planning officer. THIS 

IS NOT A DAY CENTRE FOR THE ELDERLY. It is a Care Hub for people in need of care and 

this modern building provides an ideal location for such a facility. We can only speculate 

that this misconception might have led the planning officer to take a negative view of the 

application from the outset. 

As indicated in our Review statement and the letter from the Peebles & District Community 

Council attached to this submission, there are numerous non-class 4 users at Cavalry Park 

e.g. Gym, Dental Surgery, Beautician, Training Centre and Nursery – all granted planning 

permission over recent years. Although some of those uses may be utilised by Cavalry Park 

occupants, it seems to us an exaggeration to suggest that they are somehow more 

consistent with the planning policy than DDL’s proposals. The planning policy allows for 

some flexibility and DDL’s proposed care service is ideally suited to this location and 

building. 

The key point here, as explained in our original Review Statement, is that the Care Hub will 

provide a highly beneficial service in an accessible location and, due to the provision of 

further office space, will not mean the loss of existing class 4 space. Moreover, the facility 

will employ approximately 10 people. We cannot think of any reason why the Council 

would want to prevent such an economically and socially beneficial development, for 

which there has only been support by the community and those who have benefitted from 

DDL’s current services. 

“In terms of the document submitted as a “business plan”, this is not a detailed business 

plan which I might expect to see with an application in support of a sound business 

proposal. Rather it is a statement about what services would be provided by DDL Care Hub 

ltd, what facilities would be provided within the building. Within the 11 page document, it 

is only at page 9 that any monetary figures appear and even then, the figures do not set 

out any start-up costs; profit and loss forecast; sourcing of finance; management of 

financial risks or cash flow forecasts. It does not provide any detailed analysis of how the 

business would be run in terms of things such as: staffing; suppliers; equipment or 

managing operational risk. No real detail is given of market research; customer profiling; 

competitor profiling; managing market risks; pricing or promotion and advertising. In short, 

this is not appear to be a business plan which can be relied upon.” 

As explained above, the Business Plan was requested by the HSCP to serve their purposes 

and is not required or intended to be a business plan that details financial matters’, or the 

other points referred to by the Planning Officer. For the Planning Officer to suggest that 

the Business Plan is not to be relied upon is therefore fundamentally misconceived and 

wrong. 

Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



From: Robert McCullochGraham (NHS Borders) <Robert.McCullochGraham@borders.scot.nhs.uk> 
Date: Wed, Sep 15, 2021 at 3:03 PM 
Subject: RE: DDL Care Hub 
To: Donna-Dee Lamb <ddlcareservices@gmail.com> 
Cc: Wendy Henderson (wendy.henderson@scottishcare.org) <wendy.henderson@scottishcare.org>, 
Prebble, Laura <Laura.Prebble@scotborders.gov.uk>, Paris, Brian (Brian.Paris@scotborders.gov.uk) 
<Brian.Paris@scotborders.gov.uk> 
 

Dear Donna, 

I have now discussed with Council Officers, and understand their concerns with the documentation 
that you had sent them earlier. 

 I am happy to provide a supporting statement for your planning application as Chief Officer of the 
IJB, however other aspects of your application or proposals we expect, will need further work with 
both the Council and the Care Inspectorate. 

 As I explained when we met I remain supportive of the development and see it as an asset for the 
communities of Peebles and Innerleithen, I could not without further detail or conversations state 
that your proposals would fully support the Commissioning Plan of the H&SC Partnership. This is 
something for a later date. 

 I would as I stated however wish to support you planning application, and I would be happy for you 
to insert the following comments; 

 “DDL Services, are a well respected commissioning partner of the Health and Social Care Partnership 
of the Scottish Borders. Their intentions to widen their service within Peebles and Innerleithen is an 
exciting development and I am sure it will be welcomed by our more vulnerable families within that 
area.  

 Keeping people both mentally and physically active fits with the first objective of the Integration 
Joint Board’s Strategy, and the range of activities proposed by DDL based in people’s homes, in 
community venues and their own premises would I am sure be very attractive to a lot of residents. 

I would therefore be supportive of their application for building permission to allow this first step 
towards their vision.” 

I hope this statement will help Donna, we would need to consider how further aspects of your 
programme fits within the local strategies for Health and Social Care, and we can do this at a later 
date. For the moment, assuming all of the Building Constraints are met, I would like to see your 
building application succeed, and hope my statement of support will assist. 

 Again apologies it has taken so long to reply, but we are in very challenging times. 

 Many thanks 

Rob  

 

Page 95

mailto:Robert.McCullochGraham@borders.scot.nhs.uk
mailto:ddlcareservices@gmail.com
mailto:wendy.henderson@scottishcare.org
mailto:wendy.henderson@scottishcare.org
mailto:Laura.Prebble@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:Brian.Paris@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:Brian.Paris@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 119

Agenda Item 5b



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 120



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 121



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 122



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Supporting Documents  HolderPlanning 
 

Page | 1  
 

LRB Submission, Mr S Lamb, Application Ref:21/00486/FUL 

 

Local Review Body Supporting Statement prepared by Holder Planning 

Application Form  

Location Plan 

Site Plan 

Ground Floor Plan Existing 

Ground Floor Plan Proposed 

First Floor Plan Proposed 

Elevations Existing 

Elevations Proposed 

DDL Care Hub Application Supporting Statement 

Cavalry Park Companies 

DDL Care Hub Ltd Business Plan 

SBC Pre-Application Advice 

Refusal Notice 

Report of Handling 

SBC Forward Planning Consultation Response 

SBC Roads Consultation Response 

Email from Lead Officer 

Neighbour Notification list 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY 

APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON BEHALF OF 

MR STEPHEN LAMB 

Development: Planning Permission for Part Change of Use 

Ground Floor to Class 10 and Alteration to Form Additional 

Office Space from Attic Floor (21/00486/FUL) 

Location: 3 Rowan Court, Suite 3, Cavalry Park, Peebles,  

EH54 9BU 

Date: 5 July 2021 

 

  
 

HolderPlanning 

Page 127



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

1 
 

CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF REVIEW .......................................... 2 

2.0 BACKGROUND TO THE PROPOSALS ........................................................ 3 

3.0 ASSESSMENT OF REFUSAL REASON ........................................................ 7 

4.0 CONSIDERATION OF FURTHER DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES ............... 16 

5.0 CONCLUSION ...................................................................................... 19 

 
 
 
 

Page 128



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

2 
 

1.1 Scottish Borders Council has refused planning permission under delegated powers for 

Planning Permission for ‘part change of use ground floor to Class 10 and alteration to form 

additional office space from attic floor’ (21/00486/FUL) at 3 Rowan Court, Suite 3, Cavalry 

Park, Peebles, EH54 9BU. The refusal reason is as follows: 

The development would be contrary to policies ED1 and PMD3 of the Local Development 

Plan 2016 in that the use as a day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town 

and Country Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) Order 1997) would not be a commercial 

activity that would be complementary or ancillary to the Cavalry Park Strategic High 

Amenity Site and would result in the loss of high quality office accommodation and its 

replacement with potentially less attractive accommodation. This would not serve to 

protect the business park adequately for employment purposes. This conflict with the 

Development Plan is not overridden by other material considerations. 

1.2 We disagree with the refusal reason for the following reasons, in summary: 

1. The proposal does not conflict with Policy ED1. The development includes the creation 

of office space at first floor level which the existing occupiers, Valley Landscaping and 

DDL Care Services Ltd, intend to occupy in order to operate their already established 

businesses. The creation of the office space is integral to the development proposals 

and will be fully operational prior to completion of the Class 10 Care Hub facility. The 

assertion that the proposed development will result in potentially less attractive 

accommodation is not based on evidence.  

2. The proposed development is complementary to the existing uses operating within 

Cavalry Park. The day-care facilities will sit well within an area that also provides a 

Children’s Nursery, Hairdressing & Beautician Salon, a Dental Practice, Specialist Shoe 

Shop, Physiotherapist, Fitness Centres along with education and training 

accommodation. The Care Hub facility will provide employment opportunities as well 

as supporting other businesses within Cavalry Park, stimulating the local economy. At 

least 5 members of staff will be required to run the Care Hub facility.  

3. The Council are at liberty to attach a condition to the Planning Permission, which will 

require the Care Hub facility accommodation to revert to business use if the Care Hub 

facility ceases to operate.   This will allow the Council to ensure future uses of the 

premises remain appropriate. 

4. The proposed development can take place in accordance with the provisions of Policy 

PMD3. Part c of the Policy allows for the development of alternative uses which offer 

significant community benefit to take place that are considered to outweigh the need 

to maintain the original proposed use. As the Applicant’s Statement and supporting 

submission documents demonstrate, the development of Care Hub facility will provide 

much needed community facilities. Furthermore, the proposed development ensures 

that the ‘original proposed use’ i.e. office space is retained within the building.  

1.3 We expand upon these points in the following sections of this Statement. 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF REVIEW 

Page 129



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

3 
 

 

Existing Occupiers and Their Office Space Requirements 

2.1 Number 3 Rowan Court is occupied by two established businesses: 

2.2 DDL Care Services Ltd is a local company, which provides home based personal care 

services within Peebles and the wider area. It is a Scottish Borders Council care partner and 

has developed a reputation as one of the area’s most trusted providers. The business is 

fully registered with the Care Inspectorate. It has a total of 42 members of staff engaged 

directly in the delivery of homecare services and supporting administrative functions. The 

premises provide the administrative base for the Company, where 8 members of staff are 

permanently based. 

2.3 Valley Landscaping, which is owned by the Applicant, Mr Stephen Lamb, is a Scottish 

ground maintenance company, which presently has 7 employees and has plans to expand 

with the addition of a further 3 to 5 jobs expected. The premises provide the Scottish 

Borders base for the Company, where presently 1 employee is located.  

2.4 DDL Care Services Ltd and Valley Landscaping will continue to require office premises and 

intend to occupy the office premises created at first floor by the proposed development. 

No business operations will be displaced by the proposed development and the new office 

accommodation will be constructed and occupied prior to the operation of the care facility.  

‘The Care Hub’ Facility  

2.5 DDL Care Services Ltd’s sister company, DDL Care Hub Ltd has identified a requirement for 

day-care facilities within the community for adults and older people, with high level care 

needs including dementia and health issues. The use is classified as a ‘Class 10 – non 

2.0 BACKGROUND TO THE PROPOSALS 

Page 130



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

4 
 

residential institution’ use by the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) 

Order 1997, herein after referred to as the Use Classes Order.  

2.6 The proposed Care Hub facility is designed to meet these needs and will require at least 5 

new employees to run the operation, which will also outsource catering, beautician, 

exercise trainer and podiatrist services.  

2.7 This new facility will fill the void left behind by the closure of services in the area. It will 

offer a significant benefit to our community whilst helping relieve some of the pressure on 

the NHS and social work resources locally. It is expected that the facility will support 50 to 

75 people per week who would otherwise be socially isolated within their own community. 

2.8 The Supporting Statement, which accompanies the Application explains that facilities have 

dramatically reduced in past years with day-facilities at Dunwhinny, Hay Lodge Hospital, 

Victoria Park and Firholm1 no longer available.  

2.9 The situation has been exacerbated by the Covid 19 pandemic with the loss of a NHS Day 

Hospital Unit that enabled patients to attend for occupational therapy and Physio 

assessments, obtain treatments, shower, and bathe, and access the Falls Clinic. 

Organisations like WRVS, the Men’s Shed, and local churches at are no longer able to 

provide a place for older people to meet socially. In addition, these facilities do meet the 

needs of people with ‘high care needs.’ 

2.10 The current day service run by the Royal Voluntary Services from the Bake House, Peebles 

employs one paid manager and is supported by volunteers, no formal training is required 

therefore the service is unable to accept referrals from people who have high level needs.  

As a result, people with the following care needs are excluded: 

• Medication prompting 

• Medication administration 

• Incontinence care 

• Catheter management 

• Assistance using bathroom facilities 

• Advanced dementia 

• Moving and Handling requirements 

2.11 The closure and reduced function of facilities leaves Adults and Older people in the 

community with:  

• Increased social isolation, a lack of interaction and increased levels of anxiety. 

• Feelings of loneliness and poor mental health.  

• Reduced cognition  

 

1 An out-reach service is operated from Firholm but the day facility is no longer in operation. 

Page 131



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

5 
 

• A decrease in mobility and movement due to inactivity. 

2.12 The Care Hub facility is intended to be complementary to the existing community-based 

facilities, both Council run and commercial enterprises, that remain and will exist in 

support of Scottish Borders Council’s model of care.  

2.13 The facilities at the Care Hub will provide an alternative to the traditional concept of ‘day 

care centre’ by offering a range of opportunities and these are detailed in the Application 

Supporting Statement 

2.14 The proposed Care Hub includes meeting facilities which are designed to be utilised by 

Primary Carer support groups for example Carers Centre and Alzheimer’s Scotland. 

2.15 This new facility will fill the void left behind by the closure of previous services. It will offer 

a significant benefit to our community whilst helping relieve some of the pressure on the 

NHS and social work resources locally.  

2.16 Since submitting the Application, DDL Care Hub Ltd, has updated their business plan and 

this is provided with the submission. It demonstrates the need for the facility and the 

considered approach towards its provision. 

Accommodating the Requirements 

2.17 Due to the nature of the operation, the new Care Hub facility has obvious accommodation 

requirements: 

• Ground floor level access and accommodation which can be easily traversed by 

people with impaired mobility. 

• Flexible floor space to accommodate the specific requirements for a day centre, 

required to meet the relevant regulatory requirements; 

• Immediate access to level car parking which can also accommodate an operator’s 

mini-bus used for transporting the day centre’s clients; 

• Access to public transport for staff and users of the facility; and 

• Attractive outlook for clients. 

2.18 These requirements can all be met at the Application site at 3 Rowan Court, Cavalry Park, 

whilst meeting the office requirements of the existing occupiers. Appropriate alternative 

accommodation for such a facility is not available in Peebles, including the town centre, 

where older buildings with unsuitable access and layouts are located and immediate access 

to parking for people with mobility issues and facilities to accommodate the drop off / pick 

up of clients by mini-bus are not available. 

2.19 Alternative premises are being marketed in Cavalry Park, however their configuration and 

access to parking prevent these premises from being further considered. 

2.20 The Application drawings, Ground Floor Plan proposed and First Floor Plan proposed, 

illustrate the proposed ground and first floor layouts. 

• The building presently has a floor area of 258 sq m.  

Page 132



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

6 
 

• It is proposed to convert 189 sq m at ground floor level to Class 10 Use i.e, Care 

Hub facility.  

• The remaining floor space at ground floor level, 54 sq m (excluding the stair to the 

first floor office space) will be retained in Class 4 – Business use and will be 

accessible from a new separate entrance door.  

• The proposed layout will allow the ground floor Class 4 - Business area to function 

separately from the Care Hub facility, with secure lockable doors providing access 

between the 2 uses, should this be required. 

• At first floor, Class 4 office space, accessible from the new separate entrance door, 

will be created. The total area of new usable space at first floor level will be 149 sq 

m. The new office space will be occupied by the existing occupiers. 

• The proposed development will see the floor area within the building increase 

from 258 sq m to 392 sq, providing a Class 10 Care Hub facility with an area of 189 

sq m and 203 sq m of Class 4 office space.  

• The net reduction in Class 4 space is 55 sqm, however the businesses operating 

from the site will not be impacted upon, as they relocate to the first floor, with at 

least a further 5 jobs created by the new Care Hub facility.  

 

 

Page 133



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

7 
 

REFUSAL REASON  

3.1 Refusal Reason is stated as follows: 

The development would be contrary to policies ED1 and PMD3 of the Local Development 

Plan 2016 in that the use as a day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town 

and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997) would not be a commercial 

activity that would be complementary or ancillary to the Cavalry Park Strategic High 

Amenity Site and would result in the loss of high quality office accommodation and its 

replacement with potentially less attractive accommodation. This would not serve to 

protect the business park adequately for employment purposes. This conflict with the 

Development Plan is not overridden by other material considerations. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF POLICY ED1: PROTECTION OF BUSINESS AND EMPLOYMENT LAND 

3.2 The full text of the relevant part of Policy ED1 to which the refusal reason is referring is as 

follows:  

Policy ED1: Protection of Business and Industrial Land 

The Council aims to maintain a supply of business and industry land allocations in the 

Scottish Borders (see Table 1)2. There is a presumption in favour of the retention of 

industrial and business use on strategic and district sites, including new land use proposals 

for business and industrial land. 

1. STRATEGIC SITES 

The Council rigorously protects strategic business and industrial sites for employment uses. 

a) Strategic High Amenity Sites 

Development on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for Class 4 uses. Other 

complementary commercial activity e.g., offices, call centres and high technology uses may 

be acceptable if it enhances the quality of the business park as an employment location… 

….In all business and industrial land site categories development must: 

a) respect the character and amenity of the surrounding area, and be landscaped 

accordingly, and 

b) be compatible with neighbouring business and industrial uses. 

Shops and outright retail activities will not be allowed on Strategic or District sites. The only 

retailing permissible on these sites will be that which is considered to be ancillary to some 

other acceptable activity (e.g., manufacture, wholesale). For the purposes of this policy, 

ancillary is taken as being linked directly to the existing use of the unit and comprising no 

more that 10% of the total floor area. 

 
2  Cavalry Park is identified as a Strategic Site in Table 1 

3.0 ASSESSMENT OF REFUSAL REASON 

Page 134



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

8 
 

3.3 The relevant section of the Planning Officer’s Report of Handling is reproduced below: 

The use as a day centre for the elderly is not one which would be complementary nor would 

it enhance the wider Cavalry Park site. There are pressures to find new business and 

industrial land within the Tweeddale area. The development of a class 10 use at this 

location, would lead ultimately to the loss of allocated business and industrial land when 

there is known pressure for business and industrial land and introduce a use that is not a 

complementary neighbour to business uses.  

Forward Planning advises that the council carries out an annual Employment Land Audit 

(ALE), the purpose of which is to monitor business / industrial land take-up across the 

Scottish Borders. This helps the council ensure it has a sufficient land supply within the LDP. 

The most recent ALE was in spring of 2019 and identified that there is no immediately 

available employment land in Peebles with 0.7ha available employment land between 1-5 

years. Forward Planning does not considered this is sufficient land to meet the anticipated 

demand. Consequently it is vital that existing employment land supply is retained and 

further land is allocated for this purpose. The protection of the application site for business 

uses and the identification of further employment land at Eshiels has been taken forward 

into the proposed new Local Development Plan. The development of a class 10 use at this 

location, would ultimately lead to the loss of ground floor allocated business and industrial 

land and the proposal would therefore be contrary to policy. I have no reason to question 

that assessment. 

3.4 We address Policy ED1 and Report of Handling’s response under the headings below. 

Provision of Class 4 Office Space 

3.5 As we have outlined in Section 2 above, the proposed development increases the overall 

floor area within the building, increasing the usable floor space from 258 sq m to 392 sq 

m. It comprises the creation of Class 10 use for a new Care Hub facility (189 sq m) and 

provides for a total of 203 sq m of office space split between ground and first floor level.  

3.6 In its assessment of the proposal against Policy ED1, the Report of Handling (which includes 

detail of Forward Planning’s consultation response), does not acknowledge that part of the 

ground floor will be retained in Class 4 Use or that Class 4 office accommodation is to be 

provided at first floor office level. Instead, it focusses on the loss of ground floor 

accommodation required for the Care Hub facility and the impact that this would have on 

business / industrial land supply. The Report of Handling’s assessment of the Policy is 

therefore misleading and inaccurate.  

3.7 As we have outlined in Section 2 above, whilst there is a net loss of 55 sq m of Class 4 office 

space, the overall usable floor area will increase. The building’s existing occupiers will 

utilise the new first floor accommodation to operate their established businesses which 

employ 9 people on site. There will be no loss of employment as a result of the 

development, with at least 5 new direct jobs created by the Care Hub facility.  

 

 

Page 135



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

9 
 

Nature and Mix of Business Operations at Cavalry Park  

3.8 Policy ED1 supports the development of predominantly Class 4 at Cavalry Park and it does 

not exclude other uses. Class 4 – Business of the Use Classes Order, covers offices other 

than those within Class 2 (financial professional and other services), research and 

development and any industrial processes, all being uses that can take place in a residential 

area without determent to the amenity of that area.  

3.9 Cavalry Park has a range of occupiers and a list of occupiers accompanies the Statement. 

The nature of the occupiers is wide ranging and is not limited to Class 4 use. It includes a 

mix of ‘Class 4 business’ uses as well as ‘Class 2 – Financial, professional and other services’ 

e.g. estate agents and dentists and ‘Class 11 – Assembly and leisure’ e.g. gym. It is occupied 

by a hairdresser, which falls within ‘Class 1 – Shops’ of the Use Classes Order and is a use 

which the Policy advises ‘will not be allowed on Strategic or District sites.’ Established Class 

10 – Non-Residential Institutions also occupy premises at Cavalry Park including 

Kingsmeadows Nursery and a music school. In addition, Permission has been granted for 

further Class 10 Uses within Cavalry Park which comprise training facilities (ref: 

06/02165/FUL and 08/01525/FUL). 

3.10 The Report of Handling contends that the new Care Hub facility would not be 

complementary nor would enhance the wider Cavalry Park. We disagree with this 

assessment. The Applicant’s Supporting Statement identifies that the facility will benefit 

many of the existing businesses. The Care Hub will sit well within an area that also provides 

a Children’s Nursery, Hairdressing & Beautician Salon, a Dental Practice, Specialist Shoe 

Shop, Physiotherapist, Fitness Centres along with education and training accommodation. 

As highlighted in Section 2 of this LRB Statement, the Care Hub will outsource catering, 

beautician, exercise trainer and podiatrist services and these services are established at 

Cavalry Park. 

3.11 The proposed development does not conflict with the character and amenity of the 

surrounding area and is compatible with neighbouring businesses on the site.  

The Use of Planning Condition(s) to Secure Appropriate Future Uses 

3.12 We have outlined above that the proposed development increases the usable floor area 

of the building, increasing it from 285 sq m to 392 sq m. The Council can, should it consider 

it appropriate to do so, attach a condition to the Permission, which would require the area 

to be occupied by the Care Hub facility to revert to Class 4 use upon cessation of the 

operation. This approach provides a number of benefits: 

• It allows the Council to control future use of the area to be occupied by the Care 

Hub facility; 

• It allows the Care Hub facility to operate and meet community needs whilst 

ensuring business use of the premises is not lost in future;  

• It allows additional business space to be created within the premises, which in the 

longer term, should the Care Hub facility cease to operate, will increase the overall 

amount of business space available at Cavalry Park. 

Page 136



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

10 
 

3.13 Precedent for application of such a condition exists within Cavalry Park and we direct the 

Local Review Body to Condition 1 of Permission ref: 18/01756/FUL for Change of use from 

storage to a gymnasium at Unit 5 Elm Court, Cavalry Park which states, 

The premises shall be used only as a gymnasium and for no other purpose (including any 

other purpose in Class 11 of the Schedule to The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 

(Scotland) Order 1997,or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 

instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order). On the cessation of the unit as a 

gymnasium, the use shall revert to Class 4 (business).  

Reason: To ensure that the use remains compatible within the site 

 

ASSESSMENT OF POLICY PMD3: LAND USE ALLOCATION 

3.14 The full text of the relevant part of Policy PMD3 to which the refusal reason is referring is 

as follows: 

Policy PMD3: Land Use Allocations 

Development will be approved in principle for the land uses allocated on the Land Use 

Proposals tables and accompanying Proposals Maps… 

…Any other use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can demonstrate 

that: 

a) It is ancillary to the proposed use and in the case of the proposed housing development, 

it still enables the site to be developed in accordance with the indicative capacity shown in 

the Land Use Proposals table and/or associated planning briefs, or  

b) There is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming available for 

the development of the proposed use within the Local Plan period, or 

c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to outweigh 

the need to maintain the original proposed use, and 

d) the proposal is otherwise acceptable under the criteria for infill development. 

3.15 The relevant section of the Planning Officer’s Report of Handling is reproduced below: 

Considering the above, the proposed change of use to a day centre for the elderly would be 

neither ancillary nor complementary to the wider Cavalry Park site. There are no known 

constraints on the site which would prevent the building's continued use as class 4. There 

may be some community benefits but those are not significant enough to outweigh the 

need to maintain the existing use. In addition, the applicant has failed to provide evidence 

Page 137



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

11 
 

that there are not any other potential sites / buildings which have been considered for the 

proposed use. 

It should also be noted that, although the plans indicate that "zone 2" would be retained 

as class 4 use, the physical separation from the rear entrance and upper floor, combined 

with the newly formed internal links between the proposed class 10 use and the area 

marked as "zone 2 - training - conference", make it clear that the area would at best be 

ancillary office space associated with the applicant's business rather than two separate 

units. It is acknowledged that the proposal includes the provision of class 4 floor space 

within the roofspace. However, as noted by Forward Planning, this is replacement rather 

than additional floor space. In addition, first floor office space is less attractive than ground 

floor accommodation and, combined with the significant ceiling coombes, the office space 

proposed in this application is likely to be even less desirable. In their consultation response 

Forward Planning indicated that a more favourable consideration could be given if it were 

possible to ensure the upper floor element could be implemented. Whilst a condition could 

be imposed requiring the actual provision of the office space within the roofspace, that 

could be retained by the applicant as ancillary office space or it could simply be formed with 

the provision of partitions and left unoccupied. The success of such space will depend a lot 

on its marketing and terms of occupancy. It would not be possible, nor appropriate, for the 

planning authority to attempt to regulate the marketing and occupancy of business space 

to benefit a use that is not, itself, complementary to the business park. The replacement 

accommodation would evidently be inferior to the existing ground floor accommodation, 

and I do not consider it in the interests of the business park to provide a Class 10 on the 

ground floor and thus relegate office accommodation to the first floor. It is considered, in 

any case, likely that a condition that would involve regulation of the marketing and 

occupancy of the first floor accommodation would potentially unenforceable and would 

not be compliant with the requirements set out in Planning Circular 4/1998: the use of 

conditions in planning permissions. I do not consider the proposal would be adequately 

mitigated by a planning condition as a result.  

3.16 Unfortunately, the sections highlighted in yellow are incorrect and appear to be based 

on fundamental misunderstanding of the circumstances and inaccurate assumptions. We 

address these in turn below. 

There may be some community benefits but those are not significant enough to outweigh 

the need to maintain the existing use. 

3.17 Policy PMD3 sets out situations where a development for a non-allocated use may take 

place. Sub-sections of Policy PMB3 are parts c and d are relevant, which in summary, 

provide for development where there are significant community benefits which outweigh 

the original proposed use; and the development is acceptable in terms of the LDP’s infill 

criteria.  

3.18 The Supporting Statement provided with the Application identifies that there is a 

requirement for day care facilities within the area, which follows on from the closure of a 

number of facilities and the impact that the COVID 19 pandemic has had on facilities run 

by community organisations. The Care Hub facility is being proposed by an experienced 

Page 138



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

12 
 

and respected care provider working in the local area, who seeks to provide a facility that 

will complement the Scottish Borders Council’s model of care.  

3.19 This detail has not been reflected in the Report of Handling which dismisses the community 

benefits without any detailed consideration or the benefit of any relevant consultee 

responses, which could have included, the Scottish Borders Health and Care Social 

Partnership and the NHS.  

3.20 Whilst the Applicant’s Supporting Statement provides an accurate assessment of the 

requirement for the Care Hub facility, we have provided DDL Care Hub Ltd’s up to date 

business plan with the LRB submission which illustrates in greater detail the need and basis 

for the facility.  

3.21 With reference to category d of Policy PMD3, the LDP’s infill criteria are laid out in Policy 

PMD5 and this is addressed in Section 4 of this Statement. 

3.22 We conclude that the proposed development complies with the requirements of Policy 

PMD3, there is a need for the Care Hub facility and it accords with the provisions of Policy 

PMD5. 

the applicant has failed to provide evidence that there are not any other potential sites / 

buildings which have been considered for the proposed use. 

3.23 We have been unable to establish the basis for the Council’s argument that the Applicant 

should provide evidence regarding the availability of alternative potential sites however, 

the Forward Planning consultation response makes reference to Scottish Planning Policy 

Paragraphs 69 and 71 as follows.  

SPP paragraph 69 states: “Planning authorities, developers, owners and occupiers should 

be flexible and realistic in applying the sequential approach, to ensure that different uses 

are developed in the most appropriate locations. It is important that community, education 

and healthcare facilities are located where they are easily accessible to the communities 

that they are intended to serve”. 

Furthermore, SPP paragraph 71 states: “Where development proposals in edge of town 

centre, commercial centre or out-of-town locations are contrary to the development plan, 

it is for applicants to demonstrate that more central options have been thoroughly assessed 

and that the impact on existing town centres is acceptable. ….”   

3.24 These extracts concern development within Town Centres and this is not made clear in the 

consultation response or the Report of Handling. It has to be assumed that Forward 

Planning consider that the development of a day care facility is most appropriately located 

within a town centre.  

3.25 As we have highlighted in Section 2 of this Statement, due to the nature of the operation, 

the new Care Hub facility has obvious accommodation requirements. These requirements 

can all be met by the Application site at 3 Rowan Court, Cavalry Park, whilst meeting the 

office requirements of the existing occupiers. Alternative accommodation for such a facility 

is not available in Peebles, including the town centre, where older buildings with unsuitable 

access and layouts are located and immediate access to parking for people with mobility 

Page 139



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

13 
 

issues and facilities to accommodate the drop off / pick up of clients by mini bus are not 

available. 

3.26 SPP paragraph 69 states that facilities are to be located where they are easily accessible to 

the communities that they intend to serve and that a ‘flexible and realistic’ approach needs 

to be taken to ensure development takes place in the right locations. Within the town 

centre, the vehicular access constraints and the nature of accommodation, would not 

support a Care Hub facility. 

although the plans indicate that "zone 2" would be retained as class 4 use, the physical 

separation from the rear entrance and upper floor, combined with the newly formed 

internal links between the proposed class 10 use and the area marked as "zone 2 - training 

- conference", make it clear that the area would at best be ancillary office space associated 

with the applicant's business rather than two separate units. 

3.27 The statement in the Report of Handling is incorrect and is an assumption which is not 

based on any evidence. As we have highlighted in Section 2 of this Statement and as 

illustrated on the ‘Ground Floor proposed plan’ Application drawing: 

• It is proposed to convert 189 sq m at ground floor level to Class 10 Use i.e, the Care 

Hub facility.  

• The remaining floor space at ground floor level, 54 sq m (excluding the stair to the 

first floor office space) will be retained in Class 4 – Business use and will be 

accessible from a new separate entrance door.  

• The proposed layout will allow the ground floor Class 4 - Business area to function 

separately from the Care Hub facility, with secure lockable doors providing access 

between the 2 uses, should this be required. 

3.28 first floor office space is less attractive than ground floor accommodation and, combined 

with the significant ceiling coombes, the office space proposed in this application is likely 

to be even less desirable 

3.29 The Report of Handling assumes that the office space at first floor level is less attractive 

and constrained. This is incorrect. We have highlighted in Section 2 of this Statement 

details of the accommodation to be provided. This is desirable and usable office space. 

• At first floor, Class 4 office space, accessible from the new separate entrance door, 

will be created. The total area of new usable space at first floor level will be 149 sq 

m. The office space will be occupied by the existing occupiers. 

• The net reduction in Class 4 space is 55 sqm, however the businesses operating 

from the site will not be impacted upon, as they relocate to the first floor. At least 

a further 5 jobs will be created by the new Care Hub facility.  

3.30 more favourable consideration could be given if it were possible to ensure the upper floor 

element could be implemented. Whilst a condition could be imposed requiring the actual 

provision of the office space within the roofspace, that could be retained by the applicant 

as ancillary office space or it could simply be formed with the provision of partitions and 

Page 140



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

14 
 

left unoccupied. The success of such space will depend a lot on its marketing and terms of 

occupancy. It would not be possible, nor appropriate, for the planning authority to attempt 

to regulate the marketing and occupancy of business space to benefit a use that is not, 

itself, complementary to the business park. 

3.31 As we have highlighted above, the existing occupiers will relocated to the first floor office 

accommodation. Indeed, relocation of their operations is necessary as part of the proposal 

and they will occupy the office accommodation prior to the operation of the Care Hub 

facility.  The Applicant is content, for a condition to be attached to the permission requiring 

the construction of the first floor office accommodation in advance of operation of the 

Care Hub facility.  

3.32 It is relevant to note that the Council’s Forward Planning response states that,  

If it was the case that planning controls could be put in place which could ensure the office 

element on the upper floor would be implemented, then the proposal could be considered 

more favourably, i.e. there would remain a net office floor space within the building whilst 

also ensuring the care unit could operate. However, if this is not able to be controlled then 

it is not considered the proposal can be supported. 

3.33 As we state above, the Applicant is content that a condition is applied which requires the 

construction of the first floor office accommodation in advance of operation of the Care 

Hub facility and this addresses Forward Planning’s comments. 

3.34 The Report of Handling suggests that the first floor premises office space may be ancillary 

to the Care Hub facility or that the premises would simply remain vacant. These are poorly 

considered comments. We have explained that the building’s current occupiers will occupy 

the first-floor office accommodation. Any office accommodation required as part of the 

Care Hub facility would be ancillary and provided within the area identified for the facility. 

In addition, where income can be generated from the creation of new floor space, it is in 

the Applicant’s commercial interest to maximise revenue from the development. 

It is considered, in any case, likely that a condition that would involve regulation of the 

marketing and occupancy of the first floor accommodation would potentially 

unenforceable and would not be compliant with the requirements set out in Planning 

Circular 4/1998: the use of conditions in planning permissions. 

3.35 As we have highlighted above, the Applicant requires to take forward the development of 

the first floor accommodation and is content that an appropriate condition is attached to 

the consent. Circular 4/1998 sets out the tests for the use of conditions and these should 

be imposed where they are: 

• Necessary  

• relevant to planning   

• relevant to the development to be permitted  

• enforceable 

• precise  

Page 141



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

15 
 

• reasonable in all other respects. 

3.36 These tests are met. The Planning Authority can legitimately take enforcement action, 

should the Applicant fail to take forward development of the first floor office space. Such 

action can include serving a Breach of Condition Notice or Enforcement Notice, both of 

which can carry substantial fines. 

 

Page 142



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

16 
 

 

4.1 In addition to Policies ED1 and PMD3 of the Scottish Border Local Development Plan, a 

number of other policies are also relevant to the determination of the Application. 

4.2 Policy PMD5 – Infill Development, as the title suggests addresses ‘infill development,’ 

including the reuse of buildings within Development Boundaries. It states that proposals 

will be supported where the following criteria are satisfied: 

A) Where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and  

4.3 We have established that the development can take place at the Application site, without 

conflicting with the established land uses within Cavalry Park. In particular, the existing 

occupiers within the premises will relocate to the office space at first floor level with no 

impact on their existing businesses and no loss of employment. 

B) Does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and  

4.4 The proposed works are substantially internal, with minor external alterations including a 

new access to the rear and the creation of windows at first floor level. There will be no 

impact on the character and amenity of the area. 

C) The individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social 

and economic infrastructure and does not lead to over-development or ‘town and village 

cramming’; and  

4.5 The proposed development will support social and economic infrastructure, providing 

much needed day care facilities, 5 new direct jobs and support local businesses through 

the outsourcing of services. 

d) Respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings; 

and  

4.6 As referred to above, the proposed works are minimal and are appropriate to their 

surroundings. 

E) Adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking into account of water 

and drainage and schools capacity; and 

4.7 The Council’s Roads consultation response raises no objection in respect of access and 

transport. Indeed, the ease of immediate vehicle access to the premises is an important 

requirement for the facility, where clients often have restricted mobility. 

F) It does not result in and significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 

properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking. 

4.8 The proposed development will not result in any impact. 

4.9 Policy PMD1: Sustainability sets out the Sustainability Principles which developers are 

expected to incorporate into developments and these are set out below. In particular the 

proposed development supports Category J – support to community services and 

facilities; and Category K -  The provision of new jobs and support to the local economy. 

4.0 CONSIDERATION OF FURTHER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

POLICIES 

Page 143



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

17 
 

A) The longterm sustainable use and management of land 

4.10 The proposed development is located within the established urban area. The premises 

which are subject to the Application can fully accommodate the Applicant’s requirements, 

with minimal change. The premises are well located to meet the required care needs of 

Peebles and the surrounding area.  

B) Preservation of air and water quality  

4.11 There is not expected to be any additional impact on air and water quality. 

C) The protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats and species  

4.12 The proposed development will take place in established premises and will not impact on 

natural features. 

D) The protection of the built and cultural resources. 

4.13 The proposed development will take place in established premises and will not impact on 

such resources. 

E) The efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources. 

4.14 The proposed development will take place in established premises and will not impact on 

such resources. 

F) The minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its sustainable 

management.  

4.15 The proposed development will take place in established premises and will not impact on 

such resources. 

G) The encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the private 

car. 

4.16 The proposed development is located within the established urban area and has good links 

to public transport. The nature of the use requires clients with limited mobility to have 

easy access by vehicle and mini-bus and the premises meet these requirements. 

H) The minimisation of light pollution 

4.17 The proposed development will have no impact on lighting of the area. 

I) The protection of public health and safety. 

4.18 The proposed development will have no impact on health and safety. 

J) The support to community services and facilities. 

4.19 The proposed development wholly supports necessary community services and facilities 

by providing a care facility which is required to meet the needs of the community. 

Page 144



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

18 
 

K) The provision of new jobs and support to the local economy 

4.20 The proposed development supports the existing businesses which occupy the premises 

and employ 9 members of staff on site. A further 5 direct jobs will be created by the new 

Care Hub facility. In addition, outsourcing of services for the Care Hub including catering, 

beauty, optical and podiatry will generate business within the local community. 

L) The involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 

of their environment. 

4.21 The Care Hub facility intends to support community carer support groups and this is 

outlined in Section 2 above and the Application Supporting Statement. 

4.22 Policy PMD2 - Quality Standards seeks to ensure that all development is expected to be 

of high quality. The Policy sets out comprehensive Sustainability, Placemaking & Design, 

Accessibility, Green Space, Open Space & Biodiversity requirements. Many of the 

standards relate to new built development, however specific relevant standards are noted 

below: 

G) It considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces 

4.23 The proposal creates office floor space at first floor level. The premises allow for the 

adaption of the ground floor for a Care Hub facility. A condition can be applied to the 

Permission which will require the premises to revert to Class 4 Use on cessation of the Care 

Hub facility.  

I) It is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, where an 

extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building. 

J) It is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which compliment the 

highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 

existing building. 

K) It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring 

uses, and neighbouring built form. 

L) It can be satisfactorily accommodated with the site. 

4.24 The proposed development will result in minimal alterations to the premises and 

compliment the building and surrounding area. The proposal is fully contained within the 

site.  

P) It incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties. 

4.25 The ground floor Care Hub facility is easily accessible for its client base, many of whom will 

have restricted mobility. The availability of car parking and space for the drop-off / pick-up 

of clients in a mini bus is an important factor in selection of the premises for the provision 

of the Care Hub facility. 

 

Page 145



HolderPlanning | SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL LOCAL REVIEW BODY APPLICANT STATEMENT PREPARED ON 

BEHALF OF MR STEPHEN LAMB 

  

 

 

19 
 

5.1 DDL Care Services Ltd and Valley Landscaping are successful business operating from the 

Application site, 3 Rowan Court, Cavalry Park, Peebles. They wish to continue to operate 

from the premises, where 9 employees in total are based. 

5.2 DDL Care Services Ltd is a respected provider of home based personal care services within 

Peebles and the wider area. It is a Scottish Borders Council care partner. Against a backdrop 

in a reduction of day care facilities including permanent closures and loss of facilities, as a 

result of the COVID 19 pandemic, its sister company, DDL Care Hub Ltd has identified a 

requirement for a Care Hub facility for adults and older people with health and care needs. 

It has identified the ground floor premises at 3 Rowan Court as a suitable location for the 

development of such a facility. Alternative premises within the town centre and Cavalry 

Park are not suitable for an operation which requires ground level, flexible floor space and 

good access comprising accessible car parking and space for client drop-off and pick-up, 

especially for those with impaired mobility. 

5.3 The proposed development, which is the subject of the LRB submission, comprises the 

creation of first floor office space and a Class 10 Care Hub facility which will partially occupy 

the ground floor. The proposed development will allow the established businesses to 

continue to operate from the premises, whilst providing for the Care Hub facility without 

any loss of employment or business operations at Cavalry Park. Indeed, at least a further 

new 5 jobs plus business outsourcing opportunities will be created by the development. 

5.4 We consider the proposed development is supported by the Development Plan including 

Policies ED1 and PMD3. It provides Class 4 office space and the Care Hub facility is 

complementary to the business operations within Cavalry Park. Cavalry Park is home to a 

range of uses including Class 10 uses. The development of day-care facilities addresses 

identified community needs and can be supported. 

5.5 The Applicant supports the use of a condition which will secure the development of the 

first floor office space prior to the commencement of the operation of the Care Hub facility 

and this should serve to re-assure the Council that the office space will be developed. 

5.6 The Applicant also supports the use of a condition which will require the area to be utilised 

for Class 10 Care Hub facility to revert to Class 4 use on cessation of the Care Hub facility 

operation. This will allow: 

• the Council to control future use of the area to be occupied by the Care Hub 

facility; 

• the Care Hub facility to operate, meeting community needs whilst ensuring 

business use of the premises is not lost in future;  

• additional business space to be created within the premises, which in the longer 

term, should the Care Hub facility cease to operate, will increase the overall 

amount of business space available at Cavalry Park. 

5.7 We respectfully request the Local Review Body grants Planning Permission for the 

proposed development which supports community care, the local economy and local 

employment. 

5.0 CONCLUSION 

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



DDL Care Hub Ltd 

Statement in support of the proposed Change of Use to create a Care Hub & additional office 

space.  

For several years now, facilities for adults and older people, particularly those with dementia and 

challenging mental health have been dramatically reduced. Day-Care facilities at Dunwhinny, Hay 

Lodge Hospital, Victoria Park & Firholm are no longer available.  

This situation has been further exacerbated by the Covid 19 Pandemic with the loss of a Day Unit that 

enabled patients to attend for OT and Physio assessments, obtain treatments, shower, and bathe, and 

access the Falls Clinic. And organisations like WRVS, the Men’s Shed, and local churches are no longer 

able to provide a place for older people to meet socially.  

The closure and reduced function of such facilities leaves Adults and Older people in the community 

with: 

• Increased social isolation, a lack of interaction and increased levels of anxiety. 

• Feelings of loneliness and poor mental health.  

• Reduced cognition 

• A decrease in mobility and movement due to inactivity. 

 

DDL Care Services Ltd have been providing care in our community for several years and have 

developed a reputation as one of the area’s most trusted providers. They have identified a growing 

need within our community of adults and older people, those with dementia and mental health issues 

and wish to address this with the establishment of a Care Hub, located in Cavalry Park.  

DDL Care Services Ltd view the Care Hub as complimentary to the existing community-based facilities 

and services (council run & commercial enterprises) that remain and will exist in support of Scottish 

Borders Council’s model of care.  

The facilities at the Care Hub will provide an alternative to the traditional concept of ‘day care centre’ 

by offering:   

• A safe, secure, and caring environment in which staff and participants can interact to the 

benefit of both.   

• Opportunities to meet with the District Nurse, an Optician, Podiatrist, and other providers of 

healthcare and holistic treatments.   

• Opportunities to use specialist showering facilities with support when needed.  

• Opportunities to exercise; armchair aerobics, stretching, yoga or Thai Chi to help reduce falls 

and strengthen muscle function.  

• Opportunities to become more active with training given in the use of IT.  

• Opportunities for meet others socially. 

• Supervised mobility, and free movement throughout the Care Hub, increasing mobility and 

strengthening muscles. 

• Opportunities to visit and tend a Sensory garden with raised beds for flowers or vegetables, 

proven to stimulate mental and physical health.    

• Opportunities to meet and engage with the children from the nearby Nursery, proven to 

benefit both generations through friendship and play. 

Page 169



• Opportunities to learn about, make and eat a nutritious meal while engaging in the social 

interaction.  

All care needs will be catered for, and no one will be excluded because of a need for equipment or a 

special requirement.   

In addition to our focus on those receiving care, we wish also to provide opportunities for Primary 

Carer support groups from the likes of Carers Centre, Alzheimer’s Scotland, Social Work and MHOAS 

support. Facilities will be provided for meetings with other groups offering support and primary carer 

respite. 

This new facility will fill the void left behind by the closure of previous services. It will offer a significant 

benefit to our community whilst helping relieve some of the pressure on the NHS and social work 

resources locally. Our business model suggests we will be able to support 50 to 75 people per week 

who would otherwise be socially isolated within their own community.   

The facility will be ancillary to the wider development at Cavalry Park and the services offered will 

benefit many of the existing businesses. The Care Hub will sit well within an area that also provides 

Children’s Nursery, Hairdressing & Beautician Salon, a Dental Practice, Specialist Shoe Shop, 

Physiotherapist, Fitness Centres along with education and training accommodation.  The Care Hub will 

provide employment opportunities as well as supporting other businesses within Cavalry Park, 

stimulating the local economy.  At least 5 members of staff will be required to run the Care Hub. 

Services which will be outsourced include catering, beautician, optician, exercise trainer and 

podiatrists. 

The proposed change of use will result in a loss of Class 4 office space (the current gross internal floor 

area of the building is 258m², of which 189m will be subject to a change of use, the remaining floor 

area, 69m² will be retained as office space). We understand that the loss of office space within the 

Strategic High Amenity Site may be unacceptable to the Planning Department. We, therefore, as part 

of this application seek approval to increase the amount of available office space by converting the 

loft above the Care Hub to Class 4 use.  

END 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 170



CAVALRY PARK BUSINESSES 

 

Business      Nature of Business 

Food Bank      Food Storage 

Tera Accustics      Sound Systems 

Allied Surveyors      Surveyors 

CCA Sign Makers     Sign makers 

Bain and Irvine -  Slaters     Roofing contactors and consultants. 

The Health Rooms     Fitness 

Kingsmeadows Nursery      Children’s Day Nursery 

Castle Hill Homes Ltd     Building Services 

Evolution       Bottling and Packaging 

Brainwood and Graham Ltd    Accountant Tax Advisors 

Glentress       ?? 

Atticus             

First Psychology      Counsellors/Therapists 

Hillside Outside     Event Planners, Sports and Recreation Services 

Peebles Carpets      Carpet Fitters 

Inforgen      Sales, Operations and Finance Software 

Interest Link Befriending service for socially isolated 

children, young people and adults with 

learning disabilities across the Scottish 

Borders. 

Lean Greens      Nutrition, supplements   

    

SG Hairdressers      Hairdressers 

Carlisle and Collins     ??   

Scotsdale Finance     Car Hire/Finance   

    

Lemon Digital Design Ltd           Digital Design, print, wide format specialists

  

Nomad Beat – musical Instruments and Tuition  Music School 

Page 171



Business      Nature of Business 

Cycle Law      Accident Claims 

Motorcycle Law      Accident Claims 

Dental Care / Implant Clinic    Dentist 

Borders Chiropractic     Chiropractic Clinic 

Intersport      Sports Shoe Specialist 

Rugby Store      Sports Equipment 

Sportswise Borders     Sports Goods Retailers  

PLC Professional Footwear and Protection  Specialist nursing shoe supplier   

Omi Gym      Fitness Room 

Border Cardiology      ??     

Peebles Beauty      Beautician 

DH Peebles Ltd      Estate Agents, Real Estate  

  

Dr Chad Woods – Physio    Physiotherapist 

Colbalt Facilities Support    Quantity Surveyors    

Carles Martinez Massage and Pilates   Fitness 

Breeze Art Gallery     Furnishings/Art     

Covell Retail and Marketing Solutions   ??   

Kids Racking Co UK Children's cycling clothes, kids trisuits,  kids 

 wetsuit hire for Triathlon, Road, Cyclocross 

Scatto bikes for youth/juniors MTB XC cycle 

multisport    

Neilson Agency      Credit Agency/CCJs/ Company Info 

      

Tweed Valley Bikes Service Centre   Service Centre     

Drop and Roll Worldwide Ltd    Data Storage?     

Lindsay and Connor –      Painters and Decorators 

Apex Graphics      Graphics Design    

   

Self Storage      Storage 

Jodie – Brows and Eyelashes    Beautician 

 

Page 172



Business      Nature of Business 

Rosalind Kerr Dental Practice    Dentist 

James Ingles Shoe Shop     Specialist Shoes 

Pinstripe Personnel     ??     

  

CBS Europe Ltd      Consultants?    

  

Cavalry Park LLP     Business Centre     

Cullen Kilshaw      Property Sales 

Pearson Donaldson     Commercial Properties 

JRW       Chartered Accountants    

First Psychology Scotland    Therapist/Counselling Services  

    

Peeblesshire Youth Trust    Volunteers/Charity   

  

Red Circle      Locksmiths   

Impact Landscapes     Landscaping/Garden Maintenance 

   

Simply       ??  

Blackbird Song       Shamanic Healing   

  

 

 

05 July 2021 

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



 pg. 1 

 

 

DDL Care Hub Ltd 
 

Promoting Independence 

Improving Choice – Improving Quality of Life 

 

 

 

    

Page 175



 pg. 2 

1. Recommendations 

• Run The Hub as a Test of Change, for a period of 12 months 

• Collaborative review to establish the improvement in the Quality of Life of people 

choosing to use the service 

• Jointly evaluate and present report on financial savings made  

2 Executive Summary 

DDL Care Services Ltd has developed and is proposing the creation of a unique community-

based health and social care resource for adults and older people living in Peebles in the form 

of a community care hub managed and owned by DDL Care Hub Ltd.   

This unique facility has been designed to complement current community-based facilities in 

the town of Peebles, as well as providing a whole systems solution to gaps identified during 

research into current care provision in the town and the expressed needs wishes and 

aspirations of people currently receiving services from DDL Care Services Ltd  

DDL Care Hub Ltd will be developed and subject to a Test of Change in partnership with key 

stakeholders. 

The Community Focused Building Based Service will include: 

 

• Fully accessible fit for purpose designed building with free accessible parking 

• Transportation 

• Multi Functional Therapy Room 

• Spa 

• Exercise Room 

• Fully Accessible Enablment Kitchen 

• Café in The Hub 

• Quiet/Reminisance Room 

• Main Hub 

• Practical Training Suite 

• Conference Room 

 

DDL Care Hub Ltd will operate out of Cavalry Park, Peebles, EH45 9BU once Planning 

Permission for the change of use of the building has been granted. 

3 Background  

3.1 DDL Care Services Ltd 

Donna-Dee Lamb, company founder, director, owner and care manager, has over 18 years’ 

experience in the care sector and founded the Care Hub’s sister company DDL Cares Services 

Ltd 5 years ago.  Registered with the Care Inspectorate, DDL Cares Services Ltd has operated 

successfully, in Peebles for the past 5 years and recently expanded service provision into the 

towns of Cardrona, Innerleithen and Walkerburn. 

Page 176



 pg. 3 

At their last inspection of the service, the Care Inspectorate awarded the service the following 

grades: 

Date 
Care and 
Support 

Environment Staffing 
Management 

and Leadership 

31 

May 

2019 

5 - Very 

Good (I) 

Not 

Assessed 

5 - Very 

Good (I) 

5 - Very Good 

(I) 

In terms of the quality of care and support key question 1, the Care Inspectorate concluded 

that: 

“People were supported very well to meet their needs, wishes and choices in a supportive and 

safe way.  This enabled people to lead safe, healthy, happy and active lives.” 

 

3.2 Demise in Provision 

 

Having experienced working in the care sector in Peebles for nearly 20 years, DDL Care Hub 
Ltd.’s founding owner has witnessed a marked decrease in health and social care facilities 
available to adults and older people living with high care needs, including but not limited to: 

• Dunwhinny Day Care Service transferred to Haylodge, rebranded into Tweeddale Day 

Services which transferred to Victoria Park and subsequently closed. 

• All Victoria Park Day care facilities closed 

• NHS Firholm Day Centre, reduction in services now predominately an outreach service 

• NHS Day Hospital Unit - OT and Physio assessments, treatments, bathing and Falls 

Clinic temporary closure due COVID 19 

 

3.3 Current Provision 

 

The current day service run by the Royal Voluntary Services from the Bake House, Peebles 

employs one paid manager and is supported by volunteers, no formal training is required 

therefore the service is unable to accept referrals from people who have high level needs.  

As a result, people with the following care needs are excluded: 

 

• Medication prompting 

• Medication administration 

• Incontinence care 

• Catheter management 

• Assistance using bathroom facilities 

• Advanced dementia 

• Moving and Handling requirements 

 

 

Page 177



 pg. 4 

3.4 DDL Care Hub Ltd Proposal 

 

The services designed and delivered by DDL Care Hub Ltd., will support Scottish Borders 

Health and Social Care Partnership to meet the gap in service provision by providing an 

inclusive whole system approach to community focused building-based service. 

 

The service will be subject to Care Inspectorate registration and will be subject to regulatory 

inspections against the current Health and Social Care Standards.  As a result, all staff 

working in the service will be required to obtain, maintain and sustain registration with the 

Scottish Social Services Council (the SSSC). 

 

4 Main Report 

 

4.1 Proposal  

 

In the recently published Independent Review of Adult Social Care in Scotland, Derek Feely 

stated that: 

 

“We need an approach that builds trusting relationships rather than competition. We need to 

build partnerships not market-places”   

 

He also stated that  

 

“Service design and delivery can only improve if people with lived experience are involved in 

the process.  It is impossible to address inequality if the people who experience it are not in 

the room”. 

  

This Test of Change proposal, to deliver a new and unique model of community focused care 

in the communities of Peebles, Cardona, Innerleithen, Walkerburn and their surrounding 

areas, has been developed to improve the quality of life of people using the service by 

involving them in the design and continuous evaluation and improvement of the services 

delivered. 

 

It is anticipated that the following outcomes will be delivered as a result: 

 

• Reduction of time spent in hospital 

• Improved hospital discharge and rehabilitation experience 

• Reduction in hospital readmissions 

• Reduction and prevention of carers’ stress 

• Reduction of and dependency on care packages 

• Reduction in the number of people socially isolated 

• Increase in the number of people becoming physically active 

• Increased number of people able to remain in their own homes for longer 

• Reduction in residential care placements 

• Financial savings for the Scottish Borders Health and Social Care Partnership 

 

Page 178



 pg. 5 

Working closely with the Carers Centre has highlighted the huge increase in the stresses 

caused by the impact of Covid 19 restrictions and resulting in requests for 4-hour packages of 

support to prevent the breakdown of existing caring roles and relationships.  The Hub provides 

an opportunity to deliver alternative care packages which will keep people together in their 

own home. 

 

The Hub will provide a whole systems’ approach to health and social care needs, supporting 

home from hospital 6-week intensive rehabilitation support plan.  

 

In addtion, having people attending The Hub for a variety of reasons, will enable experienced 

staff competent in identifiying deteoriating health conditions e.g. leg ulcers, water retention, 

uninary track infections to take proactive, unobtrusive action which may reduce the number of 

GP appointments required and the requrest for District Nurses to undertake home visits. 

 

4. 2 Community Focused Building Based Service Main  

 

Fully accessible, fit for purpose designed builidng with free accessible parking 

Creation of a one stop shop for people who cannot go out by themselves either due to their 

mobility or cognitive decline and provides people wishing to use more than one service with 

the opportunity to be supported to do this. 

Outcome: promoting independence and personal choice 

Transportation - Fully inclusive service providing transportation for people who have no 

transport of their own or unable to use public transport  

Outcome: barriers which prevent personal choice becoming a reality are removed                                 

Multi-functional Therapy Room providing secure storage for medical supplies which 

facilitates the provision of health services from a central point.  Including, but not limited to 

District Nurses, Dietary & Podiatry services, Ophthalmologist and Dentistry services.  It is 

anticipated that other holistic treatments will also be delivered from the Therapy Room to meet 

current and emerging needs of people choosing to attend The Hub. 

Outcome: Efficiency savings in terms of Partnership staff travel time between peoples’ homes, 

improved multi agency discussions supporting the Partnership’s Multi Agency Team 

approach. 

Spa Facitities – people will be supported and enabled to pre book treatments of their choice 

from a “spa inspired” list of services, this will include but not limited to showering, hairdressing, 

manicures, pedicures, beauty treatments including facials. 

 

 

 

Page 179



 pg. 6 

Outcomes:  

• Improved skin integrity and personal hygiene 

• reducing the risk of infection 

• early detection of infection and or skin breaks  

• Improved health, wellbeing and mental health 

Exercise Room - Supporting the Partnership’s Occupational Therapists and Physiotherapists. 

The Exercise Room will provide the space for The Hub staff to work jointly to deliver the 

exercise plan devised by Allied Health Professionals (AHP).  

In addition, for those not receiving AHP services the space will be used for armchair areobics, 

yoga, Thai Chi, Life Curve app and Falls prevention awareness. 

Where appropriate, links with local personal trainers in Calvary Park. 

Development Opportunity: to take referrals and work in partnership with Occupational 

Therapists and Phyisotherapists as a way of delivering a 6 week programme of intensive 

enablement support. 

Outcomes:  

• reducing care packages due to working intensly with people for a short perod of time 

• falls reduction  

• improved mobility 

• improved emotional health and wellbeing 

• reduction in hosptial admissions and re-admissions 

Fully Accessible, Enablment Kitchen 

Designed to accommodate all, this fully inclusive, purpose built kitchen with adjustable 

surfaces, will enable everyone, regardless of capability, to develop kitchen  skills and prepare 

food (where possible with produce from the Sensory Garden) to be taken home for their 

evening meal.  The produce from the bakery classes will be served in the café.  Dietcians will 

be invited to provide practical support and advice on diet and nutrician.  In addition, it is hoped 

(to encourage ) partnership arrangements with the local college, which will result in students 

studying Food and Nutrician courses accepting work experience placements in The Hub. 

Outcome:  

• reduction in the number of tea time care at home visits 

• identification of aids and adaptation required for home  

• embedding and enablement approach 

• increasing independence, confidence and personal food choices  

Café at The Hub 

A warm and relaxing environment which provides people using the services of the Hub, their 

friends, famly, other carers and members of Peebles community a friendly, sociable place 

Page 180



 pg. 7 

which addresses the impact of social isolation, the opportunity to eat affordable healtier food 

and to engage with staff and make new friends. 

It will also provide a place in which social events, such as “dancing through the decades”, tea 

dances, can be held. 

Quiet/Reminisance Room 

In acknowledgement of the diverse range of needs of the people using The Hub, the Quiet 

Room has been desiged to provide an alternative to the Main Hub and the Café at The Hub.  

Soft lighting, comfortable relaxing furniture and surroundings will provide those who just want 

space to themselves, with the opportunity to read newspapers, rummage through reminising 

boxes, listen to music or just take a nap. 

Outcome: alleviating triggers which may result in stress and distress, improved emotional 

wellbeing. 

Main Hub 

• Social Isolation: Regular interaction and making new friends 

• Physical Activity: Paths for All/Care Inspectorate initiative Caring About Physical 

Activity 

• Dementia: Active Minds, games, puzzles, creative arts and crafts, colour coded areas. 

• Addressing the Digital Divide: iPads, sourcing devices, “how to use sessions” 

• Intergeneration activities jointly with local nursery children  

• Sensory garden with raised beds to allow users to plant flowers and vegetables  

• Therapy Animals 

• Carers stress relief support and raising awareness of the support available  

• Carers in the Café at The Hub 

Practical Training Suite 

• Equipment to include: Profiling bed, hoists, riser recliner chair, steady, stand aid, 

rutland trolley, bath and bathing equipment, shower room and associated equipment 

• Delivered by external experienced trainer 

• Observation of learning in practice 

• Audience/participants – family and friends, carers, unpaid carers, private carers 

Opportunity: Income generation to reinvest back into The Hub 

Outcomes:  

• reduction in hospital admissions  

• reduction in care package provision 

• reduction in the number of people going into residential care 

• promoting and enabling the right of families/friends to live together at home 

 

Page 181



 pg. 8 

Conference Room 

It is envisaged that the Conference Room will develop into a well used and recognised 

community facility.  A facility that can be booked and used by anyone living in and around 

Peeblesshire for both educational and social purposes. 

Discussions have already taken place with the Carers Centre who have expressed an 

interest in delivering awareness sessions for people both experienced and new to caring 

responsibilities. 

• Dementia Awareness for Families and Friends 

• Social isolation 

• Shopkeeper awareness/training 

• Public awareness 

• Intergenerational activities 

• Different supports and activities available in the area 

 

Outcome: Caring for people is something which naturally occurs in communities, and we all 

need to be part of this and take responsibility for our older population. 

 

4.2 Planning Application 

 

An application under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for Part Change of 

Use of ground floor to Class 10, and alterations to create additional office space in the attic to 

replace offices on the ground floor, was made on 2 April 2021. 

 

Initially refused by Scottish Borders Council for the following reason ‘use as a day centre for 

the elderly would not be complementary to Calvary Park resulting in the loss of high quality 

office accommodation.’ 

 

DDL Care Services Ltd.’s Planning Consultant is currently appealing this decision. 

 

4.3 Stakeholder Engagement  

Of the 60 Client Questionnaires sent out on 29 September 2020 (see Appendix 1) 58% (35) 

were completed and returned.   

 

Comments received in relation to the question “Once COVID-19 restrictions are removed, 

would you like to see more social groups, day centers or organised activities in the Peebles 

areas?”  included: 

 

“Mum would love to do more but being chairbound is a problem”,  

“All depends on wheelchair transport and access”,  

“Maybe a day Centre”,  

“I’d love someone to just to take me a wee half hour jaunt because of mobility, I’d be happy to 

see a bit of life cos I can’t go out for a walk, or some kind of group mediation”,  

“Gentle exercise, social group, reading group”,  

Page 182



 pg. 9 

“Listen to music. A choir or recital, maybe. Go out for a coffee in a small group where I could 

hear and be heard” 

“Exercises, bingo and games, arts and crafts”. 

 

 

4.4 Financial Impact – costs and potential savings 

 

Supporting Hospital Discharge Process – Preventing Readmission 

Hospital Discharge support packages in the main consists of 4 x 30 min visits per day, 7 

days a week at a weekly cost of £287.56 resulting in an annual cost of £14,953.12. 

This establishment of the DDL Care Hub will provide a combined alternative to the above, 

which will support people live for as long as they can independently, supported by 

community focused care. 

The table below provides fuller details of the costs associated with the three alternative models 

of care delivered over the first 6 week period after hospital discharge and then for the following 

46 weeks 

 

  
Care Hub  
5 days 
per week 
for 6 
weeks 

 
Care 
visits per 
day per 
week for 
6 weeks 

 
46 week post 
combined 
package care 
cost 

 
Total Cost 

 
Current 
Care 
Package 

 
Savings to 
Partnership 

 
Care Package 1  
Hub plus 1 x 30 
mins  

 
£3,000 
 
 

 
£431 

 
£3,307 
 

 
£6,738 

 
£14,953 

 
£8,215 

 
Care Package 2 
Hub plus 2 x 30 
mins 
 

 
£3,000 

 
£863 

 
£6,614 

 
10,477 

 
£14,953 

 
£4,476 

 
Care Package 3  
Hub plus 3 x 30 
mins 
 

 
£3,000 

 
£1,294 

 
£9,921 

 
14,215 

 
£14,953 

 
£738 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 183



 pg. 10 

Preventing Hospital Admissions due to Falls/Hip Fractures 

Having established an early intervention referral process with allied health professionals, it is 

anticipated that the DDL Care Hub will work with the Partnership to prevent hospital 

admissions, the following is an example of the potential savings which the Partnership can 

expect if one person is prevented from being admitted to hospital: 

 

7 Days in 
Hospital 

14 
Intermediate 
Care days to 
Facilitate 
Returning 
Home 

Care at 
Home 
Package 
3 visits per 
day x 52 
weeks 

Total Cost DDL Care Hub 
Referral 3 x per 
week – 
preventing 
hospital 
admission 

Total saving for 
each admission 
prevented 

 
£14,000 

 
£1,500 

 
£11,214 

 
£26,714 

 
£15,600 

 
£11,114 
 

 

Preventing Hospital Admissions due to Urinary Tract Infection 

To support allied health professionals, reduce the number of hospital admissions for people 

vulnerable to urinary tract infections, a referral process to attend the DDL Care Hub once a 

week will enable early detection will be established.  The following is an example of the 

potential savings which the Partnership can expect if one person is prevented from being 

admitted to hospital: 

10 Days in 
Hospital due 
to delirium 

7 Intermediate 
Care days to 
Facilitate 
Returning 
Home 

Care at 
Home 
Package 
increases by 
£71.80 per 
week for 6 
weeks 
 

Total Cost DDL Care 
Hub Referral 
1 x per week 
– preventing 
hospital 
admission 

Total saving for each 
admission prevented 

 
£20,000 

 
£750 

 
£431 

 
£21,181 

 
£5,200 

 
£15,981 
 

 

Preventing Carer Relationship Breakdown 

 

Emergency 

Respite  

24 hours x 4 weeks £2,800 

 Residential Care  £38,723 

  £41,523 

 

Alternative combined care package, generating a potential saving of £14,708 

 

Care at 

home  

10.5 hours per week  

 

£11,214.84 

The Hub 3 x 6 hours (Mon, Wed and Fri 9am to 3pm) £15,600.00 

  £26,815 

 

Page 184



 pg. 11 

 

5 Next Steps 

 

Engagement with the communities of Peebles, Cardrona, Innerleithen and Walkerburn to 

establish what they want from a community focused care building based service. 

 

Establishing links with: 

• NHS Borders, GPs, AHP and District Nurses 

• Local Businesses 

• Adult Social Care 

• Community Groups 

 

 

Communication and Marketing Strategy 

• Peeblesshire News advert 

• Peebles Life Magazine advert, free magazine delivered to every home in Peebles and 

Cardrona.   

• Radio Borders announcement 

• Flyers in local shops, churches, health centres, children’s centres and carers services 

• Open Day to promote facilities 

 

6 Appendices 

Appendix 1 Questionnaire 

Appendix 2 Adult Social Care Review – Feeley Report Recommendations 

Independent Review of Adult Care in Scotland (www.gov.scot) 

Appendix 3 Health and Social Care Standards My Support – My Life 

Health and Social Care Standards: my support, my life - gov.scot (www.gov.scot) 

 

Page 185

https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/independent-report/2021/02/independent-review-adult-social-care-scotland/documents/independent-review-adult-care-scotland/independent-review-adult-care-scotland/govscot%3Adocument/independent-review-adult-care-scotland.pdf?forceDownload=true


This page is intentionally left blank



John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 

 

 

 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 

Donna Dee Lamb 
DDL Care Services Ltd 
1 Silverbirch Studio 
Cavalry Park 
Peebles 
EH45 9BU 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Ranald Dods 
01835 825239 

Our Ref: 20/00558/PREAPP 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 16th October 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PROPOSAL:  Partial change of use to form day centre from office 
 

LOCATION:  3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish 
Borders EH45 9BU  

 

The evaluation on the following pages provides a written response to the above pre-application 
enquiry by the allocated planning officer. It does not comprise any decision made by Scottish 
Borders Council and its Committees and the advice is not legally binding on the determination of a 
forthcoming planning application.  
 
The evaluation is the opinion of the planning officer. Should a formal application subsequently be 
submitted, it shall be subject to statutory consultation and full assessment by the Council. This 
evaluation shall not prejudice the Council’s full consideration of the formal application including 
any consultation comments and public representations which may be received. 
 
The information provided in this response may be subjected to a Freedom of Information Request 
under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002. It will be for Scottish Borders Council to 
determine what, if any, information will be or not be exempt from such a request, in accordance 
with this legislation.  
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 
 
  

Page 187

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 
 
 

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL RESPONSE TO 
PLANNING PRE-APPLICATION ENQUIRY 

Comments provided by Officer Name and Post: 
Ranald Dods 
Planning Officer  
(Development Management) 

Contact e-mail / number: 
ranald.dods@scotborder.gov.uk 
  01835 825 239 

SBC Enquiry Reference 20/00558/PREAPP 

Date 16 Oct 20 

Proposed Development Part change of use from office to day centre for the elderly 

Site Location 3 Rowan Court, Cavalry Park, Peebles 

Background / Site 
History 

The building was one of a number granted under 05/02146/FUL. 
 

Planning Policies and 
Guidance 

Relevant planning policies and supplementary guidance may include: 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 
PMD3 – Land use allocations  
 
ED1 – Protection of business and industrial land  
 
IS7 – Parking provision and standards 
 
The Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 can be accessed online.   
 

 The following evaluation represents the informal opinion of the 
planning officer on the submitted pre-application enquiry. It does not 
comprise a decision made by Scottish Borders Council. 

Assessment PRINCIPLE 
The proposal is for a change of use from office to a day centre within an existing 
strategic high amenity site in Peebles (Cavalry Park, zEL2).  The key policies 
against which the proposal would be assessed are PMD3 and ED1 of the LDP.   
 
The policies contained in SESplan are not relevant and have not, therefore, been 
assessed. 
 
HIERARCHY OF DEVELOPMENT 
The proposal would be considered a “Local” development under the hierarchy of 
development.   
 
LAND USE ALLOCATION 
The site is designated as a strategic high amenity site for class 4 use.  Policy 
PMD3 states, amongst other things: 
Any other use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can 
demonstrate that: 
a) it is ancillary to the proposed use and in the case of proposed housing 
development, it still enables the site to be developed in accordance with the 
indicative capacity shown in the Land Use Proposals table and/or associated 
planning briefs;; 
b) there is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming 
available for the development of the proposed use within the Local Plan period; 
c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to 
outweigh the need to maintain the original proposed use. 
 

Page 188

mailto:ranald.dods@scotborder.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20051/plans_and_guidance/121/local_development_plan


The proposed part change of use to a day centre for the elderly would not be 
ancillary to the wider Cavalry Park site.  There are no known constraints on the site 
which would prevent its continued use as class 4.  There may be some community 
benefits but those are not significant enough to outweigh the need to maintain the 
existing use.  The proposal would be contrary to policy PMD3 
 
 
PROTECTION OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL LAND 
Cavalry Park is designated as a strategic high amenity site for class 4 use.  Policy 
ED1 states, amongst other things: 
The council rigorously protects strategic business and industrial sites for 
employment uses. 
a) Strategic High Amenity Sites 
Development on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for Class 4 
use.  Other complementary commercial activity e.g. offices, call centres and high 
technology uses may be acceptable if it enhances the quality of the business park 
as an employment location. 
 
The use as a day centre for the elderly is not one which would be complimentary 
nor would it enhance the wider Cavalry Park site.  There are pressures to find new 
business and industrial land within the Tweeddale area.  The development of a 
Class 10 Use at this location, would ultimately lead to the loss of allocated 
business and industrial land when there is known pressure for business and 
industrial land.  The proposal would be contrary to policy ED1.  
 
ROADS 
I have consulted my colleagues in Roads.  They comment that the proposed use is 
unlikely to generate a significant change in the demand for parking. 
 
OTHER 
It is acknowledged that covid-19 is having an impact on the economy and we all 
have a role to play in helping businesses set-up and expand.  That would be 
material consideration to the determination of an application. If a planning 
application were to be submitted, that should be backed up by supporting 
information which could detail, for example, any other potential sites / buildings 
which have been considered for the proposed use.  

 

Officer’s conclusion The proposal would not accord with the terms of the LDP.  Support could not be 
given to the proposed development. 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Mr Stephen  Lamb 
per Border Architects Ltd 
The Courthouse  
High Street 
Peebles  
EH45 8SW 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Ranald Dods 
01835 825239 

Our Ref: 21/00486/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 7th June 2021 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT 3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders 
EH45 9BU  

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and 

alterations to form additional office space from attic floor 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Stephen Lamb 
 
 

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   
 
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 191

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 21/00486/FUL 

 

To :     Mr Stephen  Lamb per Border Architects Ltd The Courthouse  High Street Peebles  EH45 8SW   

 
With reference to your application validated on 2nd April 2021 for planning permission under the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form additional office 
space from attic floor 
 

 

 
at :   3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles  Scottish Borders EH45 9BU 

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule. 
 
Dated 31st May 2021 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   

                   
   John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 192

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  21/00486/FUL 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused: 
 
Plan Ref  Plan Type   Plan Status 

 
PA01  Location Plan   Refused 
PA02  Proposed Site Plan  Refused 
PA03  Existing Plans   Refused 
PA04  Existing Elevations  Refused 
PA05  Proposed Plans   Refused 
PA06  Proposed Plans   Refused 
PA07  Proposed Elevations  Refused 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 The development would be contrary to policies ED1 and PMD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016 

in that the use as a day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) Order 1997) would not be a commercial activity that would be 
complementary or ancillary to the Cavalry Park Strategic High Amenity Site and would result in the 
loss of high quality office accommodation and its replacement with potentially less attractive 
accommodation.  This would not serve to protect the business park adequately for employment 
purposes. This conflict with the Development Plan is not overridden by other material 
considerations. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice.  
 
The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The Local 
Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells. 
TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk.  The standard form and guidance notes can 
be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision.  Appeals to the Local Review Body can also be made via the 
Scottish Government Planning and Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 

Page 193

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20050/planning_applications/533/appeal_a_planning_decision
https://www.dpea.scotland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     21/00486/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Stephen  Lamb 

 
AGENT :   Border Architects Ltd 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form 
additional office space from attic floor 
 
LOCATION:  3 Rowan Court Suite 3 

Cavalry Park 
Peebles 
Scottish Borders 
EH45 9BU 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
PA01  Location Plan Refused 
PA02  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
PA03  Existing Plans Refused 
PA04  Existing Elevations Refused 
PA05  Proposed Plans Refused 
PA06  Proposed Plans Refused 
PA07  Proposed Elevations Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No representations were received.   
 
Consultation responses were received from:  Roads - no objection, there is ample parking available; 
Forward Planning - objection.  The proposed class 10 Use as part of this planning application does not 
conform with the requirements of policy ED1. To support this proposal would set an undesirable 
precedent and would undermine the council's strong position on business development at this location.  
It would also result in the loss of valuable ground floor high amenity business land within Peebles 
which is a scarce resource.  The supporting information provided by the applicant provides reason as 
to why their business is expanding, but it does not confirm why this specific site over any other 
potential site should be supported for the proposed use.  The Forward Planning section would have 
expected the applicant to have carried out a search for other potential sites / buildings for the proposed 
use.  The application makes reference to proposed additional office space; however it is not additional 
office space that is proposed but rather replaced office space. o Is this replacement office space to be 
used by the applicant or will it be available for other businesses to benefit from? If the proposal is for 
the latter, it is suggested that any business occupying the converted attic space would want a more 
prominent entrance that confirms their presence at that location, including a suitable pedestrian access 
from the adjacent carpark. o The application drawings include a kitchen and dining area, the exact 

Page 195



intention of how this space is to be used has not been confirmed. Is this space proposed as a café? 
and if so, it is assumed this will be for use by the clients of the day centre only as opposed to being 
open to the public. If it was the case that planning controls could be put in place which could ensure 
the office element on the upper floor would be implemented, then the proposal could be considered 
more favourably, i.e. there would remain a net office floor space within the building whilst also ensuring 
the care unit could operate. However, if this is not able to be controlled then it is not considered the 
proposal can be supported. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
PMD2 - Quality standards  
PMD3 - Land use allocations 
ED1 - Protection of business and industrial land 
IS7 - Parking provision and standards 
 
The site is not strategic, therefore the policies contained within SESplan are not considered. 
 
The following Scottish Government publication is material: 
Planning Circular 4/1998: the use of conditions in planning permissions. 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 28th May 2021 
 
Site and proposal 
The application site lies within the existing strategic high amenity site in Peebles (Cavalry Park, zEL2).  
Number 3 Rowan Court is a single storey building within the south western section of the development and 
is one of 4 similar units in that area.  The building presently has approximately 200m square of class 4 office 
accommodation. 
 
This application is made to change the use of the ground floor to a day centre for the elderly, which would be 
within class 10 of the use classes order.  The plans indicate that one quadrant of the ground floor would be a 
training area and or conference room.  The applicant also proposes the creation of an upper story within the 
roofspace which is shown as being for office space.  
 
The applicant has submitted a supporting statement and I have had regard to that in my determination. 
 
Site history 
The building is part of the second phase of the development and was the subject of application 
05/02146/FUL, being granted in December 2005.  The proposal under consideration here was the subject of 
a pre-application enquiry, reference 20/00558/PREAPP, albeit that did not include any class 4 provision.  
The response given at that stage was that a day centre for the elderly would not be a complementary use for 
Cavalry Park and, on that basis, support could not be given and that any application submitted should be 
supported by information detailing any other potential sites / buildings which have been considered for the 
proposed use. 
 
Design and layout 
External changes would be limited, extending to the installation of rooflights and the formation of an 
additional entrance on the west elevation.  Those alterations would not require planning permission.  The 
majority of the changes would be internal and would consist of the formation of an additional floor within the 
roof space and changes to the partition layout at ground floor.  The current floor area of the building is in the 
order of 255m square and the formation of the upper floor would increase the overall floor area by almost 
180m square, or a 70% increase in gross floor space.  Of that, only 142m square would be office space.  
Being within the roofspace, that space created would have considerable ceiling coombes and the usable 
floorspace would be less than that.  
 
The use of the ground floor would be changed from class 4 (business) to class 10 (non-residential 
institutions).  The submitted plan shows three zones, labelled as:  "zone 1" to include dining and kitchen 
areas; "zone 2" which would be a training / conference area and; "zone 3", labelled as a "care hub".  Also on 
the ground floor would be therapy, staff and quiet rooms along with toilet and shower facilities.   

Page 196



 
Principle 
The key policies against which the proposal would be assessed are ED1 and PMD3 of the LDP.   
 
Policy ED1 states, amongst other things: 
The council rigorously protects strategic business and industrial sites for employment uses. 
a) Strategic High Amenity Sites 
Development on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for class 4 use.  Other complementary 
commercial activity e.g. offices, call centres and high technology uses may be acceptable if it enhances the 
quality of the business park as an employment location.  The use as a day centre for the elderly is not one 
which would be complementary nor would it enhance the wider Cavalry Park site.  There are pressures to 
find new business and industrial land within the Tweeddale area.  The development of a class 10 use at this 
location, would lead ultimately to the loss of allocated business and industrial land when there is known 
pressure for business and industrial land and introduce a use that is not a complementary neighbour to 
business uses.   
 
Forward Planning advises that the council carries out an annual Employment Land Audit (ALE), the purpose 
of which is to monitor business / industrial land take-up across the Scottish Borders.  This helps the council 
ensure it has a sufficient land supply within the LDP. The most recent ALE was in spring of 2019 and 
identified that there is no immediately available employment land in Peebles with 0.7ha available 
employment land between 1-5 years.  Forward Planning does not considered this is sufficient land to meet 
the anticipated demand.  Consequently it is vital that existing employment land supply is retained and further 
land is allocated for this purpose.  The protection of the application site for business uses and the 
identification of further employment land at Eshiels has been taken forward into the proposed new Local 
Development Plan.  The development of a class 10 use at this location, would ultimately lead to the loss of 
ground floor allocated business and industrial land and the proposal would therefore be contrary to policy.  I 
have no reason to question that assessment. 
 
Policy PMD3 states, amongst other things: 
Any other use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can demonstrate that: 
a) it is ancillary to the proposed use; 
b) there is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming available for the development 
of the proposed use within the Local Plan period; 
c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to outweigh the need to 
maintain the original proposed use. 
 
Considering the above, the proposed change of use to a day centre for the elderly would be neither ancillary 
nor complementary to the wider Cavalry Park site.  There are no known constraints on the site which would 
prevent the building's continued use as class 4.  There may be some community benefits but those are not 
significant enough to outweigh the need to maintain the existing use.  In addition, the applicant has failed to 
provide evidence that there are not any other potential sites / buildings which have been considered for the 
proposed use.   
 
It should also be noted that, although the plans indicate that "zone 2" would be retained as class 4 use, the 
physical separation from the rear entrance and upper floor, combined with the newly formed internal links 
between the proposed class 10 use and the area marked as "zone 2 - training - conference", make it clear 
that the area would at best be ancillary office space associated with the applicant's business rather than two 
separate units.  It is acknowledged that the proposal includes the provision of class 4 floor space within the 
roofspace.   However, as noted by Forward Planning, this is replacement rather than additional floor space.  
In addition, first floor office space is less attractive than ground floor accommodation and, combined with the 
significant ceiling coombes, the office space proposed in this application is likely to be even less desirable.   
In their consultation response Forward Planning indicated that a more favourable consideration could be 
given if it were possible to ensure the upper floor element could be implemented.  Whilst a condition could 
be imposed requiring the actual provision of the office space within the roofspace, that could be retained by 
the applicant as ancillary office space or it could simply be formed with the provision of partitions and left 
unoccupied. The success of such space will depend a lot on its marketing and terms of occupancy. It would 
not be possible, nor appropriate, for the planning authority to attempt to regulate the marketing and 
occupancy of business space to benefit a use that is not, itself, complementary to the business park. The 
replacement accommodation would evidently be inferior to the existing ground floor accommodation, and I 
do not consider it in the interests of the business park to provide a Class 10 on the ground floor and thus 

Page 197



relegate office accommodation to the first floor.   It is considered, in any case, likely that a condition that 
would involve regulation of the marketing and occupancy of the first floor accommodation would potentially 
unenforceable and would not be compliant with the requirements set out in Planning Circular 4/1998: the 
use of conditions in planning permissions. I do not consider the proposal would be adequately mitigated by a 
planning condition as a result.  
 
Taking the above into consideration, the proposal would be contrary to policies ED1 and PMD3 and support 
cannot be given to the application. 
 
Visual impact 
The changes proposed to the exterior of the building would not be detrimental to visual amenity or to the 
character of Cavalry Park.   
 
Roads issues 
Roads assessed the application and considered that there is sufficient parking available within the area.  I 
have no reason to question that assessment. 
 
Services 
No changes are proposed to the current water and foul drainage provision.  Provision for waste and 
recycling facilities exist on the site. 
                         
Conclusion 
The proposed use would not be a commercial activity that would be either ancillary or complementary to the 
Cavalry Park Strategic High Amenity Site.  The change of use would lead ultimately to the loss of allocated 
business and industrial land when there is known pressure for such sites and the provision of potentially less 
attractive office accommodation in its place.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate that there are not any 
other potential sites / buildings which have been considered for the proposed use and has not demonstrated 
clearly that the proposal would enhance the quality of the business park as an employment location. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The proposed use would not be a commercial activity that would be either ancillary or complementary to the 
Cavalry Park Strategic High Amenity Site.  The change of use would lead ultimately to the loss of allocated 
business and industrial land when there is known pressure for such sites and the provision of potentially less 
attractive office accommodation in its place.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate that there are not any 
other potential sites / buildings which have been considered for the proposed use and has not demonstrated 
clearly that the proposal would enhance the quality of the business park as an employment location. 
 
The development would be contrary to policy ED1 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the use as a 
day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) 
Order 1997) would not be a commercial activity that would be complementary to the Cavalry Park Strategic 
High Amenity Site.  This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by other material 
considerations. 
 
The development would be contrary to policy PMD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that  use as a 
day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) 
Order 1997) would be a neither ancillary nor complementary to the Cavalry Park Strategic High Amenity 
Site.  This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by other material considerations. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The development would be contrary to policies ED1 and PMD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016 

in that the use as a day centre for the elderly (falling within class 10 of The Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) Order 1997) would not be a commercial activity that would be 
complementary or ancillary to the Cavalry Park Strategic High Amenity Site and would result in the 
loss of high quality office accommodation and its replacement with potentially less attractive 
accommodation.  This would not serve to protect the business park adequately for employment 

Page 198



purposes. This conflict with the Development Plan is not overridden by other material 
considerations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Forward Planning Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   7th April 2021 
 
Contact:  Ranald Dods       01835 825239  Ref:  21/00486/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 28th April 2021, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 28th April 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Stephen  Lamb  
  
Agent:  Border Architects Ltd 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form 
additional office space from attic floor 
Site:  3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 201

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Trish Connolly  
Forward Planning Section 

tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 825010 

Date of reply 25/05/2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00486/FUL Case Officer: 
Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Stephen  Lamb  

Agent Border Architects Ltd 

Proposed 
Development 

Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form additional 
office space from attic floor 

Site Location 3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The application proposes the part Change of Use of ground floor accommodation to 
Class 10 and conversion of the attic space to form office space on Business and 
Industrial Use (Strategic High Amenity) site zEL2 Cavalry Park as allocated within 
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

• Policy ED1: Protection of Business and Industrial Land  

• Policy PMD3: Land Use Allocations 

Assessment These proposals must primarily be assessed against Policy ED1 of the Scottish 
Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) 2016 which seeks to protect this Strategic 
High Amenity site zEL2 and Policy PMD3 – Land Use Allocations which aims to 
ensure that sites allocated within the LDP are developed for their intended use and 
that any alternative use is subject to appropriate justification. It is also noted that 
other relevant Development Plan policies will also apply in the consideration of this 
planning application. 
 
In terms of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), paragraph 93 states that the planning 
system should: “allocate sites that meet the diverse needs of the different sectors 
and sizes of business” and paragraph 28 makes reference to supporting “the right 
development in the right place; it is not to allow development at any cost” which 
consequently requires consideration of matters such as relevant policy and land 
use allocations as identified in the adopted LDP. 
 
In terms of the LDP, Policy ED1 identifies the Cavalry Park site (zEL2) as a 
Strategic High Amenity site, and it is one of only two Strategic High Amenity sites in 
the Scottish Borders. The aim of the policy is to maintain a supply of business and 
industrial land allocations in the Scottish Borders. The policy states: “Development 
on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for Class 4 use. Other 
complementary commercial activity e.g. offices, call centres and high technology 
uses may be acceptable if it enhances the quality of the business park as an 
employment location”.  
 
The proposed Class 10 Use as part of this planning application does not conform 
with the requirements of Policy ED1. To support this proposal would set an 

Page 202

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

undesirable precedent and would undermine the Council’s strong position on 
business development at this location. It would also result in the loss of valuable 
ground floor High Amenity Business Land within Peebles which is a scarce 
resource. 
 
The Council carries out an annual Employment Land Audit. The purpose of the 
Audit is to monitor business / industrial land take-up across the Scottish Borders.  
This helps the Council ensure it has a sufficient land supply within the LDP. The 
most recent Employment Land Audit carried out by the Council in the Spring of 
2019 identified that there is no immediately available employment land in Peebles, 
and 0.7ha available employment land between 1-5 years. It is not considered this is 
sufficient land to meet the anticipated demand. Consequently it is vital that existing 
employment land supply is retained and further land is allocated for this purpose. 
The protection of the application site for business uses and the identification of 
further employment land at Eshiels has been taken forward into the proposed new 
Local Development Plan. The development of a Class 10 Use at this location, 
would ultimately lead to the loss of ground floor allocated business and industrial 
land and the proposal would therefore be contrary to policy. 
 
SPP paragraph 69 states: “Planning authorities, developers, owners and occupiers 
should be flexible and realistic in applying the sequential approach, to ensure that 
different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations. It is important that 
community, education and healthcare facilities are located where they are easily 
accessible to the communities that they are intended to serve”. 
 
Furthermore, SPP paragraph 71 states: “Where development proposals in edge of 
town centre, commercial centre or out-of-town locations are contrary to the 
development plan, it is for applicants to demonstrate that more central options have 
been thoroughly assessed and that the impact on existing town centres is 
acceptable. ….”   
 
It could be understood there may be a degree of pressure to allow a more flexible 
range of uses within the Cavalry Park if there was no business activity taking place 
however, that is not the case. It is therefore critical that the site is safeguarded for 
future high amenity business development. 
 
In respect to LDP Policy PMD3 Land Use Allocations, that policy states: “Any other 
use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can demonstrate that: 
a) it is ancillary to the proposed use and in the case of proposed housing 
development, it still enables the site to be developed in accordance with the 
indicative capacity shown in the Land Use Proposals table and/or associated 
planning briefs, or 
b) there is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming 
available for the development of the proposed use within the Local Plan period, or 
c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to 
outweigh the need to maintain the original proposed use, and 
d) the proposal is otherwise acceptable under the criteria for infill development”. 
 
The supporting information provided by the applicant provides reason as to why 
their business is expanding, but it does not confirm why this specific site over any 
other potential site should be supported for the proposed use. The Forward 
Planning Section would have expected the applicant to have carried out a search 
for other potential sites / buildings for the proposed use. 
 
In respect to the application submitted, it is considered that it raises a number of 

Page 203

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

issues/questions in relation to the proposed changes that are not dealt with in the 
application submission and its supporting statement.  

• The application makes reference to proposed additional office space; 
however it is not additional office space that is proposed but rather replaced 
office space.  

• Is this replacement office space to be used by the applicant or will it be 
available for other businesses to benefit from?  
If the proposal is for the latter, it is suggested that any business occupying 
the converted attic space would want a more prominent entrance that 
confirms their presence at that location, including a suitable pedestrian 
access from the adjacent carpark.  

• The application drawings include a kitchen and dining area, the exact 
intention of how this space is to be used has not been confirmed. Is this 
space proposed as a café? and if so, it is assumed this will be for use by the 
clients of the day centre only as opposed to being open to the public. 

 
If it was the case that planning controls could be put in place which could ensure 
the office element on the upper floor would be implemented, then the proposal 
could be considered more favourably, i.e. there would remain a net office floor 
space within the building whilst also ensuring the care unit could operate. However, 
if this is not able to be controlled then it is not considered the proposal can be 
supported. 
 
In summary, the use of a day care centre proposed as part of this planning 
application does not conform with the requirements of Policy ED1. Whilst 
replacement office space is proposed, to support the proposal would result in the 
loss of ground floor high amenity business land within Peebles which is a scarce 
resource.  

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 204

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Paul Grigor 
Roads Planning Officer 

pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826663 

Date of reply 15th April 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00486/FUL Case Officer: Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Stephen  Lamb  

Agent Border Architects Ltd 

Proposed 
Development 

Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form additional 
office space from attic floor 

Site Location 3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment I have no objections to the proposed development, the site is well stocked in terms 
of parking. 
 
It should be noted as a result of restrictions on travel due to the Coronavirus 
pandemic at the time of writing, no site visit has been undertaken and the 
comments made above are based purely on the information submitted with 
this application and local knowledge. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

Signed: KJP 
 
 

Page 205

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 207

A
genda Item

 5c



P
age 208



P
age 209



P
age 210



P
age 211



P
age 212



P
age 213



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221



Page 222



OFFICERS REPORT 

 

PART III 

 

Reference No : 06/02165/FUL 
 

Proposal :  Change of Use from Office to Adult Education Training Studio 
 

Site :   Unit 1, Silver Birch Studios, Cavalry Park, Peebles 
 

Applicant :  Andrew Pearson Premier Sipps 
 

Agent :  None 

 

Officer :  Barry Fotheringham 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Observations by Development Control Officer 
 
This is a relatively straight forward change of use from office to adult education training 
facility.  The site is located within an area of land covered by the retention of 
employment uses. While not strictly falling within the uses classes 4, 5 and 6 of the use 
classes order as identified in the Finalised Local Plan, it is considered that the use of 
this single unit would be similar to that of the children’s nursery and would complement 
the other uses. 
 

Recommendation 
 
Approve. 
 
 
 
 
Barry Fotheringham 
11 October 2021 

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 225



Page 226



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED 
TO THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND BUILDING STANDARDS 

 
PART III REPORT 

 
REF :     08/01525/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Border Homes & Properties Ltd 

 
AGENT :   Sinclair Hay Sutherland Partnership 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Change of use from office to form training centre 
 
LOCATION:  Unit C  

Cavalry Park 
Peebles 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
Recommendation by  - Ms Dorothy Amyes  (Planning Officer) on 15 October 2008 
Planning consent was given in October 2007 for the erection of new units at Cavalry Park for office and 
business use (ref 07/01467/FUL). The units are now nearing completion and this application is for the 
change of use of Unit C from office to form a training centre. 
 
No objections have been received from Technical Services (Roads) or the local community council. No 
response has been received from Environmental Health. No representations have been received. 
 
The proposed use is compatible with other uses within the business park and the required facilities can be 
adequately accommodated within the unit. There will be no alterations to the external appearance of the 
building.  The site is identified as a strategic employment site within the adopted local plan. Scottish Borders 
Enterprise has been consulted and they are satisfied that the alternative use does not prejudice the strategic 
employment land requirement. A precedent for this type of use in Cavalry Park has already been set with the 
Borders College unit. Therefore it is considered that the proposal is acceptable. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Approve 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Mr Kelman Taylor 
Kingsville 
2 Bonnington Road 
Peebles 
Scotland 
EH45 9HF 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Ranald Dods 
Ext. 8574 

Our Ref: 18/01756/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 20th February 2019 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Unit 5 Elm Court Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 
9BU 

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Change of use from storage to form gymnasium 
(retrospective) 
 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Kelman Taylor 
 
 

Please find attached the decision notice for the above application. 

 

Please read the schedule of conditions and any informative notes carefully.  

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ .  Please see the requirement for notification 

of initiation and completion of development as well as for Street naming and numbering as 

appropriate. 
 
It should be noted that before works commence, where applicable, all necessary consents should 
be obtained under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003.  If you require any further information in this 
respect, please contact the relevant Building Standards Surveyor. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 229

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                      

Regulatory Services 

   

 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 18/01756/FUL 

 

To :    Mr Kelman Taylor Kingsville 2 Bonnington Road Peebles Scotland EH45 9HF  

 
With reference to your application validated on 7th January 2019 for planning permission under the 
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Change of use from storage to form gymnasium (retrospective) 
 
 

 

 
at :   Unit 5 Elm Court Cavalry Park  Peebles Scottish Borders 
EH45 9BU 
  

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the 
approved plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), subject to the following 
direction:  
  

 That the development to which this permission relates must be commenced within three 
years of the date of this permission. 

 
And subject to the conditions on the attached schedule imposed by the Council for the reasons 
stated 
 
Dated 18th February 2019 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   
                     
 

 John Hayward 
 Planning & Development Standards Manager 

 

Page 230



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   

 

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  18/01756/FUL 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 
 
Plan Ref  Plan Type Plan Status 
 

1 of 1  Location Plan Approved 
 
REASON FOR DECISION 

 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development is acceptable, having 
principally had regard to the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 but also 
having had regard to overriding material considerations in this case which are as set out in the 
Report of Handling. 
 
 
    

 SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 
 
 1 The premises shall be used only as a gymnasium and for no other purpose (including any 

other purpose in Class 11 of the Schedule to The Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997,or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order).  On the cessation of the  unit as a 
gymnasium, the use shall revert to Class 4 (business). 

 Reason:  To ensure that the use remains compatible within the site. 
 
 2 Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise 

Rating Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when 
measured within the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation).  
The noise emanating from any plant and machinery used on the premises should not 
contain any discernible tonal component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 
7445-2. 

 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 
 3 All plant and equipment shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the 

manufacturer's instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise 
limits.  

 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 
 4 No amplified speech or music shall be played on the premises unless a noise assessment 

has been undertaken by the applicant at their own expense and approved in writing by the 
planning authority. 

 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 
 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
  
N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the 
proposed development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the 
development should not be commenced until all consents are obtained. 
 

Page 231



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   

 

Under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Council recommends the following hours for noisy 
construction-related work: 
Monday-Friday   0700-1900 
Saturday            0800-1300 
Sunday and Public Holidays   -   no permitted work (except by prior agreement with the Council) 
 
Contractors will be expected to adhere to the measures contained in BS 5228:2009 “Code of 
Practice for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites”. 
 
For more information or to make a request to carry out works outside the above hours, please 
contact an Environmental Health Officer at the Council. 
 
Notice of Initiation of Development 
 
Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any 
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and 
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the 
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable.  A form is 
available on the Council’s website for this purpose. 
 
Notice of Completion of Development 
 

Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that 
any person who completes a development for which planning permission (including planning 
permission in principle) has been given must, as soon as practicable after doing so, give notice of 
completion to the planning authority. 
 
When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the 
permission is to be granted subject to a condition  that as soon as practicable after each phase, 
other than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that 
completion to the planning authority.   
 
In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose 
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake.  Contacts include: 
 
Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD 
Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA 
Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU 
British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke 
on Trent, ST1 5ND 
Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, 
TD6 0SA 
Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL 
BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo’ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH 
THUS, Susiephone Department, 4th Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD 
Susiephone System – 0800 800 333 
 
If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at 
the following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield, 
Nottinghamshire NG18 4RG. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 

Page 232



                                      

Regulatory Services 

   

 

permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice. The notice of review should be 
addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose 
TD6 OSA. 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     18/01756/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Kelman Taylor 

 
AGENT :    
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Change of use from storage to form gymnasium (retrospective) 
 
 
LOCATION:  Unit 5 

Elm Court 
Cavalry Park 
Peebles 
Scottish Borders 
EH45 9BU 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
1 of 1  Location Plan Approved 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 2  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No material representations were received. 
 
Consultation responses were received from:  Flood Risk Officer - no objection; Roads - no objection; 
Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions; Economic Development - no objection.  Key 
issues assessed, amenity/service for local businesses and their employees; impact on neighbouring 
businesses. 
 
 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
PMD3 - Land use allocations 
ED1 - Protection of business and industrial land 
 
The site is not strategic, therefore the policies contained within SESplan have not been assessed. 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 18th February 2019 
 
Site and proposal 

Page 235



The site is located in the south east corner of Cavalry Park, Peebles.  That industrial area is designated as a 
strategic high amenity site.  The unit is part of the terrace of single storey units at the eastern extremity of 
the industrial area.   
 
The proposal is to grant retrospective permission for a gym within unit 5, Elm Court.   
 
Principle 
Cavalry Park is defined in policy ED1 as a Strategic High Amenity site.  That designates the area as being 
for predominantly class 4 use.  Although a gym falls within class 11, in this instance, the gym is taken to be a 
complementary use which enhances the quality of the business park as an employment location.  As other 
activities fall within class 11, a condition is recommended restricting the use to only a gymnasium.  It is also 
recommended that the unit reverts to its original use on cessation of the use as a gym. 
 
Impact on the industrial area 
The gym is the only example of this type of use in Cavalry Park.  It is a small unit at the eastern end.  There 
will not be a detriment to the allocation from this development. 
 
Amenity 
Environmental Health has suggested conditions relating to noise.  The applicant has stated that there is no 
amplified music played within the unit and that users utilise headphones to listen to their own music.  It also 
appears that there is no machinery, such as an air handling plant, proposed in this appplication which would 
give rise to noise.  Whilst I accept that may be the case at present, if the business changes hands, a new 
gym operator may have a different approach.  As such, I agree that it is important to restrict noise generation 
in order to avoid undue disturbance to neighbouring businesses. 
 
Conclusion 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development is acceptable, having principally had 
regard to the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 but also having had regard to 
overriding material considerations in this case which are as set out in the Report of Handling. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development is acceptable, having principally had 
regard to the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 but also having had regard to 
overriding material considerations in this case which are as set out in the Report of Handling. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions 
 
 1 The premises shall be used only as a gymnasium and for no other purpose (including any other 

purpose in Class 11 of the Schedule to The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) 
Order 1997,or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-
enacting that Order).  On the cessation of the  unit as a gymnasium, the use shall revert to Class 4 
(business). 

 Reason:  To ensure that the use remains compatible within the site. 
 
 2 Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed Noise Rating Curve 

NR20 between the hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within the 
nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation).  The noise emanating from 
any plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component. 
Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2. 

 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 
 3 All plant and equipment shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's 

instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned noise limits.  
 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 

Page 236



 4 No amplified speech or music shall be played on the premises unless a noise assessment has been 
undertaken by the applicant at their own expense and approved in writing by the planning authority. 

 Reason:  To protect local businesses from noise associated with the use hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Forward Planning Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   7th April 2021 
 
Contact:  Ranald Dods       01835 825239  Ref:  21/00486/FUL 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 28th April 2021, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 28th April 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Stephen  Lamb  
  
Agent:  Border Architects Ltd 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form 
additional office space from attic floor 
Site:  3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 239

Agenda Item 5d

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Trish Connolly  
Forward Planning Section 

tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 825010 

Date of reply 25/05/2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00486/FUL Case Officer: 
Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Stephen  Lamb  

Agent Border Architects Ltd 

Proposed 
Development 

Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form additional 
office space from attic floor 

Site Location 3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The application proposes the part Change of Use of ground floor accommodation to 
Class 10 and conversion of the attic space to form office space on Business and 
Industrial Use (Strategic High Amenity) site zEL2 Cavalry Park as allocated within 
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Policy ED1: Protection of Business and Industrial Land  

 Policy PMD3: Land Use Allocations 

Assessment These proposals must primarily be assessed against Policy ED1 of the Scottish 
Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) 2016 which seeks to protect this Strategic 
High Amenity site zEL2 and Policy PMD3 – Land Use Allocations which aims to 
ensure that sites allocated within the LDP are developed for their intended use and 
that any alternative use is subject to appropriate justification. It is also noted that 
other relevant Development Plan policies will also apply in the consideration of this 
planning application. 
 
In terms of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), paragraph 93 states that the planning 
system should: “allocate sites that meet the diverse needs of the different sectors 
and sizes of business” and paragraph 28 makes reference to supporting “the right 
development in the right place; it is not to allow development at any cost” which 
consequently requires consideration of matters such as relevant policy and land 
use allocations as identified in the adopted LDP. 
 
In terms of the LDP, Policy ED1 identifies the Cavalry Park site (zEL2) as a 
Strategic High Amenity site, and it is one of only two Strategic High Amenity sites in 
the Scottish Borders. The aim of the policy is to maintain a supply of business and 
industrial land allocations in the Scottish Borders. The policy states: “Development 
on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for Class 4 use. Other 
complementary commercial activity e.g. offices, call centres and high technology 
uses may be acceptable if it enhances the quality of the business park as an 
employment location”.  
 
The proposed Class 10 Use as part of this planning application does not conform 
with the requirements of Policy ED1. To support this proposal would set an 

Page 240

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

undesirable precedent and would undermine the Council’s strong position on 
business development at this location. It would also result in the loss of valuable 
ground floor High Amenity Business Land within Peebles which is a scarce 
resource. 
 
The Council carries out an annual Employment Land Audit. The purpose of the 
Audit is to monitor business / industrial land take-up across the Scottish Borders.  
This helps the Council ensure it has a sufficient land supply within the LDP. The 
most recent Employment Land Audit carried out by the Council in the Spring of 
2019 identified that there is no immediately available employment land in Peebles, 
and 0.7ha available employment land between 1-5 years. It is not considered this is 
sufficient land to meet the anticipated demand. Consequently it is vital that existing 
employment land supply is retained and further land is allocated for this purpose. 
The protection of the application site for business uses and the identification of 
further employment land at Eshiels has been taken forward into the proposed new 
Local Development Plan. The development of a Class 10 Use at this location, 
would ultimately lead to the loss of ground floor allocated business and industrial 
land and the proposal would therefore be contrary to policy. 
 
SPP paragraph 69 states: “Planning authorities, developers, owners and occupiers 
should be flexible and realistic in applying the sequential approach, to ensure that 
different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations. It is important that 
community, education and healthcare facilities are located where they are easily 
accessible to the communities that they are intended to serve”. 
 
Furthermore, SPP paragraph 71 states: “Where development proposals in edge of 
town centre, commercial centre or out-of-town locations are contrary to the 
development plan, it is for applicants to demonstrate that more central options have 
been thoroughly assessed and that the impact on existing town centres is 
acceptable. ….”   
 
It could be understood there may be a degree of pressure to allow a more flexible 
range of uses within the Cavalry Park if there was no business activity taking place 
however, that is not the case. It is therefore critical that the site is safeguarded for 
future high amenity business development. 
 
In respect to LDP Policy PMD3 Land Use Allocations, that policy states: “Any other 
use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can demonstrate that: 
a) it is ancillary to the proposed use and in the case of proposed housing 
development, it still enables the site to be developed in accordance with the 
indicative capacity shown in the Land Use Proposals table and/or associated 
planning briefs, or 
b) there is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming 
available for the development of the proposed use within the Local Plan period, or 
c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to 
outweigh the need to maintain the original proposed use, and 
d) the proposal is otherwise acceptable under the criteria for infill development”. 
 
The supporting information provided by the applicant provides reason as to why 
their business is expanding, but it does not confirm why this specific site over any 
other potential site should be supported for the proposed use. The Forward 
Planning Section would have expected the applicant to have carried out a search 
for other potential sites / buildings for the proposed use. 
 
In respect to the application submitted, it is considered that it raises a number of 

Page 241

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

issues/questions in relation to the proposed changes that are not dealt with in the 
application submission and its supporting statement.  

 The application makes reference to proposed additional office space; 
however it is not additional office space that is proposed but rather replaced 
office space.  

 Is this replacement office space to be used by the applicant or will it be 
available for other businesses to benefit from?  
If the proposal is for the latter, it is suggested that any business occupying 
the converted attic space would want a more prominent entrance that 
confirms their presence at that location, including a suitable pedestrian 
access from the adjacent carpark.  

 The application drawings include a kitchen and dining area, the exact 
intention of how this space is to be used has not been confirmed. Is this 
space proposed as a café? and if so, it is assumed this will be for use by the 
clients of the day centre only as opposed to being open to the public. 

 
If it was the case that planning controls could be put in place which could ensure 
the office element on the upper floor would be implemented, then the proposal 
could be considered more favourably, i.e. there would remain a net office floor 
space within the building whilst also ensuring the care unit could operate. However, 
if this is not able to be controlled then it is not considered the proposal can be 
supported. 
 
In summary, the use of a day care centre proposed as part of this planning 
application does not conform with the requirements of Policy ED1. Whilst 
replacement office space is proposed, to support the proposal would result in the 
loss of ground floor high amenity business land within Peebles which is a scarce 
resource.  

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 242

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Paul Grigor 
Roads Planning Officer 

pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826663 

Date of reply 15th April 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

21/00486/FUL Case Officer: Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Stephen  Lamb  

Agent Border Architects Ltd 

Proposed 
Development 

Part Change of Use of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations to form additional 
office space from attic floor 

Site Location 3 Rowan Court Suite 3 Cavalry Park Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9BU  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment I have no objections to the proposed development, the site is well stocked in terms 
of parking. 
 
It should be noted as a result of restrictions on travel due to the Coronavirus 
pandemic at the time of writing, no site visit has been undertaken and the 
comments made above are based purely on the information submitted with 
this application and local knowledge. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

Signed: KJP 
 
 

Page 243

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



List of Policies 
 

1 

 

Local Review Reference: 21/00015/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 21/00486/FUL 
Development Proposal:  Part Change of ground floor to Class 10 and alterations 
to form additional office space from attic floor 
Location: 3 Rowan Court Suite, 3 Cavalry Park, Peebles 
Applicant: Mr Stephen Lamb 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
 
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY 
 
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments: 
 
a) the long term sustainable use and management of land 
b) the preservation of air and water quality 
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species 
d) the protection of built and cultural resources 
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources 
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its 
sustainable management 
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the 
private car 
h) the minimisation of light pollution 
i) the protection of public health and safety 
j) the support to community services and facilities 
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy 
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 
of their environment 
 
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that: 
 
Sustainability  
a)  In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in 
accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of 
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, 
b)  it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure, 
c)  it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance, 
d)  it encourages minimal water usage for new developments, 
e)  it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities, 
f)  it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider 
environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be 

Page 245

Agenda Item 5e



List of Policies 
 

2 

 

required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development 
and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
maintenance, 
g)  it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces. 
 
Placemaking & Design 
h)  It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not 
exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design, 
i)  it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building, 
j)  it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building, 
k)  it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form, 
l)  it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site, 
m)  it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
development that will help integration with its surroundings, 
n)  it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’. 
 
Accessibility  
o)  Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths, 
p)  it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties, 
q)  it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 
site access, 
r)  it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible 
to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable 
travel patterns, 
s)  it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes. 
 
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity 
t)  It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an 
up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution 
to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by 
appropriate arrangements for maintenance, 
u)  it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements. 
 
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate. 
 
POLICY PMD3: LAND USE ALLOCATIONS 
 
Development will be approved in principle for the land uses allocated on the Land Use 
Proposals tables and accompanying Proposals Maps. 
 

Page 246



List of Policies 
 

3 

 

Development will be in accordance with any Council approved planning or development brief 
provided it meets the requirements for the site and its acceptability has been confirmed in 
writing by the Council. 
 
Sites proposed for redevelopment or mixed use may be developed for a variety of uses 
subject to other local plan policies. Where there is evidence of demand for specific uses or a 
specific mix of uses, these may be identified in a Planning Brief and the site requirements 
detailed within the Local Plan. 
 
Within new housing allocations other subsidiary uses may be appropriate provided these can 
be accommodated in accordance with policy and without adversely affecting the character of 
the housing area. Planning Briefs and site requirements detailed within the Local Plan may 
set out the range of uses that are appropriate or that will require to be accommodated in 
specific allocations. 
 
Any other use on allocated sites will be refused unless the developer can demonstrate that: 
 
a) it is ancillary to the proposed use and in the case of proposed housing development, 
it still enables the site to be developed in accordance with the indicative capacity shown in 
the Land Use Proposals table and/or associated planning briefs, or 
b) there is a constraint on the site and no reasonable prospect of its becoming available 
for the development of the proposed use within the Local Plan period, or 
c) the alternative use offers significant community benefits that are considered to 
outweigh the need to maintain the original proposed use, and 
d) the proposal is otherwise acceptable under the criteria for infill development. 
 
POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT 
 
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied: 
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking. 
All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate. 
 
POLICY ED1: PROTECTION OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL LAND 
 
The Council aims to maintain a supply of business and industrial land allocations in the 
Scottish Borders (see Table 1). There is a presumption in favour of the retention of industrial 
and business use on strategic and district sites, including new land use proposals for 
business and industrial land. 
 
1. STRATEGIC SITES 
The Council rigorously protects strategic business and industrial sites for employment uses. 

Page 247



List of Policies 
 

4 

 

 
a) Strategic High Amenity Sites 
Development on Strategic High Amenity Sites will be predominantly for Class 4 use. Other 
complementary commercial activity e.g. offices, call centres and high technology uses may 
be acceptable if it enhances the quality of the business park as an employment location. 
 
b) Strategic Business and Industrial Sites 
Development for uses other than Classes 4, 5 and 6 on strategic business and industrial 
sites in the locations identified in Table 1 will generally be refused. Uses other than Class 4, 
5 or 6 can be considered if clearly demonstrated as contributing to the efficient functioning of 
the allocated site. 
 
2. DISTRICT SITES 
Although District sites do not merit the same level of stringent protection as Strategic sites 
there remains a preference to retain these within employment uses. 
 
However, development other than Classes 4, 5 and 6 may be accepted on district business 
and industrial sites identified in Table 1 in order to, where appropriate, allow a more mixed 
use area. 
 
Proposals for development outwith Class 4, 5 and 6 will be considered against the following 
criteria: 
 
a) the loss of business and industrial land does not prejudice the existing and predicted 
long term requirements for industrial and business land in the locality, and 
b) the alternative land use is considered to offer significant benefits to the surrounding 
area and community that outweigh the need to retain the site in business and industrial use, 
and 
c) there is a constraint on the site whereby there is no reasonable prospect of its 
becoming marketable for business and industrial development in the future, or 
d) the predominant land uses have changed owing to previous exceptions to policy 
such that a more mixed use land use pattern is now considered acceptable by the Council. 
 
3. LOCAL SITES 
Although Local sites are allocated for business and industrial use, these are considered to 
have a lower priority and need for retention in the hierarchy of all business and industrial 
sites. Consequently alternative uses are likely to be supported. 
 
Development other than Classes 4, 5 and 6 are likely to be supported on local business and 
industrial sites identified in Table 1. Retail may be acceptable on local sites where they are 
located within or adjacent to town centres. 
 
In all business and industrial land site categories development must: 
 
a) respect the character and amenity of the surrounding area, and be landscaped 
accordingly, and 
b) be compatible with neighbouring business and industrial uses 
 
Shops and outright retail activities will not be allowed on Strategic or District sites. The only 
retailing permissible on these sites will be that which is considered to be ancillary to some 
other acceptable activity (e.g. manufacture; wholesale). For the purposes of this policy, 
ancillary is taken as being linked directly to the existing use of the unit and comprising no 
more than 10% of the total floor area. 
 
 

Page 248



List of Policies 
 

5 

 

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS 
 
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance 
with approved standards.  
 
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the 
nature of the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated 
that do not compromise road safety. 
 
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will 

consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies 
to  promote the use of sustainable travel modes. 
 
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE 
 
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS 
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority: 
 
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that: 
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that: 
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that: 
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater. 
 
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied. 
 
Development will be refused if: 
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements, 
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure. 
  
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features. 
 
 

Page 249



List of Policies 
 

6 

 

Other Material Considerations 
 

 SPP 2014 

 Circular 4/1998 “Use of Conditions in Planning Permission” 
 

 

Page 250



Page 1 of 5

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments 01835 825586  Email: corporatebusinesssystems@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100453950-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Ferguson Planning 

Lucy

Moroney

Island Street

54

01896 668 744

TD1 1NU

Scotland 

Scottish Borders 

Galasheils

lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 251

Agenda Item 6a



Page 2 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Mr

Bruce 

Scottish Borders Council

Weir c/o agent 

c/o Agent 

Earlston Road, Stow, Glashiels, TD1 2QR

c/o agent 

644327

c/o agent 

346193

c/o agent 

bruce@cwproperties.co.uk 

Page 252



Page 3 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the 
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

  Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application.

  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

  Refusal Notice.

 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

  No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement 
must set out all matters you consider require  to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a 
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: *  (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce 
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at 
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that 
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer  at the time the  Yes   No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before 
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Notice of Review against the refusal of the Planning Application in Principle for Residential Dwellings with Associated Amenity, 
Parking, Infrastructure and Access. 

Please refer to Appeal Statement 

Page 253



Page 4 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend 
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review 
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be 
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or 
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other 
parties only,  without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *
 Yes   No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *  Yes   No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *  Yes    No

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure  you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure 
to submit all this  information may result in your appeal  being deemed invalid. 

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?.  *  Yes   No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this  Yes   No
review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name   Yes   No   N/A
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the 
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what  Yes   No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider 
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review 
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely 
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on  Yes   No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a 
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the 
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.
 

Appeal Statement and Core Documents 

20/01620/PPP

29/06/2021

06/01/2021

Page 254



Page 5 of 5

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Miss Lucy Moroney

Declaration Date: 11/08/2021
 

Page 255



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPEAL STATEMENT IN RELATION TO SCOTTISH 

BORDERS COUNCIL’S REFUSAL OF: PLANNING 

APPLICATION IN PRINCIPLE FOR RESIDENTIAL 

DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED AMENITY, PARKING, 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND ACCESS.  

EARLSTON ROAD, STOW, GALASHIELS, TD1 2QR  

 

APPLICANT: MR BRUCE WEIR   

 

AUGUST 2021 

Page 257



 

 

Ferguson Planning T. 01896 668 744 I M. 07960003358 I W. fergusonplanning.co.uk 

CONTENTS 

         

1. Introduction 1 

2. Site Context and Key Planning History 5 

3. The Appeal Proposal 10 

4. Planning Policy Context 17 

5. Grounds of Appeal 22 

6. Conclusions 40 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: Core Documents  

 

 

 

 

Author Date 

Lucy Moroney  09/08/2021 

Approved Date 

Tim Ferguson  09/08/2021 

 

 

 

 

Page 258



 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 This statement is submitted on behalf of Mr Bruce Weir (‘the appellant’) and sets out 

the grounds of appeal against the decision of Scottish Borders Council (SBC) to 

refuse planning application 20/01620/PPP by delegated decision on 29th June 2021.  

1.2 The Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP) sought consent for the ‘erection of 4 

no. dwelling houses with associated infrastructure and access’ on land south 

of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston Road, Stow. 

1.3 The appellant’s family have been in the village since 1904 having first opened a 

butcher shop, and then taken on the tenancy of Torsonce Mains in 1944 before 

buying the farm in 1958. The applicant has strong ties to the village and firmly 

believes that housing in this location would provide much needed family housing in 

an acceptable setting with minimal impact to the surrounding area. 

1.4 SBC’s single reason for the refusal of the PPiP application as set out in the decision 

notice was: 

“The development would be contrary to Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that it would be located outside the settlement boundary of the village and 

does not meet the exceptions contained within Policy PMD4, particularly in that 

strong reasons have not been given to demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified 

by the Council through the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an 

effective five-year housing land supply. Furthermore, it would not represent a logical 

extension of the built-up area and would not be sympathetic to the character of the 

settlement or achieve visual cohesion with it. The resulting development would have 

an unacceptably adverse effect on the character of the settlement at this location, 

thus also conflicting with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. This 

conflict with the Local Development Plan is not overridden by other material 

considerations”.  

1.5 For the purposes of this appeal statement and to aid clarity in our response to the 

key points raised by SBC, the above reason for refusal has been broken down into 

four parts and each will be addressed in turn in this statement:  

1. The proposal would not comply with Policy PMD4 of the Local Development 

Plan 2016 in that it would be located outside the settlement boundary of the 

village and does not meet expectations contained within Policy PMD4. 

Strong reasons have not been given to demonstrate that there is a shortfall 

identified by the Council through the housing land audit regarding the 

provision of an effective five-year housing land supply.  

Page 259



 

 

2. The proposal would not represent a logical extension of the built-up area and 

would not be sympathetic to the character of the settlement or achieve visual 

cohesion with it.  

3. The resulting development would have an unacceptably adverse effect on 

the character of the settlement at this location, thus also conflicting with 

policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016.  

4. This conflict with the Local Development Plan is not overridden by other 

material considerations.  

1.6 Other than the reason for refusal above, which reflects comments made by Forward 

Planning and the Development Management team, the other technical consultees 

have raised no objection to the proposed development, as summarised in the table 

below:  

Table 1: Summary of Technical Consultee Comments 

Consultee Comment 

Housing Strategy No Objection  

Scottish Water No Objection. Noted that there is sufficient capacity 
at Manse Street Galashiels Water Treatment 
Works. 

Ecology Officer No objection. The site is not on or near 
designations and will have no effect on the River 
Tweed SAC. 

Archaeology Officer No objection. No potential for archaeology in this 
area.  

Flood Officer No objection. Site is not at flood risk. 

Contaminated Land Officer. No objection. No historic uses that present 
development constraints.  

Roads Planning No Objection. Noted support for a development of 
up to four dwellings subject to the provision of 
suitable pedestrian facilities (which have been 
provided), and the principle of housing on the site.  

Development Management  Refer to reason for refusal above. 

Forward Planning  Refer to reason for refusal above.   

1.7 We considered and responded to all other relevant comments from the Community 

Council and residents within a letter dated 12th March 2021. We are of the firm view 

that all the issues raised can be satisfactorily addressed and that none are a barrier 

to development as reflected in the lack of objections from all the technical statutory 

consultees (Core Document 10 and 11).  

1.8 The remaining sections in this appeal statement comprise: 

• A description of the appeal site and surrounding context (Section 2). 

• A summary of the appeal proposals (Section 3). 

Page 260



 

 

• A summary of relevant development plan policy and other material 

considerations (Section 4). 

• Response to the Council’s reasons for refusal and our grounds for appeal 

(Section 5).  

• Summary of the appellant’s case and conclusion in respect of the appeal 

proposal (Section 6). 

1.9 This appeal is made to the Local Review Body on the basis it was a local application, 

which was determined by delegated powers. For the reasons outlined in this 

statement, we conclude that the development is in accordance with relevant 

development plan policies and supported by significant material considerations. 

1.10 This statement demonstrates that SBC does have a shortfall in their effective five-

year housing land supply, the proposed development would represent a logical 

location for the extension of the existing settlement boundary and will provide much 

needed housing within a sustainable location that would have no adverse impact on 

the character of the surrounding area.  

1.11 On that basis, we respectfully request that this appeal is allowed to enable planning 

permission in principle to be granted for the proposed development at Earlston Road, 

Stow, Galashiels, TD1 2QR.  

Supporting Documents 

1.12 This appeal statement should be read in conjunction with all of the supporting 

documents and drawings submitted as part of the original planning application listed 

below.  

Table 2: Original Planning Submission Documents  
 

Document Consultant  

Planning Statement  Ferguson Planning Ltd 

Design and Access Statement  Hunter Architecture  

Transport Statement  Transport Planning  

Landscape Visual Impact Appraisal Brindley Associates  

Flood Risk Assessment  Kaya Consulting 

TOPO Survey G L Surveys 

Habitat Survey Ellendale Environmental 

Consultee Response Letter (12th March 

2021) 

Ferguson Planning Ltd  

Consultee Response Letter (23rd June 

2021) 

Ferguson Planning Ltd  

Page 261



 

 

Table 3: Architectural Drawings  

Document Consultant  

Site Location Plan Hunter Architecture  

Block Plan  Hunter Architecture  

House Type A Hunter Architecture 

House Type B  Hunter Architecture 

Preliminary Culvert Sections  3E Consulting Engineers  

Sketch Visualisations Brindley Associates 

1.13 The planning officer’s report and decision notices relating to the refused applications 

are also included.  

Application process 

1.14 The planning application was submitted on the 23rd December 2020 and registered 

on the 6th January 2021 with our initial response to the consultee comments 

submitted on the 12th March 2021. In response to our letter, the SBC Forward 

Planning made further representations on the 21st June 2021 which we then 

responded to on the 23rd June 2021. The case officer, Carlos Clarke, determined the 

application on the 28th June 2021. These documents are included in our appeal 

submission.  

 

 

 

 

Page 262



 

 

2. Site Context and Key Planning History  

2.1 The site is 1.1ha and joins the edge of the existing settlement of Stow. It is currently 

permanent pasture land and is well contained by the existing woodland on the field 

boundary and shelterbelt planting.  

2.2 To the north are residential dwellings and associated gardens. To the south and west 

are agricultural fields laid to grass. Beyond the southwest corner of the site is an 

agricultural building and associated yard.  

2.3 Please refer to the location plan in Figure 1, and aerial view in Figure 2 below, with 

the site outlined in red, and the appellant’s wider land ownership outlined in blue 

(Figure 1). 

Figure 1: Site Location Plan (Hunter Architecture) 

 

2.4 In terms of accessibility, the site is well served by the existing public transport 

network with the local bus stop and train station within walking distance which 

provide frequent services between Galashiels and Edinburgh City Centre. The 

Page 263



 

 

proposed locations for the new pedestrian and vehicle access to the site, is illustrated 

in Figure 1. 

Figure 2: Aerial View of the Site (Google Maps)  

 

2.5 The current boundary treatment is timber post-and-wire fencing with stretches of dry-

stone wall and woodland. In terms of topography, the site occupies the southern 

banks of the valley where Stow lies, and as such rises relatively steadily from north 

to south.  

2.6 Visibility of the site from the surrounding area is illustrated within the accompanying 

Landscape Visual Impact Assessment prepared by Brindley Associates. This study 

concluded the site has the potential to offer an appropriate scale residential 

development opportunity within Stow, without leading to potentially adverse 

landscape and visual effects.  

2.7 In terms of heritage, there are no listed buildings on the site. The site is also not 

within the Stow Conservation Area, which is to the northeast of the site. 

Page 264



 

 

2.8 The proposed dwellings are shown indicatively on four individual plots within the 

landholding, illustrated within Section 3 of this report. The intention being that they 

would be set within the contours of the rising field and contained by existing and 

proposed planting/woodland. 

Planning History  

2.9 Referring to the SBC planning application search system online, there have been no 

historic planning applications to date on the site.  

2.10 The table below sets out other local applications of interest within Stow.   

Table 4: Summary of Local Planning History 

LPA Ref Address Proposal Decision  

20/01053/FUL Land East of 

Stagehall 

Farmhouse Stow 

Scottish Borders 

Erection of 13 No 

dwellinghouses with 

associated road and 

landscaping 

Validated 11 Sep 

2020. Awaiting 

Determination  

17/01526/FUL Garden Ground Of 

1 Hay Park Woods 

Hay Park Loan 

Stow 

Scottish Borders 

Erection of 

dwellinghouse with 

integral garage 

Approved 7 Sep 

2018 

16/01461/PPP Land North Of 28 

Lauder Road 

Stow 

Scottish Borders 

Residential 

development 

comprising of 6 No 

dwellinghouses 

(renewal of previous 

application 

09/01533/PPP) 

Approved 18 Feb 

2019 

2.11 With regards to planning application 16/01461/PPP above and shown on the plan in 

Figure 3 below, although included within the settlement boundary the site represents 

an extension to the existing built form towards the open countryside for six new 

homes. This site was also previously grazing land. At the time, it was considered that 

although an area of open space would be lost, it was relatively small and the fields 

and woodland along the northern boundary of the site, provided a natural boundary 

to both the site and the village. It is also noted in the officer’s report, that the 

settlement boundary here was amended, “to enable some degree of choice” for a 

small number of residential units. 

Page 265



 

 

2.12 In our view, application 16/01461/PPP sets a precedent for the form of development 

proposed by this appeal.  

2.13 In the first instance, the appeal site is also adjacent to the built form on the edge of 

the existing settlement of Stow. The site characteristics are alike, including the fact 

that both sites are well contained by existing planting, so much that they form a 

natural extension to the village whilst protecting further encroachment into the 

countryside. In the case above, it was deemed that the six dwellings could be 

accommodated in the ‘edge of village’ setting, without any harm to the character and 

amenity of the area as we believe is the case for the four dwellings proposed on the 

appeal site.  

2.14 Regarding the provision of a ‘degree of choice’, in the case of the appeal site, 

enabling the provision of further family homes in Stow will provide for the housing 

ladder to work effectively, allowing families to stay and move within the village, given 

the lack of homes with gardens currently available.  

2.15 The only difference between this application and the appeal site, is that the appeal 

site currently sits outside the settlement boundary. However, this application shows 

that the principles of development on a site in a similar location to the north of the 

village, with very similar characteristics have previously been accepted by SBC. The 

appeal site, therefore, represents a logical and acceptable extension to the village 

and settlement boundary, in our view, where all other policies of the Local 

Development Plan can be satisfied. We go on to demonstrate that this can be 

achieved in Section 5.  

2.16 In addition, the allocated site at Burnside Way (part of ASTOW022) identified in 

Table 6 within Section 5 of this report also has similar characteristics to those 

described above and again provides precedent for the acceptability of development 

in similar edge of settlement locations. 

Page 266



 

 

Figure 3: Site Location Plan for LPA Ref: 16/01461/PPP and Site Allocation 

ASTOWO22. 

 

Page 267



 

 

3. The Appeal Proposal 

3.1 This section sets out details of the appeal proposal. The description of which is as 

follows: 

‘Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of 4 no. dwellinghouses with 

associated infrastructure and access’ on Land South of Crunzion Cottage at, 

Earlston Road, Stow, Galashiels, TD1 2QR. 

3.2 The proposed development involves the provision of up to four detached residential 

dwellings with associated infrastructure to the west of Earlston Road, Stow. The site 

is identified on the location plan in Core Document 2 and the indicative proposed 

layout plan in Figures 4 and 5 below. Two options have been proposed to illustrate 

alternative layouts that can be achieved on site which would be agreed at detailed 

stage subject to approval being granted for planning permission in principle. 

Figure 4: Proposed Scheme Layout 1 

 

3.3 In comparison to the original submission, Figure 4 above illustrates reduced plot 

sizes for each of the dwellings. These were introduced post submission based on 

Page 268



 

 

feedback from the case officer and enables the provision of a large area of open 

space within the north-eastern part of the site. The positioning of the units towards 

the central and southern portions of the site also enhances the buffer between the 

neighbouring residential units along Earlston Road creating a significant separation 

distance of c.68 metres, maintaining privacy for both new and existing residents 

alike.   

Figure 5: Proposed Scheme Layout 2 

 

3.4 The second layout prepared by Hunter Architects Ltd is shown in Figure 5 above and 

instead seeks to enhance the landscaping and open space offering to the southeast. 

The proposed boundary landscaping would be increased along the southern section 

of the site, softening the transition between the site and the existing agricultural field, 

and further enhancing the perceived containment of the site from the wider 

countryside. 

3.5 Again, there would still be a significant separating distance of c.42 metres between 

the proposed dwellings and the existing properties, but with this layout the purpose 

is to bring the plots up and closer to the existing built form. This layout seeks to 

respond to comments made by the case officer post submission of the planning 

Page 269



 

 

application and would mean that the layout aligned and provided synergy with the 

dwellings located to the north and west of the site, as shown in Figure 6 below.  

Figure 6: Site Plan and Neighbouring Dwellings  

 

3.6 Regardless of whether Layout 1 or Layout 2 is preferred, it is proposed that the land 

adjoining the southern border of the site, will provide robust landscaping in the form 

of trees and shrubs minimising any potential visual impact the proposals will have 

from the south. With either layout, there is significant distance between the proposed 

dwellings and existing built form to the north, ensuring there will be no overlooking 

or overshadowing of properties, protecting the residential amenity of both existing 

and new occupants. Additional landscaping is also proposed along the access road 

running through the site, enhancing views within the development.   

3.7 Figure 7 below provides an illustrative view of how the proposals will sit within the 

wider context of the landscape, as viewed from the north. It clearly demonstrates 

that the proposed dwellings and new landscaping will sit comfortably within the 

existing rural views and be viewed within the context of the existing settlement.  

Page 270



 

 

Figure 7: Illustrative Sketch - View of Site from the North 

3.8 As noted above, the precise layout and design of the proposed dwellings will be 

determined at the detailed application stage. However indicative house types of the 

dwellings are shown in Figures 8 to 10 below.  

Figure 8: Illustrative Sketch of Proposed House Type   

 

 

Appeal Site 

Can you 

change the 

arrow to point 

to the site 

Page 271



 

 

 

Figure 9: Indicative House Type A 

 

Page 272



 

 

Figure 10: Indicative House Type B 

 

3.9 Both House Types A and B are predominantly aimed at families, one- and three-

quarter storeys in height with contrasting wood, rough cast render cladding and 

glazing. The chosen materials and form will provide an attractive variance across the 

site and complement the village and landscape setting. A similar style and materiality 

on new homes is noted elsewhere within Stow and across the Borders.  New 

boundary planting will further ensure the new homes are sensitively integrated into 

the landscape.  

3.10 A car port is proposed to contain the resident’s cars together with adequate parking 

space within the driveway for any additional visitors. As a result, there will be no 

need for parking on the common access or on the main road.  

3.11 Vehicular access to the site will be taken from Earlston Road and pedestrian access 

will be provided by a new footpath link into the village. These parking and access 

Page 273



 

 

arrangements for the proposal have been agreed and accepted by the SBC transport 

department during the planning application process.  

Page 274



 

 

4. Planning Policy Context   

4.1 This section outlines the principal planning policy and material considerations which 

provide the context for the consideration of this appeal.  

4.2 Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 requires that 

planning decisions be made in accordance with the development plan unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise.  

4.3 The Development Plan in this case, comprises the Southeast Scotland Strategic 

Development Plan, SESplan, (2013) and the Scottish Borders Local Development 

Plan (2016). 

4.4 The emerging Local Development Plan 2 for the Scottish Borders is at an advanced 

stage and was presented to the full council on 25th September 2020. The formal 

consultation period on the Proposed Plan ended on 25th January 2021.  

4.5 Other documents relevant to the planning policy context and consideration of this 

appeal, forming ‘material considerations’ comprise: 

• Scottish Planning Policy (2014)  

Development Plan 

SESplan Strategic Development Plan (2013) 

4.6 The SESplan seeks to prepare and maintain an up-to-date Strategic Development 

Plan for the South East Scotland Area. The vision for the Scottish Borders in the 

Strategic Development Plan (SDP) is that development will be focussed on the 

Borders Rail and A701 corridor with up to 5,900 new homes and new economic 

development proposed in this area.  

4.7 This development clearly supports this vision, being located within Stow, a 

settlement with a new station on the Borders Rail line and will facilitate growth in a 

sustainable location as a result.  

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

4.8 The Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted on 12th May 2016 

and sets out the policies on development and land use within the Scottish Borders.  

4.9 With reference to the adopted LDP Proposals Map (2016), the site is classed as 

‘white land’ with no formal allocation or designation. The site directly abuts the 

settlement boundary of Stow to the north. An extract of the proposals map can be 

found below at Figure 11, with the site marked in red. 

Page 275



 

 

Figure 11: Extract of Scottish Borders Proposals Map  

 

4.10 The key policies under which the development will be assessed were fully appraised 

within the Planning Statement submitted with the application and this document 

should be read in conjunction with this appeal statement (Core Document 12). 

4.11 This appeal statement therefore only focuses upon the key policies upon which the 

Council based their refusal of the planning permission. In this case, LDP Policy 

PMD2 and PMD4, as set out below. 

4.12 The Council’s reasons for refusal focused upon the ‘Placemaking and Design’ 

section (criteria h-n) of Policy PMD2, in refusing the application for its perceived 

impact on the character of the area. We have therefore focussed our assessment on 

these criteria only. 

4.13 Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) – The placemaking and design standards of 

criteria h-n require the following of all new development: 

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear 

understanding of the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders 

architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate contemporary 

and/or innovative design. 

i) It is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings 

and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building. 

Page 276



 

 

j) It is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 

complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where 

an extension or alteration, the existing building. 

k) It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 

neighbouring uses and neighbouring built form.  

l) It can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site. 

m) It provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to 

the development that will help integration with its surroundings. 

n) It incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security 

measures, in accordance with current guidelines on designing out crime. 

4.14 Policy PMD4 (Development Adjoining Development Boundaries) states that 

development should be contained within the development boundary and proposals 

for new development out with this boundary, and not on allocated sites identified on 

the proposals map, will normally be refused. Exceptional approvals may be granted 

provided strong reasons can be given that: 

a) It is a job generating development in the countryside that has an economic 

justification under Policy ED7 or HD2, OR 

b) It is an affordable housing development that can be justified under in terms 

of Policy HD1, OR 

c) There is a shortfall identified by Scottish Borders Council through the 

housing land audit regarding the provision of an effective 5-year housing land 

supply, OR 

d) It is a development that it is considered would offer significant community 

benefits that outweigh the need to protect the development boundary. 

AND the development of the site: 

a) Represents a logical extension of the built-up area.  

b) Is of an appropriate scale in relation to the size of the settlement.  

c) Does not prejudice the character, visual cohesion or natural built-up edge of 

the settlement; and 

d) Does not cause a significant adverse effect on the landscape setting of the 

settlement or the natural heritage of the surrounding area. 

The decision on whether to grant exceptional approvals will take account of: 

Page 277



 

 

a) Any indicators regarding restrictions on, or encouragement of, development 

in the longer term that may be set out in the settlement profile.  

b) The cumulative effect of any other developments out with the development 

boundary within the current Local Plan period.  

c) The infrastructure and service capacity of the settlement.   

Material Considerations 

Scottish Planning Policy (2014) 

4.15 Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) was adopted in 2014 and is a statement of the 

Scottish Government’s policy on how nationally important land use planning matters 

should be addressed across the country. A revised SPP was published in December 

2020 which superseded the 2014 SPP. In July 2021, the Court of Session, however, 

decided the consultation on revising the SPP was unlawful and has quashed the 

changes made to the SPP and the associated Planning Advice Note 1/2020. We 

therefore rely upon the 2014 publication for the purposes of this appeal statement.  

4.16 The content of SPP is a material consideration that carries significant weight, though 

it is for the decision-maker to determine the appropriate weight in each case. Where 

development plans and proposal accord with this SPP, their progress through the 

planning system should be smoother.  

4.17 With regards to specific housing policy, Paragraph 110 of SPP establishes that “a 

generous supply of land for each housing market area within the plan area” should 

be identified in order to “support the achievement of the housing land requirement 

across all tenures, maintaining at least a 5-year supply of effective housing land at 

all times”. 

4.18 Paragraph 123 of SPP states that, “Planning Authorities should actively manage the 

housing land supply”. Further it is established that “a site is only considered effective 

where it can be demonstrated that within five years it will be free of constraints and 

can be developed for housing”. 

4.19 Paragraph 125 of SPP requires that: “Planning Authorities, developers, service 

providers and other partners in housing provision should work together to ensure a 

continuing supply of effective land and to deliver housing, taking a flexible and 

realistic approach. Where there is a shortfall in the 5-year land supply, development 

plan policies for the supply of housing will not be considered up-to-date and 

paragraphs 32-35 will be relevant”. 

Page 278



 

 

4.20 Paragraph 33 of SPP states that, “where relevant policies in a development plan are 

out of date…then the presumption in favour of development that contributes to 

sustainable development will be a significant material consideration”. 

Page 279



 

 

5. Grounds of Appeal  

5.1 SBC refused the application for one reason, as outlined in Section 1, and re-stated 

below. 

5.2 To aid clarity in our response to the issues raised in the reason for refusal, we have 

split it into four parts [as noted in bold], along with our responses to them.  

5.3 “The development would be contrary to Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that it would be located outside the settlement boundary of the village and 

does not meet the exceptions contained within Policy PMD4, particularly in that 

strong reasons have not been given to demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified 

by the Council through the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an 

effective five-year housing land supply [Part 1]. Furthermore, it would not represent 

a logical extension of the built-up area and would not be sympathetic to the character 

of the settlement or achieve visual cohesion with it [Part 2]. The resulting 

development would have an unacceptably adverse effect on the character of the 

settlement at this location, thus also conflicting with Policy PMD2 of the Local 

Development Plan 2016 [Part 3]. This conflict with the Local Development Plan is 

not overridden by other material considerations [Part 4]”. 

Reason for Refusal - Part 1   

5.4 The proposal would not comply with Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that it would be located outside the settlement boundary of the village and 

does not meet expectations contained within Policy PMD4, particularly in that strong 

reasons have not been given to demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified by the 

Council through the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an effective 

five-year housing land supply.  

Appellant’s Response  

5.5 The site is on the edge, but outwith the defined settlement boundary of Stow. Policy 

PMD4 allows for development out with the development boundaries in exceptional 

cases where strong reasons can be given.  

5.6 We set out below the circumstances for why this development should proceed in line 

with the policy. We first demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified by Scottish 

Borders Council through the housing land audit regarding the provision of an 

effective five-year land supply – Part 1 c) of this policy.  

5.7 We then provide justification for the proposed development of the site in line with 

criteria a) to c) in Part 2 of this policy and criteria a) to c) of Part 3 of this policy, as 

is necessary to justify development outwith the settlement boundary. 

Page 280



 

 

5.8 Policy PMD4 – Part 1 

Criteria c) There is a shortfall identified by Scottish Borders Council through 

the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an effective five-year 

housing land supply.  

5.9 There is a significant shortfall in the five-year housing land supply, which this appeal 

proposal can contribute to. This is confirmed both through our own assessment and 

perhaps more importantly by a Scottish Government Reporter through a recent 

appeal decision (ref PPA-140-2088), as we go on to explain below.  

5.10 The scale of housing required for the Scottish Borders area is set out within SESPlan 

and the most recent Housing Land Audit 2019 (published April 2020).  

5.11 The Housing Land Audit 2019 identifies four small sites in Stow and the immediately 

surrounding area for housing development within the effective housing land supply, 

as set out in Table 6 below. 

5.12 Three of these sites (ESO31, ESO37 and ESO38) are not considered to be 

deliverable in the next five years, despite contributing to the housing land supply, on 

account of the associated commentary and constraints in the table. This would 

suggest current housing needs are not being met within Stow and the need for further 

provision beyond that allocated.  

5.13 Over reliance upon only four sites within both the adopted and proposed LDP is also 

considered unusual, given Stow’s highly accessible location, benefiting from both a 

trunk road and a train station.  

Table 6: Stow’s Allocated Site Deliverability Profile  

Site Ref & 

Name 

No 

of 

Units 

Deliver-

able 

Delivered 

to date 

Units 

included 

in 

Effective 

Supply 

Comment Constraints 

Page 281



 

 

ESO22 

Burnside 

Way (part of 

ASTOW022), 

Stow 

18 Yes 8 10 Development 

already 

initiated on-

site, and 

completions 

recorded for 

8 units. The 

10 units are 

yet to be 

brought 

forward.  

 

ESO31 

MSTOW001 

Royal Hotel, 

Stow 

11 No 0 5 No extant 

planning 

permission 

on-site. The 

site did not 

come 

forward 

between 

2008-2013 

questioning 

its 

deliverability 

in future. 

Planning 

Permission 

07/00150/FUL 

was approved 

in 07/2008 

and appears 

to have now 

lapsed.  

Page 282



 

 

ESO37 

Land north of 

28 Lauder 

Road, Stow 

6 No  0 4 Two 

conditions 

which 

prohibit 

development 

initiation prior 

to discharge 

were 

attached to 

planning 

permission 

and remain 

to be 

satisfied, 

questioning 

the 

deliverability 

at the current 

time.   

Planning 

Permission 

16/01461/PPP 

approved on 

18/02/2019.  

ESO38 

ASTOW027 

Stagehall II, 

Stow 

12 Yes, 

although 

has a 

pending 

application 

which if 

approved 

is likely to 

have a 

number of 

conditions 

to 

discharge.  

0 6 Pending 

application 

which if 

approved is 

likely to 

enable 

delivery of 

identified 

units within 5 

years.  

Planning 

Application 

20/01053/FUL 

for 13 

dwellings is 

still under 

consideration 

by the 

Planning 

Authority. 

 

5.14 Although SBC’s Housing Land Audit 2019 identifies a Housing Land Supply, it is 

evident that many allocated sites are yet to come forward for development and dating 

back as far as 2016. For example, it is noted that the Housing Land Audit identifies 

long term delivery of 300 new dwellings on the Lowood site and of this, 80 new 

dwellings are included within the effective housing land supply. The delivery of 80 

new dwellings in the next 5 years is considered to be undeliverable because no 

planning permission has been granted at the present time, and no evidence of 

Page 283



 

 

developer/housebuilder involvement has been published. This then leading to the 

housing and land supply not being fully built out and posing significant questions on 

the deliverability of the allocated sites within both the existing and proposed Local 

Development Plan. Core Document 4 of this report provides additional information 

on the identified LDP housing sites and concerns about their deliverability within the 

allotted LDP timeframe. 

5.15 Our position is not that the allocated sites should be ignored but that they should be 

identified as being constrained with their delivery times extended. They should not 

be used to prohibit other sustainable windfall sites adjacent to existing settlements, 

such as that proposed by this appeal, from coming forward when they will be needed 

to meet the identified housing shortfall within the Scottish Borders.  

5.16 Whilst it is a modest development site, analysis shows that that a significant 

proportion of houses built in the Scottish Borders range between 1-4 units and that 

many are non-allocated / windfall sites. The importance of smaller sites in delivering 

housing in the Scottish Borders should therefore not be overlooked. 

5.17 The appeal site is free from constraints and represents a logical and sustainable 

windfall opportunity to help address the current shortfall. It is owned and would be 

built by the appellant and is therefore effective and deliverable. The applicant is 

happy to look at different designs and layouts if the LRB view the current suggested 

house types as being unacceptable. The appellant is committed to deliver the 

development as soon as possible.    

5.18 Significantly, the shortfall in the Council’s five-year land supply, has also been 

confirmed by an important recent appeal decision with reference PPA-140-2088 

published 18th May 2021. The Reporter concluded that there is a “significant five-

year effective land shortfall” with a c.631 housing shortfall in terms of 5-year housing 

land supply. This is the latest government opinion on this case and therefore a 

significant material consideration in this appeal. 

5.19 A shortfall has therefore been identified in the Council’s five-year housing land 

supply, and this appeal proposal satisfies the expectations of Policy PMD4 Part 1 

(a). 

Policy PMD4 Part 2 

Criteria a) The development of the site represents a logical extension of the 

built-up area. 

5.20 The site is a logical extension of the village, being located directly adjacent to the 

edge of the existing built-up area of Stow. It is close to the village centre and can be 

accessed on foot directly within 5-10 minutes. It is located a short distance from the 

Page 284



 

 

nearest bus stop at the Station Road/ A7 junction which is within a 10-minute walk 

and access to the local train station within a 15-minute walk. 

5.67  The proposal also provides a new pedestrian link which joins the existing road from 

Crunzion Cottage to Earlston Road to the north of the site.  

5.21 SBC’s own Roads Planning Officer, recognised the benefits of the sites location, 

stating “…the site stacks up well from a sustainable transport point of view in that 

public transport is available in reasonably close proximity by bus and by rail and local 

services are within easy walking distance. 

5.22 In conclusion, I am not opposed to a minimal level of development on this site. My 

preferred option though, if there is to be housing development on this site, would be 

for an adjustment of the settlement boundary and for there to be as few houses as 

possible.” 

5.23 Other opportunities within the existing settlement boundary are extremely limited, 

with much of the lower lying land within the Stow settlement constrained by the river 

that runs through it. It is important that development takes place in sustainable 

locations close to public transport infrastructure and ultimately where people desire 

to live and allow families to stay and move within the village. 

5.24 Stow should be a focus for future housing growth due to its sustainable location and 

excellent connectivity to the wider area. The ‘Borders Railway: A Blueprint for the 

Future’ (2014) seeks to ensure there is a generous supply of housing land to cater 

for the increase in people and families living in the Scottish Borders.  

5.25 Within the emerging Local Development Plan 2 which is nearing adoption, it is also 

noted that Stow represents a sustainable settlement with the station providing good 

accessibility by public transport to potential longer-term development areas. The 

market and desire to locate and live within the village is strong and becoming 

increasingly popular.  

5.26 As discussed further later in this statement, the site is also visually well-contained 

within the existing field boundary and mixed tree planting and forms a sympathetic 

extension to the existing residential properties to the north and west of the site.  

5.27 On the above basis, we consider that the proposed residential development is a 

logical and sustainable extension of the built-up area and is therefore considered to 

be compliant with criteria a). 

Page 285



 

 

Criteria b) The development of the site is of an appropriate scale in relation to 

the site of size of the settlement.  

5.28 In the absence of any other threshold provided by this policy for what is deemed to 

be an ‘appropriate scale’, those attributed to LDP Policy HD2 can be taken as a guide 

to the scale of development that may be deemed appropriate in a rural setting.  

5.29 Policy HD2 promotes appropriate rural housing development associated with 

existing rural building groups subject to not adversely affecting the character of the 

site or surrounding area. The policy states housing of up to 2 dwellings or a 30% 

increase associated with the existing building group may be approved if it is a logical 

extension to the built form. 

5.30 In terms of policy, we understand Stow is not considered a large building group, 

however, we consider the site to be a logical location for residential development. 

The site is in a sustainable location, relating well to the rural village of Stow and 

adjoins the settlement boundary. So, the principal or thrust of the rural building group 

policy should apply.  

5.31 The indicative housing layouts illustrated in Figures 4 and 5 demonstrates how the 

site could accommodate up to four detached dwellings. Stow as a large rural 

grouping or settlement could easily accommodate the four well placed dwellings 

given it would fall within the 30% ruling of an existing building group. 

5.32 The appeal proposals are therefore considered to be of an appropriate scale in 

relation to the size of the settlement and criteria b) is therefore considered to be 

satisfied.  

Criteria c) The development of the site does not prejudice the character, visual 

cohesion or natural built-up edge of the settlement.  

5.33 The proposed layouts have enabled the existing mixed woodland belt bordering the 

site to be retained. Much of the proposal therefore is visually well-contained by an 

existing framework of mature and maturing landscape structure. Where this is not 

the case, the boundaries will be further enhanced by the proposed planting of locally 

appropriate hedgerow and trees and the creation of new areas of locally appropriate 

structural woodland to frame and screen the development further.  

5.34 The site can be sensitively integrated into the surrounding landscape and will have 

robust and defensible boundaries to the wider countryside.  

5.35 As described in the Landscape and Visual Appraisal, there will be potentially adverse 

landscape effects are predicted upon land within the proposed development site 

boundaries given the overall change because of the proposal from pasture to 

Page 286



 

 

housing development. However, beyond the site boundaries, there would be little 

change in how the surrounding landscape is perceived, including the village’s 

conserved core.  

5.36 Given the existing level of containment and proposed mitigation measures, there 

would be no potentially adverse landscape effects predicted outwith the site 

boundaries. The development on the site would have negligible effects on the local 

landscape character and townscape character of the settlement.  The appeal 

proposals are therefore considered to satisfy criteria c). 

Criteria d) the development does not cause a significant adverse effect on the 

landscape setting of the settlement or natural heritage of the surrounding area.  

5.37 The Landscape and Visual Appraisal clearly demonstrates that no significant 

landscape impacts would arise because of this proposal.  

5.38 Visibility of the site from the surrounding area is illustrated by a series of viewpoints 

taken from three separate locations within 1km of the site boundaries, and these are 

included within the Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal. Briefly, the conclusions 

of this assessment are as follows: 

• Viewpoint 1 (Stow Cemetery) The proposed development would be 

viewed as an extension to the existing built form and therefore would not 

appear incongruous.  

• Viewpoint 2 (Earlston Road) The proposed development would be 

screened by the intervening woodland edge of Sell Moor Wood and the 

field boundary woodland to the southeast of the site. 

• Viewpoint 3 (Station Road at Wedale View) The proposed development 

would appear as a logical ‘tiered’ extension to the village and would 

therefore not introduce an unusual element to the view. The homes would 

also be backclothed by the extensive coniferous woodland at Sell Moor 

Wood which would ensure they ‘tucked into’ the valley side. 

5.39 The introduction of the proposed homes is therefore not predicted to incur any 

potentially adverse visual effects, based on the viewpoint assessment above. This 

indicates there would be little change in how the surrounding landscape and setting 

of Stow is perceived, including the village’s conserved core.  

5.40 The proposed mitigation measures will also provide a level of beneficial effects, such 

as enhanced biodiversity and additional screening through the introduction of locally 

appropriate hedgerow and trees within the proposed development.  

Page 287



 

 

5.41 Regarding the natural environment, an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey was 

prepared by Ellendale Environmental. There was no evidence of protected species 

during the survey, and there are no ecological reasons that would limit the 

development of the site. The accompanying survey (Core Document 9) from 

Ellendale Environmental showed no material impact which was accepted by SBC 

Ecology Department.   

5.42 The proposal, while PPiP, will also be committed to green and sustainable building 

standards and in the promotion of renewable energy, such as, solar and air source 

heat pumps. The applicant is more than willing to be conditioned on such matters. 

5.43 As set out above, the development will not cause a significant adverse effect on the 

landscape setting of the settlement or natural heritage of the surrounding area and 

criteria d) is therefore considered to be satisfied.  

5.44 Policy PMD4 – Part 3 

Criteria a) Any indicators regarding restrictions on, or encouragement of, 

development in the longer term that may be set out in the settlement profile. 

The development of the proposed site will not impact upon the delivery or 

development of any neighbouring sites within the settlement of Stow. As described 

above, the site is a logical extension to the existing settlement, with defensible 

boundaries to the wider countryside and thereby will not promote further 

development outwith the settlement in this location.  

Criteria b) The cumulative effect of any other developments outwith the 

Development Boundary within the current Local Plan period. 

5.45 As noted above, there are limited opportunities for future development in Stow and 

only four sites have been allocated for housing development. The development of 

the appeal site will complement the organic growth of Stow in a location which has 

been demonstrated through this statement to be in keeping with the existing 

settlement and have no adverse impact on its existing character.  

Criteria c) The infrastructure and service capacity of the settlement.  

5.46 No objections were received from any of the technical consultees during the original 

planning determination, as summarised in Section 1. It is considered that there are 

no infrastructure or service capacity constraints which would prevent development 

of this site. 

Page 288



 

 

Reason for Refusal – Part 2 

5.47 The proposal would not represent a logical extension of the built-up area and would 

not be sympathetic to the character of the settlement or achieve visual cohesion with 

it.  

Appellant’s Response 

5.48 Please refer to the above section for the response under Policy PMD4 which 

demonstrates that the development of the site represents a logical extension of the 

built-up area and will be sympathetic to the character of Stow.  

Reason for Refusal – Part 3 

5.49 The resulting development would have an unacceptably adverse effect on the 

character of the settlement at this location, thus also conflicting with policy PMD2 of 

the Local Development Plan 2016.  

Appellant’s Response 

5.50 We set out below why this development should proceed in line with Policy PMD2 

Place Making and Design, sections h) to n), demonstrating the proposal does not 

conflict with the character of the local area.  

Policy PMD2 Placemaking and Design h) it creates developments with a sense 

of place, based on a clear understanding of the context, designed in sympathy 

with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate 

contemporary and/or innovation design.  

5.51 As noted in Section 3, the indicative house types are predominantly aimed at 

families, one- and three-quarter storeys in height with contrasting wood, rough cast 

render cladding and glazing. The chosen materials and form will provide an attractive 

variance across the site and complement the existing character of the village and 

landscape setting. A similar architectural style and materiality on new homes is noted 

elsewhere within Stow and across the Borders.  New boundary planting will further 

ensure the new homes are sensitively integrated into the landscape. The proposal 

is therefore considered compliant with criteria h). 

Policy PMD2 i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its 

surroundings and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing 

building.  

Page 289



 

 

5.52 The proposed dwellings are in-keeping with the scale, massing, and height of 

neighbouring properties.  The plot sizes mirror those of neighbouring dwellings and 

are sympathetic to the village location.  

5.53 The Landscape and Visual Appraisal also assessed the potential visual effects 

attributable to the proposed development, considering the indicative heights of the 

residential properties proposed. It was concluded that the site has the potential to 

offer appropriate scale residential development, as is proposed, without leading to 

unacceptable levels of potential adverse landscape and visual effects. 

5.54  As this is a PPiP application, further consideration can also be given to the proposed 

design at the detailed planning stage, as necessary. 

5.55 On this basis, we consider the appeal proposals to be compliant with criteria i). 

Policy PMD2 j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of 

which complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where 

an extension or alteration, the existing building.  

5.56 The new homes will provide high quality family homes. As noted in relation to criteria 

h) above, the materials proposed are wood, rough cast render cladding and glazing, 

which will complement other new homes within Stow and the Scottish Borders. 

5.57  Again, as this is a PPiP application, further consideration can be given to the 

materials at the detailed planning stage, as necessary. The proposals are 

considered compliant with criteria j). 

Policy PMD2 k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the 

surrounding area, neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form.  

5.58 As described in the Landscape and Visual Appraisal, the development of the site 

would represent a small scale and organic expansion of Stow.  

5.59 The indicative masterplan for the site prepared by Hunter Architecture shows that 

each of the proposed houses are set within substantial plots. This mirrors the plot 

sizes of neighbouring dwellings to the north and west and is sympathetic to the rural 

village location and existing built form.  

5.60 The layout also provides significant outdoor private amenity space for the new 

residents and serves to maintain the privacy between both new and existing 

residential dwellings, ensuring there is no overlooking, loss of privacy or adverse 

impact on daylight and sunlight provision.  

5.61 The adjacent neighbour dwellings at the northern and western extents of the site 

would experience limited views towards the proposed development, although these 

Page 290



 

 

would not be from primary rooms and the proposed design and landscape measures 

discussed earlier, will go some way to minimise these.  

5.62 It is also noted that the proposed homes would appear as a logical ‘tiered’ extension 

to the village and would therefore sit comfortably within the existing context. The 

tiered development effect is characteristic of homes within a valley, providing further 

indication of the suitability of the proposed site for development.  

5.63 It is considered the proposals are sympathetic to the character of Stow and 

compatible with the neighbouring uses and built form, and therefore compliant with 

criteria k). 

Policy PMD2 l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site.  

5.64 As described in the Landscape and Visual Appraisal, the indicative masterplan for 

the site prepared by Hunter Architecture has taken cognisance of the existing site 

conditions, by providing: 

• Opportunities to retain the existing mixed woodland belts which bound the 

site, ensuring properties would not be built within falling distance of the 

trees; and 

• Protection and retention of Crunzie Burn and associated bank where 

possible within the eastern boundary of the site. 

5.65 The accompanying Landscape and Visual Appraisal states that, visually, the site is 

well contained by existing shelterbelts and landform which precludes views from the 

wider settlement areas outwith the site boundaries, including from the conserved 

core of Stow. 

5.66 Four dwellings can be easily accommodated whilst maintaining significant 

separation distances between existing properties and generous garden ground and 

privacy for new residents. 

5.67 The proposals are therefore considered compliant with criteria l). 

Policy PMD2 m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure 

attractive edges to the development that will help integration with its 

surroundings.  

5.68 As described in the Landscape and Visual Appraisal, much of the development 

within the site would be contained within an existing framework of mature and 

maturing landscape structure provided by existing boundary and onsite vegetation.  

Page 291



 

 

5.69 Further mitigation measures have also been proposed and illustrated on the 

Landscape Development Framework contained within Core Document 6 and 

copied below. 

 

5.70 The proposed development allows for: 

• Reinforcement and management of the existing boundary planting to the 

site’s western boundary where possible, ensuring its long-term continuity. 

• Inclusion of locally appropriate hedgerow and hedgerow trees within the 

proposed development. 

• Creation of new areas of locally appropriate structural woodland and 

groups of trees to frame and screen the development further where 

required. 

5.71 Appropriate boundary treatments will therefore be provided, to ensure attractive 

edges to the development that will help integration with its surroundings, and the 

proposals are therefore considered compliant criteria m). 

5.72 Policy PMD2 n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and 

security measures, in accordance with current guidance on ‘design out crime’.  

5.73 The indicative positioning of the properties creates a scene of natural surveillance 

with habitable rooms fronting the proposed vehicular and pedestrian routes in 

accordance with SBC Designing Out Crime SPG and criteria n). As this is a PPiP 

Page 292



 

 

application, further consideration can also be given to the layout at the detailed 

planning stage to enhance these measures, as necessary. 

Reason for Refusal – Part 4 

5.74 This conflict with the Local Development Plan is not overridden by other material 

considerations. 

Appellant’s Response 

5.75 As set out in Section 4, the content of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is a material 

consideration that carries significant weight.  

5.76 Paragraph 33 of SPP states that, “where relevant policies in a development plan are 

out of date…then the presumption in favour of development that contributes to 

sustainable development will be a significant material consideration. Decision-

makers should also take into account any adverse impacts which would significant 

and demonstrable outweigh the benefits when assessed against the wider policies 

in this SPP”. The presumption applies in situations where the Development Plan is 

more than 5 years old or where there is a shortfall in the 5-year land supply. 

5.77 The Court of Session in the case of Gladman Developments v Scottish Ministers 

(June 2020), provides an important clarification on the construction and application 

of paragraph 33 of SPP, known as the ‘tilted balance’ principle in SPP. 

5.78 The decision states that (Paragraph 46), “A housing development which will remedy, 

to some extent, a housing shortage is something which almost inevitably ‘contributes 

to sustainable development” which is what paragraph 33 requires…whether it is, in 

overall terms, a sustainable development is another question. That is one for 

planning judgement, but it involves the use of the tilted balance”. The Court also 

confirms that, “In short, the existence of one or more adverse findings in relation to 

the thirteen guiding principles to sustainability in terms of SPP (para 29) does not 

prevent the operation of the tilted balance, but it may result in the balance tilting back 

to a refusal”. 

5.79  The Court found that this meant in relation to a decision (Paragraph 47), “The 

starting point ought, to have been that there was a presumption in favour of this 

development because, inter alia, it provided a solution, at least in part, to the housing 

shortage. Thereafter, the question was whether the adverse impacts, notably the 

other policies in the development plan, ‘significant and demonstrably outweighed’ 

the benefits of the development in terms of the housing shortage and economic 

gain”.  

Page 293



 

 

5.80 The implications of the Gladman v Scottish Ministers case for the current application 

are: 

• Considering the shortfall identified by the Scottish Government’s Reporter 

in appeal decision PPA-140-2088, published 18th May 2021, it follows in 

line with Paragraph 125 of SPP that the development plan policies 

regarding the supply of housing within SBC’s local plan are out of date. 

The presumption in favour of sustainable development in SPP is triggered. 

That is a significant material consideration. 

• If the housing policies are deemed out of date, it follows, in our view, that 

the weight to be given to the settlement boundary which reflects these out-

of-date housing requirements may also be reduced to allow the housing 

objectives to be fulfilled. 

• According to SPP, the presumption should apply unless this development 

would have “adverse impacts which would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits”. 

5.81 SPP advises that the planning system should support economically, 

environmentally, and socially sustainable places by enabling development that 

balances the cost and benefits of a proposal over the longer term. The aim is to 

achieve the right development in the right place it is not to allow development at any 

cost. This means that policies and decisions should be guided by the following 

principles in Paragraph 29 which we address in turn: 

Table 7: SPP Paragraph 29 Principles  

Policy Principle How the Proposal Complies  

Giving due weight to net economic 

benefit; 

The proposal will deliver much needed 

investment and delivery of family housing 

within the rural area. The appellant will also 

seek to appoint local tradesmen during the 

construction process, contributing to the 

local economy.  

 

Responding to economic issues, 

challenges and opportunities, as 

outlined in local economic 

strategies; 

The proposal supports the growth of Stow 

in line with Borders Railway: A Blueprint for 

the Future which seeks to ensure there is a 

generous supply of housing land to cater 

for the increase in people and families 

living in the Scottish Borders. 

 

Page 294



 

 

Supporting good design and the 

six qualities of successful places; 

The proposal will deliver four high quality 

new family homes. These are addressed 

within the indicative illustrations and 

proposed plans and will be agreed during 

the detailed planning application stage.  

 

Making efficient use of existing 

capacities of land, buildings and 

infrastructure including supporting 

town centre and regeneration 

priorities; 

The proposals will capitalise on the existing 

investment made in the Borders railway 

and Stow train station. The additional 

residents the proposed dwellings will bring 

to Stow will contribute to local services and 

facilities through having a higher footfall in 

the local area.  

 

Supporting delivery of accessible 

housing, business, retailing and 

leisure development; 

 

The proposal will deliver much needed 

family sized dwellings.  

Supporting delivery of 

infrastructure, for example 

transport, education, energy, 

digital and water; 

 

The proposal will make a financial 

contribution through a s.69 or s.75 

agreement, as deemed necessary by SBC.   

 

Supporting climate change 

mitigation and adaptation 

including taking account of flood 

risk; 

 

The future proofing of homes for climate 

change will be agreed during the detailed 

planning application stage.  

Improving health and well-being 

by offering opportunities for social 

interaction and physical activity, 

including sport and recreation; 

 

The proposed open space within the site 

offers an opportunity for an array of 

activities. The site is also well located for 

the existing amenities provided by Stow.  

 

Having regard to the principles for 

sustainable land use set out in the 

Land Use Strategy; 

The proposed site is in a highly sustainable 

location, within walking distance to Stow 

Train Station offering direct services to 

Edinburgh and Galashiels providing access 

to facilities. The proposed site will also 

provide a new footpath network towards 

the heart of Stow, encouraging walking and 

Page 295



 

 

cycling. All as agreed with SBC transport 

dept during the planning application. 

 

Protecting, enhancing and 

promoting access to cultural 

heritage, including the historic 

environment; 

 

The Landscape and Visual Appraisal 

confirms that the proposal will have a 

negligible effect on the character of the 

Stow Conservation Area. 

 

Protecting, enhancing and 

promoting access to natural 

heritage, including green 

infrastructure, landscape and the 

wider environment; 

 

The additional landscaping proposed will 

provide a level of beneficial effects, such 

as enhanced biodiversity and additional 

screening through the introduction of 

locally appropriate hedgerow and trees 

within the proposed development.  

 

Reducing waste, facilitating its 

management and promoting 

resource recovery; and 

 

As above, sustainability measures will be 

agreed during the detailed planning 

application stage. 

 

Suitable provision for waste collection was 

demonstrated through transport tracking 

drawings and agreed with SBC during the 

planning application. 

 

Avoiding over-development, 

protecting the amenity of new and 

existing development and 

considering the implications of 

development for water, air and soil 

quality. 

 

The low-density scale of development is 

considered appropriate for a site of this 

nature.    

 

SBC Environmental Health dept raised no 

objection during the planning application.  

 

5.82 In summary, as there is a shortfall in the five-year land supply, the housing policies 

within the Local Plan are deemed out of date and the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development in SPP is triggered. That is a significant material 

consideration.  

5.83 We have set out above why we consider that this development is consistent with 

SPP’s guiding principles. Whilst the proposed development would give rise to some 

adverse impacts, given it is out with the settlement boundary, appropriate mitigation 

measures are outlined in the supporting information. It is considered that on balance, 

the proposal represents development which contributes to sustainable development, 

Page 296



 

 

and which will also contribute to addressing the current in-effective housing land 

supply.  

5.84 Referring back to the recent appeal decision, noted earlier in this statement, the 

Reporter stated in that case that, “if the proposal were found to “contribute to” 

sustainable development, despite not “being” sustainable development (which I 

accept is a lower bar) then, in accordance with SPP 2014 and Court of Session 

rulings, the planning balance would be tilted very significantly in favour of approval. 

SPP 2014 would also apply the “tilted balance” on account of SESplan being more 

than five years old”. 

5.85 We do not consider that any potential impacts of the proposed development 

significantly and demonstrably outweigh the presumption in favour of development. 

This is further demonstrated by the lack of objections from technical consultees both 

external and internal to SBC, which are summarised in Section 1, Table 1. There is 

no other conflict with the development plan and there are significant material 

considerations which support this appeal being allowed.  

 

 

Page 297



 

 

6. Conclusions 

6.1 The submitted appeal, supported by this statement, seeks the Council’s decision to 

refuse planning permission for the ‘erection of four no. dwelling houses with 

associated infrastructure and access’ at Land South of Crunzion Cottage, 

Earlston Road, Stow to be overturned and for this appeal be allowed, for the reasons 

outlined in this statement and summarised below.  

6.2 In summary: 

• The proposal represents a logical extension of the settlement boundary, 

adjoining the existing built-up area with no adverse impact on residential 

amenity or road safety. 

• The proposal is sympathetic to the character of the settlement and will have 

no detrimental impact upon the landscape as demonstrated within the 

accompanying Landscape Visual Impact Assessment. 

• The proposal will provide four high quality family sized dwellings within this 

desirable and sustainable location, being within walking distance to Stow 

centre and train station.  

• The site is free from constraint and would assist with the Council’s identified 

(and recently confirmed by a Scottish Government Reporter) housing 

shortfall in providing residential homes within a sustainable location.  

• The applicant’s family have been in the village since 1904 having first 

opened a butcher shop, and then taken on the tenancy of Torsonce Mains 

in 1944 before buying the farm in 1958. The applicant has strong ties to the 

village and is committed to deliver the development as soon as possible.    

6.3 As we have demonstrated through this statement, we consider that the proposal 

complies with the development plan, and LDP Policies PMD2 and PMD4 against 

which the original application was refused. 

6.4 There is a presumption in favour of applications that accord with the development 

plan unless there are significant material considerations that indicate the 

development plan should not be followed.  

6.5 There are no material considerations that outweigh this decision, in fact there are 

significant material considerations that support this appeal. In this case, as we have 

outlined, due to the housing shortage, the SPP presumption in favour of 

development is a significant material consideration. The proposed development is 

consistent with the guiding principles of SPP, and we do not consider that there are 

Page 298



 

 

any impacts which significant and demonstrably outweigh the presumption in favour 

of development. A ‘tilted balance’ therefore exists in favour of this development and 

the LRB is therefore respectfully requested to allow this appeal.  

Page 299



 

 

Appendix 1: Core Document List  

Core Doc 1: 20/01620/PPP Decision Notice and Officers Report  

Core Doc 2: Location Plan  

Core Doc 3: Proposed Plans  

Core Doc 4: Housing Audit Analysis  

Core Doc 5: Transport Statement and Tracking Plans  

Core Doc 6: Landscape and Visual Appraisal 

Core Doc 7: Flood Risk Assessment and Culvert Sections  

Core Doc 8: TOPO Survey 

Core Doc 9: Habitat Survey and Environmental Management Plan  

Core Doc 10: Consultee Response Letter (12th March 2021) 

Core Doc 11: Consultee Response Letter (23rd June 2021)  

Core Doc 12: Planning Statement 

 

  

Page 300



 

 

Core Doc 1: 20/01620/PPP Decision Notice and Officers Report  

  

Page 301



 

 

Core Doc 2: Location Plan  

  

Page 302



 

 

Core Doc 3: Proposed Plans  

  

Page 303



 

 

Core Doc 4: Housing Audit Analysis  

  

Page 304



 

 

Core Doc 5: Transport Statement and Tracking Plans  

  

Page 305



 

 

Core Doc 6: Landscape and Visual Appraisal 

  

Page 306



 

 

Core Doc 7: Flood Risk Assessment and Culvert Sections  

  

Page 307



 

 

Core Doc 8: TOPO Survey 

  

Page 308



 

 

Core Doc 9: Habitat Survey and Environmental Management Plan  

  

Page 309



 

 

Core Doc 10: Consultee Response Letter (12th March 2021) 

  

Page 310



 

 

Core Doc 11: Consultee Response Letter (23rd June 2021)  

  

Page 311



 

 

Core Doc 12: Planning Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 312



Please ask 
for:


Carlos Clarke
01835 826735

Our Ref: 20/01620/PPP
Your Ref:
E-Mail: cgclarke@scotborders.gov.uk

Mr Bruce Weir
per Ferguson Planning
54 Island Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD1 1NU

Date: 29th June 2021

Dear Sir/Madam

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land South of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels 
Scottish Borders

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure 
and access

APPLICANT: Mr Bruce Weir

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application.

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.  

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice.

Yours faithfully

John Hayward

Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 313

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                                                                                                                                                              

                  Regulatory Services

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

        

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 20/01620/PPP

To :     Mr Bruce Weir per Ferguson Planning 54 Island Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1NU  

With reference to your application validated on 6th January 2021 for planning permission under the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

Proposal :   Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

at :   Land South of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road  Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders  

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule.

Dated 28th June 2021
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

         
John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 314

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                                                                                                                                                              

                  Regulatory Services

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

        

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  20/01620/PPP

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

1279_pl_00 Location Plan Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

 1 The development would be contrary to Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it 
would be located outside the settlement boundary of the village and does not meet the exceptions 
contained within Policy PMD4, particularly in that strong reasons have not been given to 
demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified by the Council through the housing land audit with 
regard to the provision of an effective five year housing land supply. Furthermore, it would not 
represent a logical extension of the built-up area and would not be sympathetic to the character of 
the settlement or achieve visual cohesion with it. The resulting development would have an 
unacceptably adverse effect on the character of the settlement at this location, thus also conflicting 
with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. This conflict with the Local Development 
Plan is not overridden by other material considerations

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Page 315

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/01620/PPP 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Bruce  Weir 

 
AGENT :   Ferguson Planning 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 
 
LOCATION:  Land South Of 

Crunzion Cottage 
Earlston Road 
Stow 
Galashiels 
Scottish Borders 
 

 
TYPE :    PPP Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
1279_pl_00  Location Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 26  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
Objections have been submitted that raise the following key issues and concerns, in summary: 
 
o Outwith the Local Development Plan boundary and residents have previously objected to the 
site being developed and it has previously been excluded from the LDP. This would not be a logical 
extension applying Policy PMD4 nor meet exception criteria. The application also misapplies Policy 
HD2 
o Other sites should first be developed, and there is no demand for this development which 
doesn't address affordable housing need in the village 
o Precedent would be established 
o Surface water run-off, there is a history of the burn flooding, and there is a related concern 
with the capacity of the culvert, and associated landslip/subsidence issues. Flood risk assessment 
doesn't cover risk downstream 
o Traffic and road safety concerns, including construction and residential traffic, and capacity of 
the road and bridge generally to take additional traffic, as well as resulting in parking congestion. The 
ability to achieve visibility from the junction is also questioned. The road is narrow, and development 
will affect access to the countryside for others including walkers, cyclists, horses and runners. The 
road is also worse in snow. 
o Mains foul drainage is at capacity 
o The habitat survey is questioned, and impacts on wildlife a concern 
o Liabilities for residents using the path which is onto a private road not serviced by the Council. 
It is also questioned whether the applicant has the legal right to take access to it. Foot traffic passed 
neighbours also a concern 
o Trees already removed 

Page 317



o Construction traffic damage 
o Design/scale not in keeping, overbearing and out of character, effect on landscape character 
and village setting, with some assumption in the landscape and visual assessment questioned 
o Overlooking/privacy loss, blocking sung and loss of light from high fences, hedges and trees 
o Effects on view  
o Loss of amenity of the field 
o Noise 
o impacts of street lighting 
 
Consultations 
 
(The comments below are summaries of several of the comments provided by consultees, in order to 
illustrate the key issues. For full comments, please see Idox/Public Access) 
 
Roads Planning Service: The RPS previously raised concerns regarding this site through the 
consultation process for the Local Development Plan. They recommended against the site being 
included for a level of development which would require a public road, which currently limits the 
number of dwellings to four, although they did intimate that they could support some development 
within this site if the settlement boundary was amended to incorporate the site. They note that the 
settlement boundary has not been altered and the proposed LDP does not currently include any 
settlement boundary amendments either. As such, any development of this site has to be considered 
against PMD4. Previous concerns noted the constrained nature of Earlston Road due to gradient, 
parked vehicles and restricted footway widths. That said, with the proposed footpath link, the site is 
situated in close proximity to the village centre (approx. 400m) and the facilities it offers in terms of 
shops and transport links, while the railway station, health centre and school are a further 400m from 
the centre. Without this link, they would not be in a position to support any development on this site 
however with the link they could support limited development. They previously indicated that they may 
be able to support an extent of development not exceeding four dwelling units, preferably less, served 
via a private access, provided there was suitable pedestrian facilities towards the village included 
within any proposal and if the settlement boundary was amended to include this site. As such, the 
principle of housing on this site is acceptable, however it would be subject to several conditions 
covering matters noted below. 
 
o Engineering details relating to the access. These should include sections, levels and design 
information relating to the bridge and any retaining feature and demonstrate that a suitable layout of 
access off the public road can be achieved with adequate visibility and gradients/levels. 
o Visibility at the junction with the public road should ideally be 2.4m x 120m in either direction. 
These splays however may be reduced depending on the geometry of the road and the speed of the 
traffic on the public road. 
o Drainage details. Construction details will be required for the access road and the proposed 
footpath link. 
o Confirmation that the square proposed can accommodate service vehicles, with regards 
turning in particular. 
o Confirmation showing that the applicant has the appropriate powers to utilise the existing 
pedestrian link and the proposed link would have to be provided prior to occupation of the first dwelling 
and remain thereafter in perpetuity. 
o A traffic management plan to cover the construction period  
o A small level of visitor parking  
o Allowance for refuse collection.  
 
Ideally, the above information should be provided prior to any determination being made so as to 
ensure what is approved can be provided. However, if suitably worded conditions would suffice from a 
planning perspective, they would not object to the proposal provided appropriate conditions can be 
attached.  
Community Council: Object to the application. Access is very problematic and unsafe; the sewage 
system is inadequate and cannot sustain these houses; and, the area is not included for development 
in the LDP. The CC does not consider it should be included in future.  
 
Education and Lifelong Learning: No reply 
 

Page 318



Ecology Officer: Notes the submitted Extended Phase 1 habitat survey. The site consists largely of 
habitats of low biodiversity value (improved pasture), habitats of higher value on the boundary (out 
with the redline boundary), notably the mixed woodland along the eastern boundary and Crunzie burn, 
the Crunzie burn and mature beech trees on the south-west boundary. No signs of otter were recorded 
along the Crunzie burn although it was noted as being suitable habitat for otter. The stables and 
haylage barn surveyed are out with the proposed development area.  They were found to be of 
negligible suitability for bats. The report recommends mitigation to protect breeding birds and 
biodiversity enhancements through provision of nest boxes for birds. The woodland habitats on the 
boundary may provide suitable forging and commuting habitat for bats. A sensitive lighting scheme 
may be required. Notes that an area of trees on the eastern boundary has been cleared and that 
Scottish Forestry has issued a re-stocking order. Is not aware of their prior ecological assessment. 
 
The Crunzie burn is adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site and provides potential connectivity 
with the Gala Water (part of the River Tweed SAC).  A bridge crossing of the burn has been proposed. 
Impacts on the River Tweed SAC may arise. The survey recommends mitigation to avoid impacts on 
breeding birds. No mitigation is proposed to safeguard the watercourse or River Tweed SAC. The 
development may result in a likely significant effect on the River Tweed SAC. The Planning Authority is 
required to carry out an appropriate assessment. Mitigation should follow good practice and CAR 
requirements. The bridge structure may require a CAR licence from SEPA. Further information on 
mitigation is required to protect the adjacent watercourse and River Tweed SAC, to enable a Habitat 
Regulations Appraisal to be concluded 
 
Forward Planning Service: As the proposal is outwith the Stow development boundary this application 
must be assessed against Policy PMD4.  
 
o Stow is a defined settlement within the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 and 
has its own Development Boundary. It is most surprising that the agent suggests this proposal should 
be tested under the Housing in the Countryside building group policy, despite the village clearly having 
a development boundary as identified in the statutory LDP.   This would be a major departure and 
precedent from longstanding and well recognised planning policy.  Simply because a LDP submission 
has been made does not mean it should be automatically allocated.   
o The agent refers to the three allocated sites in the village as identified within the adopted LDP 
2016 are constrained from development and yet has produced no evidence at all to confirm the reason 
why he says this.  They consider that it is market interest that is the sole reason these sites have not 
been developed as yet.   
o The agent states that the allocations within the SPG on Housing in 2018 are highly 
questionable.  However, these were signed off by Scottish Ministers.   
o The agent appears to suggest that the 300 houses at Lowood, Tweedbank were claimed to be 
built within the LDP period.  It is unknown where he has obtained this information. The requirement of 
the SPG was to identify additional sites to provide for the housing land supply a further 916 units. It 
was not the case these houses, or indeed any others identified in the SPG, would be required to be 
built within the LDP period.   
o The agent has provided their own evaluation of the housing land supply. It should be noted 
that it is not considered appropriate to re-assess the effectiveness/programming for each individual 
housing site, or to state which sites are not likely to be progressed, as part of the planning application 
process. This is undertaken annually as part of the Housing Land Audit process. The Council has 
finalised the 2019 Housing Land Audit which concludes that the Scottish Borders has a 5 year 
effective housing land supply. It is considered the programming dates in the HLA are fair. As part of 
the Housing Land Audit process, the Council engages with Homes for Scotland and house builders for 
information regarding programming for development and any potential constraints on sites. This is 
taken into consideration in the programming of individual sites within the audit annually. HLA 
programming should not be altered as part of the planning application process.  
o In December 2020 the Scottish Government produced an amendment to Sottish Planning 
Policy (SPP) which they refer to. In the case of the Stow proposal it is not considered there are 
material considerations which can support the proposal which is contrary to the development plan.  
Consideration must be given to whether this proposal is categorised as a sustainable proposal. The 
submission is a PPP and there is therefore limited information provided and it is not considered the 
proposal meets the tests which confirm it to be sustainable development.   Where a proposal for 
housing development is for sustainable development and the decision-maker establishes that there is 
a shortfall in the housing land supply the shortfall is a material consideration in favour of the proposal. 

Page 319



The Forward Planning team are in the process of carrying out the necessary calculations under 
Planning Advice Note 1/2020. This was not completed at the time of this response. However, it is 
noted that this proposal is only for four units and would be a minimal contribution should there appear 
to be an identified shortfall.   
 
They concluded that it is not considered that this proposal meets the criteria within policy PMD4 nor 
the amended SPP and there are no material considerations which would allow the site to be 
supported. As the proposal is contrary to planning policy it cannot be supported by the Forward 
Planning Team. 
 
Following the above comments, the Forward Planning Service provided an update on their position 
having had regard to an appeal decision that recently examined the issue of potential housing land 
shortfall (20/00753/FUL). FP note that the Reporter concluded that there is a shortfall in the five year 
effective housing land supply within the Scottish Borders. The Council acknowledge that the Reporter 
has applied the methodology set out in Planning Advice Note (PAN) 1/2020.  
 
However, the Council does not agree that the use of the housing land requirement set out within 
SESPlan as part of the calculation is appropriate in the Borders. SPP 2020 requires a flexible and 
realistic approach. The housing land requirement figure contained within SESPlan is significantly 
higher than any annual completions achieved within the Scottish Border and is not realistic. The 
average completion rate within the Scottish Borders over the past 10 years is 330 units. SESPlan 2 set 
out housing land requirements which were informed by the Housing Need and Demand Assessment 
(HNDA2) which was acknowledged as 'robust and credible' by the Scottish Government in March 
2015. SESPlan Local Authorities agreed when assessing development proposals for sites not 
allocated for development in the Development Plan they would regard to a number of documents 
including the Housing Need and Demand Assessment 2015. The Council considers that the housing 
land requirement figures set out within the HNDA are a significant material consideration.  
 
They also note that Scottish Government required all planning authorities by 4th June 2021 to submit 
initial default estimated 10 year housing targets for their respective areas to feed into the draft NPF4. 
The Scottish Government suggested an initial figure of 175 completions per annum, and the figure 
agreed by the Planning and Building Standards Committee was 440 units per annum. Both these 
figures are significantly lower than the requirements of SESPlan (862 units per annum). Ultimately, 
they conclude that the Council does not consider that there is a shortfall in the five year effective 
housing land supply within the Scottish Borders 
 
Archaeology Officer: No conditions or Informatives are recommended due to the low risk of 
encountering archaeological finds. There is nothing to indicate the potential for archaeology in this 
area 
 
Flood Protection Officer: SEPA mapping indicates that the site is not at risk from either a fluvial or 
pluvial flood event with a return period of 1 in 200 years. However, this is this is due to the small 
catchment size of the Crunzie Burn. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment shows that, despite the 
steep topography of the site, the development would likely not be at risk from surface water flooding as 
the proposed access road would be located above the dwellinghouses and would divert surface water 
run-off from the top of the hill towards the Crunzie Burn. Therefore, in principle, she has no objection to 
this development on flooding grounds. Notes however, that the applicant proposes a 1m diameter pipe 
for the culvert in the Crunzie Burn with the inlet and outlet parameters for the culvert. At the Pre-app 
stage their service advised that clarification on the culvert and model was needed as to whether the 
invert level in the model account for 300mm river bed material that will be required through the SEPA 
requirements for construction of the new culvert. As it appears from the submitted documents that the 
required river bed material has not been taken into account the FPO would ask the applicant to 
provide clarification on the culvert design and the considerations they have given to the culvert bed 
material. The FPO would also would require the applicant submit details of their proposed SuDS as 
well as a drainage proposal for the development, with a detailed planning application 
 
Scottish Water: No objection. There is sufficient capacity at Manse Street Galashiels Water Treatment 
Works. SW is not able to confirm capacity at Stow Waste Water Treatment Works and requires a Pre-
Development Enquiry form submitted directly to them. Capacity for either cannot be reserved. No 
surface water into the combined sewer system will be accepted. 

Page 320



 
Housing Strategy Officer: No reply 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
SESPlan 
 
Policy 7 
 
Local Development Plan 2016 
 
PMD2, PMD2, PMD4, HD1, HD3, HD4, EP1, EP2, EP3, EP13, EP15, IS2, IS3, IS7, IS8, IS9  
 
SPGs Affordable Housing 2015; Development Contributions 2011 (updated 2021); Landscape and 
Development 2008; Placemaking and Design 2010; Guidance on Householder Development 2006; 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 2020; Trees and Development 2008; Waste Management 2015 
 
Scottish Planning Policy 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Carlos Clarke  (Lead Planning Officer) on 25th June 2021 
 
Site and application description 
 
This application seeks Planning Permission in Principle for four houses on a sloping agricultural field located 
to the south-east of Stow, outside the settlement boundary as identified in the Local Development Plan 
2016. To the north-west is an adjacent house (Crunzion Cottage) and further north and houses fronting onto 
Earlston Road. To the west and south is undeveloped agricultural land and, to the east, is the Crunzie Burn 
beyond which is the C12 public road.  
 
The application is supported by an indicative proposal for four detached houses with an access road over 
the burn from the C12 to the east. During the processing of the application, two further indicative options 
were submitted. The initial application was also supported by submissions on flood risk, ecology, 
landscape/visual, transport and planning.   
 
Principle 
 
The development would be outwith the settlement boundary and, therefore, falls to be determined against 
Policy PMD4. Notwithstanding reference in the application submission, Policy HD2 does not apply because 
Stow is a recognised, defined settlement, and not a 'building group'.  Policy PMD4 states that development 
outwith the settlement will normally be refused, unless it firstly meets exception criteria from (a) - (d) and 
then, if doing so, also meets the remaining seven requirements of the policy.  I also note the application 
submission references Policy HD4, however, this does not support housing on this site as it is neither in 
supplementary guidance as housing land or promoted for expansion. 
 
In this case, the proposal does not meet the exceptions provided by criteria a, b or d. Though four houses 
will have benefits of some description, they will not comprise a community benefit to meet the requirement of 
criterion (d). The proposal is also not for a job-generating development or justified affordable housing.  This 
leaves criterion (c) which requires that "strong reasons" need be given that "there is a shortfall identified by 
Scottish Borders Council through the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an effective five year 
housing land supply". In this regard, the applicant contends (in correspondence available to view in full on 
Public Access) there is such a shortfall, arguing that sites allocated within the LDP (and proposed to be 
reallocated within the proposed LDP2) are constrained. They argue that allocated sites that are not 
deliverable should not be used to prevent other 'sustainable windfall' sites when it is clear these will be 
needed to meet the housing land shortfall. They make references to many other sites that they consider to 
be constrained within the LDP and argue that substantially more allocations are needed in order to meet set 
targets given the constraints on allocated sites. 
 
However, the Forward Planning Service point out that other sites within Stow are not demonstrably 
constrained; that the Housing SPG does not require sites be developed in the LDP period; and the 

Page 321



assessment of other sites' effectiveness is for the Housing Land Audit, not this planning application. They 
contend that the 2019 Housing Land Audit shows an effective five year supply.  
 
Recently, an appeal decision on a housing development in Peebles included the Reporter's conclusion that 
the Council did have a housing land shortfall, having applied the methodology in PAN 1/2020. The applicant 
rightly contends that the Reporter's decision is a significant material consideration and that SESPlan is the 
adopted plan, not SESPlan2 (in which the Council seeks to apply lower housing land requirements) which 
was rejected.  However, the FP service have explained their position in this regard, essentially making the 
case that reliance on SESPlan figures adopted in 2013 does not represent the 'flexible and realistic' 
approach required by SPP, and that there is agreement amongst SESPlan authorities to use figures from 
the Housing Need and Demand Assessment 2015 as one of the factors on which to calculate housing 
figures. They conclude that, using this approach, the Council does not have a five year housing land 
shortfall. 
 
Ultimately, whatever the baseline position on housing land figures, it is clearly not for this planning 
application to establish how that is calculated. That is entirely for the development plan process. What is, 
however, clear is that the requirement that 'strong reasons' be given that the Council has a five year shortfall 
have not been demonstrably provided. Had that been the case, the Forward Planning Service would not be 
stating otherwise. Criteria C is not satisfied.   
 
SESPlan Policy 7 allows for development on greenfield sites if required to maintain a five year housing land 
supply. As noted above, it is not considered these four houses are required to maintain the effective supply 
and, therefore, the policy does not provide support for the development, regardless of whether it complies 
with its criteria a-c or not.  
 
Even if a shortfall were identified, the proposal must also then satisfy a further seven criteria. As regards the 
first four of these, these require that the development represent a logical extension of the built-up area; is of 
appropriate scale in relation to the size of the settlement; does not prejudice the character, visual cohesion 
or natural built up edge; and would not cause a significant adverse effect on the landscape setting of the 
settlement or its natural heritage. In these regards (and as noted in further detail in this report), while 
landscape, natural heritage and scale issues are not of concern, the proposal is not considered to represent 
a logical extension to the settlement, or be appropriate to its character and visual cohesion at this location, 
thus conflicting with criteria a and c. This is explained further below.  
 
The remaining three policy criteria regarding indicators for longer term development; cumulative impacts; 
and infrastructure and service capacity, do not alter the conclusion that the development would not be a 
logical expansion in terms of the character of the settlement. Longer term expansion of the village is not 
identified here, and the LDP discounted a site for five houses. Changing to four houses does not alter its 
suitability - if it were readily suitable, the site would be located within the settlement boundary.  
 
The proposal is considered to fail Policy PMD4 for the reasons above, and explained further in this report. 
 
Where a development is contrary to the LDP, Scottish Planning Policy allows for exceptions for sustainable 
development, based on criteria contained within Paragraph 29. My interpretation of this criteria is that, albeit 
the site location benefits from the sustainable transport options provided by the village, it would nonetheless 
be low density development on a countryside edge site, with significant private road infrastructure, to 
achieve a development which (as noted elsewhere in this report), will not contribute to the sense of place of 
Stow in this location, or provide economic, social or environmental benefits of overriding significance. 
Whatever sustainability credentials the development may have should not be considered sufficient to justify 
overriding the conflict with the LDP.  
 
Ecology 
 
The site is not on or near designations, no trees are specified for removal and the application is supported 
by a Phase 1 Habitat Survey that identifies no signs of otter or evidence of other protected species. It is 
recommended that vegetation clearance take place outwith the bird breeding season, and that the design of 
the development includes nesting boxes. These can be addressed by planning condition. Our Ecology 
Officer did, however, seek further information regarding the development's potential impact on the River 
Tweed Special Area of Conservation (to which the adjacent Crunzie Burn connects). In response, an 
Environmental Management Plan was submitted and the EO conducted an Appropriate Assessment which 

Page 322



has resulting in him concluding the proposal will not have a significant adverse effect on the integrity of the 
Rover Tweed SAC. Planning conditions are required to cover a construction management plan, species 
protection plan and proportionate biodiversity enhancement plan. Though he also refers to a sensitive 
lighting scheme, this will only be if lighting forms part of the detailed application submission. 
 
The access works over the burn would require approval of SEPA under the Controlled Activities 
Regulations. The applicant has advised that SEPA were consulted on the matter before the planning 
application submission and appear not to indicate there would be any issues in principle with culverting the 
burn to access the site. It has not been indicated whether visibility splays for the road access will require tree 
removal. If so, any removals will requiring screening for bats/birds (and assessment if required) before 
determination of any detailed application covering the access.  
 
Flood Risk 
 
The application is supported by an assessment of flood risk to the development from the Crunzie Burn and 
an assessment of culvert size for the road bridge. The Flood Protection Officer is content the site itself is not 
at flood risk, subject to suitable floor levels. However, the sloping ground towards neighbouring properties to 
the north means that surface water management will need carefully addressed. As this is a PPP application, 
the absence of a surface water drainage assessment is not a critical concern, and the FPO suggests that, as 
the site is large and the development relatively small, it should be quite feasible to achieve a suitable surface 
water drainage scheme. A condition can address this and require it be incorporated into the detailed layout 
submission.  
 
As regards the culvert size, the FPO has queried this, though as this is a PPP application, not a detailed 
submission, this need not be addressed now. The culvert will be covered by CAR in any case, and the FPO 
has advised that there should not be any particular reason why a suitably sized culvert cannot be provided. 
As the sizing and flood risk caused by the culvert is covered under CAR, the FPO need not see construction 
details to duplicate CAR considerations, though a condition of consent should require details of the access 
to demonstrate no flow path across the culvert to the main road. 
 
Archaeology 
 
The site is not within or adjacent the Conservation Area, there are no archaeological sites of interest and no 
Listed Buildings on or nearby. As noted above, the Archaeology Officer does not recommend any mitigation.  
 
Services 
 
Scottish Water confirm there is capacity for mains water but a planning condition would be needed to secure 
evidence of a connection having been approved. As regards foul drainage, any concerns regarding capacity 
can be addressed by a planning condition that requires SW's evidence of a foul drainage connection being 
approved. It would be for SW to be satisfied that the mains system has capacity to accept these four 
houses. 
 
As noted above, a surface water drainage scheme will be needed, including maintenance measures of the 
same, fundamentally to ensure a SUDs based scheme that does not lead to additional run-off onto 
neighbouring land, both during and after construction.  
 
Access and parking 
 
As noted above, a new access would be formed from the Earlston Road over the Crunzie Burn to serve the 
development. Concerns raised by residents regarding the capacity of the road, the safety of the junction and 
visibility splays, as well as all other noted concerns regarding road safety have been considered and, 
ultimately, the Roads Planning Service judge the proposal to be acceptable, in principle. This is on the basis 
of a footpath link being provided through the adjacent Crunzion Cottage to ensure connectivity of the site.   
 
As regards the footpath link, the RPS do not seek this be segregated from the access and parking area for 
the cottage itself, but they do require it be bound, to encourage residents to use it. The applicant does not 
directly own the cottage, but advises that it is owned by his father. It has also not been demonstrated that 
access rights exist between the site, the cottage and the public road. However, the applicant has advised 
there will be no difficulty in that regard. Given the provision of this footpath link is essential to the RPS's 

Page 323



endorsement of the application, it will be imperative that, if consent were granted, a suspensive condition is 
imposed to require a scheme of details for the route (one that maintains the access and parking to the 
cottage); evidence of a binding agreement over the cottage to allow the path or the applicant confirms 
ownership has been obtained; and, legal confirmation that demonstrates that there will be no legal hindrance 
to residents accessing the path via the lane leading to the public road.  
 
As regards the road access, the RPS originally sought 2.4 by 120m visibility splays. The application is 
supported by a transport statement that indicates different visibility splays. Albeit the provision of the access 
and visibility splays can be a suspensive condition (to cover any third party land issues that may arise), the 
applicant was asked to demonstrate actual achievability, since to not be able to do so would affect the 
principle of development. However, the RPS has since advised that, following a site visit and traffic figures 
and speeds provided by the applicant's traffic engineer, their recommended splays need only be 2.4m by 
43m, though the RPS considers that up to 70m splays could be achieved. A suspensive condition should 
address their provision, if consent is granted, and include the future maintenance of the splays. 
 
Other aspects referred to by the RPS should be covered by conditions of consent. Since this application is a 
PPP application only, the detailed consideration of the indicative proposals need not be accounted for since, 
in roads terms, they do not materially affect the principle of development, excepting only the visibility and 
footpath link issues referred to above. The conditions should cover the detailed layout of the site, access, 
culvert, road and parking layout and construction specifications (which should be to the most informal 
arrangement possible, to minimise visual and landscape impact), visitor parking, drainage and bin collection 
area. The construction period should be regulated by a traffic management plan as also recommended by 
the RPS.   
 
Placemaking and design: 
 
Trees 
 
In terms of trees, there are no notable specimens within the site. There are trees on the northern boundary 
and trees over the burn on the roadside to the east had previously provided screening from the road. The 
access proposal appears to coincide with a gap in the tree line. The application is not supported by a tree 
survey to identify risks to trees, and trees on the roadside were removed before this application was 
submitted, resulting in Scottish Forestry issue a Restocking Direction to have them replaced. It will be for the 
applicant to ensure a detailed layout for the development does not undermine compliance with SF's 
requirements, however, it has been asserted that SF's requirements will not undermine the access visibility 
splays.  
 
Ultimately, though the application lacks information on tree impacts, the site is of a size that should allow for 
the development to be implemented without undermining trees to any significant extent. The implications of 
visibility splays on trees has not been confirmed by the applicant, but the RPS advise that there are no 
additional trees which will require to be removed over and above those which have already been removed. A 
detailed application should demonstrate the site layout accounts for trees as required by EP13 and our SPG 
in order to minimise impacts, and a condition should be imposed to this effect, if consent were granted. The 
detailed layout should also include a planting scheme that includes reestablishment of the roadside 
screening as necessary. 
 
Landscape and visual impacts, including placemaking and design 
 
The site is sloping and elevated. It adjoins built development to the north though is open to the south. A 
supporting landscape and visual appraisal argues that, where visible, the development would be viewed as 
a logical extension to Stow, characteristic of development within a village. The application has been 
supported by an indicative layout and plans for two similar house types on four plots within a cul-de-sac. As 
it is indicative only, this application need not assess the indicative proposal in detail. However, what is 
apparent from them is that the site is very large resulting in relatively large plots; the cul-de-sac layout is 
relatively formal with a substantial road link; there would be no street frontage, the only connection to the 
existing street network being a footpath link through the adjacent cottage's garden; the access junction 
would be some 130m from the nearest house; and, the layout would be rather at odds with higher density 
housing at this end of the village. Low density suburban housing on the end of a village is not out of sorts 
with such a setting ordinarily, and there is sporadic low density development to the west and north-west that 
exists now. However, because of its size and general visual detachment (with an access road that enters 

Page 324



outside the village in order to come back into the site) development of four houses on it may likely appear 
rather divorced from the established sense of place of this end of the village, appearing somewhat as a 
satellite cul-de-sac.  
 
The wider landscape consequences of four houses (which may best be reduced in scale and height, and 
improved in form and design from the current indicative plans) may be acceptable, subject to being designed 
to suit the site topography and minimise cut/fill and landscape change on what is a sloping site. However, 
the development will still give the impression of being rather detached from the higher density townscape 
that exists at this end of the village. This is particularly given the fact it will be accessed at some 
considerable distance from existing properties, with only a minor footpath link providing connection with the 
existing houses.  
 
Since the originally submitted indicative layout, the applicant has elected to submit two alternative indicative 
proposals to try to demonstrate the suitability of the site. These have also not been examined in detail at this 
PPP stage, but comprise one option which introduces an area of open space which will reinforce the sense 
of detachment. The other option, however, brings the plots closer to the north, and reinforces the southern 
edge by adding structure planting. An approach similar to the second option is more likely to be successful 
as a result. However, neither option can overcome the fact the access point would be considerably divorced 
from the existing houses; the road is substantial to reach all four plots; and the only public realm connection 
is a pathway over the driveway of the adjacent cottage. It would appear, and largely function as, a rather 
satellite grouping of houses, and not be well integrated with the existing settlement pattern. It would not be a 
logical extension or a visually cohesive addition that respects the character of the settlement at this location.  
 
Ultimately, the site itself is of such scale and general detachment from the existing settlement pattern that it 
will be somewhat inevitable that four detached houses in four large plots will not relate well to their 
immediate neighbouring properties. It is not apparent to me that this site, and the provision of four large 
plots, would be a 'logical extension' to the existing settlement, or provide the visual cohesion required by 
Policy PMD4 for out-of-settlement developments.  While a carefully designed development need not have an 
adverse impact on the landscape setting of the settlement, and plot size and planting could be designed to 
allow this development to reflect the plot size and density of houses to the west, I am not convinced the 
resulting development would entirely relate it well to the settlement at this location for the reasons noted 
above. The development of this site for four houses would not comply with either Policy PMD4 or Policy 
PMD2 as a result.    
 
Neighbouring amenity 
 
A condition would reasonably secure a Construction Method Statement for the construction phase with a 
view to minimising risk of nuisance being caused by way of noise and dust during construction.  
 
Concerns regarding the potential impacts of development on the views of, and loss of amenity from using, 
the fields are fully understandable, but they are not material planning considerations. Also, impacts of new 
planting are acknowledged, but planting is not development in itself that requires Planning Permission. Extra 
foot traffic to and from the site may also intrude on neighbouring amenity but not to the extent that would 
have an unacceptably harmful effect. The route through the cottage could be somewhat intrusive on its 
amenity and contributes to concerns above regarding the logic of servicing the site by this method.  
 
As regards privacy, daylight, outlook and sunlight loss from the development itself, this is a PPP application 
supported only by indicative plans, so detailed assessment cannot appropriately be made. The question is 
whether the site is, in principle, capable of accommodating four houses in a manner not likely to 
unacceptable adversely affect neighbouring amenity. Clearly, the topography and the southerly position of 
the site will affect its capacity to accommodate a neighbourly development. However, the site is so large that 
it should be quite possible to achieve a suitable development in those regards. There is a balance that would 
need to be struck between moving the houses further away from neighbours, and protecting their amenity, 
and ensuring the development is close enough such that it relates visually well as an addition to the 
settlement. The site offers enough scope to explore this at the AMC stage. Where planting is required to 
mitigate privacy impacts (were there to be any that could not be addressed through design and siting), it 
would need to be specified to ensure it does not do more harm than good.  
 
Waste storage 
 

Page 325



The road serving the development would be a private road so, as the RPS notes, a collection point will be 
needed only at the junction and the road itself need not cater for refuse vehicles. This can be covered by a 
condition and secured via the detailed AMC application, as can bin storage within curtilages. It is to be noted 
that our Waste Management SPG does advise that distances between bin storage and collection points be 
kept to an absolute minimum and be convenient. Clearly, for those houses at the northerly end of the site, it 
will not be entirely convenient for those householders to take bins from their gardens to the collection point. 
This relatively minor point does add to concerns above regarding the suitability of such a large site to 
privately serve just four houses.  
 
Development contributions 
 
Contributions towards the Waverley Line, Galashiels Academy and affordable housing would be required to 
satisfy Policies IS2 and IS3, though no affordable housing is required on site. A legal agreement would be 
necessary to secure these in the event planning consent were to be granted.  
 
Other matters 
 
Subsidence and property damage are not planning issues and, since no formal street lighting is required to 
serve what would be a private road, this is not a material concern either. As above, if lighting were to form 
part of the AMC application as an incidental part of the development, then its visual and amenity impacts 
would need considered at that time, though its use generally would be discouraged for such a small scale 
development.  
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The development would be contrary to Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it would be 
located outside the settlement boundary of the village and does not meet the exceptions contained within 
Policy PMD4, particularly in that strong reasons have not been given to demonstrate that there is a shortfall 
identified by the Council through the housing land audit with regard to the provision of an effective five year 
housing land supply. Furthermore, it would not represent a logical extension of the built-up area and would 
not be sympathetic to the character of the settlement or achieve visual cohesion with it. The resulting 
development would have an unacceptably adverse effect on the character of the settlement at this location, 
thus also conflicting with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. This conflict with the Local 
Development Plan is not overridden by other material considerations 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The development would be contrary to Policy PMD4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it 

would be located outside the settlement boundary of the village and does not meet the exceptions 
contained within Policy PMD4, particularly in that strong reasons have not been given to 
demonstrate that there is a shortfall identified by the Council through the housing land audit with 
regard to the provision of an effective five year housing land supply. Furthermore, it would not 
represent a logical extension of the built-up area and would not be sympathetic to the character of 
the settlement or achieve visual cohesion with it. The resulting development would have an 
unacceptably adverse effect on the character of the settlement at this location, thus also conflicting 
with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. This conflict with the Local Development 
Plan is not overridden by other material considerations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

Page 326



 

Page 327



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Name

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_pl_00 

Drawing Status

Drawing Scale

1:2500

Clients Name

Project Name

Proposed Housing
Cruzion Stow

Bruce Weir

231 Galashiels Road
Stow Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

N

11

G
AL

AS
HI

EL
S 

RO
AD

Tel
Ex

Southwinds

247

Hay Park

Hay Park
Lodge

St Mary of Wedale
Church

Wedale House

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

177.7m

BM 184.66m

HA
Y 

PA
RK

 L
O

AN

Crosswinds

Fairview

Crunzion
Cottage

52

60

62

56

66

70

80

88

65

81

to 79
69

59

1

61

36

2

1

Haypark Wood Townhead Bridge
20

3.
3m

1136

CHURCH WYND

B 6362TOWNFOOT

221

229

PC

PO 21
19

15

8

245

217

22
4

22
8

22
6

R
oy

al
 H

ot
el

23
4

1 to 3

24
2

Dam Bridge

DW

Bishop's
Palace

DW

El Sub Sta

Path

(remains of)

BM 179.33m

179.8m

Church
(remains of)

Shelter

War
Meml

Pe
nn

yw
hi

gg
am

 B
ur

n

LAU
D

ER
 R

O
AD

EARLSTON ROAD

TOWNFOOT

to 27 31
29

33

Braedale

Carradale

Hall

Hay
Park
Cott

39

10
12

1117

44
46

53

16

23

37

39

2

10

20

43

45

10

2719

15

9

1

55

34

1

31
29

3533

15
21

36

23

Pennywhiggam House

BM 189.87m

185.9m

GP

FB

BM
 183.80m

St Ann's Bridge

BM 193.06m

Pennywhiggam Burn
TCB231

Co
tla

nd
  P

lac
e

Sheepfolds

Track

644180N

644200N

644220N

644240N

644260N

644280N

644300N

644320N

644340N

644360N

644380N

644400N

644420N

644440N

644460N

644480N

644500N

346120E
346120E

346140E
346140E

346160E
346160E

346180E
346180E

346200E
346200E

346220E
346220E

346240E
346240E

346260E
346260E

346280E
346280E

346300E
346300E

346320E
346320E

346340E
346340E

Land Owned
By Applicant

Land Owned By Applicant

0 50m 100m

Location Plan

Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Name

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_Garage_01 

Drawing Status

Drawing Scale

1:100

Clients Name

Project Name

Proposed Housing
Cruzion  Stow

Bruce Weir

231 Galashiels Road
Stow Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

Garage Elevations

Page 331



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Name

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_HT_A 

Drawing Status

Drawing Scale

1:50, 1:100, 1:200

Clients Name

Project Name

Proposed Housing
Cruzion  Stow

Bruce Weir

231 Galashiels Road
Stow Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

0 5m 10m

East Elevation 1:200

North Elevation 1:200

South Elevation 1:200

West Elevation 1:200

House Type A

Page 333



This page is intentionally left blank



Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Name

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_HT_B 

Drawing Status

Drawing Scale

1:50, 1:100, 1:200

Clients Name

Project Name

Proposed Housing
Cruzion  Stow

Bruce Weir

231 Galashiels Road
Stow Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

0 5m 10m

East Elevation 1:200

North Elevation 1:200

South Elevation 1:200

West Elevation 1:200

House Type B

Page 335



This page is intentionally left blank



1:500

Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Status

Drawing Name

Drawing Scale

Project Name
Proposed Housing

Cruzion
Stow

Client Name

Bruce Weir

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_pl_01  Rev F   

231 Galashiels Road
Stow
Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

date revision

A2

0 10m 20m 30m 40mN

Parking

Fairview

Crunzion
Cottage

60

62

66

70

80

88

81

to 79

61

2

Haypark Wood Townhead Bridge

1136

EARLSTON ROAD

MH

MH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

FH

MH

TP

TP

TP

MKR

MKR

RS

RS

G

IL

P

P

AR4

223.469

R1

227.550

R2

226.037

AR5

215.120

R5

217.372

AR6

207.286

R6

210.440

644280N

644300N

644320N

644340N

644360N

644380N

644400N

644420N

644440N

644460N

229.28

229.21

226.96

225.75

225.18

224.19

225.27

223.25

221.74

219.82

217.90

215.86

215.19
215.06

214.86215.85

214.77

214.55

214.15

212.82
213.49

211.10
211.77

211.69

210.96

210.40

210.38

210.55

210.50

210.69

211.41 211.48

211.83

211.50

212.77

212.04

211.44

210.92

212.51

213.18

213.65

214.67

215.52

215.15
215.12

214.98

214.82
214.29

213.53

212.01

213.14

215.54

216.95

216.95

216.88
217.14

218.98

219.48

219.57219.24

219.13
218.79

218.46

220.64

221.43

221.51

220.47 220.87

221.48

221.04

223.17

224.27

223.77

226.36

228.05

226.60

226.64

226.29

225.78

+222.0

223.01

222.05

221.26

221.41

221.57

221.99

222.15

222.53

222.78

223.03

222.90

223.91

224.13

223.73

224.74

225.16

226.89

226.29

220.18

221.15

211.30

211.14

211.49
211.53

211.36

225.64

225.31

226.84

228.04

228.91

229.17

227.92

228.74

228.66

230.53

230.18

205.85

205.68

222.33

222.46

222.86

222.97

216.94

217.78

218.07

225.29

225.35

211.67

212.12

213.57

215.39

218.11

222.92

223.06

223.12

223.96

223.96

223.88

224.87 224.96

225.02

225.85225.85225.86

226.89

226.93

226.92

227.89

227.92227.95

228.82

228.80

228.77
229.27

226.23

225.94 227.49

228.15

226.86
228.27

230.01

230.62

225.54

224.98

227.31224.18

22
4.

08

223.54

225.06 227.95

228.91

227.04

225.71

226.27
225.37

225.85 226.69

226.19225.58

222.81

223.15
223.69

224.09224.22
224.07

223.89

224.94

225.01

225.87225.89

226.92

222.85

22
2.

84
22

2.
39

224.93

224.85

226.13

225.76

223.29

223.18224.28

223.84
223.09

224.83

215.11

215.21

215.11

215.09

216.13

216.18216.23

216.36

217.20

217.21

217.17

218.22
218.34

218.27

218.27

218.16

219.22
219.23

219.25

219.25
219.30

220.18

220.22220.19

220.13

221.17

221.24

221.26

222.09222.06222.08

222.55

222.66
222.65222.71

221.25

221.38

220.88

220.89
221.02

221.46

220.81

219.32

219.74

220.84

221.24

219.94

221.16

220.39

220.56
221.10

220.46

221.37

22
1.

38

221.80

222.32

221.68
222.26

223.17

222.28

221.99

223.58

220.86

221.51

221.88

222.31

223.16

223.58

222.54

221.93

221.18

220.22

224.57

224.56

223.91

222.99

222.26

221.89

222.78

222.40

226.37

225.25

22
5.

10

225.83

225.75

224.80

224.72
224.97

226.77

214.03

213.98

214.10

214.03

213.61

213.78

213.22

213.28

213.22

212.25212.32

212.35

218.41

217.19

216.63

215.87

21
5.

59

215.45

214.79

214.55

213.98

215.20

216.27218.75

217.12
217.10

215.98

214.33

215.53

216.26

218.56

219.06

220.15

220.13

216.75

216.05

219.61

220.82

218.71

218.98

219.05

218.01

216.95

217.33

219.87

219.49

218.70

218.40

217.62

217.00

216.73

214.09

207.28

20
7.

32207.33

208.31208.97 208.45

208.46

208.54

209.69209.72209.74

209.76

210.89
211.05

211.18

21
2.

06212.25212.35

212.74

212.96

21
2.

35

213.12 213.66

213.18
213.73213.70 213.75

211.00

211.01 211.02211.05

21
3.

52

213.06

213.00

211.76

211.64

210.00

212.44

213.47

214.53

215.05

215.86

214.53

218.40

217.46

206.52

209.99

208.72

20
8.

72

209.68

205.72

20
6.

05

208.59

20
9.

80

210.73

209.42

207.65

207.36

207.17
207.22

206.96
206.86

206.71

206.52

206.41

206.34

206.22
206.18

206.17

206.28

206.33

206.38

206.22

206.57

206.67

206.96

207.03

207.11
207.49

208.34

208.27

207.76

207.51

207.59

207.31

WOODED AREA

STONE W
ALL

OPEN FIELD

OPEN FIELD

ST
O

N
E 

W
AL

L

POST & WIRE FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

GRASS FIELD

TIMBER FENCE

VEGETATION

POST & WIRE FENCE

TIMBER FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

TO
P O

F BAN
K

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

ST
R

EA
M

GRASS

E A R L S T O
 N       R O

 A D

STREAM

STR
EAM

STR
EAM

PO
ST & W

IR
E FEN

C
E

TIMBER FENCE

CULVERT

GARAGE

1408

2401

1403

PO
ST & W

IRE FENCE

POST & W
IRE FENCE

TOP OF BANK

BO
TTO

M
 O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TOP OF BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK
TO

P O
F BAN

K

TOP OF BANK

E A R
 L S T O

 N
     R

 O
 A D

TIM
BER

 FEN
C

E

STONE WALL

229.0

229.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

226.0

226.0

226.0

225.0

22
5.0

225.0

224.0

22
4.0

224.0

230.0

223.0

223.0

223.0

222.0

222.0

221.0

22
1.0220.0

22
0.

0219.0

219.0

219.0

218.0

21
8.

0

218.0

217.0

21
7.

0

216.0

216.0

215.0

21
5.0

214.0

21
4.0

213.0

21
3.

0

212.0

21
2.

0

211.0

21
1.

0

21
0.

0

20
9.

0

20
8.

0 20
7.

0

206.0

Land Owned By Applicant

Plot 1

Plot 2

Plot 3

Plot 4

+222.0

+222.0

+222.0

+218.0

+215.5

+FFL  221.30
Garage

+FFL  219.75
Lower Ground Floor+219.55

+219.55

+220.80

+FFL  222.30
Garage

+FFL  222.00
Mezzanine Level

+FFL  220.75
Lower Ground Floor

+FFL  221.00
Mezzanine Level

+220.55

+221.80

+221.80

+220.55

+FFL  214.80
Garage

+FFL  213.25
Lower Ground Floor

+FFL  214.50
Mezzanine Level

+213.05

+214.30

+214.30

+FFL  216.55
Garage

+FFL  215.00
Lower Ground Floor

+FFL  216.25
Mezzanine Level

+216.05

+214.80

+216.05

+214.80

+214.80

+213.05

+213.05

Parking

Parking

Parking

New Road

New Footpath

Existing Footpath

H's Type
A

H's Type
A

Garage

Garage

Garage

H's Type
B

Garage

H's Type
B

Block Plan

A  09.10.20
C 19.10.20
D 05.11.20
E 16.12.20
F 21.12.20

P
age 337



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1:500

Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Status

Drawing Name

Drawing Scale

Project Name
Proposed Housing

Cruzion
Stow

Client Name

Bruce Weir

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_Scheme.2_01 

231 Galashiels Road
Stow
Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

date revision

A2

0 10m 20m 30m 40m

N

68
M

49
M

Fairview

Crunzion
Cottage

60

62

66

70

80

88

81

to 79

61

2

Haypark Wood Townhead Bridge

1136

MH

MH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

FH

TP

TP

TP

MKR

MKR

RS

RS

G

IL

P

P

AR4

223.469

R1

227.550

R2

226.037

AR5

215.120

R5

217.372

AR6

207.286

R6

210.440

644280N

644300N

644320N

644340N

644360N

644380N

644400N

644420N

644440N

644460N

229.28

229.21

226.96

225.75

225.18

224.19

225.27

223.25

221.74

219.82

217.90

215.86

215.19
215.06

214.86215.85

214.77

214.55

214.15

212.82
213.49

211.10
211.77

211.69

210.96

210.40

210.38

210.55

210.50

210.69

211.41 211.48

211.83

211.50

212.77

212.04

211.44

210.92

212.51

213.18

213.65

214.67

215.52

215.15
215.12

214.98

214.82

213.53

212.01

213.14

215.54

216.95

216.95

216.88
217.14

218.98

219.48

219.57219.24

219.13
218.79

218.46

220.64

221.43

221.51

220.47 220.87

221.48

221.04

223.17

224.27

223.77

226.36

228.05

229.01

226.60

226.64

226.29

225.78

+222.0

223.01

222.05

221.26

221.41

221.57

221.99

222.15

222.53

222.78

223.03

222.90

223.91

224.13

223.73

224.74

225.16

226.89

226.29

220.18

221.15

211.30

211.14

211.49
211.53

211.36

225.64

225.31

226.84

228.04

228.91

230.63

229.17

227.92

228.74

228.66

230.53

230.18

205.85

222.33

222.46

222.86

222.97

216.94

217.78

218.07

225.29

225.35

211.67

212.12

213.57

215.39

218.11

229.34

222.92

223.06

223.12

223.96

223.96

223.88

224.87 224.96

225.02

225.85225.85225.86

226.89

226.93

226.92

227.89

227.92227.95

228.82

228.80

228.77
229.27229.36

226.05

226.23

229.07229.98

225.94

229.24

227.49

228.61

228.15

226.86
228.27

229.36

230.01

230.62

225.54

224.98

227.31224.18

22
4.

08

223.54

225.06 227.95

228.91

227.04

225.71

226.27
225.37

225.85 226.69

226.19225.58

222.81

223.15
223.69

224.09224.22
224.07

223.89

224.94

225.01

225.87225.89

226.92

222.85

22
2.

84
22

2.
39

224.93

224.85

226.13

225.76

223.29

223.18224.28

223.84
223.09

224.83

215.11

215.21

215.11

215.09

216.13

216.18216.23

216.36

217.20

217.21

217.17

218.22
218.34

218.27

218.27

218.16

219.22
219.23

219.25

219.25
219.30

220.18

220.22220.19

220.13

221.17

221.24

221.26

222.09222.06222.08

222.55

222.66
222.65222.71

221.25

221.38

220.88

220.89
221.02

221.46

220.81

219.32

219.74

220.84

221.24

219.94

221.16

220.39

220.56
221.10

220.46

221.37

22
1.

38

221.80

222.32

221.68
222.26

223.17

222.28

221.99

223.58

220.86

221.51

221.88

222.31

223.16

223.58

222.54

221.93

221.18

220.22

224.57

224.56

223.91

222.99

222.26

221.89

222.78

222.40

226.37

225.25

22
5.

10

225.83

225.75

224.80

224.72
224.97

226.77

214.03

213.98

214.10

214.03

213.61

213.78

213.22

213.28

213.22

212.25212.32

212.35

218.41

217.19

216.63

215.87

21
5.

59

215.45

214.79

214.55

213.98

215.20

216.27218.75

217.12
217.10

215.98

214.33

215.53

216.26

218.56

219.06

220.15

220.13

216.75

216.05

219.61

220.82

218.71

218.98

219.05

218.01

216.95

217.33

219.87

219.49

218.70

218.40

217.62

217.00

216.73

214.09

207.28

20
7.

32207.33

208.31208.97 208.45

208.46

208.54

209.69209.72209.74

209.76

210.89
211.05

211.18

21
2.

06212.25212.35

212.74

212.96

21
2.

35

213.12 213.66

213.18
213.73213.70 213.75

211.00

211.01 211.02211.05

21
3.

52

213.06

213.00

211.76

211.64

210.00

212.44

213.47

214.53

215.05

215.86

214.53

218.40

217.46

206.52

209.99

208.72

20
8.

72

209.68

205.72

20
6.

05

208.59

20
9.

80

210.73

209.42

207.65

207.36

207.17
207.22

206.96
206.86

206.71

206.52

206.41

206.34

206.22
206.18

206.17

206.28

206.33

206.38

206.22

206.57

206.67

206.96

207.03

207.11
207.49

208.34

208.27

207.76

207.51

207.59

207.31

WOODED AREA

ST
ON

E 
W

AL
L

POST & WIRE FENCE

STONE W
ALL

OPEN FIELD

OPEN FIELD

ST
O

N
E 

W
AL

L

POST & WIRE FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

GRASS FIELD

TIMBER FENCE

VEGETATION

POST & WIRE FENCE

TIMBER FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

TO
P O

F BAN
K

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

ST
R

EA
M

GRASS

TO
P 

O
F 

BA
N

K

E A R L S T O
 N       R O

 A D

STREAM

STR
EAM

STR
EAM

PO
ST & W

IR
E FEN

C
E

TIMBER FENCE

CULVERT

GARAGE

1408

2401

PO
ST & W

IRE FENCE

POST & W
IRE FENCE

TOP OF BANK

BO
TTO

M
 O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TOP OF BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK
TO

P O
F BAN

K

TOP OF BANK

E A R
 L S T O

 N
     R

 O
 A D

TIM
BER

 FEN
C

E

STONE WALL

229.0

229.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

226.0

226.0

226.0

225.0

22
5.0

225.0

224.0

22
4.0

224.0

230.0

223.0

223.0

223.0

222.0

222.0

221.0

22
1.0220.0

22
0.

0219.0

219.0

219.0

218.0

21
8.

0

218.0

217.0

21
7.

0

216.0

216.0

215.0

21
5.0

214.0

21
4.0

213.0

21
3.

0

212.0

21
2.

0

211.0

21
1.

0

21
0.

0

20
9.

0

20
8.

0 20
7.

0

206.0

Land Owned By Applicant

Plot 1

Plot 2

Plot 3

Plot 4 +222.0

New Road

Existing Footpath

Block Plan

A  09.10.20
C 19.10.20
D 05.11.20
E 16.12.20
F 21.12.20

P
age 339



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1:500

Drawn by Date
#CAD Technician Full Name

Checked by Date
#Contact Full Name

Drawing Status

Drawing Name

Drawing Scale

Project Name
Proposed Housing

Cruzion
Stow

Client Name

Bruce Weir

Layout ID  Status  Revision

1279_Scheme.3_01 

231 Galashiels Road
Stow
Galashiels TD1 2RE
T :01578730510
E :info@hhunter.co.uk
www.hhunter.co.uk

date revision

A2

0 10m 20m 30m 40mN

42
M

19
M

Fairview

Crunzion
Cottage

60

62

66

70

80

88

81

to 79

61

2

Haypark Wood Townhead Bridge

1136

MH

MH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

FH

TP

TP

TP

MKR

MKR

RS

RS

G

IL

P

P

AR4

223.469

R1

227.550

R2

226.037

AR5

215.120

R5

217.372

AR6

207.286

R6

210.440

644280N

644300N

644320N

644340N

644360N

644380N

644400N

644420N

644440N

644460N

229.28

229.21

226.96

225.75

225.18

224.19

225.27

223.25

221.74

219.82

217.90

215.86

215.19
215.06

214.86215.85

214.77

214.55

214.15

212.82
213.49

211.10
211.77

211.69

210.96

210.40

210.38

210.55

210.50

210.69

211.41 211.48

211.83

211.50

212.77

212.04

211.44

210.92

212.51

213.18

213.65

214.67

215.52

215.15
215.12

214.98

214.82

213.53

212.01

213.14

215.54

216.95

216.95

216.88
217.14

218.98

219.48

219.57219.24

219.13
218.79

218.46

220.64

221.43

221.51

220.47 220.87

221.48

221.04

223.17

224.27

223.77

226.36

228.05

229.01

226.60

226.64

226.29

225.78

+222.0

223.01

222.05

221.26

221.41

221.57

221.99

222.15

222.53

222.78

223.03

222.90

223.91

224.13

223.73

224.74

225.16

226.89

226.29

220.18

221.15

211.30

211.14

211.49
211.53

211.36

225.64

225.31

226.84

228.04

228.91

230.63

229.17

227.92

228.74

228.66

230.53

230.18

205.85

222.33

222.46

222.86

222.97

216.94

217.78

218.07

225.29

225.35

211.67

212.12

213.57

215.39

218.11

229.34

222.92

223.06

223.12

223.96

223.96

223.88

224.87 224.96

225.02

225.85225.85225.86

226.89

226.93

226.92

227.89

227.92227.95

228.82

228.80

228.77
229.27229.36

226.05

226.23

229.07229.98

225.94

229.24

227.49

228.61

228.15

226.86
228.27

229.36

230.01

230.62

225.54

224.98

227.31224.18

22
4.

08

223.54

225.06 227.95

228.91

227.04

225.71

226.27
225.37

225.85 226.69

226.19225.58

222.81

223.15
223.69

224.09224.22
224.07

223.89

224.94

225.01

225.87225.89

226.92

222.85

22
2.

84
22

2.
39

224.93

224.85

226.13

225.76

223.29

223.18224.28

223.84
223.09

224.83

215.11

215.21

215.11

215.09

216.13

216.18216.23

216.36

217.20

217.21

217.17

218.22
218.34

218.27

218.27

218.16

219.22
219.23

219.25

219.25
219.30

220.18

220.22220.19

220.13

221.17

221.24

221.26

222.09222.06222.08

222.55

222.66
222.65222.71

221.25

221.38

220.88

220.89
221.02

221.46

220.81

219.32

219.74

220.84

221.24

219.94

221.16

220.39

220.56
221.10

220.46

221.37

22
1.

38

221.80

222.32

221.68
222.26

223.17

222.28

221.99

223.58

220.86

221.51

221.88

222.31

223.16

223.58

222.54

221.93

221.18

220.22

224.57

224.56

223.91

222.99

222.26

221.89

222.78

222.40

226.37

225.25

22
5.

10

225.83

225.75

224.80

224.72
224.97

226.77

214.03

213.98

214.10

214.03

213.61

213.78

213.22

213.28

213.22

212.25212.32

212.35

218.41

217.19

216.63

215.87

21
5.

59

215.45

214.79

214.55

213.98

215.20

216.27218.75

217.12
217.10

215.98

214.33

215.53

216.26

218.56

219.06

220.15

220.13

216.75

216.05

219.61

220.82

218.71

218.98

219.05

218.01

216.95

217.33

219.87

219.49

218.70

218.40

217.62

217.00

216.73

214.09

207.28

20
7.

32207.33

208.31208.97 208.45

208.46

208.54

209.69209.72209.74

209.76

210.89
211.05

211.18

21
2.

06212.25212.35

212.74

212.96

21
2.

35

213.12 213.66

213.18
213.73213.70 213.75

211.00

211.01 211.02211.05

21
3.

52

213.06

213.00

211.76

211.64

210.00

212.44

213.47

214.53

215.05

215.86

214.53

218.40

217.46

206.52

209.99

208.72

20
8.

72

209.68

205.72

20
6.

05

208.59

20
9.

80

210.73

209.42

207.65

207.36

207.17
207.22

206.96
206.86

206.71

206.52

206.41

206.34

206.22
206.18

206.17

206.28

206.33

206.38

206.22

206.57

206.67

206.96

207.03

207.11
207.49

208.34

208.27

207.76

207.51

207.59

207.31

WOODED AREA

ST
ON

E 
W

AL
L

POST & WIRE FENCE

STONE W
ALL

OPEN FIELD

OPEN FIELD

ST
O

N
E 

W
AL

L

POST & WIRE FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

GRASS FIELD

TIMBER FENCE

VEGETATION

POST & WIRE FENCE

TIMBER FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

TO
P O

F BAN
K

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

ST
R

EA
M

GRASS

TO
P 

O
F 

BA
N

K

E A R L S T O
 N       R O

 A D

STREAM

STR
EAM

STR
EAM

PO
ST & W

IR
E FEN

C
E

TIMBER FENCE

CULVERT

GARAGE

1408

2401

PO
ST & W

IRE FENCE

POST & W
IRE FENCE

TOP OF BANK

BO
TTO

M
 O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TOP OF BANK

TO
P O

F BAN
K

TO
P O

F BANK
TO

P O
F BAN

K

TOP OF BANK

E A R
 L S T O

 N
     R

 O
 A D

TIM
BER

 FEN
C

E

STONE WALL

229.0

229.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

228.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

227.0

226.0

226.0

226.0

225.0

22
5.0

225.0

224.0

22
4.0

224.0

230.0

223.0

223.0

223.0

222.0

222.0

221.0

22
1.0220.0

22
0.

0219.0

219.0

219.0

218.0

21
8.

0

218.0

217.0

21
7.

0

216.0

216.0

215.0

21
5.0

214.0

21
4.0

213.0

21
3.

0

212.0

21
2.

0

211.0

21
1.

0

21
0.

0

20
9.

0

20
8.

0 20
7.

0

206.0

Land Owned By Applicant

Plot 1

Plot 2

Plot 3

Plot 4

+222.0

New Road

Existing Footpath

Block Plan

A  09.10.20
C 19.10.20
D 05.11.20
E 16.12.20
F 21.12.20

P
age 341



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Housing Opportunity  

Overview  

The scale of housing required for the Scottish Borders area is set out within SESPlan and 
to be updated shortly once SESPlan2 has been formerly adopted.  

The Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

Ferguson Planning have reviewed the Local Development Plan 2 (LDP) Main Issues Report 
(MIR) and more recently the Proposed Plan. In particular, the ‘Growing our Economy’ and 
‘Planning for Housing’ Chapters as they both relate to the potential allocation of new housing 
lands for the LDP 2. 

Current Housing Overview 

There is a requirement for the LDP 2 Proposed Plan to use the most recent housing dataset 
that emanates from the SESPlan 2 Examination/Adoption.  

However, as part of this consultation process, while not always directly comparable, it is 
important to make some observations on housing requirements, supply and whether, at 
the current time, there is agreement that an effective 5 year land supply exists within the 
Scottish Borders (as required by SPP and SESplan policy guidance).  

There is limited value going back over data that is considered out of date or superseded. 
However, it is worth touching upon housing supply and completions to understand 
whether there is or could be an effective five year housing land supply and whether 
additional housing is required in the future to ensure any shortfalls are addressed. 

The current LDP touches upon the related HNDA and a yearly delivery target of 492 homes 
per annum. The SESplan Supplementary Guidance (SSG) target is almost twice that. 

Table 1 ‘Housing Land Requirement’ outlines the Scottish Borders Supplementary Guidance 
(SG) and which was based on the SESplan Supplementary Guidance (SSG). 

  

Page 343



 

 

Table 1. Scottish Borders Housing Land Requirement 

Housing 

Requirement 

2009-

2025 

2009-2019 9,650 

2019-2024 3,280 

2025 492 

TOTAL 13,422 

 

The above requirement seeks the delivery of approximately 839 homes per annum. 
Whether one takes the HNDA or SSG it is critical to appraise whether that annual target 
and related effective 5 year land supply is being delivered. 

It is noted by the Council within paragraph 5.1 of the LDP2 MIR that “a site is only 
considered to be effective where it can be demonstrated that within 5 years it will be free 
of constraints and can be developed for housing”. 

With that in mind and the aforementioned yearly requirements mentioned previously one 
requires to look back and understand if that has been achieved and if not what actions 
are going to be taken to rectify the shortfall. 

This is clearly outlined by the Reporter in the recent SESplan2 examination. The relevant 
extracts are outlined below: 

3. Replace the final sentence of paragraph 5.11 with the following: “They will maintain a 

five year effective housing land supply at all times, within each Council area, measured 

against the five year housing supply targets. These are calculated by multiplying the 

annual average housing supply targets (Table 5.1) by five, and fully accounting for any 

deficit or surplus in completions against the housing supply target in previous years. Any 

deficits arising must be added to the 5-year all-tenure housing supply target to ensure that the 

whole target is achieved by the end of the plan period."  

4. Replace the first sentence of paragraph 5.12 with the following: "Where a shortfall in 
the five year effective land supply is identified, sites for greenfield housing development 
proposals may be allocated in Local Development Plans or granted planning permission to 
maintain a five years effective housing land supply, subject to the following criteria:” 

 

Page 344



 

 

In simplistic terms, when one acknowledges the annual housing requirement and then 
reviews, for example, Appendix 2 - Table 9 and 10 of the adopted LDP it gives rise to 
significant concern regarding an effective five year land supply.  

It shows that over the five years between 2010 and 2014/15 there was an average annual 
completion trend rate of some 367 dwellings per annum.  

Further completion trends are outlined within the MIR (Table 4) and Scottish Borders 
Housing Audit 2018 (Table 8) for the years 2012/13 to 2016/17 showing an annual 
(average) housing delivery of only 298 dwellings. This indicates a fairly significant drop in 
housing delivery and cause for concern. 

It would therefore suggest that, in annual terms, housing delivery is running at c. 65% 
below the required target and gives rise to significant questions as to how the current 
land supply can indeed be considered “effective” now or into the future. This is further 
confirmed with the fact that historic trends show that, on average, 43% of completions 
are from windfall sites. 

This leads to two general conclusions: 

 

• There is considered not to be a five year effective land supply 

• There is a “root and branches” review required of the sites deemed to be 
“effective” prior to LDP2 adoption. It would appear from a review of available 
documentation that the sites allocated within the current LDP are not entirely 
“effective” and will not meet the five year supply targets in full as sought by SPP 
and SESplan. 

 

While this may not mean the removal of some sites it does mean that they should be 
moved into a non-effective/constrained or long term development opportunity. 

Undertaking the five year effective land supply study will also require a “reality check” 
and full understanding of the Scottish Borders Housing Market. This, in our opinion, 
should lead to the allocation of further deliverable sites in areas where people wish to 
live. In particular towns such as Stow who have direct access to the new Waverley line. 

These are the locations that housebuilders want to develop in and are based on consumer 
demand. Recent trends show that the majority of housebuilding in the Scottish Borders 
has been by Affordable Housing providers. While this is commended, going forward, it is 
vital that a significant uplift in private sector housing is delivered across the Scottish 
Borders.  

Not least to provide an appropriate tenure mix but also in that the private sector housing 
will assist in cross funding affordable housing in that particular area. Housebuilder interest 
(led by the market) is often in the more affluent towns where demand far outstrips supply 
both for mainstream and affordable housing. It is this issue that the LDP2 must address 
and pro-actively plan for.  

Page 345



 

 

Future Housing Overview 

Much of the LDP2 MIR and Proposed Plan rightly focuses on planning for the future of 
housing delivery in the Scottish Borders. It details the future housing supply targets within 
it and the appended technical note for the years 2021/22 to 2030/31 and, while slightly 
different years, relates to the SSG land requirements detailed within the Housing 
Supplementary Guidance (SG). 

However, it is ill-advised to purely focus on those second ten year supply targets (ie. 
2021/22 to 2030/32) as being all that LDP2 requires to concern itself with. There is a 
requirement to understand whether the first five year supply targets that form part of the   
current LDP are in fact being delivered in full as sought by SPP and SESplan. If not and, as 
previously outlined in the Reporter’s conclusions to the SESplan2, that shortfall must be 
carried forward and added to any future requirement.  

One requires greater clarity on how any sites considered “potentially effective” and “Post 
Year 7” have been arrived at and beyond that how the 1,827 units on constrained sites 
will be addressed. There is passing comment that the sites can be delivered within the 
plan period of LDP2. But that largely fails to address if or how the five year effective land 
supply, as it currently stands, will hit the target levels set? And if they are not what 
additional sites are being provided to ensure it is met.  

Housing delivery analysis should be undertaken annually and local councils stepping in 
where shortfalls have been identified. We are now into 2020 and in the fifth year of the 
current LDP. One would therefore expect to see all the sites identified to be completed 
by now. 

While not exhaustive Table 2 on the following page outlines housing sites identified in the 
LDP but which we consider likely to be constrained in whole or part. Thus, the need to 
consider additional opportunities that are likely to be more deliverable within a shorter 
time frame. 

 

 

 

  

Page 346



 

 

Table 2: Potential LDP (Adopted) Constrained / Non Effective Sites 

Market Area Reference Unit 

No. 

Constraint 

Supplementary 

Guidance (SG) 

sites 

     

Berwickshire 

HMA 
SG-ACOLD011-

Coldstream 

100 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Low Market Demand 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Lower Dev. Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Central HMA SG-AKELSO26-

Kelso 

100 
• 2020 Not Started 

• Phase 1 requires to be built out first  

• Access/landlocked in short term 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  SG-

RKELSO002-

Kelso 

50 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission  

• Significant Access/Parking Constraints 

• Listed Building / Capacity Constraints 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  SG-ASELK033-

Selkirk 

30 
• 2020 Not Started 

• Potential Flooding Constraints 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  SG-MSELK002-

Selkirk 

75 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Potential Flooding Constraints 

• Potential Contamination from Mill 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  SG-ATWEE002-

Tweedbank 

300 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Major Transport & Utility Infrastructure Required 

• Potential Flooding Constraints 

• Environmental/Landscape Constraints 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Western HMA SG-MPEEB006-

Peebles 

30 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Phase 1 requires to be built out first  

• Access/landlocked in short term 

• Potential Flooding Constraints 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  SG-MPEEB007-

Peebles  

70 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission / ‘Live’ Appeal in 

progress 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Page 347



 

 

       

  SG – Sub 

Total: 

755  

    

  

LDP 

(Adopted) 

Sites 

     

Central HMA EA200-Ashkirk 20 
• 2020 Not Started 

• Marketed. No Purchaser 

• Low Market Demand 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  MCHIR001-

Chirnside 
60 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Low Market Demand 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Lower Dev. Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  EC2-

Clovenfords 
6 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Land in Administration / Auction 

• Flooding 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  EC6-

Clovenfords 
60 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  AEARL011-

Earlston 
120 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Phase 1 requires to be built out first  

• Access/landlocked in short term 

• Landscaping / Flooding 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

 EGL17B/41/L32

B/GL200 - 

Galashiels 

270 
• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Land in Administration / Auction 

• Land locked (in part) 

• Low Market Demand 

• Access / Trunk Road 

• Topography / Engineering 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  AGATT007-

Gattonside 
40 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Planning Permission (no action) 

• Sale Value Expectations 

Page 348



 

 

• Flooding 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  EL16B-

Lilleasleaf 
7 

• 2020Not Started 

• Bought by Community Trust 

• Community Garden 

• No houses to be developed on land 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  EM32B-Melrose 230 
• Lower Density than specified 

• Topography / Access (in part) 

  ANEWT005-

NSB 
900 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Land locked (in part) 

• Low Market Demand 

• Access / Infrastructure 

• Landscape 

• Topography / Engineering 

• School Provision 

• Will not be completed by LDP 2021 

  ASELK021-

Selkirk 
20 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Potential Flooding Constraints 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Eastern HMA AAYT0003-

Ayton 
20 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Low Market Demand 

• Phase 1 requires to be built out first  

• Access/landlocked in short term 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  Aeyem006-7-

Eyemouth 
132 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Low Market Demand 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Lower Dev. Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

 BEY2B-

Eyemouth 
244 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Low Market Demand 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Lower Dev. Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  MREST001-

Reston 
100 

• 2020 Not Started 

• No Planning Permission 

• Slow/Long  Build Out Rate 

• Access/Infrastructure 

• Contamination 

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Northern 

HMA 
TE6B-Eddleston 30 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Low Market Demand 

• Flooding 

Page 349



 

 

• Topography/Landscape  

• Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

  AEDDL002-

Eddleston 
35 

• 2020 Not Started 

• Low Market Demand 

• Access 

• Topography/Landscape  

• Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

 ASTOW027 - 

Stow 

12 
• 2020 Not Started 

• Visual and transport/access constraints 

 MSTOW001 11 
• 2020 Not Started 

• Flooding Constraints 

• Unit Density questionable 

 ASTOW022 10 
• 2020 Not started 

• Physical/access constraints 

• Unit Density questionable  

Western HMA AWALK005-

Walkerburn 
100 

• 2019 Not Started 

• Low Market Demand 

• Access 

• Topography/Landscape  

• Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

Outside HMA BC04B-

Cockburnspath 
45 

• 2019 Not Started 

• Low Market Demand 

• Access 

• Density  

• Unlikely to be started / completed by LDP 2021 

       

  LDP- Sub 

Total  

2,472  

       

  TOTAL 

(SG+LDP) 

3,227  

    

 

As we have indicatively shown there are land allocations totalling a significant 3,227 
homes, that we would question in terms of being fully deliverable as part of any five year 
effective land supply or during the lifespan of the current LDP. Even if one were to take 
the approach that 50% of the above sites were delivered be it within the 5-10 year cycle 
that still results in c.1,614 homes not meeting the LDP’s objective on housing delivery.  

Page 350



 

 

In short there are arguably a further 1,500 to 3,000 new allocations required in order to 
meet set targets given the constraints of existing allocated sites.  

To be clear we are not advocating in whole or part that the sites be removed but more an 
acknowledgment that there are more long-term opportunities that are unlikely to go 
towards providing an effective five-year land supply. Thus, there is a need to provide sites 
that can be delivered within a 5 year period. 

 

Proposed Allocations: Deliverability Concerns 

Moving forward to the LDP2 and the approach in identifying new land for housing in the 
forthcoming LDP2. We again have some reservations regarding the approach taken in 
allocating certain sites and the lack of allocations within demand housing market areas 
and towns. 

As noted previously we consider further review is required and in taking on board the 
outcome of SESplan2. In our opinion there needs to be an increase to compensate for the 
identified shortfall.  

If that requires altering the total allocation within the Housing Market Areas then we 
consider that should be undertaken. Over identifying land in locations where there is not 
significant housing demand is counterproductive and only going to lead to housing targets 
not being met and pent up demand in areas where developers and people wish to live. 

Within Table 3 below we note sites that again we would request be reviewed in greater 
detail in relation to their general location acceptability and overall deliverability in the 
short to medium term. Many of which are identified in areas where large allocations are 
yet to come forward and thus adding further allocations in these areas requires greater 
consideration. 

Table 3: MIR Proposed / Alternative -  Site Constraints 

Market Area Reference Unit 

No. 

Constraint 

Supplementary 

Guidance (MIR) Sites 

     

Eastern / Berwickshire 

HMA 
MDUNS005-Duns 100 

• Landlocked/Access 

• Flooding 

• Existing Undeveloped Allocations  

  ACOLD014-

Coldstream 

100 
• Landlocked/Access 

• Flooding 

• Existing Undeveloped Allocations 

Western / Tweeddale 

HMA 
MESHI001-

Eshiels 

200 
• No settlement 

• Access 

• Infrastructure /sewerage 

Page 351



 

 

• Landscape / Ecology  Impact 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  MESHIE002-

Eshiels 

50 
• No settlement 

• Access 

• Infrastructure /sewerage 

• Landscape / Ecology  Impact 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  SCARD002-

Cardrona 

TBC 
• No settlement 

• Access 

• Infrastructure /sewerage 

• Landscape / Ecology  Impact 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  SPEEB008-

Peebles 

TBC 
• Landlocked / Access 

• Transport Impact 

• Landscape Impact 

• Infrastructure 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  APEEB056-

Peebles 

150 
• Transport Impact 

• Landscape Impact 

• Infrastructure 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  AEDDL008-

Eddleston 

40 
• Existing Undeveloped Allocations 

• Transport Impact 

• Landscape Impact 

• Infrastructure 

• Low Market Demand 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  AEDDL009-

Eddleston 

35 
• Existing Undeveloped Allocations 

• Transport Impact 

• Landscape Impact 

• Infrastructure 

• Low Market Demand 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  SEDDL001-

Eddleston 

TBC 
• Existing Undeveloped Allocations 

• Transport Impact 

• Landscape Impact 

• Infrastructure 

• Low Market Demand 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

  SPEEB009-

Peebles 

TBC 
• Transport Impact 

• Landscape/Environmental Impact 

• Flooding 

• Infrastructure 

• Unlikely to be completed by LDP2 

       

  TOTAL 675+  

Page 352



 

 

 

 

Page 353



STOW

Site Ref. /

Site Name Est. Eff. 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Constrained

Site 

Capacity Tot. 18/19 LDP

Post 5 

yr 
Site Area 

(ha)

Completion
*Post 

7 yr

Units Not 

To Be 

Developed
**

WCA

Year 

Added 

(2003+)

ESO22

(Part of ASTOW022 - 
Burnside Way)

10 10 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 02.06 18 8 0 0

UnknownLandowner:

0 Pre 2003

Developer: Unknown

ESO31

(MSTOW001 - Royal Hotel)

11 5 0 0 0 0 5 6 0 00.24 11 0 0 0

Braidwood EstatesLandowner:

0 2005

Developer: Unknown

ESO37

Land North Of 28
Lauder Road

6 4 0 0 0 2 2 2 0 00.78 6 0 0 0

Mr Hani RieppelLandowner:

0 2014

Developer: Unknown

ESO38

(ASTOW027 - Stagehall II)

12 6 0 0 0 3 3 3 3 01.22 12 0 0 0

UnknownLandowner:

0 2016

Developer: Unknown

25 March 2020

Tel  01835 826511 

email:localplan@scotborders.gov.uk

SBC Plans and Research Section
SBC EHLS 18/19, v.2

These sites are now fully complete and therefore do not appear as sites in the 18/19 Effective Housing Land Supply

Audit period: 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2019

WCA: Waverley Contribution Area

All SBC small sites effective totals are calculated at a set 80% of the established, all figures are rounded using the MS Access Round function

Appendix 1

† 

**

‡ 

 *  LDP: Local Development Plan

P
age 354



STOW

Site Ref. /

Site Name Est. Eff. 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 Constrained

Site 

Capacity Tot. 18/19 LDP

Post 5 

yr 
Site Area 

(ha)

Completion
*Post 

7 yr

Units Not 

To Be 

Developed
**

WCA

Year 

Added 

(2003+)

Large Sites 

Sub Total
39 25 0 0 10 15 11 3 0

STOW

4.30

Total 4.86

47 8 0

53 10 2 43 0 0 0 10 15 11 3 028

0

Mainstream

Affordable 0

47

0

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

10

0

15

0

11

0

325

00

39

Small Sites 

Sub Total

Completed 

Sites 18/19 

Sub Total

# Sites

4

0

0

†

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6 2 4 300.56 ‡4

21

25 March 2020

Tel  01835 826511 

email:localplan@scotborders.gov.uk

SBC Plans and Research Section
SBC EHLS 18/19, v.2

These sites are now fully complete and therefore do not appear as sites in the 18/19 Effective Housing Land Supply

Audit period: 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2019

WCA: Waverley Contribution Area

All SBC small sites effective totals are calculated at a set 80% of the established, all figures are rounded using the MS Access Round function

Appendix 1

† 

**

‡ 

 *  LDP: Local Development Plan

P
age 355



ESO38
(ASTOW027 - Stagehall II)

ESO37
Land North Of 28

Lauder Road

ESO31
(MSTOW001 - Royal Hotel)

ESO22
(Part of ASTOW022 - Burnside Way)

Extant Large Sites 

1:8,000±
Effective Land Supply 2019

© Crown copyright and database right 2020. All rights reserved.
Ordnance Survey Licence number 100023423. A4

Only large sites are displayed, for 
information on small sites see 
Appendix 3 - Small Sites

Stow

P
age 356



 508  |  LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  |  SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

SETTLEMENT PROFILE 
STOW        
             

This profile should be read in conjunction with the relevant settlement map.   

DESCRIPTION
Stow is located almost 8 miles north from Galashiels on the A7. The population of Stow according to the 
2001 Census is 596. It is located outwith the Strategic Development Areas as defined in the Strategic 
Development Plan and sits in the Northern Housing Market Area.

PLACE MAKING CONSIDERATIONS
The village is located in the pastoral upland valley of the Gala Water. Its character is influenced by the 
nearby divided moorland of the Moorfoot Plateau and the plateau grassland of the Lauder Common. 
It sits along the river valley of the Gala Water and is framed between Stagehall Hill to the west and 
Torsonce Hill, Sell Moor and Craigend Hill in the east. The Gala Water, which meanders along the valley 
floor within the settlement, has a large area of flood plain to both eastern and western banks. This flood 
plain is a dominant feature of the village. The village itself lies predominately on the eastern side of the 
river.

The Conservation Area for Stow takes in much of the centre of the original settlement and includes the 
Subscription Bridge and the Church of St Mary of Wedale. The settlement is centred round the remains 
of the Old Parish Church and the remains of the Bishop of St Andrew’s manor house that is also known 
as the ‘palace’; and in addition to those properties also retains many of the historic properties that are 
only found in such a distinctive place.

The settlement of Stow is built-up of a range of different styles and types of properties. These range 
from the small, single storey cottage type, modern detached two storey to the grand baronial Town Hall. 
At the centre of Stow is the Pennywhiggam Burn which flows through the settlement (east/west) and is 
bounded by ash trees and provides a green space. Traditional building materials within the settlement 
vary from whin and sandstone, slate and harl; and architectural elements like rybats, margins and 
transom lights are also notable throughout Stow.

The plan provides one housing allocation to the north of the village along Craigend Road, and another to 
the south at Stagehall II.  A mixed use site is also provided within the centre of the village on the former 
Royal Hotel site. The plan also provides a new site for a railway station.

In addition, the Plan identifies the Stow Playing Field as a key greenspace as it provides the Stow 
community with many important recreation opportunities.

Once the allocated sites are fully developed the preferred area for future expansion beyond the period 
of this Local Development Plan will be an area north east of Stow at Craigend and two areas at Lugate, 

Page 357



INTRODUCTION | CHALLENGES | VISION, AIMS AND SPATIAL STRATEGY
POLICIES | APPENDICES | SETTLEMENTS

 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  |  SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL  |  509

south west of Stow. These sites are considered to have potential for longer term mixed use development. 
The Craigend site was identified as an opportunity for development and the Lugate sites were identified as an 
opportunity for a new settlement in the Development and Landscape Capacity Study. The proposed Railway 
Station will provide good accessibility by public transport to these potential longer term development areas. 
The Craigend site would require a new or improved access to the A7 and the Lugate sites would require a 
new access onto the A7. Moreover longer term employment land to meet general business needs would 
be beneficial in these areas. These areas will be subject to further assessment as part of the next Local 
Development Plan Review and will require a Masterplan to ensure a coherent and holistic approach. 

During the lifetime of the Local Development Plan should a further site for a car park associated with the 
railway station be required; the Council will support a new car park associated with the railway station at an 
appropriate location outwith the Development Boundary.

INFRASTRUCTURE CONSIDERATIONS
Affordable Housing will require to be provided in association with proposed housing sites under the 
provisions of Policy HD1 and the Supplementary Guidance/Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable 
Housing.

In relation to education provision there is currently no requirement for development contributions.

This settlement is identified within the Council’s Flood Contingency Plan as being at risk of flooding. 
Any development proposals should therefore be subject to early consultation with the Council’s Flood 
and Coastal Management Officer, and SEPA, having regard to the Indicative River and Coastal Flood 
Map (Scotland). A flood risk assessment may be required and may influence the scale and layout of any 
development at a particular location.

Stow falls within an area identified for a contribution to the Waverley Railway Project (see Policy IS3).

With regards to Waste Water Treatment Works, Stow has limited capacity. Contributions may be required 
where upgrades are necessary. In respect of the local water network, developers may be required to 
contribute towards upgrading to enable development.

Further information is available from Supplementary Guidance/Supplementary Planning Guidance on 
Developer Contributions and Planning/Development Briefs where applicable.

DEVELOPMENT AND SAFEGUARDING PROPOSALS

HOUSING

SITE REFERENCE SITE NAME SITE SIZE (HA) INDICATIVE SITE 
CAPACITY

ASTOW022 Craigend Road 1.0 10

Site Requirements

•  Vehicular access from Craigend Road. Traffic issues to be assessed and mitigated include pinch points 
in the road, on street parking, carriageway width and footway provision

• Assessment and mitigation of flood risk from overland flow
• Assessment and mitigation of moderate biodiversity interest, including the nearby Gala Water, part of 

the Tweed Special Area of Conservation. The burn east of the site drains into this
• Structural planting/ landscaping, including trees, in the north of the site to contain it and create a new 

settlement boundary. Structural planting/ landscaping on the edges of the site to frame development
• Long term maintenance of landscaped areas needs to be addressed
• Utilise the south facing aspect of the site for energy efficiency
• The route of the core path on Craigend Road should be retained.

Page 358



 510  |  LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  |  SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

MIXED USE 

SITE REFERENCE SITE NAME SITE SIZE (HA) INDICATIVE SITE 
CAPACITY

MSTOW001 Royal Hotel 0.2 11

Site Requirements

•  Refer to approved planning brief and, additionally, a flood risk assessment will be required.

SITE REFERENCE SITE NAME SITE SIZE (HA)

GSSTOW001 Playing Field 2.5

KEY GREENSPACE

TRANSPORTATION 

SITE REFERENCE SITE NAME SITE SIZE (HA) INDICATIVE SITE 
CAPACITY

TSTOW001 North of Edinburgh Rd 
(Railway Station)

0.8 N/A

Site Requirements

•  Vehicular access to the site will be taken from the Station Road and will also serve the primary school
• The site will include a car park.

ASTOW027 Stagehall II 1.2 12

Site Requirements

•  Existing landscaping on site to be retained and enhanced.  The introduction of structure planting 
along the south and south eastern edges of the site will be required to provide a defensible settlement 
edge.  Buffer areas for new and existing landscaping will be required.  The long term maintenance of 
landscaped areas must be addressed

• Careful consideration should be given to the design of the overall site to take account of its position in 
the landscape and views into the site from the A7

• Surface water run off from the surrounding area will be required to be considered during the design 
stage and mitigation put in place

• Consideration to be given to the need for a flood risk assessment
• The stone boundary wall on site to be retained and incorporated into the overall design for the site
• Vehicular access to be taken from the adjacent housing development – Wedale View.  Alterations 

and traffic calming measures along Wedale View and to its junction with Station Road will also be 
required.  Parking arrangements will be required to be accommodated on site

• Provision of amenity access in the development for pedestrians and cyclists.  Links to the footpath 
network to be created and amenity maintained and enhanced.

Page 359



 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN  |  SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL  |  511Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



P
age 368



P
age 369



Page 370



Page 371



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 373



This page is intentionally left blank



Earlston Road, Stow
High-level Landscape & Visual Appraisal
December 2020

For Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir

P
age 375



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 1                                18th December 2020 

Contents 

1.0 Introduction and Overview ......................................................................................................... 3 

 Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 3 

 Objectives of the Appraisal ......................................................................................................... 3 

 Structure of the Landscape and Visual Appraisal ........................................................................ 3 

 Competence ............................................................................................................................... 3 

 The Indicative Proposed Development ....................................................................................... 3 

2.0 Baseline Conditions .................................................................................................................... 4 

 The Proposed Development Site ................................................................................................ 4 

 Landscape Setting ...................................................................................................................... 4 

3.0 Visibility Analysis ........................................................................................................................ 4 

 ZTV Findings .............................................................................................................................. 4 

4.0 Recommended Landscape Mitigation and Enhancement Measures ........................................... 5 

 Landscape Design Principles and Measures ................................................................................ 5 

5.0 Appraisal of Potential Landscape Effects .................................................................................... 5 

 Proposed Development Site and Wider Landscape Context ....................................................... 5 

6.0 Appraisal of Potential Visual Effects ........................................................................................... 5 

 Appraisal Viewpoint 01: Stow Cemetery ..................................................................................... 6 

 Appraisal Viewpoint 02: Earlston Road ....................................................................................... 6 

 Appraisal Viewpoint 03: Station Road at Wedale View ................................................................ 6 

7.0 Summary and Conclusions ......................................................................................................... 6 

8.0 References ................................................................................................................................. 7 

9.0 Figures ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Figures.   

01. Site Location Plan  

02.  Landscape Site Analysis 

03. SNH Landscape Character Types, Landscape Designations and Recreational Routes  

04. Bareground Zone of Theoretical Visibility with Viewpoint Locations 

05. Modified Zone of Theoretical Visibility with Viewpoint Locations 

06. Landscape Development Framework 

07. Appraisal Viewpoint 01: Stow Cemetery 

08. Appraisal Viewpoint 02: Earlston Road 

09. Appraisal Viewpoint 03: Station Road at Wedale View  

 

Appendices 

Appendix A. Legislation, Policy and Guidance  

 

 

  

P
age 376



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 2                                18th December 2020 

Version Control Sheet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Version 

Version B 

Date Issued 18th December 2020 

Prepared by: Ross White 

Approved by: Ross Wilkie 

P
age 377



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 3                                18th December 2020 

1.0 Introduction and Overview 

 Introduction 

Brindley Associates Ltd, Landscape Architects and Environmental Planners (Brindley) were appointed by Ferguson Planning 

on behalf of Bruce Weir (hereafter referred to as the Client) to prepare a High–Level Landscape & Visual Appraisal in support 

of a planning application for a residential development comprising 4 detached homes on an area of pastoral land to the 

south-eastern extents of Stow in the Scottish Borders.  Land within the site is currently under the jurisdiction of Scottish 

Borders Council (SBC).   

This appraisal has been prepared with reference to the Third Edition of the Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact 

Assessment (GLVIA3) (Landscape Institute in association with the Institute of Environmental Management and Assessment, 

2013) and takes the form of a desk-top review, supported by a site visit undertaken by qualified a Landscape Architect 

employed directly by Brindley Associates.  The site visit was used to confirm and develop the findings of the review, which 

has been reviewed by a Chartered Landscape Architect employed by Brindley.   

As there is no requirement for a formal Environmental Statement (ES) to support an application for planning permission, the 

following extract, taken from the GLVIA Statement of Clarification 4 (January 2013), gives guidance on the terminology to 

be used in non-ES Landscape and Visual Appraisals, such as this:   

“In carrying out appraisals the same principles and process as LVIA may be applied but, in doing so, it is not required to establish 

whether the effects arising are or are not significant given that the exercise is not being undertaken for EIA purposes.  The reason 

is that should a landscape professional apply LVIA principles and processes carrying out an appraisal and then go on to determine 

that certain effects would likely be significant, given the term ‘significant’ is enshrined in EIA regulations, such a judgement could 

trigger the requirement for a formal EIA.  The emphasis on likely ‘significant effects’ in formal LVIA stresses the need for an 

approach that is proportional to the scale of the project that is being assessed and the nature of its likely effects.  The same 

principle – focussing on a proportional approach – also applies to appraisals of landscape and visual impacts outside the formal 

requirements of EIA.”   

In line with current guidance contained in the GLVIA3, singular terms such as ‘significant’ and ‘not significant’ have not been 

used in this appraisal.  Brindley considers it useful however to set out the level of residual effect predicted.  In this appraisal, 

landscape effects are assessed to be either ‘potentially adverse’ or ‘potentially beneficial’.  The level of effect is assessed 

through a combination of two considerations – the sensitivity of the landscape/ townscape element or view and the 

magnitude of effect that would result from the proposed development.  This evaluation is carried out for each landscape 

receptor appraised in the report.  For visual effects, a comparison is made between the nature of existing views and potential 

changes to those views following the construction of the proposed development including implementation of any mitigating 

measures outlined within this appraisal. 

 

 Objectives of the Appraisal 

The key objectives of this appraisal are to: 

• Establish existing baseline conditions by: 

 Identifying and evaluating the existing landscape within the proposed development site and the wider landscape 

within the study area, including landscape character areas and designations; and 

 Identifying existing views, visual relationships and key visual receptors. 

• Identify potential effects by: 

 Undertaking a site visit during November 2020, to gain a full appreciation of local landscape features, 

characteristics, key views and visibility patterns; 

  Identifying the main sources of landscape and visual effects associated with the proposed development; and 

 Determining the likely effects on landscape and visual resources. 

• Identify suitable and locally appropriate landscape design measures to avoid or reduce potentially adverse visual 

effects.  These measures can include mitigation by design (embedded mitigation), and additional mitigation or 

enhancement measures, such as planting for ecological mitigation or screening of views. 

 Structure of the Landscape and Visual Appraisal 

The appraisal is structured as follows:  

• Section 2.0 Baseline Conditions; 

• Section 3.0 Recommended Landscape Mitigation and Enhancement Measures; 

• Section 4.0 Appraisal of Potential Landscape Effects; 

• Section 5.0 Appraisal of Potential Visual Effects; 

• Section 6.0 Summary and Conclusions; and 

• Section 7.0 References. 

The contents of this appraisal are supported by several Figures.  These are referenced throughout the text and included at 

the end. 

 Competence 

This appraisal has been prepared by Landscape Architects employed by Brindley Associates Ltd (Brindley) and has been 

reviewed by Ross Wilkie CMLI who has 19 years’ experience as a Chartered Landscape Architect. 

 The Indicative Proposed Development 

An indicative housing layout was prepared by Hunter Architecture (see Drawing 1279_pl_01 Rec D) to illustrate how the site 

could potentially accommodate the proposed homes without resulting in unacceptable levels of landscape and visual effects.   

The layout features four homes each within sizeable individual plots, served by one main entrance point to the east.  The 

aspirational layout developed by Hunter Architecture has taken cognisance of the existing site conditions, by providing: 

• Opportunities to retain the existing mixed woodland belts which bound the site, ensuring properties would not be built 

within falling distance of the trees; and 

P
age 378



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 4                                18th December 2020 

• Protection and retention of Crunzie Burn and associated bank where possible within the eastern boundary of the site. 

Key information pertaining to the appraisal of landscape and visual effects includes the location and heights of the proposed 

homes, proposed landscape design and mitigation measures, and the location of internal routes.  

2.0 Baseline Conditions 

 The Proposed Development Site 

Land within the proposed development site comprises an area within a  large pastoral field currently outwith the village’s 

Development Boundary (SBC, 2017).  Earlston Road forms the site’s eastern boundary, whilst the predominantly coniferous 

policy woodland of Sell Moor Wood forms visual containment of the site from the northeast.  Southwest of the site boundary 

is characterised by a mature deciduous woodland which marks the north-eastern extents of Torsonce Wood.   The western 

boundary presents an open view towards the southern extents of Stow, although views beyond are generally heavily filtered 

by mature garden boundary trees and shrubs.  To the north, the site is bounded by the garden boundary treatment of 

Crunzion Cottage, with the remainder enclosed by the rear gardens of homes along Earlston Road. 

Site boundary treatments tend to be timber post-and-wire fencing with short stretches of remnant dry-stone wall and 

coniferous woodland also providing boundary extents at times.  Within the eastern site boundary, between a timber post-

and-wire fence and Earlston Road, the Crunzie Burn, a tributary of the Gala Water which lies approximately 300m west of 

the site, courses north to south.  Aside from these areas of woodland and the Crunzie Burn,  there are no other notable 

features within the site.  

In terms of topography, the site occupies the southern banks of the valley within which Stow lies, and as such the site rises 

relatively sharply from north to south, from approximately 210m Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) to approximately 225m 

AOD.   

Visibility of the site from the surrounding area is illustrated by a series of Viewpoints taken from three separate locations 

within 1km of the site boundaries, and these are included as Figures at the end of this report.   

 Landscape Setting 

This appraisal examines land in the proximity of the site boundary, with a with a focus on those areas that have the potential 

to experience potentially adverse effects as a result of development on the site.  The study area is entirely located within the 

Scottish Borders council area, encompassing the settlement of Stow and the surrounding countryside, which provides a 

transition between rural and urban edges.   

South of the site, there is an area of concrete standing populated by working farm outbuildings including stables, accessed 

by a minor road leading from Earlston Road.  Beyond the minor road, land continues to rise and is characterised by swathes 

of pastoral land bounded by dry-stone walling.  

North of the site, the southern extents of Stow, which also forms the southern extents of Stow Conservation Area (CA) 

provides a residential backdrop which continues north in a broadly linear fashion along the A7, the nearest major route to 

the site.  The A7, approximately 270m west of the site at its nearest point, connects Edinburgh with Carlisle along 

approximately 150km of route. Stow CA comprises the majority of the original settlement and includes the Subscription 

Bridge and the Church of St Mary of Wedale.  Properties within the Stow CA range from single storey cottages to the baronial 

Town Hall.  A small number of Listed Buildings lie within the CA, mainly Category B including Stow Kirk.   

Earlston Road, which passes the eastern site boundary is a narrow, winding rural road which originates in Stow village centre, 

passing a mixture of arable and pastoral farmland often bounded by dry-stone walls.  

Aside from the built form of Stow and nearby infrastructure which serves the town, including the A7 and Borders Railway 

line – both to the west of the site, the surrounding area maintains a largely rural area similar in character to that of the site 

itself.   

Landscape designations are few across the wider landscape, and there are none within the 1km study area.  Core paths are 

also limited, although there are two within Stow; STFO/ 32/ 1 approximately 310m northwest and CLOV/ 42/ 1 approximately 

640m west.   A Permissive/ Customary Path (STFO/ cot/ 1) lies some 80m north of the site.  

The site lies within the landscape character type (LCT) 114: Pastoral Upland Valley as identified by Scottish Natural Heritage 

(SNH, 2019).  Key characteristics associated with the LCT include: 

• “Flat valley floor with smooth moderately sloping sides incised by narrow tributary valleys and enclosed by rolling dissected 

plateau uplands; 

• Land cover of permanent pastures on valley floor and sides with frequent woodlands, merging with unimproved grassland 

and heather on upper slopes; 

• Scattered farms and villages along the valley floor and lower sides typically built around road junctions and river crossings; 

and 

• A medium scale enclosed landscape of smooth curves strongly influenced by the surrounding uplands”.  

3.0 Visibility Analysis 

 ZTV Findings 

A bareground ZTV was prepared in order to illustrate the potential visual effects attributable to the proposed development 

when placing calculation points, at indicative heights of between 4.5m and 8.5m high to represent the residential properties 

proposed.   Initial site constraints were factored into the determination of proposed development areas.   

Following this, a modified ZTV, which took localised woodland and settlement into consideration (as illustrated on OS maps), 

was prepared in order to better understand: the topography of the site; the relationship between the proposed development 

and its immediate surroundings; and the influence of localised woodland and settlement when modelled at nominal heights 

of 10m and 7.5m respectively.  The ZTVs were then used to determine the main areas of theoretical visibility and identify 

suitable viewpoint locations for inclusion within this appraisal.   

As indicated by the indicative bareground ZTV map, the proposed site has the potential to be theoretically visible from 

approximately 54.15% of the 1km study area (see Figure 04). 

Landform, vegetation, policy woodlands, shelterbelt planting and intervening built form including the exiting built 

development in Stow substantially modifies the levels of theoretical visibility predicted.  Approximately 28.15 % of the study 

area (see Figure 05) shows theoretical visibility, which is  largely concentrated upon the following areas: 

• Land within the immediate vicinity of the proposed development, including the elevated pastoral land to the 

south; 

• From elevated sections of land  to the west, north and northeast of the proposed development site; and 

• From limited areas within the village of Stow.  

P
age 379



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 5                                18th December 2020 

4.0 Recommended Landscape Mitigation and Enhancement Measures 

 Landscape Design Principles and Measures 

Landscape design principles have been developed with cognisance to the relevant policies outlined in the Adopted LDP 

(Scottish Borders Council, 2017) for the site, with cognisance also given the Proposed LDP (Scottish Borders Council. 2020).    

The principles were also developed upon landscape analysis following site assessment work, an understanding of the CA and 

recommendations as to a suitable form of development for the proposed site. 

It is considered that much of the development within the site would be generally contained within an existing framework of 

mature and maturing landscape structure provided by existing boundary and onsite vegetation.  Where this is not the case, 

mitigation measures have been proposed, and illustrated on the Landscape Development Framework (LDF, see Figure 06) 

which would seek to address any potential effects on both landscape and visual amenity.  Development on the site would 

provide: 

• Small scale and organic expansion of Stow; 

• Development which relates well to the existing settlement edges; 

• Limited visibility of new residential areas; 

• Negligible effects on the local townscape character; 

• Negligible effects upon the character of the Conservation Area; and 

• Minimal effects on local landscape character.   

The indicative residential development layout has been provided by Hunter Architecture as an example of how residential 

development with appropriate landscape structure can be accommodated on the site with minimal effects upon the wider 

character and setting of Stow (see Drawing 1279_pl_01 Rec D).  The proposed development also allows for the: 

• Reinforcement and management of the existing boundary planting to the site’s western boundary where possible, 

ensuring its long term continuity; 

• Suitable stand-off from existing tree root protection areas and tree fall zones; 

• Inclusion of locally appropriate hedgerow and hedgerow trees within the proposed development;  

• Creation of new areas of locally appropriate structural woodland and groups of trees to frame and screen the 

development further where required; 

• Stand off from the setting of Crunzion Cottage whilst relating to the existing residential developments within Stow; 

and 

• Appropriate vehicular access from Earlston Road, providing easy linkage with the wider settlement. 

 

 

 

5.0 Appraisal of Potential Landscape Effects 

 Proposed Development Site and Wider Landscape Context 

The proposed development site comprises an area of pastoral land generally well contained by existing mixed field boundary 

woodland and shelterbelt planting.  Land within the site is therefore predicted to experience change as a result of the 

proposed development, including those areas affected by the proposed new access point  These changes would result in 

potentially adverse effects; however these effects would be minimised by the proposed retention of existing site boundaries 

in addition to the proposed mitigation measures outlined in Section 3.0 of this appraisal.    

Regarding wider landscape character, the Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) 2019 Landscape Character Type within which the 

site lies – LCT 114: Pastoral Upland Valley, is not predicted to experience unacceptable potentially adverse effects as a result 

of the proposed development given the extent of the overall LCT, the visual containment of the site and the minimal effects 

on its key characteristics.  The visual containment of the site also ensures that potentially adverse effects are not predicted 

on Stow CA as a result of the proposals.  

Consequently, potentially adverse landscape effects would be limited to land within the site boundary.  

6.0 Appraisal of Potential Visual Effects 

The contained nature of the site generally precludes views from the wider settlement areas outwith the site boundaries, 

including from the conserved core of Stow.  Figure 05 indicates visibility of the proposals from relatively extensive areas to 

the west, northwest and northeast, but in reality, where the proposed homes would be seen they would generally be viewed 

in context with the existing built form within Stow.  

The adjacent homes at the northern and western extents of the site would experience limited views towards the proposed 

development, although these would not be from primary rooms within the properties, and the proposed design measures 

would go some way to minimising these.  

With regards to local routes, users of Earlston Road would pass within close proximity of the site along the extents of the 

eastern site boundary.  Views for these users would broadly be heavily filtered or screened entirely by the adjacent mixed 

woodland belt which bounds the site in addition to the proposed mitigation measures, and any views would be oblique to 

the direction of travel in either direction and relatively fleeting, covering some 120m.  As users pass the proposed site 

entrance, there would be limited opportunities for glimpses towards the proposed development site.  Views travelling 

towards the site from the south are broadly represented by Viewpoint 1: Earlston Road.  As evidenced by Figure 08, views of 

the proposed development would be screened on the approach from the southeast by intervening woodland and landform.  

Consequently, potentially adverse effects are not predicted.   

For users of the minor route which passes to the south of the site’s southern boundary, there would be a potentially adverse 

visual change.  This would be offset somewhat by the additional mitigation planting proposed within the LDF, and the new 

homes would also be viewed in context with the wider context of Stow.  

Views from core paths within the area are not considered potentially adverse given the intervening built form, woodland and 

landform within the village. 

Views towards the site from the west, where possible,  including from Station Road to the northern extents of the study area, 

would generally be viewed in context with the existing built form within the village.  These views are represented by 

Viewpoint 03: Station Road at Wedale View.  From the north, views are represented by Viewpoint 02: Stow Cemetery.  The 

P
age 380



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 6                                18th December 2020 

cemetery lies on a steep valley side, and subsequently affords views across the village from its highest parts.  Although 

southern, elevated parts of the site can be seen from within the cemetery, much of the site is screened by intervening 

woodland at Sell Moore Wood and as a result, potentially adverse effects are not predicted.  

There is potential for minimal light-spill and/ or sky glow effects as a result of the proposed development.  Given the site’s 

location in relation to existing settlement, in addition to the relatively contained nature of the site however, these effects are 

predicted to be minimal and therefore not potentially adverse.  

Overall, potentially adverse visual effects across the study area as a result of any proposed development would be limited; 

likely restricted to properties adjacent to the sites northern and north-eastern boundaries which would be further minimised 

by screening mitigation planting proposed.  

 Appraisal Viewpoint 01: Stow Cemetery  

The viewpoint is located within the most elevated part of Stow Cemetery, some 280m northeast of the site.  The viewpoint 

is representative of visitors to the cemetery.   

The foreground view comprises a sloping pastoral field, bounded by an extensive coniferous woodland belt; part of Sell Moor 

Wood.  Within the left of the view, the homes along Earlston Road which mark the south-eastern extents of Stow are visible.  

Beyond Sell Moor Wood parts of the site can be seen, with sloping valley sides of pastoral land visible beyond.  The extensive 

woodland of Torsonce Wood  provides the skyline, screening views beyond. In the central mid-distance, the farm buildings 

which lie to the south of the site are visible between the woodland.  

From this location, parts of the proposed development would be visible through the roadside trees.  The proposed homes 

would however be viewed as an extension to the existing homes along Earlston Road and would therefore not appear 

incongruous.  Although the introduction of the new homes would incur visible change, the change would not result in 

potentially adverse visual effects.  

 Appraisal Viewpoint 02: Earlston Road  

This viewpoint is located approximately 550m southeast of the site along Earlston Road. The viewpoint is representative of 

road users travelling northwest towards Stow.  The location affords extensive views across the valley and the village of Stow.  

The foreground view comprises Earlston Road bounded to the right by the extensive coniferous woodland edge of Sell Moor 

Wood and to the left by a field boundary dry-stone wall.  Beyond the wall, the sloping pastoral fields which lie to the south 

of the site roll towards Torsonce Wood in the middle-distance, whilst beyond that the distant hills of Stagehall Hill and 

Cribbilaw Hill mark the valley high points west of the village.  In the central view parts of Stow can be seen beyond and 

through the trees.  

From this location, the proposed development would be screened by the intervening woodland edge of Sell Moor Wood and 

the field boundary woodland to the southeast of the site.  For users of the road, views are also likely to be focussed on the 

extensive views across the valley.  As a result, potentially adverse visual effects are not predicted from this location.   

 Appraisal Viewpoint 03: Station Road at Wedale View 

This viewpoint is located at a road junction between Station Road and a minor road near Wedale View approximately 700m 

northwest of the site.  This viewpoint is representative of road users travelling towards Stow village centre and nearby 

residents on Wedale View.  

The view from this location extends eastward across Stow, with its valley location obvious as land rises relatively steeply 

beyond the settlement edge.  Right of the central view, St. Mary of Wedale parish church is clearly visible.  The coniferous 

and mixed woodlands of Sell Moor Wood and Torsonce Wood skyline on the rising valley sides.   

From this viewpoint. It is likely that the proposed homes would be visible on the sloping ground behind the existing 

settlement edge.  Given the vicinity of the site in relation to the existing settlement, the proposed homes would appear as a 

logical ‘tiered’ extension to the village and would therefore not introduce an unusual element to the view.  Furthermore, the 

proposed homes would be backclothed by the extensive coniferous woodland at Sell Moor Wood, which would ensure they 

‘tucked into’ the valley side.  The introduction of the proposed homes within this viewpoint therefore is not predicted to incur 

potentially adverse visual effects.  

7.0 Summary and Conclusions 

The proposed development site comprises an area of pastoral land entirely located within the Scottish Borders Council (SBC) 

area to the southern extents of Stow.  At present, the site is not allocated for development, and lies outwith the village’s 

Development Boundary as identified by SBC (2017).  The site is however considered to present a logical tiered extension to 

the south of Stow and is visually relatively well-contained within existing field boundary mixed tree planting.  Additionally, 

the tiered development effect is characteristic of homes within a valley, providing further indication of the suitability of the 

proposed site for development. 

Potentially adverse landscape effects are predicted upon land within the proposed development site boundaries given the 

overall change as a result of the proposals.  Beyond these site boundaries however, there would be little change in how the 

surrounding landscape is perceived, including the village’s conserved core. Given the existing level of containment and 

proposed mitigation measures, there would be no potentially adverse landscape effects predicted outwith the site 

boundaries.  The proposed mitigation measures would also provide a level of potentially beneficial effects, such as enhanced 

biodiversity through the introduction of locally appropriate hedgerow, groups of trees, individual trees and structural trees, 

thereby adhering to  Policy EP3 – Local Biodiversity within the SBC LDP (SBC, 2017).  The retention of existing woodland 

would also conform with Policy EP13 – Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows.  

Visually, it is considered that the site is currently broadly well contained by existing shelterbelts and landform.  Clear visibility 

of the proposed homes is generally considered to be  limited to receptors within close proximity of the site boundaries, with 

visibility predicted for limited receptors in the wider area (see Figures 07 - 09).   

In summary therefore it is considered that the site at Earlston Road, Stow has the potential to offer appropriate scale 

residential development opportunities for Stow without leading to unacceptable levels of potentially adverse landscape and 

visual effects.    

P
age 381



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 7                                18th December 2020 

8.0 References 

• Scottish Borders Council (2016) Local Development Plan (adopted); 

• Scottish Borders Council (2020) Proposed Local Development Plan;  

• Scottish Borders Council (2017) Interactive Policy Map, accessed online 11.11.2020; 

• Scottish Borders Council (2012) Conservation Statement;  

• Landscape Institute & Institute of Environmental Management & Assessment (2013) Guidelines for Landscape and 

Visual Impact Assessment.  Third Edition (GLVIA3); 

• Landscape Institute (2019) Visual Representation of Development Proposals: Technical Guidance Note 06/ 19; and 

• Scottish Natural Heritage (2019).  Landscape Character Types (LCTs) SNH 2019. 

  

P
age 382



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 8                                18th December 2020 

9.0 Figures 

P
age 383



1

2

3

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2020. Licence Number: 0100031673

Legend
Site boundary

Scale: 

Site Location

1:250,000

@ A3 18 / 12 / 2020

01 Planning

R Moore R White

Project: Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale: Date:

Figure No: Status:

Drawn by: Checked by:

Site Location Plan with Viewpoint Locations

Earlston Road, Stow Bruce Weir

1:10,000

1km

Study area (1km offset from site boundary) 

Viewpoint Information
1. Stow Cemetery
    (Grid ref. 346308, 644676)
2. Earlston Road
    (Grid ref. 346789, 643990)
3. Station Road at Wedale View
    (Grid ref. 345512, 644671)

Viewpoint location

0 100 200 300 400 500 m

P
age 384



P
age 385



Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2020. Licence Number: 0100031673

Legend
Site boundary

@ A3 18 / 12/ 2020

03 Planning

R Moore R White

Project: Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale: Date:

Figure No: Status:

Drawn by: Checked by:

SNH Landscape Character Areas, Landscape 
Designations and Recreational Routes

Earlston Road, Stow Bruce Weir

1:10,000

1km

Study area (1km offset from site boundary) 

0 100 200 300 400 500 m

Listed buildings
- Category B

Listed buildings
- Category C

Listed Buildings

Landscape Character Types (LCTs) SNH 2019

Cultural Heritage Designations
Scheduled monuments:
a. St Mary's Church
b. Stow, old bridge
c. Our Lady's Chapel
d. Craigend Fort (outwith study area)

Conservation areas:
Stow

LCT 114: Pastoral Upland Valley

LCT 091: Pastoral Grassland 
- Borders

Core path

Designated Routes

P
age 386



1

2

3

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2020. Licence Number: 0100031673

Legend
Site boundary

@ A3 18 / 12/ 2020

04 Planning

R Moore R White

Project: Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale: Date:

Figure No: Status:

Drawn by: Checked by:

Bareground Zone of Theoretical Visibility with 
Viewpoint Locations

Earlston Road, Stow Bruce Weir

1:10,000

1km

Study area (1km offset from site boundary) 

0 100 200 300 400 500 m

Viewpoint Information
1. Stow Cemetery
    (Grid ref. 346308, 644676)
2. Earlston Road
    (Grid ref. 346789, 643990)
3. Station Road at Wedale View
    (Grid ref. 345512, 644671)

Viewpoint location

ZTV Run Data
Site centre:             
Resolution:              
Calculation:             
Counting method:   
Visible points: % of 1km study area with theoretical visibility: 54.15%

Notes
1. 
     
2. 
   
3. 
     
4.    
    
5.  
     
6.   
    

346209, 644356
5m
Single development
1 for each point visible
Ridgeline height (4.5m & 8.5m)

Predicted visibility is defined from an observer eye level 
of 2m above ground.
Created using Ordnance Survey Terrain 5 dataset at 
5m grid intervals.
The analysis does not take into account intervening 
screening by vegetation or buildings.
Reproduced from 1:25,000 scale mapping by permission 
of Ordnance Survey.
Earth's curvature and light refraction has been included in 
the calculation.
The software used to create this ZTV does not use 
mathematically approximate methods.

Proposed development theoretically visible
(54.15% of 1km study area)

P
age 387



1

2

3

Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2020. Licence Number: 0100031673

Legend
Site boundary

@ A3 18 / 12/ 2020

05 Planning

R Moore R White

Project: Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale: Date:

Figure No: Status:

Drawn by: Checked by:

Modified Zone of Theoretical Visibility with 
Viewpoint Locations

Earlston Road, Stow Bruce Weir

1:10,000

1km

Study area (1km offset from site boundary) 

0 100 200 300 400 500 m

Viewpoint Information
1. Stow Cemetery
    (Grid ref. 346308, 644676)
2. Earlston Road
    (Grid ref. 346789, 643990)
3. Station Road at Wedale View
    (Grid ref. 345512, 644671)

Viewpoint location

ZTV Run Data
Site centre:             
Resolution:              
Calculation:             
Counting method:   
Visible points: % of 1km study area with theoretical visibility: 28.15%

Notes

346209, 644356
5m
Single development
1 for each point visible
Ridgeline height (4.5m & 8.5m)

Proposed development theoretically visible
(28.15% of 1km study area)

Notes
1. 
     
2. 
   
3. 

     
4.    
    
5.  
     
6.   
    

Predicted visibility is defined from an observer eye level 
of 2m above ground.
Created using Ordnance Survey Terrain 5 dataset at 
5m grid intervals.
The analysis takes into account intervening screening by 
woodland (nominal 10m height) and buildings (nominal 
8.5m height) as shown on OS VectorMap Local.
Reproduced from 1:25,000 scale mapping by permission 
of Ordnance Survey.
Earth's curvature and light refraction has been included in 
the calculation.
The software used to create this ZTV does not use 
mathematically approximate methods.

P
age 388



P
age 389



P
age 390



P
age 391



P
age 392



Earlston Road, Stow                                                    Job no.  1632 

High-Level Landscape and Visual Appraisal                              Ferguson Planning on behalf of Bruce Weir 

 9                                18th December 2020 

 Legislation, Policy and Guidance 

This appendix provides a brief summary of the planning policies relevant to landscape and visual amenity only.  

Planning policies and guidance relating to the potential landscape and visual impact of proposed development are issued at 

national, regional and local levels.  This appraisal considers policies at local level only.   

The current Local Development Plan (LDP) covering the Borders area is the Scottish Borders Council (SBC) LDP (2016).  SBC  

have approved their Proposed LDP (2020), therefore relevant policies from this document have also been considered.    

The following sections identify the planning policies and supplementary guidance considered to be of relevance to the site: 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

Adopted in May 2016, the SBC LDP sets out the policies and proposals for land use in the region between 2016 and 2025.   

The following planning policies are considered to be of relevance to the aspirational proposed development and this LVA: 

• Policy PMD1: Sustainability - which states that: in determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, 

the council will have regard to certain sustainability principles which underpin the LDP’s policies and which developers 

will be expected to incorporate into their developments: 

 the long term sustainable use and management of land; 

 the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats and species; 

 the efficient use of energy and resources; 

 the encouragement of walking, cycling and public transport in preference to the private car; 

 the minimisation of light pollution; and 

 the support to community services and facilities. 

• Policy PMD2: Quality Standards - which states that: all new development will be expected to be of high quality in 

accordance with sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 

landscape surroundings; 

• Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity - which states that: development that is judged to have an adverse 

impact on the amenity of existing or proposed residential areas will not be permitted; 

• Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity - which states that: any development that could impact on local biodiversity through 

impacts on habitats and species should: 

 aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; 

 be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site, including its environmental 

quality, ecological status and viability; 

 compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets as appropriate; and  

 aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site.  

• Policy EP9: Conservation Areas - which states that: the Council will support development proposals within or adjacent 

to a Conservation Area which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area;  

• Policy EP12: Green Networks – which states that: the Council will support proposals that protect, promote and enhance 

the Greenspace Network; 

• Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows – which states that: the Council will refuse development that would 

cause the loss of or serious damage to the woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly 

outweigh the loss of landscape, ecological, recreational, historical or shelter value; 

Scottish Borders Proposed Local Development Plan (2020) 

SBC have approved their proposed LDP and are currently undertaking a consultation period prior to sending it on to the 

Scottish Government should it contain any unresolved objections.   

The following planning policies are considered to be of relevance to this LVA: 

• Policy PMD1: Sustainability; 

• Policy PMD2: Quality Standards; 

• Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity; 

• Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity and Geodiversity; 

• Policy EP9: Conservation Areas; 

• Policy EP12: Green Networks; and 

• Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows.  

Supplementary Guidance 

Local Authority Guidance 

A suite of Planning Guidance documents accompanies the LDP and provides more details with regard to certain policies.  Of 

particular relevance to this assessment is the Council’s guidance on: 

• Biodiversity; 

• Landscape and Development; 

• Placemaking and Design; 

• Scottish Borders Woodland Strategy; 

• Trees and Development; and 

• Woodland Creation Advice Note.  

 

 

P
age 393



Axwel House 
East Mains Industrial Estate 
Broxburn  
West Lothian  
EH52 5AU

01506 858 757      

brindleyassociates.co.uk

a: 
 
 
 

t:       

w:  

P
age 394



2

2

3

.

0

2

2

3

.
0

2

2

3

.

0

2

2

3

.
0

1

2

0

0

Ø

 

@

 

1

/

1

4

 

(

1

1

m

)

I

L

2

2

0

.

1

9

0

I

L

2

1

9

.

4

1

GABION HEADWALL

(SUBJECT TO HIGHWAY

AUTHORITY APPROVAL)

GABION HEADWALL

(SUBJECT TO HIGHWAY

AUTHORITY APPROVAL)

TP

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

T

O

P

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

S
T

R
E

A
M

GRASS

T
O

P
 
O

F
 
B

A
N

K

E

 

A

 

R

 

L

 

S

 

T

 

O

 

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

S

T

R

E

A

M

S

T

R

E

A

M

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

B

O

T

T

O

M

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

T
O

P

 
O

F
 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

2
2
9
.
0

2

2

8

.

0

2
2
8
.
0

2
2
8
.
0

2

2

7

.

0

2

2

7

.

0

2
2
7
.
0

2

2

6

.

0

2

2

6

.
0

2

2

5

.

0

2
2
5
.
0

2

2

4

.

0

2
2
4
.
0

2
3
0
.
0

2

2

3

.
0

2

2

3

.

0

2

2

2

.

0

2

2

1

.

0

2

2

0

.

0

2

1

9

.

0

2

1

9

.

0

2

1

8

.

0

2

1

8

.
0

6

m

 

W

i

d

t

h

CHAINAGE

EXISTING GROUND LEVEL

ROAD 1

2
2

2
.
5

5
1

2
2

1
.
4

8
5

2
2

3
.
0

4
3

0
.
0

0
0

     215.000

     220.000

     225.000

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

H
A

N
N

E
L

1
0

.
0

0
0

2
0

.
0

0
0

IL221.800

222.55

V

222.74

V

1/40

N
E

W
 
C

U
L

V
E

R
T

C
L
 
R

O
A

D
 
1

CHAINAGE

0
.
0
0
0

5
.
0
0
0

1
0
.
0
0
0

1
5
.
0
0
0

2
0
.
0
0
0

2
5
.
0
0
0

DATUM 216.000

 220.000

EXISTING GROUND LEVEL

2
1
8
.
5
0

2
1
9
.
5
0

2
2
0
.
0
0

2
2
0
.
0
0

1
2
0
0
Ø

 P
IP

E
 @

 1
/1

4
(1

1
m

)

IL220.190

IL219.41

GABION HEADWALL

(SUBJECT TO HIGHWAY

AUTHORITY APPROVAL)

GABION HEADWALL

(SUBJECT TO HIGHWAY

AUTHORITY APPROVAL)

PEDESTRIAN

GUARD RAIL

PEDESTRIAN

GUARD RAIL

222.71

V

SECTION 

CULVERT 

1200Ø DIAMETER PIPE TO

ALLOW FOR  APPROX.

300mm EMBEDMENT

BELOW BED OF BURN

LOCATION PLAN

Scale 1:200

Only PDF / DWF Issues of this drawing are controlled.
All other formats (eg. DWG AutoCAD FILES) are UN-controlled and are used at your own risk.

Contractors should refer to the residual risks contained in the CDM Pre Construction Information
before carrying out any site operations and should not issue parts of this drawing without
including the CDM notes and references.
This information will include details of the SIGNIFICANT risks which 3E have considered beyond
that which a competent contractor should be aware.

This drawing is copyright ©.
It is sent to you in confidence and must not be copied, used or disclosed to any third parties
without 3E permission.
It remains the property of 3E and must be returned on request.

A1 - Do Not Scale

Job Number Level

Title

Client

Project

Rev

Date

Date Revisions Rev.Drawn

Purpose of Issue

Originator Zone Type Role Drawing No.

- - - - - -

Scale Author Checked

-

Drawing Status

2 Esh Plaza

Sir Bobby Robson Way

Great Park

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE13 9BA

t   0191 230 2993

newcastle@3econsult.com

4 Calder Close

Calder Park

Wakefield

WF4 3BA

t   01924 240 420

wakefield@3econsult.com

WeWork Morgate

1 Fore Street Ave

London

EC2Y 9DT

t   07500 121 181

london@3econsult.com

consulting engineers

www.3econsult.com

-

DRP20-166
MP1:200

Sections
Preliminary Culvert

Stow
Earlston Road
CW Properties

3E ZZ XX

PRELIMINARY

July 2020

C 0001 P5

-

08.06.20  Preliminary Issue                                                                    GS P1

SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF

ALL RELEVANT AUTHORITIES

HEALTH & SAFETY
1. CONTRACTOR SHOULD BE AWARE OF GENERAL CONSTRUCTION RISKS TO PREVENT SLIPS,
TRIPS AND FALLS AND TAKE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WITHOUT SPECIAL INSTRUCTION.
ROADS & DRAINAGE
2. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE TRENCH SUPPORTS AS APPROPRIATE AND ENSURE THAT PLANT
REMAINS A SAFE DISTANCE FROM TRENCHES PRIOR TO INSTALLING DRAINAGE
3. THE TIME THAT EXCAVATIONS ARE OPEN ON SITE SHOULD BE KEPT TO A MINIMUM AND ALL
TRENCHES SHOULD BE SURROUNDED BY A BARRIER.
4. CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING SEWERS TO BE MADE BY SW APPROVED CONTRACTOR ONLY.
5. CONTRACTOR TO MAKE OPERATIVES AWARE OF ASSOCIATED DANGERS TO HEALTH SUCH
AS LEPTOSPIROSIS (WEILS DISEASE) AND RECOMMENDED PRECAUTIONS. ADEQUATE
WELFARE FACILITIES AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING TO BE PROVIDED AS REQUIRED.
6. UNFINISHED MANHOLES MUST BE COVERED WITH LOAD BEARING MATERIALS AND
SURROUNDED WITH BARRIER.
PIPES & CABLES
7. SERVICE RECORDS TO BE REFERRED TO PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING. CONTRACTOR TO
PROCEED WITH CAUTION AND SERVICES TO BE LOCATED BY HAND DIG AND PROTECTED
ACCORDINGLY.
EXCAVATION/FILL
8. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE RELEVANT MEASURES ARE TAKEN TO KEEP PLANT AND PEOPLE A
SAFE DISTANCE FROM STEEP SLOPES DURING THE WORKS.
9. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE THAT PROCEDURES ARE IN PLACE TO KEEP PEOPLE A SAFE
DISTANCE FROM WORKING PLANT WHERE NECESSARY.
10. CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO GROUND INVESTIGATION REPORT FOR CONTAMINATION TESTS
AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE WELFARE FACILITIES AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING AS REQUIRED.

01.07.20  Section updated                                                                   MP P2

07.07.20  Culvert amended. Sections updated.                                    MP P3

08.09.20  Barrier Noted. Road dims added.                                   MP P4

02.03.21  Entrance updated. Gabions adjusted. Pipe size increased   MP     P5

P
age 395



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ref: KC1895/CA 

Your Ref: 

 

 

 

 

 

14th July 2020 

 

Bruce C Weir 

Torsonce Mains, 

Stow, 

Galashiels, 

TD1 2SN 

 

For the attention of Bruce Weir  

 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

Earlston Road, Stow 

Flood Risk Memo 

 

Kaya Consulting Ltd. was commissioned by Bruce Weir to undertake an assessment of the risk of flooding to 

a proposed development on land located off Earlston Road, Stow. A culvert sizing assessment was also 

requested to be provided for a new crossing. 

 

The site is bordered to the west by agricultural land and to the north and south by existing residential 

development and a farm respectively. The Crunzie Burn forms the eastern boundary of the site. The site is 

greenfield, comprised of a grassy field and has an approximate plan area of 2.2 ha. A detailed location plan is 

shown in Figure 1. 

 

The Crunzie Burn flows north along the eastern boundary of the site. Upstream of the site, the burn flows 

beneath a private access road via a 0.6 m circular culvert (see Photo 1). Downstream of the site, the burn 

enters a second culvert under Earlston Road before eventually reaching the Muirhouse Burn, to the north of 

the site, which flows in a westerly direction. 

 

The SEPA flood map shows the likely extent of flooding for high, medium and low likelihood for fluvial, pluvial 

(surface water) and tidal flows. Consultation of the map shows that the site is not considered to be at “medium” 

to “high” risk from fluvial flooding from the Crunzie Burn. As the SEPA flood maps are indicative, a more detailed 

assessment of flooding risk to the site is required for sites located adjacent to watercourses. 

 

The proposed development is comprised of four residential properties to be located within the northern half of 

the site area. Residential development is considered to be a ‘high vulnerability’ land use under the SEPA Land-

Use Vulnerability Criteria. Such sites need to be assessed against potential flood risk up to the 1 in 200-year 

event, with consideration of climate change. 

 

This short memo provides an assessment on: 

• The risk of flooding to the site from the Crunzie Burn, surface water runoff and groundwater; and 

• Culvert sizing assessment of a proposed crossing over the Crunzie Burn.  

 

Page 397



Site Topography 
Site topography was analysed using both LiDAR ground elevation data and topographical survey points taken 

onsite. The general topography of the site is shown in Figure 2. 

 

Ground levels within the site slope steeply from south to north, with a maximum elevation of ~238 m AOD 

(Above Ordnance Datum) near the south of the site and a minimum elevation of ~211 m AOD in the north of 

the site. Land within the centre of the site is generally higher, with ground levels also falling to the east (Crunzie 

Burn) and to the west, away from the site. Land to the south rises considerably to a high point of around 350 

m AOD, approximately 1.3 km to the south of the site. 

 

The Crunzie Burn is situated in a deep channel, throughout the reach of the site, the bed is at least 2 m below 

the eastern site boundary. Upstream of the site, the burn flows through a 0.6 m diameter culvert, the overspill 

level of the culvert was surveyed to be approximately 234.3 m AOD. 

 

Downstream of the site, ground levels continue to fall by at least 4.5 m at Earlston Road. 

 

Hydrology for the Crunzie Burn 

A hydrological analysis was undertaken to estimate peak flows in the Crunzie Burn during 1 in 200-year and 1 

in 200-year plus climate change events. Catchment characteristics for the Crunzie Burn were extracted from 

the Flood Estimation Handbook (FEH) web-service for a location just downstream of the site. The full FEH 

catchment location can be seen in Figure 3. 

 

Design flows were estimated for the catchment using four methods: 

• FEH Rainfall-Runoff Method (using FEH1999 winter rainfall) – 1.09 m3/s; 

• Revitalised FEH Rainfall-Runoff Method (ReFH2.3) using winter rainfall – 0.94 m3/s; 

• Rural Qmed with Flood Studies Report (FSR) scaling factors – 0.81 m3/s; 

• Institute of Hydrology: Report No. 124 Flood estimation for small catchments method – 1.16 m3/s. 

The estimated flows range from 0.81 m3/s – 1.16 m3/s, given the small variability, the final 1 in 200-year event 

design flow was estimated as 1.16 m3/s, calculated using the IH124 method (most conservative 1 in 200-year 

event flow). Due to the small catchment, an uplift of 35%1 is recommended to be applied to rainfall inputs to 

represent increases due to climate change; however, the IH124 method is not based on rainfall intensity, so 

the 35% uplift was applied to the FEH R-R rainfall input which resulted in a fluvial increase of 44%. Applying a 

44% uplift to the IH124 method, results in a 200 year plus climate change flow of 1.67 m3/s 

 

Flood Risk from Crunzie Burn 

 

As discussed above, the bed of the watercourse is located in a deep channel, situated between the site and 

Earlston Road. A topographical survey of the site was undertaken which confirmed that the site is elevated at 

least 2 m above the bed of the channel throughout the entire eastern boundary. The channel gradient is steep 

throughout the site, at a slope of approximately 1 in 6, see Figure 4 which shows the shape of the channel 

derived from LiDAR data and the depth of the bed from the site boundary (ranging from 2-6m). 

 

Based on the flows derived above and the elevation of the site above the channel, flood levels in the channel 

would not be expected to rise by such a magnitude to reach the site. Due to the depth of the channel, a detailed 

1D model was not warranted to assess water levels; however, a HEC-RAS mathematical model was 

constructed to size a potential crossing within the centre of the site, which was based on two surveyed cross 

sections. Results of the model confirmed that flood waters would remain in the channel and flood depths would 

not exceed approximately 700 mm during a 200 year plus climate change event, see Figure 7 which shows the 

 
1 https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/426913/lups_cc1.pdf 

Page 398

https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/426913/lups_cc1.pdf


results of a surveyed cross section within the centre of the site. The channel is relatively uniform in shape such 

that results output by the model are representational for the reach throughout the site.   

 

An existing crossing is located at the south eastern corner of the site. In the event of a blockage to an upstream 

crossing, flood waters would reach the overspill level of the road and fall back into the channel at the 

downstream end. Ground levels rise up from the road so no flooding of the site would occur. In addition, the 

overtopping level of the downstream culvert under Earlston Road, is 206.4 m AOD, which is also at least 4.5 

m lower than the lowest level of the site, therefore during a 100% blockage flood waters backing up from the 

downstream culvert inlet would not be predicted to reach the site. 

 

Flood Risk from Surface Water Runoff 

A detailed watershed analysis was undertaken using Global Mapper software to determine the route of overland 

flows using the 1m resolution LiDAR DTM data. The results show that there is an area of high ground to the 

south of the site which could flow northwards towards the site.  

A 2D model was setup to represent the catchment area draining towards the site and areas downstream of the 

site. The Active Area (model domain) was sized to represent the catchment area draining towards the site. 

Global Manning’s roughness values of 0.05 was employed, to represent a mix of land uses from grass to slightly 

heavier bushes. The model was run using a 2.5m grid size. This was chosen to give representative results 

while ensuring manageable model run times. 

Rainfall data was obtained from the FEH Web-service and converted into rainfall depth using the latest ReFH2 

model. This was input as rainfall over the entire model domain. No allowances were made for the local drainage 

system as the majority of the contributing catchment is undeveloped farmland. The “net rainfall” values were 

used, meaning an allowance was made for infiltration into the ground.  

The results suggest that most surface water runoff would be directed towards the Crunzie Burn immediately 

upstream of the site. This is due to an area of relatively higher ground which runs near the centre of the site, 

allowing surface water to shed east and west away from the main site area. In addition, the local access road 

to the south of the site would also intercept and direct surface water towards the channel upstream of the site, 

see Figure 5.   

Flood Risk from Groundwater 

The SEPA flood map does not show the site or surrounding area to be at risk of flooding from groundwater 

flooding. Flooding from groundwater as a primary source is uncommon in Scotland.  

It is likely that groundwater levels will correlate with water levels in the Crunzie Burn, which is lower than the 

site. Further information on local groundwater levels obtained during site investigation should be used to inform 

the design. SuDS measures will need to take account of groundwater conditions if elevated groundwater levels 

are identified.  However, given the location of the site, the site is considered to be at “low” risk of flooding from 

groundwater as a primary source, unless the site investigation proves otherwise. 

 

Culvert Assessment 

 

Introduction 

To access the site, it is proposed that a culvert is installed to cross the Crunzie Burn. Planning Policy requires 

that access to and egress from new development should be free of flooding risk for flows up to an including 

200 year plus climate change return period. 

 

Page 399



Modelling 

To provide a basis of comparison, the existing channel in the vicinity of the crossing has been modelled using 

HEC-RAS mathematical modelling software to estimate flood water levels in the burn. The model was built 

using surveyed channel cross sections and topographical survey data provided by the client. 

 

A cross section location plan (including proposed access) is provided in Figure 6. Four additional cross sections 

have been extracted from 1m LiDAR data and used to supplement the surveyed data and aid model stability. 

As per the assessment above, the base case model results indicate that the channel has sufficient capacity to 

pass the 200 year and 200 year plus climate change flow in the vicinity of the crossing. 

 

Proposals 

The model has been updated to include a proposed culvert installed to facilitate a 6 m wide road and associated 

embankment; i.e. approximately 11 m long. The channel upstream of the culvert inlet will be arranged to 

improve the conveyance into the culvert and reduce entrance losses at the culvert inlet.  

 

The following model parameters were used: 

• 1m diameter concrete culvert to allow free water surface throughout culvert reach; 

• 11m culvert length; 

• Manning’s n value of 0.035 for culvert friction at the bed and 0.02 for the concrete culvert; 

• Inlet invert level of 220.39m AOD and outlet invert level of 219.61m AOD. 

 

The results indicate that for the culvert parameters as outlined above, the proposed culvert is able to pass the 

design flow and climate change flow with no significant increase to water levels upstream of the site, see Figure 

8. 

 

It was also requested that an assessment be made on the requirement of a debris screen to protect the inlet of 

the culvert. Scottish Borders Council refer applicants to DEFRA trash screen guidance which has been 

superseded by Ciria document C786 – Culvert Screen and outfall manual. 

 

Appendix A of the manual outlines an initial need assessment for a debris screen, which is based on the 

following factors: 

 

• Potential for debris collection at the inlet – approach conditions 

• Potential for debris collection at inlet – culvert size 

• Hydraulic performance of culvert 

• Potential for large debris entering the watercourse and being transported downstream 

• Potential for debris to collect within the culvert barrel 

• Presence of other features that could trap debris elsewhere and other mitigation 

 

The Initial Debris Screen Need Score (IDSNS) was calculated to be 19 which indicates that a debris screen is 

not required. Results are provided in the Appendix. 

 

Summary and Recommendations 

Kaya Consulting Ltd. was commissioned by Bruce Weir to undertake an assessment of the risk of flooding to 

a proposed development on land located off Earlston Road, Stow. A culvert sizing assessment was also 

requested to be provided. 

 

The Crunzie Burn forms the eastern boundary of the site. The site is greenfield, comprised of a grassy field and 

has an approximate plan area of 2.2 ha. A detailed location plan is shown in Figure 1. 

 

Page 400



The Crunzie Burn flows in a deep channel adjacent to the site, due to the channel being over 2 m deeper than 

the site and the limited catchment area, flood waters would not be expected to rise sufficiently to cause flooding 

within the site. A HEC RAS model constructed to size a potential crossing confirmed flood depths would not 

exceed 0.7 m at the proposed channel crossing. 

 

High ground rises to the south of the site; however due to a raised area of land within the centre of the site and 

a local access along the southern boundary, surface water runoff from the south would be directed east and 

west before reaching the site. 

 

The site is not predicted to be at significant risk of flooding during a 200 year design event; however, it is 

recommended that finished floor levels are set to an appropriate height above surrounding ground levels and 

finished ground levels are arranged to slope away from buildings. General ground levels should be finished in 

a way not to allow ponding of surface water within the site where it could increase the risk of flooding of 

properties. 

 

A crossing is required to be constructed over the Crunzie Burn to allow access to the site. A HEC-RAS 

mathematical model was constructed of the channel based on surveyed cross sections and LiDAR data. Model 

results indicate that a 1 m diameter circular culvert would be sufficient to pass the 200 year plus climate change 

flow. An initial need assessment of a debris screen was also undertaken which indicated that a debris screen 

would not be required. It is recommended that ground levels on the access road are designed such that in the 

event of a full blockage flood waters are able to return to the channel without flooding others. 

 

Closure 

We trust the above satisfy your current requirements. If you have any queries regarding this response, please 

do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

Callum Anderson 

Technical Director 

 

  

Page 401



Figure 1: Site location and location of relevant water features 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office.  

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 
 

Page 402



Photo 1: Crunzie Burn (Upstream Culvert) 

 
(Photo courtesy of Bruce Weir) 

 
 

 

Page 403



Figure 2: Site topography with 0.5 m contours through site - (1m background LiDAR data) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 404



 

Figure 3: Catchment for the Crunzie Burn 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office.  

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Licence number 100045301. 
 

Page 405



Figure 4: Channel based on LiDAR (Freeboard from channel bed) 

 
 

Figure 5: Overland flow pathways upstream of site (red line shows watershed) 

 
 

Page 406



Figure 6: Channel Cross section used for HEC RAS model 

 

Page 407



Figure 7: Channel Cross results for cross section 3 

 

 
 

Figure 8: Culvert results for upstream face of culvert (200yr + climate change flow) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 408



Appendix 

 

Initial need assessment for a debris screen 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Main factor (blockage risk source)
Evidence/sub-factor

(choose all that are applicable)

Potential 

score
Applicable? Score

A - Potential for debris collection at the inlet - 

A1. Flow approach is parallel to the culvert centreline 1 No 1

A2. Wing walls at inlet that guide flow smoothly into the culvert 

barrel
2 No 2

A3. Flow approach is skewed relative to the culvert centreline (less 

than 20 degrees)
3 No

A4. Culvert headwall is at right angles to the flow 4 No

A5. Flow approach is skewed relative to the culvert centreline (more 

than 20 degrees)
5 No

A6. Additional evidence (potential score between 1 and 5) No

Maximum score for Factor A: 5
Column 

maximum A
2

When flow is aligned to the centreline of the 

culvert there will be a smoother contraction 

and acceleration of flow into the culvert barrel 

and fewer eddies or areas of low velocity which 

would tend to hold debris at the inlet.

B1. Culvert barrel greater than 3 m in width and/or greater than 2 m 

in height
1 No

B2. Culvert barrel is between 1.5 m to 3 m in width and/or between 

1 m to 3 m in height
5 No

B3. Culvert barrel is less than 1.5 m in width and/or less than 1 m 

in height
8 No

B4. Culvert barrel is less than 1 metre square in cross-sectional 

area
10 No 10

B5. Additional evidence (potential score between 1 and 10) No

Maximum score for Factor B: 10
Column 

maximum B
10

B - Potential for debris collection at inlet / culvert size

The size of a culvert barrel can be a factor in 

the chance of it becoming blocked with debris, 

especially from medium-sized debris such as 

pallets and supermarket trolleys

C1. Culvert never flows full for any part of its length 1 No 1

C2. Culvert flows full for all or part of its length during a flood in 

excess of 1 in 10 (10% chance)
2 No

C3. Culvert flow regime not known or not calculated yet 5 No

C4. Culvert flows full for all or part of its length during less than a 1 

in 10 (10% chance) flood
8 No

C5. Culvert flows full for part of its length during normal flow 8 No

C6. Culvert always flows full (eg inverted siphon) 10 No

C7. Additional evidence (potential score between 1 and 10) No

Maximum score for Factor C: 10
Column 

maximum C
1

C - Hydraulic performance of culvert

The flow regime at the culvert inlet and 

through the barrel can be a factor on how 

floating debris and bed sediment is or isn't 

transported through the culvert

D1a. No past blockage or evidence of large debris within the 

watercourse or on its banks
1 No 1

D1b. Evidence of large loose debris collecting within the 

watercourse or its banks
10 No

D1c. Evidence of large floating mats of vegetation/regular cutting of 

vegetation within the channel
10 No

D2. Steep gradient on approach watercourse (greater than 1 in 

100)
10 No 10

D3a. Past incident(s) of partial blockage of culvert or channel by 

debris (less than 30% of the cross-sectional area)
15 No

D3b. No Information on past or potential debris load/do not know 15 No

D3c. Past incident(s) of significant blockage of culvert or channel by 

debris (30% to 50% of the cross-sectional area)
20 No

D3d. Past incident(s) of blockage of culvert or channel by debris 

(more than 50% of the cross-sectional area)
30 No

D4. Additional evidence (potential score between 1 and 30) No

Maximum score for Factor D: 30
Column 

maximum D
10

D - Potential for large debris entering the watercourse and being transported downstream

Larger debris which can be transported along 

the watercourse such as tree branches, 'mats' 

of vegetation, pallets and silage bales pose 

the greatest risk of blockage of a culvert 

barrel.  The source of these can be deliberate 

dumping into the channel or from being 

washed into the river from nearby properties.

Page 409



 

 

 

 

 

 

E1a. Culvert barrel has a constant bed slope which is steeper than 

1 in 200
1 No 1

E1b. Culvert barrel has a constant bed slope which is less than 1 in 

200
3 No

E1c. Culvert barrel has a gradual change (slackening) in bed slope 5 No

E1d. Culvert barrel has a sudden change (slackening) in bed slope 10 No

E2a. Culvert barrel is straight (no bends, obstructions or change in 

cross-section area)
1 No 1

E2b. Culvert barrel has minor bends (less than 20 degrees) 2 No

E2c. Culvert barrel has significant bends (more than 20 degrees) 5 No

E3a. Culvert barrel cross-section area changes by less than ±25 % 

and the transition is tapered
2 No

E3b. Culvert barrel cross-section area changes by less than ±25 % 

and the transition is sudden
4 No

E3c. Culvert barrel has mammal shelves (other than concrete 

benching in the invert)
5 No

E3d. Culvert barrel cross-section changes by more than ±25 % and 

the change is tapered
10 No

E3e. Culvert barrel cross-section changes by more than ±25 % and 

the change is sudden
25 No

E4a. Low weir within culvert (less than 0.5 m vertical drop) 5 No

E4b. High weir within culvert (more than 0.5 m vertical drop) 15 No

E5a. Service crossings in lower half of culvert height 30 No

E5b. Service crossings in upper half of culvert height 35 No

E6a. Vertical dividing walls within the barrel (less than half culvert 

height)
35 No

E6b. Vertical dividing walls within the barrel (more than half culvert 

height) or culvert splits into multiple barrels along its length
40 No

E7. Culvert has a sluice gate that is normally partly closed, a non-

return valve on the outlet, or a 'letterbox' outlet
25 No

E8. Culvert has an outlet security screen 25 No

E9. Culvert is an inverted siphon or 'sag culvert' 25 No

E10. Consequences of a culvert blockage are significant (eg 

immediate receptors for flow not able to pass through the culvert 
30 No

E11. Past evidence of substantial blockage (>50%) of culvert cross-

sectional area
40 No

E12. Culvert is part of the inlet to a pumping station 45 No

E12. Additional evidence (potential score between 1 and 45) No

Maximum score for Factor E: 45
Column 

maximum E
1

E - Potential for debris to collect within the culvert barrel

The presence of one or more physical 

attributes of the culvert barrel which can trap 

floating debris or bed sediment will influence 

the chance of a blockage.

F1. There is another smaller capacity culvert, weir or bridge up to 

100 m upstream of the culvert inlet
-5 No -5

F2. Flow through the culvert barrel in flood will be rapid (velocity 

greater than 1 m/s and no intermediate piers or service crossings)
-15 No

F3. Adequate management measures in place to reduce the chance 

of large debris getting into the channel
-20 No

F4. Consequences of a culvert blockage are small (eg an alternative 

flow route exists which would not lead to an increase in flood 

damage or an increased safety hazard)

-25 No

F5a. Coarse screen exists or is to be constructed upstream within 

100 metres of the culvert inlet)
-10 No

F5b. Coarse screen exists or is to be constructed upstream of the 

culvert and there is no likely source of additional debris between the 
-25 No

F6. Additional evidence (potential score between 0 and minus 25) No

Minimum score for Factor F: -25
Column 

minimum F
-5

TOTAL of 

Factors A-F
19

Decision rule: A debris screen is not required

F - Presence of other features that could trap debris elsewhere/other mitigation (note these are zero or minus scores)

Page 410



MH

MH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

WH

EL

FH

MH

TP

TP

TP

MKR

MKR

RS

RS

G

IL

IL

IL

P

P

P

AR1

235.009

AR2

235.390

AR3

229.743

AR4

223.469

R1

227.550

R2

226.037

AR5

215.120

R3

234.017

AR2A

237.603

R4

238.322

R5

217.372

AR6

207.286

R6

210.440

644200N 644200N

644220N 644220N

644240N 644240N

644260N 644260N

644280N 644280N

644300N 644300N

644320N 644320N

644340N 644340N

644360N 644360N

644380N 644380N

644400N 644400N

644420N 644420N

644440N 644440N

644460N 644460N

2

3

5

.

5

7

2

3

5

.

5

8

2

3

5

.

7

0

236.19

2

3

5

.

1

8

2

3

6

.

4

9

2

3

6

.

8

0

2

3

6

.

7

2

2

3

6

.

7

7

2

3

7

.
6

3

2

3

7

.
6

2

2

3

7

.

8

2

2

3

7

.

4

5

238.39

2

3

7

.
9

8

2

3

8

.
1

3

2

3

8

.
0

2

2

3

8

.
1

1

238.28

238.59

2
3
8
.5

7

2
3
8
.6

3

2
3
8
.7

4

2
3
8
.7

1

238.73

238.74

2

3

8

.
7

2

2

3

8

.
7

6

2

3

8

.
7

3

2

3

8

.
6

6

238.69

2

3

8

.
6

0

2

3

8

.

6

1

238.19

237.58

237.37

237.06

235.86

235.42

235.62

235.72

235.96

235.96

236.29

234.73

234.54

234.35

234.27

234.11

232.27

232.70

233.13

233.30

233.56

232.22

231.90

231.48

230.99

229.28

229.87

230.49

229.21

226.96

225.75

225.18

224.19

225.27

223.25

221.74

219.82

217.90

215.86

215.19

215.06

214.86

215.85

214.77

214.55

214.15

212.82

213.49

211.57

2

1

1

.

1

0

211.77

211.69

210.96

210.40

210.38

210.55

210.50

210.69

211.41

211.48

211.83

211.50

212.77

212.40

212.04

211.44

210.92

212.51

213.18

213.70

213.61

213.65

214.67

215.52

215.15

215.12

214.98

214.82

214.29

213.53

212.01

213.14

215.54

216.26

216.47

216.86

216.95

216.95

216.88

217.14

218.98

219.48

219.57

219.24

219.13

218.79

218.46

220.64

220.97

221.43

221.51

221.21

220.47

220.87

221.48

221.04

223.17

224.26

224.72

224.27

223.95

223.77

226.36

228.05

229.01

226.60

226.64

226.29

225.78

224.79

223.01

222.05

221.26

221.41

221.57

221.99

222.15

222.53

222.78

223.03

222.90

223.91

224.13

223.73

224.74

225.16

226.89

226.29

2

3

8

.

5

9

220.18

221.15

211.30

211.14

211.49

211.53

211.36

225.64

225.31

226.84

228.04

228.91

230.63

229.17

227.92

228.74

228.66

230.64

230.53

230.18

232.05

232.29

234.21

233.92

233.03

231.16

232.74

234.53

235.49

235.79

235.85

236.64

236.96

237.31

237.70

237.45

237.30

238.46

238.39

238.08

236.89

236.23

237.74

237.00

235.79

234.15

233.03

234.81

233.92

231.30

237.03

205.85

205.68

222.33

222.46

222.86

222.97

216.94

217.44

217.78

218.05

218.07

225.29

225.35

211.67

212.12

213.57

215.39

218.11

2

3

4

.

0

6

2

3

3

.
7

5

2
3
3
.
3
2

2

3

4

.

3

4

234.20

234.25

234.67

2
3
5
.2

2

235.16

2

3

5

.

0

0

2

3

5

.

9

9

236.13

2

3

6

.

2

2

2

3

7

.

0

0

236.96

2

3

6

.

8

8

237.24

2

3

7

.

2

3

238.22

2

3

6

.

5

8

237.51

2

3

5

.
7

7

2

3

5

.
2

2

2
3
4
.9

7

2

3

4

.

1

7

234.09

2

3

3

.

9

6

2

3

3

.

2

4

233.32

2

3

3

.

4

2

2

3

2

.

7

2

232.59

2

3

2

.

4

8

2

3

1

.

5

6

231.72

2

3

1

.

8

8

2

3

0

.

9

4

230.91

2

3

0

.

8

0

2

2

9

.

9

3

230.11

2

3

0

.

1

6

2

2

9

.

3

4

2

3

0

.

4

4

2

3

1

.

3

2

231.81

2

3

2

.

0

9

2

3

1

.

9

3

2

3

2

.

8

7

2

3

2

.

7

8

2

3

3

.

2

6

233.92

233.62

233.51

233.98

233.86

2
3
3
.
7
6

2
3
3
.
3
8

233.99

235.74

236.51

237.11

234.61

234.36

2

2

2

.

9

2

223.06

2

2

3

.

1

2

2

2

3

.

9

6

223.96

2

2

3

.

8

8

2

2

4

.
8

7

224.96

2

2

5

.

0

2

2

2

5

.
8

5

225.85

2

2

5

.
8

6

2

2

6

.
8

9

226.93

2

2

6

.
9

2

2

2

7

.
8

9

227.92

2

2

7

.
9

5

2

2

8

.
8

2

228.80

2

2

8

.
7

7

2

2

9

.

2

7

229.36

226.53

226.36

226.05

226.23

2

2

9

.

0

7

2

2

9

.

9

8

225.94

230.32

2

2

9

.

8

9

2

2

9

.

2

4

2

2

7

.

4

9

228.61

227.01

226.62

228.15

226.86

228.27

229.36

230.01

230.62

231.46

231.90

232.30

232.69

232.99

225.54

224.98

227.31

224.18

2

2

4

.
0

8

2

2

3

.
5

4

225.06

227.95

228.91

227.04

225.71

226.27

225.37

225.85

226.69

226.19

225.58

222.81

2

2

3

.

1

5

2

2

3

.

6

9

2

2

4

.
0

9

2

2

4

.

2

2

2

2

4

.

0

7

223.89

224.94

2

2

5

.
0

1

2

2

5

.
8

7

225.89

226.92

2

2

2

.

8

5

2

2

2

.
8

4

2
2

2
.
3

9

224.93

224.85

226.13

225.76

223.29

223.18

224.28

223.84

223.09

224.83

2

1

5

.

1

1

2

1

5

.

2

1

215.11

2

1

5

.

0

9

2

1

6

.

1

3

216.18

2

1

6

.

2

3

2

1

6

.

3

6

2

1

7

.

2

0

217.21

2

1

7

.

1

7

2

1

8

.

2

2

2

1

8

.

3

4

218.27

2

1

8

.

2

7

2

1

8

.

1

6

2

1

9

.

2

2

2

1

9

.

2

3

219.25

2

1

9

.

2

5

2

1

9

.

3

0

220.18

2

2

0

.

2

2

2

2

0

.

1

9

2

2

0

.

1

3

2

2

1

.

1

7

221.24

2

2

1

.

2

6

2

2

2

.

0

9

222.06

2

2

2

.

0

8

2

2

2

.

5

5

2

2

2

.

6

6

2

2

2

.

6

5

222.71

2

2

1

.

2

5

221.38

220.88

220.89

221.02

221.46

220.81

2

1

9

.

3

2

2

1

9

.

7

4

220.84

221.24

2

1

9

.

9

4

221.16

220.39

220.56

221.10

2

2

0

.
4

6

221.37

2

2

1

.
3

8

2

2

1

.
8

0

2
2
2
.
3
2

221.68

222.26

223.17

222.28

221.99

223.58

220.86

221.51

221.88

222.31

223.16

223.58

222.54

221.93

221.18

220.22

224.57

224.56

223.91

222.99

2

2

2

.

2

6

2

2

1

.

8

9

222.78

222.40

2

3

5

.

5

4

2

3

5

.

1

5

2

3

4

.

7

9

2

3

4

.

5

3

2

3

5

.

3

6

2

3

4

.

1

7

2

3

3

.

9

7

2

3

3

.

7

0

2

3

4

.

2

7

2

3

4

.

1

4

2

3

4

.

0

3

234.66

2

3

4

.

0

8

2

3

4

.

0

4

2

3

4

.

0

0

2

3

4

.

1

3

2

3

4

.

1

5

2

3

5

.

5

9

2

3

4

.

4

3

2

3

4

.

0

6

2

3

4

.

2

2

2

3

4

.

6

1

234.14

2

3

3

.
9

7

2

3

3

.

8

9

2

3

3

.

8

6

2

3

4

.

1

0

2

3

5

.

6

6

2

3

3

.

1

0

2

3

2

.

9

0

232.32

231.94

2

3

3

.
0

5

2

3

3

.

3

6

230.96

2

3

0

.

2

7

2

3

0

.

2

8

2

3

0

.

1

1

2

3

4

.

5

1

2

3

3

.

6

0

2

3

4

.

1

3

234.63

227.27

226.37

2

2

5

.

2

5

2
2

5
.
1

0

225.83

225.75

2

2

4

.

8

0

2

2

4

.

7

2

224.97

228.91

229.88

230.49

230.97

232.30

233.45

234.15

242.80

228.22

236.83

2

3

6

.

9

1

2

3

7

.

0

8

2

3

7

.
1

1

2
3
7
.2

4

236.88

236.76

235.88

234.06

232.95

232.35

232.32

232.21

231.93

230.50

226.77

231.94

233.84

237.71

214.03

2

1

3

.
9

8

2

1

4

.

1

0

2

1

4

.

0

3

2

1

3

.
6

1

2
1
3
.
7
8

213.22

2

1

3

.
2

8

2

1

3

.
2

2

2

1

2

.
2

5

212.32

2

1

2

.
3

5

2

1

8

.

4

1

2

1

7

.

1

9

2

1

6

.
6

3

2

1

5

.

8

7

2

1

5

.
5

9

2

1

5

.

4

5

2

1

4

.

7

9

2

1

4

.

5

5

2

1

3

.

9

8

215.20

216.27

218.75

2

1

7

.
1

2

2

1

7

.
1

0

215.98

214.33

215.53

216.26

218.56

219.06

220.15

220.13

216.75

216.05

219.61

220.82

218.71

218.98

219.05

218.01

216.95

2

1

7

.

3

3

219.87

219.49

218.70

218.40

217.62

217.00

216.73

214.09

207.28

2
0
7
.
3
2

207.33

2

0

8

.
3

1

208.97

208.45

2
0
8
.
4
6

208.54

209.69

2
0
9
.
7
2

209.74

2
0
9
.
7
6

2

1

0

.
8

9

2

1

1

.
0

5

2
1
1
.
1
8

2
1
2
.
0
6

212.25

2

1

2

.
3

5

2
1
2
.
7
4

212.96

2

1

2

.
3

5

2
1
3
.
1
2

213.66

2

1

3

.
1

8

2

1

3

.
7

3

2

1

3

.

7

0

213.75

2
1
1
.
0
0

211.01

211.02

2
1
1
.
0
5

2
1
3
.
5
2

2
1
3
.
0
6

2

1

3

.

0

0

2

1

1

.

7

6

2

1

1

.

6

4

2

1

0

.

0

0

212.44

213.47

214.53

215.05

215.86

214.53

218.40

217.46

206.52

2

0

9

.

9

9

2

0

8

.

7

2

2

0

8

.

7

2

209.68

2
0

5
.
7

2

2
0
6
.
0
5

2
0
8
.
5
9

2
0
9
.
8
0

210.73

209.42

207.65

207.36

207.17

2

0

7

.

2

2

206.96

206.86

206.71

206.52

206.41

206.34

206.22

206.18

206.17

206.28

206.33

206.38

206.22

206.57

206.67

206.96

207.03

207.11

207.49

208.34

208.27

207.76

207.51

207.59

207.31

2

3

1

.

6

2

2

3

1

.

6

2

T
IM

B
E

R
 F

E
N

C
E

G
R

A
V

E
L F

A
R

M
 T

R
A

C
K

S

T

O

N

E

 

W

A

L

L

S

T

O

N

E

 

C

U

L

V

E

R

T

TOP OF PIPE

T

I

M

B

E

R

 

F

E

N

C

E

R

O

U

G

H

 
G

R

O

U

N

D

F

A

R

M

 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

F

A

R

M

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

GRASS FIELD

T

I

M

B

E

R

 

F

E

N

C

E

C

U

L

V

E

R

T

 

/

 

P

I

P

E

 

O

U

T

L

E

T

S

T

R

E

A

M

E

X

T

E

N

T

S

 

O

F

 

T

R

E

E

 

C

A

N

O

P

Y

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

(

S

U

R

V

E

Y

E

D

 

R

E

M

O

T

E

L

Y

)

D

E

N

S

E

 

W

O

O

D

E

D

 

A

R

E

A

(

N

O

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

)

S

T

O

N

E

 

W

A

L

L

S

T

O

N

E

 
W

A

L

L

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

G

R

A

V

E

L

 

F

A

R

M

 

T

R

A

C

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

G

R

A

S

S

 

B

A

N

K

S
T

O
N

E
 
W

A
L
L

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

S

T

O

N

E

 

W

A

L

L

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

S

T

O

N

E

 

W

A

L

L

OPEN FIELD

OPEN FIELD

S

T

O

N

E

 
W

A

L

L

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

GRASS FIELD

GRASS FIELD

C

R

U

N

Z

I

O

N

C

O

T

T

A

G

E

T

I

M

B

E

R

 

F

E

N

C

E

V

E

G

E

T

A

T

I

O

N

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

TIMBER FENCE

PRIVATE GARDENS

T

O

P

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

WOODED AREA

E

 

A

 

R

 

L

 

S

 

T

 

O

 

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

G

R

A

S

S

S
T

R
E

A
M

GRASS

T
O

P
 
O

F
 
B

A
N

K

E

 

A

 

R

 

L

 

S

 

T

 

O

 

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

S

T

R

E

A

M

S

T

R

E

A

M

S

T

R

E

A

M

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

T
IM

B
E

R
 F

E
N

C
E

CULVERT

G
A

R
A

G
E

1408

2401

1403

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

P

O

S

T

 

&

 

W

I

R

E

 

F

E

N

C

E

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

B

O

T

T

O

M

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

T
O

P

 
O

F
 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 
O

F

 
B

A

N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

T
O

P
 
O

F
 
B

A
N

K

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

B

A

N

K

E

 

A

 

R

 

L

 

S

 

T

 

O

 

N

 

 

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

T

I
M

B

E

R

 
F

E

N

C

E

S

T

O

N

E

 

W

A

L

L

OPEN FIELD

2

2

9

.

0

2

2

9

.

0

2
2

9
.
0

2

2

8

.
0

2

2

8

.

0

2
2
8
.
0

2
2
8
.
0

2

2

7

.
0

2

2

7

.

0

2

2

7

.

0

2
2
7
.
0

226.0

2

2

6

.

0

2

2

6

.
0

2

2

5

.
0

2

2

5

.

0

2
2
5
.
0

2
2
4
.
0

2

2

4

.

0

2
2
4
.
0

2

3

0

.

0

2

3

0

.

0

2
3
0
.
0

223.0

2

2

3

.
0

2

2

3

.

0

222.0

2

2

2

.

0

221.0

2

2

1

.

0

220.0

2

2

0

.

0

219.0

2

1

9

.

0

2

1

9

.

0

218.0

2

1

8

.

0

2

1

8

.
0

217.0

2

1

7

.

0

216.0

2

1

6

.

0

2
1
5
.0

2

1

5

.

0

2
1
4
.0

2

1

4

.

0

2
1
3
.0

2

1

3

.

0

2
1
2
.0

2

1

2

.
0

2

3

7

.

0

2

3

6

.

0

2

3

5

.

0

2

3

4

.

0

238.0

2

3

7

.

0

2

1

1

.

0

2

1

1

.

0

2

1

0

.

0

2

0

9

.

0

2

0

8

.

0

237.0

2
3
6
.
0

2
3
6
.
0

235.0

2

3

5

.

0

234.0

2

3

4

.

0

2

3

4

.

0

2
3
3
.0

2

3

3

.

0

2

3

3

.

0

2

3

2

.

0

2

3

2

.

0

2

3

2

.

0

2

3

1

.

0

2

3

1

.

0

2

3

1

.

0

2

0

7

.

0

2

0

6

.
0

SURVEY STATIONS

Station                       Eastings                      Northings                       Level

GLS

T

E

G.L.SURVEYS

87 COMELY BANK AVENUE

EDINBURGH EH4 1EU

0131 315 2012

edinburgh@glsurveys.com

CLIENT

BRUCE WEIR FARM

JOB TITLE

EARLSTON ROAD

STOW

SCOTTISH BORDERS

DRAWING TITLE

SITE SURVEY (2D)

DATE

MAY 2020

SCALE

SURVEYED

BY AR

EDITED

BY AR

CHECKED

BY

JOB

NUMBER:

DRAWING

NUMBER:

20-05-02 01A

NOTES

i)

All survey levels and co-ordinates

are related to OS Datum and Grid

(National GPS Network).

ii)

Whilst G.L.Surveys has made every effort to locate all

topographical and building features we cannot accept

responsibility for any features which may be omitted if

they are obscured from view for any fixed or temporary

reason at the time of the survey taking place.

LEGEND

AV   -Air Valve

BH   -Borehole

B    -Bollard

BT   -British Telecom Cover

C    -Cover(unknown service)

CL   -Cill Level

COL  -Column

CT   -Cable Telecom Cover

D    -Drain

DK   -Drop Kerb

EC   -Electricity Cover

EL   -Eaves Level

EP   -Electricity Pole

ER   -Earth Rod

FH   -Fire Hydrant

FL   -Floor Level

G    -Gully

GAS  -Gas Cover

GPO  -Post Office Box

GT   -Gas Toby

IC   -Inspection Cover

IL   -Invert Level

KL   -Keep Left Bollard

LB   -Lighting Bollard

LL   -Lintel Level

LP   -Lamp Post

LT   -Lighting Tower

MC   -Mercury Cover

MH   -Manhole

MKR  -Marker

MP   -Mooring Post

MR   -Mooring Ring

OBM  -O.S. Benchmark

OHW  -Overhead Wires

OTP  -O.S. Trig Point

P    -Post

PM   -Parking Meter

PYLN -Elec. Pylon

RE   -Rodding Eye

RL   -Ridge Level

RS   -Road Sign

SP   -Sign Post

SV   -Sluice Valve

T    -Toby

TPIT -Trial Pit

TL   -Traffic Lights

TP   -Telegraph Pole

TV   -Cable T.V. Cover

VP   -Vent Pipe

WC   -Water Cover

WH   -Wall Head Level

WL   -Water Level

WM   -Water Meter

WT   -Water Toby

1:500@A1

AR1         346329.605          644239.625           235.009

AR2         346299.122          644217.956           235.390

AR3         346294.754          644270.402           229.743

AR4         346283.563          644315.145           223.469

AR5         346252.341          644371.836           215.120

AR6         346247.158          644434.732           207.286

AR2A         346207.665          644221.277           237.603

R1         346291.564          644284.628           227.550

R2         346288.333          644296.323           226.037

R3         346315.094          644231.509           234.017

R4         346263.729          644210.540           238.322

R5         346258.580          644355.016           217.372

R6         346241.171          644410.782           210.440

REV.A TREES ADDED ALONG EARLSTON ROAD SITE BOUNDARY

AR

24.06.20

P
age 411



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston Road, Stow 

Environmental Management Plan – Working Near Water 
For Mr. Bruce Weir 

 

 

 

25th March 2021 

South Office 
8 Epsom Close 
Chippenham, Wiltshire 
SN14 0FB 
 
North Office 
17 Duddingston Crescent 
Edinburgh  
EH15 3AT 
 
07 730 600 924 
info@ellendale-ellendalenvironmental.co.uk  

Page 413

mailto:info@ellendale-ellendalenvironmental.co.uk


 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
2 

 

Version 
V E R S I O N  D A T E  A U T H O R  R E V I E W E D  A P P R O V E D  

C I C  v 1 . 0  2 2 / 0 3 / 2 1  S t e w a r t  P a r s o n s  E m m a  P a r s o n s  2 5 / 0 3 / 2 1  

C I C  v 1 . 1  2 5 / 0 3 / 2 1  S t e w a r t  P a r s o n s  E m m a  P a r s o n s  2 5 / 0 3 / 2 1  

     

     

     

     

 

 

Disclaimer 

 

Copyright © Ellendale Environmental Limited. All rights reserved. 

 

This report has been produced by Ellendale Environmental Limited within the terms and 

conditions of the contract with the client and taking account of the resources devoted to it 

by agreement with the client. It has been prepared for the sole use of the client and their 

professional advisors.  

 

Ellendale Environmental Limited accepts no responsibility for any use of or reliance on the 

contents of this report by any third party. 

 

The report, and the information contained in it, is intended to be valid for a maximum of 15 

months from the date of the survey, providing no significant alterations to the site have 

occurred. 

  

Page 414



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
3 

Contents 

1. Introduction .................................................................................................. 4 

1.1 Introduction to Project ................................................................................ 4 

1.2 Site Details .................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 Identified Watercourse ............................................................................... 5 

2. Working Near Water ................................................................................... 8 

2.1 Relevant Legislation .................................................................................... 8 

2.2 Potential for Pollution ................................................................................. 8 

2.3 Site Specific Management Plan .................................................................. 9 

3. Toolbox Talk – Silt Fencing & Sediment Control .................................. 11 

4. Toolbox Talk – Rivers & Streams ............................................................ 12 

5. Toolbox Talk – Storage & Use of Fuels & Oils ...................................... 13 

  

Page 415



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
4 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Introduction to Project 

Ellendale Environmental Limited was commissioned by Mr. Bruce 

Weir to provide an ecological assessment of land at Earlston Road in 

Stow, Scottish Borders (‘the site’), in support of an outline planning 

application (reference 20/01620/PPP) for its proposed redevelopment. 

The Crunzie Burn is adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site and 

provides potential connectivity with Gala Water (part of the River 

Tweed SAC).  A bridge crossing of the burn has been proposed as part 

of the project and therefore impacts on the River Tweed SAC may arise 

through construction of the bridge, run-off of sediment, pollutants from 

exposed earth during construction and/or spillage of oils and 

chemicals used during construction. 

This document has been written to provide further details of the 

mitigation proposed during construction works to safeguard the 

nearby watercourse and, by extension, the River Tweed SAC. The 

mitigation proposed follows good practice in line with GPP5 Works and 

maintenance in or near water. 

1.2 Site Details 

The site is located to the south-east of Stow in the Scottish Borders at 

OS grid reference NT 46213 44319. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 416



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
5 

 Figure 1: Site location 

  

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Mapping Map Explorer 338 Scale 1:25000 by permission of Ordnance 

Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright. All rights 

reserved. Licence number 100054247. 

1.3 Identified Watercourse 

Crunzie Burn flows through a strip of mixed woodland located to the 

east of the site.  The burn is less than a metre wide and has a rocky 

substrate.  It flows into Gala Water, which is located approximately 

350m to the west of site and is a tributary of the River Tweed. Gala 

Water is therefore designated as part of the River Tweed Special Area 

of Conservation (SAC). 

 

 

 

 

Site location  

Page 417



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
6 

Photograph 1: showing a view of Crunzie Burn running through the mixed 

woodland 

 

Within the mixed woodland, adjacent to the burn, species present 

include Scot’s pine Pinus sylvestris, ash Fraxinus excelsior, sycamore Acer 

pseudoplatanus, elder Sambucus nigra, gorse Ulex europaeus and broom 

Cytisus scoparius. 

Despite a thick woodland canopy, there is ground flora with species 

including common nettle, rosebay willow herb, broadleaved dock, 

common hogweed Heracleum sphondylium, meadowsweet Filipendula 

ulmaria, bramble Rubus fruticosus, forget-me-not Myosotis sp., few 

flowered leek Allium paradoxum, daffodil Narcissus sp., common dog 

violet Viola riviniana, horsetail Equisetum sp., bracken Pteridium 

aquilinum, honeysuckle Lonicera periclymenum, marsh marigold Caltha 

palustris and herb Robert Geranium robertianum. To the south of the 

woodland, non-native conifers are more dominant and there is little 

ground flora beneath it.  

Page 418



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
7 

No aquatic vegetation was noted within Crunzie Burn during the 

survey.   

Trees along the burn were not found to provide suitable roosting 

habitat for bats and no cracks, crevices or splits were noted; however, 

they do provide suitable foraging habitat for bats.  The trees provide 

suitable habitat for nesting birds and a number of passerine birds were 

noted during the survey. 

It is understood that the vegetation will not be affected by the proposed 

development and no trees are to be removed from the banks of Crunzie 

Burn.  

The main risks to the watercourse come from construction activities 

that have the potential to pollute the habitat if not controlled correctly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 419



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
8 

2. Working Near Water 

2.1 Relevant Legislation  

Most activities with the potential for affecting watercourses and/or 

groundwater will require authorisation under the Water Environment 

(Controlled Activities) (Scotland) Regulations 2005 (CAR). 

2.2 Potential for Pollution 

Construction activities in or near water have the potential to cause 

serious pollution or impact on the bed and banks of a watercourse, and 

on the quality and quantity of the water.  Most pollution incidents are 

avoidable. With careful planning, the risk of site work causing 

pollution can be reduced. Many measures needed to prevent pollution 

cost very little, especially if they are included at the planning stage of 

any activity. 

Major causes of environmental harm associated with working in or 

near watercourses include:  

❦ Silt, e.g. disturbance of a riverbed or bank, dewatering and 

pumping of excavations, run-off from exposed ground, plant 

washing, roads and/or river crossings; 

❦ Cement and concrete, which is very alkaline and corrosive and 

can cause serious pollution; 

❦ Chemicals and solvents, i.e. oil storage, refuelling, vehicle and 

plant washing, trade materials, etc.; 

❦ Cleaning debris, e.g. dust, debris and/or wastewater; 

❦ Herbicides, e.g. spraying application; and 

❦ Waste materials (including special waste), e.g. oily wastes, spent 

acids and/or solvents. 

 

 

Page 420



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
9 

Good practice includes:  

❦ Ensuring comprehensive risk assessments have been 

undertaken and subsequent risk management plans have been 

implemented; 

❦ Use of silt fencing and secondary booms to contain pollutants in 

the event of substances entering the watercourse(s); and 

❦ Ensuring hydrocarbon spill kits are available during the works. 

 

2.3 Site Specific Management Plan 

The following outlines the environmental best practice measures that 

will be implemented during development works within the site: 

Generic Mitigation 

❦ Identify all activities that will be undertaken near Crunzie Burn 

for their potential to cause pollution; 

❦ Communicate risks associated with working near watercourses 

to all personnel; 

❦ Identify all activities that will require authorisation under CAR 

and ensure authorisations are obtained. Comply with all 

conditions or General Binding Rules; 

❦ Undertake necessary risk assessments in advance of activities; 

❦ Give staff regular toolbox talks about the risks of working near 

water and the potential to cause pollution; 

❦ Monitor the success of all mitigation measures (i.e. silt fencing) 

and re-design if necessary; 

❦ Undertake regular checks on site to ensure that pollution 

prevention measures are in place and are successful; and 

❦ Ensure site staff know what to do in case of emergency and can 

implement contingency plan to prevent pollution. 

 

  

Page 421



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
10 

Material storage and use 

❦ Be vigilant about any works with cement near water; 

❦ Store cement and other pollutants in a secure location;  

❦ Run-off from machine service and concrete mixing areas must 

not enter the watercourse;  

❦ Stockpile areas for sands and gravel will be kept to a minimum 

size, 30m away from the watercourse; and 

❦ Run-off from the above will only be routed to the watercourse 

via suitably designed and sited settlement ponds/filter 

channels. 

 

Plant, fuels and oils 

❦ Ensure plant and vehicles are not washed within 30m of the 

watercourse; 

❦ Fuels, oils, greases and hydraulic fluids must be stored in 

bunded compounds a minimum of 30m from the watercourse; 

❦ Any plant required will be modified to operate with 

biodegradable hydraulic oil where practicable; 

❦ Diesel to be stored in double skinned tanks/diesel bowsers, and 

refuelling of plant to only take place if drip trays are in position; 

and 

❦ Refuelling of machinery will be carried out in designated areas 

30m from the watercourse with drip trays and plant nappies 

present. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 422



 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
11 

3. Toolbox Talk – Silt Fencing & 

Sediment Control 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 423



   

www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk  e: info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk   Tel: 07730 600924 
 

Silt Fencing & Sediment Control 

 
Many construction, forestry and farming activities result in disturbed or bare ground that is vulnerable to weather erosion. The silt laden run-off, plus site 
debris and other pollutants, often contaminates surrounding land, burns, streams, rivers, streams, lakes, lochs and drains - resulting in significant 
environmental diffuse pollution and potentially costly fines. A silt fence, sometimes (misleadingly) called a "filter fence," is a temporary sediment control 
device used on construction sites to protect water quality in. Silt fences are widely used on construction sites due to their low cost and simple design.  
 

 

 
 
Silt Fences are a special, high quality, permeable, technical filter fabric for 

storm water surface runoff pollution management. They can be installed as 
an entrenched vertical entrapment fence, and are designed to intercept and 

detain storm water run-off, trapping harmful silt through settlement and 

filtration before it leaves the site. 
 

The benefits of silt fences are increasingly becoming recognised in Britain: 

The Environment Agency/SEPA Pollution Prevention Guidelines (PPG5) 

now recommend the use of silt fences to reduce silt transport from exposed 
ground and stock piles. 
 
There are different types of porous fabrics available, e.g., woven, non-woven, 
mono-filament, but all types tend to clog rapidly and don’t provide lasting 
filtration. The support posts and installation method are more important than 
the fabric type for overall sediment retention 

 
The effectiveness in controlling sediment in silt fencing can be limited, due to 
problems with poor installation, proper placement, and/or inadequate 
maintenance. 
 
When installing silt fencings the following should be considered:  

▪ Proper placement based on the site’s contours,  
▪ Adequate amount of fencing without long runs 
▪ Heavy porous filter fabric,   
▪ Support posts with proper depth and spacing, and  
▪ Tight soil compaction on both sides of the silt fence  

 
Posts must hold  the fabric up and support the horizontal load of retained 
water and sediment. Hardwood posts (2” x 2”) are potentially strong enough 
to support the loads. The support posts should be spaced 3–4 ft. apart where 
water may run over the top of the fence, 5 ft. in most other areas, and 6–7 ft. 
where there isn’t a considerable horizontal load. 
 
Improper post depth and spacing is often the cause of sagging fabric and 
falling posts.  

 

 

 
Do’s  

✓ Only discharge silty water into designated settlement systems 
✓ Check that site drainage and settlement systems are working - 

discolouration may indicate high pollutant loading 
✓ Stop pumping and contact your manager if you think a problem is 

arising 
✓ Ensure that all hardstanding’s are kept clean – notify your manager if 

an area is silty or is covered in mud 
✓ Notify your manager immediately if you see silty water entering a 

watercourse or drain and do try to stop it or divert it away by, for 
example, using sand bags. 

 
Don’ts 

 DON’T dewater any excavation without getting permission from your 
manager 

 DON’T pump silty water directly into rivers, ditches or surface water 
drains 

 DON’T strip land of vegetation unless it is absolutely necessary – 
vegetation to reduce silt run-off 

 DON’T store soil, stone or similar materials within 10 metres of 
watercourses or drains 

 DON’T dig a grip to release ponded water to a watercourse or drain. 

 
Silt fencing properly supported and retaining water with additional straw bales 

for further filtration of overtopping water. 

 
Poor compaction has resulted in infiltration and water flowing under this silt 

fence causing retained sediment washout 

 
Silt fencing used on contours to create horseshoes to catch and trap water. 

 
A silt fence full of sediment that needs maintenance 

 

X 

X 

√ 

√ 
 

Page 424

http://www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk/
mailto:info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sediment_control


 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
12 

4. Toolbox Talk – Rivers & 

Streams 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 425



   

www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk  e: info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk   Tel: 07730 600924 
 

 

RIVERS AND STREAMS, BURNS, BROOKS AND SPRINGS 

Rivers and streams, burns, brooks and springs provide us with food, energy, recreation, transportation routes, and of course water for irrigation and for 
drinking. They are important as conduits in the water cycle, instruments in groundwater recharge, and corridors for fish and wildlife migration and provide an 
important corridor in connecting fragmented habitats and thus in conserving biodiversity. 
 

  

 
Discharging fuel or oil or water containing fuel or oil into drains 
or watercourses is illegal, and could lead to prosecution.  
  
You do not need to be working close to a river or ditch to 
cause pollution – any pollutants getting into a surface water 
drain or groundwater can end up in a watercourse.   

 

Brown Trout White-clawed Crayfish Bullhead 

 
Run-off over stripped ground picks up soil particles resulting in silt. If this 
enters a watercourse it is a pollution incident. Silt in watercourses suffocates 
fish, destroys fish spawning grounds, kills plants and other wildlife.  
In Scotland, the principal water pollution offences are contained in the Water 
Environment (Controlled Activities) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 (known as 
the Controlled Activities Regulations or ‘CAR’): see regulations 44(1) and 4. 
The Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) is the enforcing 
authority. 
It is an offence to carry on a controlled activity unless it is authorised 
under the Regulations and you are complying with that authorisation. 
Controlled activities are listed in regulation 3(1) of CAR, and include: 

▪ activities liable to cause pollution of the water environment; the direct 
or indirect discharge; 

▪ any activity likely to cause a direct or indirect discharge, into 
groundwater of any hazardous substance or other pollutant; and 

▪ any other activity which directly or indirectly is likely to have a 
significant adverse impact on the water environment. 

Silt can enter a watercourse from a number of sources: 
Run-off from working width, pumping, drainage channels, culverting water 
courses 

 

 
Freshwater Pearl Mussel 

Do’s 

✓ Only discharge silty water into designated settlement systems  
✓ Install erosion control and silt filtration measures when ground has 

been stripped, e.g. grips, sumps, silt fences etc 
✓ Maintain erosion control and silt mitigation measures. 
✓ If you see streams running silty contact the environment 

department immediately. 
✓ If you think silt might potentially get into a watercourse contact the 

environment department immediately. 
✓ Line drains with stones where possible to help filter silt 
✓ Leave a vegetation buffer zone to allow natural filtration of silty run-

off. 

Don’ts 
 Don’t dewater any excavation without getting permission from your 

manager  
 Don’t pump silty water directly into rivers, ditches or surface water 

drains  
 Don’t strip land of vegetation unless it is absolutely necessary – 

vegetation reduces silt run-off  
 Don’t store soil, stone or similar materials within 10 metres of 

watercourses or drains  

 Don’t dig a grip to release ponded water to a watercourse or drain 
 

 
Mayfly  

Tufted Duck  
Grey Herron 

IF A PERSON OR COMPANY IS TRIED AND CONVICTED UNDER SUMMARY PROCEDURE (I.E. BY A JUDGE), THEY COULD BE FINED UP TO 

£40,000 AND/OR IMPRISONED FOR UPTO TWELVE MONTHS, AND IF THE OFFENCE IS CONTINUING, A FURTHER FINE OF UP TO £250 A DAY 

CAN BE IMPOSED FOR AS LONG AS THE OFFENCE CONTINUES. 

IF A PERSON OR COMPANY IS TRIED AND CONVICTED ON INDICTMENT (I.E. BY A JURY) THEY COULD FACE AND UNLIMITED FINE AND/ OR BE 

IMPRISONED FOR UP TO FIVE YEARS, AND IF THE OFFENCE OS CONTINUING, THE FURTHER FINE CAN BE UP TO £1000 A DAY. 

Page 426

http://www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk/
mailto:info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Water_cycle
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Groundwater_recharge
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fish
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wildlife
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wildlife_corridor
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Habitat_fragmentation
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Biodiversity


 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t  P l a n  –  W o r k i n g  N e a r  W a t e r   2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  

 

 
13 

5. Toolbox Talk – Storage & Use 

of Fuels & Oils 

 

 

 

Page 427



   

www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk  e: info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk   Tel: 07730 600924 
 
 

 

STORAGE AND USE OF FUELS AND OILS 

Fuels (Petrol and Diesel) and Oils inappropriately used, stored or disposed of can give rise to pollution of the environment. Generally these substances are 
released into the environment through spillages during delivery or use through waste materials being poured into drains, watercourse or burned. 
 
So why should we do this? 
 

▪ Avoid prosecution: if pollution is caused then a prosecution may 
follow. 

▪ Avoid environmental harm: even a small spillage of Fuels and Oils 
are highly harmful to plants, animals and yourselves. 

▪ Cost: the cost of cleaning up and the legal proceedings following an 
incident far exceeds the cost of having in place the correct control 
measures 
 

IF A PERSON OR COMPANY IS TRIED AND CONVICTED UNDER 
SUMMARY PROCEDURE (I.E. BY A JUDGE), THEY COULD BE FINED UP 
TO £40,000 AND / OR IMPRISONED FOR UPTO TWELVE MONTHS, AND 
IF THE OFFENCE IS CONTINUING, A FURTHER FINE OF UP TO £250 A 
DAY CAN BE IMPOSED FOR AS LONG AS THE OFFENCE CONTINUES. 

 
IF A PERSON OR COMPANY IS TRIED AND CONVICTED ON 

INDICTMENT (I.E. BY A JURY) THEY COULD FACE AND UNLIMITED 
FINE AND / OR BE IMPRISONED FOR UP TO FIVE YEARS, AND IF THE 
OFFENCE OS CONTINUING, THE FURTHER FINE CAN BE UP TO £1000 

A DAY. 
 

 

 

Storage of Fuels and Oils 
Do’s 

✓ Do store bulk Petrol, Diesel and Oil in bunded tanks and store 
smaller containers on drip trays that have 110% capacity of the 
largest container 

✓ Do store fuels and oils away from drains and water courses 
✓ Do replace lids on containers after use 
✓ Store all containers of oil and fuel in a secure, bunded area 
✓ Regularly check tanks, containers and bunds for damage and leaks 

 

 

Don’ts 
 Don’t refuel or store fuels and oils within 10m of a watercourse 
 Don’t leave bunds and drip trays to overflow 
 Don’t not use damage or leaky containers 

 

 
Using of Fuels and Oils 

Do’s 
✓ Do use automatic shut off pistol grip delivery systems when refuelling 

from tanks and bowsers 
✓ Do return containers to the stores when complete 
✓ Do ensure all refuelling is attended and at least 10m away from a 

watercourse 
✓ Do keep tanks and Bowsers locked after use for security as well 
✓ Do use trip trays underneath all static plant and refuelling operations 
✓ Do attend to any spillages, clear up all minor spillages immediately 
✓ Do use funnels when refuelling small items of plant 
✓ Supervise all fuel and oil deliveries 
✓ Ensure a spill kit is provided adjacent to fuel storage and refuelling 

areas  
✓ Ask your supervisor what to do with waste fuels and oils before 

disposal. 
✓ Lliaise with a line manager to organise removal of contaminated 

water from bunds and trays by an appropriate contractor. 
 

 

Don’ts 
 Store fuel and oil, or carry out refuelling, within 10 m of a watercourse 

or drain 
 Don’t leave hoses and ‘guns’ outside of the bunded tank/bowser after 

use 
 Don’t leave refuelling operations unattended at any time 
 Don’t leave containers open 
 Don’t leave containers in an area where they can be damaged or 

vandalised  
 Don’t allow drip trays or bunds to overflow 
 Don’t locate fuel and oil tanks/storage area near to vehicle 
 routes 
 Don’t ignore any spillages 
 Don’t dispose of waste fuels and oil’s by discharging into drains and 

gullies  
 

 

 

Page 428

http://www.ellendale-environmental.co.uk/
mailto:info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk


 

Earlston Road, Stow 

Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey  
For Mr. Bruce Weir 

22nd May 2020 

South Office 
8 Epsom Close, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire 
SN14 0FB 
 
North Office 
17 Duddingston Crescent 
Edinburgh  
EH15 3AT 
 
07 730 600 924 
info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk 

  

Page 429

mailto:info@ellendale-environmental.co.uk


 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
2 

 

Version 
V E R S I O N  D A T E  A U T H O R  R E V I E W E D  A P P R O V E D  

C I C  v 1 . 0  1 5 / 0 5 / 2 0  S a r a h  M i l l e r  1 5 / 0 5 / 2 0  S t e w a r t  P a r s o n s  

C I C  v 1 . 0  2 2 / 0 5 / 2 0  
S t e w a r t  

P a r s o n s  
2 2 / 0 5 / 2 0  E m m a  P a r s o n s  

     

     

     

     

 

 

Disclaimer 

 

Copyright © Ellendale Environmental Limited. All Rights reserved. 

 

This report has been produced by Ellendale Environmental Limited within the terms and 

conditions of the contract with the client and taking account of the resources devoted to it 

by agreement with the client. It has been prepared for the sole use of the client and their 

professional advisors.  

 

Ellendale Environmental Limited accepts no responsibility for any use of or reliance on the 

contents of this report by any third party. 

 

The report, and the information contained in it, is intended to be valid for a maximum of 12 

months from the date of the survey, providing no significant alterations to the site have 

occurred. 

  

Page 430



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
3 

Contents 

1. Executive Summary .................................................................................... 4 

2. Introduction .................................................................................................. 6 

2.1 Commission .................................................................................................. 6 

2.2 Site Details .................................................................................................... 6 

2.3 Survey Objectives ........................................................................................ 7 

3. Methodology ................................................................................................ 8 

3.1 Data Search ................................................................................................... 8 

3.2 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey ............................................................. 8 

3.3 Preliminary Protected Species Survey ...................................................... 8 

3.4 Survey Area .................................................................................................. 9 

3.5 Survey Limitations ...................................................................................... 9 

4. Results ......................................................................................................... 10 

4.1 Ellendale Environmental .......................................................................... 10 

4.2 Desk Study .................................................................................................. 10 

4.3 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey ........................................................... 11 

4.4 Preliminary Protected Species Survey .................................................... 14 

5. Conclusions ................................................................................................ 16 

5.1 Conclusion .................................................................................................. 16 

5.2 Main Recommendations ........................................................................... 16 

6. Target Notes ............................................................................................... 18 

6.1 Botanical Target Notes (TN) .................................................................... 18 

6.2 Animal Target Notes (AN) ....................................................................... 18 

7. Extended Phase 1 Map .............................................................................. 19 

  

Page 431



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
4 

1. Executive Summary 

Ellendale Environmental Limited was commissioned by Mr. Bruce 

Weir to undertake an Extended Phase 1 Habitat survey and a 

Preliminary Protected Species survey for land at Earlston Road in Stow, 

Scottish Borders (‘the site’). The surveys have been undertaken to 

support a planning permission for the proposed redevelopment of the 

site. 

To fulfil the brief, an Extended Phase 1 Habitat survey was conducted 

for the site following the Phase 1 survey methodology (JNCC, 2010) to 

list the plant species associated with each habitat. A preliminary 

protected species walkover for the site was also conducted for the site 

and immediate surrounding area.  

The site is located to the south-east of Stow and is approximately three 

hectares in size. Most of the site consists of an improved grassland field, 

bordered by a wooden fence and stone wall.  

To the south of the site, there is a gravel track with semi-improved 

grassland verges.  This leads to a yard area (to the south-west of the 

site) with two buildings constructed from wood and corrugated iron.  

One of the buildings is used for stabling horses, whilst the other is 

open-sided and has haylage bales stored inside it. The west of the site 

is bordered by a stone wall, with an area of broadleaved woodland 

beyond.  The stone wall continues northwards towards Crunzion 

Cottage, with additional residential properties located to the north of 

the site.  Crunzion Burn is located to the east of the site, which runs 

through an area of mixed woodland. 

Grassland within the site does not provide suitable cover for reptiles or 

ground nesting birds. 

Page 432



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
5 

The buildings to the south-west of the site, constructed from wood and 

corrugated iron, both have negligible roost potential for bats. 

Crunzie Burn provides suitable habitat for otter; however, no field 

signs such as holts or spraints were noted during the visit.  

No evidence of protected species was noted during the survey. 

Some recommendations are made within this report for modest post-

construction ecological enhancements at the site that are proportionate 

with the low level of environmental impact from the proposed 

redevelopment. These measures aim to increase the diversity of species 

present on the site after the completion of any future development 

works. 

  

Page 433



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
6 

2. Introduction 

2.1 Commission 

Ellendale Environmental was commissioned by Mr. Bruce Weir to 

undertake an Extended Phase 1 Habitat survey and a Preliminary 

Protected Species survey for land to the south-east of Stow in the 

Scottish Borders (‘the site’). The surveys have been undertaken to 

support a planning application for the proposed redevelopment of the 

site. 

2.2 Site Details  

The site is located to the south-east of Stow at OS Grid Reference NT 

46213 44319. 

 Figure 1: Site Location 

 

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Mapping Map Explorer 338 Scale 1:25000 by permission of Ordnance 

Survey on behalf of The Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright. All rights 

reserved. Licence number 100054247. 

Site Location  

Page 434



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
7 

2.3  Survey Objectives 

On the basis of the brief provided by the client, Ellendale 

Environmental conducted an ecological survey to fulfil the following 

needs: 

❦ Obtain baseline information on the current habitats and 

ecological features in and around the site; 

❦ Identify any further specialist surveys that may be required; 

❦ Identify the presence or potential presence of any protected 

species whose disturbance may require consent under the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act, 1981 (as amended); and 

❦ Identify any species or habitats which may require special 

mitigation during the development of the site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 435



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
8 

3. Methodology 

3.1 Data Search 

Publicly available databases, including MAGIC and the NBN Atlas, 

were consulted for historical evidence of: 

❦ Statutory land-based designations;  

❦ Non-statutory land-based designations; and  

❦ Protected species. 

 

The data search was conducted within a 2km radius of the site 

boundaries. 

3.2 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 

An Extended Phase 1 Habitat survey of the survey area was 

undertaken, and the habitats present within the site were mapped 

following the Phase 1 survey methodology (JNCC, 2010), listing the 

plant species associated with each habitat. This methodology was an 

extended Phase 1 habitat survey, whereby all habitats were surveyed 

and recorded onto a base plan and any habitats that were considered to 

be of potential interest to nature conservation, were recorded through 

the use of target notes to annotate a Phase 1 habitat map. 

The presence of any invasive weeds, such as Japanese knotweed 

Fallopia japonica, Himalayan balsam Impatiens glandulifera or giant 

hogweed Heracleum mantegazzianum was also recorded through the use 

of target notes. 

3.3 Preliminary Protected Species Survey 

The site and immediate vicinity were examined for signs of protected 

species, particularly bat and nesting birds, as it was considered that the 

site had the greatest potential to support these species or groups of 

animals.  

Page 436



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
9 

The presence/potential presence of protected or notable species of 

conservation concern was recorded using target notes, following the 

Institute of Ecological and Environmental Management guidance 

(IEEM, 2012).  

3.4 Survey Area 

The survey covered the entire site and areas within 30m (where 

accessible). 

3.5 Survey Limitations  

The aim of this survey was not to record every species present on the 

site, as one survey acts as a snap-shot, recording only those species 

which are present at the time or whose presence can be indicated 

through the occurrence of field signs, such as feeding remains, 

droppings or places used for shelter or foraging.  

Evidence collected has been used to draw conclusions about the flora 

and fauna within the boundary of the site and to provide an assessment 

of their ecological and nature conservation value. Where it is suspected 

that species of nature conservation importance have the potential to be 

present, furthermore detailed surveys have been advised. 

Weather was not a limiting factor to the surveys. The prevailing 

conditions at the time of the surveys are summarised in Table 1 below. 

 Table 1: Survey Weather Conditions 

SURVEY  

DATE 

TEMPERATURE 

(˚C) 

WIND SPEED 

(MPH) 

CLOUD COVER / 

PRECIPITATION 

13/05/20 10 10 5% cloud cover, dry 

 

 

  

Page 437



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
10 

4. Results 

4.1 Ellendale Environmental 

The survey was undertaken by Sarah Miller, Ecologist at Ellendale 

Environmental, who is a Graduate member of CIEEM with two years’ 

experience of undertaking ecology surveys and assessments 

throughout the UK. 

4.2 Desk Study 

A 2km data search for existing biological records was undertaken from 

publicly available databases. 

The following Statutory site are located within 2km of the site 

boundaries; 

❦ Gala Water a Tributary of the River Tweed and designated as part 

of the River Tweed Special Area of Conservation (SAC) is located 

approximately 350m to the west of the site. 

 

The following protected species are identified within 2km of the site 

boundaries by the data search: 

❦ European otter Lutra lutra; 

❦ Badger Meles meles;  

❦ Common pipistrelle bat Pipistrellus pipistrellus; and  

❦ Red squirrel Sciurus vulgaris. 

 

Approximately 114 bird species have been recorded within 2km of the 

site and are shown on the NBN Atlas; however, none of the records are 

for birds within the site. 

 

 

Page 438



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
11 

4.3 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 

The survey site is located to the south-east of Stow, in the Scottish 

Borders, and is accessed from Earlston Road.  

There is a gravel track, with semi-improved neutral grassland verges, to 

the south of the site.  The grassland verges include tufted hair grass 

Deschampsia cespitosa, Yorkshire fog Holcus lanatus, bent grasses Agrostis 

sp, common nettle Urtica dioica, broadleaved dock Rumex obtusifolius, 

meadow buttercup Ranunculus acris, meadow foxtail grass Alopecurus 

pratensis, raspberry Rubus idaeus, daisy Bellis perennis, speedwell Veronica 

sp., silverweed Argentina anserina, dandelion Taraxacum sp., ribwort 

plantain Plantago lanceolata, cleavers Galium aparine, cocksfoot grass 

Dactylis glomerata  and strawberry Fragaria ananassa. 

The track leads to a yard, where there is a wooden open-sided shed with 

a corrugated iron roof and haylage bales stored within. Adjacent to it, 

there is another shed of similar construction with multiple stalls being 

used to stable horses. There is a single elm Ulmus glabra tree in the yard 

area.  

To the north of the sheds there is an area of tall ruderal vegetation 

consisting of rosebay willow herb Epilobium angustifolium and creeping 

thistle Cirsium arvense.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 439



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
12 

 Picture 1: showing a view of the gravel track to the south of the site  

 

North of the stables there is an improved grassland field bordered by a 

stone wall and a wooden fence. The field has been sectioned off with an 

electric fence and is used for horse grazing.  Thus the vegetation is short, 

and lacks diversity, with species including rye grass Lolium perenne, 

clover Trifolium repens, bent grasses and daisy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 440



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
13 

 Picture 2: showing a view of the grassland field looking north across the site 

 

Beyond the western boundary there is a block of broadleaved woodland 

consisting of beech Fagus sylvatica. 

To the east of the site there is a strip of mixed woodland with the species 

Scots pine Pinus sylvestris, ash Fraxinus excelsior, sycamore Acer 

pseudoplatanus, elder Sambucus nigra, gorse Ulex europaeus and broom 

Cytisus scoparius. Crunzie Burn, which flows through the woodland, is 

less than a meter wide and has a rocky substrate. Despite a thick 

woodland canopy there is ground flora with species including common 

nettle, rosebay willow herb, broadleaved dock, common hogweed 

Heracleum sphondylium, meadowsweet Filipendula ulmaria, bramble 

Rubus fruticosus, forget-me-not Myosotis sp., few flowered leek Allium 

paradoxum, daffodil Narcissus sp., common dog violet Viola riviniana, 

horsetail Equisetum sp., bracken Pteridium aquilinum, honeysuckle 

Lonicera periclymenum, marsh marigold Caltha palustris and herb 

Page 441



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
14 

Robert Geranium robertianum. To the south of the woodland, non-native 

conifers are more dominant and there is little ground flora beneath it.  

      Picture 3: showing a view of Crunzie Burn running through the mixed woodland  

 

 

4.4 Preliminary Protected Species Survey 

The grassland within the site has been grazed short and has been 

trampled by horses and does not provide suitable habitat for nesting 

birds.  

Throughout the site, evidence of rabbit was found, with some rabbit 

warrens present in the field to the west of site, around the stables and 

within the mixed woodland to the east of the site.   

The buildings present to the south-west of the site are constructed of 

wood with a corrugated iron roof and thus have negligible roost potential 

for bats. 

Page 442



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
15 

Crunzie Burn provides suitable habitat for otter; however, no field signs 

such as holts, couches or spraints were noted during the survey.  

 Picture 4: showing a view inside the stable building to the south-west of the 

site 

 

Overall, the site provides low suitability to support protected species and 

no evidence of protected species was noted during the survey.  

Page 443



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
16 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Conclusion 

The site is located to the south-east of Stow and is approximately three 

hectares in size. The majority of the site consists of an improved grassland 

field bordered by a wooden fence and a stone wall.  

There is a gravel track to the south of the site with semi-improved 

grassland verges.  It leads to a yard area with two buildings constructed 

from wood and corrugated iron, used for stabling horses the storage of 

haylage bales. To the west of the site there is an area of broadleaved 

woodland, and to the east there is a strip of mixed woodland which has 

Crunzie Burn flowing through it. 

The grassland within the site does not provide suitable cover for reptiles 

or ground nesting birds. 

The two buildings constructed from wood and corrugated iron both have 

negligible roost potential for bats.  

Crunzie Burn provides suitable habitat for otter; however, no field signs 

such as holts or spraints were noted.  

No evidence of protected species was noted during the survey, and there 

are no ecological reasons that would limit the redevelopment of the site. 

5.2 Main Recommendations 

The following recommendations are made based on the results of the 

surveys: 

❦ As part of any eventual construction, it is recommended that any 

vegetation clearance is undertaken outside of the bird breeding 

season, i.e. March to July, as all nesting birds are protected under 

the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). If nesting 

Page 444



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
17 

birds are found, these areas of the site will need to be protected 

from disturbance until the young have fledged naturally. 

❦ As part of the design and layout considered as part of any future 

planning application, bird nesting boxes, both small hole and 

open-fronted, could be placed within the site if possible. This 

could create nesting opportunities for small bird species as part 

of the overall design. 

  

Page 445



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
18 

 

6. Target Notes 

6.1 Botanical Target Notes (TN) 

TN1 – Improved grassland field with species including perennial rye 

grass, white clover, bent grasses, broadleaved dock and daisy. 

TN2 – Yard with a stable building and shed constructed from wood and 

corrugated iron roof. Single elm tree present. 

TN3 – Patch of tall ruderal including rosebay willow herb and creeping 

thistle.  

TN4 – Patch of broadleaved woodland consisting of beech with a path 

going through it.  

TN5 – Wall along western boundary. 

TN6 – Crunzie Burn with ground flora including common nettle, rosebay 

willow herb, common hogweed, meadowsweet, bramble, forget-me-not, 

few flowered leek, daffodil, common dog violet, horsetail, bracken, 

honeysuckle, marsh marigold and herb Robert. 

TN7- Mixed woodland including the species Scots pine, elder, ash, 

sycamore, gorse and broom. To the south, non-native conifers are more 

dominant and the ground flora is bare.  

6.2 Animal Target Notes (AN) 

AN1 – Rabbit burrows. 

AN2 – Rabbit burrows. 

  

Page 446



 

E x t e n d e d  P h a s e  1  H a b i t a t  S u r v e y   2 2 n d  M a y  2 0 2 0  

 

 
19 

7. Extended Phase 1 Map 

 

Page 447



Drawing Title;
Earlston Road, Stow
Extended Phase 1 Map

Client;
Mr. Bruce Weir

Date;
14/05/20

Drawn By;
SP

Project Number;
EEL276

Version Number;
v1.0

SI

SI

SI

SI

SI

SI

SI

SI
SI

SI

SI

SI

SI

AN2AN2

AN1

TN1

TN2

TN3

TN4

TN5

TN6

TN7

Grassland

Built-up Area

Woodland and Scrub

Water

Tall Herb and Fern

Animal Note

Target Note

Semi-improved Neutral Grassland

Building

Hard Standing

Wall

Broadleaf Tree

Mixed Woodland

Broadleaf Woodland

Burn

Tall Ruderal

AN

TN

P
age 448



Page 449

Agenda Item 6b



This page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Courtenay Young

Address: 60 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2QT

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Inadequate drainage

Comment:The proposed site drains mainly to the east - into the Crunzie Burn and to the west

towards No 60 & 62 Earlston Road, with the (roughly north-south) watershed marked (in red) on

Fig 5 of the Flood Risk Assessment (23-12-2020). Whilst the risk of increased water run-off and

possible flooding into the Crunzie Burn has been assessed (technically or otherwise) and some

provisions have been made for this, there seems to be absolutely no realistic assessment - nor

provisions made - for any increased run off to the west and north-west of the watershed.

Currently, with any moderate to heavy rain, the proposed site and the field to the west of it (south

of Crunzion Cottage) drain off fairly equally: (1) into Earlston Road down the tarmac access road

to No. 58, 60, 62, and Crunzion Cottage; (2) down the access track in front of No. 60 & No. 62,

and then on down the old footpath route running behind Nos. 36, 44, 46, 52, & 54 Earlston Road

and also down the narrow pathway between No. 56 & 60. running north towards Earlston Road;

with (3) some run-off going due west towards No. 58.

The site drainage map (Fig. 5) stops - possibly conveniently - short of some of these properties so

that the accumulated run-off is not displayed.

The fourth paragraph on page 3 of the Saya Consulting report that deals with the Surface Water

Run-off does not mention any provision for surface water run-off from the whole of the section to

the west of the watershed, which is already considerable in heavy rain and will probably increase

with run-off from the two western-most of the proposed houses. The increased run-off may well

propose a flood risk or a risk of subsidence to the mentioned properties liable to be affected.

Further, the proposed new footpath connecting with the (supposed) current footpath to the north of

Crunzion Cottage is shown as accessing the tarmac access road (mentioned in 1 above).

Some of the run-off will probably (or almost certainly) flow down this pathway as well - and anyway

it is not totally clear that these properties will have legal pedestrian access to this private road - but

that is another possible ground for an objection.
Page 451

Agenda Item 6c



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr David Brown

Address: Fairview, Earlston Road, Stow Galashiels, Scottish Borders TD1 2QT

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Inadequate access

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Land affected

  - Road safety

Comment:

Objection to Development

 

I reside at number 64 Earlston Road and would like the following points to be added to the official

list of objections regarding the proposed new development .

I a self employed builder have years of experience in all aspects of construction and planing, as

well as being a drainage expert who is often called to assess and resolve many drainage issues

across the country .

 

1a) My first point would be in regards to the present Town Head Bridge over the Crunzie bridge at

the end of Earlston Road by house number 88 , and it's current state of repair . After a brief look at

the bridge, I cannot see how it's capable of taking any more regular traffic generated by more

housing at the top of Earlston road and I would certainly ask for an independent structural report to

be done on the bridge and be included in the proposal

.

1b) I would also like to see a detailed impact assessment on the effect of the construction traffic

and how the developers propose to get materials and plant to site , and also get any excess soil

and waste materials away from site without affecting the bridge.

 
Page 452



1c) When the Longpark wind farm up the hill to the east was developed, virtually no construction

traffic came up via Earlston Road and a new access track had to be created a few miles further

down the A7 - possibly because of the steep hills and sharp bends in Earlston Road make it

impossible for large very large vehicles.

 

2) My next major points cover drainage rainwater and brown water

 

2a) Drainage

 

My property and the access roads to my neighbours! properties (@ No.s 60 & 62) currently suffer

frequent minor flooding of the land and the almost instant stream of water, as soon as there is any

rain, even with smaller showers. Creating any hard standing surfaces on a higher level will almost

certainly make this drainage problem worse, no matter what measures are put in place - and the

present application does not address how the builder proposes to deal with surface water coming

in this (north-westerly) direction Can I also point out that - currently the Earlston Road drainage

and the Crunzie Burn are almost at flooding point whenever there is heavy rain and there may well

be a risk of flooding lower down the Crunzie Burn at Townfoot and 13 Earlston Road.

I can't see any way that building more houses would not make this drainage problem even worse,

possibly even dangerously so. Incidences of heavy rainfall are increasingly prevalent nowadays

and this development will just add to the drainage problem.

 

2b) Brown Water

It is my understanding that the sewerage system on Earlston Road is close to maximum and

therefore I would ask for a report to be carried out to assess if the existing brown water drainage

and sewerage system can cope with the addition of these new houses. I feel a on-site expert

report would be more feasible and more realistic than a commissioned paper-work exercise.

It's an old drainage system on a steep gradient, which will almost certainly reduce its capacity

 

3) Finally, with regards to traffic and parking, the new houses will have private off-road parking, but

this doesn't change the fact that Earlston Road is at its maximum on-road parking capacity as

many properties don't have off-road parking facilities. Often, you can't see clearly up and down the

road and larger delivery vehicles, dustbin collection vehicles and oil delivery vehicles often have

difficulty negotiating up and down Earlston Road. Therefore, more traffic will mean more difficulties

and possible greater risk of impact damage or even to pedestrians. Children are the life and soul

of our beautiful village and my 3 children have to be warned to watch what they are doing when

crossing Earlston Road, as they can't see the cars till the last minute. More traffic will therefore

mean greater danger to my kids and also to others.

 

For these reasons, my family and I oppose this development

 

Regards David Brown

 
Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Objections to application: 20/01620/PPP.   19/01/2020.      R. Wilson  
                                                                                                         80 Earlston rd. Stow.TD12QT 
 
Submission of 3 areas of objection. 
 
Objection 1. LDP. 
                    The application site is outwith the Local Development Plan (LDP) and any 
inclusion or exemption to the plan should involve a wider community consultation as it may 
affect such things as local sewage capacity, increased flooding potential due to wash off 
from the proposed site and the style and type of housing required by the village. 
 NB need affordable housing. 
There are other sites within the LDP that have been set aside for housing development and 
these sites should be supported/enabled for housing before other/new sites are allowed 
within the LDP. 
 
Objection 2.a. Traffic management and risk. 
                     Earlston road is already a highly restrictive route due to its narrowness, 
steepness and necessary on street parking frequently requiring vehicles to double park and 
or reverse significant lengths of the road in order to allow oncoming traffic to pass. 
Pedestrians and ability vehicles are often forced to use the road as a thorough fare due to 
the narrowness of the pavement. 
NB. This route (Earlston Road) has become popular and is increasingly used by young 
families, dog walkers and cyclists (especially over the past few years) thus making road 
safety concerns more prominent. 
        The projected increase in traffic by both domestic and commercial service vehicles to 
and from the proposed site would make a nearly bearable situation intolerable increasing 
the risk of accidents considerably. 
 
Objection 2b. Positioning of access bridge. 
                  The proposed siting of the access bridge to the development is midway between 2 
blind bends and on a steep incline. (This is not made clear on the drawings) During winter 
months and during times of heavy use by large agricultural vehicles (which is frequent) this 
could prove to be particularly hazardous. NB there is barely room for 2 cars to pass without 
slowing down. 
 
Objection 3. Run -off/Wash off from the proposed development.  
NB there are no plans nor capacity for the council to take the run-off from this site into their 
water system. 
                     The large footprint of the buildings and infrastructure from the proposed 
development site (given the size of each plot) is likely to lead to significant. Run off 
problems. This would be further compounded by the compaction of the field/soil caused 
during any development of the site. 
                    The assertion that run-off from the site would naturally be diverted East and 
West is highly challengeable. I have lived in a property to the north of the site (for 30 years) 
and can attest that the water predominantly runs North and Northwest. This has resulted in 
water often pooling creating a boggy area at the northwest of the proposed site (in the area 

Page 456



where the new proposed pedestrian footpath is to be placed.) It is less noticeable at the 
moment since this area has been allowed to grow over with tufted grasses.  
The development of a path here would potentially increase run-off from the site towards 
the adjacent properties and a private road and then on to Earlston Rd. 
 
The increased anticipated run off here could especially affect land slip and subsidence issues 
for no. 80 Earlston Rd. as the hillside backs directly on to the building i.e. up to a height of 
approx. 2 metres). 
 
 If the run-off from the site were to be diverted into the Curzion burn it could potentially 
cause problems further down the burn at the culvert under the road at the corner of 
Earlston RD. (ie top of Earlston Rd. Nb there are records of a flash flood and drowning in this 
vicinity in the village archives.) and then potentially further down the stream towards the 
flood plain.  
 If this is a plausible concern, I would request that SEEPA and other relevant water, habitat 
and environmental stakeholders conduct a more rigorous investigation. 
 
 
R. Wilson 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 457



Page 458



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Cameron Jack

Address: 3 Cotland Place, Stow, Galashiels, Scottish Borders TD1 2QP

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

Comment:My reasons for objecting to the proposed development are;

 

1. The site is not within the permitted areas of the LDP

 

2. The design of the proposed housing is not in keeping with nearby dwellings,which are among

the oldest in the village.

 

3.The proposed site will add to run-off,already an issue on Earlston Road.

 

4. The site would put extra strain on the antiquated and already over worked sewage system.

 

5.Increased traffic congestion.

Page 459



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Penelope Day-Newbitt

Address: Foresters Cottage Eden Hall, Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 7QD

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Detrimental to Residential Amenity

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Loss of light

  - Loss of view

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

  - Water Supply

Comment:Sirs,

I have previously lived opposite the planned housing development and have been gravely

concerned regarding further development of the immediate environment.

 

The Council will be aware that the climate is changing and we can expect significant increases in

volume of precipitation and the likelihood of sudden inundations. The history of the burn includes

flooding without warning, both at the existing bridge at the furthest extent of the old housing stock

and lower down the burn near the village centre.

If the houses, road, bridge and footpath are built, increased volumes of runoff with decreased

open field and soil capacity to ease this run off will be likely to increase the risks to the inhabitants.

Currently the road is often challenged with high volumes of run off from higher up the hill creating

large areas of surface water both static and flowing especially as the road curves to run down the

steep hill. This specific area is a 'frost pocket' and the road is often dangerous to foot and
Page 460



vehicular traffic. It is likely that this present danger would be more frequent and possibly increased

with reduced capacity of the soil and hill to hold back sudden flooding. Has there been a risk

assessment of the type of proposed bridge to the possibility of causing erosion of the burn sides,

the reduction in wildlife amenity or the risk of disturbing the normal flow of the burn in spate so

increasing the risk of sudden 'surges' of water downstream? This must be secured if increased

danger is to be avoided.

 

The capacity of the narrow road to cope with construction traffic without the increased likelihood of

injury to persons and property is severely reduced. Farm traffic and large vehicles associated with

this vital activity already have an impact on the safety of foot traffic and free flow of domestic

vehicles, especially in winter and this would be increased. I could find no part of the plans that has

given any mitigation of these issues.

The developer has not demonstrated sufficient investigation of the water and sewage system or

made suggestions that would ensure problems with these issues would be properly mitigated

either in the short or long term.

 

The properties and their back gardens that are adjacent to the proposed development would be

overlooked and their privacy compromised for ever due to the topography of the site.

 

I ask that the Council should refer to their development plan as I understand that the proposal is

outside the designated village development area. Development 'creep' is a concern to everyone.

The building plans are in stark contrast to the historic building materials and adjacent building

sizes and they will be seen obtruding from the bounds of this historic village from points around

this village, even across the valley and reduce the amenity value of the immediate village area to

residents and visitors.

 

There is a huge need for affordable housing for local people and the proposed development will do

nothing to address this issue. In my opinion the building of 4 very large houses on this site does

not compliment the current village, rather it degrades its character for all while not addressing the

most pressing housing needs.

Page 461



NAME. R. Wilson and H. Wilson


ADDRESS. 80 Earlston Rd. Stow.


REF. Application ref. 20/01620/PPP


Objection 4. Habitat and Environmental Impact.


The report by Ellendale Environmental states that …. “no evidence of  protected species were 
noted during the survey”. 

Depending on what time of day and how long was spent on the survey ,……this comment could 
be accepted as  accurate (for the survey conducted ).


 However this does not prove that there are no protected species on ,or, using this site.


OTTER sightings have been recorded in the vicinity of the Gala water and its local tributaries .(and 
may well be using the Crunzie burn tributary and surrounding. area , at least, as a means of 
reaching other potential feeding/hunting sites further up the adjacent valleys .

 NB otters are extremely illusive but widely travelled.


  Other species regularly seen in this area include bats, deer, woodpeckers ,owls, nuthatch, 
goldfinch, chaffinch , hedge sparrow plus many more species.


In the report from Ellendale Environmental it further states and concludes that there were 
negligible roost potential for bats ( at the stable block to the south of the proposed development 
site ) .

 Whilst this may be true………. bats must be roosting somewhere ,nearby the site , as there are 
numerous and frequent sitings of Bats feeding/hunting in and around the proposed development 
site ( especially in and above the area of the Crunzie burn) and the dwellings to the north of the 
site.


  It is well documented that in habitats/ environments where there is water and mature 
woodland ,bordering arable land, bats could be both supported and find suitable roosting 
potential . Unfortunately the burn has already lost a substantial stretch of mature trees, very 
recently , in the Crunzie burn area around the proposed bridge access point to the site.

  

  It is possible that some bat species could be using some of the mature trees within the Crunzie 
burn area ( including under the bridge at top of Earlston rd.) as roosting sites .


   The proposed lighting of the proposed site may also further degrade the feeding /hunting 
environment for bats.


 Within the boundaries of the Crunzie burn ( at the site of the proposed access bridge) there are 
numerous snowdrop and some primrose plants as well as those documented in the report .


  NB.The bridge access area and culvert. 


    The potential increase in flow from the proposed access bridge culvert could result in the burns 
base, and as a consequence …insect larvae , invertebrates etc.being washed further down 
stream thus degrading the feeding environment for bats, birds and other small mammals 
( possibly shrews ).


 Given the above …..it is plausible to conclude that the habitat , species and environmental survey 
conducted appears to be limited and a more rigorous assessment should be sought from relevant 
stakeholders. Not doing so and being unsupported by such stakeholders could lead to 
costly ,future ,legal and mitigation interventions.


 

.

Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



P
age 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Grace A Frew

Address: Braeside, 33 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2RL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Flood plain risk

  - Road safety

Comment:Objection to Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

I am writing to object to Planning Application 21/01620/PPP, Development of Earlston Road. My

objections are set out below:

 

 

Objection 1:  Out with Local Development Plan

 

The application is out with the Local Development Plan (LDP) and out with the settlement

boundary of Stow. Indeed it is classed as 'white land'.  Therefore any inclusion or exemption to the

plan should merit wider community consultation.

 

Objection 2:  Road safety and congestion

 

Access to the site during the build, with lorries travelling to the site, will have a negative impact on

Earlston Road and safety for residents.

 

 

The transport statement prepared by Transport Planning notes that comprehensive comments

were made regarding the site as part of Local Development Plan and repeats what was said by

SBC in in 2018:

 
Page 475



 

"This site should not be zoned for development as the surrounding road network is too contained.

Earlston Road is narrow with a considerable level of on-street parking so that single file traffic is

forced along significant lengths. The footway in Earlston Road are very narrow to the extent that a

person with a pram or wheelchair is forced to use the carriageway and the roadside footway is so

steep that part of it is stepped, so not allowing 'battier free access. Furthermore, it is not possible

to provide a footway over Townhead Bridge and the public road leading to the site beyond the

bridge is narrow and steep with no suitable point of access because of the road gradients. "

 

 

Objection 3:  Potential increase in flooding and extra strain on sewage system within village of

Stow

 

      Stow is identified in the Scottish Borders Council's Flood Contingency Plan as being at risk of

flooding.

 

      Flood risk is increased outwith the site to the rest of Earlston Road and the lower lying land

and houses in Stow. SEPA would need to be re-assess flood risk and flood risk areas (and maps)

in Stow to take cognisance of the proposed new houses and the impact they would have on the

current identified flood risk areas.

 

      Currently SEPA does not carry out mapping for burns less than 3km2 and Crunzie Burn is less

than 3km2. Therefore the impact of the site is unknown.

 

 

Lastly a point to note: the very large size of the houses means they will not contribute to the

shortfall of housing in Stow and certainly will not fall into the affordable housing bracket, which is

particularly important for young people who have grown up in Stow. Therefore not contributing to

the requirements of the community to enable young people to continue to reside in Stow.

 

Page 476



From:laura steckler
Sent:Sat, 23 Jan 2021 11:40:06 +0000
To:Planning & Regulatory Services
Subject:objection to proposed development Ref 20/01620/PPP

CAUTION: External Email 

Dear Borders Council

I am writing to object to Proposed development Ref 20/01620/PPP.

I live at 60 Earlston Rd in Stow.   I have a number of concerns about the proposal:

1. I am part owner of the lane that is proposed as a public footpath.  I would firstly like to 
question why I have not been included in the initial consultation on this?  I am concerned 
that liability for accidents/injuries incurred on that lane could fall to the owners.  It gets 
very icy in winter and is dangerous.  Furthermore, I strongly object to increase foot traffic 
by my home.  I bought this home in 2007 because of its peaceful position.  In addition, as 
I am responsible in part (with 4  others) for the maintenance of the path, increased traffic 
will necessitate more frequent upkeep.

2. I am concerned about increased vehicular traffic on Earlston Road.  I frequently walk 
by the site, there are cyclists, children playing etc.  The road is windy.  I am  concerned 
that there could  be  increased accidents, pollution, and a less hospitable environment for 
the rural activities that so many in the village engage in.

3. Drainage  is also an issue.  We suffer some minor flooding already and I am concerned 
that run-off from the proposed building site could exacerbate this.

4. I am concerned that the style of housing is not in keeping with the character of the 
village which is important to me and one of the reasons I moved here.

5.  There are a number of other approved development sites within the Local 
Development Plan, still to be fully developed and I do not want to encourage 
‘development creep’.  

I trust that you will consider these objections seriously.  Can you please acknowledge 
receipt of this message?

Yours sincerely,

Dr Laura Steckler

60 Earlston Rd 
Stow
TD1 2QT 

Page 477



Dr. Laura Hope Steckler
Clinical & Somatic Psychology & Psychotherapy
BPS Chartered; HCPC & UKCP Registered
laura@laura-steckler.com
www.laura-steckler.com
07770235081

Page 478

mailto:laura@laura-steckler.com
http://www.laura-steckler.com/


Page 479



Page 480



From:Lorna Lagerman
Sent:Mon, 25 Jan 2021 12:59:30 +0000
To:Planning & Regulatory Services
Subject:Ref 20/01620/PPP

CAUTION: External Email 

Dear Scottish Borders Council

We are writing to you with our objections for the proposed development Ref 
20/01620/PPP.

We live at 56, Earlston Road and we have the following concerns regarding this proposed 
development:

1. Our 200 year old house sits adjacent to the lane where the footpath is proposed 
for. Drainage is already a huge issue for us. We have spent thousands already on 
damp coursing and have to use a pump daily in our back garden to manage 
flooding. Run off from the site is a big concern for us. 

2. Earlston road is already in a terrible state of disrepair with many large potholes. 
The road is also very narrow and on street parking is very challenging. Vehicles 
often have to reverse the length of the road as bypassing is not possible. Many 
large commercial vehicles already use Earlston road as a connection to Lauder 
and Earlston. We are very concerned about how the street will cope with 
increased traffic. 

3. As outlined in point 2, increased use of the road will also cause safety issues. 
There are many young children living on this street. We do not allow our daughter 
to cross the road without adult supervision. Many families, cyclists and dog 
walkers use this road and on one occasion our dog was narrowly missed being hit 
by a van. Despite the current speed limit, most vehicles still travel above 20mph. 
Increased traffic means increased likelihood of accidents occuring.

4. There are already proposed development sites and this is not one of them. We 
would also like to know why trees have already been felled with anticipation of 
building work. Very few residents seem to have been consulted about this plan 
and we want to know why when ultimately it will affect many.

We moved to Stow several years ago to raise our young daughter in what we hoped 
would be a safe, village location. Whilst we appreciate development is inevitable, we 
certainly did not expect it to occur out with the proposed areas. If this development gets 
the go ahead, then what's to say more fields aren't taken over to large new build 
properties that are not in keeping with the style and character of the village.

Yours Sincerely

Page 481



Mr. and Mrs. Lagerman

Page 482



Page 483



P
age 484



P
age 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



P
age 495



P
age 496



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr PHIL PETCHEY

Address: Haypark, Hay Park Loan, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2QT

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to Residential Amenity

  - Increased traffic

  - Land affected

  - No sufficient parking space

  - Noise nuisance

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Value of property

Comment:HayPark Cottage is on the lower part of Earlston Road where it is at its steepest. Two

other roads converge at this point. I have observed how dangerous it is to both traffic and

pedestrians at this bend of Earlston Road: traffic needs to reverse on a very steep hill to allow

vehicles to pass. The road has considerable on-street parking and narrow access. My father used

a mobility scooter and he had to use the road as pavement was unsuitable or parked cars blocked

use. I believe it would be creating an additional hazard to allow extra traffic on this already

congested road.

Page 497



Ref. Application 20/01620/PPP


R. Wilson 80 Earlston Rd. Stow .


Objection 5. To above referenced application. 26/01/2021


I object to the proposed development on grounds that our property will be overlooked by 
especially plots 1 and  2 ,which are positioned directly to the south of our property , thus 
infringing on our privacy. 


The claim that there would be limited viewing from adjacent properties ( in Land and Visual Impact 
report ) and that.  ” this would not be from primary.rooms “ is inaccurate as our main rooms ( living 
room, kitchen and bathroom ) are upstairs and facing  south.


We will also be looking at buildings which appear to be totally out of keeping with both the size 
and design of the nearby adjacent historic buildings on the edge of the conservation boundaries .


NB. It is rumoured that the nearby adjacent , historic buildings were omitted from the conservation  
area due to oversight.


The proposed screen of structural woodland may eventually hide some of the buildings in plots 1 
& 2 but would ,inevitably , bring unwanted shade to our property. Nb  sun and light is 
predominantly from the south.


Without properly, integrated ,scaled measurements of the whole field ( the Lambing Field ) , the 
development site, the building plots and the proposed buildings ….it is difficult to gauge how 
serious an impact the size of such buildings would have on the visual appraisal from nearby and 
other view points throughout the village. 


We therefor have no option but to object and would contest some of the assumptions made in the  
Landscape and Visual appraisal report associated with this planning application.


R.Wilson and H. Wilson


 

Page 498



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Miss Anne Richardson

Address: Corriegills, 47 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2RL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Road safety

Comment:- Increased traffic/road safety

Given the steep gradient, narrow width, blind bends and on-street parking on Earlston Road the

increased traffic resulting from this proposed development not to mention the construction vehicles

which would require access to and from the site increases the risk of accidents for both drivers

and pedestrians. Visibility is poor, passing places are few, vehicles frequently have to reverse to

allow approaching drivers to pass. The capacity for on-street parking has been reached and given

its narrow width this effectively reduces the road to single track. Larger vehicles struggle to

navigate the road and residents have to move parked cars to facilitate passage. Disabled

residents are forced to use mobility scooters on the road as the pavement is not suitable, e.g.

there are steps and it is obstructed by parked cars. The road is popular with hikers, cyclists and

horse riders not to mention young children playing outside their homes and increased traffic would

jeopardize their safety.

 

- Inadequate drainage

Heavy rain results in water and debris running down Earlston Road which given the steep gradient

can be hazardous for drivers and pedestrians leading to icy conditions in low temperatures and

posing a potential flood risk. Increased water run-off from the proposed development site will

further compound this situation.

 

- Contrary to local development plan
Page 499



The proposed development is outside the Council's designated local development area plan and is

not in keeping with the historic nature of the adjacent properties. The situation of this development

will be visible from outside the village and is detrimental to its character and to the surrounding

environment.

Page 500



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Scott Montgomery

Address: 54 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2QT

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Flood plain risk

  - Increased traffic

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

Comment:I would like to add my objection to Planning Application 21/01620/PPP, Development of

Earlston Road.

 

As the site of the proposal is outwith the Local Development Plan, this development should not be

pursued as it clearly requires wider consultation with the community as a whole and should not

proceed as an exception to the LDP as this creates a precedent for development creep. As has

been noted in other objections, there are other locations which are available for development in

the LDP and in areas which do not clash in character with the surrounding properties, which these

properties clearly do.

 

Earlston Road is an old and narrow street which does not lend itself to this sort of development. I

point you to the Scottish Borders Council Full Site Assessments for ASTOW029:

 

"This site should not be zoned for development as the surrounding road network is too contained.

Earlston Road is narrow with a considerable level of on-street parking so that single file traffic is

forced along significant lengths. The footway in Earlston Road are very narrow to the extent that a

person with a pram or wheelchair is forced to use the carriageway and the roadside footway is so

steep that part of it is stepped, so not allowing 'battier free access. Furthermore, it is not possible
Page 501



to provide a footway over Townhead Bridge and the public road leading to the site beyond the

bridge is narrow and steep with no suitable point of access because of the road gradients. "

 

Four large houses will also put a greater load on the sewage system on Earlston Road - and this

despite currently being outside the Stow boundary. The SBC LDP notes: "With regard to Waste

Water Treatment Works, Stow has limited capacity". It is also unclear what the consequences will

be for flooding and runoff in the street which is often an issue already.

 

I am frustrated that the trees have been felled in preparation for the bridge for this proposal even

before any invitation to object was issued. Also, since the increase in traffic on this narrow, steep

and winding road will impact all who live on and use Earlston Road, it is disappointing more people

were not formally invited by SBC to comment or object.

 

Regards,

 

Dr Scott Montgomery

54 Earlston Road

Stow

TD1 2QT

Page 502



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr William Finlayson

Address: Whyalla, 29 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2RL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Increased traffic

  - Land affected

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

Comment:-The proposed development lies outside of the LDP permitted areas.

-These houses would not contribute to the lack of quality affordable housing in the village.

-There are already regular recurring problems with the drainage and sewer system for the street.

-The road is very narrow with poor visibility, and not suited to additional traffic.

Page 503



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Conor Moran

Address: The Yellow House, 35 Earlston Road, Stow Galashiels, Scottish Borders TD1 2RL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Inadequate access

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Land affected

  - Loss of view

  - Noise nuisance

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

  - Water Supply

Comment:If the proposed planning were to go ahead, it would be detrimental to the local

environment whilst also causing grave concern for the safety of Stow's residents, particularly

families with children.

 

The disruption caused by the building of these properties would disrupt local wildlife. Deer

regularly roam in the field which has been highlighted in the planning application as well as the

adjacent woods.

 

The top of Earlston Road already suffers from inadequate drainage during heavy rain and snow,

and the building of these new properties will only serve to exacerbate this problem.

 

There are grave safety concerns which should prohibit the building of property outside of the
Page 504



current local development plan, specifically in the case of this application.

 

Earlston Road is a narrow road and is already full to capacity with parked vehicles. This is the

case during the day as well as during the early morning and evening. There simply is not the

space for heavy good vehicles to navigate Earlston Road safely without great disruption for

neighbouring residents.

 

The adjacent woods are frequently used by families, dog-owners and children for walking, cycling

and playing. It is in respect of children playing and cycling in the woods that I am most concerned.

The woods at the top of Earlston Road are a safe place for children to play freely with limited

danger. Increased traffic from the proposed planning permission reduces the safety of local

residents in the long-term as well as during any construction work.

 

Many houses on Earlston Road, such as ours, have no front garden and the front door leads

immediately onto the pavement and road. It is already a concern for families with young children

that there is such a limited space between that front door and the road, and there is always a risk

that children could inadvertently walk onto the road and in the way of oncoming traffic. This is

obviously always a risk, but it is not one which needs to be increased as a result of building new

properties and increasing through traffic.

 

In addition to the above, the proposed access to the new developments is at a blind bend on a

road where many vehicles already travel too quickly to be deemed safe.

 

You may gather from the above that there are already several safety concerns regarding the

increase in traffic that Earlston Road has seen in recent years. The development of four large

family homes with double garages will only increase the risk of danger posed to residing

neighbours and should be carefully considered in the matter of this planning proposal.

Page 505



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Miss Jordan Wilson

Address: The Yellow House, 35 Earlston Road, Stow Galashiels, Scottish Borders TD1 2RL

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Detrimental to environment

  - Inadequate access

  - Inadequate drainage

  - Increased traffic

  - Loss of view

  - No sufficient parking space

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Value of property

Comment:Reasons for objection as follows:

 

Having grown up in Stow and now living here with my family, Earlston Road has always been

busy, with a struggle for parking and many cars going up and down. Building of additional

properties would only add to this, both during construction and when complete. With many children

living on the street, this is something that would impact massively on their safety walking up and

down the hill. More children and families also use the woods to play and to walk dogs, the

increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of them.

 

The properties proposed would be facing directly onto existing properties on Earlston Road, one of

which I grew up in. This not only takes away views but more importantly privacy of people living in

these houses, one of the many reasons they were purchased.

 

It has been clear from the winter that we have just had that the road leading up to the proposed
Page 506



development site can become covered in ice, snow and a lot of mud. With the access to the site

on a blind bend, this could prove to be hazardous. This is not only the case in the winter, but also

in other months with many agricultural vehicles using the road also. The increase of this also

contributes to the flood risk in the area.

Page 507



From:TheGingerking video thing
Sent:Thu, 28 Jan 2021 17:11:19 +0000
To:Planning & Regulatory Services
Subject:Planning reference Comment.

CAUTION: External Email 

Samuel Hartswood,
88, Earlston Road, Stow.
Ref: 20/01620/PPP.
 
Comment
 
I have lived in Stow all my life and enjoy the proximity to the countryside. I thought that 
being within the conservation part of the village would protect this end of Earlston Road 
from development. Apparently our house was removed from the conservation protection 
after 2012 and I do not know why this decision was made.
 
The local development plan (LDP) and village boundary are on our garden boundary. 
This should also be taken into consideration when planning outside these areas, 
preferably with community consultation. I was surprised to find that there was a previous 
LDP application to put our eighteenth century house on a roundabout as part of site 
access in 2016. I am glad this was rejected. This is a historic and beautiful part of the 
village; this development is of large, modern looking houses that do not seem to fit in.
 
I want the countryside and woodland to be there for other people to enjoy in the future. 

Page 508



Comments for Planning Application 20/01620/PPP

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01620/PPP

Address: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr Mark Hartswood

Address: Hillcrest, 88 Earlston Road, Stow, Scottish Borders TD1 2QT

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Detrimental to Residential Amenity

  - Inadequate access

  - Increased traffic

  - No sufficient parking space

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

Comment:For the attention of Carlos Clarke, regarding planning application 20/01620/PPP

 

Objection to the proposal.

 

Appropriateness of the development

 

The proposed development is outside any of the areas designated for development in the village

plan. The site has been suggested before for inclusion in the plan and rejected as unsuitable. The

policy under which the development is justified refers to remote developments and not ones

adjacent to village boundaries (Policy HD2). Appropriate levels of land have been made available

in the local plan so an extra allocation is unwarranted (Policy PMD4). If the the developer wishes

to develop their site they should do this as part of the village plan process. The developer has not

made clear any community benefits to this site nor has the developer consulted with the

community how any wider benefit might be achieved. Expensive villas are proposed rather than

housing affordable by young people growing up locally.

 
Page 509



Conservation

 

The proposed development is adjacent to the main conservation area of the village and its original

historical centre. Road access to the development is via a newly proposed bridge crossing

Crunzian burn outwith but adjacent to the village boundary. Installing the bridge, large modern

housing and infilling the burn will substantially alter the approach to the village and negatively

impact character of the conservation area. This does not represent a logical extension of a built up

area (PMD4).

 

Visibility

 

The proposed road access is on a steep part of Earlston Road frequently used by walkers,

cyclists, horse riders and farm vehicles. The road is narrow and often icy in the winter. Having an

additional junction on a steep section of narrow road where visibility is reduced by sharp bends

and where there is frequent pedestrian, animal and cycle use will create additional hazards and

significantly reduce its value as an amenity for the community and others using the area for

exercise and recreation.

 

The extent of the visibility from the proposed junction up and down the road presented in the

supporting documents is questionable. The visibility spay shown on the developer's plan to the

north is shown to the wrong side of the carriageway. If drawn to the correct side this is reduced

significantly. This is a steep, narrow road with fast moving bicycles thus increasing the need for

good visibility. The verges on the West side of the road are outwith the owner's control often

overgrown with gorse which may obscure the bend. I believe the visibility onto a potentially 60mph

road should be 4.5x215m which is not actually achieved.

 

Vehicular access and congestion

 

Parking on Earlston Road is limited. Parked cars mean that the road that there are considerable

lengths single lane transit with limited passing places. Larger vehicles mount the pavement to

allow cars to pass which is hazardous for those in properties where there is a narrow pavement.

Additional traffic from the proposed development will add to this congestion. Moreover, due to the

steepness of the slope, Earlston Road itself is often becomes impassable in the winter due to

snow and ice. When road access is cut off to the proposed development this would lead to up to 8

more vehicles looking to park on Earlston Road or lower down in the village which, as noted

above, is already congested.

Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Objection to application 20/01620/PPP  4/2/2021 

  from R. Wilson on behalf of objector who wishes to remain anonymous . This objection was 
handed in to me last night (3/2/2021) by a local resident, with a request to submit it on their 
behalf.


1. Lack of transparency with the community : I was shocked to hear of this development. I have 
been told that the proposal for these houses was placed in the Southern Reporter. Not in my 
opinion an adequate way in which to inform or involve a village community. The notification 
was, apparently, so small it could have been easily missed .                                                  
Secondly during this pandemic life is different for many people,  more effort should have been 
made by the developers to ensure the community were well informed and given an 
opportunity to comment.


2. Outwith the LDP : There is a real concern that if this development is allowed, it will grow ‘arms 
and legs’ and the relaxation of the development plan could also give way to further 
developments outwith the LDP. There is the danger that Stow just becomes another commuter 
town losing its heart and sole. Too many houses and uncoordinated developments being a 
contributory factor . We do not need further houses to be built over and above the, already 
allocated, LDP. Furthermore these house are unaffordable to most.


3. Access :  Earlston Rd is used a lot by the local community for recreation eg. walkers, cyclists, 
runners and horses .The woods alongside are particularly popular with families and children.  
The increase in traffic and the fact that the access, to the proposed development site , is 
between two ‘blind’ corners giving rise to a  real concern for the safety of families and 
individuals.                                                                                                                    
Furthermore we should be trying to improve the communities access to green spaces, the 
countryside and woodland and NOT make it more restrictive. 


4. Increase in traffic :   Earlston Rd is already very busy. On street parking and being a narrow 
road means that drivers frequently have to reverse in order to allow others to pass.                                      
During the winter the hill can become very dangerous and sometimes impossible to drive up 
or down with many people resorting to parking their cars at Townfoot. ( This is also a problem 
when snow is forecast and people have to leave for work early in the morning )                                            


      Who is going to ensure that access to the proposed new development is kept clear  ?


5.   Felling of trees :   Lastly why were trees felled prior to the proposed development being 
passed ? The road was blocked whilst this was happening no notification was given, drivers were 
having to turn back .          


Page 520



Page 521

Agenda Item 6d



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 523



Page 524



Page 525



Page 526



Page 527



Page 528



Page 529



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Appeal Decision Notice 

T: 0300 244 6668 

E: dpea@gov.scot 

 

 
Decision 
 
I dismiss the appeal and refuse planning permission. 
 
Preliminary matters 
 
The proposed development falls within the description in paragraph 10 (b) of column 1 of 
the table in schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (Scotland) Regulations 2017 and exceeds the threshold in column 2 of the 
table in schedule 2.  However, on 14 April, I issued a screening direction confirming that the 
development for which planning permission is sought is not EIA development. 
 
I have considered the potential for the proposal to have a significant effect on the River 
Tweed, a designated Special Area of Conservation (SAC).  The appellant’s ecological 
survey identifies a hydrological connection between the site and the river, via a culverted 
watercourse under the A703.  This report concludes that, due to the potential for pollution, 
significant effects on the qualifying interests of the SAC could arise during both the 
construction process and subsequent occupation of the site.  It advises that such potential 
effects could be mitigated by appropriate control of construction works and by suitable 
surface and foul water drainage arrangements. 
 
When considering whether significant effects on a SAC are likely, no regard should be had 
to mitigating measures.  Therefore, I find that foul and surface water drainage from the 
proposed development, and the construction works, would give rise to likely significant 
effects on the SPA, requiring me to carry out an Appropriate Assessment.  I summarise this 
in my consideration of effects on the water environment, later in this notice. 
 
 
 

 
Decision by David Buylla, a Reporter appointed by the Scottish Ministers 
 
 Planning appeal reference: PPA-140-2088 
 Site address: land east of Knapdale, 54 Edinburgh Road, Peebles, EH48 8EB 
 Appeal by S Carmichael Properties Limited against the failure of Scottish Borders Council 

to determine within the statutory period, an application for planning permission 
reference 20/00753/FUL dated 13 July 2020 

 The development proposed: erection of 22 dwellinghouses with new access road and 
associated work 

 Date of site visit by Reporter: 9 April 2021 
 
Date of appeal decision:  18 May 2021 

Page 531

Agenda Item 6e



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

2 

Reasoning 
 
1. I am required to determine this appeal in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.   Special regard must also be had to the 
desirability of preserving the setting of nearby listed buildings. 
 
2. The development plan comprises the Edinburgh and South East Scotland Strategic 
Development Plan 2013 (SESplan) including its accompanying supplementary guidance on 
housing 2014 (the SESplan Housing SG) and the Scottish Borders Local Development 
Plan 2016 (the LDP) including its supplementary guidance on housing 2017 (the LDP 
Housing SG).  A replacement strategic development plan (SESplan 2) was rejected by 
Scottish Ministers in 2019 so is not part of the development plan.  A proposed replacement 
for the LDP has been published but has yet to be submitted for examination. 
 
3. Having regard to the provisions of the development plan, the main issues in this 
appeal are: the adequacy of the five year supply of effective housing land; whether the 
proposal would be sustainable development; and its effects on visual amenity, landscape 
and townscape character, the setting of nearby listed buildings, and the water environment. 
 
Is there a five year supply of effective housing land? 
 
4. The appeal site lies outside the LDP defined development boundary for Peebles 
where LDP Policy PMD4 confirms that housing development proposals will normally be 
refused.  However, both PMD4 and also SESplan Policy 7 potentially permit an exception to 
this presumption where it can be demonstrated that the proposal would contribute to 
addressing a shortfall in the five year supply of effective housing land.  Scottish Planning 
Policy (SPP) also recognises the importance of maintaining such a supply. 
 
5. SPP was revised in December 2020.  Some of the revisions affect how I must 
assess the adequacy of the effective housing land supply.  There is a current Court of 
Session challenge to the revised SPP.  I have addressed the implications of this challenge 
in the conclusions section of this notice.     
 
6. SPP paragraph 125 confirms that, where a proposal for housing development is for 
sustainable development and the decision-maker establishes that there is a shortfall in the 
housing land supply in accordance with Planning Advice Note (PAN) 1/2020, the shortfall is 
a material consideration in favour of the proposal.  I address the sustainability question 
later, having first considered the adequacy of the housing land supply. 
 
7. PAN 1/2020 explains how to calculate the five year effective housing land supply.  It 
advises that the plan period housing land requirement from the adopted development plan 
should be divided by the plan period in years to identify an annual figure, which is then 
multiplied by five. This figure should then be compared with the five year supply of effective 
housing land, based on information collected as part of the housing land audit process, to 
establish whether there is a shortfall or surplus.   
 
8. The plan period housing land requirement for the entire SESplan region is set out in 
SESplan Policy 5 and this is broken down into individual council areas in the accompanying 
SESplan Housing SG.  These authority-specific targets are nearly seven years old and only 
run until 2024.  Replacement housing requirements will be introduced in the fourth National 

Page 532



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

3 

Planning Framework (NPF4) probably in 2022.  Until then, one must decide either that it is 
impossible to determine whether there is a housing supply shortfall (on the basis that there 
is no up to date development plan housing land requirement) or alternatively, use a five 
times multiplier of the annualised SESplan Housing SG housing land requirement until 
NPF4 is in place.  I regard the latter option as preferable, as it should still allow appropriate 
windfall sites to be justified by a shortfall in supply, which would be impossible if the 
alternative approach were taken. 
 
9. Figure 3.1 of the SESplan Housing SG confirms the housing land requirement for 
each LDP area within the SESplan region for the periods 2009 to 2019 and 2019 to 2024.  
For Scottish Borders, the figures are 9650 and 3280 respectively, giving a total of 12930 for 
that 15 year period - an annual average build rate of 862.  The SESplan Housing SG 
expected most of these to be built on land which was already committed for development 
either because it had already been allocated for that purpose or because planning 
permission had been granted.  

 
10. Applying the methodology in PAN 1/2020 gives a five year requirement 
of 862 x 5 = 4310 homes. 
 
11. One role of the LDP is to allocate sufficient housing land to meet that requirement.  
The LDP examination found that insufficient land had been allocated and the council was 
required to submit supplementary guidance to Scottish Ministers within 12 months of the 
LDP adoption that would find land for an additional 916 units.  In accordance with LDP 
Policy HD4, the council produced the LDP Housing SG in 2017.  Due to adjustments to the 
supply since the LDP examination, this needed to identify land for an additional 811 units to 
meet the SESplan Housing SG requirement.    
 
12. Having established the number of homes that require to be provided, it is necessary 
to consider whether the supply of effective land is likely to be sufficient.  The council and 
appellant disagree on this matter.  In drawing together my own conclusions, I have borne in 
mind that any assessment of this issue requires assumptions to be made about when sites 
in the established supply will be developed.  Therefore, it is unrealistic to regard any 
calculation as infallible.   
 
13. The council relies upon the most recent Scottish Borders Housing Land Audit 
(the 2019 HLA), which was published in April 2020 following input from local and national 
housing developers and the owners of sites that are identified within the established 
housing land supply.  It finds an established supply of 9176, of which 3679 are considered 
to be effective or capable of becoming effective within the five year period 2019 to 2024 and 
a further 1945 units identified as potentially effective in years 6 and 7 (2025 and 2026).  
 
14. The council’s position (as set out in the 2019 HLA) is that in a rural area where 
housing demand is relatively weak, it is most appropriate to base predictions of future 
demand on the average number of completions that have occurred over the previous five 
years.  It describes this as “prospective market demand” and distinguishes it from “the 
theoretical requirement”, which is derived from the development plan’s housing land 
requirement.  Over the period 2015 to 2019, 1462 homes were constructed, which is an 
average of 292 per annum.  If the effective five year supply of 3679 is compared with that 
rate of completions, there would be appear to be a very healthy supply. 
 

Page 533



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

4 

15. While I can understand the council’s position that it does not consider that a shortage 
of housing land has constrained the rate of housebuilding in the recent past, it would be 
inconsistent with PAN 1/2020 to calculate the requirement for the next five years not on the 
development plan’s housing land requirement, but on the level of past delivery.  SPP 
expects any assessment of a housing supply shortfall to be made using the PAN 1/2020 
methodology and, according to that methodology, the comparison should be between the 
five year target of 4310 and the identified effective supply of 3679.  If this is credible then it 
appears there is a significant shortfall in the effective supply which potentially opens up a 
route to approval under SESplan Policy 7 and LDP Policy PMD4 and is, in any event, a 
material consideration in favour of allowing this appeal.  
 
16. The appellant believes the 2019 HLA overstates the true extent of the effective five 
year supply.  It has raised three main challenges to its findings.  The first relies upon an 
argument that the housing land supply should be focussed on sites within SDAs, which 
would best support SESplan’s spatial strategy and are likely to be attractive to developers.  
The second raises queries over the effectiveness of specific sites.  The final challenge is to 
the council’s assumptions about delivery from small sites. 
 
17. I do not agree with the first of these grounds of challenge.  The fact that a site is not 
located within an SDA might make it less favourable in policy terms, but if it already has an 
allocation or permission, then not being located within an area that SESplan identifies as 
the primary focus for development, should not, in itself, affect an assessment of its 
effectiveness.  I also agree with the council that in order to support rural services and 
communities, some housing development away from the SDAs may continue to be required 
as a matter of policy.  I note that LDP Policy HD2 specifically allows for housing in the 
countryside in certain circumstances.  Therefore, I agree with the council that the existence 
of these sites (and the contribution they could make to the effective supply) cannot be 
ignored on the basis that they are not located within an SDA.   
 
18. I agree with the appellant that, being located in a less accessible (non–SDA) location 
could affect a site’s attractiveness to a potential developer.  However, rather than make an 
assumption that non-SDA sites will, inevitably, be less attractive to prospective developers, 
I believe the issue requires to be looked at on a site by site basis. 
 
19. Such a site by site analysis of the 2019 HLA-identified effective supply forms the 
basis of the appellant’s second ground of challenge.  As already stated, it is impossible to 
conclude that effectiveness predictions are either correct or incorrect or to quantify the 
scale of the supply with absolute precision.  Instead, I have considered whether it is the 
council’s or the appellant’s assessment of the sites in dispute that seems the more credible 
in order to make a broad estimate of the scale of any shortfall so that the weight it should 
be given in the planning balance can be gauged. 
 
20. Both sides have clearly looked at this issue very closely.  However, the council has 
the advantage of having access to confidential pre-application discussions with site owners 
and prospective developers and has provided examples of sites that the appellant thought 
to be ineffective that have subsequently made progress towards development.  Therefore, 
having regard to all of the submitted commentary on the sites in question, I am more 
persuaded by the council’s site by site assessments of effectiveness. 
 

Page 534



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

5 

21. Turning to the appellant’s final criticism of the 2019 HLA, I am not persuaded that the 
council’s allowance for future delivery from small sites is unreasonable, as it is informed by 
evidence of the important role such sites play in the delivery of housing within the Scottish 
Borders area.  The appellant points out that 60% of small sites that were developed over 
the past five years were outwith settlements, which is inconsistent with the focus on SDAs.  
However, given the council’s support for a certain level of development in rural locations (as 
confirmed in LDP Policy HD2), I find no justification for reducing the allowance for small 
sites in this way.   
 
22. Taking all submissions into account,  when assessed using the methodology 
recommended by PAN 1/2020, I find no justification to depart from the findings of the 2019 
HLA, which suggests there is a shortfall in the five year all-tenure supply of effective 
housing land of around 600 units. 
 
23. SESplan 2 has been referred to by both main parties.  Had it not been rejected by 
Scottish Ministers, this would have provided replacement housing requirements to those set 
out in SESplan.  In July 2019, following Scottish Ministers’ rejection of that proposed plan, 
the six authorities within the region agreed a Joint Housing Land Position Statement.  This 
confirmed that, when considering planning applications, along with other relevant material, 
the authorities would take most SESplan 2 policies into account along with the Housing 
Need and Demand Assessment (HNDA) 2015 and other studies that fed into SESplan 2. 
 
24. SESplan 2 (as proposed) would have required the Scottish Borders Council area to 
accommodate an annual average total of 383 homes over the period 2018 to 2030.  
Applying the PAN 1/2020 methodology, this would have been a five year requirement 
of 5 x 383 = 1915 homes.  This is far lower than the 4310 requirement I calculated from the 
current SESplan and well below the effective supply identified in the 2019 HLA.  This 
significantly lower target reflects a general reduction in predicted levels of need and 
demand than had been identified previously, and a greater focus on providing housing 
within Edinburgh rather than meeting some of the city’s demand elsewhere.  And in the 
examination of SESplan 2, it was recommended that the annual housing land requirement 
for Scottish Borders be further reduced to 320 units per annum (1600 over five years).   
 
25. The SESplan 2 housing land requirement does not replace that set out in SESplan, 
as SESplan 2 has no development plan status.  Therefore, it does not alter my conclusion 
that there is a significant five year effective land shortfall.  I have considered in the 
conclusions section of this notice whether any weight should be given to the evidence base 
that informed SESplan 2’s proposed approach, which suggests a significant decline in need 
and demand in the Scottish Borders. 
 
Would the proposal be sustainable development? 
 
26. I have assessed the proposal against the thirteen principles that paragraph 29 of 
SPP expects to be taken into account when assessing whether a proposal would support 
sustainable development.  Not all are relevant to all forms of development so I am 
principally concerned with identifying any areas where the proposal is in direct conflict with 
a sustainability principle rather than those where it is unable to achieve a particular 
objective that is not strictly applicable. 
 

Page 535



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

6 

27. The first requires due weight to be given to net economic benefit.  I find it reasonable 
to predict that this (and indeed any) housing development proposal would generate an 
economic benefit for the land owner and developer, along with wider economic benefits to 
those employed in the construction process and to businesses within the service and 
supply sectors that would contribute to the development.  The spending power of future 
residents of the proposed houses is also likely to benefit the economy of the town.  There is 
no evidence to suggest that there would be any negative economic consequences so I am 
satisfied that is first sustainable development principle is met. 
 
28. The second principle expects development to respond to economic issues, 
challenges and opportunities, as outlined in local economic strategies.  I have not been 
advised of any such strategy to which this proposal would respond.  
 
29. The third is concerned with supporting good design and the six qualities of 
successful places which are: distinctive; safe and pleasant; easy to move around and 
beyond; welcoming; adaptable; and resource efficient.   I am confident that, subject to 
matters of detail being controlled by conditions, this principle could be satisfied. 
 
30. The fourth principle expects efficient use to be made of existing capacities of land, 
buildings and infrastructure including supporting town centre and regeneration priorities.  
The proposed development of a greenfield site outside the settlement boundary is 
inconsistent with this principle, particularly when there are sites identified within Peebles in 
the 2019 HLA that would better support it. 
 
31. As it is located within a reasonable walking distance of Peebles’ extensive range of 
services, I am satisfied that the site would support the delivery of accessible housing, in 
accordance with the fifth principle of sustainable development. 
 
32. In accordance with the sixth principle, the developer could be required to make an 
appropriate contribution towards the delivery of any necessary infrastructure, for example 
transport, education, energy, digital and water. 
 
33. The seventh principle expects proposals to support climate change mitigation and 
adaptation including taking account of flood risk.  There is no reason to suspect a flood risk 
issue with this proposal or any other adverse consequence of climate change.  In 
comparison with a less accessibly located site, development here could help to reduce the 
need for motorised travel and therefore greenhouse gas emissions.  Therefore I am 
satisfied that this principle is met. 
 
34. The eighth principle involves improving health and well-being by offering 
opportunities for social interaction and physical activity, including sport and recreation.  
Other than retaining the upper areas of the site as open land (to which the public already 
has rights of access under the Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003) the proposal would not 
incorporate any specific measures to encourage health and well-being.  The development 
(as with any residential development proposal) would provide an opportunity for its 
residents to interact socially. 
 
35. The ninth principle has regard to the principles for sustainable land use set out in the 
Land Use Strategy.  These principles encourage a wide-ranging consideration of the 
impacts of land use decisions.  Of those that are relevant to the appeal proposal, I am 

Page 536



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

7 

satisfied that the land is not so suited to a primary use such as food production or water 
catchment management that it should be reserved for such purposes; there is no evidence 
that the proposal would harm the functioning of any ecosystem.  However, the inevitable 
suburbanisation of the site and its prominence mean it would have significantly harmful 
visual effects and would cause significant harm to the landscape and townscape.  I discuss 
these later in this notice.  The site’s reasonably accessible location could allow future 
residents to choose travel options other than the car, thereby potentially reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.  I am also satisfied that the proposal would not cause a 
significant loss of outdoor recreation opportunity.  Overall, I find the proposal is only partially 
compatible with the principles of sustainable land use in the Land Use Strategy and that 
where it is in conflict with that strategy, the adverse consequences would be significant.   
 
36. The tenth principle is concerned with protecting, enhancing and promoting access to 
cultural heritage, including the historic environment.  As I discuss later in this notice, the 
curtilages of two listed buildings would be adversely affected to some extent by the 
proposal, contrary to this principle of sustainable development. 
 
37. The eleventh principle is about protecting, enhancing and promoting access to 
natural heritage, including green infrastructure, landscape and the wider environment.  For 
reasons already stated, I predict that the effects of the proposal in this regard would be 
essentially neutral. 
 
38. The twelfth principle is about reducing waste, facilitating its management and 
promoting resource recovery.  This has no significant relevance to the proposal. 
 
39. The final sustainable development principle is concerned with avoiding over-
development, protecting the amenity of new and existing development and considering the 
implications of development for water, air and soil quality.   
 
40. The development density would be compatible with that of its surroundings and there 
is no evidence of any water, air or soil quality concerns.   
 
41. Some residents of properties on Edinburgh Road are concerned about loss of views, 
overlooking and overshadowing from the proposed homes.  No party has right to a view 
over land they do not control and the appellant’s response to residents’ concerns 
demonstrates that the council’s standards for such matters (as set out in its guidance note) 
would all be exceeded.  I am satisfied that, even accounting for the ground level difference 
between existing homes and those now proposed, the separation distances of between 36 
and 46 metres, together with the proposed tree belt, would avoid any unacceptable 
impression of being overlooked.  I have no reason to doubt the accuracy of the appellant’s 
sun path analysis which found that during both winter and summer months, there would be 
little additional obstruction to sunlight from the proposed houses than is already caused by 
the rising land to the east of the existing homes.   
 
42. Taking all factors into account, I am satisfied that the effect on these properties 
would not be overbearing or likely to lead to any material loss of privacy or amenity and my 
conclusion overall is that this principle of sustainable development would be met. 
 
43. Overall, I find that the proposal would satisfy most, but not all, of the principles that 
SPP paragraph 29 expects to be taken into account in assessing whether a proposal would 

Page 537



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

8 

support sustainable development.  However, the adverse consequences of the areas where 
the principles of sustainable development would not be satisfied –the use of a greenfield 
site outside the settlement boundary when alternatives appear to be available, the resultant 
significant adverse landscape, townscape and visual harm, and harm it would cause to the 
setting of two listed buildings, mean it would not be appropriate to characterise the 
development as sustainable development overall.  
 
Landscape, townscape and visual amenity effects 
 
44. The site forms the lower edge of a steeply rising field which occupies a prominent 
location on the eastern (west facing) side of the Eddlestone Water valley.  The 
Development and Landscape Capacity Study for Peebles 2007 (the LCS) identifies the site 
as lying within the “west facing slopes” character area of the “Peebles North East” study 
area.  This study primarily considered landscape and visual issues but also had regard to 
the sustainability of developing in different locations around the town. 
 
45. Key characteristics of the “west facing slopes” landscape character area, and issues 
of particular concern, identified by the LCS as relevant to any proposed settlement 
expansion, include: the scenic quality of the landscape, which is a result of the diversity of 
spaces and woodland types; the need for engineering works due to the steepness of the 
land; the need to avoid extensive expansion of the town up the hillside; the loss of sinuous 
woodland and parkland, which contributes to the wider setting of the town and provides 
containment and shelter; the potential for a robust settlement edge to be lost; and the 
visibility of these slopes from a number of locations.  Taking these issues into account, the 
LCS identified no options for settlement expansion within the “Peebles North East” study 
area. 
 
46. The site lies within the Tweed Valley Special Landscape Area (the SLA) where LDP 
Policy EP5 confirms that particular regard will be had to a proposal’s landscape and visual 
impact.  The Local Landscape Designations supplementary planning guidance 2012 
identifies development pressure at settlement edges and recommends that this be carefully 
managed.  
 
47. Where a proposal for development outside a settlement boundary is considered to 
be acceptable on an exceptional basis (which is a question I address in my conclusions to 
this notice) LDP Policy PMD4 requires it to be a logical extension of the settlement, which 
would not prejudice its character, visual cohesion or natural built-up edge and would not 
cause a significant adverse effect upon the settlement’s landscape setting or the natural 
heritage of the surrounding area.   
 
48. In order to reduce the prominence of the proposed two storey homes, the 
development would be cut into the slope, rear gardens would be terraced and a tree screen 
would be planted between the proposed development and existing properties on the A703, 
which lie to the immediate west at a lower ground level than the site. 
 
49. I viewed the appeal site from a number of locations in and around the town including 
most of the locations in the appellant’s landscape and visual impact assessment.  From 
some locations, this included photomontage visualisations where the proposed 
development was helpfully depicted in white to enable accurate positioning of the proposal 
when in the field.  I have borne in mind that this approach would significantly increase the 

Page 538



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

9 

prominence of the proposal when compared with what could be expected if the 
development were to use materials of a more appropriately subdued palette.  I have 
referred below only to viewpoint locations where I consider the landscape / townscape and / 
or visual effects would be particularly relevant to my assessment.  However, I have had 
regard to all likely effects. 
 
50. Looking first at effects on landscape and townscape and the interface between the 
two, I do not agree that keeping the development below the 190 metre contour would allow 
it to follow the established form of the town.  The town occupies the floor of the valleys of 
the River Tweed and Eddlestone Water and extends only a limited distance up the valley 
sides.  While it may be true that development elsewhere extends as high as 190 metres 
above ordnance datum, in the vicinity of the site, the edge of the town closely follows the 
A703, which runs close to the valley floor.  Any development above that level is confined to 
scattered houses and the former Venlaw Castle Hotel.  These are clearly separate from the 
town. 
 
51. The field into which this proposal would extend the town is a very prominent and 
important feature of the Venlaw hillside backdrop to the town.  The introduction of built 
development into the lower reaches of this field would reduce its scale and visual 
significance and the separation between the town and the scattered buildings that occupy 
the higher slopes of the hill. 
 
52. I agree with the council’s landscape architect that this field, along with the adjacent 
woodland, is also an important component of the designed landscape of Venlaw Castle.  A 
linear development of modern houses would site very uncomfortably within this parkland 
landscape.     
 
53. Turning to visual effects, when the site is approached from the north along the A703, 
I agree with the appellant that it would be successfully screened by existing development 
and the natural landform until the viewer was very close to the site.  I also agree that from 
some locations on the A703 very close to the site, the existing houses and the proposed 
tree screen would avoid any significant visual effects.  However, as I describe below, from 
many other locations within and close to the town, visual effects would be greater and in 
some cases, significantly harmful. 
 
54. From the appellant’s viewpoint VP02 at the car dealership on the A703, the 
proposed line of houses would be seen at close range above the existing housing along 
that road.  In time, this view would be softened by the proposed tree planting between the 
development and the existing houses.  Both the proposed trees and houses would obstruct 
views of Venlaw Castle which is currently seen from this stretch of the A703 as a noticeable 
landscape feature on the slopes of Venlaw. 
 
55. From VP03 at North Lodge, the loss of mature trees to provide a site access and the 
visibility of that access and the proposed houses within the field would be prominent and 
urbanising changes to the view experienced by occupants of the lodge and vehicle 
occupants and pedestrians travelling south towards the town centre.  The proposed 
development – especially the loss of trees and new access, would also be seen by those 
using the Venlaw Castle access drive, who would include residents and recreational users 
of Venlaw who would have high sensitivity to visual change. 
 

Page 539



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

10 

56.  Highly significant visual effects would be experienced from VP06 on Dalatho Street 
and from the western side of the A703 between Dalatho Street and Dalatho Crescent to the 
north.  This would affect residents and road / footway users.  From these locations, 
development would be seen rising above the existing housing on the A703 giving the 
impression of an urbanising and prominent incursion into the largely undeveloped hillside 
behind.  A more distant but wider-angle view would also be experienced from the footbridge 
over the Eddlestone Water between Dalatho Street and Kingsland Road (VP10), which I 
noted from my site inspection is well used by recreational walkers. 
 
57. I do not agree with the appellant that, at VP07 (Crossburn Farm Road), the fact that 
existing development already breaks the skyline, materially reduces the visual effect of 
what is now proposed.  Regardless of the prominence of existing houses that are very close 
to this viewpoint, the proposed development would be seen as a clear incursion into the 
prominent sloping hillside backdrop to the view, creating a more enclosed and urban view 
and reducing the visual connection between this existing neighbourhood and the 
surrounding countryside. 
 
58. From viewpoints VP11 and VP12 and for the entire length of that minor road which 
links the A703 and Standalane Way / Rosetta Road, the proposed development would be 
seen as an urban encroachment into the prominent field.  This effect would be even more 
pronounced from Standalane Way, Rosetta Road and Elliot’s Park, as exemplified in 
viewpoints VP13 to VP16 and from the recent housing development at Standalane View.  
From all of these locations, the sloping field, into the lower reaches of which this 
development would extend the town, is a critical component of the view – providing a strong 
visual contrast with the mixed woodland above and a definite edge to the settlement below.  
It is a critical part of the parkland setting to Venlaw Castle, which is seen across the valley 
on higher ground.  To maintain the visual amenity of receptors in these locations, who 
include residents and recreational walkers on the Drover’s Way long distance path, I 
consider it essential that this field remains free from urban encroachment. 
 
59. Of great relevance to the experience of this proposal for users of the Drover’s Way is 
VP17.  From this more elevated viewpoint, the importance of the open field, of which the 
application site is a part, is perhaps even clearer, as it can be appreciated that it is one of a 
number of such open areas on Venlaw which are separated by woodland.  Venlaw Castle 
can also be appreciated in its parkland context with the town of Peebles being confined to 
the valley floor.  The proposed extension of built development into this field would be an 
immediately apparent incursion of the town into its hillside backdrop, forming a harmful 
addition to the view of sensitive receptors using this recognised long distance walking route. 
 
60. Recreational users further away from the site would also experience significant 
harmful visual effects from the proposal.  These are exemplified in the photomontages 
prepared for VP24 (Manor Sware viewpoint), VP25 (on the John Buchan Way to the south 
of the town) and VP26 (in Cademuir Hill forest).  Even accounting for the significantly 
reduced prominence that appropriate materials and landscaping could deliver when 
compared with the stark white outlines used to identify the proposed dwellings in the 
photomontages, from all three of these important recreational receptor locations, the 
proposal would appear as an eye-catching and inappropriate expansion of the town onto 
the surrounding hillside. 
 

Page 540



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

11 

61. The appellant believes that allocations detailed in the proposed LDP would alter the 
form of the settlement to such an extent that it would materially affect the context within 
which views of the appeal site would be experienced.  In the settlement plan for Peebles in 
the proposed LDP there are three proposed site allocations that would significantly alter the 
shape of the settlement: a seven hectare housing site on land south of Chapelhill Farm; 
a 6.4 hectare mixed use development on Rosetta Road which was allocated for 
development in the LDP Housing SG, and a 5.7 hectare housing site on Rosetta Road, 
which already has planning permission.  However, the location of these three proposed 
allocations (on the Eddlestone Water valley floor and the lower western slopes of that 
valley)  is such that I am satisfied that they would not materially affect the landscape and 
visual impact of the appeal proposal.  And in the case of the Chapelhill Farm site, as this is 
merely a proposed allocation that has yet to be examined, it is too soon to make any 
assumptions about the future status of this land. 
 
Effect on the setting of nearby listed buildings 
 
62. The site would be accessed from the driveway to the former Venlaw Castle Hotel – a 
category B listed Scots Baronial building, which occupies a very prominent position on the 
hillside above the town.  The former gatehouse, known as North Lodge, is category C listed 
and is situated close to the proposed point of access. 
 
63. The proposed development would be visible from, and in conjunction with, both listed 
buildings and would occupy land that has the appearance of parkland.  Although it is not 
included within the Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes, the appellant’s LVIA 
recognises that historic plans show the site as forming part of the Castle Venlaw historic 
landscape and identify a similar open character since 1843.  
 
64. LDP Policy EP7 requires, among other things, that the setting of listed buildings be 
conserved, protected and enhanced.  Policy EP10 requires careful siting and design of all 
proposals within designed landscapes and presumes against proposals that would have an 
unacceptable adverse impact.   
 
65. The proposed access road and associated tree felling would be likely to have an 
urbanising effect on the setting of North Lodge.  Contrary to Policy EP7 this would fail to 
conserve or protect the setting of this building. 
 
66. I also have concerns over the effect the proposal would have on the setting of the 
former hotel.  That building occupies a commanding positing within trees, looking out 
across open grazing land that has a parkland appearance.  The introduction of a prominent 
housing development within that setting would give the impression of the town encroaching 
upon the listed building and would detract from the listed building’s relative isolation, which 
is a visual reminder of its former importance.  However well designed and finished the 
proposed houses were, this would detract from the setting of the listed building contrary to 
Policies EP7 and EP10. 
 
Effect on the water environment 
 
67. It is a requirement of LDP Policy EP15 that development does not result in a 
significant adverse effect on the water environment.  All proposals are to be assessed in 
terms of their effect on surface and groundwater, their implications for flood risk, any river 

Page 541



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

12 

engineering works that might be required and the provision of appropriate sustainable 
drainage (SuDS) infrastructure, .  In this instance this issue carries particular importance, as 
there is a potential pathway for water-borne pollutants to travel from the site and reach the 
River Tweed SAC.  LDP Policy ED1 requires, among other things, that it be demonstrated 
that the proposal would not adversely affect the integrity of such sites. 
 
68. The developer proposes to connect foul drainage from the development to the public 
sewer and to handle surface water with a SuDS system.  During the construction process, 
siltation and/or pollution of the water environment could be avoided by appropriate working 
methods, which could be secured by a construction environment management plan 
(CEMP). 
 

69. Having considered all of the submitted evidence, I am satisfied that I have sufficient 
information on all reasonably foreseeable risks to carry out an Appropriate Assessment.  
My finding is that, with appropriate mitigation in place (which could be secured by planning 
conditions) there would not be an adverse effect on the integrity of the SAC.  The proposal 
would therefore satisfy Policy ED1. 

70. For similar reasons,  I am satisfied that, in accordance with Policy EP15, no other 
element of the water environment would be materially harmed. 

Other matters 
 
71. In addition to the matters discussed above, local residents have raised concerns 
over the safety of the proposed site access due to development traffic potentially conflicting 
with farm and forestry vehicles using the Venlaw Castle access and also the large number 
of access points onto the A703. 
 
72. I note that the council’s Roads Planning Service considers the proposal to be 
contrary to LDP Policy PMD2 due to safety concerns with the site access .  In response, the 
appellant commissioned a road safety audit of the proposals.  This found that sight lines at 
the A703 are good, that no new junction onto that road would be required, pedestrian 
approaches to the junction appeared safe and vehicle speeds appeared generally to be 
within the 30 mph speed limit.  Subject to widening the existing access and providing two 
metre wide footways with dropped kerb crossing points on both sides of the junction, the 
proposals are predicted to have no adverse road safety implications.  The Roads Planning 
Service maintains its objections to the proposal but has not explained why the 
recommendations of the engineering consultant (which the appellant is willing to implement) 
would be inadequate to maintain acceptable levels of road safety.  Based on what I saw on 
site and the balance of professional engineering input I have received, I conclude that it 
would not be appropriate to withhold planning permission on road safety grounds, as 
appropriate standards could be achieved via planning conditions, if I were to allow this 
appeal. 
 
73. LDP Policy HD1 sets out the council’s normal expectation that 25% of a housing 
development will be affordable and / or special needs housing either by on-site provision, 
the delivery of such housing elsewhere, or through a commuted payment.  The non-
statutory Affordable Housing supplementary planning guidance (2015) which appears to be 
extant despite pre-dating the current LDP, expects on-site provision for all developments 
of 17 or more units.  The appellant is willing to provide five units on site with the 

Page 542



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

13 

remaining 0.5 of a unit (to achieve a 25% contribution) provided as a commuted sum.  The 
council points out that the need to incorporate an element of on-site affordable 
accommodation appears not to have been considered prior to this proposal coming to 
appeal and has evidently not been factored into the design of the proposed 22 identical 
large family homes.  I agree that it has not been demonstrated how the proposal would 
satisfy local housing need although it would appear that the developer’s offer would be 
sufficient to meet the requirements of Policy HD1, as this refers to the scale, but not the 
type and tenure, of any developer contribution being influenced by an assessment of the 
housing need.  If I were to allow this appeal I am satisfied that an appropriate solution to the 
affordable housing contribution could be secured. 
 
Conclusions 
 
74. The appeal site lies outside Peebles’ development boundary.  LDP Policy PMD4 
confirms that development should be contained within such boundaries and that proposals 
for new development on unallocated sites outwith such boundaries will normally be refused. 
 
75. SESplan Policy 7 potentially permits greenfield housing development outside a 
settlement boundary where necessary to maintain a five year effective housing land supply.  
Three criteria must be satisfied.  The first is that the development would be in keeping with 
the character of the settlement and the surrounding area.  I have set out above why I 
conclude that, contrary to this requirement, the proposal would be entirely out of keeping 
with the settlement and its surroundings.  The second relates to green belt objectives, 
which is not relevant in this location.  The third requires all necessary infrastructure 
requirements to be available or capable of being made available, which should not be a 
concern for this proposal.  Overall, as all three criteria must be satisfied, which they are not, 
I find the proposal unable to draw support from this policy. 
 
76. LDP Policy PMD4 potentially permits development outside development boundaries.  
This policy operates in two stages.  First, a proposal must provide strong reasons to justify 
that it fits within one of four potentially acceptable categories of development.  Of relevance 
to this proposal is the third, which is where a shortfall in the effective five year housing land 
supply has been identified.  I have set out above that there appears to be a significant 
shortfall in the effective five year supply.   
 
77. The second stage of Policy PMD4 then sets out four further requirements, all of 
which must be satisfied for the proposal to be supported by the policy.  The first is that the 
proposal would represent a logical extension of the built up area.  I find that, contrary to this 
requirement, the landscape, townscape and visual harm I have identified above mean the 
proposal would be an illogical extension to the town, which would fail to follow its 
established form and would increase its landscape prominence. 
 
78. The second requires the proposal to be appropriate in scale to the size of the 
settlement.  I have no concerns in this regard. 
 
79. The third requires that the character, visual cohesion or natural built up edge of the 
settlement are not prejudiced.  I find that proposed extension of the town up the valley side 
into an important and prominent open space would harm the character of the settlement, 
reducing its visual cohesion and creating an incongruous edge to the town at this point.  It 
would, therefore, be in conflict with this requirement. 

Page 543



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

14 

 
80. Due to the adverse landscape effects I have set out above, I also find the proposal to 
be in conflict with the fourth requirement, which is to avoid a significant adverse effect on 
the landscape setting of the settlement or the natural heritage of the surrounding area. 
 
81. The policy then sets out three factors to be taken into account when deciding 
whether planning permission for development outside the settlement boundary should be 
granted.  The first requires account to be taken of any restrictions on, or encouragement of, 
development in the longer term that may be set out in the settlement profile.  The 
settlement profile for Peebles was modified by revisions to the proposals map in the LDP 
Housing SG.  This allocates land for housing and other uses in the town and indicates that 
once that has been developed, the preferred area for future expansion will be to the south 
east of Peebles.  There is no support for any development in the vicinity of the appeal site 
and I conclude that the proposal can take no encouragement from the settlement profile. 
 
82. The second and third factors deal with cumulative effects with other development 
outside the settlement boundary and with infrastructure and service capacity issues.  
Neither of these appears to be a factor that would count against this proposal. 
 
83. Overall,  I find the proposal to be in conflict with LDP Policy PMD4. 
 
84. Having regard to all of the submitted material, there is no evidence to support the 
appellant’s claim that the appeal site’s location fits with the LDP’s strategy for development.  
On the contrary, the appeal site occupies a location (outside the development boundary) 
where the LDP is clear that development should only be permitted if justified by exception.  
The appellant states that the LDP specifically identifies Strategic Growth Areas (SGAs)  and 
that Peebles is in such an area.  However, there is no such designation in the LDP or 
indeed in SESplan.  SESplan 2 proposed to indicate broad locations (including Peebles) 
where strategic growth would be encouraged, but was rejected by Ministers and is not part 
of the development plan. 
 
85. Having regard to all relevant policies of both SESplan and the LDP, I find the 
proposal overall is not in accordance with the development plan.  And, as the proposal 
would not constitute sustainable development, it can draw no support from SPP 
paragraph 33 or paragraph 125. 
 
86. The shortfall in the five year supply of effective housing land remains a material 
consideration in favour of this proposal despite the lack of development plan or SPP policy 
support.  The scale of that shortfall appears to be significant enough to be an important 
factor in its favour.  Also in its favour are the site’s reasonably accessible location, adjacent 
to a settlement that is located within a Strategic Development Area, and the positive 
economic benefits it would bring.  
 
87. The housing need and demand assessment that fed into SESplan 2 (the 2015 
HNDA) suggests that there may now be a significantly lower level of need and demand in 
the Scottish Borders than was forecast for the region in the Third National Planning 
Framework (NPF3) and was identified in the HNDA that informed SESplan,.  This evidence 
may feed into future policy decisions about the extent and location of housing that is 
required across the region.  However, at this stage it is impossible to know how it might 
affect such matters.  As I am satisfied that the housing requirement that is set out in 

Page 544



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

15 

SESplan remains relevant until it is formally replaced, I find no justification to give weight at 
this time to the 2015 HNDA. 
 
88. Taking all matters into account, I find that the proposal would deliver a net economic 
benefit and would contribute to addressing what appears to be a significant shortfall in the 
five year supply of effective housing land.  However, such benefits are significantly and 
demonstrably outweighed by the clear conflict with the development plan and the 
considerable harm the proposal would cause to the character of Peebles and its 
surrounding countryside, and to the visual amenity of those who live, work and visit the 
area. 
 
89. If the current Court of Session challenge to the December 2020 SPP revisions is 
successful, the national policy position would revert back to its 2014 form.  Therefore it is 
necessary to consider whether it would be reasonable for a decision to be made on this 
appeal pending the outcome of that challenge.  
 
90. In its 2014 form, SPP paragraph 33 confirmed, among other things, that, where there 
is a shortfall in the effective housing land supply, and a proposal would contribute to 
sustainable development, for planning permission to be refused it would need to be 
demonstrated that its disbenefits would not only outweigh, but would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh, its benefits.  This became known as the “tilted balance”.  The Court 
of Session has confirmed that development that would remedy, to some extent, a housing 
shortfall will almost inevitably contribute to sustainable development.  It has also confirmed 
that the angle of tilt in favour of such a proposal may be affected by the extent of the 
housing supply shortfall. 
   
91. In considering this appeal I have followed the PAN 1/2020 advice to use what is 
often referred to as the “average” method for calculating the housing requirement.  This 
takes no account of any backlog in supply that may have arisen over the plan period.  
However, prior to the 2020 revisions to SPP, no methodology was specified.  Therefore, it is 
necessary to consider what would be the effect of using an alternative approach (often 
referred to as the “residual” method) which takes account of past under-supply, to estimate 
the overall requirement.   
 
92. The council has confirmed an annual average build rate of 292 between 2015 
and 2019.  I do not have data for the entire SESplan period, but if one assumes that this is 
representative of the level of housing delivery over the entire period and compares this with 
the average annual requirement of 862, then a significant supply backlog will have 
developed, significantly increasing the forward-looking supply shortfall of 
approximately 600.  This would increase the weight that should be given to the shortfall in 
the planning balance. 
 
93. If the proposal were found to “contribute to” sustainable development, despite not 
“being” sustainable development (which I accept is a lower bar) then, in accordance with 
SPP 2014 and Court of Session rulings,  the planning balance would be tilted very 
significantly in favour of approval.  SPP 2014 would also apply the “tilted balance” on 
account of SESplan being more than five years old.  However, even then, the significance 
of the adverse consequences I have outlined above is so great that my conclusion on the 
planning balance would remain in favour of refusal, as the disbenefits of the proposal would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh its benefits, even accounting for a strongly tilted 

Page 545



PPA-140-2088  

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 

Hadrian House, Callendar Business Park, Falkirk, FK1 1XR 

www.gov.scot/policies/planning-environmental-appeals/ abcdefghij abcde abc a  

 

16 

balance.  Consequently, I see no merit in awaiting the outcome of the Court of Session 
challenge before determining this appeal. 
 
94. I conclude, for the reasons set out above, that the proposed development does not 
accord overall with the relevant provisions of the development plan and that there are no 
material considerations which would still justify granting planning permission. 
 

David Buylla 
Principal Reporter 
 

Page 546



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     16/01461/PPP 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Hans Rieppel 

 
AGENT :   Ferguson Planning 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Residential development comprising of 6 No dwellinghouses (renewal of 
previous application 09/01533/PPP) 
 
LOCATION:  Land North Of 28 

Lauder Road 
Stow 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    PPP Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
  Site Plan Approved 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
One representation has been received from a neighbouring householder which largely raises concerns 
with respect to the state of the road in Lauder Road, principally relating to what are advised to be 
existing problems with respect to surface water drainage, the narrowness of the road, the lack of 
pavements, and speeding traffic, which individually and cumulatively raise road safety and street 
safety concerns.  It is advised that the respondent would wish to see these matters addressed ahead 
of the construction of any new houses to be served by this same road.  It is further anticipated that 
there might be potential for impacts upon daylight received at the householder's property were the new 
houses to be large buildings. 
 
Roads Planning Section: No objections to the renewal of the previous application provided Conditions 
Nos. 1 and 4 and the informative attached to the previous consent, are retained. 
 
Archaeology Section: No known archaeological implications for this proposal. 
 
Housing Strategy Section: No comments but anticipated that contributions would be required towards 
affordable housing. 
 
Education and Lifelong Learning: contributions would be required towards the new Galashiels 
Academy. 
 
Scottish Water and the Community Council have not responded to the public consultation. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

Page 547



 
Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016: 
 
Policy PMD1: Sustainability 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 
Policy PMD5: Infill Development 
Policy HD3: Residential Amenity 
Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
Policy IS2: Developer Contributions 
Policy IS3: Developer Contributions Related to the Borders Railway 
Policy IS6: Road Adoption Standards 
Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
Policy IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Stuart Herkes  (Planning Officer) on 23rd January 2017 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application seeks to renew a previous planning consent, 09/01533/PPP, which was approved in 2010 
subject to seven planning conditions, an informative and a Section 75 legal agreement, ahead of the 
consent's issue in December 2013. 
 
In addition to the site plan that was previously approved under Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP, the agent 
has supplied a supporting letter, advising that the proposal complies with planning policy, chiefly Policy 
PMD5 of the statutory development plan.  Some indicative details and non-specific information previously 
submitted at the time of the previous planning application, have been omitted. 
 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
 
The proposal remains the same as before and circumstances on-site remain as they were at the time of the 
determination of Planning Application 09/01533/PPP.  However, the current application requires to be 
assessed against the policies and proposals of the Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016, 
which has succeeded the Scottish Borders Local Plan as the statutory development plan in the interim 
period.  Notwithstanding this, and given the close similarities between the current proposal and that 
approved under Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP, it is reasonable, as well as expedient, to confine this 
current assessment only to those aspects of the proposals that raise, or are liable to raise, new or different 
considerations from those matters that were considered at the time of the determination of Planning 
Application 09/01533/PPP. 
 
PLANNING ASSESSMENT 
 
Although it is not allocated housing land, the site remains entirely within the Development Boundary at Stow 
and the principle of the proposal remains capable of support on essentially the same basis and terms as 
before.  This is to say, subject to conditions and a legal agreement to collect the requisite six education, six 
Waverley and five affordable housing contributions. 
 
The essential requirements of the schedule of conditions that was applied to Planning Consent 
09/01533/PPP, are, I consider, reasonably maintained.  However, the actual planning conditions that were 
applied to Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP now require, and would benefit from, some revision.   
 
This is, firstly, and necessarily, to take account of the advice of a neighbouring householder who has 
responded to the public consultation on the current application to raise concerns with respect to impacts 
upon the public road.  These concerns, I consider, reasonably justify a greater level of control being 
exercised over the form and delivery of the development of the overall site than might otherwise have been 
possible within and through the schedule of conditions that was imposed upon Planning Consent 
09/01533/PPP. 
 
Secondly, there is a technical difficulty in terms of the need to take account of the omission of certain details 
that were provided in support of the previous planning application, but which have not now been maintained 

Page 548



in support of the current application.  This has rather undermined the sense, or at least context, of at least 
one condition imposed upon the previous consent (namely, Condition No 4), which alludes to the prior 
agreement of "engineering details" which had been described by indicative drawings.  In the context of the 
current application however, there are no "engineering details", indicative or otherwise, and the condition 
would not be reasonably re-imposed without some clarification, if not qualification, with respect to what 
works precisely, are required for prior approval.  
 
Thirdly, certain standard conditions (specifically Conditions Nos. 2, 3 and 7) that were previously imposed on 
Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP are no longer required, and can now be omitted themselves.  In one case, 
that relating to tree works (Condition No 6), the details are also now out-of-date, and thus the condition 
requires to be updated. 
 
Fourthly, I consider that both the development and Applicant would in any case, benefit from a clearer 
separation being made within the conditions between matters pertaining to the development of the overall 
site and those pertaining to the development of individual housing plots.  This would allow the Applicant 
some reasonable flexibility in terms of how the site might ultimately be developed out and the land disposed 
of.  It would also allow much greater opportunities to incorporate features, such as footpaths and road 
improvements that might otherwise be omitted if the site is ultimately developed out on a plot-by-plot basis. 
 
I have therefore amended the proposed conditions to take account of all of the above factors.  However, I 
would draw attention to some specific points that I have sought to address within the proposed revised 
conditions: 
 
Condition No 5 of Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP requires that details of the means of water supply, 
surface water and foul drainage be submitted for prior approval, but the current application is clear that the 
proposed properties would be served by the public mains, and Scottish Water has not advised of any 
technical concerns in this respect.  Condition No 5 then is not in itself now necessarily re-imposed.  
However, I consider that it is reasonable that the provision of services to the site should nonetheless still be 
regulated.  A standard requirement that water and drainage be fully functional prior to the dwellings' 
occupation would, I consider, be more satisfactory, and less onerous. 
 
With respect to the matters previously regulated under Condition No 4 of Planning Consent 09/01533/PPP, it 
is important that a clear understanding is secured at the earliest opportunity as to how the overall site is to 
be laid out and operated, and ahead of the approval of any single dwellinghouse. This would reasonably be 
required at the occasion of the first AMC application, and would help ensure that all subsequent proposals 
for the development of individual residential properties would thereafter be informed by an agreed overall 
layout for the site, including the precise form and layout of the engineering works required to accommodate 
the parking and turning provision.  This should help prevent any subsequent plot-specific proposals being 
liable to omit works that are required on-site to accommodate general access, parking and turning.  It would 
also allow an appropriate opportunity for consideration to be given to impacts upon the local road network, 
including mitigation for those issues raised by the neighbouring householder with respect to drainage, road 
width and the lack of pavements.  In practical terms, I consider that the conditions essentially updating 
Conditions Nos 1 and 4 of the previous consent, should therefore distinguish between those matters that 
relate to the development of the wider site which require to be addressed at the time of the first AMC 
application, and those matters that could still be appropriately considered on a plot-by-plot basis (i.e. the 
layout and design of individual dwellings).  I consider that this offers clarity and structure which should 
benefit the Applicant as much as the development. 
 
Taking account of the concerns of the neighbour with respect to the impacts upon the road in Lauder Road, I 
consider that rather than an informative encouraging the installation of a possible pedestrian link from the 
site to the village, the potential to accommodate pavements would more usefully and practically be 
considered within the assessment and agreement of the overall layout of the site at the time of the first AMC 
application, which would practically be the only opportunity to consider how pavements might be 
accommodated alongside the required access, parking and turning areas to serve the whole development.  
To this end, I would propose that the Applicant be required to consider these matters within a Design and 
Access Statement to be submitted upon the occasion of the first AMC application, along with an overall site 
layout plan. 
 
Attention to site levels for the entire site at the time of the first AMC application, and including those relating 
to the construction of the communal and shared access, parking and turning areas, would help ensure that 

Page 549



appropriate measures would be in place for the management of surface water run-off from the site, to 
mitigate such impacts upon the public road. 
 
I note the neighbour's concerns with respect to the potential for houses to impact her home's residential 
amenity.  While such matters should ultimately be considered at the time of the consideration of the detailed 
design of any proposed dwellings, I would nonetheless be concerned with respect to such a steeply sloping 
site that there should be an explicit requirement at this stage, that the identification of the proposed finished 
site levels should be integral to the description of any proposal progressed at the AMC stage.  Accordingly, I 
consider that the planning conditions should therefore require the provision of detailed information about the 
existing and proposed site levels on individual housing plots as well as with respect to those describing the 
prerequisite engineering works, noted above, with respect to communal and shared parking and turning 
provision. 
 
Given the concerns expressed with respect to road safety by the member of the public who commented on 
the proposals, I would consider it reasonable to impose the standard requirement that parking and turning 
provision for two vehicles should be provided within each plot ahead of the dwelling being inhabited. 
 
I am aware that Roads explicitly seeks the re-imposition of the requirement that the communal parking and 
turning areas should be completed ahead of the construction of the first house.  However, without any 
detailed layout and description of the proposed works, and given Roads' ulterior concern that public 
footpaths be incorporated if at all possible, I consider that it would be more practical and reasonable not to 
require explicitly by condition at this PPP stage, that particular works should be completed prior to the start 
of house construction.  It would be more reasonable and practical to require that the Applicant consider the 
delivery of the development within a proposed programme of phasing of construction works, having regard 
to the concern that appropriate parking and turning provision for vehicles should be in place during all 
phases of the development.  This would allow account to be taken of the specific proposals for the site 
layout, and does also allow more flexibility to the Applicant, should it transpire that the site might be 
developed out safely and appropriately in phases before the final access, parking and turning arrangements 
are first completed or delivered in their final form ahead of any house building.  (In point of fact, given the 
need for contractors to take access to the sites of individual houses over areas that are liable to be 
developed as communal and shared areas for parking and turning, as well as footpaths, it is questionable 
how practical it would actually be to require that all of the latter be completed in their final form before 
development starts on the first of the houses).  Flexibility in this matter then, is both practical and reasonably 
allowed. 
 
The previous conditions include the requirement that the existing trees should be protected.  While this 
requirement is reasonably maintained, it would be reasonable to ensure that conservation is actually 
possible, by requiring that the layout of the development should be informed by a Tree Survey and 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment. 
 
The neighbour's concerns expressed with respect to speeding traffic, while appreciable, are not planning 
concerns, and would only appropriately be considered directly by the police and/or Roads Authority. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Subject to the points noted above being addressed within a revised schedule of conditions, and subject to a 
legal agreement being concluded to collect all of the requisite contributions, I consider that the proposal is 
permissible. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
Subject to a legal agreement and compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord 
with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations 
that would justify a departure from these provisions. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approved - conditions, inform & LA 
 

Page 550



 1 No development shall commence on any residential property hereby approved until the following 
details about that same residential property have all first been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Planning Authority:  

 i) the proposed siting, layout, design and external appearance of its dwellinghouse; 
 ii) the proposed siting, layout, design and external appearance of any proposed ancillary building(s), 

structure(s) and/or surface(s) to be sited within its curtilage;  
 iii) the proposed landscaping and boundary treatment of its site; 
 iv) the existing and proposed finished ground and surface levels of its site, including the proposed 

Finished Floor Level(s) of the dwellinghouse and that/those of any proposed ancillary buildings, all 
shown in relation to a clearly identifiable datum point, or clearly identifiable datum points, located out 
with the site, and sufficient for the purpose of establishing the heights of the aforementioned existing 
and proposed levels; 

 v) the proposed means of access thereto; and 
 vi) the proposed accommodation of the parking and movement of at least two vehicles (excluding 

any garaging) for its occupants. 
 Thereafter, the development of that same residential property shall be implemented in accordance 

with the details that are specifically approved to address all of the above matters (items i. to vi., 
inclusive) in relation to it by a consent (or consents) for Approval of Matters specified in Conditions 
(AMC) issued as ulterior to this planning permission. 

 Reason: To achieve a satisfactory form of development, and to comply with the requirements of 
Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. 
(Scotland) Act 2006; and including the need to ensure that appropriate provision is made within the 
detailed design and layout of the residential properties hereby approved for the accommodation of 
occupants' vehicles, in the interests of road safety. 

 
 2 No development shall commence on the site, or any part thereof, until all of the following have first 

been provided at the time of the first application for Approval of Matters specified in Conditions 
(AMC) that is submitted as ulterior to this planning permission: 

 i) a proposed site layout plan describing the entire site and showing the proposed positions and 
boundaries of all individual residential plots; the proposed positions and layouts of all public 
footpaths, all shared and communal access(es), parking and turning areas; and any other proposed 
communal or shared surfaces; 

 ii) details of the existing and proposed finished ground and surface levels on the site, shown in 
relation to a clearly identifiable datum point, or clearly identifiable datum points, located out with the 
site and sufficient for the purpose of establishing the heights of the existing and proposed levels 
across the entire site.  These details shall include drawings describing both in plan and in section, all 
proposed works required to construct all shared and communal vehicular accesses, parking and 
turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed communal or shared surfaces (including in 
all cases, all works required to make up or reduce any existing ground levels to accommodate the 
siting of these same accesses and areas); 

 iii) details of the construction and surfacing of all shared and communal vehicular accesses, parking 
and turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed communal or shared surfaces; 

 iv) details of the proposed programme for the delivery of all shared and communal vehicular 
accesses, parking and turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed communal or shared 
surfaces. These details shall take full account of the advice of Informative Note 2;  

 v) a Design and Access Statement which addresses the requirements of Informative Note 3 
attached to this same planning permission; and 

 vi) a Report of the results and conclusions of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
of all trees (including Root Protection Areas and canopies) within the site or on its boundaries, that 
shall itself address in full the requirements set out in Informative Note 4 attached to this same 
planning permission. 

 Thereafter the development of the site shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details including all matters regulated under any conditions attached to the AMC consent(s) which 
are ulterior to this planning permission. 

 Reason: To achieve a satisfactory form of development, and to comply with the requirements of 
Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. 
(Scotland) Act 2006; to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for the delivery and 
management of the development of the entire site, including for the provision of appropriate 
vehicular and pedestrian access to, from and within the site, both during and after the period of 
construction, which is in the interests of site safety, road safety and public safety; and to ensure that 

Page 551



there would be no unacceptable impacts upon the surface, structure or operation of the public road 
as a consequence of the development, including as a result of any changes to design, ground and 
surface levels or surface water drainage, again in the interests of road safety. 

 
 3 No dwellinghouse hereby approved shall be occupied until: 
 i) the water supply, surface water drainage and foul drainage relating to that same dwellinghouse, 

are first all fully functional; and 
 ii) the site access and on-site provision for the accommodation of the parking and movement of at 

least two vehicles (excluding any garaging) within the curtilage of the residential property associated 
with that same dwellinghouse, have all first been completed and made available for use by 
occupants' vehicles. 

 Reason: To ensure that each residential property hereby consented is adequately serviced and fit 
for habitation prior to its occupation, and to ensure that each property's site access and parking 
areas are complete and available for use by occupants in the interests of road and site safety. 

 
 4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority (including in accordance with any 

details approved under any AMC consent issued as ulterior to this Planning Permission in Principle 
consent) and in advance of such tree works taking place: 

 i) no trees (including their roots and branches) within the application site (including on the site 
boundaries) shall be felled, lopped, lifted or disturbed in any way, and no works shall take place 
within their Root Protection Areas or canopy spreads; and 

 ii) all existing trees shall be fully protected in accordance with the requirements of BS 5837:2012 
and all measures required on-site to protect these trees for the duration of construction works, shall 
be maintained in accordance with the requirements of BS 5837:2012.  Further, there shall be no 
storage of plant or machinery within the Root Protection Areas (RPAs) of these same trees, and 
there shall be no services installed within their RPAs unless such works are compliant with NJUG 
Guidelines. 

 Reason: In the interests of preserving the health and vitality of the existing trees, the loss of which 
would have an adverse effect on the visual amenity of the area. The existing trees represent an 
important visual feature which the Planning Authority considers should be substantially maintained 
in the interests of conserving the visual amenities of the site and surrounding area. 

 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 
 
 1 INFORMATIVE NOTE 1:   
     
 It should be noted that ALL information requirements identified in the planning conditions attached to 

this planning consent require to be made the subject of a subsequent application, or subsequent 
applications, for Approval of Matters specified in Conditions (AMC).     

      
 When making an AMC application to address the information requirements of the planning 

conditions attached to this planning consent, the Applicant should explicitly state the reference 
numbers of the relevant planning conditions in the appropriate place (currently Section 5b) on the 
Planning Application Form.   

      
 In the event that the Applicant would seek to address the information requirements of ALL planning 

conditions attached to this planning consent within one AMC application, they must ensure that they 
supply information that fully and properly addresses ALL information requirements identified within 
ALL planning conditions. 

 
 2 INFORMATIVE NOTE 2:  
   
 The proposed phasing arrangements of the development required under item iv. of Planning 

Condition No 2, must consider how safe vehicular and pedestrian access to, from and within the site 
(including provision for footpaths, and areas for the parking and turning of all vehicles on the site, 
construction traffic as well as for normal traffic) would be established and maintained from the start 

Page 552



of development, and how this would then be maintained throughout the course of the development 
of the site up to completion.  This phasing should address, and allow for, the possibility that the first 
house(s) constructed, may be occupied before the development of the last house(s) is completed, 
such that at every stage of the development, the access arrangements on the site are sufficient to 
accommodate both residential and construction traffic, as well as to allow for safe pedestrian access 
to, from and within the site.  

   
 In the interests of site safety, public safety and road safety, the Planning Authority reserves the right 

at the time(s) of the determination of the application(s) for the detailed proposals to impose planning 
condition(s) upon any AMC consent(s) that is/are ulterior to this Planning Permission in Principle, to 
require that particular works or operations should be completed by particular stages within the 
development. 

 
 3 INFORMATIVE NOTE 3:  
   
 The Design and Access Statement required under Planning Condition No 2, item v, attached to this 

planning permission, should address how the detailed site layout proposals would ensure road 
safety and public safety with respect to vehicular and pedestrian movements from, to, and within the 
site, and both during and after the period of construction of all six dwellinghouses. 

 
 4 INFORMATIVE NOTE 4:  
   
 The Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment required under Planning Condition No 2, 

item vi, attached to this planning permission, must be carried out by an individual or organisation 
that is professionally competent to do so, and should be undertaken and reported in conformity with 
BS5837: 2012 (or any successor publication).  

   
 The survey should include assessment of those trees in the existing woodland along the northern 

boundary of the site and those trees on, or close to, the site's boundaries within adjacent residential 
gardens.    

   
 A critical concern is that the potential for the retention of all existing trees on and around the 

boundaries of the site, is appropriately investigated in advance, and any and all mitigation measures 
required to conserve these trees in the long-term (including through design, as well as through the 
adoption of any measures required to safeguard them throughout the course of the development) 
are identified at the pre-development stage to ensure that the mitigation is fit for purpose.  The Tree 
Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment is required to inform this assessment. 

 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 553



This page is intentionally left blank



                       
    

 

 
 

 

 
Mr Hans Rieppel 

per Ferguson Planning 

Per Gary Farrelly 

54 Island Street 

Galashiels 

Scottish Borders 

 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Stuart Herkes 
01835 825039 

Our Ref: 16/01461/PPP 

Your Ref:  

E-Mail: sherkes@scotborders.gov.uk 

Date: 20th February 2019 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land North of 28 Lauder Road Stow Scottish Borders   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Residential development comprising of 6 No dwellinghouses 
(renewal of previous application 09/01533/PPP) 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Hans Rieppel 
 
 

Please find attached the decision notice for the above application. 

 

Please read the schedule of conditions and any informative notes carefully.  

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ .  Please see the requirement for notification 

of initiation and completion of development as well as for Street naming and numbering as 

appropriate. 
 
It should be noted that before works commence, where applicable, all necessary consents should be 
obtained under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003.  If you require any further information in this respect, 
please contact the relevant Building Standards Surveyor. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
  
  

Page 555

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 16/01461/PPP 

 

To :     Mr Hans Rieppel per Ferguson Planning Per Gary Farrelly 54 Island Street Galashiels 
Scottish Borders TD1 1NU  

 
With reference to your application validated on 22nd November 2016 for planning permission under 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Residential development comprising of 6 No dwellinghouses (renewal of previous 
application 09/01533/PPP) 
 

 

 
At :   Land North of 28 Lauder Road Stow  Scottish Borders   
 

 
 The Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the approved 
plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), subject to the following direction: 
 

 That an application for approval of matters specified in the conditions set out in this decision shall 
be made to the Planning Authority before whichever is the latest of the following: 

a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission, or 
b) The expiration of six months from the date on which an earlier application for approval of 

matters specified in the conditions set out in this decision notice was refused or dismissed 
following an appeal. 

Only one application may be submitted under paragraph (b) of this condition, where such an 
application is made later than three years after the date of this consent. 
 

 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the 
date of approval of the last of the matters specified in the conditions set out in this decision. 

 
And subject to the conditions on the attached schedule imposed by the Council for the reasons 
stated 
 
Dated 18th February 2019 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA 

     
                   John Hayward 
 Planning & Development Standards Manager 

  

Page 556



                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  16/01461/PPP 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 
 
Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

 
   Site Plan  Approved 
 
REASON FOR DECISION 

 
Subject to a legal agreement and compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will 
accord with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material 
considerations that would justify a departure from these provisions. 
 
SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 
 
 1 No development shall commence on any residential property hereby approved until the 

following details about that same residential property have all first been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority:  

 i)  the proposed siting, layout, design and external appearance of its dwellinghouse; 
 ii)  the proposed siting, layout, design and external appearance of any proposed ancillary 

building(s), structure(s) and/or surface(s) to be sited within its curtilage;  
 iii)  the proposed landscaping and boundary treatment of its site; 
 iv)  the existing and proposed finished ground and surface levels of its site, including the 

proposed Finished Floor Level(s) of the dwellinghouse and that/those of any proposed 
ancillary buildings, all shown in relation to a clearly identifiable datum point, or clearly 
identifiable datum points, located out with the site, and sufficient for the purpose of 
establishing the heights of the aforementioned existing and proposed levels; 

 v)  the proposed means of access thereto; and 
 vi)  the proposed accommodation of the parking and movement of at least two vehicles 

(excluding any garaging) for its occupants. 
 Thereafter, the development of that same residential property shall be implemented in 

accordance with the details that are specifically approved to address all of the above matters 
(items i. to vi., inclusive) in relation to it by a consent (or consents) for Approval of Matters 
specified in Conditions (AMC) issued as ulterior to this planning permission. 

 Reason: To achieve a satisfactory form of development, and to comply with the requirements 
of Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the 
Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006; and including the need to ensure that appropriate provision 
is made within the detailed design and layout of the residential properties hereby approved for 
the accommodation of occupants' vehicles, in the interests of road safety. 

 
 2 No development shall commence on the site, or any part thereof, until all of the following have 

first been provided at the time of the first application for Approval of Matters specified in 
Conditions (AMC) that is submitted as ulterior to this planning permission: 

 i)  a proposed site layout plan describing the entire site and showing the proposed positions 
and boundaries of all individual residential plots; the proposed positions and layouts of all 
public footpaths, all shared and communal access(es), parking and turning areas; and any 
other proposed communal or shared surfaces; 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 557



                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

 ii)  details of the existing and proposed finished ground and surface levels on the site, shown 
in relation to a clearly identifiable datum point, or clearly identifiable datum points, located out 
with the site and sufficient for the purpose of establishing the heights of the existing and 
proposed levels across the entire site.  These details shall include drawings describing both in 
plan and in section, all proposed works required to construct all shared and communal 
vehicular accesses, parking and turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed 
communal or shared surfaces (including in all cases, all works required to make up or reduce 
any existing ground levels to accommodate the siting of these same accesses and areas); 

 iii)  details of the construction and surfacing of all shared and communal vehicular accesses, 
parking and turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed communal or shared 
surfaces; 

 iv)  details of the proposed programme for the delivery of all shared and communal vehicular 
accesses, parking and turning areas, public footpaths and any other proposed communal or 
shared surfaces. These details shall take full account of the advice of Informative Note 2;  

 v)  a Design and Access Statement which addresses the requirements of Informative Note 3 
attached to this same planning permission; and 

 vi)  a Report of the results and conclusions of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment of all trees (including Root Protection Areas and canopies) within the site or on its 
boundaries, that shall itself address in full the requirements set out in Informative Note 4 
attached to this same planning permission. 

 Thereafter the development of the site shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details including all matters regulated under any conditions attached to the AMC consent(s) 
which are ulterior to this planning permission. 

 Reason: To achieve a satisfactory form of development, and to comply with the requirements 
of Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the 
Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006; to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place for 
the delivery and management of the development of the entire site, including for the provision 
of appropriate vehicular and pedestrian access to, from and within the site, both during and 
after the period of construction, which is in the interests of site safety, road safety and public 
safety; and to ensure that there would be no unacceptable impacts upon the surface, structure 
or operation of the public road as a consequence of the development, including as a result of 
any changes to design, ground and surface levels or surface water drainage, again in the 
interests of road safety. 

 
 3 No dwellinghouse hereby approved shall be occupied until: 
 i)  the water supply, surface water drainage and foul drainage relating to that same 

dwellinghouse, are first all fully functional; and 
 ii)  the site access and on-site provision for the accommodation of the parking and movement 

of at least two vehicles (excluding any garaging) within the curtilage of the residential property 
associated with that same dwellinghouse, have all first been completed and made available for 
use by occupants' vehicles. 

 Reason: To ensure that each residential property hereby consented is adequately serviced 
and fit for habitation prior to its occupation, and to ensure that each property's site access and 
parking areas are complete and available for use by occupants in the interests of road and site 
safety. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 558



                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

 4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority (including in accordance with any 
details approved under any AMC consent issued as ulterior to this Planning Permission in 
Principle consent) and in advance of such tree works taking place: 

 i)  no trees (including their roots and branches) within the application site (including on the site 
boundaries) shall be felled, lopped, lifted or disturbed in any way, and no works shall take 
place within their Root Protection Areas or canopy spreads; and 

 ii)  all existing trees shall be fully protected in accordance with the requirements of BS 
5837:2012 and all measures required on-site to protect these trees for the duration of 
construction works, shall be maintained in accordance with the requirements of BS 5837:2012.  
Further, there shall be no storage of plant or machinery within the Root Protection Areas 
(RPAs) of these same trees, and there shall be no services installed within their RPAs unless 
such works are compliant with NJUG Guidelines. 

 Reason: In the interests of preserving the health and vitality of the existing trees, the loss of 
which would have an adverse effect on the visual amenity of the area. The existing trees 
represent an important visual feature which the Planning Authority considers should be 
substantially maintained in the interests of conserving the visual amenities of the site and 
surrounding area. 

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
It should be noted that: 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 1:  
 

It should be noted that ALL information requirements identified in the planning conditions attached to 
this planning consent require to be made the subject of a subsequent application, or subsequent 
applications, for Approval of Matters specified in Conditions (AMC).    
 
When making an AMC application to address the information requirements of the planning conditions 
attached to this planning consent, the Applicant should explicitly state the reference numbers of the 
relevant planning conditions in the appropriate place (currently Section 5b) on the Planning 
Application Form.  
 
In the event that the Applicant would seek to address the information requirements of ALL planning 
conditions attached to this planning consent within one AMC application, they must ensure that they 
supply information that fully and properly addresses ALL information requirements identified within 
ALL planning conditions. 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 2: 
 
The proposed phasing arrangements of the development required under item iv. of Planning 
Condition No 2, must consider how safe vehicular and pedestrian access to, from and within the site 
(including provision for footpaths, and areas for the parking and turning of all vehicles on the site, 
construction traffic as well as for normal traffic) would be established and maintained from the start of 
development, and how this would then be maintained throughout the course of the development of 
the site up to completion.  This phasing should address, and allow for, the possibility that the first 
house(s) constructed, may be occupied before the development of the last house(s) is completed, 
such that at every stage of the development, the access arrangements on the site are sufficient to 
accommodate both residential and construction traffic, as well as to allow for safe pedestrian access 
to, from and within the site. 
 
 
 
 

Page 559



                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

 
In the interests of site safety, public safety and road safety, the Planning Authority reserves the right 
at the time(s) of the determination of the application(s) for the detailed proposals to impose planning 
condition(s) upon any AMC consent(s) that is/are ulterior to this Planning Permission in Principle, to 
require that particular works or operations should be completed by particular stages within the 
development. 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 3: 
 
The Design and Access Statement required under Planning Condition No 2, item v, attached to this 
planning permission, should address how the detailed site layout proposals would ensure road safety 
and public safety with respect to vehicular and pedestrian movements from, to, and within the site, 
and both during and after the period of construction of all six dwellinghouses. 
 
INFORMATIVE NOTE 4: 
 

The Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment required under Planning Condition No 2, item 
vi, attached to this planning permission, must be carried out by an individual or organisation that is 
professionally competent to do so, and should be undertaken and reported in conformity with BS5837: 
2012 (or any successor publication). 
 
The survey should include assessment of those trees in the existing woodland along the northern 
boundary of the site and those trees on, or close to, the site's boundaries within adjacent residential 
gardens.   
 
A critical concern is that the potential for the retention of all existing trees on and around the 
boundaries of the site, is appropriately investigated in advance, and any and all mitigation measures 
required to conserve these trees in the long-term (including through design, as well as through the 
adoption of any measures required to safeguard them throughout the course of the development) are 
identified at the pre-development stage to ensure that the mitigation is fit for purpose.  The Tree 
Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment is required to inform this assessment. 
  

N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the proposed 
development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the development 
should not be commenced until all consents are obtained. 
 
Notice of Initiation of Development 
 
Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any 
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and 
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the 
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable.  A form is available 
on the Council’s website for this purpose. 
 
Notice of Completion of Development 
 

Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any 
person who completes a development for which planning permission (including planning permission in 
principle) has been given must, as soon as practicable after doing so, give notice of completion to the 
planning authority. 
 
 
 

Page 560



                                                

Regulatory Services 
 
                                                                                                                                              

 

When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the 
permission is to be granted subject to a condition  that as soon as practicable after each phase, other 
than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that 
completion to the planning authority.   
 
In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose 
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake.  Contacts include: 
 
Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD 
Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA 
Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU 
British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke on 
Trent, ST1 5ND 
Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 
0SA 
Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL 
BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo’ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH 
THUS, Susiephone Department, 4th Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD 
Susiephone System – 0800 800 333 
 
If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at the 
following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield, Nottinghamshire 
NG18 4RG 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for 
or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or 
approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case 
under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three 
months from the date of this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate 
Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA. 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of 
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
  
 

Page 561



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     17/01526/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Hamish  Hunter 

 
AGENT :    
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of dwellinghouse with integral garage 
 
LOCATION:  Garden Ground Of 

1 Hay Park Woods 
Hay Park Loan 
Stow 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
991.PL.01  Location Plan Approved 
991-PL-02  Existing Layout Approved 
991-PL-03-REV-A  Block Plans Approved 
991-PL-04  Floor Plans Approved 
991-PL-05-REV-A  Floor Plans Approved 
991-PL-06-REV-B  Elevations Approved 
991-PL-07-REV-B  Sections Approved 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
Consultations 
 
Roads Planning Service: Current policy is that only a maximum of 4 new build dwellings (since 1984) 
can be served off a private access. It would appear that the provision of this dwelling would not take 
the number served by the private access above 4 and, as such, the RPS will not object to the 
proposal.  Given the levels proposed, the applicant should satisfy themselves that they have adequate 
measures in place to cater for any surface water which may flow from the adjacent track towards the 
garage door. The parking spaces must be provided prior to occupation and be retained thereafter in 
perpetuity 
Community Council: No reply 
Education and Lifelong Learning: A contribution of £3567 is sought for Galashiels Academy 
Environmental Health Service: Objected, as the plans (originally) indicated that there would be a solid 
fuel stove fitted in the property. The flue height is insufficient to guarantee that neighbouring properties 
will not be affected by fumes from the appliance.  
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 

Page 563



Local Development Plan 2016 
 
PMD2, PMD5, HD3, EP13, IS2, IS3, IS6, IS7, IS9 
 
SPGs Placemaking and Design 2010; Trees and Development 2008; Landscape and Development 
2008; Guidance on Householder Development 2006; Waste Management 2015 
  
Recommendation by  - Carlos Clarke  (Lead Planning Officer) on 4th January 2018 
 
This application seeks consent for a detached house on garden ground located near the southerly end of the 
village, and accessed via a private road. It is located just outside the Conservation Area which stops short to 
the north and west. The site is on a corner, forming part of the garden of a 1 1/2storey modern house 
located to the south-east. To its north is a driveway leading to that house and a further house behind. To the 
north side of the driveway are further houses and, opposite the site to its west is a detached house within an 
elongated garden. To the south is an undeveloped field.  The site is banked above the access road, with 
hedging on the top of the bank and trees located along the bottom. 
 
Principle 
 
The site is within the settlement boundary, is not designated and there are no significant land use conflicts 
likely to arise. The existing house will retain adequate garden ground and existing parking and access.  
 
Ecology 
 
There are no designations and the trees to be removed are not significant in size, with limited ecological 
potential. An informative can cover risk to breeding birds.  
 
Services 
 
A legal agreement will be necessary to secure a contribution towards the local high school, and a 
contribution towards the Waverley Line reinstatement. 
 
Water and drainage services are proposed to and from the mains. A condition can require evidence of 
Scottish Water approval of connections. 
 
A scheme of surface water drainage should be sought by condition, to ensure a SUDs based scheme is 
achievable that maintains greenfield run-off levels from the site. Protection of the house itself from run-off 
from the road is a Building Standards matter, though any implications for the approved house layout/levels 
will need addressed if these arise. An informative note can draw this to the applicant's attention.  
 
Access and parking 
 
The site is off a private road, but the RPS is content that this house will not trigger a need for an adoptable 
road. The applicant has a share in the ownership of the road. the proposal originally included works to widen 
the road, though the RPS does not require this, so it has been removed from the proposal.  
 
A new access is proposed with undercroft parking with room for at least two cars. The RPS accepts the 
proposal. Though the undercroft is not a garage in itself (it leads to one), there is the potential to later close 
off the entrance under PD rights. A condition should, therefore, ensure the opening remains and the parking 
spaces under it. A condition should also secure driveway construction details.  
 
Waste 
 
No bin storage or collection points are shown, though there is plenty of room for the former, and bin 
collection will follow existing arrangements that affect the private road 
 
Air quality and noise 
 

Page 564



The stove flue originally proposed, and objected to by the EHS, has been removed from the proposal.  The 
application includes what appears to be an air source heat pump to the rear. This is agreeable if noise is 
controlled to standard levels, as per the recommended condition. 
 
Placemaking and design 
 
The application is supported by a tree survey that identifies eight trees on site, though all are classified as 
being low quality (there are also small conifers to the rear). All but one of the eight main trees would need 
removed to permit the development. The trees contribute to the setting, but I don't consider their value is 
overriding. The tree survey notes that the landscape here is dominated by more substantial trees elsewhere.  
Some replacement tree planting is proposed, and this will assist integration.  
 
The development will be visible in the wider landscape from various views, but it will be amongst a mix of 
houses on the hillside which are punctuated by trees. The response to the site is an appropriate one, with 
the house comprising a modern, two storey building set well within the site, thus retaining the overall banked 
appearance of the site while minimising the visual impact of the development. Stone walling will mark the 
boundaries, with hedging above masking the frontage. The modern flat-roofed design is a suitable design 
solution for this site. The proposals were, however, amended a little so  that the boundary wall was reduced, 
and a tiered hedge is used to screen the upper retaining wall. The fascia of the house has also been 
slimmed a little. These amendments will help to reduce the visual impact of the house when viewed from the 
lower road level. A condition is necessary to secure full elevation drawings purely to account for parts of the 
building obscured in the submitted drawings. A condition is also necessary to secure enforceable levels as, 
though the sections illustrate an appropriate arrangement for ground works, levels set to a fixed off site 
datum will be needed to be enforceable 
 
Materials include  grey single ply roof and zinc fascias. A white coloured smooth render was originally 
proposed (now specified as off-white), with dark grey render for the basecourse. Dark grey is also proposed 
for windows. There is a mix of materials in the area, and these proposals will generally be suitable, provided 
dark matt finishes will be used for the roof, and on the basis of a more subdued colour for the main render. 
Hardstanding materials will largely be hidden, aside from entrance. Solar panels and rooflights will have an 
acceptable visual impact subject to dark frames. 
 
Boundary features will include the natural stone outer wall and tapered hedging. There is an existing fence 
to the south, and a new fence and hedge is proposed to the east. A retaining wall is also sited to the rear, 
but will be relatively low and with limited external visibility. These proposals are agreeable, subject to 
conditions on details.  
 
The proposal will also not affect the setting of a nearby Listed church or Scheduled church remains. It is just 
outside the Conservation Area but amongst a sporadic grouping of buildings, with no significant views from 
the core of the Conservation Area. It will add to the existing variety of buildings without detracting from the 
character or appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Neighbouring amenity 
 
The proposal will not adversely affect neighbouring property in terms of sunlight, daylight or outlook loss. As 
regards privacy, the deep cut and low level of the development suggests no significant issue in this regard. 
The proposal itself may be overlooked by the existing house, though the applicants propose fencing and 
hedging on that boundary which will not be visually unsympathetic. Given proximately to the house to the 
rear a limit on PD rights is recommended for extensions and external outbuildings.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
Subject to a legal agreement and compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord 
with the relevant provisions of the Local Development Plan 2016 and there are no material considerations 
that would justify a departure from these provisions 
 
Recommendation:  Approved - conditions, inform & LA 
 
 1 No development shall commence until written evidence is provided on behalf of Scottish Water to 

confirm that mains water and foul drainage connections shall be made available to serve the 

Page 565



development, and until a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to and approved by 
the Planning Authority that demonstrates that greenfield run-off levels will be maintained. Mains 
services and the approved surface water drainage scheme shall be operational prior to occupancy 
of the dwellinghouse 

 Reason: To ensure the development can be adequately serviced 
 
 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sectional drawings, and no 

development shall commence until further level details, confirming the proposed floor and site 
ground levels related to a fixed off-site datum, have been submitted to and approved by the 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels 

 Reason: To ensure the development is visually sympathetic to the context 
 
 3 No development shall commence until elevation drawings have been submitted to and approved by 

the Planning Authority illustrating those parts of the elevations obscured within the approved 
drawings. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved drawings 

 Reason: To ensure the development is visually sympathetic to the context 
 
 4 No development shall commence until further details of external landscaping/planting and new 

fencing illustrated on the approved plans and drawings, and an implementation timescale and 
maintenance schedule for all planting, have been submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, and the 
plans and the drawings, including sections, approved under this consent.  

 Reason: To ensure the development is visually sympathetic to the context 
 
 5 No development shall commence until samples of all external materials of the house and dwarf wall 

(i.e. the wall incorporating the hedge) have been submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority. The development shall be completed using the approved materials. The roofing finish, 
including fascia, and rooflight and solar panel frames, shall be matt and dark grey in colour, and the 
boundary/retaining walls illustrated on the approved plans/drawings shall be constructed of natural 
whinstone unless otherwise agreed with the Planning Authority 

 Reason: To ensure the development is visually sympathetic to the context 
 
 6 The dwellinghouse shall not be occupied until the access and parking area have been implemented 

in accordance with the approved plans and drawings, including sections, and in accordance with 
surfacing treatment of the access/driveway which has first been submitted to and approved by the 
Planning Authority. The access and parking area shall be retained in perpetuity and the access shall 
not be subsequently closed off notwithstanding the General Permitted Development (Scotland) 
Order 1992 (as amended 2011) or any subsequent amendment or Order 

 Reason: To ensure the development is adequately serviced with off-street parking 
 
 7 Notwithstanding the General Permitted Development (Scotland) Order 1992 (as amended 2011) or 

any subsequent amendment or Order, no further development comprising an extension or alteration 
materially affecting the external appearance of the approved dwellinghouse or erection of building or 
other structure within its curtilage shall be undertaken without a planning application for the same 
having first been submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority 

 Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties 
 
 8 Any noise emitted by external heating units shall not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR20 between the 

hours of 2300 - 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within the nearest noise sensitive 
dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise should not contain any discernible tonal 
component. Tonality shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2 

 Reason: To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.   
 
 
Informatives 
 
It should be noted that: 
 
 

Page 566



 1 If the development requires adjustment to address Building Warrant requirements, amendments 
may require a fresh planning application unless these are non-material. Of particular note in that 
regard is the driveway gradient and potential surface water run-off into the site from the road 

 
 2 The colour of the main wall render should be relatively subdued, such as cream 
 
 3 Removal of trees should avoid the bird breeding season (March-August) unless trees are first 

checked for bird nests. Breeding birds are protected under EU and UK habitat legislation 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 567



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments 01835 825251/System Help 01835 826705  Email: 
corporatebusinesssystems@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100343317-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

PLANNING APPLICATION IN PRINCIPLE FOR RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED AMENITY, PARKING, 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ACCESS 

Page 575



Page 2 of 7

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Ferguson Planning 

Mr

Lucy

Bruce 

Moroney

Weir

Island Street

c/o Agent 

54

c/o Agent 

01896 668 744

TD1 1NU

Scotland 

c/o Agent 

Scottish Borders 

c/o Agent 

Galasheils

lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 576



Page 3 of 7

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

1.10

Agricultural Land 

Scottish Borders Council

644327 346193

Page 577



Page 4 of 7

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Page 578



Page 5 of 7

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

I hereby certify that –

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the 
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at 
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Lucy Moroney

On behalf of: Mr Bruce  Weir

Date: 22/12/2020

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 579



Page 6 of 7

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Page 580



Page 7 of 7

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Miss Lucy Moroney

Declaration Date: 22/12/2020
 

Payment Details

Cheque: Bruce Weir ,  12345678
Created: 22/12/2020 13:37

TOPO survey  Landscape Visual Impact Assessment 

Page 581



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 583

Agenda Item 6f



 

Wednesday, 13 January 2021 
 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
 
SITE: Land South Of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston Road Stow, Galashiels, TD1 2QT 
PLANNING REF:  20/01620/PPP 
OUR REF: DSCAS-0029839-M5L 
PROPOSAL: Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and 
access 
 
 

Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 
 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should 
be aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced 
and would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 There is currently sufficient capacity in the MANSE ST GALASHIELS Water 
Treatment Works to service your development. However, please note that further 
investigations may be required to be carried out once a formal application has been 
submitted to us. 
 

 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 This proposed development will be serviced by STOW Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to 
allow us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a 
Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via 
our Customer Portal or contact Development Operations. 

 
 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 584

https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 

 
 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

 
Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 

Page 585

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/


 

 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk 
 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non Dom Property: 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Page 586

https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/


 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Planning Application Team 
Development Operations Analyst 
developmentoperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then 
you should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the 
ground and to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree 
that Scottish Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or 
from carrying out any such site investigation." 
 

 

Page 587

http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:developmentoperations@scottishwater.co.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Archaeology Officer 
 
From:      Development Management Date:   7th January 2021 
 
Contact:  Carlos Clarke       01835 826735  Ref:  20/01620/PPP 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 28th January 2021. If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 28th January 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Bruce Weir  
  

Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    

Nature of Proposal:  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 
Site:  Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish 

Borders 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 588

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: 
Keith Elliott 
Archaeology Officer 

Contact e-mail/number: 
Keith.Elliott@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 824 000 ext 8886 

   

Date of reply 06.05.2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01620/PPP Case Officer: 
Carlos Clarke      

Applicant Mr Bruce  Weir  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 

Site Location Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders 
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This application proposes the construction of four houses, together with 
landscaping and access, in the currently open grassland ground south of Crunzion 
Cottage on the southeastern side of Stow. 
 
This archaeological consultation has been triggered by the area of the application 
lying close to a number of entries recorded in the Scottish Borders Historic 
Environment (HER) and in the surroundings of an establish and historic settlement 
of Stow. 
 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Potential for archaeological remains 

 Significance of such, if any, archaeological remains 

Assessment This application has been assessed against the Scottish Borders Historic 
Environment Record (HER) as the known, recorded and mapped entries relating to 
the range of archaeological and historical sites and monuments, landscapes and 
findspots. This includes sites whose limits have been defined from old Ordnance 
Survey map editions, as well as aerial photographic coverage of the area, as well 
as those generally located from documentary sources many prior to the introduction 
of the national grid. 
 
It is in the Hay Park Wood that the presence of a well recorded (Canmore ID 
344443), though its exact location is unclear from the description notes, which is of 
possible Medieval date, and the open ground on the edges of the larger 
village/smaller town of Stow that have acted as a trigger for this application. There 
are no features shown in the field by any of the Ordnance Survey map editions or in 
the aerial photographs of the field. The 1780 Survey of the lands of Stow and 
Stagehall, situate in the Parish of Stow and County of Midlothian. Gilbert Innes Esq, 
Proprietor by William Hall shows the line of the western boundary of this application 
area – the road to Crunzean – largely unchanged, whilst William Roy’s Lowlands 
Map compiled 1747 to 1752 hints at fields southeast of Stow but does not indicate 
their exact location. It is likely that there has been field systems in this area for 
some length of time and quite possible that these are as the fields largely are today. 
 
The application will involve groundworks for the foundation and service trenches, as 

Page 589

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:Keith.Elliott@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

well as for the landscaping, but there is nothing to indicate the potential for 
archaeology in this area. The site is distant from the established core of the larger 
village/smaller town of Stow clustered around the church and ‘bishop’s palace’ 
buildings so it is perhaps unlikely that any archaeological finds, features or deposits 
might be discovered of the Medieval period. Whilst the site is also elevated on the 
slopes above Stow, it appears from Google Street View photography the field 
largely devoid of any earthworks or any topographically prominent position that 
might be the likely location of any prehistoric monuments. It is therefore that there a 
low potential and low significance for any archaeological finds, features or deposits 
to be revealed in this work and unlikely in this sloping ground. 
 
Therefore in conclusion no archaeological recommendations for any conditions are 
recommended. It is not thought necessary to highlight through an informative the 
needs for any stray finds recording beyond what would ordinarily be required for 
finds reporting to the Treasure Trove Unit should any finds be made, irrespective of 
date or material, but again the potential for these is also thought to be low also. 
                                                                                                                                                                

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

No archaeological conditions are recommended against this application. 

Recommended 
Informatives 

No archaeological informatives are recommended against this application either. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 590

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Ecology Officer 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   7th January 2021 
 
Contact:  Carlos Clarke       01835 826735  Ref:  20/01620/PPP 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 28th January 2021, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 28th January 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Bruce  Weir  
  
Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 
Site:  Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish 

Borders 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 591

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Dr Andy Tharme 
Ecology Officer 
 

atharme@scotborders.gov.uk 
T:01835-826514 

Date of reply 08 March 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01620/PPP Case Officer: 
Carlos Clarke      

Applicant Mr Bruce  Weir  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 

Site Location Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders 
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Potential impacts on a  Natura site (River Tweed SAC) and protected 
species (breeding birds) 

Assessment Relevant Local Development Plan (LDP) Policies are: EP1 International Nature 
Conservation Sites and Protected Species, EP2 National Nature Conservation 
Sites and Protected Species and EP3 Local Biodiversity. 
 
I have not visited the site to inform this consultation response, a desk-top 
assessment has been made using the Council’s biological records, aerial imagery 
and information submitted by the applicant 
 
I note the submitted Extended Phase 1 habitat survey (Earlston Road, Stow, 
Ellendale Environmental 22nd May 2020). The survey work was carried out on 
13/05/2021.  
 
The site consists largely of habitats of low biodiversity value (improved pasture) 
habitats of higher value on the boundary (out with the redline boundary), notably 
the mixed woodland along the eastern boundary and Crunzie burn, the Crunzie 
burn and mature beech trees on the south-west boundary. 
 
No signs of otter were recorded along the Crunzie burn although it was noted as 
being suitable habitat for otter. 
 
The stables and haylage barn surveyed are out with the proposed development 
area.  They were found to be of negligible suitability for bats. 
 
The report recommends mitigation to protect breeding birds and biodiversity 
enhancements through provision of nest boxes for birds. 

Page 592

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:atharme@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 
The woodland habitats on the boundary may provide suitable forging and 
commuting habitat for bats.  A sensitive lighting scheme may be required to reduce 
light spill from the new habitat to safeguard the suitable bat habitat, in accordance 
with good practicei. 
 
I note that an area of trees on the eastern boundary has been cleared and that 
Scottish Forestry has issued a re-stocking order. I am unaware when the trees 
were felled or if protected species surveys (e.g. for bats and birds) were carried out 
in advance of felling. 
 
Designated sites 
The Crunzie burn is adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site and provides 
potential connectivity with the Gala water (part of the River Tweed SAC).  A bridge 
crossing of the burn has been proposed.  Impacts on the River Tweed SAC may 
arise through construction of the bridge, run-off of sediment and pollutants from 
exposed earth during construction and spillage of oils and chemicals used during 
construction. 
 
The extended Phase 1 survey recommends mitigation to avoid impacts on breeding 
birds. No mitigation is proposed to safeguard the watercourse or River Tweed SAC. 
 
The proposed development is not connected with the conservation objectives of the 
River Tweed SAC. In my opinion, the proposed development may result in a likely 
significant effect on the River Tweed SAC. 
 
The Planning Authority is required to carry out an appropriate assessment prior to 
determination of the planning application. This may take into account any mitigation 
proposed to minimise impacts on the watercourse and River Tweed SAC.  
 
Mitigation should follow good practice including GPP5 Works and maintenance in 
or near water, CAR GBR10 and other CAR requirements.  Further information 
should be provided in an outline construction method statement. 
 
The bridge structure may require a CAR licence from SEPA.  At the time of writing, 
I have not seen the consultation response of SEPA or NatureScot. 
 
Further information on mitigation to protect the adjacent watercourse and River 
Tweed SAC is required, to enable a Habitat Regulations Appraisal to be concluded. 
 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Page 593

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

                                                           
i Guidance Note 8/18 (2018): Bats and artificial lighting in the UK. BCT and ILP. 

Page 594

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


From:Tharme, Andy
Sent:7 May 2021 15:04:05 +0100
To:Clarke, Carlos
Subject:20/01620/PPP Stow
Attachments:2001620PPPAppropriate Assessment.doc

Carlos

 

I am satisfied with the submitted Environmental Management Plan (Ellendale Environmental , 25th 
March 2021) and I have concluded the Appropriate Assessment (attached).

 

In summary, the proposal will not have a significant adverse effect on the integrity of the River Tweed 
SAC.

 

Further to my earlier response of 8th March 2021, Planning conditions will be required for:

 

         A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)

         A Species protection plan for birds

         A sensitive lighting scheme for bats

         A proportionate Biodiversity Enhancement Plan

 

Regards

 

Andy

 

 

Andy Tharme

Ecology Officer

Page 595



Heritage and Design

Economy & Corporate Improvement Department

Scottish Borders Council HQ

Newtown St Boswells

Scottish Borders 

TD6 0SA

 

Tel: 01835-826514

atharme@scotborders.gov.uk

 

 

Page 596

mailto:atharme@scotborders.gov.uk


1 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

ANNEX A  NATURA/RAMSAR APPRAISAL PROFORMA  

 
 

 Planning 
Application 

File Ref. 20/01620/PPP 

                                  
SITE DETAILS        
 
1a. Name of Natura site affected & current status   

River Tweed SAC 

 
1b. Name of component SSSI if relevant 

 

 
1c. European qualifying interest(s) & whether priority/non-priority: 

River lamprey Lampetra fluviatilis  
Brook lamprey Lampetra planeri 
Otter Lutra 
Sea lamprey Petromyzon marinus 
Atlantic salmon Salmo salar 
 
Rivers with floating vegetation often dominated by water-crowfoot: water 
courses of plain to montane levels with the Ranunculion fluitantis and 
Callitricho-Batrachion vegetation 
 

 
1d. Conservation objectives for qualifying interests: 

Qualifying Habitat: Rivers with floating vegetation often dominated by water-crowfoot 
 
To avoid deterioration of the qualifying habitat (listed below) thus ensuring that the 
integrity of the site is maintained and the site makes an appropriate contribution to 
achieving favourable conservation status for each of the qualifying features; and 
To ensure for the qualifying habitat that the following are maintained in the long term: 

 Extent of the habitat on site 

 Distribution of the habitat within site 

 Structure and function of the habitat 

 Processes supporting the habitat 

 Distribution of typical species of the habitat 

 Viability of typical species as components of the habitat 

 No significant disturbance of typical species of the habitat 
 
Qualifying Species: Atlantic salmon; Brook lamprey; River lamprey; Sea lamprey; Otter 

 
To avoid deterioration of the habitats of the qualifying species (listed below) or significant 
disturbance to the qualifying species, thus ensuring that the integrity of the site is 
maintained and the site makes an appropriate contribution to achieving favourable 
conservation status for each of the qualifying features; and 
To ensure for the qualifying species that the following are maintained in the long term: 

 Population of the species, including range of genetic types for salmon, as a viable 

 component of the site 

 Distribution of the species within site 

 Distribution and extent of habitats supporting the species 

 Structure, function and supporting processes of habitats supporting the species 

 No significant disturbance of the species 

 
PROPOSAL DETAILS 
 

Page 597



2 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

2a. Proposal title  

Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with 
associated infrastructure and access 
Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston 
Road Stow Galashiels 

 

  

2b. Date consultation sent:  

2c. Date consultation received  

2d. Name of consultee  

2e. Name of competent authority  

2f. Type of Case: Use the appropriate option (type and subtype) from 
the CRD 

 
2g. Details of proposed operation (inc. location, timing, methods): 

 Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 
 

 
APPRAISAL IN RELATION TO REGULATION 48 
 
3a. Is the operation directly connected with or necessary to conservation management of the 
site? YES/NO  If YES give details: 

No 

  
If yes and it can be demonstrated that the tests in 3b have been applied to all the interest features in 
a fully assessed and agreed management plan then consent can be issued but rationale must be 
provided, including reference to management objectives. If no, or if site has several European 
qualifying interests and operation is not directly connected with or necessary to the management of all 
of these then proceed to 3b. 
 
3b.  Is the operation likely to have a significant effect on the qualifying interest? Consider each 
qualifying interest in relation to the conservation objectives. 
i) indicate which feature of interest could be affected by the proposed operation and briefly in what 
way; if none provide a brief justification and the proceed to v), otherwise continue:  
ii) refer to other plans/projects with similar effects/other relevant evidence; 
iii) consider scale, longevity, and reversibility of effects; 
iv) consider whether proposal contributes to cumulative or incremental impacts with other projects 
completed, underway or proposed; 
v) give Yes/No conclusion for each interest. 
 

The proposal is not directly connected with, or necessary to, the conservation management of the 
River Tweed SAC. The site is connected via the Crunzie burn to the Gala water, part of the River 
Tweed SAC. 
 
Contamination through sediment run-off during construction from water running over exposed soil 
entering the River Tweed SAC affecting water quality and river habitats. Pollution spills of 
chemicals, oils or concrete during construction may affect water quality. 
 
During operation contaminated surface water run off may arise from surface water run-off which 
may impact on water quality.   
 
Adopting the precautionary principle, in my opinion the proposed development could give rise to 
likely significant effects on the qualifying interests of the River Tweed SAC. 
 

 
If no for all features, a consent or non-objection response can be given and recorded under 4 
(although if there are other features of national interest only, the effect on these should be considered 
separately).  If potential significant effects can easily be avoided, record modifications required under 
3d. 
If yes, or in cases of doubt, proceed to 3c.  

Page 598



3 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

 
3c.  Appraisal of the implications for the site in view of the site’s conservation objectives.   
 
i) Describe for each European qualifying interest the potential impacts of the proposed operation 
detailing which aspects of the proposal could impact upon them and their conservation objectives 
ii)  Evaluate the significance of the potential impacts, e.g. whether short/long term, reversible or 
irreversible, and in relation to the proportion/importance of the interest affected, and the overall effect 
on the site’s conservation objectives. Record if additional survey information or specialist advice has 
been obtained. 
 

Page 599



4 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

Appraisal of impacts on Site Integrity 
 
Predicted impacts on qualifying habitats and species are set out in table 1 and 2 below:  
 
Table 1: Qualifying habitat: Rivers with floating vegetation often dominated by water-crowfoot 
 

Conservation objective Effects 

Extent of habitat on site Effects on extent and distribution of habitat through siltation and 
pollution. 

Distributions of the habitat 
within the site/of typical 
species 

Effects on extent and distribution of habitat through siltation and 
pollution. 

Structure and function of 
the habitat 

Siltation of gravel can interfere affect establishment of 
macrophytes.  No effect of river flow. 

Processes supporting the 
habitat 

Siltation may cover macrophytes and cause loss of associated 
fauna. No effect on channel morphology. 

Viability of typical species 
as components of the 
habitat  

Impacts on macrophytes of siltation and pollution.  No effect on 
flows. No instream works. 

No significant disturbance 
of typical species of the 
habitat 

None 
 

 
 
Table 2: Qualifying species: Atlantic salmon, lamprey sp, otter 
 

Conservation Objective Effects 

Population of the species, 
including range of genetic 
types for salmon, as a 
viable component of the 
site 

Siltation affecting spawning and juvenile fish impacting on 
population structure. Otter distribution and abundance related to 
fish populations. 

Distribution of the species 
within the site 

Stretches of poor water quality may act as a barrier to lamprey 
migration. No effect on flow or introduction of barriers to movement. 

Distribution and extent of 
habitats supporting the 
species 

Siltation may affect habitat quality including the extent and 
distribution of habitat supporting salmon and lamprey.  Impacts on 
fish prey may affect the otter population 
No barriers to movement will be introduced. 

Structure and function and 
supporting processes of 
habitats supporting the 
species 

Siltation may smother spawning habitat (gravels) of salmon and 
lamprey sp. 
No effects on flow or morphology 

No significant disturbance 
of the species  

None 

  

 
Mitigation proposed: 
 
The proposal includes a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) (Environmental 
Management Plan, Ellendale Environmental, 25th March 2021). This includes the following mitigation 
measures: 
 

 Assess activities likely to cause pollution of the burn 

 Compliance with General Binding Rules 

 Provision of tool box talks (Silt fencing & sediment control, Storage & use of fuels & oils, 
Rivers & Streams) 

 Monitoring and management of mitigation (silt fencing) 

 Contingency plans for pollution prevention 

 Storage of cement and pollutants in secure locations 

Page 600



5 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

 Sand and gravel stockpiles to be  a minimum of 30m from burn 

 Run-off from machinery servicing and concreter mixing araes to be treated via settlement 
ponds/ filter ditch 

 No fuel, oil storage or bund shall be located within 30m of a watercourse 

 Diesel to be stored in double-skinned tanks/bowsers 

 Refuelling in designated areas 30m from watercourse 

 No machinery to operate in watercourses 
 
. 
The following measures could be secured by condition to prevent sediment and pollution from 
reaching the Gala water (River Tweed SAC), to ensure no significant adverse effect. 

 

 A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) in accordance with CAR GBR10 
and GPP5:Works and maintenance in or near water 

 
iii) In the light of the appraisal, ascertain whether the proposal will not adversely affect the integrity of 
the site for the qualifying interests.  If SAC and/or SPA and/or Ramsar site, give separate conclusions. 
If conditions or modifications are required, proceed to 3d. 
 
 

Page 601



6 http://sbc-lvw-
idoxapp:8080/idoxsoftware/secure/ig_display/3476189.doc?docid=3476189&appid=1002&location=volume1&ext=doc&page=0

&size=1&version=0&ftrstring=&displaytextasis=false&code=enfhibimbn 

Conclusion: 
In light of the above appraisal the Planning Authority considers that the proposal will not 
have a significant adverse effect on the integrity of the River Tweed SAC. 

 
3d. Conditions or modifications required. 
Indicate conditions/modifications required to ensure adverse effects are avoided, & reasons for these. 
 

Condition: 
 

 A Construction Environmental 
Management plan (CEMP) 

  

Reason: To protect the ecological interest (qualifying 
interests) of the River Tweed SAC 

Dr Andy Tharme 
Ecology Officer 
07 May 2021 

Page 602



Consultation Reply 
ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
To: HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICE 
 
FAO:  Carlos Clarke  Your Ref: 20/01620/PPP 
 
From: HEAD OF ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE Date:  14/01/2021 
 
Contact:        Raffaela Diesel Ext: 6977 Our Ref: B48/2990 
 

 
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouses with associated infrastructure 
Site:  Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Stow 
 

 
In terms of information that this Council has concerning flood risk to this site, I would state that The 
Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third generation flood 
mapping” prepared by SEPA indicates that the site is not at risk from either a fluvial or pluvial flood 
event with a return period of 1 in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any one 
year. 
 
However, this is this is due to the small catchment size of the Crunzie Burn which is smaller than 3km2 
and no mapping is carried out by SEPA for catchments of this scale. 
 
The submitted Flood Risk Assessment by Kaya shows that, despite the steep topography of the site, the 
development would likely not be at risk from surface water flooding as the proposed access road would 
be located above the dwellinghouses and would divert surface water run-off from the top of the hill 
towards the Crunzie Burn. Therefore, in principal, I have no objection to this development on flooding 
grounds. 
 
I note however, that the applicant proposes a 1m diameter pipe for the culvert in the Crunzie Burn with 
the inlet and outlet parameters for the culvert- as shown in the FRA and on the drawing ‘Preliminary 
Culvert Sections’ (drawing no. 0001-P4)- being the same as at the Pre-app stage. 
 
At the Pre-app stage on 31st July 2020 Duncan Morrison advised that clarification on the culvert and 
model was needed as to whether “the invert level in the model account for 300mm river bed material 
that will be required through the SEPA requirements for construction of the new culvert.” 
 
As it appears from the submitted documents that the required river bed material has not been taken 
into account I would ask the applicant to provide clarification on the culvert design and the 
considerations they have given to the culvert bed material. 
 
Additionally, I would require the applicant to submit details of their proposed SuDS as well as a 
drainage proposal for the development, with a detailed planning application.  
 
Please note that this information must be taken in the context of material that this Council holds in 
fulfilling its duties under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009. 

Page 603



 
 
Raffaela Diesel 
Technician- Flood & Coastal Management 

Page 604



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
To:        Forward Planning Section 
 
From:      Development  Management Date:   7th January 2021 
 
Contact:  Carlos Clarke       01835 826735  Ref:  20/01620/PPP 
  

PLANNING CONSULTATION 
 
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have 
your reply not later than 28th January 2021, If further time will be required for a reply please let me 
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 28th January 2021, it will be 
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application. 
 
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply 
into Idox. 
 
Name of Applicant:  Mr Bruce Weir  
  
Agent:  Ferguson Planning 
    
Nature of Proposal:  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 
Site:  Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish 

Borders 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 605

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Trish Connolly 
Planning Officer  
Forward Planning Section 

tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

Date of reply 24.02.2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01620/PPP Case Officer: 
Carlos Clarke      

Applicant Mr Bruce  Weir  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 

Site Location Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders 
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This application seeks consent for the erection of 4 houses with associated 
infrastructure and access at the Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road 
Stow.  
 
The site is located to the south of Stow and is located outwith the development 
boundary as contained within the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) 
2016. The site itself forms part of an open field adjacent to the Crunzie Burn and 
the Earlston Road. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Principle of housing on the site in consideration of Policy PMD4 of the 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. 

Assessment As the proposal is outwith the Stow development boundary this application must be 
assessed against the adopted Local Development Plan policy ‘PMD4 Development 
Outwith Development Boundaries’. 
 
The aim of policy PMD4 is to ensure that most development is located within 
defined Development Boundaries. The policy states exceptional approvals may be 
granted provided strong reasons can be given that: 
 

a) It is a job-generating development in the countryside that has an economic 
justification under policy ED7 or HD2, or 

b) It is an affordable housing development that can be justified in terms of 
policy HD1, or 

c) There is a shortfall identified by Scottish Borders Council through the 
housing and audit with regard to the provision of an effective 5 year housing 
land supply, or 

d) It is a development that it is considered would offer significant community 
benefits that outweigh the need to protect the development boundary. 

 
It is noted that the Planning Statement submitted by the applicant states in para 4.7 
that: “We consider a defined settlement such as Stow should equally be regarded 
as a large rural building group and one which is served by local services and public 
transport. The subject site adjoins the settlement boundary of Stow and is therefore 

Page 606

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:tconnolly@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

thought to be a logical extension for housing development. Para 4.9 states “Stow as 
a large rural grouping or settlement should, in theory, allow the four well placed 
dwellings given it would fall within the 30% ruling of an existing building group. It is 
further supported by the fact that it is highly accessible by modes other than the 
private car”.  
In respect to the above, Stow is a defined settlement within the Scottish Borders 
Local Development Plan 2016 and has its own Development Boundary. It is noted 
that Policy ‘PMD4 Development Outwith Development Boundaries’ states that : 
 

“Where Development Boundaries are defined on Proposal Maps, they indicate 
the extent to which towns and villages should be allowed to expand during the 
Local Plan period. Development should be contained within the Development 
Boundary and proposals for new development outwith this boundary, and not on 
allocated sites identified on the proposals maps, will normally be refused”. 

 
It is most surprisingly that the agent suggests this proposal should be tested under 
the Housing in the Countryside building group policy, despite the village clearly 
having a development boundary as identified in the statutory LDP.   This would be a 
major departure and precedent from longstanding and well recognised planning 
policy.  
 
In para 4.2 of the statement the agent states that “Within the emerging plan 
(proposed LDP), the site has not been allocated despite representation being 
made”.  Simply because a submission had been made does not mean it should be 
automatically allocated.  Over 250 site submissions were made and it was decided 
not to take this site forward into either the Main Issues Report or the proposed LDP.    
 
In para 4.13 the agent refers to the 3 allocated sites in the village as identified 
within the adopted LDP 2016.  The agent suggests these are constrained from 
development and yet has produced no evidence at all to confirm the reason why he 
says this.  These sites have been allocated via the correct consultation and 
adoption process and it is not considered there are any constraints nor 
insurmountable issues in allocating these sites. It is considered at this point in time 
market interest is the sole reason these sites have not been developed as yet.   
 
In response to para 4.14 it is accepted that finding new housing land in the village is 
a challenge due to a number of factors, and indeed this proposal confirms many of 
these challenges and constraints.   
 
In terms of para 4.25 the agent states that the allocations within the SPG on 
Housing in 2018 are highly questionable.  We would remind the agent that the SPG 
and the sites identified within it were signed off by Scottish Ministers.   
 
In terms of para 4.26 the agent appears to suggest that the 300 houses at Lowood, 
Tweedbank are claimed will be built within the LDP period.  It is unknown where he 
has obtained this information. The requirement of the SPG was to identify additional 
sites to provide for the housing land supply a further 916 units. It was not the case 
these houses, or indeed any others identified in the SPG, would be required to be 
built within the LDP period.  Again it is reminded that the SPG was signed off by 
Scottish Ministers. 
    
The agent has provided their own evaluation of the housing land supply, set out in 

Appendix 2 of their submitted Planning Statement. They have undertaken a review 

of a number of allocations and identified constraints on the sites and request that 

Page 607

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

they be reviewed in greater detail in relation to their general location acceptability 

and overall deliverability in the short to medium term. 

 

In response, it should be noted that it is not considered appropriate to re-assess the 

effectiveness/programming for each individual housing site, or to state which sites 

are not likely to be progressed, as part of the planning application process. This is 

undertaken annually as part of the Housing Land Audit process. Appendix 2 of the 

adopted Local Development Plan 2016 outlines the Council’s methodology for 

monitoring the 5 year effective housing land supply. Appendix 2 was subject to 

Examination and the Reporter agreed with the contents and did not make any 

modifications to this methodology. The Council has finalised the 2019 Housing 

Land Audit which concludes that the Scottish Borders has a 5 year effective 

housing land supply. It is considered the programming dates in the HLA are fair.  If 

required we can respond to the cases submitted by the agent in Appendix 2.   

 

As part of the Housing Land Audit process, the Council engages with Homes for 

Scotland and house builders for information regarding programming for 

development and any potential constraints on sites. This is taken into consideration 

in the programming of individual sites within the audit annually.  

 

In respect to the Housing Land Audit process, sites have been programmed as part 

of the 2019 HLA and the methodology for undertaking this is in line with Appendix 2 

as contained within the adopted Local Development Plan. Therefore, this 

programming should not be altered as part of the planning application process. The 

Council would welcome input into future audits from house builders, which can be 

taken on board in the programming of sites.  

 

In December 2020 the Scottish Government produced an amendment to Sottish 
Planning Policy (SPP). Of noting in respect of this proposal is the amendment 
primarily relates to confirming a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  
This is stated in paragraphs 28, 29, 30, 32 and 125. 
 
Paragraph 29 of SPP (revised 2020) states that planning policies and decisions 
should support sustainable development and lists sustainable principles which 
should be taken into account. These principles have not been amended and remain 
identified from SPP 2014.   
 
Paragraph 32 of SPP (revised 2020) states that the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the development 
plan as the starting point for decision-making. The 1997 Act requires planning 
applications to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. In the case of the Stow proposal it is not 
considered there are material considerations which can support the proposal which 
is contrary to the development plan.   
 
Paragraph 33 of SPP (revised 2020) states that proposals that do not accord with 
the development plan should not be considered acceptable unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Where a proposal is for sustainable 
development, the presumption in favour of sustainable development is a material 
consideration in favour of the proposal. Whether a proposed development is 
sustainable development should be assessed according to the principles set out in 
paragraph 29. Consideration must be given to whether this proposal is categorised 

Page 608

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

as a sustainable proposal. The submission is a PPP and there is therefore limited 
information provided and it is not considered the proposal meets the tests which 
confirm it to be sustainable development.    
 
Paragraph 125 of SPP (revised 2020) states proposals that do not accord with the 
development plan should not be considered acceptable unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Where a proposal for housing development is for 
sustainable development and the decision-maker establishes that there is a 
shortfall in the housing land supply in accordance with Planning Advice Note 
1/2020, the shortfall is a material consideration in favour of the proposal. Whilst the 
weight to be afforded to it is a matter for decision-makers to determine, the 
contribution of the proposal to addressing the shortfall within a five year period 
should be taken into account to inform this judgement. Whether a proposed 
development is sustainable development should be assessed according to the 
principles set out in paragraph 29. 
 
As referenced above in paragraph 125 of SPP (revised 2020), the Scottish 
Government produced Planning Advice Note 1/2020: Assessing the extent of the 5 
year supply of effective housing land. The Forward Planning team are in the 
process of carrying out the necessary calculations. This was not completed at the 
time of this response. However, it is noted that this proposal is only for 4 units and 
would be a minimal contribution should there appear to be an identified shortfall.   
 
In conclusion, it is not considered that this proposal meets the criteria within policy 
PMD4 nor the amended SPP and there are no material considerations which would 
allow the site to be supported. As the proposal is contrary to planning policy it 
cannot be supported by the Forward Planning Team. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 609

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Forward Planning Response: 

20/01620/PPP - Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated infrastructure and access 

Land South Of Crunzion Cottage Earlston Road Stow Galashiels Scottish Borders 

 

This additional response is further to the Reporters Decision on planning application (20/00753/FUL) 

and specifically in response to the conclusions regarding the five year effective housing land supply. 

In their decision making, the Reporter concluded that there is a shortfall in the five year effective 

housing land supply within the Scottish Borders.  

The Council acknowledge that the Reporter has applied the methodology set out in Planning Advice 

Note (PAN) 1/2020 (note - this is an advice note and not formal legislation) to calculate the five year 

supply of effective housing land. Whilst understanding the Reporter’s approach, the Council does 

not agree that the use of the housing land requirement set out within the Edinburgh and South East 

Scotland Strategic Development Plan 2013 (SESplan) as part of the calculation is appropriate in the 

Borders context.  

The Reporter states that the replacement Strategic Development Plan (SESplan 2) was rejected by 

Scottish Ministers in 2019, and therefore concludes that it does not form part of the Development 

Plan. That is acknowledged and accepted. However, it should be noted that, Scottish Planning Policy 

2020, paragraph 125 states that “Planning authorities, developers, service providers and other 

partners in housing provision should work together to ensure a continuing supply of effective land 

and to deliver housing, taking a flexible and realistic approach” [our emphasis].  This is a material 

consideration.  The housing land requirement figure contained within SESplan (862 units per annum) 

is significantly higher than any annual completions achieved within the Scottish Borders, including 

during the peak development times prior to the recession. This figure is not realistic. The average 

completion rate within the Scottish Borders over the past 10 years is 330 units. Furthermore, 

SESplan 2 set out housing land requirements which were informed by the Housing Need and 

Demand Assessment (HNDA2) which is acknowledged as ‘robust and credible’ by the Scottish 

Government in March 2015. 

Following the Scottish Ministers rejection of SESplan 2, the SESplan Local Authorities agreed a 

Housing Land Position Statement and sought QC opinion on the matter. The Position Statement 

outlines that, when assessing development proposals for sites not allocated for development in the 

Development Plan SESplan Member Authorities can have regard to a number of documents 

including;  

 The level of housing provision allocated and/or safeguarded in adopted LDP’s; 

 SDP2 Examination Report; 

 Updated information from the latest Housing Land Audit; 

 The Housing Need and Demand Assessment 2015 (HNDA2); and  

 SDP2 Proposed Plan Housing Background Paper (October 2016). 

The Council consider that the housing land requirement figures set out within SESplan 2 are more up 

to date and realistic in comparison to those included within SESplan, which are considered to now be 

outdated. The Council consider that the SESplan 2 housing figures, informed by HNDA2, are a 

significant material consideration and should be taken into account during the decision making 

process, until such time that housing land requirements are set out within National Planning 

Framework 4 (NPF4).  

Page 610



It must also be noted that Scottish Government required all planning authorities by 4th June 2021 to 

submit initial default estimated 10 year housing targets for their respective areas to feed into the 

draft NPF4 which is expected to be published in the autumn. The Scottish Government suggested an 

initial figure of 175 completions per annum. The Council considered that figure was too low and, 

taking account of a number of matters including previous completion rates, the figure agreed by the 

Planning and Building Standards Committee on 31st May and submitted to the Scott Government 

was 440 units per annum. It should be noted both these figures are significantly lower than the 

requirements of SESplan.      

Taking the all the above into consideration, the Council does not consider that there is a shortfall in 

the five year effective housing land supply within the Scottish Borders. It should also be noted the 

Reporter stated that the Venlaw application for housing development outwith the development 

boundary did not satisfy the sustainability tests contained within SPP as referred to within PAN 

1/2020.   

 

21/06/2021 

 

 

Page 611



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

20/01620/PPP    Page 1 of 2 

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service 

 

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Alan Scott 
Senior Roads Planning Officer 

ascott@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826640 

Date of reply 6th February 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01620/PPP Case Officer:      Carlos Clarke 

Applicant Mr. B. Weir 

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of 4 dwellings and associated access 

Site Location Land south of Crunzion Cottage, Stow 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment Roads Planning Service have previously raised concerns regarding this site 
through the consultation process for the Local Development Plan. We 
recommended against the site being included for a level of development which 
would require a public road, which currently limits the number of dwellings to 4, 
although we did intimate that we could support some development within this site if 
the settlement boundary was amended to incorporate the site. I note that to date, 
the settlement boundary has not been altered and the proposed Development Plan 
does not currently include any settlement boundary amendments either. As such, 
any development of this site has to be considered against the edge of settlement 
policy PMD4. 
 
Previous concerns noted the constrained nature of Earlston Road due to gradient, 
parked vehicles and restricted footway widths. That said, with the proposed 
footpath link, the site is situated in close proximity to the village centre (approx. 
400m) and the facilities it offers in terms of shops and transport links, while the 
railway station, health centre and school are a further 400m from the centre. 
Without this link, we would not be in a position to support any development on this 
site however with the link we could support limited development. 
 
In our previous correspondence, we did indicate that we may be able to support an 
extent of development not exceeding 4 dwelling units, preferably less, served via a 
private access, provided there was suitable pedestrian facilities towards the village 
included within any proposal and if the settlement boundary was amended to 
include this site. As such, the principle of housing on this site is acceptable to this 
section, however it would be subject to several conditions covering the matters 
raised below. 
 
With regards to the current proposal, I would comment as follows: 
 

Page 612

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:ascott@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

20/01620/PPP    Page 2 of 2 

 

 Prior to any development commencing on site, engineering details relating 
to the access will be required. These should include sections, levels and 
design information relating to the bridge and any retaining feature. This is to 
ensure these features are fit for purpose and will not cause a detrimental 
impact on the adjacent public road. They will also need to demonstrate that 
a suitable layout of access off the public road can be achieved with 
adequate visibility and gradients/levels. 

 Visibility at the junction with the public road should ideally be 2.4m x 120m 
in either direction. These splays however may be reduced depending on the 
geometry of the road (both horizontally and vertically) and the speed of the 
traffic on the public road. 

 Drainage details shall be required. This is to ensure that the site can cater 
appropriately for the associated surface water and that there will be no 
detrimental impact on lower ground/properties. The access road is 
predominantly flat until it reaches the square. There it appears to fall 
severely over a short distance. 

 Construction details will be required for the access road and the proposed 
footpath link. 

 Confirmation shall be required that the square proposed can accommodate 
service vehicles, with regards turning in particular. 

 Confirmation shall be required showing that the applicant has the 
appropriate powers to utilise the existing pedestrian link and the proposed  
link would have to be provided prior to occupation of the first dwelling and 
remain thereafter in perpetuity. 

 A traffic management plan would be required to cover the construction 
period showing how the developer proposes to manage traffic movements 
safely and appropriately. 

 The site would benefit from a small level of visitor parking although the 
access road is predominantly 6m wide and will accommodate an extent of 
visitor parking. 

 Allowance should be made for refuse collection. As the current Council 
policy is not to travel on private roads this would result in the development 
having “end of road” collections. As such, a hard standing for bin storage at 
the road end will be required as well as either allowance within the junction 
area for a refuse vehicle to sit during collection or the provision of a formal 
service pay-by.  

 
Ideally, the above information should be provided prior to any determination being 
made so as to ensure what is approved can be provided. However, if suitably 
worded conditions would suffice from a planning perspective, I would not object to 
the proposal provided appropriate conditions can be attached. If conditions are 
appropriate, let me know and I will provide suggested wording. 
 
It should be noted that due to travel restrictions in place at the time of writing 
due to the coronavirus, no site visit was undertaken prior to this response. 
The comments above are based on the information submitted and 
responders’ knowledge. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further 

information required 

 

Signed: DJI  

Page 613

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



From:Lucy Moroney
Sent:4 Oct 2021 16:58:01 +0100
To:Miller, Craig
Subject:RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

CAUTION: External Email 

Hi Craig, 

 

I hope you are well?

 

I am just looking to understand the reasoning behind the decision notices for 17/01526/FUL and 
16/01461/PPP appear to be on the portal for our application. Would you be able to help with this?

 

Thank you in advance for your time. 

 

Best wishes, 

Lucy 

 

 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

Page 615

Agenda Item 6g



E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 
responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:56
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Cc: Miller, Craig <CMiller@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Hi Lucy 

 

You would need to speak to Craig Miller about that – I have copied him into this e-mail.

 

Regards Fiona 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

Page 616

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:36
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Hi Fiona, 

 

Thanks for getting back to me. 

 

I see, thank you. Are you able to tell my why they see them relevant information? 

 

Best wishes, 

Lucy  

 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

Page 617

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk


T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 
responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:34
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Hello Lucy

 

Thanks for your e-mail.  

 

These past applications have been added to the 21/00018/RREF site at the request of the LRB Planning 
Adviser as relevant information.

 

Regards Fiona 

 

Fiona Henderson

Page 618

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk


Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 01 October 2021 16:20
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Tim Ferguson <tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Hi Fiona, 

 

I hope you are well. 

 

In addition to Bruce’s email below, I note the decision notices for 17/01526/FUL and 16/01461/PPP 
appear to be on the portal for our application. What is the reasoning for this?

 

Thanks, 

Lucy 

 

Page 619

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 
responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

From: Bruce Weir <Bruce@cwproperties.co.uk> 
Sent: 01 October 2021 14:22
To: localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
Cc: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>; Tim Ferguson <tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Good afternoon Fiona,

 

Page 620

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:Bruce@cwproperties.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


Thank you for your email dated the 17th of September 2021 to Lucy Moroney at Ferguson Planning, with 
comments from Mrs Hartswood. I hope you don’t mind that I have responded, rather than Ferguson 
Planning, as I thought the responses would be better from me as the applicant, given the comments 
made.

 

I would be grateful if this response can be circulated to the Members of the Local Review Body.

 

In response to Mrs Hartswood’ s email I would comment as follows:

 

1. The site has been put forward in the past, as part of the local development plan process, but no 
planning permission in principle application or detailed planning application has ever been 
submitted. It is important to note that the local development plan process precludes sites being 
considered that are less than 5 houses, so even if it was considered acceptable it couldn’t be 
allocated through the local development process.

 

The reason that the planning application has been submitted now is for one principal reason.  I 
believe that the sites that have been put forward in the local development plan for Stow have 
not and  are not going to deliver the housing numbers required for the village and the general 
principle objectives of the Borders Railway Blueprint. Of the 4 housing sites in Stow that are 
allocated, one of them, the former Royal Hotel site, has been allocated for 11 units since 2008 
and has never been developed despite various interested parties making offers for the site, 
including me. The owner is making no effort to sell or develop the site so no housing is likely on 
that site any time soon. One of the other sites, on Lauder Road, has been consented for 6 units 
and has recently been sold at auction. We believe that the topography of this site will result in 
 the originally planned 6 units being reduced to 1 or 2, as we understand it was an individual 
that has purchased it rather than a house builder. The site at Craigend Road has delivered 10 
units out of 18 allocated, however no further applications have been made and thus a further 
shortfall of some 8 units. The remaining site at Stagehall seems to be the only one that is 
progressing, with interest in the site from Hudson homes and a current planning application 
being progressed.

 

As such, out of the 4 sites allocated, none have been developed in the 2016-2021 plan period 
and only one shows any signs of being developed. This provides clear evidence in the lack of 
housing delivery in Stow and when one considers the opening of the new railway station we 
believe more should be done to bring forward deliverable and logical sites to meet the ever 
increasing demand to live in Stow. 

Page 621



 

In addition to the lack of sites coming forward in Stow we have also looked at the housing land 
supply across the Borders.  In the past 5 years there has been a shortfall of approximately 100 
houses per annum being built throughout the Borders in terms of targeted numbers for 
between 2016 to 2021. Of those actually built, approximately 43% are from small windfall sites 
similar to my site, and surely this needs to be recognised when it comes to housing delivery in 
the Borders. Further information can be found within our planning consultants appeal 
statement.

 

There has been no update from the council as to what numbers are still required to meet 
targets, however if you read the recent appeal decision on the Venlaw site in Peebles it should 
be noted the Scottish Government’s Planning Reporter goes into print saying the council are 631 
houses short of their housing numbers in the Scottish Borders in terms of land supply upto 2021. 

 

It is for these reasons that I decided to make a planning application on this field, as I felt the site 
fits in with similar housing that neighbours it and is on a small scale that can be easily 
accommodated within Stow, while at the same time meeting the housing shortfall at a local 
level in the near future. It will bring knock on economic benefits during the construction stage 
and in supporting local services. 

 

2. i) I do not believe that the overall community have objected in a relatively high number. The 
majority of objections have come from local residents on Earlston Road and are a small 
percentage of the village. 

 

ii) The site does currently sit out with the development boundary but that is an arbitrary line 
drawn to show the boundary of the village. If you look at 3 out of the 4 sites that are currently 
allocated in the local development plan they are all extensions to the village boundary with a 
new access created from roads leading out of the village.

 

Craigend – a new access was created from Craigend road into a culdesac called Burnside way, 
thus extending the village boundary in a similar way as I propose.

 

Page 622



Stagehall – the Wedale View development was created from Station road into a culdesac when 
it was developed in 2007/08. The current application will extend that road, again extending the 
village boundary in a similar way as I propose.

 

Lauder Road – this again is an extension of the village boundary with a new access into a 
culdesac, again in a similar way as I propose.

 

If villages like Stow are going to expand, they have to expand up the side of the valley, due to 
flood risk in the base of the valley. As such it is inevitable that the village boundaries have to 
expand over time and the boundary line will move further out. We have sought professional 
landscape consultants to review our proposals and they have concluded that there would be no 
significant landscape impacts created by what is proposed given the contained nature of the 
site.

 

iii) Traffic safety has been considered in detail and there is NO objection to this from the 
council’s transport officer. Speed surveys have been conducted, the access fully designed and all 
elements of the new bridge considered. In addition to this there have been NO other statutory 
objections to the development proceeding with the exception of the forward planning team.

 

iv) Amenity of local residents has been considered in detail to ensure that there will be limited 
impact on the neighbouring properties. A number of layouts have been considered and I am 
quite happy to consider further landscaping and buffering to ensure there is no overlooking or 
impact on local residents and therefore no amenity issues.

 

Finally, although not detailed in Mrs Hartswood’s email, one of the other main reasons for objection to 
the application from some of the neighbouring residents, was loss of a field and the fact that the houses 
seemed to be family houses and have car ports. Again, I would be happy to look at keeping open space 
at the bottom of the site, neighbouring these residents, as well as looking at the design of the new 
housing so it has minimal impact. It would be my intention to build one or two houses for sale, however 
I  am also considering building one or two houses , which may be available to rent.

 

I hope this response is helpful.

 

Page 623



Yours sincerely

 

Bruce Weir

Torsonce Mains

Stow

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 17 September 2021 16:05
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF
Importance: High

 

 

Good Afternoon 

 

PLANNING APPLICATION                       Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston    

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:                  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated 
infrastructure and access  

APPLICANT:                                                Mr Bruce Weir 

 

Page 624

mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk


 

Further to my letter of 18 August 2021, with regard to the review of the above application, please 
find below further representations from interested parties.   My apologies for the delay in 
forwarding these – I can confirm however that the comments were received within the deadline.

 

Should you have comments to submit regarding these representations please do so before the 
close of Friday, 1 October 2021.

 

Kind regards

 

Fiona 

 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: Eve Hartswood <ehartswood@gmail.com> 
Sent: 03 September 2021 12:50
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: 20/01620/PPP

Page 625

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:ehartswood@gmail.com
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk


 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Regarding the appeal process for 20/01620/PPP 

 

The applicant makes the appeal on the basis of exemption to the Local Development Plan. 

 

I would like it to be noted that the applicant has applied to the Local Development plan on 
several previous occasions and always for larger developments on this site. All previous 
applications have been turned down by the local development plan process. The current Local 
Development plan also rejected another planning application from the applicant. 

 

On every application for this site the local community has objected in relatively high numbers 
(petition included as part of the objections). The concerns from the community have always 
reflected this site being outside the village boundary, traffic safety and impact on residents.  

 

The above highlights what had been previously been submitted in the objections. 

 

Kind Regards

 

Eve Hartswood (88, Earlston Road, Stow, TD1 2QT) 

********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

Page 626



********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

Page 627



This page is intentionally left blank



From:Miller, Craig
Sent:5 Oct 2021 08:46:00 +0100
To:Lucy Moroney
Cc:Henderson, Fiona;Kirk, Ron
Subject:RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

Lucy

 

If any party refers to specific application reference numbers, we tend to include the basic details for 
Members (such as Decision Notice and Officer Report) and let the Members decide the relevance. They 
are placed on the RREF file on the Portal for Members to view but also the “Background Papers” pack 
for Members includes the entire contents of the RREF file. In this particular case, you refer to these 
application references in para 2.14 of your Planning Statement as “Neighbouring applications of 
interest”. In paras 2.10-2.15 of your Review Statement you do the same, but go further and contend 
that 16/01461/PPP sets a precedent in favour of your client’s site.

 

Given you have raised the applications, it was felt the Members should have the details available to 
them,

 

Regards

 

Craig

 

Craig Miller 

Principal Planning Officer 

Planning Housing and Related Services

Scottish Borders Council

Tel:     01835 825029 

E-mail : cmiller@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

Page 629

mailto:cmiller@scotborders.gov.uk


Web | Twitter | Facebook | Flickr | YouTube

 

How are you playing #yourpart to help us keep the Borders thriving?

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:58
To: Miller, Craig <CMiller@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Hi Craig, 

 

I hope you are well?

 

I am just looking to understand the reasoning behind the decision notices for 17/01526/FUL and 
16/01461/PPP appear to be on the portal for our application. Would you be able to help with this?

Page 630

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
file://hq-data-01/userhomeT-Z$/jwhiteford/Building%20Standards/Business%20Process%20Re-engineering/twitter.com/scotborders
http://www.facebook.com/sbcouncil
http://www.flickr.com/scottishborderscouncil
http://www.youtube.com/scotborderscouncil
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/yourpart
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/areamap
https://www.edevelopment.scot/eDevelopmentClient/default.aspx
https://blogs.gov.scot/planning-architecture/about-us/scottish-awards-for-quality-in-planning/


 

Thank you in advance for your time. 

 

Best wishes, 

Lucy 

 

 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 
responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

Page 631

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:56
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Cc: Miller, Craig <CMiller@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Hi Lucy 

 

You would need to speak to Craig Miller about that – I have copied him into this e-mail.

 

Regards Fiona 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:36
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

CAUTION: External Email 

Page 632

mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:CMiller@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk


 

Hi Fiona, 

 

Thanks for getting back to me. 

 

I see, thank you. Are you able to tell my why they see them relevant information? 

 

Best wishes, 

Lucy  

 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 

Page 633

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 04 October 2021 16:34
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Hello Lucy

 

Thanks for your e-mail.  

 

These past applications have been added to the 21/00018/RREF site at the request of the LRB Planning 
Adviser as relevant information.

 

Regards Fiona 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

Page 634

mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk


From: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Sent: 01 October 2021 16:20
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Tim Ferguson <tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Hi Fiona, 

 

I hope you are well. 

 

In addition to Bruce’s email below, I note the decision notices for 17/01526/FUL and 16/01461/PPP 
appear to be on the portal for our application. What is the reasoning for this?

 

Thanks, 

Lucy 

 

 

 Lucy Moroney MRTPI

 Senior Planner

 

T. (Direct). 01896 809 453

     (Office). 01896 668 744

Page 635

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


E. lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk

W. www.fergusonplanning.co.uk

t. @fergplan

 

 

This message may contain confidential information. If you think this message has been addressed to you in error please delete it. You are not  
entitled to copy or forward it to any third party other than the sender.  We would ask any such occurances to be notified to 
tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk  Unless stated nothing in this message shall be taken to be an offer or acceptance of any contract.We are not 
responsible for any effect that this message or its attachments may have on your IT system. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of 
the author and do not necessarily represent those of ferguson planning.

 

From: Bruce Weir <Bruce@cwproperties.co.uk> 
Sent: 01 October 2021 14:22
To: localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
Cc: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>; Tim Ferguson <tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF

 

Good afternoon Fiona,

 

Thank you for your email dated the 17th of September 2021 to Lucy Moroney at Ferguson Planning, with 
comments from Mrs Hartswood. I hope you don’t mind that I have responded, rather than Ferguson 
Planning, as I thought the responses would be better from me as the applicant, given the comments 
made.

 

I would be grateful if this response can be circulated to the Members of the Local Review Body.

 

In response to Mrs Hartswood’ s email I would comment as follows:

 

1         The site has been put forward in the past, as part of the local development plan process, but no 
planning permission in principle application or detailed planning application has ever been 
submitted. It is important to note that the local development plan process precludes sites being 

Page 636

mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
http://www.fergusonplanning.co.uk/
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:Bruce@cwproperties.co.uk
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk
mailto:tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk


considered that are less than 5 houses, so even if it was considered acceptable it couldn’t be 
allocated through the local development process.

 

The reason that the planning application has been submitted now is for one principal reason.  I 
believe that the sites that have been put forward in the local development plan for Stow have 
not and  are not going to deliver the housing numbers required for the village and the general 
principle objectives of the Borders Railway Blueprint. Of the 4 housing sites in Stow that are 
allocated, one of them, the former Royal Hotel site, has been allocated for 11 units since 2008 
and has never been developed despite various interested parties making offers for the site, 
including me. The owner is making no effort to sell or develop the site so no housing is likely on 
that site any time soon. One of the other sites, on Lauder Road, has been consented for 6 units 
and has recently been sold at auction. We believe that the topography of this site will result in 
 the originally planned 6 units being reduced to 1 or 2, as we understand it was an individual 
that has purchased it rather than a house builder. The site at Craigend Road has delivered 10 
units out of 18 allocated, however no further applications have been made and thus a further 
shortfall of some 8 units. The remaining site at Stagehall seems to be the only one that is 
progressing, with interest in the site from Hudson homes and a current planning application 
being progressed.

 

As such, out of the 4 sites allocated, none have been developed in the 2016-2021 plan period 
and only one shows any signs of being developed. This provides clear evidence in the lack of 
housing delivery in Stow and when one considers the opening of the new railway station we 
believe more should be done to bring forward deliverable and logical sites to meet the ever 
increasing demand to live in Stow. 

 

In addition to the lack of sites coming forward in Stow we have also looked at the housing land 
supply across the Borders.  In the past 5 years there has been a shortfall of approximately 100 
houses per annum being built throughout the Borders in terms of targeted numbers for 
between 2016 to 2021. Of those actually built, approximately 43% are from small windfall sites 
similar to my site, and surely this needs to be recognised when it comes to housing delivery in 
the Borders. Further information can be found within our planning consultants appeal 
statement.

 

There has been no update from the council as to what numbers are still required to meet 
targets, however if you read the recent appeal decision on the Venlaw site in Peebles it should 
be noted the Scottish Government’s Planning Reporter goes into print saying the council are 631 
houses short of their housing numbers in the Scottish Borders in terms of land supply upto 2021. 

 

Page 637



It is for these reasons that I decided to make a planning application on this field, as I felt the site 
fits in with similar housing that neighbours it and is on a small scale that can be easily 
accommodated within Stow, while at the same time meeting the housing shortfall at a local 
level in the near future. It will bring knock on economic benefits during the construction stage 
and in supporting local services. 

 

2         i) I do not believe that the overall community have objected in a relatively high number. The 
majority of objections have come from local residents on Earlston Road and are a small 
percentage of the village. 

 

ii) The site does currently sit out with the development boundary but that is an arbitrary line 
drawn to show the boundary of the village. If you look at 3 out of the 4 sites that are currently 
allocated in the local development plan they are all extensions to the village boundary with a 
new access created from roads leading out of the village.

 

Craigend – a new access was created from Craigend road into a culdesac called Burnside way, 
thus extending the village boundary in a similar way as I propose.

 

Stagehall – the Wedale View development was created from Station road into a culdesac when 
it was developed in 2007/08. The current application will extend that road, again extending the 
village boundary in a similar way as I propose.

 

Lauder Road – this again is an extension of the village boundary with a new access into a 
culdesac, again in a similar way as I propose.

 

If villages like Stow are going to expand, they have to expand up the side of the valley, due to 
flood risk in the base of the valley. As such it is inevitable that the village boundaries have to 
expand over time and the boundary line will move further out. We have sought professional 
landscape consultants to review our proposals and they have concluded that there would be no 
significant landscape impacts created by what is proposed given the contained nature of the 
site.

 

Page 638



iii) Traffic safety has been considered in detail and there is NO objection to this from the 
council’s transport officer. Speed surveys have been conducted, the access fully designed and all 
elements of the new bridge considered. In addition to this there have been NO other statutory 
objections to the development proceeding with the exception of the forward planning team.

 

iv) Amenity of local residents has been considered in detail to ensure that there will be limited 
impact on the neighbouring properties. A number of layouts have been considered and I am 
quite happy to consider further landscaping and buffering to ensure there is no overlooking or 
impact on local residents and therefore no amenity issues.

 

Finally, although not detailed in Mrs Hartswood’s email, one of the other main reasons for objection to 
the application from some of the neighbouring residents, was loss of a field and the fact that the houses 
seemed to be family houses and have car ports. Again, I would be happy to look at keeping open space 
at the bottom of the site, neighbouring these residents, as well as looking at the design of the new 
housing so it has minimal impact. It would be my intention to build one or two houses for sale, however 
I  am also considering building one or two houses , which may be available to rent.

 

I hope this response is helpful.

 

Yours sincerely

 

Bruce Weir

Torsonce Mains

Stow

 

 

 

 

 

Page 639



 

 

From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk> 
Sent: 17 September 2021 16:05
To: Lucy Moroney <lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Subject: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston - FW: 20/01620/PPP and 21/00018/RREF
Importance: High

 

 

Good Afternoon 

 

PLANNING APPLICATION                       Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston    

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:                  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouse with associated 
infrastructure and access  

APPLICANT:                                                Mr Bruce Weir 

 

 

Further to my letter of 18 August 2021, with regard to the review of the above application, please 
find below further representations from interested parties.   My apologies for the delay in 
forwarding these – I can confirm however that the comments were received within the deadline.

 

Should you have comments to submit regarding these representations please do so before the 
close of Friday, 1 October 2021.

 

Kind regards

 

Fiona 

Page 640

mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:lucy@fergusonplanning.co.uk


 

 

Fiona Henderson

Democratic Services Officer

Democratic Services 

Resources

Council Headquarters

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

 DDI : 01835 826502

 fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

 

From: Eve Hartswood <ehartswood@gmail.com> 
Sent: 03 September 2021 12:50
To: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: 20/01620/PPP

 

CAUTION: External Email 

 

Regarding the appeal process for 20/01620/PPP 

 

The applicant makes the appeal on the basis of exemption to the Local Development Plan. 

 

I would like it to be noted that the applicant has applied to the Local Development plan on 
several previous occasions and always for larger developments on this site. All previous 
applications have been turned down by the local development plan process. The current Local 
Development plan also rejected another planning application from the applicant. 

Page 641

mailto:fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:ehartswood@gmail.com
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk


 

On every application for this site the local community has objected in relatively high numbers 
(petition included as part of the objections). The concerns from the community have always 
reflected this site being outside the village boundary, traffic safety and impact on residents. 

 

The above highlights what had been previously been submitted in the objections. 

 

Kind Regards

 

Eve Hartswood (88, Earlston Road, Stow, TD1 2QT) 

********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

********************************************************************** This email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

Page 642



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

1 

 

Local Review Reference: 21/00018/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 20/01620/PPP 
Development Proposal:  Erection of 4 no dwellinghouses with associated infrastructure and 
access 
Location: Land South of Crunzion Cottage, Earlston Road, Stow 
Applicant: Mr Bruce Weir 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
 
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY 
 
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have 
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and 
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments: 
 
a) the long term sustainable use and management of land 
b) the preservation of air and water quality 
c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species 
d) the protection of built and cultural resources 
e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources 
f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its sustaina-
ble management 
g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the pri-
vate car 
h) the minimisation of light pollution 
i) the protection of public health and safety 
j) the support to community services and facilities 
k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy 
l) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement 
of their environment 
 
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its land-
scape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that: 
 
Sustainability  
a)  In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in accord-
ance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate that 
the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of this 
target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology, 
b)  it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure, 
c)  it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall provi-
sion of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance, 
d)  it encourages minimal water usage for new developments, 
e)  it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, depend-
ing on the location, separate provision for composting facilities, 
f)  it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or 
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider en-

Page 643

Agenda Item 6h



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

2 

 

vironment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be re-
quired to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development and 
that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space mainte-
nance, 
g)  it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces. 
 
Placemaking & Design 
h)  It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not ex-
clude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design, 
i)  it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, 
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building, 
j)  it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the exist-
ing building, 
k)  it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, neighbour-
ing uses, and neighbouring built form, 
l)  it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site, 
m)  it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the devel-
opment that will help integration with its surroundings, 
n)  it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in ac-
cordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’. 
 
Accessibility  
o)  Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to mini-
mise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths, 
p)  it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties, 
q)  it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 
site access, 
r)  it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport connec-
tions and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible to the 
existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable travel 
patterns, 
s)  it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used 
for waste collection purposes. 
 
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity 
t)  It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open 
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an 
up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution 
to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by appropri-
ate arrangements for maintenance, 
u)  it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements. 
 
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and land-
scape plans as appropriate. 
 
POLICY PMD4: DEVELOPMENT OUTWITH DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARIES 
 
Where Development Boundaries are defined on Proposals Maps, they indicate the extent to 
which towns and villages should be allowed to expand during the Local Plan period. 

Page 644



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

3 

 

Development should be contained within the Development Boundary and proposals for new 
development outwith this boundary, and not on allocated sites identified on the proposals 
maps, will normally be refused. 
 
Exceptional approvals may be granted provided strong reasons can be given that: 
 
a) it is a job-generating development in the countryside that has an economic justifica-
tion under Policy ED7 or HD2, OR 
b) it is an affordable housing development that can be justified under in terms of Policy 
HD1, OR 
c) there is a shortfall identified by Scottish Borders Council through the housing land au-
dit with regard to the provision of an effective 5 year housing land supply, OR 
d) it is a development that it is considered would offer significant community benefits 
that outweigh the need to protect the Development Boundary. 
 
AND the development of the site: 
 
a) represents a logical extension of the built-up area, and 
b) is of an appropriate scale in relation to the size of the settlement, and 
c) does not prejudice the character, visual cohesion or natural built up edge of the set-
tlement, and 
d) does not cause a significant adverse effect on the landscape setting of the settlement 
or the natural heritage of the surrounding area. 
 
The decision on whether to grant exceptional approvals will take account of: 
 
a) any indicators regarding restrictions on, or encouragement of, development in the 
longer term that may be set out in the settlement profile; 
b) the cumulative effect of any other developments outwith the Development Boundary 
within the current Local Plan period; 
c) the infrastructure and service capacity of the settlement. 
 
POLICY HD1: AFFORDABLE AND SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING 
 
Where the Local Housing Strategy or local Housing Needs and Demands Assessment iden-
tifies a local affordable housing need, the Council will require the provision of a proportion of 
land for affordable or special needs housing, currently set at 25 percent, both on allocated 
and windfall sites. The final scale of such affordable and/or special needs housing will be as-
sessed against: 
 
a) ongoing local housing needs assessment work being carried out by the Council, 
b) the location and size of the site, and 
c) the availability of other such housing in the locality. 
 
Developers may be required to make contributions through: 
 
d) the provision of a proportion of the site for affordable housing in the form of land or 
built units, or 
e) the provision of additional land elsewhere to accommodate the required number of 
affordable housing units, or 
f) the provision of commuted payments. 
 
POLICY HD2: HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE 
 
The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development: 

Page 645



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

4 

 

 
a)  in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will only 
be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,  
b)  associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their 
character or that of the surrounding area, and 
c)  in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area. 
 
These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the 
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will 
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New 
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design. 
 
(A) BUILDING GROUPS 
 
Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group, 
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided 
that: 
 
a)  the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least 
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential 
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no 
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented, 
b)  the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group, 
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when 
determining new applications. Additional development within a building group will be refused 
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse im-
pacts, 
c)  any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No 
further development above this threshold will be permitted. 
 
In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should 
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to 
the character of the group. 
 
The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units 
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will include those 
units under construction or nearing completion at that point. 
 
(B) DISPERSED BUILDINGS GROUPS 
 
In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses 
or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may 
be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or 
environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary 
consideration. 
 
Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet 
the above criteria may be approved provided that: 
 
a)  the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in 
the Southern Borders housing market area, 
b)  any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further develop-
ment above this threshold will be permitted, 

Page 646



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

5 

 

c)  the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of  
housing in the countryside proposals. 
 
(C) CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS TO A HOUSE 
 
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided 
that: 
 
a)  the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable 
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use, 
b)  the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the 
existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required 
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of con-
version, and 
c)  the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale 
and architectural character of the existing building. 
 
(D) RESTORATION OF HOUSES 
 
The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former resi-
dential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In addition: 
 
a)  the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the 
character of the landscape setting, 
b)  any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and 
architectural character of the existing or original building, and 
c)  significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be 
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to 
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design. 
 
(E) REPLACEMENT DWELLINGS 
 
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that: 
 
a)  the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building 
pattern and the character of the landscape setting, 
b)  the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its scale, ex-
tent, form and architectural character, 
c)  significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered 
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive 
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design. 
 
(F) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT 
 
Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is 
satisfied that: 
 
a)  the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural, horti-
cultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it is for 
a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker on-site 
is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include busi-
nesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located  within an existing settle-
ment, or 
b)  it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other 
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is 

Page 647



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

6 

 

the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued 
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to 
the countryside, and  
c)  the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social 
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or 
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and 
d)  no appropriate site exists within a building group, and 
e)  there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the re-
quired residential use. 
 
In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there 
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the 
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing 
communities. The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into ac-
count when determining impact. 
 
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or pro-
posed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of these 
areas, any developments will be assessed against: 
 
a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and 
b)  the details of the development itself particularly in terms of: 
(i)  the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area, 
(ii)  the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These consid-
erations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ development,  
(iii)  the generation of traffic or noise, 
(iv)  the level of visual impact. 
 
POLICY HD4: MEETING THE HOUSING LAND REQUIREMENT/FURTHER HOUSING 
LAND SAFEGUARDING 
 
The areas indicated in the settlement profiles for longer term expansion and protection shall 
be safeguarded accordingly. Proposals for housing development in such expansion areas 
coming forward in advance of the identification of a shortfall in the effective housing land 
supply will be treated as premature. 
 
As the plan does not adequately address the housing land requirement set out in SESplan 
and its Supplementary Guidance on Housing Land, the council will prepare and adopt sup-
plementary guidance in order to identify additional sites to provide for a further 916 units dur-
ing the plan period. 
 
POLICY EP1: INTERNATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION SITES AND PROTECTED 
SPECIES 
 
Development proposals which will have a likely significant effect on a designated or pro-
posed Natura site, which includes all Ramsar sites, are only permissible where: 
 
a) an appropriate assessment has demonstrated that it will not adversely affect the in-
tegrity of the site, or 
b) there are no alternative solutions, and 

Page 648



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

7 

 

c) there are imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social 
or economic nature 
 
Where a development proposal is sited where there is the likely presence of an EPS, the 
planning authority must be satisfied that: 
 
a) there is no satisfactory alternative, and 
b) the development is required for preserving public health or public safety or for other 
imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or economic na-
ture and beneficial consequences of primary importance to the envi-ronment, and 
c) the development is not detrimental to the maintenance of the population of a EPS at 
a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 
 
POLICY EP2: NATIONAL NATURE CONSERVATION AND PROTECTED SPECIES 
 
Development proposals which are likely to have a significant adverse effect, either directly or 
indirectly, on a Site of Special Scientific Interest or habitat directly sup-porting a nationally 
important species will not be permitted unless: 
 
a) the development will not adversely affect the integrity of the site, and 
b) the development offers substantial benefits of national importance, including those of 
a social or economic nature, that clearly outweigh the national nature con-servation value of 
the site. 
 
The developer will be required to detail mitigation, either on or off site, of any dam-age that 
may be caused by development permissible under the exception criteria. 
 
POLICY EP3: LOCAL BIODIVERSITY 
 
Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species 
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the 
public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity 
conservation. 
 
Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and 
species should: 
 
a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and 
b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site, in-
cluding its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and 
c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets 
as appropriate; and 
d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems ap-
proach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and provision 
for their long-term management and maintenance. 
 
POLICY EP8: ARCHAEOLOGY 
 
(A) NATIONAL  ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES 
Development proposals which would destroy or adversely affect the appearance, fabric or 
setting of Scheduled Monuments or other nationally important sites will not be permitted un-
less: 
 
a) the development offers substantial benefits, including those of a social or economic 
nature, that clearly outweigh the national value of the site, and 

Page 649



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

8 

 

b) there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the development need. 
 
(B) BATTLEFIELDS 
The Council may support development proposals within a battlefield on the Inventory of His-
toric Battlefields Register, or a regionally significant site, that seek to protect, conserve, 
and/or enhance the landscape characteristics or important features of the battlefield. 
Proposals will be assessed according to their sensitivity to the battlefield. 
 
(C) REGIONAL OR LOCAL ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSETS 
Development proposals which will adversely affect an archaeological asset of regional or lo-
cal significance will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the benefits of the pro-
posal will clearly outweigh the heritage value of the asset. 
 
In all of the above cases, where development proposals impact on a Scheduled Monument, 
other nationally important sites, or any other archaeological or historical asset, developers 
may be required to carry out detailed investigations. 
 
Any proposal that will adversely affect a historic environment asset or its appropriate setting 
must include a mitigation strategy acceptable to the Council. 
 
POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS 
 
The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area 
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale, pro-
portions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open 
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes. 
 
The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle 
Consent. 
 
Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building 
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals 
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where: 
 
a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical 
form or state of disrepair, and 
b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to accommo-
date alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and 
c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as 
part of the townscape. 
 
In cases a) to c) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable alterna-
tive treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement building or 
for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed. 
 
Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for dem-
olition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and design 
concepts of the proposals. 
 
POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS 
 
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value. 

Page 650



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

9 

 

 
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should: 
 
a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and 
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate re-
placement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and 
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource. 
 
POLICY EP15: DEVELOPMENT AFFECTING THE WATER ENVIRONMENT 
 
Development proposals that seek to bring improvement to the quality of the water environ-
ment will be supported. Where a proposal would result in a significant adverse effect on the 
water environment through impact on its natural or physical characteristics, or its use for rec-
reation or existing river engineering works, it will be refused. Decision making will be guided 
by an assessment of: 
 
a) pollution of surface or underground water, including water supply catchment areas, 
as a result of the nature of any surface or waste water discharge or leachate, including from 
the disturbance of contaminated land; 
b) flood risk within the site or the wider river catchment; 
c) proposals for river engineering works that may be required for fisheries management, 
flood defence or erosion control; 
d) compliance with current best practice on Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS) includ-
ing avoidance of flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. 
 
POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require devel-
opers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such deficiencies.   
 
Contributions may be required for one or more of the following: 
 
a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance); 
b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;  
c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and associ-
ated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in accord-
ance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan; 
d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site; 
e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance; 
f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any losses and/or alternative 
provision; 
g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the devel-
opment that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the storage, 
collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision of street furniture 
and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure. 

Page 651



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

10 

 

 
Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments. 
 
POLICY IS3: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO THE BORDERS RAILWAY 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the Council 
will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Borders railway from any 
developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be enhanced by, the re-instatement 
of the rail link. 
 
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS 
 
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with ap-
proved standards.  
 
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not compro-
mise road safety. 
 
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  pro-
mote the use of sustainable travel modes. 
 
POLICY IS8: FLOODING 
 
At all times, avoidance will be the first principle of managing flood risk. In general terms, new 
development should therefore be located in areas free from significant flood risk. 
Development will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding from any source 
or would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. The ability of functional 
flood plains to convey and store floodwater should be protected, and development should be 
located away from them. 
 
Within certain defined risk categories, particularly where the risk is greater than 0.5% annual 
flooding probability or 1 in 200 year flood risk, some forms of development will generally not 
be acceptable.  These include: 
 
a) development comprising essential civil infrastructure such as hospitals, fire stations, 
emergency depots etc., schools, care homes, ground-based electrical and telecommunica-
tions equipment unless subject to an appropriate long term flood risk management strategy; 
b) additional built development in undeveloped and sparsely developed   areas. 
 
Other forms of development will be subject to an assessment of the risk and mitigation 
measures. 
 
Developers will be required to provide, including if necessary at planning permission in prin-
ciple stage: 
 
a) a competent flood risk assessment, including all sources of flooding, and taking ac-
count of climate change; and 

Page 652



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

11 

 

b) a report of the measures that are proposed to mitigate the flood risk. 
 
The information used to assess the acceptability of development will include: 
 
a) information and advice from consultation with the council’s flood team and the Scot-
tish Environment  Protection Agency; 
b) flood risk maps provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency which indi-
cate the extent of the flood plain; 
c) historical records and flood studies held by the council and other agencies, including 
past flood risk assessment reports carried out by consultants and associated comments from 
the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, also held by the council; 
(d) the Scottish Environment Protection Agency’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance. 
 
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE 
 
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS 
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new develop-
ment will be, in order of priority: 
 
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that: 
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing sew-
erage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing that: 
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that: 
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater. 
 
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied. 
 
Development will be refused if: 
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements, 
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure. 
  
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the satis-
faction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), Scottish 
Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be refused 
unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids flooding, 
pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage strategy should 
be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood attenuation measures 
and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable Housing 2015 

Page 653



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

12 

 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside 
2008 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Waste Management 2015 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity  2005 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on SUDS 2020 

 Scottish Planning Policy 2014 

 SESPlan 2013 

 SBC Proposed Local Development Plan 2 
 

Page 654



Page 655

Agenda Item 7a



Page 656



Page 657



Page 658



    
 
 

 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 
 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF CASE 

Application Ref: 20/01327/FUL 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, 
Heiton, Scottish Borders  

Page 659



 
 

Page 2 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 

 

 

 

TYPE OF DOCUMENT (VERSION) PUBLIC 

 

PROJECT NO. V.1 

OUR REF. JN/HEITON/1.1 

 

DATE: JULY 2021 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Brownshore Management Ltd 
M54 Space Centre 
Halesfield 9 
Telford 
TF7 4QN 
 

Page 660



 
 

Page 3 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

DOCUMENT REVIEW  
 

Issue/Revision Report Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 

Comments     

Date  JULY 2021    

Prepared by JN    

Signature     

Checked by JN    

Signature     

Authorised by JN    

Signature     

 

Page 661



 
 

Page 4 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

CONTENTS 
 

 

Document Review ...................................................................................................... 3 

Contents ..................................................................................................................... 4 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................... 5 

2. Planning Application ............................................................................................ 7 

3. Grounds of Appeal ............................................................................................... 8 

4. Conclusion ......................................................................................................... 13 

 

  

Page 662



 
 

Page 5 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Background  

1.1. This Statement of Case is prepared by Joe Nugent MRTPI of Brownshore 

Management (“the Agent”) against the refusal by Scottish Borders Council (“the 

LPA”) of an application for the erection of a dwelling house (“the development”) 

on land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders (“the Appeal 

site”). 

Personal Statement 

1.2. This Statement of Case has been written by Joe Nugent MRTPI. Town Planning 

experience has been gained over 20 years in both the public (Development 

Control, Policy, and Planning Enforcement) and private sectors. 

 

1.3. For reference purposes the planning application details on the Council’s Public 

Access state: 

 

APPLICATION NO.: 20/01327/FUL 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Erection of dwellinghouse 

LOCATION: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders 

Planning History  

1.4. R127/94 

The Officer Report states: In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the 

site was granted and subsequently lapsed in 1999. The Planning Committee 

approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and 

Transportation. The Planning Committee stated, "the bungalow is (would be) 

located on an in-fill site which has already demonstrated its ability to 

accommodate a house when used for the chalet." 

 

1.5. 04/01984/OUT 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage 

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Kelso Scottish Borders 

Decision: Approved 

 

1.6. 05/00012/REM 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage 

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Kelso Scottish Borders 

Decision: Approved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 663



 
 

Page 6 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 Development Plan 

1.7 In preparing this appeal statement, full regard has been had to the relevant 

policies in the Development Plan. 

Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016 

PMD2: Quality Standards 

PMD5: Infill Development 

HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

EP13: Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows 

IS2: Developer Contributions 

IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 

IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Developer Contributions, April 2015 

Guidance on Householder Developments, July 2006 

Placemaking and Design, 2010 

Landscape and Development, 2008 

 

 

 

  

Page 664



 
 

Page 7 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

2. PLANNING APPLICATION 

Application Documents 

2.1. The planning application was received by the LPA on 3 November 2020 and 

accompanied by the necessary level of documents including: 

a) Application Form 

b) Location Plan 

c) Certificate of Ownership 

d) Supporting Documentation 

• Site Layout Plan 

• Site Plan Sections 

• Elevations 

• Floor Plans 

• Elevations and Roof Plan 

• Privacy and Overlooking Plan 

• Roof Plan 

• Site photographs (illustrating the residential use and character of the 

site) 

 

2.2. Following submission to the LPA, Brownshore Management was instructed as 

Planning Agent with the aim to discuss, mediate and mitigate matters with the 

Case Officer and the LPA. 

 

2.3. Additional supporting statements were submitted by the Planning Agent during 

discussions with the Case Officer and prior to the determination of the planning 

application. 

  

Page 665



 
 

Page 8 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

3. GROUNDS OF APPEAL 

Main Issues 

3.1. The Decision Notice letter was issued on 2 June 2021 (the decision is dated 28 

May 2021). 

 

3.2. The Decision Notice issued by the LPA states one refusal reason. 

 

1. The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality 

Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a 

substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and 

pedestrian, and it has not been demonstrated that the improvements 

required to upgrade the access, as specified, can be carried out. 

 

Refusal Reason - Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) 

3.3 Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) focuses upon four criteria; sustainability, 

placemaking & design, accessibility, and greenspace, open space & biodiversity. 

3.4 The refusal reason by the Case Officer is wholly focused upon vehicular traffic and 

access, therefore criteria o) to s) of Policy PMD2 are relevant (accessibility). 

3.5 In terms of the criteria these include: 

 o) – The development would directly connect to the existing vehicular access that 

provided for the previous residential dwelling at the site. This right of vehicular 

access is within the Land Registry Deeds1 for the land and remains a civil right of 

access. 

 

p) – The access retains the ability for access for those with mobility issues in 

terms of width and gradient of the access. 

q) – This matter is debated by the LPA who consider the development would 

“result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of 

road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian”. 

 

 

 
1 Appendix 1 

Page 666



 
 

Page 9 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Scottish Water 

The material consideration is that the site for a significant period (and prior to the 

neighbouring dwellings) accommodated a residential dwelling (Named: Khinsper) 

and correspondence from Scottish Water2 during the Reserved Matters application 

(05/00012/REM) states that the; 

“plan confirmed that the above proposed development and the rebuild of 

Khinsper property is in the same location.  

 Furthermore; 

“…the property has an existing sewer connection therefore we will permit the use 

of the existing connection for domestic purposes only” 

 The correspondence from Scottish Water confirms that the development was to 

rebuild the former residential dwelling (Name: Khinsper) and this would connect 

to the existing water and sewer infrastructure that serviced Khinsper. 

 It is reasonable to establish that existing residential water and sewer connection 

would be in situ if they served a residential property. 

 The previous residential property (Khinsper), and the site is served by the 

Scottish Water and demonstrates the established residential use of the site. 

 Planning Application 04/01984/OUT 

 Following discussions and a request to the Case Officer, the following information 

was provided. This included the Planning Committee text for 04/01984/OUT, and 

this states; 

Planning approval for neighbouring houses was obtained in the mid 1970's and 

four houses subsequently built, with the application site being land containing a 

chalet which was removed, although the cleared site has remained undeveloped. 

“…the Director of Planning’s advice to the Committee in 1994 was that "the 

bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill site which has already demonstrated 

its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet.  The determining 

issue with this application is that of the access road.  While I share some of the 

concern of the Director of Roads and Transportation, I believe that this application 

is not creating a worse situation to that which existed when the original chalet 

was in use.  I therefore do not believe that there are sufficient grounds upon 

which to justify refusal of the application" 

The discussions, advice from the Director of Planning, and the decision of the 

Planning Committee recognised that the site is in-fill site and had already 

demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet, also 

that the application is not creating a worse situation to that which existed when 

the original chalet was in use. 

 

 

 
2 Appendix 2 

Page 667



 
 

Page 10 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Conclusion 

Therefore, the Council and the LPA, Scottish Water, and the Director of Planning 

during the Planning Committee all acknowledge that the site is the rebuild of an 

existing residential dwelling. The development is that of a brownfield site with an 

established residential use. 

Therefore, the vehicular access to the site has been confirmed as accepted for 

residential use, accepted for utility companies to access for installation and 

repairs, and is a legal right of the landowner within their Land Registry Deeds. 

r) – Is not considered relevant in this instance. 

s) – Requires adequate space for the turning of vehicles, including those for 

waste collection purposes. Firstly, the site is an establish residential site and has 

maintained suitable access and turning areas for vehicles, furthermore the plans 

for the development were updated by the Architect and demonstrate the vehicles 

at the site can turn access, turn, and egress. 

Refusal Reason - Policy PMD5 (Infill) 

3.6 The LPA use PMD5 as a refusal reason. This policy relates to infill development 

and includes criteria a) to f). 

3.7 In this instance, the development: 

a) Accords with the established land use of the area (residential); 

b) The dwelling is of a scale, mass, and design compatible with the local character 

of the residential area; 

c) The redevelopment of the site will re-establish a residential dwelling and 

achieve infill development. 

d) The dwelling is of a scale, mass, and design compatible with the local character 

of the residential area; 

e) The factor in this criterion is whether adequate access can be achieved. It has 

been established in this document that the Council and the LPA, Scottish Water, 

and the Director of Planning during the Planning Committee all acknowledge that 

the site is the rebuild of a previous residential dwelling. 

The development is that of a brownfield site with an established residential land 

use, with an established vehicular access and egress. 

Therefore, the vehicular access at the site has been confirmed as accepted for 

residential use, accepted for utility companies to access for installation and 

repairs, and is also a legal right of the landowner within their Land Registry 

Deeds. 

f) Updated plans have been confirmed with the Case Officer and the LPA to affirm 

there would be no loss of sunlight or privacy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 668



 
 

Page 11 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Officer Report 

3.8 The Case Officer report states: 

1) The proposal does not conflict with the established land use; 

2) The site has previously been an acceptable infill development opportunity. In 

terms of design, the building presented would be a suitable addition to the 

neighbouring built form, both appearing modern but retaining similar form as the 

neighbouring bungalows. I am satisfied that development would appear 

contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours, specifically noting that 

Craimar opposite features 1.5 storey form. 

3) A further residential dwelling would contribute to sustaining the social and 

economic infrastructure of Heiton. 

4) I am satisfied that the building to plot ratio are within the margins of 

acceptability in terms of scale, form, design, materials and density and are not 

dissimilar to the previous approval. 

6) I do not identify any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to 

neighbouring properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking (owing to the 

appropriate choice of floor level, cut into the slope). 

3.9 Within the Case Officer report 5 out of 6 sections demonstrate support for the 

development. Section 5 refers to the discussions with the Agent that the previous 

permission was implemented, information was discussed with the Case Officer 

that planning permission 04/01984/OUT/ and the promptly submitted 

05/00012/REM have been implemented and development commenced. 

 Commencement of Development 

3.10 The Application (and landowner) confirmed that plant equipment (including a 360 

excavator) had been brought to the site for drainage, demolition, and clearance 

operations to be carried out at site, therefore constituting development. 

3.11 The Case Officer refers to the Building Warrant, this matter has been discussed 

with the Council’s Building Standards Officer and they confirm that a Building 

Warrant is not required for drainage, demolition, and clearance operations. A 

building Warrant is focused upon the development of a habitable building. 

3.12 A development is phased, and the initial operations require drainage, demolition, 

and clearance operations. Operations then progress onto the dwelling. In this 

instance the planning permission was granted (2004) and the reserved matters 

granted (2005) and the development commenced with material operations 

including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations. 

3.13 The material operations including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations 

do not require a Building Warrant and this has been confirmed by the Council’s 

Building Standards Officer. The Council’s Building Standards Officer confirms that 

development can commence at a site without requiring a Building Warrant, and 

this took place at the site in this instance. 

3.14 The material operations including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations 

constitute commencement of development. It was confirmed to the Case Officer 

that the Applicant (landowner) would submit an Affidavit to legally demonstrate 

their case on this matter, this was not invited by the Case Officer. 

Page 669



 
 

Page 12 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 Residential Property 

3.15 In terms of the site being accommodated by a residential dwelling, copies of the 

Burns Chronicles (1948)3 on Page 199 of the PDF state: 

644-HEITON BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; 43 members; President, W. F. Scott-

Ker; Secretary and Treasurer, Major Dawson Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

 The property referred to in the Burns Chronicles is the property at this site and 

the property referred to by Scottish Water and the Planning Committee in 2004. 

3.16 This information is further substantiated as the Burns Chronicles (1951)4, Page 86 

of the PDF state: 

644-HEITON BURNS &LUB: instituted 1910; federated 1947; 65 members; 

Secretary, Major Dawson Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

3.17 The site included a residential property, and the occupier/resident was Major 

Dawson Bowman. 

3.18 The planning history confirms that LPA states the development is “located on an 

in-fill site which has already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house”. 

3.19 The Case Officer states there is no evidence that the site was previously occupied 

as a dwellinghouse (described as a chalet in 1994). However, this is contested as 

• OS Plans for the site illustrate a residential property; 

• The Burns Chronicles (1948 and 1952) confirm the Secretary and 

Treasurer (Major Dawson Bowman) resided at the residential property; 

• Scottish Water confirm the established infrastructure at the site serving 

the residential property; 

• The planning history confirms the LPA in their assessments and Planning 

Committees accept the site had a residential property; 

• The site retains a residential garage on the site requiring vehicular access; 

• The Land Registry Deeds confirm the right of vehicular access to the site. 

This is based upon the residential use of the land. 

3.20 The evidence available demonstrates the site accommodated a residential 

property and the development of the site is for a replacement residential dwelling 

utilising the established access and infrastructure in situ. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
3 Appendix 3 
4 Appendix 4 

Page 670



 
 

Page 13 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

4. CONCLUSION 
 

4.1 To provide a conclusion and having considered the appropriate national and local 

planning policies and guidance the proposed development accords with each of 

the policies assessed and with planning guidance. 

 

4.2 On balance, the Case Officer in their officer report identify one reason for refusal 

and this relates to highways. 

 

4.3 There are several material considerations set out within the planning application 

and this Statement of Case that demonstrate material consideration weighing in 

support of the development. 

 

4.4 It has been demonstrated in the planning application, and within this Statement 

of Case, that the site has accommodated a residential dwelling and the 

redevelopment of the site is to replace the former dwelling with a replacement 

dwelling. 

 

4.5 The replacement dwelling will utilise the existing site and curtilage. It will use the 

established vehicular access and egress used by the previous residential dwelling, 

and this access is granted in perpetuity in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

4.6 The residential highways use at the site would directly accord with the lawful use 

set out in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

4.7 It has also been demonstrated that the 2004 planning permission, and the 2005 

reserved matters, was commenced by the drainage, demolition, and clearance 

operations carried out at site, therefore constituting development. 

 

4.8 In terms of a conclusion, the development of a replacement dwelling has 

previously been positively supported by the Council and the LPA. The evidence 

demonstrating the residential dwelling at the site, planning history, 

commencement of development, and the lawful use of the access in the Land 

Registry Deeds, is considered to weigh the planning balance in favour of the 

development. 

 

4.9 It is therefore kindly requested that the application / appeal be approved. 

Page 671



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 673



Page 674



Page 675



Page 676



Page 677



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 679



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 681



Page 682



Page 683



Page 684



Page 685



Page 686



Page 687



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

www.rbwf.org.uk 

 

1948 

The digital conversion of this  

Burns Chronicle was sponsored by 

Susan Shaw 

  

  
The digital conversion service was provided by DDSR Document Scanning 
by permission of the Robert Burns World Federation Limited to whom all 
Copyright title belongs. 

 

 

www.DDSR.com 

Limited 
 

Robert Burns World Federation 

Limited 
 

Page 689



THE 

ROBER T BURNS 

ANNUAL AND CHRON1CLE 

1948 

THE BURNS FEDERATION 

KILMARNOCK 

Price: in paper wrapper, 3/6; in cloth, 5 /- (To members 

of federated dubs: in paper wrapper, 3/-; in cloth, 4/6) 

Page 690



"BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

Real Scots 
body-builtJing fare ... 

CRIMPlE 
regd 

'OAT CAKES' 
Made by the makers of the 
Original Thin Wine Biscuit 

i 
1 

I 
\ ~ 

1 

I 
i 

WYlLlE, BARR " ROSS l TD ~ , 
'. Page 691



.. BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

. A Complete AERONAUTICAL SERVICE 
'f. 1:. . .. ~ ~) " 

OUR Prestwick Factory ha. over 
one million square feet devoled 10 

OVERHAUL REPAIRS and 
CONVERSION 01 ;'ircraft 01 all types. 

Our operating division, Seo fTlSH 
AIRLINES. i. experienced in airline 
operation and has operated Icheduled 
services for many of the leading: airline 
companies. : Our Booking AgeoC'y 
depattment can arrange your sir journey 
in any part of the world. 

An expetienced staff, a large' fleet of 
D.~ota8. Liberators and other aircraft 
both freiahter aqd passenger are availa~le 
for Charter at any time. 

We are the designers and manufacturers 
01 the PRESTWlCK PIONEER
a light aircraft specially de.igned lor 
ule in undeveloped areas. 

WE ARE THE AUTHORISED DOUGLAS 
• REPAIR OVERHAUL AND CONVERSION 
CENTRE FOR GREAT BRITAIN 

Whatever your , aviation problem consult 
THE FOUNDERS of ~RESTWICK AIRPORT 

Scottish Aviation Ltd. 
PRESTWICK .AIRPORT Telephone: 

Prestwick 7272 (9 lines) 

London Office: Mar.chester (. ffke ;: 
25 COCKSPUR ST., LONDON. S.W.I SCOTTISH AIRLINES. GRAND HOTEL, MANCHESTER. 

a 

1 

Page 692



.. BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTi sER 

I" ,Scotland ~ •. 

'" 

" "I T:S con,:eni,ent to take the bus f~om place to 
, -place. The vast network of S.M.T. regular 
services cover the greater part of the country, 

, linking town with vHlage, and providing cheap, 
quick and reliable transport facilities for people 
all over Scotland. Next time you travel. make 
su re you go- " , . 

. '. t~e ~Jway 
45 ' PRINCES STREET EDINBURGH 
BUCHANAN ST. BUS STATION, GLASGOW 
Depots & I branches throughout Scotland Page 693



~ . BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

dE'AN ARMOUR BURNS HOUSES 
CASTLE STREET, MAUCH'UNE 

AYRSHIRE 

Established in 1915 by the 

Glasgow and District Burns Association 

" 

... 

These Houses were purc~ased" repaired;. and 'gifted to the 
Associ'ation by the late Mr, Charles R. Cowie, J,p" of Glasgow, 
They comprise the Burns House (in which the poet and Jean Armour ' 
began housekeeping in .1788), Dr, John M'Kenzie'~ House, and 
"Auld Nanse Tinnoc]<'s" (the "change-house'" of ' Burns's poem 
"The Holy Fair"); and provide comfortable accommodation for 
nine old ladies, who live rent and, rate free andreceive a small .pension, 

A portion of the Burns House has been arrangr d as ,a Museum, 
which no\y contains numerous autlientic relics of Jean Armour and 
the poet: ' these include the Armour Family ' Bible and ~everal 
.manuscripts of Burns. • 

An, Endowment Fund for the maintenance of the Houses and 
the provision of the pensIons is b,eing formed. Contributions ~o this 

. Fund would be welcomed; they shoulil 'be addresse:l to'" the Hon. 
Treasurer of the i)..ssociation, Mr. A,. Neil Campbell, ' F.C.C,S., 10 . 

Lothian Gardens, Glasgo:W, N.W. r 

, .' " ~ .' 

'/" 

. r 

3 

Page 694



4 " BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

NATIONAL BURNS MEMORIAL COTTAGE HOMES, 
MAUCHLlNE, AY'R~HIRE. 

In Memory of the Poet Burns 
for Des~rvlng Old i>eople . 

.. That greatest of benevolent Institutions established In honour 
of Robert Burns." - G/a.gow Horald. 

There are , ~ow twenty modern ~omfortabre 
houses for the benefit of deserving old folks. 

The site is an id'eal one , in 'the heart of the ' Burrs, 
Country. The Cottagers, after careful selection, occupy 
the houses free of rent and taxes, and, in addition, receive, 
an annual allowance. They are chose9 from 'all ,quarters. 

There are no irksome restrictions/ they get bringing 
t!ieir own furniture, have their own / key, and can go 
in and out and have their own friends visiting them 
as they please. Our aim is , to' give th~m, as near as , 
practicable, their .. ain fi neside " and let them enjoy the 
evening of their ' lives in 'quiet comfort. 

f 

fFurther fundS are re4uired. 
, Will you ,please help '! 

Subscriptions will be gratefully acknowledged by the Hon . Secretary, 
Mr. DAVIE> J, S.- HARVEY, 6S Renfield Street. Glasgow. 

\' 

Page 695



" BURNS. CHRQN~CLE" ADVERTISER 

ST. ANDREW'S HOUSE, AYR 

This illustration, taken from the ma.in a.venue, ihowI the House in it. own IIround •• 
To the left. CAn be seen the exterior of the Sun Loun&e. . 

The Scottish Horse and Mot'ormen's Association ~was 
formed to promote Bro,therhood in the Transport Industry 
and to establish Sociil Security for all men of goodwill. It 
has acquire~ St. Andrew's House, 2 . Se afield Road, Ayr, 
as a convalescent and· rest centre for members, their wives , 
and children. '. " -

Ayr was selected as the best centre for the home' which 
judgm!(nt has been endorse'd wholeheartedly by all our 
memb~L . 

The Association will · welcome inquiries from all inter
ested in its work and activities at the head office: 

308 ALBERT DRIVE, GLASGOW, S.1 

JOHN B.RANNIGAN, 
: Gmeral Sec1·eta.ry. 

5 

Page 696



6 ': EURNS CHRONICLE" ,ADVERTISER 

~ ____ """i*""" __ ~~ 

' . 

Robert Burns 

Ill? Robert Burps were alive to-day ... he 

J ~oulp read, and probably write for, the 
"Dai! y Herald" ... loyal eXponent of the democratic 

principles and p.olicies of the great Poet, Humani

tarian and State.sman. 

, -.~----..... * ...... ----~~ Page 697



:\ 
i 

~ .: , , 

" 

I, ' 
'~ 

Scotland's Share 
" ' 

in Export Drive 
Perhaps inevitably after the turmoil of war Great 
Britain is now, because of her great contribution 
to victory, faced with serious economic problems. 
Not only must she provide an Increased share 
of her own foodstuffs, but her economy must 
be reshaped so as to concentrate on exports 
necessary to pay for both food and essential 

raw materials. ' 

. THE, GLASGOW HERALD 
SCOTLAND'S LEADINC NEWSPAPER 

is supremely fitted to assist this export effort. 
As a vital element in Scottish development for 
165 years it is an " indispensable" in the life of 
the community. It provides a full and expert 
service of industrial, 'commercial,and financial' 
news, and in combination with an extensive 
survey of general and political affairs, supported 
by authoritative comment, this gives it a position 
of unique value in these challenging times. 

Wijt 

~la1i!lnUt Etralb 
Head Office:' 

65 8uchanan Street.' Clasgow. C. 1 

London,Offic,e : 
56-57 Fleet Street. E.C.4 

Page 698



-know the VIews 

leading Scottish 

I 

of 'the 

writers 

-be well informed on all 

matters concernIng "the 

development a"nd welfare 

of Scotland 

-have the latest and accurate 

home and foreign news 

-You must read the 

'SCOTLAND'S NATIONAL NEWSPAPER' 

One Penny • • • Daily 
. I 

Page 699



Land, convenient .to 

RAIL, RO.AD and WATER, 

'available lor Work. requiring 

Shipping Services 

Page 700



Page 701



POOSIE NANSIES: - The 
old historical resort oj vagrants; 
has been described as 'a howj oj 
iangrel bodi~s.' 

/ 

IOHNNIE WALKER-' A famous old house, Rabbie-Thanks to you.' 

SHADE OF ROBERT -BURNS-' Equally interesting today, Johnnie----Th~s to you.' 

JOHN'NIE "WAL"K 'ER 
Born 1820-still going -strong' 

IOHN WAlKE'R & SONS, L!TD" SCOTCH WHISKY DISTILlEI\S, KllMARNOCK , SCOTlA 
Page 702



Page 703



BLENDED AND FRESaL Y PACKED IN SCOTLAND . 

YOU'LL L1K£ IT TOO! 

McGAVIN &: SCLANDERS Tea Merchants· GLASGOW 

. \ 

... 

Page 704



, I 

A CITY shopping centre In one store. Eight'. 
great floors displaying goods to wear, -

goods for the home, goods for men, women' 
and children-goods bought by Lewis's famous 
seven-store buying org~nlsation and sold 
under Lewls's famous guarantee of satisfaction 
or your m~ey refu!"ded. 

L EWIS'S are proud, too, of their service de
partments-two,iine restaurants, a modern 

man's barber shop-a wonderfully equipped' 
ladles' hairdressing saloon-Lewis's Bank

, the library, utHlty furniture bureau ... ail 
, designed to make shopping easier and more 
satisfactory. 

, SPEND a day at Lewls's-and spend wisely. 

GLASGOW 

i/ 

" -, , 

" 

''J 
"'\ 

- I 

" -' , ;'; 

Page 705



~ ;" 

.I 

? 

f't 

.' 'J, 
.o..:h ',1 , 

.. BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVEltTISER 

HOUSE OF FRASER 
STORES 

* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

fRASER SONS 
BUCHANAN STREET, GLASGOW 

THOMAS MUIRH~ADS 
SAUCHIEHALL STREET, GLASGOW 

ARNOTT-SIMPSONS -
JAMAICA STREET GLASGOW 

DALLAS'S .(Milton House) 
COWCADDENS, GLASGOW 

THE COLOSSEUM 
JAMAICA STREET, GLASGOW 

MUIR SIMPSONS 
jSAUCHIEHALL STREET, GLASGOW 

KING'S (fashions) , 
SAUCHIEHALL STREET, GLASGOW 

BETTY BERESFORO 
SAUCHIEHALL STREET, GLASGOW 

WILLIAM SMALLS 
106 PRINCES STREET, EDINBURGH 

PETER ALLANS 
SOUTH BRIDGE, EDINBURGH 

GORDON & STANflELDSf 
, . SOUTH METHVEN STREET, PERTH 

D. & A.-WALLACE 
HIGH STREET, PERTH 

MACLACHLAN & BROWN • 
MURRAY PLACE, STIRLING 

LOGIES 
BARNTON STREET, ,STIRLING 

ALEXANDER EWINGS 
WHITEHALL HOUSE, DUN DEI: 

D. & A. PRENTICE 
42 HAMILTON STREET, GREENOCK 

Page 706



cc BUlU~S CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

OJte 0/ tlte 
chocolate' 

o,ssort1JlC Jttl'l by 

CALEY 

Page 707



"., . 
~~. ' 

b, 

The House 
for Me'n's and 'Boys" Wear, 

, of Quality' 

, ,70 Buchanan "Stree! Glasgow 
,TelephoneCentra.16776. Telegrams fCRanac Glasgow" 

to- .. ~. "~ t ' 
.,,---.., ,.' 

Page 708



~.<~·&<t.it"'~'~':'~~·~rlf:rj?lf~~lm"~~~;'~<'tlJr • ., 
~~! "C~"t "_ ~.j'"'.( :" 0"";. ';:::;c,;~i:,&;';f:<";';;:'4 :;. .v,~,".'~'A;',!~.. '0::. '; '.-i"~~":;t.ii':'-":~('/\;-:~~';'\;l'?.'i'tVii!'\'l 

4,t;?,~"~' '~' "~' ,: " '::,';-" ·,c·
r/ ' ,'. ":.',~~:: • "':",':'; ":·~:"~?,':',:'!':'~;"i;~1tt.~~ 

~~;\8" "B~S'{)HRONICLE;' ADVERTISER',"':': '1. ;.~:'\~~'.,.". 
~'~;" . . ~~ '~ ~~j'~::;,. 
i.f. ,~ ~ -< (+ {," 

~L Scarcity Lends An Added .:~~ 
fiiV '. '. . i:~;f~ 

t~t~;~ Charm,To The. Things Wt:(· .-:;:?~ 

t~ Most Desire 0 0 0 0 or . .;;;1~ 
~~. , We enjoy ~good, things even ~ore.when we ~ :':,',;;}~ 
),t:!.~ get' them only now' and. / th~n. f.\nd ,how 'c ,,:;~ 
~li good is ~n occasional glass of, White 'tJorse .".~~~~ 
~f~~ '$cotch 'Whisky in these post-war years: A .,if, &it whisky of rich fragrance, and fuB, rotuld . >~:i. 
~');' flavour,' of rare delicacy a~d bouquet. A. )i..:,j . ,,!~ . 
t~ft whisk)l in which ~ll the qualities of great 
IT\ age are crowned by a genial, heartening .glow 

with never a trace of . fire . 

. Forethought and a provident care of stocks 
laid dQw~ in years' or plenty have provided 

-a modest supply' for your pleasure to-day. 
But the supply is regulated. Regulated to. 
ep,sure that" to~day ami alwaysv'White Horse 
shall be the whi~ky " fine as a fine liqueur.', 

"WHITE 

, i;J 
I ~, 'l 

" :,1): 

Page 709



,~, ' 

,.' 
" 

'I:' . , , 
~ . \ 
, . . ,\ 

',1-

,- , 

TOBACCONIST TO 

Rabbie Burns 

F om,ed for over 200 years: 
'for all that is finest in ' 

TOBACCO 

Rabbie was not yet born; and 
Prince Charlie was leading his, 

. Clansmen into England' when 
_ Wullie Gordon Qpened' Ius 
, Bacey' shop jn the High St!eet, 
Dumfries, 

As it was then, and in the ~'fS' 
when Rabbie used to ,visit. his 

, old friend Wullic~. it is toQaY~ 
the headquarters '. of the South' 
lor all that is fineft in Tobacco 

-

EST ABLISHED 
1745 

FANG};" GOODS 
We hav,e a large rang~ of 
High-Class Requisites for 
the smoker. 

, CIGARS' 
To the Connoisseur we . 

_ 'recommend 'the famous 

"SAVANA~' .' 
JAMA,ICA CIGAR 

Stocked '~,all sb:eB" 

',j" j 

Page 710



,~. 
~ MaCk.nloshs. 

. UGIt 

~'Q,wWty 

Sthed;' 
cA Dellcious Assortment , 

)' ofi(offoes er Cho~olales ' 

. 1 

Page 711



,-', 
.''' -
~, " 

The S~ices of the' WESTERN Company 
connect lJfJery Town', of importance, in the 
South-'West of' Scotland .. 

DAILY EXPRESS SERVICE-Direct ,Route . . . 
GLASGOW-LONDON 
Fdres: 30/- single 

C 

50/- return 

Dailr S,ervices to 
BLACKPOOL, 'LIVERPOOL 

MANCHESTER and all LANCASHIRE 
\ , 
. Seats may be, booked in' advance at 

any of the Offices of .the Company , 
Day Tours, Covering the Bums Country and the Histoticid 
and Picturesque Parts of Scotland. . Tours Brochures aDd 

Time Tables on ~pplicati~n. " 

H~ad Office: : Telephone 940 
Bus Station, Portland Street" KILMAR.N()C~ 

• 

, ,(., 

Page 712



22 . " BURNS CHRONICLE .. ADVERTISER 
,-----------'--

.. 

• 

. ~ / 

ROSS'S DAIRI.E:S LTD . . 

Page 713



" .' 
t'," 

" I 

,1',. / 

; 

CULTU'RE COM,ES 
WITH CO··,OPERATION, 

. The Co-operative Movement in Scotland' is more than 
a mere tradi~ organisation-it ,has ~ts roots in the 

, political. social and culfural tile of the s*ople~ Through
out Scotland are found Co-operative Men's and Women's 
Guilds, Youth Sections, Choirs, Dramatic Clubs, Camera, 
Clubs and Sports Societies. ' , , 

THE I.C.W.S. FILM SERVICE 
A:A uce1lent example of Co-~rative entertainment an\i 
educational effort is the Film Service operated by the' 
Advertising Department of the ScOttish Co-operative 
Wholesale Society, Ltd. , Through 'tIli. service, la one 
single' season, ,t,200 films were sho'W'll ,at 5pO film shows 
to Co-operative and otiler orianisati01l$.' ,These films 
cOtlSisted of Documentary, Interest, Instructional and Enter. 
tainment Films. The S.C.W.S. Mobile Film Unit takes 
'the fiim 'to the viUag.es and hamlets of Scotland With 
the, use of l6-mm. ,Safety stock, films ,can" be 'S&,own in 
any hall equipped with e1~ricity. . • 

SC OTTlSH CO-OP.ERATlVE,; WtiOl ESALE 
SOCIETY, LIMITED, 95 MORRISON S,~., ClASGOW 

.. 
/ 

, I ~ '. ' 

Page 714



f.;f~~~~~~~'t.oY,~~~~~:~i~~~3{;~~zrl~~f~0)(;~~$J\ 
.~,:"::.'X~,"~;>:?\'(~·:;;::~:S""; .. : .... :.~' c':·Y." r;~·>~.~t>-,::j '~<"\.~:y:~,:, ',' 
. ' .. ~. ' 

~ . :"BuBl(S ctmONICLE •• ,ADVl£IffiSD' 

.,< -, 

-H.V.MORTON 
. 'Those of you who read tItiBlDlIst'be intetuted. in our NatioQl Poet,' 

Robert Burns, and his l)eloved mmntloy. We can 8upply any ~ks 
" relating to:BurD. aDd Boullie Scotl&u~j Mid have selected the following 
r . few from 0lU' larPf.lhl variecl ~. They .are all available, and 
'. imay be obt.ined dkect from WI- '.: 

, ,<' 

"BRlTBEIlS A' n. 
, .... '1 

A 'minute ',. day with 'BIItnl by "ete!' IlssledlOBti 
~ Price 3/. (posUref! 3/3> 

" ; ; \ 

,_. "AUTUMN ,IN KYLE'~' 
.'.. • 0 . ,', A book ,.~ut the Burns oountry • by D.. . CUthb~OD 

, Price 12/6 (post free 13/1) 
\ 

'" , Oompiled by H-. L. Findlay, M.A. ' 
. Co~tainl DIAJIy ~s' of Scot~i8h prOBe tuid ~etry. Th~ te:x;t~:~t8l'~ 

, _persed' WIth superb photographs 

P~ce 3/6 (post free 3/10) 

"SCOTLAND TIlE NATION'" 
. A shQ,rt history by Rosallne Masson . I 

.~ ,of the feuds, intrigues, .self·Baodfice and self.interest, the trea.chery, 
: .... . devotion and.romanoe that have gone to the making of,Scotla,nd . ' 

Price 5/· (post free 5/4) 

"sCoTTISH COUNTIES" 
f 

/,' .A book of newphotographe by J. Dixon-Seott 
With ~n introdnction by GItOJ,te. BLAKE 

PJ1.ce 61- (post free 6/6) 
. ) 

, senes 'JJS ,our orders. We will d~ emrntmest to fu~1 them ' 

GIBSO.N'cS 
.45 QUEE~ " STREET GLASGOW 

~/ ~ 
'/ ~\ 

1 \:. ,., ,~, ~,\ .4 .." 

Page 715



i~~~i~~~W~~~~f~~"7f':'~:" .. -.-:;\~""C~~t~ 
~~?::: . . I "BURNS CHRONICLE',' ADVERTisER' ." '2i~:~ 
~:(:, . , " .... ~ 

~~:. Where to Dine Bc .'~ 
:~~'" - . '. "~: 

~:~ .. Where" .to Wine ~ :j~ 
, . 
• re 

... 
'. 

•• 1 

,I .. 

~;': ~'. , 
.L· 

.!'~ 

. . ", ' 1:.....;,~ 

~ + , ~~~§Zl 
The ROYAL" in the l:Iub of. Gl,..gow City," the ":?M 
favouri~. where' friends may dine and wine in :'-~:i1 

comfort. It.. beautifUl Diaiag R~ms"includiug <~1~i 
the Scots RoolD with historical mural paintings, : y:;~ 
its unequalled service aac:i 'goOd food, ita delight- . <~ 
ful, quaint Spanish Lo.unge, all combine to make .. ~ ~ 

-- ita popularity. Fully LiceDled.~·1',il 
_ ' _r,~ 

:i:'g~ 
.u;~ 
-)~ 

Under the same' managemept 
R 0 G A N 0 RESTAURANT 

I,n Exchange Place, Glasgow 

GRANT ARMS, RESTA.URANT 

Page 716



'. 

London Office-I 3 I -VictOrIa Street. London, S.~.I 
YOJ:'kshlre-Offi~-lngs Lane, Castteford 

$pedi!~~ in ~1teinforced ,Concrete 

Construction 

Reservoirs 

Bridges 

Docks 

Roads and 
i 

\ ' 

Sewers 

" 

~ 1, , 
i ~~, 
f 

, , 
I"",_} 

, ; 

Page 717



"BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

"Great is thy pow' r an' great thy fame; 

Far kend an' noted is thy name;" 

DAI.MARNOCK GENERA"I'JNG . STATION 

GLASGOW CORPORATION 

ELECTRICITY DEPARTMENT 

75 WATERLOO STREET 

GLASGOW; .C.2 

27 

Page 718



,,. 

;, . ''liUBNS OJi""iIro~"ADVBRT~ ..~'!;:9~ 

~Z; ,?r:;,~ , ~ eRG U s6 At, Established' 1799', '/~ 5:,,1 
T,,' (':,,,,', ~S I" w:. , .. t ~ a ,.' ,~ 

:,"/ ~~ (A: Y. CRAWPORD) ....,O~'A... '" ,.,:,':::,,~,~ 
~:f,\ »v /"'y ,/, "1 
~!;""" ' 'Tobacco BlenJer."::,'~, 

~~'l;. WIa I I'd R t ·1 Tobacconist. " 
it\';' :, , 026" e.a:~;n B~I~;~ ST~EET I' ;1~~: 
~
~"" , " " ,'~: 
'1" ~ . , ". . 

"" , AYR , ::~~ 
~:-,' ' "" ' " ",!;t 
~i." ~ 

I,~",~,.,f~;.'; .,'" se,Gti!Uld's tobacco iDdustry vanished com.pletely atthe.~~, "',' ,:,";,~,:r ,,:,i~:,.): 
' , he of hostilities :with Am~ ~ I.7'J6. ,After the peace ~f'I783 ':"<'" 
,ci', I i.t took a full decade to re-establish itself. ' " -'" i 

I
~~~ :' . , In the year 1799 Peter Stewart commenced bu~ m Ayr, \1 '>\:::;~,: 
1::, ,: ~-:' ,,:!tbith~pe)'ed and expanded. , . ' '" " 
"'},.. ' ' ,', I • -.' c \:-~ 

;;t';'; , 'lri 1826 he indentured a boy named James FerguSOn. James ", '/j 
;~:;, ',.: ,~seven years, receiying 3s. per week)n the first'Ye8.:1' and ",},' 
'~':',\ "96,- per week-in the se~edth. Now. ," whep his long se~n yeats .~';, 
.;,;.:;, 'y:ere o'er," young Ferguson'was commended by his master,. ); 

Peter Stewart, for diligence and for .. having h~tly serv~, 1 
, :the time specifi~d in this indenture much to my satisfaction." . . ;~'~ 

. Master aiid serVant' became so attached to one another that ;' ,~~ 
. 'ft,. ':~~ Perguson named his first child P~ter S~ Fei'~~, ' . _ ):~ 

g::\" \ wbilethenow aged Peter Stewart' bequeathed his :O.otnishing , '-d~ 
It'li\:· , tobacco business to his erstwhile apprentice, James i Ferguse,n. I , ,!5 

~
'~~ , The tinn became james Ferguson & Son, the son beco~ .'~ 
'1~;/ ' in tiJ;ne a magistrate of Ayr. When Peter Stewart Ferguson was'- . .})~ 
, ,t;:', .. ' gathered td his fathers the business was inherited by, his nephew, , "1~ 
, 1J'~" . -Andrew ,Young Cra~rd, but the fragrance of auld Iang syne :.: ,(~~ 
3::'~:' ',"has been pr~tved by the retention of the name j ames F erguson " <}!i 

110': <:. . / ~ 'Son, and iD the baptismal name of the Crawford heir Md . ' , >,~ 
',t,}· ~::pr6spective suc .. cessor, Peter SteWart Ferguson Crawf~rd. < • :,)P . . "'~ 
.~";,:.:,- ,'. Such dynastic continuity is romantic enough .. but there is a .'. ;, "~.; 

~r;;~'\::T . far sweeter romance in remembrance. . \ '~'~~ 
, ~i':'{: i; 26· NEW BRIDGE STREET AYR . / .-:Ij;l 
, ~oi.':._~~,'· :~, '. . . ~ ,"~ 

. ' ,::,~.',~~~ 
, .' .' ,'c,;iil 

~.> •••• ', i \ 'I"'<"'.~~'~'~~ \'.-~-,~ •• - .... ,'+; .... ,..:--:':/"pt 

Page 719



',~, -

" 
, " I 

r, 

r 

--=--------------=--===========------- --------=-----

Specialists in High Class doinery 
--------~--------------

Est&bliaked 1879 Teltphoop.. 374-5 

THOS.' FINDLAY & SONS 
Building Contractors 

MAUOHllNE 

COMPLETE CONTRACTS ARRANGED. 

Extensive Experience in Construction 

and Recopstruction of Byre and 

. ,Dairy Pr~mises. 

We are' fortunate in having a large 

number of highly skilled. and exper

ienced craftsmen in our, employmflnt. 

Ask Find lay f~r, aPr'ice 
I --=------- -.:..-.-=---::~ -==-===-~~-= 

_'. " I 

Page 720



30 "BURNS' CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

THE " 

COMMERCIAL BANK 
OF. SCOTLAND LTD. 

. . 

ESTABLISHED 1810 

OVER THRh'E' HUNDRED f,JRANOHES 

AND SUB-OFFIOES · iN ::JOOl'LAND 

AND THREE OFFICES IN .DONDON 

/ 

HEAD OFFICE: 

14' GEORGE STREET, EDINBURGH 

General Manager :' JOHN MAXWELL E RSKINE, C. B. E., D. L. 

Secretary: GEORGE HAY 

Page 721



+,." 

, 
~ . 
;j 

? l 
..... -.' 
' . 
. :' 
i 
'e>,' 
.' . 

" '-

Incorporated by Royal Charter, 1746 

The Bank transaots 8v8-pyklnd of HOMB . 
and OVBltSBAS- 'BAlfImfG BtJ:SINESS. I· • 

. Enquirif!s ~garding the facilities, available 
to customers will' be welcomed at ~ny 

• 
offlce of the Bank. 

HEAD OFFICE: 

S8 St. Andrew' Sqoare ~ EDINBURGH 

BRANCHBS THROU~~~trr ElCOTJJA}fD' 

R-OVAL BAN"" OF:SCOTLANQ 
Incorporated by Royal. Charter, 17£7 

Hf-ad Office: 

St. Andrew Sq"are, -Edinburgh 

Branches in London and thro~outS~land 

ASSOC4ATE.D. BANKS 

GLVN MIL1.8 '" 00 .. 
WILLIAMS-OEAOON'-S BANK LtMlYEi:, 

i ._ 

Complete Banking Fiuil#ies 

, '. 

, , 

, ~,' 

" 

.<:~~ 
:;:~~f~' 

--..' ,-;:: 

Page 722



""B'0BH8'",c~,'~'~ , 
. , 

. ,~~ ;Vnlon- ,Bank. of &ootl.4~' 
.. .. . Limited , ' 

'EstabliS~~d 1830 

Refl~cts 'in th~ quality' of its. serviee. the' 
.. 'value \ of a stt;trdy Scottish independence. 

- . 
'0 

: 'I' , I,' h." F " , ,. 

, Ohal'l'mCm'; Sir A. S1':EVEN BILSLAND, Bt., M,C, D.L:. 
-ihntral'jj{~'1ItJg,~; JOH1'I A. MORRI$ON,IM.C ' 

- . '\ ' -

'GLAS~'W HEAD, OFFICE 110 St.- Vincent -'street , 
BDINBU-RGH J'lEAD OFFICE - .' 64 George Street 

Branches ThrougJ.tout Scotland 
~ ... L~DON OFFICE' .' 6Z CoqtbiU, E;C.3 

, .. . . 

. AN ,tN~PENDENT SCOTl'lSH tANK 

-...... -- ::,ClYDESDALE, BANK U'M'TED-
(EST ABLtSHSD 1.838) 

Total Assets . • £98,550,000 

", '., Whe~ev~r there is a B~nch of thl$ Bank. 
,belt tntheBurns' Country or elsewhere. 
it Is at your ,serv~ always.. Every kind of 

, Banking busfne~s Is' transacted. The Bank 
also acts as Executor and Trustee. 

I 

-. 30 St. Vincent' ~Iace. Glasgow . 
BRANCHES THROUGHOUT SCOTLAND 

't.ONDO~ OFFICE - . - JO. Lombard Street, Eic.3 
'.PlCCADILLY CIRCUS BRANCH .; 31 Regent St~ S.W.I ' 

\: - ; 
. General Manager~JOHN J. CAMPBELL 

- ".',' -_ ,\ ~ ~ -. I. ,~, f -,~ ! 1 

Page 723



" BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

THE 

SAVINGS BANK OF GLASGOW 
(Certified under the Act of 1863) 

"Not for to hide it in a hedge 
Nor jor a train attendant 

But for the glorious privilege 
Of being independent." 

I 

The Bank provides a. Complete Nation'al Sa'llings Service · 
• ORDINARY DEPARTMENT--=-All funds deposited with 

the Government. Deposits received from 1/- t.o £500 in Gne 

33 

year. Total Limit, £2000 . . Interest-2~ per cent. (compound). / 

• GOVERNMENT STOCK and BONDS-Subscriptioni re
ceived for · all "tap" issues. Stock and Boods purchaled and 
sold. Dividends are ·credited to holders' accounts without 
deduction of Income Tax at source. 

• SAVINGS CERTIFICATES and STAMPS ·sold. 

• SAVINGS STAMPS are accepted as deposi,ts. 

• GOVERNMENT ANNUITIHSJrom £1 to £3(}0 purchased. 

Head Office 177 INGRAM STREET, GLASGOW 
46 Branches throughout the City and District 

, A TRUSTEE SAVINGS BANK 

c 

• 

Page 724



SCOTTISH, 
.:;: NA'TIONAL DICTIONARY, 

, . 
. . 

heiflg pttblisbeJ in 10 V,hmI,s 
, ' .... , , 

· THE OBJECT OF THE SCOTTISH. NATIONAL 
D'lCTIONARY IS ~o PRESERVE FOR FUTURE 
GE'NER:ATIONS THE LANGUAGE AND 
LITBRATURE OF OUR SCOTTISH RACE, 

ITS VOLUMES WILL) BE' A STOREHOUSE OF . 
INFORMATION ABOUT \ OUR NATIONAL 
C\JSTOMS. OCCUPATIO:NS. AMusEi\niNTS. 

; SUPF;RSTITIONS. RELIGIOUS, OBSERVANC~, 
· LEGAL TERMS, AND PROVERBS 

. \ Filii P",.liaJars fr9111 I';' S'mtru:J.' 
· SCOTI'ISH NATIONAL DICUONARY 

KIN41'S .cOLLItGB, ABBRDEBN 

-'\ ' ~ . ....... " . 

:I·S'AAC aA'RR·I·E' 

, , 

, , -- - ... ,'" ~.~ 

LIMITED. 

* * 
Cartage and Motor 
H aut age Contr.actor.s 

* * / , 

MIDLAND STREtET 
GLASGOW, C~~ ; 

Telephones-.OENTRAL 8261 (4 linee) , . 

Page 725



,f " 

;! ~',-

1"'-

",' 

" ~. ,-
I, 
, ,. 
~' , 

)', 
'\ 

~~ -;-~ 

(,~ .. ~' ~ 

(5 .. 
ll· 

),ruNCI~L ' OFFICES 

NOl?>tL HOUSE 
2.1 Ltlt_" Str-eri I 

. -

S~ 

Page 726



I' 

REIDS C'RflTHl£ SHORTBREAD' 
• ••• on the table again by next Anniversary and back 

, into favour with all those who have mis$ed many of 
the good things of pre-war days. 
$0/. Makers Established /858 

A. F. REID &: SONS, VICTORIA BAKERIES, 
VICTORIA RD., GLASGOW 

HIS- LORDSHIP'S LARDER 

* * , 
FAMOUS FOR 11 S FOOD 

ST. ENOCH'S I SQUARE 
(Opposite S~. Enoch . Station) 

* * 
FULLY LICENSED 

Page 727



• cInema 

ROSE STREET, 

;, 

I' 

1 ' 
'\ 

" 
;,,' I 

, " 

Page 728



" '. for SERVICE ,in BOOKS 

I -

Our service is always at your. 

disposal when selecting books' 

to meet your particular needs. , 

,:tJ8 •• SMITH at 80N, (Glasgow) L1a 
i \ c, 

.. : -'7.1 ST. VINCENT S1"R£ET,.GLASGOW, C.2,; 
, , , 

" Selling~ 
or 

Buying 
CONSULT 

·G:U.·MLEYS 
. ..'. MANAGERS OF PROPERTY 

43 HANOVER. STREET 

.ED IN,BURGH· 

" . 

.. 

! . 

, '. 

'. Property Agents 
'Sun-.yore 
·V~ue .. phOne: Edinburgh a 1016 

, ... _ 4\ " ~,: ' 

''',~~":::- I' :·'t:'. :.~'''': :~~~t..l~! "(,~l"~_'\"~,,,:r~.:/· ."" , 
'" -': 

<. ': '~. t;-. '".., \ ' 

Page 729



!- \ 

.' ' 

'" ' 

,.\ 
~, ,\, 

;'; ~,. 

~~e. '\. 

, .... ,-

, ..... -

;' ! 

;,' , , 

..... :..,.. " 
;~ '- . 

I 

. ,. 

GLASGOW ART 
GALLERY 

Special 

The Gallery Authorities will be 
glad to arrange' T ours (or 
organised . parties with special 
reference 'to Pictures and Relics 

, associated with the Life and 
Work -of 

ROBERT BURNS 
/ 

Please " communicate . with the 
Director., ' 

Other Exhibitions as advertised 
in the daily press. . . 

T. J. ,HOllEY1\l~. 
. ~or.'· 

,. "-
" >" I • ~ ,,". ,; 

Page 730



, I" 

" 
• I ',. - I ,<' I 

''''~'BUR~S'CB;RONICLE'f ..Q)-VERTISER , < 

. ""'COMIN' THRO' 
THE RYE"·' 

World Rights ~ontrolled by ADVAN~E FILMS, LIMITED, 

U3/II7 WARDOUR STREET, LoNDON, W.!. 

Produced 0/ 

Mr. ARTHUR DENT 

with, 

TERENCE ALEXANDER 
as ROBERT BURNS 

and 

• 
P A TRICIA BURLEIGH 

&; JEAN ARMOUR 

Songs by TREFOR JONES 
the famoUs ..:tenor 

>, ' Sir PATRIcK. . DOLLAN, the President of the Burns Federa,tion, 
; recOmmends the members of all the clubs and ... 11 the other 
':Scotti~h societies to see this film at home or ablioad. , 

. ' 
.; .: It lis a simple and dignified geographical film of Robert Burn~, 

_the best yet produced . by any studio. 

, ., 
, ... - " , 

, • > 

Page 731



BURNS 

CHRONICLE 

Page 732



Page 733



BURNS CHRONICLE 

AND CLUB DIRECTORY 
INSTITUTED 189 I 

PUBLISHED ANNUALLY 

SECOND SERIES: VOLUME XXIII 

THE BURNS FEDERATION 

KILMARNOCK 

Page 734



vi LIST OF CONTENTS 

PAGE 

THE BURNS FEDERATION: 

(a) List of Hon. Presidents, Hon. Vice-Presidents, 
Executive Committee (Office-bearers and Dis
trict Representatives), Sub-Committees, and 
Auditors 65 

(b) Constitution and Rules - 68 

(c) List of Districts 72 

(d) List of Past-Presidents - 80 

(e) List of places at whicJh the Annual Conference 
has been held 80 

(f) Minutes of the Annual Conf,erence, 1947: 
incorporating the Hon. Secretary's annual 
report - 81 

(g) Annual reports: 
(1) Financial Statement 94 
(2) School Competitions 96 
(3) Burns Chron~cle 98 

(h) Address to John S. Clarke, President 1943-6 - 64 

(i) Obituary 64 

(k) Burns Club notes - 99 

(l) Numerical list of Clubs on the Roll 114 

(m) Alphabetical list of Clubs on the Roll - 148 

(n) Notices - 151 

Page 735



EDITORIAL NOTE 

The Burns Federation does not accept any responsi
bility :for statements made or opinions expressed in the 
BUfflS Ohrowicle. The writers are responsible for articles 
signed by them; the Editor is responsible for articles 
initialed or signed by him, as well as for those unsigned. 

Letters and offers of original articles should be 
addressed to the Editor. Articles offered should be in 
typescript, with double spacing and on one side of the 
paper. 

The article entitled "The first 'Burns Nicht' " 
is reprinted from Chambers's Journal (January 1947) by 
kind permission of the Editor o:f that magazine. 

8 ROYAL TERRAeB, 

GLASGOW, 0.3. 

J. C. EWING 

Page 736



LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS 

1. MR. GEORGE HUMPHREY, Convener, Finance Committee, The 
Burns Federation,. 

2. MR. JAMES C. DICK, Editor of " Songs of Burns." 

3. MR. JOHN MURISON, Burns Collector. 

4. FACSIMILES of portions of letter from Burns to his Wife. 

Page 737



~IR. GEORGE HUMPHREY, 

CONVENRR, FINANCr£ COMMITT~:E, THE BURNS FEDERATION 

Page 738



MR. lAMES C. DICK, 

EDITOR OF "SONGS OF BURNS" (SEE PAGE 33) 

Page 739



MR. JOHN MURISON, 

BURNS COLLECTOR (SEE PAGE 52) 

Page 740



Page 741



EDITORIAL 

WHY NOT1 

Time and again during the past half-century the exodus 
of British literary relics from this country to lands abroad 
has been the occasion of controversy and complaint. The 
departure of manuscripts ot Robert Burns has been the 
subject of particularly powerful lamentations, and recent 
publication of the fact that a manuscript of "Scots wha 
hae " had gone to America and was preserved there, was 
the cause of much hellJrt-burning up and down Scotland. A 
speaker at a Burns Night celebration at Ayr even went 80 

far as to suggest that the document might have been returned 
to Scotland under a lend-lease arrangement. 

This speaker-a former Secretary of State for Scotland
ought to have known that within 500 yards of the building 
in which he stood two separate texts of the same song in 
Burns's writing were safely housed in the MUl>eum of the 
Burns Cottage at Alloway. It would, in this case, have been 
the height of folly for the Trustees of that institution, or 
even any other established custodian of Burnsiana, to have 
pUl'chased a third copy. Nor would any particular patriotio 
cause or erudite purpose have been served by anyone else 
doing so. 

Even had these two copies not been safely preserved at 
Alloway it is doubtful whether respect and love for Burns 
is well served by the raising of a hue-and-cry over the acqui
sition by another oountry of manuscripts of his works. 

The primary importance of such documents is to establish 
the COl'rectnees of a text, and in the case of Burns's poems 
this has already long since been done in any instance where 
doubt existed. Even had it not, present-day western acholar
"hip makes no monopoly of knowledge; and it is scarcely 
conceivable that should any verification of a text be called 
for, facilities for carrying it out would be withheld by an 
institution or individual in another English-speaking or 
Western European country. 

The secondary interests of these cherished yellowish 
sheets on which Burns poured forth his thoughts is that 
they symbolise regard and affection for him. When another 
poet wrote " And did you once see Shelley plain f" he was 
voieing a rapture that is conjured up similarly by the 

A 

Page 742



2 EDITORIAL 

touch ot. the very paper which Burns held, the book he owned. 
Such s'entiment goes deep, and who shall decry or belie it' 
To be remembered is a deep, passionate human craving, 
and all creative work is in a way an endeavour to cry halt 
to the fugitive moments of our lives. The poet in his verse 
builds "a monument more lasting than brass," and his 
admirers for their part not only keep hie memory alive in 
their hearts but also seek by all means to perpetuate it and 
hand it on. 

In this sense the fact that men in other -lands cherish the 
memory of painter, poet or musician sufficiently to want to 
surround themselves with his works is doubly ~ tribute to 
him. From Shakespeare to Flecker, from Horace to Ronsard 
the hope of fame long after life or in far parts of the world 
has persisted. The thought of being remembered a thousand 
years afterwards or ten thousand miles away gives a special 
spur to the poet or artist. 

In the case of America this cherishing of Burns's memory 
has a distinctive appeal that it would be stupid to disparage 
in a spirit of n~rrow parochial nationalism. A country 
with a short literary; history but a strong feeling of the 
English-speaking tradition, the V.S.A. has been and is no 
mean contributor to our scholorship and learning. Should 
she not be welcome to acquire such literary relics as " Scots 
wha h~e" 1 Should we not in turn be glad to see such 
manU$oripts preserved in places like Harvard College or 
the Huntington Library at San Marino1 

Burns, one feels, would 80 rejoice. He was no narrow 
nationalist and, living in a time of ~cute social and inter
na,tional ferment akin in many lJ"espects to ours, he voiced 
the need of universal brotherhood with a fervour never 
needed more acutely than to-day. To him the cherishing of 
his works by admirers overseas would undoubtedly be a con
summate triumph for his beliefs. He would have enjoyed 
the description by Lord McGowan-given to Sandyford 
(Glasgow) Burns Club--of how he " accepted the invitation 
of the late Mr. J. Pierpont Morgan to visit his wonderful 
library. There, in a small room-the holy of holies-jeal
ously guarded, I held in my hands a manuscript of ' Scots 
wha hae,' I am not ashamed to confess how moved I was 
when I read the actual hand-writing of our great poet and 
thought of what h!l-d inspired this work-intense love of 
country." 

Cannot we, therefore, !l-S a nation whose chief greatness is 
that we have made ourselves felt all over the five continents 
and the seven seas, rejoice when claimants outside our land 
set themselves out to acquire Burns manuscripts' 

Page 743



EDITORIAL 3 

Yet another argument has, however, been brought forward 
in this connection. Another speaker, also at a Burns gather
ing, claimed that since Burns is the poet of humanity, all 
humanity should share his relics. His manuscripts should 
not be allowed to be private property at all but should, in 
current parlance, be nationalised. 

It is a tempting thought that, like the sun in the morn
ing and the moon at night in a current stage success from 
the U.S.A., our literary treasures should also be free-for-all 
and communal property. But without being unduly diehard 
or Blimpish it is difficult to IlIOO this as an immediate solu
tion of the problem of the emigration of literary or artistic 
treasures, or to feel emboldened to aak the Government to 
nationalise Burns as a contribution to our Scottish culture. 

"YON WILD MOSSY MOUNTAINS" 

AN INEDITED lIIANUSORIPT 

I 

YON high mossy mountains, ~e lofty and wide, 
That nurse in their bosom the youth of the Clyde, 
Where the grouse lead their coveys thro' the heather to feed, 
And the shepherd eyes his flock as he pipes on his reed. 

11 

Not Gowrie's rich vallies nor Forth's sunny shores 
To me hae the charms 0' yon wild, ml)88J moor!>; 
For there, by a lonely, sequestered stream, 
Resides a sweet lassie, my thought and my dream. 

III 

She is not the fairest, altho' she is fair; 
0' fine education but sma' is her share; 
Her parentage humble as humble can be; 
But I loe the dear lassie because she loes me. 

IV 
To Beauty what man but must yield him a prize, 
In her armour 0' glances, and blushes, and sighs' 
And when wit .and refinement hae polish'd the darts, 
They dazzle our een, as they flee to our hearts. 

Page 744



LETTERS FROM, AND TO, ROBERT BURNS 

The first of the three items recorded here is No. 238 in 
the Clarendon P~ess edition of Burns's Letters, with note 
" MS. not traced." It W!lS referred to in last year's issue 
of the B'III1'1/,8 Chronicle as having been sold at London in 
1945, and is now owned by Mr. Cl1l<rk Hunter, who has 
kindly supplied this copy. 

The second item was printed in the L8irge-Paper Edition 
of the Complete ttnitim,us 01 Burns (1927; 10 vols.). It has 
the great interest of being the earliest letter addressed to 
Burns that is known to be in existence; the originJll is now 
in Alloway Burns Cottage MUBeUm. M'Candlish was then 
a student in Glasgow College. at which he had matriculated 
in 1777. He afterwards changed his name tQ Candlish. 

The larger of the two portions of manuscript reproduced 
on the opposite page is "Part of a letter Mr. Burns to 
Mrs. Burns and given by her to her sister-in-law, Mrs. 
Adam ArmQur, Mauchline"; no. 315 in the Clarendon 
Press edition of the Letters. The second fragment 11l<tely 
came into the market; obviously it belongs to the same letter 
as the first one. Other fragments probably survive some
where. 

J. C. E. 

I 

TO MRS. DUNLOP OF DUNI,OP, AT lm. DUNLOP'S, HADDINGTON 

Mauchline, 28th April, 1788 
Madam, 

Your powers of reprehension must be great indeed, as I 
assure you they made my heart ach with penitential pangs, 
evn tho' I was re!llly not guilty .-As I commence Fa.rmer at 
Whitsunday, you will easily gu~s I must be pretty throng; 
but that is not all.-As I got the offer of the Excise business 
without solicitation; and as it costs me only six weeks attend
ance for instructions to entitle me to a Commission; which 
Commission lies by me, and at any future period on my 
simple petition can be resumed; I thought five and thirty 
pounds & year was no bad dernier resort for a poor Poet, if 
Fortune in her jade tricks should kick him down from the 

Page 745



BURNS LETTERS 5 

little eminence to which she has lately helped him up.-For 
this reason, I am at present attending these instructions to 
have them completed before Whitsunday. Still, Madam, I pre
pared with the sincerest pleasure to meet you at the Mount, 
and came to my brother's on Saturday night to set out on 
Sunday; but for some nights p.Teceding I had slept in an 
apartment where the force of the winds and rains was only 
mitigated by being sifted thro' numberless apertures in the 
windows, walls, etc. in consequence I was on Sunday, Mon
day and part of Tuesday unable to stir out of bed with all 
the miserable effects of a violent cold.-

You see, Madam, the truth of the French maxim, "Le 
vrai n'est toujours le vraisemblable."-Your last was so 
full of expostulation, and WJ;l.S something so like the language 
of an offended friend, that I began to tremble for a Corre
spondence which I had with grateful pleasure set down 
as one of the greatest enjoyments of my future life.-

You see the consequence of all this.-I like to sit down, 
when I write to a Friend iruieed, and give way to the unpre
meditated miscellaneous effusions of my heart; .instead· of 
which my unlucky Cold has forced me on a drJ;l.wling epistle 
of dull apologies, than can serve no positive good end, but 
negatively I trust, will prevent that exoomunication from 
the much esteemed priviledges of your friendship, which, 
in appellirance I so justly deserved; &: which I dread infin
itely more than all the Anathemas of the Vatican, or the 
equally infallible General Assembly. 

As I hold this no letter, but what the Qual'rel-Brokers, 
alias, the Lawyers, call, a Reply I shall trouble you with a 
letter by our Edinr. Carrier, who I believe sets out next 
week.-I shall be coming frequently to Aytniliire thro' the 
Summer; and if I am not so happy as meet you at Dunlop, 
I shall be in Edin. some time before Midsummer, when if the 
irresistable hand of Predestination do not interp06e, I shall 
see you at Haddington.-

Your books have delighted me; Virgil, Dryden &: Tasso 
were all equally strangers to me; but of this more at large 
in my next.-

I have the honor to be, Madam, 
your much indebted humble servt. 

ROBT. BURNS 

Page 746



6 BURNS LETTERS 

II 

JAME'S M'OANDLISH 'l'O MR ROBERT BURNS, 

At Lochlie, in parish of Tarbolton, to the care of 
James Caldwal, stabler in Ayr, by Ayr. 

Dear Robert, 
Glasgow, February 13th, 1779, Saturday 

I received your friendly and entertaining letter ",bout 
eight days ago, which, you may be shure, give me no sman 
satisfaction. I am always happy in hearing from those with 
whome I have been so intimately ,acquainted as you. My 
real acquaintances are, indeed, not very numerous, but I 
always thought it was better to have few, whose fidelity could 
be relied on, than a great number without this best of all 
qualifications. The effects 0,£ a correspondence betwixt faith, 
ful acquaintances is very agreeable, and that pleasure is, 
indeed, as you observed, very much increased by the variety 
of si~uation which must many times take . . . p6l'9Ons most 
intimately connected. I must be very sensible of this at pres
ent; a few thoughts of any of my friends or acquaintance in 
the country serve as a more moderate exercise to the mind 
engaged, in general, to severer studies. Nor is it less agree
able, now and then, when conveniency offers, to send them 
a few of my own, although I am sensible they, generally, have 
not so much intrinsic value as is sufficient to make amends 
for the postage. 

I am happy to hear you are engaged in such an useful 
and agreeable a study this winter as you tell me. It is a 
study productive of the most rational pleasure, and I think 
it is most admir,ably calculated to your present situation, 
as being of all studies one of the most proper to enable men 
to regulate thei,r conduct aright. And, besides, it requires 
not such a numerous and expensive train of assistants as 
many others. A steady reflection of what passes in oneself, 
and an attentive observation to what passes among men in 
the world in general, is the most effectual means one can use 
for studying human nature to advantage. I think, likewise, 
a few books, when well chosen, may tend considerably to 
facilitate this study, and they generally render it more 
agreeable. I fancy you will be pretty shure of succeeding 
tolerably well in it, as I am convinced of your usual 
of reflection, and your observing the conduct and ... of 
others. And I always admired your choice .... You tell 
me you are reading Pope's epistles as an assistant, and I 
believe you could not have got one more excellent than him 
in the poetical way. He as a poet expresses himself admir-

Page 747



BURNS LETTERS 7 

ably well, but when considered as a philosopher you will 
find him chargeable with a few faults. He seems not to 
have been a man calculated for deep and abstract subjects, 
and sometimes, when he attempts to shine in that province, 
he is unlucky. And besides, we must not wonder that he 
was guilty of some small errors, since he adopted most of 
his philosophical notions from Bollingbrock, his great friend. 
I think he is most eIceptionable in that part where he reduces 
all the principles of men's actions to reason and self-love. 
It is allmost impossible, I think, to see in what sense he 
takes reason and self-love. I do not pretend to be qualified 
for giving you any rule how to read him with most advan
tage: durst I presume to give you any, it would be briefly 
this, when you read him, to judge as well as admire. 

You say you are attending a dancing school this winter. 
I think you are exceeding right in that. Since nature has 
'not made man perfect in any respect, but made him capable 
of arriving ne.arer perfection by his own industry, it seems 
to me no less a part of his duty to take some pains in polish
ing, as it were, the rude ... the body, than in improving 
the weak powers of . . . mind. And besides, in this polite 
age, a man is [not] looked on as fit for decent and repect
able company [without] it. But I must willingly confess 
many persons make very ridiculous use of it. 

I am more than I can [tell] you delighted with your 
verses, and I hope, in the course of our present correspond
ence, you will now and then favour me with such stanzas as 
you may think fit. I have not made any attempts in that 
respect, although I am not shure but, if I was to take pains, 
I might perhaps be able to do something to poetry. But the 
college ill not favourable for cultivating an acquaintance 
with the muses. With regard to the last thing you mentioned 
in your letter, I really cannot give you any answer as yet. 
But I will be singularly obliged to hear your thoughts with 
regard to myself: I hope you will be free with me without 
any kind of reserve. 

Altho' I write to you, yet you must consider my letters 
as in some measure common to both you and my other dear 
aquaintance, Gilbert; and I shall be glad to have a few 
lines from any of you who may think it most convenient. 

No more, but remains, with my best wishes to all your 
family, your honest friend, 

(signed) JAMES M'CANDI.ISH 

Page 748



ADDRESS ON PROPOSING" THE IMMORTAL 
MEMORY" 

to the 
DUMFRIES BURNS CLUB 

on 

24th January 1947 

by 
REV. HAROLD A. COCKBURN, B.D., M.TB. 

My first word must be one of appreciation for the honour 
you bave done me by inviting me to fulfil the high task of 
proposing the Immortal Memory, remembering, as I do, that 
80 recently as in July last there was commemorated the 150th 
Anniversary of the Poet's death. Dumfries Burns Club, 
belonging t.o the place where the Poet died, holds this year 
a special place in the thoughts of Burns lovers the world o'er 
80 that I feel doublJi honoured in baving been chosen for this 
occasion. Would that as Minister of St. Michael's, in whose 
graveyard all that is mortal of the Poet lies b:uried, something 
of the spirit of the bard might fall upon me that I might be 
more fitted for the task before me; for he is indeed a bold man 
who undertakes to speak on Robert Burns. Attempts have 
been made by the most learned in qur land and the most 
illustrious in our history, and even they have fallen short of 
the ideal. Sometimes I think that those. who understand the 
ploughman poet best are not the learned and the great, but 
the ordinary man who mixes freely with his fellow men in 
the rough and tumble of life, and has a natural understand
ing of their desires and fears, their hopes and ambitions, 
their temptations and their sins. It is he who can enter 
deepest into the thoughts and feelings of the poet and can 
trpeak for him a true word of appreciation. Perhaps that is 
why you have seen fit to invite me, a fellow citizen of this 
Royal and Ancient Burgh, and one who can lay claim to 
neither high learning nor ill:ustrious name. It is because of 
this that I make bold to attempt the impossible, knO'Wing 
that if I fail, I shall at least have the comfort of being in 
excellent company. 

My main theme is a simple one, namely to try to show 
that Burns was absolutely sincere and yet advocated causes 

Page 749



ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS t' 

that were contradictory to each other He was different from 
you and me in that he spoke, and somehow had to speak, the 
things that were in his mind, while you and I, and ordinary 
folk like us, speak only the things that we want others to knOlW 
about us. We are too afraid of what others will think of us 
to blurt out the thoughts which from time to time take posses
sion of us. If they be low or mean or unpleasant thoughts, 
and which of us does not have them at times, then we bottle 
them up within ourselves until they pass, and we can speak 
again the things that fit our station and o:ur outward char
acter. But once in a while a man is Iborn-it happens but 
rarely in human history-but once in a while a man is born 
who must say what he thinks and feels, for no other reason 
than that he thinks and feels them, and one of these rare 
creatures was Robert Burns. You and I and ordinaFY beings 
like us have not the courage to reveal for aU and sundry to 
see, the darker passages of our minds or the shady instincts 
that sometimes rest in our breasts. But Robert Burns had 
the courage to say what was in him-indeed, was so made that 
he could not help giving immediate expression to his thoughts 
and mood8--without fear or favo:ur and irrespective of con
sequences. The difference therefore between Burns and :us 
is that the character of Burns is open for all to see, the good 
and the bad, the strong side and the weak, the noble and the 
sordid, whereas with you and me, we are only seen as we 
want others to see us. 

This courage of saying what is in us without fear or 
favour is shared by geniuses and little children. Just as a. 
child blurts out what is in his mind with no thought of con
sequences so did Robert Burns. There was, for instance the 
little girl who, when Mr. Jones came to dinner sat throughout 
the meal watching him and then blurted out:" When are you 
going to take a drink of water, Mr. Jones1" " And why, my 
dear do you want me to take a drink of wated" asked Mr. 
Jones, to which came the answer: " Because Mother says you 
drink like a fish." Or, again there is the story about Burns 
when he was an exciseman. Entering a house where he 
suspected brewing had been taking place, he found that the 
woman of the house had slipped out at the back door as he 
had come in the front, leaving a servant girl and a little 
child in the house. "Has there been any brewing here for 
the Fair" asked Burns. "Oh, no, sir" said the maid, 
" we hae nae licence for that." "That's no' true," exclaimed 
the child" the muckle black kist is fu' 0' the bottles of yill 
that ma mither sat :up a' nicht brewing for the Fair." 
" Wen" an!!fWered Burns" we're in a hurry just now, but 
when we return from the Fair we shall examine the muckle 

Page 750



10 ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 

black kist." It is a delightful story, revealing the benevo
lence of Burns the Exciseman, but it is told to illustrate my 
floint that the necessity of speaking the truth that is in him at 
the moment is shared by geniuses and little children. This 
does away with any accusation of insincerity in Burns for at 
the time of speaking, whatever his mood, it was Burns 
speaking from the heart. The result is that almost in the 
same breath he could rhyme off such poems as " Willie brewed 
a peck 0' mau't" and" To Mary in Heaven" and at the 
same time be sincere in them both. At one moment we find 
him advocating the careless, free life of wine and women, and 
at another the noble sentiments of " The Cottar's Saturday 
Night." Now he is dancing with the De'il and again stand
ing in reverence before his Maker, at one time singing of his 
Bonny Jean, at another of any passing jade. Thus it comes 
about that in Burns we find the opposite moods and opposite 
opinions expressed with equal fervour and with equal 
sincerity. At the time of writing them it was the Burns of 
the moment speaking from the heart, with this result, that 
whatever the cause which you wish to advocate, Burns is 
your man, but the strange thing is that the opponents of 
your cause will find in the same poet their strongest 
supporter. 

Let me illustrate this with three examples. 
1. Let us say that we wish to advocate the glorification 

of drink. Well Burns has been held up as a worshipper of 
Bacchus the God of Drinking and certainly it is not difficult 
to find in his writings quotations which will support your 
arguments. His descriptions of conviviality are both vivid 
and convincing: 

.. But to our tale: Ae market night, 
Tam had got planted unco right, 
Fast by an ingle, bleezing finely, 
Wi' reaming swats, that drank divinely: 
And at his elbow, Souter J ohnny, 
His ancient, trusty, drouthy crony" 

" The nicht drave on wi' sangs and clatter, 
And aye the ale was growing better. " 

But to use Burns as an advocate for drinking is to ignore the 
fact that he can be quoted equally well against it, for while 
the story of Tam 0' Shanter and Souter J ohnny "boozing 
at the nappy and getting fou and unco happy" shows one 
side of the picture, the views of Kate sitting at home nursing 

Page 751



ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 11 

her wrath shows the other, so that the tempel\llnce advocate 
finds his champion too in B).uns: 

"Ab, gentle dames it gars me greet 
To think how mony counsels sweet, 
How mony lengthen'd sage advices, 
The husband frae the wife despises! 

" Now, who. this tale 0' truth shall read, 
Each man and mother's son take heed; 
Whene'er to drink you are inclined, 
Or cutty-sarks rin in your mind, 
Think! ye may buy the joys o'er dear; 
Remember Tam 0' Shanter's mare." 

Yes, if Burns can be quoted as an advocate of licence in 
drinking, he can be equally quoted against it: 

" 0 Tam! hadst thou but been sae wise 
As ta'en thy ain wife Kate's advice!" 

The same could be said in regard to my second illustra
tion, namely licence in love. The upholders of free love find 
their advocate in Burns and their strongest arguments in his 
poems. They can point to his lines to the fair charmer Ellison 
Begbie: 

" When in my arms, wi' a' thy charms, 
I clasp my cO).lntiess treasure, 0; 

I seek nae mair 0' Heaven to share 
Than sic a moment's pleasure, O!" 

or to the lines to Annie Rankine: 

" But a' the pleasures e'er I saw, 
Tho' three times doubled fairly

That happy night was worth them a', 
Amang the rigs 0' barley." 

or to the lines to Mrs. M'Lehost: 

" Had we never loved sae kindly, 
Had we never loved saa iblindly, 
Never met--or never parted-
We had ne'er been broken hearted." 

or to the lines to Mary Morrison and Deborah Da.viea and 
N a.nnia Fleming and Mary Camp bell and the rest. 

Page 752



12 ANNIVERS.ARY .ADDRESS 

Yea there is evidence enough for any advocate o~ free love, 
but it can be shown that those who advocate the sanctity of 
the Home and the beauty of conjugal faithfulness find in the 
same Burns their greatest champion. Was there ever sJIch 
a condemnation of free love as appears in those lines from the 
"CoUar's Saturday Night" about young Jennie blushing 
bonnie: . 

" Is there, in human form, that bears a heart-
A wretch, a villain, lost to love and truth
That can, with studied, sly, ensnaring art, 
Betray sweet Jenny's unsJIspecting youth 1 
Curse on his perjur'd arts, dissembling smooth I 
Are honour, virtue, conscience, all exil'd 7 
Is there no pity, no relenting ruth, 
Points to parents fondling o'er their child t 
Then paints the ruined maid, and their distraction wild 1" 

And could there be a finer, nobler, sweeter picture of con
jugal faithfulness and true love than is to be found in "John 
Anderson, my Jo, John" : 

" John Anderson my jo, John, 
When we were first acquent, 

Your locks were like the raven, 
Your bonnie brow was brent; 

But now your brow is beld, John, 
Your locks are like the snow; 

But blessings on your frosty pow, 
John Anderson, my jo. 

John Anderson my jo, John, 
We clamb the hill thegither; 

And mony a canty day, John, 
We've had wi' ane anither: 

Now we maJIn totter down, John, 
And hand in hand we'll go, 

And sleep thegither at the foot, 
John Anderson, my jo." 

Yes, if Burns can be quoted on the side of free love be can 
equally be quoted on the side of conjugal faithfulness: 

" To make a happy fireside clime 
To weans and wife, 

That's the true pathos and sublime, 
Of human life." 

Page 753



ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 13 

My third illustration of the opposites in Burns is on the 
subject of religion. Those who wish to sneer at the deep 
things of life, to poke fun at the Church, and to cast ridicule 
on the preacher can find in Burns any amount of ammunition 
and can claim in him their chief advocate and fellow baiter. 
They have only to turn to " Holy Willie's Prayer" and with 
sententious tones quote anyone of the verses : 

•• I bless and praise thy matchless might, 
Whan thousands thou hast left in night, 
That I am here afore thy sight, 

For gifts and grace 
A burnin' an' a shinin' light, 

To a' this place." 

or: 

., Yet I am here a chosen sample, 
To show thy grace is great and ample; 
I'm 'here a pillar in thy temple, 

Strong as a rock, 
A guide, a buckler, an example 

To a' thy flock." 

Yes, they have only to roll off these verses to feel that they 
have so worsted their opponents that there is nothing more to 
be said. ' 

Or should they wish to caricature the preacher-a 
favourite pastime of those who are spiritually blind-they 
need no arguments of their own but can find more eloquent 
speech in the Works of Burns: 

" Now a' the congregation o'er 
Is silent expectation; 

For Moodie speals the holy door, 
Wi' tidings 0' damnation. 

Should Hornie, as in ancient days, 
Mang' sons 0' God present him, 

The very sight 0' Moodie's face 
To's ain het hame had sent him 

Wi' fright that day." 

And those who would treat lightly the powers of evil-call 
them what you will, Auld Hornie, Satan, Nick or Clootie, 
then it is with ready tongJle they lisp the words of their 
finest advocate, Robert Burns: 

Page 754



14 ANNIVERSARY ADDREss 

" Whyles rangin' like a roarin' lion 
For prey, a' holes an' corners tryin' ; 

Whyles on the strong-winged tempest flyin' 
Tirlin' the Kirks; 

Whyles, in the human bosom pryin' 
Unseen thou lurks." 

But having said all that, can it be the same man who 
paraphrases the 90th Psalm 1 

" 0 Thou, the first, the greatest friend 
Of all the human race, 

Whose strong right hand has ever been 
Their stay and dwelling place." 

Can it be the same man who writes in a letter to his fa.ther : 
" Therefore are they before the throne o~ God and serve Him 
day and night in His temple; and He that sitteth on the 
throne shall dwell among them. 

They shall hunger no more, neither thirst any more; 
neither shall the sun light on them, nor any heat. 

For the Lamb which is in the midst of the throne shall 
feed them, and shall lead them unto living fount&.ins of 
waters; and God shall wipe away all tears from their eyes." 
Is it the same man who writes about these verses: "I am 
more pleased with them than with any ten times as many 
verses in the whole Bible, and would not exchange the noble 
enthusiasm with which they inspire me for all that this world 
has to ofter." 
And, can it be the same man who writes the "Cottar's 
Saturday Night" and in it exalts the Home where religion 
has its rightful place: 

" Then kneeling down to Heaven's Eternal King 
The Saint, the Father, and the husband prays: 
• Hope springs eternal on triumphant wing' 
That thus they an sh'd meet in f).lture days." 

" From scenes like these old Scotia's grandeur springs, 
That makes her loved at Home, revered abroad." 

Yes, it is the same man, and I hope I have made my point 
clear that Burns was difterent from ).lS in that he had to speak 
the thoughts that were in him according to the mood of the 
moment, and that at the time of speaking he was absolutely 
sincere though often advocating causes the direct opposite of 
each other. 

Page 755



ANNiVERSARY ADDRESS 15 

On this the 150th year of his death, I think it is 
fitting that here in the Dumfries Club, attention should be 
turned to that tragic event, and I want you to picture Robert 
Burns, as, near the end of his life, he sat by the Brow Well, 
where he had been sent to take the waters and to bathe in the 
Solway. There he sits, pinched and worn, a shadow of his 
old buoyant, cheerful self. He knows he is a dying man. He 
writes to his brother to take a fond farewell of his Mother, 
and to Mrs. Dunlop, " Your friendship with which for many 
years you honoured me was a friendship dear to my so:ul. 
The remembrance adds one pulse more to my poor palpitating 
heart. Farewell!" 

Mrs. WaIter Ri ddell , his former friend, happened to be 
staying near the place and asked the poet to dine with her, 
and she tells hO'W his first salutation was: "Well, madam, 
have you any commands for the other world 1" and then how 
he spoke of his death with firmness as well as with feeling as 
an event likely to happen soon and which gave him concern, 
chiefly for leaving his four children so young and unprotected 
and his wife hourly expecting a fifth. 

Yes, Burns knew he was a dying man and as he sat alone 
at the Brow Well, many must have been the thoughts that ran 
through his fertile brain. 

He would remember his childhood days in the Cottage at 
Alloway, the wi~d sighing through the thatch of a night, his 
Father mending a pair of boots, his Mother busy in the repair 
of household garments and the sound of Hawkie, the cow, 
boasting thro~gh the partition. 
Then how: 

" The cheerfu' supper done, wi' serious face 
They round the ingle form a circle wide; 

The sire turns o'er, wi' patriarchal grace, 
The big ha' bible, ance his father's pride: 

His bonnet rev'rently is laid aside, 
His lyart haffets wearing thin and bare: 

Those strains that once did sweet in Zion glide-
He wales a portion with judicious care, 

And' Let us worship God' he says with solemn air." 

Hi!! father to whom he owed so much-how his thoughts 
must have travelled back to him, that strict, just, honest 
Godfearing man with the ambition to rise and carry his 
family with him, like Moses, out of Slavery, but who some
how was dogged by ill fortune and killed by hard labour and 
worry. Like Job of old he suffered every ill and seemed to 
cry with him: " Though he slay me yet will I trust in Him." 

Page 756



16 ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 

Was it ot his father he wrote when he penned •• Man wall 
made to mourn " 

" When chill November's surly blast 
Made fields and forests bare, 

One evening as I wandered forth 
Along the banks of Ayr, 

I spied a man whose aged step 
Seem'd weary, worn with care; 

His face was furrow'd o'er with years, 
And hoary was his hair. 

But see him on the edge of life, 
With cares and sorrows worn, 

Then age and want, oh I ill matched pair I 
Show man was made to mourn." 

Then the Mount Oliphant days when the lot of the household 
was one of incessant toil against adverse circumstances, when 
he, himself no more than a hafBin boy did a full man's work, 
and learned what he could from John Murdoch, next to his 
father, the moulder of his character. 

And the farm at Lochlea; he would remember it, for 
when they went there, hopes were high that prosperity at last 
would lift them out. of slavery into freedom, and safe from 
the hands of grasping overlords and Jlpstart factors. But 
that venture too, ended in disaster and in a court case which 
threatened Wm. Burns with prison as a common debtor and 
which took such a toll of his health that it brought him to 
the brink of the grave. 

Yes, it was the brutal last days of Lochlea when Wm. 
Burns was laid aside with his final illness, when Gilbert bore 
the brunt of the farmwork and Robert did the work of two 
men, it was the brutal toil of these days that brought the 
stoop to Burns's shoulders that remained with him to the end 
of his life. 

Then he would remember Mossgiel where he and Gilbert 
set up as farmers in their own right. It must have seemed 
to him as he sat there as if a curse had !been put on whatever 
land he ploughed, for again, bad seed and adverse weather 
left the brothers with an almost empty granary and with 
completely exhausted finances. 

Through it all went on the struggle to be a poet, and the 
thrill about this time was the Kilmarnock edition of his poems 
which led to his visits to Edinburgh. 

I wonder what were his thoughts on his Edinburgh visits, 
the first one when he W8.8 lionised and Battered, received as a 
favourite in fashionable circles, when it must have seemed 

Page 757



ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 17 

that at last he had attained, had surmounted the obstacles 
of his birth, won the victory against fearful odds, had 
struggled on 'gainst wind and tide and had reached the haven 
which is called success. I wonder if he imagined that he had 
left the plough for ever, that up to now he had been a plough
man struggling to be a poet, and 'TWW the struggle was over 
and the victory won. If so, his second visit must have dis
illusioned him, for then he was coldly received. He went to 
Edinburgh, no doubt thinking his genius wOJIld be enough 
to keep him in high society, only to find that human friend
ship is a fickle jade and that not even genius can break down 
the long standing barriers of caste. It would seem therefore 
that he came away from that second visit not without sourness 
of spirit and not without bitterness of feeling. Perhaps it 
was after this visit that he wrote: 

" Is there, for honest poverty, 
That hangs his head and a' that 1 

The coward-slave, we pass him by, 
We dare be poor for a' that I 

For a' that, and a' that; 
Our toils obscure, and a' that; 

The rank is ibut the guinea stamp; 
The man's the gowd for a' that. 

What tho' on hamely fare we dine, 
Wear hodden-gray, and a' that; 

Gie fools their silks, and knaves their wine, 
A man's a man for a' that, 

For a' that and a' that, 
Their tinsel show 'and a' that; 

The honest man, tho' e'er sae poor, 
Is King 0' men for a' that. 

Ye see yon birkie, ca'd a lord, 
Wha struts, and stares, and a' that; 

Tho' hundreds worship at his word, 
He's but a coof for a' that, 

For a' that and a' that, 
His riband, star, and a' that, 

The man of independent mind, 
He looks and laughs at a' that." 

These are the sweeping general statements of an embittered 
soul, forgetflll of the fact that among the birkies 
ca'ad Lords there WOJIld be honest men while among those 

B 

Page 758



18 ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 

who dine on hamely fare and wear hodden-gray and a' that, 
there would be some fools and knaves. 

So back h~ went to Ellisland-I wonder what his true 
feelings were! Up to then he had been a ploughman 
struggling to be a poet. Did he go back to the old life feeling 
now that lMl was a poet tied to the plough 1 Were thought! 
like these in the mind of Burns as he looked out from the 
Brow Well. And then, Dumfries and the Excise--but all his 
thoughts regarding D:umfries were for Jean and his bairns. 
What anguish was in his mind is revealed by the letter he 
lent ·to Robert Graham, a Commissioner of Excise, when 
through a cruel informer an enquiry into his political views 
threatened his diamissal: "Sir, you are a husband and a 
father. You khow what you wo:uld feel to see a much loved 
wife of your bosom and your helpless, prattling little onell 
turned adrift into the world, degraded and disgraced from a 
situation in which they had been respectable and respected 
and left almost without the necessary support of a miserable 
existence. " 

Aa to his life in general we can guess his sentiments. He 
was a big enough man to acknowledge his faults. "I have 
been taking a peep through ' the dark postern of time long 
elapsed " and, you will easily guess, t'was a rueful prospect. 
What a tissue of thoughtlessness, weakness, and folly! My 
life reminded me of a ruined temple; what strength, what 
proportions in some parts I What unsightly gaps, what 
prostrate r:uins in others." 

Such were the thoughts in the mind of the Poet, and it 
must have been a sad relief when on the 18th July 1796 he 
returned in a spring cart to his Home in Dumfries, a sad 
return indeed, his wife laid aside in childbirth, and Jassie 
Lewars, the sister of a. brother Exciseman, to manage the 
affairs of the household and to nurse the dying poet. Grateful 
for her angelic ministrations, almost with his dying breath 
he said " Thank you " in one of the bravest and tenderest 
of love poems: 

" 0, wert thou in the cauld blast, 
On yonder lea, ~n yonder lea, 

My plaidie to the angry airt, 
I'd shelter thee, I'd shelter thee. 

Or did misfortune's bitter storms 
Around thee blaw, around thee blaw, 

Thy bield should be my bosom, 
To share it a', to share it a'. 

Page 759



I 

ANNIVERSARY ADDRESS 

Or were I in the wildest waste, 
Sae black and bare, sae black and bare, 

The desert were a paradise, 
If thou wert there, if thou wert there. 

Or were I monarch 0' the globe, 
Wi' thee to reign, wi' thee to reign, 

The brightest jewel in my crown 
Wad be my queen, wad be my queen." 

19 

And when the doctor who was attending him brought a 
bill telling of a Menagerie which was to visit Dumfries the 
poet took it and wrote on the back 

" Talk not to me of savages 
From Afric's burning sun, 

No savage e'er can rend the heart 
As Jessy, thou hast done." 

That bill, I understand, is still in the possession of the 
Lewars family. 

And so, on the 21st July 1796, all was over, and the 
ancient Churchyard of St. Michael's which had taken into her 
a.mple bosom generation upon generation of the people of 
Dumfries, rich and poor, high and low, now received the 
remains of Scotland's most illustrious son. 

On this the Anniversary of his birth and the 150th 
year of his death I give you the toast of the Immortal 
Memory; 

" All honour to his name, and peace to his bones." 

Page 760



I 

ANNIVERSARY SERMON 
broadcast to the Empire from 

AYR OLD CHURCH 
on 

Sunday, 26th January 1947 
by the 

REV. ROBERT ROBERTSON, B.A., B.D. 

" AULD LANG SYNE " 

" Many waters cannot quench love, neither can the floods drown it."-8ong 01 80wm()/Tl<, VIII, 7. 

When I was a minister in London I alw~ys got a tremendous inspiration on the evening of St. Goorge's Sunday, when my Church was packed with the Hampstead Div.ision of Boy Scouts. Gathered ~8 we were at the heart of this great Empire, I could never conduct those services without deep emotion. For I knew that many- of those fellows would be going out. to their life-work in the ends of the earth, and I often wondered whether in some far-off outpost of Empire the memory of those services would come back to them. If any of them are listening now, I send them greetings for the sake of those old days in St. George's, B~ondesbury. 
Now I am broadcasting from the Auld Kirk of Ayr. Scotland too has sent many of her I!OllS overseas, and it may be that some of our laddies in the Forces or elsewhere are listening tonight. They may be assured that we are remembering them in this mother kirk of the " auld toon " on the shores of the Firth of Clyde.· 
We have had a week of broadcasting from Ayr, but long before the B.B.C. was thought of Ayr h~d sent out a broad

cast that girdled the whole world. 
For Robert Burns lived here, and worshipped in this very Church as a boy, and it was he who gave the world its supreme anthem of friendship: "Auld Lang Syne." Yesterday was the anniversary of his birth, and last night the strains of this song would echo to the ends of the earth. It has entwined itself round the heart of every Scot, but its 

Page 761



ANNIVERSARY SERMON 21 

appeal d~ not etop there. At the beginning of American 
br~a?cas~mg to Europe one o~ the first things heard by 
BrItIsh hsteners was the vocal wmd-up of a dinner. And the 
tune was "Auld Lang Syne. " Yea, whereve'r the English 
tongue is spoken, men and women will sing with feeling: 

" Should auld acquaintance be forgot, 
And never brought to mind F' 

What is the secret of its appeal1 It is twofold. It gives 
a voice to two of ~he most enduring sentiments of the human 
heart: love of home and childhood, and love of kindred and 
friends. 

(1) Love of home and children: This nO@talgia for the 
days that have gone persists wherever we go, and however 
high we may climb. The grown man who years ago descended 
on the great city, and made a name and fortune there, still 
yearns for the scenes of his boyhood and the home of his early 
days. The exile across the seas, amid Arctic snows or tropic 
sunshine, still hears the calls of the hills of home: 

" From the lone sheiling of the misty island 
Mountains divide us, and the waste of seas
Yet still the blood is strong, the heart is Highland, 
And we in dreams behold the Hebrides." 

Can some of you tonight hear the tinkle of the burn among 
the heather you fished through long summer days in your 
boyhood f You went home with light heart through the gather
ing dusk, and you can still see the light in your mother's 
eyes and feel the touch of her hand as she welcomed you 
home. Life has given you much since then, but it h.as never 
given you anything quite so wonderful as the care-free joy 
of those boyhood days. That is why you always feel a tugging 
at the heart when you sing: 

" We two, has run aboot the braea, 
And pu'd the gowo,ns fine; 
But we've wandered mony a weary fit 
Sin' auld lang syne." 

(2) Then there is the love of kindred and friends: We 
remember "auld acquaintance"; we pledge them in "a. 
cup 0' kindness." Perhaps we didn't think much about our 
father and mother and friends when we were little; we just 
took them for granted. But, the older we grow, the more we 
realize just how much they meant to us. We know now that 
life is a poor thing without friendship. We may have made 

Page 762



ANNIVERSARY SERMON 

money, or got to the top of our profession, or excelled in 
sport. We may have sought the lilies and roses of life, and 
drunk the cup of pleasure to the dregs. But these are not 
the things which have ma.de life happy. We owe everything 
which has made life worth while to loving hearts and kind 
friends. As Burns himself puts it: 

" Nae treasures nor pleasures 
Could make us happy lang; 
The heart ay's the part aye 
That maks us richt or wrang." 

Strange, isn't it, that we so often find our happiness in 
looking backward 1 We think of the " good old days." W" 
aing of "!"uld lang syne." But why should it be sot By 
God's grace all this loveliness of life may be ours forever. 

(1) We cannot bring back the past. We cannot reneW' 
those experiences of childhood. The old folks pass. The old 
home gets broken up. We ourselves have changed. But the 
spirit of that old home, the thing that made it BUch a happy 
place, the faith that created it, and the love that lightened 
it, these we can carry throughout our lives. If we seek what 
was best in those old days, we find it is with us still. Neither 
life nor death can take it from us. It goes with UII through 
the years, and it will find its perfect fulfilment in the land 
where the broken fellowships of our earthly homes are knit 
together again, " in the houl!Ie not ma.de with hands." 

(2) God means that our friendships, too, should yield 
us something of abiding worth. The old friends drop out of 
our life, and the seas may separate us from those we have 
loved. But, about all true love there is something that cannot 
be limited by time .or space. "Love is strong as death .... 
Many waters cannot quench love, neither can the floods drown 
it." For God is Love. Through our human fri6Ildshipa we 
oome to the Friend who never fails. And in Him is the Love 
which unites Us all in one great human family, and brings 
us !"t the last, to the Home from which we go no more out. 

'Here, in Ayr, we cannot see you, but in this dear auld 
kirk tonight, we feel you are one with us in Him. May 
the God of our Fathers, their God and ours, cover you with 
His wings, guide you in all your ways, and, at journey's end, 
bring you and your loved ones to the land of heart's desire 
and the life for which we long. 

Page 763



THE COPYRIGHT OF BURNS'S POEMS, 1786-1787 

I 

Of the many documents illustrative of the life and writings 
of Burns that have survived the century and a half since his 
death, a group which concerns the copyright of the first two 
editions of his Poems chiefly in the Scottish dialect (Kil
marnock, 11786, and Edinburgh, 1787) is of unique interest. 
Two of the documents in this group have been printed by 
biographers and editors of the poet; the others have never 
been made public and indeed are practically unknown to 
reader or student. 

The earliest of this group is the Assignation of his pro
perty granted by the farmer-poet of Mossgiel to his younger 
brother Gilbert, in order to provide him with funds for the 
maintenance of the poet's natural daughter by Elizabeth 
Paton of Largieside. This document is wholly in the hand
writing of the poet, though almost certainly it was drafted by 
"honest Willie Chalmers," who two days after it was 
written made public announcement of it at the Mercat Cross 
of Ayr; and it is still preserved in the Sheriff Court House 
there. Though well-known through its publication in 
facsimile on two separate occasions, it may be printed here 
along with the others of the group. 

ASSIGNATION, 22 IULY 1786 

KNOW all men by these presents that I, Robert Burns in Moasgiel : 
Wher&BI I intend to lea.ve Scotland and go abroad/ and hiving 
a.cknowledged myself the father of a child named ElIzabeth, begot 
upon Elizabeth Paton in Largieside: And whereas Gilbert Burns 
in Mongiel, my brother, has become bound, and hereby binds and 
oblidges himllelf to aliment, clothe and educate my said natuml 
child in a suitable manner as if she was hiB own, in case her mother 
chuse to part with her, a.nd that until she arrive at the age of 
fifteen years. TIIJlREFORJII, and to enable the said Gilbert Burns to 
make good his engagement, wit ye me to have assigned, dis
poned, conveyed and made over to, and in favors of, the laid 
Gilbert. Burns, his Heirs, Executors and Assignees, who are always 
to be bound in like manner with himself, and all Sundry Goods ... 
and an other moveable effects of whatever kind that I shall lea:ve 
behind on my departure from this kingdom .... And particularly, 
without' prejudice of the foresa.id generality, the profit. that may 
arise from the publication of my Poems presently in the press. And 
also, I hereby dispone and convey to him in trust for behoof of my 
laid natural daughter the Copy right of said Poems in so far aa 
I can dispose of the, aoame by law, after she arrives at the above 
age of fifteen years complete. . . . 

Page 764



BURNS COPYRIGHT 

11 

But the poet did not become an emigre; jointly with 
Gilbert he continued to farm Mossgiel. Four months after the 
date of the Assignation he journeyed to Edinburgh, to arrange 
for a second edition of the Poem" and on 17 April 1787 he 
came to an agreement with William Creech, publisher there, 
for that edition. The terms of their agreement are con
tained in a Memorandum written by Henry M'Kenzie, author 
of The man olleeling. 

17TH APRIL 1787.-MEMORANDUM 01' AGREEMENT BETWIXT 1lR. CREECH 
AND MR. BURNS, RII!SPECTING THE PROPERTY 01' MR. BURNS'S POEMS 

By advice of friends, Mr. Burns, having resolved to dispose of 
the property of his Poem, and having consulted with Mr. Henry 
M'Kenzie upon the subject, Mr. Creech met with Mr. Burns at Mr. 
M'Kenzie's house upon Tuesday, the 17th April 1787, in the evening, 
and they three having retired and conversed upon the subject, Mr. 
Burns and Mr. Creech referred the sum to be named by Mr. 
M'Kenzie, as being well acquainted with matters of this kind, when 
Mr. M'Kenzie said he thought Mr. Burns should have a. hundred 

,guineas for the property of his Poem,. 
Mr. Creech said that he agreed to the proposal, but as Scotland 

was now amply supplied with the very numerous edition now printed, 
he could write to Mr. Caddell of London to know if he would take 
a Bhare of the Book, but a.t any rate Mr. Burns should have the 
money named by Mr. M'Kenzie, which Mr. Burns most cordially 
agreed to and to make over the property upon these terms when
ever Mr. Creech required him. 

Upon Monday, the 23rd of April 1787, Mr. Creech informed Mr. 
Burns that he had remained In Town expecting Mr. Caddell's 
answer for three days, as to his taking a share of the property of 
the Poem.,. but that he had received no answer; yet he would, as 
formerly proposed a.nd agreed to, take the whole matter upon him
self, that Mr. Burns might be at no unc~rtainty in the matter. 

Upon this, both parties considered the transa.ction as finished. 

EDINBURGH, Oct. 23d, 1787. 
On demand I promise to pay Mr. Robert Burns, or Order, One 

Hundred Guineas, value received. 

ASSIGNATION TO WILLLUl CREECH, 23 APRIL 1787 

I, Robert Burns, late in Mossgiel, Parish of Mauchline, Ayrshire, 
presently residing in Edinburgh, hereby Convey and Make over to 
William Creech, -Bookseller in Edinburgh, his heirs or assigneys the 
sole property legally inherent in me of Poems already published by 
me in One Volume Octavo, and of which I am the Author, with 
any additions, alterations, or corrections which I may make to the 
said Volume in any future Edition if such shall be, upon the 
consideration of the said William Creech paying to me, my heirs or 
a.ssigneys, the sum of One hundred Guineas, for which sum he hail 
presently given me security a.nd sa.tiefaction. 

ROBBRT BURN. 

Page 765



BURNS COPYRIGHT 25 

With the "Assignation" of 1786 and the" Memoran
dum" of 1787 before him, a recent American biographer 
concludes that, " when thus disposing of his copyright Burns 
overlooked the fact that he had already sold to his brother 
Gilbert all rights to approximately two-thirds of the poems, 
and that in so far as the poems which had been published at 
Kilmarnock were concerned he had no title to convey to 
Creech. 'I hereby dispone and convey to him in trust for 
behoof of my said natural daughter the Copyright of said 
Poems,' Burns had written in the Trust Deed executed on 
July 22 1786, and properly recorded. By April 117 1787, he 
had forgotten this entirely, and sold the poems all over again 
to Creech." (Franklyn Bliss Snyder, Lile 01 Bwrm, page 
225.) 

This was not so : the poet had not forgotten the Trust Deed, 
which had been superseded by a later legal document and 80 

had never operated. 

III 

Before setting out from Mauchline for Edinburgh on 27 
November 1786, Burns had instructed his legal friend Gavin 
Hamilton to arrange a settlement with Elizabeth Paton. This 
Hamilton did; and with his own hand he drew up a " dis
charge" which she initialed-" E P her mark "--on 1st 
December 1786, in the presence of two witnesses, James Smith, 
merchant in Mauchline, and Hamilton himself. That docu
ment has been missing for some time; but an extract from it, 
made many years ago by permission of the owner, is available, 
and may be quoted here to complete the brief ~tory of this 
episode in the life of the Poet. ' 

The " discharge " records the birth on 22nd May 1785 of 
a female child, which Burns acknowledged as his, "satisfied 
the Church and got the Child Christened ... , and since that 
period hath given me a pretty liberalI allowance . . . to this 
date, And now, by agreement betwixt Him and I, hath maae 
payment to me of a Certain sum of money, which I have 
accepted and hereby accept of in full and compleat payment 
and satisfaction for all Board, wages, cloathing and Educa
tion which I can claim for the said Elizabeth our child untill 
She arrives at the age of Ten years compleat . . . Therefore 
I exoner, acquit and Discharge the said Robert Burns of all 
claims I have against Him .... " 

J. C. E. 

Page 766



BURNS AND FREEMASONRY IN DUMFRIESSHIRE 

In previolls dissertations* I dealt in turn with the 
Masonic fea.tures of Burns's life in Ayrshire and in Edin
burgh. To complete the trilogy indicated therein there 
remains but the concluding stage, his eight years' residence 
in Dumfriesshire. There, again a farmer and among Masonic 
confreres, he was back in his natural rural element. But his 
personal activities in Freemasonry do not bulk so promin
ently in this stage. For this there were several cogent 
reasons, each contributing its quot.a to the result. 

In the first place there was lack of opportunity. Masonic 
lodges in the eighteenth century had not the statutory dates 
and fixed places of meeting that are the -rule today. Nor had 
Dumfries brethern the Masonic enthusiasm which Burns and 
his colleagues had helped to infuse into the Ayrshire circles 
around the Kilwinning centre. For example, the Lodge in 
which Burns ~ame an office-bearer in Dumfries had no 
meeting between the St. John Festival in 1793 Ilnd that of 
1794; and the senior local lodge had to pass a regulation 
in 1788 that " any member within the district of Masonry 
who does not dine annually with the Lodge upon St. John's 
Day shall pay one shilling for his dinner or be expelled." 
Again, there was in the e81rlier days of his residence in the 
county lack of time. During this period he was a married 
man with the responsibilities and anxieties of a household 
and the nearest lodge Was six miles away. He was a very 
busy man. Not only had he virtually to rebuild his steading 
in addition to the routine work of his fwrm, but from the 
autumn of 1789 he was an officer of Excise with jurisdiction 
over ten rural parishes, travelling in this latter capacity 
over two hundred miles each week, mostly on horseback. 
Tbroughout a year's loyal Volunteer service he never once 
missed the weekly training parade. In addition to those 
strenuous physical exertions his literary output was pheno
menal. Finally, there was the health factor; he was a very 
sick man. His early hardships had by this tilne seriously 
undermined his constitution and the effects were beginning 
to make themselves apparent. But it is the Masonic element 
in his career which concerns us at present and despite these 
obvio~ handicaps the Dumfries epoch has much that is 

* AYl'llhire, Bum. Chronicle, 19211; Edinburgh, Burns Chroniale, 1947. 

Page 767



BURNS AND FREEMASONRY 

directly and indirectly of more than ordinJi,ry Masonic inter-
est. But of that anon. . 

Burns's first introduction to Dumf1riesshire was during 
his Border tour in 1787 when he spent a week in the county 
town and received the Freedom of that Royal burgh. A 
similar honour was later conferred on him by two other 
Royal burghs in the county, Lochmaben and S!tnquhar. 
These with Annan and the adjacent burgh of Kirkcudbright 
formed the constituency of Dumfries Burghs which conjointly 
returned a. member to Parliament. Burns wrote the political 
sqib, "The Five Carlins" in connection with the election 
contest of 1789 which has an indirect Masonic association. 
In this skit he personified as the carlins the five burghs and 
parodied their differences over the candidates seeking their 
suffrage. One of these candidates was Capt. (later Major) 
Wm. Miller, the second EiIOn of Patrick Miller of Dalswinton, 
the Poot's landlord, and he was portrayed in the lampoon 
lIB a " Sojer youth." He won the 1790 election and became 
M.P. for the Burghs. He later joined St. Luke's Lodge in 
Edinburgh and served as its Master from 1807 to 1811. He 
was a member of Grand Committee of the Grand Lodge of 
Scotland from 1809 till 1814 and in 1813 was appointed 
Provincial Grand Master of Dumhiesshire. 

During this first visit to Dumfries above recorded Burns 
paid a. visit to Patrick Miller by arrangement, he h~ving pur
chased the estate of Dalswinton on the River Nith two years 
previously. They had foregathered in Edinburgh and Miller, 
awa.re of his predilection for an agricultural life, h!td offered 
a. lease of a fBlrm on his estate on advantageous terms. For 
throughout his brief heyday in the Metropolis Burns 
cherished no illuaions as to what his future course was likely 
to be, and such tentative plans as he had in his mind were, 
in the terms of his first Masonic minute, "laid in accord
ingly." As early as March, 1787, he wrote to Mrs. Dunlop, 
" I intend to return to myoid acquaintance, the plough, lind 
if I can meet with a lease by which I can live, to commence 
farming" Three months later, however, he Wlrote to J ames 
Smith of Linlithgow, "I have yet fixed on nothing with 
respect to the serious business of life. I am just as usual 
a rhymmg, mason-making, raking, aimless, idle fellow. How
ever, somewhere I shall have a farm soon." He was 
doubtless referring here to his active work in St. ·Jam66 
Lodge at this time but W81S doing himself flagrant injustice. 
This was very typical of him. 

Although somewhat dubious as to the outlook Burns took 
the farm of Ellisland six mil66 north of Dumfries as from 
Whitsunday, 1788. It was described as a " poet'~ choice " 

Page 768



28 BURNS AND FREEMASONRY 

so far as scenery was concerned, but a. 'r.amshackle place requiring as above indicated much masonic work of a. more laborious type than he WBB accustomed to in order to render it habitable fOlr his dependants. As another string to his bow he obtained the promise of an appointment in the Excise. Carlyle thought the combination a reasonable one, but how fa.r it was a feasible proposition for one in his condition and circumstances was soon to be demonstrated. In accordance with hi~ plans, however, he underwent the requisite six weeks course of tr!'Lining prior to moving to Ellisland. His instructor was the Tarbolton excise officer, James Findlay, who, incidentally, was to succeed him as 
Depute Master of St. J ames Lodge later in ~he yewr. 

The prospect of the toil entailed by the Ellisland renovations served to damp the ardour of Burns. But once again he relied for consolation on his Masonic brethren for he wrote tQ Hugh Parker, Kilmarnock, soon after his entry j 

" Wi' a' this c .. are and a' this g,rief, 
And SIna' sma' prospect of relief, 
And nought but peat reek i' my head. 
How can I write what ye can read 7 
Tarbolton, twenty-fourth 0' June 
Ye'll find me in a better tune." 

This anticipated date was the annual summer MJUiOnic festival of St. John the Baptist and the Installation of Findlay as the new Depute Master of the Lodge to ease the burden on his shoulders. Despite this effected change, however, and the assertion made by Dr. Robert Chambers in his "Land of Burns," the St. J ames minute-book shows that Burns presided at meetings held. at Mauchlineo--for the Lodge ~ was empowered to meet in either plac&-on 21st. October and 11th November, although these minutes are not !'Lmong those which bear his own signature. He was then living in a. hut near his new homestead, desoribed* by him as " an old smokey spence far from every object I love or by whom I am beloved," labouring each day on his farm and travelling each week-end forty-five miles to his old home at Mossgiel. For here his wife was undergoing instruction in f&irm management from his mother and sisters preparatory to 
joining him in December. 

Although to Burns in his cheerless plight Dumfries was then t "This strange land, this uncouth climb, A land unknown to prose or rhyme," it had at this period the dis-
* Letter to Mrs. l>unlop, 14t.h June, 1788. 
t"Epistle to HUjrh Parker. 

Page 769



BURNS A.ND FREEMA.SONRY 29 

tinction of a fashionable resort; "a minor capital ruling 
in the South with nearly as much sway as Edinburgh !l'ules 
the East. It is a place of snugness, of opulence, of taste and 
of p~etension, as the residence and resort of genteel families, 
who form a comparatively large proportion of its population 
and g~ve a very perceptible tone to its manners." (Wilson's 
ImperII11 Gazetteer of Scotland; 1865) It was also rich in old 
Masonic lodges. Although its population was but 8000 it 
could boast of no less than five. The senior of these was 
" Ye olde L<Jdge of Dumfries" claiming precedence from 
1575. It still treasures records from 1687 and four copies 
of the" Antient Charges" of much earlier date. Its charter 
from the Grand Lodge of Scotland itself constituted in 1736, 
dates f'rom 1760 when it elected to throw in its lot with the 
new central governing body. It is now No. 53 on the roll as 
the " Dumfries Kilwinning "Lodge. This was not the lodge 
to which Burns gravitated although it has interesting associa
tions with him. Here his eldest son, Robert, was initiated in 
August 1833 after his retiral f'rom the Stamp Office in 
London with 29 years service and the minute records that 
"as a mark of respect to his illustrious descent it was 
agr!l6d to elect him without payment of the usual fees." He 
later acted for some years as its Secretary and became Master 
in 1845. He died in 1857. It is also of passing interest to 
note that Dr. Blacklock, Burns's Masonic friend, was also 
initiated here prior to his translation to Edinburgh where 
he affiliated to Lodge St. Luke. 

Whether because of its name or its e!J,rly connection with 
the Customs and Excise service the Lodge patronised by 
Burns was Dumfries St. Andrew's, No. 179. It dated from 
1774 and was colloquially known later' as " Burns's Lodge." 
Here he affiliated on 27th December, 1788, the palpable inac 
curacies in the minute of the occasion being doubtless the 
sequel to the celebration recorded. "St. John's Day, 27th 
December, 1788. The Brethern having Selebrated the Anni. 
versary of St. John in the usual manner and Brother Robt, 
BurThS in Aelliesland of St. Davids Strabolton Lodge No.178 
being present the Lodge unanimously assumed him a member 
of the Lodge being a Master Masson he subscribed the regula· 
tions as a member. Thereafter the Lodge was shut. Tim 
Mackenzie. "Burns remained an active member of this 
Lodge until his death. The most notable of the -relics of his 
connection with it is the apron presented to him by the 
Laird of Hoddam, Master of the Lodge and Provincial 
Grand Master of Dumfriesshire. It is described as of 
"Chamois leather, very fine, with figures of gold some of them 
relieved with green, others with a dark red colour. On the 

Page 770



30 BURNS AND FREEMASONRY 

underside of the semicircular part which is turned down at 
the top is written in a bold fair hand, ' Charles Sharpe of 
Hotham to Rabbie Burns. Dumfries, Dec. 12, 1791.'" In 
those days there was no restriction on the embroider,. or 
embellishment of the Masonic apron such as is in force today 
and artists were at 1.iberty to adorn them with any design. 
which might app~r to them appropriate. Hence the gold and 
green figures depicted on this presentation one. The part 
turned down at the top, the flap, has the semicircular shape 
peculiar to Scotland, those of England and Ireland and most 
others being triangular. 

In August, 1791, the Lodge took part in an important 
Masonic function, the laying of the foundation stone 01 the 
new bridge over the River Nith. This bridge was to replace 
the old thirteenth century structure close by, which was 
justly reputed to be the finest specimen of this type of 
masonry in Scotland and second only to London Bridge in 
the British Isles. Although there is no known record extant 
of Burns's presence at this ceremony it is highly improbable 
that he would miss such .an outstanding Masonic event in 
his immediate vicinity in which his own lodge bore a share. 
The bridge was opened for traffic in 1794. The foundation 
stone had an elaborate Latin inscription which is translated 
thus: " By the will of Almighty God, in the reign of the most 
august prince, George Ill, and in a most flourishing period 
of the British Empire, the foundation stone of the bridge 
over Nith, to be built for public convenience and at the 
joint expense of the county and town of Dumfries and 
Stewarty of Kirkcudbright, was laid amid the acclamations 
of a numerous concourse of rpectators by Alexander 
Fergusson of Craigdarroch Esq., Grand Master of the Mason 
Lodges c.onstituted in the southern district of Sootljl.n<!, 
acoompanied by a respectable body of the Order, on the 19th. 
August of the Christian era 1791, from the institution of 
Masonry 5791. May the undertaking be fortunate and merit 
the approbation of the posterity." 

The inevitable crisis at Ellisland occul'red in 1791 and 
in November of that year Burns gave up his lease, aold oft 
his stock and effects at what he considered a good figure, 
and prepared to devote his whole time and remaining energy 
to his new profession of gauger: 

" Searching auld wives' barrels. 
Ocoon, the day \ 

That c.larty barm should stain my laurels; 
But what'll ye say' 

These movin' things ca'd wives an' weans 
WJl,d move the very hearts 0' &tanes \" 

Page 771



BURNS AND, FREEMASONRY 31 

He had secured a transfer to Dumfries town in December 
with increased emoluments and he moved to a small house 
in the Wee Vennel there, now Bank Street. From this time 
he was freer to attend the meetings of Lodge St. Andrew's 
and of sixteen meetings held f·rom this time until his death 
he is reoorded as attending eleven. The list of these is: 

1791. 27 December 1792. 30 November 
1792. 6 February 1793. 30 November 

" 14 May 1794. 29 November 
" 31 May 1796. 28 January 
" 5 JUJle " 14 April 
" 22 November 

/ In May, 1793, he removed to a more oommodious dwell-
ing in "Millbrae Hole" or Mill Vennel, now renamed 
Burns Street. He was appointed a Steward of Lodge St. 
And·rew's in February, 1792, and on 30th. November was 
elected Senior Warden. In this office he was present on 
St. Andrew's day the following year and again in 1794, no 
meetings as already noted having taken place in the inter
val. At the meeting on 5th. June, 1792, the minute records, 
"Ed. Andrews Qf the Dragoons and John Syme, Esq., of 
Barncailzie, were admitted brethren without fees." Syme 
was notQrious fQr his hospitable board and Burns, one of 
his intimates, was a. frequent visitor at his home. It was 
here that he inSlCribed on a tumbler the premonitory lines: 

" There's Death in the cup, so beware! 
Nay moreo-there is danger in touching; 
But who can aVQid the fell snare, 
The man and his wine's 80 betwitching." 

Unfortunately Syme's unenviable reputation as a left wing 
revolutionary was apt to compromise, and certainly did 
compromise Burns unduly, so frequently is a man judged 
by the company he keeps. 

On 28th. January, 1796, "Mr. James George80n, mer
chant in Liverpool appeared and who being recommended 
by Bro. Burns was admitted apprentice." It was ~lso agreed 
at this meeting, as was frequently the practice, that the 
admiBSion fees of the new apprentice be applied towards the 
expenses of the assembl.age! The last meeting at which Burns 
was present was Qn 14th. April. He had given his promise 
to atten'd on that occasiQn to see his friend Capt. Adam 
Gordon initiated and out of loyalty to him he fulfilled his 
promise although he was then in the throes of his fatal 
malady. He died on 21st. July. 

Page 772



32 BURNS AND FREEMASONRY 

Like Burns's Mother Lodge, first registered as "Tor
bolton's St. David's" the Dumfries St. Andrew's Lodge 
met with adverse circumstances and became dormant. But 
while th~ infusion of fresh blood had a stimulating effect 
at Tarbolton ensuring revival under the more up-to-date 
title of "St. David, Tarbolton and Mauchline," no such 
luck attended Dumfries St. Andrew's. Its meetings, few and 
irregular at best, ceased altogether in 1804 and in 1816 it 
was finally deleted from the roll of Grand IJodge. In 1879 
GrJl,nd Secretary Murray Lyon noticed that some of its effects 
were advertised for sale by publjc roup and he promptly 
secured them. When he reported his purchase to Sir Michael 
Shaw Stewart, then Grand Master Mason, Sir Michael paid 
the purchase price and presented the relial to Grand Lodge 
where they now repose. They include the minute-book with 
the record of Burns's affiliation and attendances and hi.s 
signature to the byelaws; the lodge gavel and one of its 
aprollS. 

In the Dumfries years the traducers of Burns werJ at 
their zenith. They were few but venomous for political, 
ecclesiastical and other re.aoons, as a revenge for his many 
biting satires, and Freemasonry bore the brunt of their 
heaviest 8irtillery. Its convivial gatherings-and in those 
days many were undoubtedly bacchanalian-were 8idjudged 
responsible for his rapid physical deterioration. Nor were 
some of his brethren such as Syme and Heron, " companions 
of his social joys," altogether guiltless in this .respect. Early' 
narrow-minded biographers accepted and unfortunately pro
mulgated these propagandist calumnies and later ones re
echoed them without due investigation. "But it is the 
doctor and not the moralist who must answer this."* Modern 
research in scientific fields affords us more enlightened per
ception, and here I quote the expert opinion of the late 
Sir James Chrichton-Browne, an eminent physician and 
Vice-President of the Royal Institution: t" Burns's death 
w.as not an accidental event but the natural consequence of 
a long series of events that had preceded it, though these 
events were not of the nature that Carlyle surmised. Burns 
died of endocarditis, 11- disease of the substance and lining 
membrane of the heart, with the origination of which alcohol 
has nothing to do. It was rheumatism that was the undoing 
of Burns. It attacked him in early life, damaged his heart, 
embittered his life and cut short his career." Sir J ames, 
indeed, blames a faulty medical diagnosis due to imperfect 

* Profes.or Hana Hecht of Gottingen in his" Robert Burns," 1936. 
t "Burns from a. New Point of View," by Sir Ja.mes Crichton·Bro'l}'ne. 

Page 773



BURNS AND FREEMASONRY 33 

knowledge and there is no question as to the truth of his 
conclusions. On his deJl,thbed Burns said to his wife, " Don't 
be afraid, Jean; I'll be more respected a hundred years after 
I'm dead than I am now." The Dumfries Mausoleum and 
Trusts, the many Ayrshire memorials, and the multitude of 
Burns Associations througout the universe provide abundant 
fulfilment of that dying prophecy. 

R. T. HAY,LIDAY 

J. C. DICK, EDITOR OF BURNS'S SONGS 

It is a great pity that so little is known about Jame!! 
Chalmers Dick, whose photograph, by the kind permission of 
his friend, Mr. A. W. Johnston of Newcastle, is reproduced in 
this number of the Burns Chronicle. A keen student of music, 
a founder of the Chamber Music Society in Newcastle (1880), 
and the friend of Joseph Joachim, the famous violinist, Dick 
published in 11903 The songs of Robert Burns. This pioneer 
and authoritative work, with its scholarly notes on each song, 
was a labour of love based upon long and careful study of 
Scottish music in relation to the bard's verses for the airs he 
selected. His conclusion was: "I designate Burns a tone
poet because he wrote for music, and his songs with their airs 
are a study in tone-poetry." 

Mr. Dick preferred the unexpurgated text of Burns's songs 
as drawn from his manuscripts, from authorised editions, and 
from Johnson's Scots Musical Musewm, which he regarded as 
" the standard collection of Scottish' Song," not to be super
seded as a work of reference. Similarly the airs are those 
named in Burns's writings, and the settings from an 
"examination of several hundred song books of the seven
teenth and eighteenth centuries." 

Mr. Dick died at Newcastle on 15th October 11907, but 
though he was almost certainly a Scot we have been unable 
as yet to trace either the place or the date of his birth. 

F. R. and J. H. B. 

c 

Page 774



MRS. BEGG'S REMINISCENCES OF BURNS 
THE FIDDLER 

Mrs. lsabella Burns Begg'S reminiscences of her dis
tinguished brother are well-known to readers of Burns, 
chiefly through their publication by Dr. Robert Chambers, 
biographer and editor of the Poet. Not 80 well-known is 
a series of Answers to Queries submitted to her by Captain 
Charles Grll-Y, R.M., poet and critic, and communicated by 
him to George Farquhar Graham, who printed it in the 
second volume (pp. 160-163) of his edition of the Songs of 
Sootl<uid (Edinburgh, 1849-50, 3 vols.). Accordingly it is 
reprinted here for more convenient reference. 

CHARLES GRAY TO GEORGE ~ARQUHAR GRAHA¥ 

Crummoc.k, Beith, Ayrshire, January, 1847. 

My Dear Sir,-Keeping in mind your advice that I should 
take notes of everything that Mrs. Begg might chOOllle to 
relate to me respecting her brother, I have made, several 
memoranda, of which one may be particua,rly interesting to 
you at the present time, as Editor of Wood's "Songs of 
Scotland." On asking Mrs. Begg if the Poet played on 
any instrument, she answered" yes, a. little on the violin." 
.. He would be no great proficient, I suppose7" "No: his 
playing was something like his singing-

" Rude and rough; 
But croonin' to a bodie's sel' 
Does weel enough." 

This intimation will at once explain to you the mastery 
which Burns acquired over the difficult a,rt of adapting 
words to our old national melodies. However little Burns' 
knowedge of music may' have been, without that little he 
never could have attained that nicety of accentuation which 
is 80 necessary when words are to be vocally expressed. I 
trust you will agree with me in looking upon this discovery, 
small at it may appear to me, ~s the secret of Burns' success 
in lyrical composition. We have under Burns' own hand that 
he could not write words for an air unless he was master of 
it in his own way. Now, as Burns wrote songs for most of 

Page 775



MRS. BEGG'S REMINIHCENCES 35 

our old Scottish airs, and retouched the greater part of 
our old, Scottish ballads, it is quite clear that he could not 
have m.a8tered all the melodies, even in his own way, without 
the help of an instrument. That instrument, we now find, was 
the violin .... We may take it for granted then that Burns' 
knowledge of \ music w.as sufficient to account for the 
exquisite tact which Moore admits he bad in adapting new 
words to our old melodies; an art which he (Moore) thought 
altogether unattainable, except by one well-skilled in the 
art of musical composition .... 

I am, &c. 
CHARLES GRAY 

Burns' first fiddle-pl.aying began in the summer of 1781, 
and winter and summer of 1781-82. 

In 1847 the Editor sent to his fr.iend, Captain Charles 
Gray, R.M., some questions regarding Burns' musical 
acquirementB. Captain Gray submitted these questions to 
Mrs. Begg, Burns' sister, with whom he was well acquainted, 
and obtained from her the answers here given. These answers 
are quite sufficient to show that Burns had some practical 
knowledge of music. Whatever might be the amount of hie 
musical acquirements from 1781 to 1796, it was enough, for 
a man of his powerful intelligence, to enable him to adapt 
words to music in a manner that few others have been able 
to d0; and ISO as to puzzle extremely the distinguished Irish 
poet, Moore, who was led to believe that Burns was totally 
ignorant of music. 

QUERIES 

1. Did Robert Burns read written or printed music, and 
could he write down music' 

2. Did he play and sing entirely by the ear, or did he 
read from airs printed or written' 

3. What sort of airs did he seem to prefer-slow and 
pathetic ones, or quick and lively ones--or did he relish 
both equally' 

4. What bec,ame of his violin that he used to play upon 1 
Where did he get it' Did anybody ever teach him music' 

5. Was it he, or Stephen Clarke, or some one else, who 
wrote down the airs that he occasionally sent to Johnson and 
to G. Thomson' 

6. 
7. Question by Captain Charles Gray, R.M.-Did Mrs. 

Begg ever see anyone dancing to the Poet's musid \ 

Page 776



36 MRS. BEGG'S REMINISCENCES 

ANSWERS 

1. Burns could read music, either written or printed. I 
have seen him write sacred music, but never any other. 

2. He played from printed airs. 
3. He liked both; but at that time pathetic airs he,d a 

decided preference. "Loch Eroch-Side" was one he often 
played; also, "My Nanny, 0," "Tweedside," "For Lack 
of Gold," "Cold Frosty Morning," "Auld Rob Morris," 
&c. Strathspeys were hie favourites in lively tunes. 

4. Mrs. Begg cannot say wh!tt became of his violin. Last 
time she saw it, it was hanging in hie bedroom in Ellisland. 
Has forgot where he got it. Got it two years before he left 
Lochlea. He never got any instructions in playing, but 
attended a singing-school (for sacred music) two months in 
Lochlea, when the te!tcher got the use of their barn, and all 
the young people in the neighbourhood attended. After 
going to Mossgiel he went three months to a singing-school 
in Mauchline, which is the sum total of his musical educa
tion. 

5. Can't say who wrote these airs. After he went to 
Dumfriesshire, knew less of his doings. 

6. 
7. No: never saw anyone dance to his music. He had 

not arrived at such perfection in his fiddle-playing. 

We have left the sixth question and its answer blank, 
because both referred merely to a visit paid by Mrs. Begg 
some years ago at Prestonpans, to the lady alluded to, p. 77 
of this volume, in the Note upon" Lochaber no more." In 
September 1848, Mrs. Begg informs Captain Gray that 
Burns practised on the violin for about twelve months or 
so. He used to play in summer when they took shelter from 
the rain; and in winter he used to rise early in the mornings 
and coop up the gathering coaJ., and play aW!ty for the 
amusement of those in bed--so that could not be borne for 
ever, and speedily came to an end." In a letter in 1790 
from Burns, under a fictitious signature, to Ch,arIes Sharpe, 
Esq., of Hoddan, Burns says, "I am a fiddler and a poet; 
and you, I am told, play an exquisite violin, and have a 
standard taste in the Belles Lettres. The other day a bI'other 
catgut gave me a charming Soo·tch air of your composition. 
If I was pleased with the tune, I was in raptures with the 
title you have given it; and taking up the idea, I have spun 
it into three stanzas enclosed." The Editor may rem~rk that 
this curious passage, in which Burns himself confirms the fact 
of his fiddle-playing, has been hitherto altogether overlooked 

Page 777



MRS. BEGG'S REMINISCENCES 37 

by his cOlllID:entators. It does not follow, from Mrs. Begg's 
recollection of Burns' violin practice Itt Lochlea in 1781-82. 
that he gave up the violin entirely in 1783, after the death 
of his father. In the fifth AIlswer, she says, " A Her he went 
to Dumfriesshire, (she) knew lees of his doings." So' that 
he might have continued to practise the violin after 1783 
without her knowledge. This letter, in 1790, to Charles 
Sharpe, Esq., of Hoddam, indicates that he WMl then still 
" a fiddler." The editor has been promised some farther 
information regarding Burns' violin-playing subsequent to 
the year 1783. J. C. E. 

ENTERTAIN MENTS TAX 
The following circular, which was drawn up some 
years ago' by the late Mr. Philip ·Sulley and 
approved by the Commissioners of Customs and Excise, 
is reprinted here for the information of officials of 
federated Bums Clubs. The reference No. of the 
Commissioners' letter approving of the circular is 

329584/1932 of 11th March, 1933. 

For the information of Burns Clubs ar~anging a Dinner 
or Supper, for which admission is by ticket at a price to 
defray cost of food and ordinary expenses (printing, hire 
of hall, piano, &c.), and at which songs and music are inter
spersed with an ordinary Toast List-and any advertisemeJlt 
or announcement refers only to a, Dinner or Supper-it may 
be stated, according to the ruling of the Excise Authorities, 
that there is no liability to Entertainment Tax. Any pay
ment to a musician, singer, or entertainer renders the gather
ing liable to the Tax. 

Where a concert or entertainment is arranged, the Tax 
must be paid. If, however, the clear proceeds are to be 
devoted to charity, and the total expeJlses will not exceed 
Fifty per cent. of the total drawings, exemption can be 
obtained beforehand by application through the local office of 
Customs and Excise, on making a deposit, or repayment may 
be obtained later. In every such case precise accounts must 
be supplied. 

Page 778



THE FIRST " BURNS NICHT " (ALLOW A Y) 

AND 

THE FIRST BURNS CLUB (GREENOCK) 

When and where was the first" Burns Nicht " held' How 
did the poet's fellow-countrymen start celebrating his birth
day and banding themselves together for a national f~tival 
in his honour which for universality and enthusiasm rivals 
the Scots New Year itself 1 These questions have often been 
asked, but they have never been answered to the satisfaction 
of those most keenly interested in the Burns Ctrlt and in the 
history of the hundreds of Burns pubs which are the chief 
custodians of organised commemoration of the poet. 

It has generally been agreed that the honour of holding 
the first celebration of Burns's birthday belongs to either 
Alloway or Greenock-but to which of them 1 The truth, 
on investigation, seems to be that Alloway had the first 
Burns Dinner, but that Greenock was first to form a Burns 
Club proper and held the earliest Club meeting. 

The gathering at Alloway took pl~ce, appropriately, in 
the poet's own birthplace, the" auld clay biggin," in 1801, 
only five years after his death. But to a world in which " the 
twenty-fifth" can mean only January it seems curiously in· 
appropriate that the event w~s held in the summer of that 
year. No contemporary report of it is known to exist, but an 
account was written in 1819 by the Rev. Hamilton Paul, who 
was an assistant minister in Ayrshire in 1801 and w~ pres
ent at the meeting. 

Greenock Burnsians also met in the summer of 1801. One 
writer on the Greenock Club claims" as a well-known fact" 
that "Greenock was the first place to establish a society 
specifically named after Robert Burns " j while another says 
that " Greenock was the first place which commemora.ted his 
birthday in Scotland." There are here two claims, the first 
of which is admitted, the other not. The Club was consti
tuted at a' meeting of citizens held on 2IRt July 1801, the 
anniversary of Burns's death, but its first celebration did 
not take pl~ce until 29th January 1802. This gives the 
Allow.ay meeting priority, and all the evidence points to its 
being the first of thousands of gatherings in Burns's honour 
which have been held annually all over the world for many 
years pa.st;. Accounts of the Alloway meetings, which became 

Page 779



THE FIRST BURNS NICHT 39 

annual events, were not, however, referred to as Club meet
ings for several y~rs, and it does not appear that at first 
there was a Club there. 

With whom originated the idea of oolebrating the ~nni
versary of the poet at Alloway is unknown, but from the fact 
that the name of Burns's early patrons and friends. JOhn 
Ballantine (Provost of Ayr), ~nd Robert Aiken (" Orator 
Bob " of " The Kirk's Alarm "), head a list of nine persons 
present at the gathering in 1801, it m~y be safely concluded 
that they had something to do with it, and that, therefore, 
the tradition of Burns nights, unbroken ever since, traces 
righi back to Burns's personal friends. . 

The account written by the Rev. Hamilton Paul s.ays that 
" the party was small but select, and formed a most interest
ing group from the circumst~nces of nearly one half of the 
oompany having their names associated with some of the 
most gratifying particulars in the poet's history. The meet
ing consisted," he proceeds, "of the following sincere 
friends and admirers of their far-famed countryman: 

William Crawford, Esq., of Doonside, by whose father 
the father of Burns had been employed in the capacity 
of a Gardener. 

John Ballantine, Esq., to whom Burns addressed" The 
Twa Brigs 0' Ayr." 

Robert Aiken, Esq., to whom he dedicated " Th~ Cottar's 
Saturday Night." 

Patrick Douglas, Esq., of Garallan, by whose interest he 
was to have obtained a situation in Jamaica, had he 
followed out his intention of repairing to that Island. 

Primrose Kennedy, Esq., of Drumellan. 
Hew Ferguson, Esq., Barrack-master, Ayr. 
David Scott, Esq., Banker, Ayr. 
Thomas Jackson, Esq., LL.D., Professor of Natural 

Philosophy in the University of St. Andrews. 
The Rev. Hamilton Paul, who had been preTiously 

solicited by Provost Ballantine to prepare a few verses 
suited to the occasion, and who has since written 
eighteen ;tnniversary Odes in commemoration of the 
tiirthday of Burns." 

The account goes on to tell that "the comp~ny of nine 
sat down to a comfortable dinner, of which sheep's head and 
haggis formed an interesting part. . . . Before breaking up, 
the oompany unanimously resolved that the Anniversary of 
Burns should be regularly celebrated, and that the meet
ing should take place on 29th January, the supposed birth
day of the Poot." The strange difficulty the 25th had in 
establishing itself is explained by the fact that Dr. James 

Page 780



THE FmST BURNS NICHT 

Cur,rie, the Poet's official biographer, in his Lile of Bwrns, 
published in 1800, affirmed that the Poet was born on 29th 
January 1759, and this although he had in his hands the 
Poet's manUlSCript of the song, "There was a l~ was born 
in Kyle," with its definite assertion that at Burns's birth 

"Our monarch's hindmost year but ane 
Was pve-and-twenty days begun." 

Continuing hiB story, the Rev. Hamilton Paul states that 
tbe succeeding festivals were honoured by the presenCe of the 
most distinguished cha.ra.cters in the town and neighbour
hood, that a.n additional room was built on to the south end 
of the cottage (about 1815), but that the numbers increased 
to such a. degree that they could not, without the utmost diffi
culty, be accommodated. He then ,rela.tes that" on 29th Janu
ary 1802, the Club mustered to the number of twenty, con
sisting of the former nine," with additions. Although 
allusion is thuEl made to " the Club," no record is known of 
a Club having been cOIbStituted in Alloway before or at that 
date. The earliest ,reference to a. Club there seems to be in 
the Rev. Hamilton Paul's poetical" Farewell to the Alloway 
Club," written for the celebration of 1809. 

Accounts of subsequent meetings at Alloway were given 
annually in the press. The Gw'sgow Ootvrier of 4th February 
1802 thus reports the meeting held on the pr~ing 29th 
January: 

, , Yesterday a .select party of the friends and admirers 
of our inimitable Airshire Bard met to dinner in the 
Room in which the Poet was born, to commemorate his 
6irth day, when the following Ode, compOlSed for the 
occa.sion by one of the Company, was read. 

(Message f,rom Air, dated 30th January 180'.) 

ODl~ FOR THE ANNIVERSARY OF THE BIRTH 
DAY OF BURNS, 29th JANUARY 1802 

(By Rev. HAMILTON PAUL) 

Tho' clouds obscure the wint'ry skies, 
Tho' woodland honours disappear, 
Tho' storms in all their horror rise 
And waste the joyless year; 
Yet friendly, social, cheerful, gay, 
With wine and song and mirth, 
Be't ours to hail the welcome day 
That lighted first the heavenly ray 
And gave true genius birth. . . ." 

Page 781



THE FIRST BURNS NICHT 

There are twenty-seven lines in all in this Anniversary Ode. 
The Cowrier of 3rd February 1803 records the next 

meeting: 
"On Saturday, the 29th instant, a select party of the 

patrons ;tnd admirers of our Ayrshire Poet, Burns, met 
to dinner at Alloway, in the room in which he was born, to 
celebrate his birth day, when the following Ode, composed 
for the occasion by one of the company, was read; but a 
doubt having arisen whether the 25th or 29th of January 
was his birth day, and the register of births for the parish 
of Ayr having been searched, it thereby appears that the 
25th, and not the 29th, as has hitherto been most gen
erally believed, was the birth d;ty of our Poet, ~nd in the 
year 1759.' 

The Rev. Hamilton Paul is still the official bard of Burns. 
His three-verse ode for the 1803 meeting is as follows: 

Let others, enamour'd of seasons more gay, 
Their Harps to the primrosy April attune! 

Let them carol the sweets of the lily-rob'd May 
Or garnish their lays with the rose-bud of June! 

Not the season of beauty, the prime of the year, 
- So charming, so lovely, to me can appear 
As the day when the Poet to Scotia dear 

First open'd his eyes on the Banks of the Doon. 
O! that the-lov'd Bard, ere his Spirit was flown, 

Ere he bade a short life of misfortune adieu, 
Wide over my shoulders his mantle had thrown! 

I'd have breath'd a strain worthy of him ;tnd of you; 
But alas! cold for ever's the soul-kindling fire, 

Mute the tongue that could captivate, ravage, inspire I 
While the hands of the feeble awaken the lyre 

And the M uses sigh out, ' Our adorers are few.' 
Yet duly will we, as this season returns, 

With joy to the lowly roof'd Cottage repair, 
And, as We pour out a libation to Burns, 

We'll toast the sweet Dames of the Doon and the Ayr! 
And sing, till each river his woodlands among 

Bid his rocks and his caverns re-echo t~e song, 
And the winds, on their wings, waft delighted along 

Our esteem of the Bard, and our love to' the Fail'_ 

It is strange that in spite of the 25th being established 
in 1803 as the actual birthday, the next meeting took place 
on the 28th of January in the following year. Thus, on 4th 
February 1804, it is recounted in the CO'lJll"ier that: "On 
Saturrlay, 28th January, 1804, a select party of friends 

Page 782



THE FIRST BURNS NICHT 

and admirers of our native Bard met at the Cottage in which 
he was born, to celebrate his Birth day." Then the celebra
tion was again switched trom winter to summer. According 
to the Ayr Advertiser of 27th June 1805: " A numerous a.nd 
respectable party . . . met on the 22nd inst. in the Cottage 
in which he was born to pay a tribute of respect to his 
memory. The Birthday of the Poet being 25th January, it 
had been judged expedient ... to transfer the anniversary 
f·rom winter to summer." And summer celebrations were 
held also in 1806, 1807, and 1808. "The Anniversary of 
Burns, the poet, was commemorated on the 19th current in 
his native Cottage in this neighbourhood by a numerous 
company," states the COUrier of 26th July 1806. 

The 1809 celebration is chronicled in the Rev. Hamilton 
Paul's article of ten years later, which concludes with his 
" Farewell to the Allowa Club, recited at the ninth anni
versary, being the last ~t which the anthor was present." 
It appears, therefore, that by this time the Alloway friends 
had constituted themselves as a Club. 

In 1810 there Was ~ further Alloway meeting, h6Id on 
29th January. According to the Ayr Advertiser, it took 
place in the King's Arms Inn, and from the account g~ven 
in the Glasgow C01Jfrier of 3rd February 1810 it appears that 
Burns celebrations were by now spreading and establishing 
themselves. "Monday, the 29th January," says the COfIr'ier, 
" the anniversary of the Poet's birth, was celebrated at Ayr, 
Kilmarnock and Greenock, with "all th!lt fervour and anima
tion 80 characteristic of Scotsmen when met to commemorate 
the excellence of their inimitable Bard. A number of non
commissioned officers and privates of the Argyll Militia went 
out from Ayr to Alloway and visited the Cottage where 
Burns was born, attended by the Band of the Regiment, 
who played a number of appropriate airs. . . ." 

The Alloway Club later paBBed out of existence, the pres
ent Club of the name being founded in 1908, but after 
Greenock's lead Burns Clubs sprang up thick and fast all 
over Scotland. ELIZABETH EWING 

Page 783



ROBERT BURNS-A MESSAGE FOR TO-DAY 

" The best laid schemes 0' mice an' men 
Gang aft a-gley, 

An' lea'e us nOJlght but grief and pain 
For promis'd joy." 

So spoke Robert Burns in a well-loved address to that 
humblest 01 earthly creatures, the field-mouse. 

And now in 1947, as we mark the 151st Anniversary of the 
poet's death at Dumfries, it would not come amiss, I think, 
if those of us who revere his memory were to look upon the 
troubled events of oJlr day as reminders for sober reflection; 
were to consider anew the timeless message of the immortal 
bard-a message so sorely needed at this present stage in 
history, when nation once again vies with nation over seem
ingly insoluble differences . .. . when great hopes for the 
future, so recently revived with the cessation of world 
hostilities, are growing daily dimmer under the ominous 
shadow of fresh international disputes. 

For Burns, like all truly great men, was a passionate 
believer in universal brotherhood-his dream was of a world
wide fraternity of men based Jlpon the twin principles of 
human dignity and independence of character. This daunt
less spirit of independence was the very essence of the man 
during his lifetime and it is the quality that shines forth 
most olearly out of every line he penned. Burns has some
times been described as a politician, but he was by his very 
nature far above the limited doctrines and ideologies usually 
associated with the man of politics. The broad philosophies 
of Sootland's greatest son-profound in their very simplicity 
-were the products of a deep understanding of human 
problems, an undying love for his fellow-man, and a burning 
hatred of injustice and hypocrisy in any shape or form. 
Rightly has Robert Burns been called the Spokesman of 
Humanity, for the voice of the peasant-poet--eternal 
champion of the humble and oppressed-is the voice of 
ordinary honest people everywhere. A voice that sometimes 
thunders with righteous indignation-at others, speaks 
tenderly of love and beauty .... And SIOmetimes, with 
moving sadness, laments the bitterness and suffering that are 
the ineTitable results of " man's inhumanity to man." 

Page 784



44 A MESSAGE FOR TO-DAY 

Born amidst poverty and ill-fortune, Burns grew into 
manhood under the same two exacting masters-his life 
prematurely wrecked, not so much by his oft-publicised fond
ness for the tavern as by the relentless toil he was obliged to 
undergo in the fields. Yet throughout a lifetime of privation 
and hardship he at all times retained the simple dignity that 
marked him out in any company as a man apart. Always 
there is evidence of that warm heart that loved all living 
things, great or small-while his faith in the ultimate high 
destiny of man was indestructible. Perhaps because of his 
own lowly station and the amount of sorrow he experienced 
OIL life's turbulent jo~rney, Burns clearly recognised the value 
of a contented heart, however humbl&--just as he saw through 
the shallow vanities of wealth and privilege with a foresight 
that was at times amazing: 

" It's no' in titles nor in rank; 
It's no' in wealth like Lon'on bank; 

To purchase peace and rest; 
It's no' i~ making muckle mair; 
It's no' in books, it's no' in lear; 

To make us truly blest; 
If happiness hae not her seat 

And centre in the breast, 
We may be wise, or rich, or great, 

But never can be blest. 
N ae treasures nor pleasures 

Could make us happy 'lang; 
The heart aye's the part aye, 

That makes us right or wrang." 

Though untutored and unlettered, by all academic standards, 
this inspired son of a Scottish peasant rose to be the greatest 
lyric poet of all tim&--a man whose words have delighted and 
astonished millions of people in every corner of this vast 
universe. His greatest asset was that he spoke from the 
heart, with a conviction born of sincerity, in a language 
whose exquisite beauty was his natural heritage. In his day 
Burns knew the glow of fame--though never the sec~rity of 
fortune. . . . From the homely hearth-stone of' a tiny cottage 
on the banks of Ayr to the highest literary circles of Edin
burgh was a big step-but not too big a step for a man of 
Robert Burns's stature. Acclamation and glory were his-

Page 785



A MESSAGE FOR TO-DAY 45 

yet it is significant that this great natural genius once 
expressed his strongest desire in the following words: 

" Ev'n then a wish (I mind its power-) 
A wish that to my latest hour 

Shall strongly heave my breast: 
That I for poor old Scotland's sake 
Some usefu' plan or book could make" 

Or sing a sang at least." 

Happily for posterity Burns never lost sight of that objective; 
but I doubt if even he could have foreseen the universal 
affection that has sprung up for so many of his lovely com
positions. Always alive to the bea:uties of his native 
surroundings, Burns kept these in mind as the background 
to many of his purest gems of song. Such verses as " Afton 
Water," " Ye Banks And Braes 0' Bonnie Doon," " My Love 
Is Like A Red Red Rose," "Bonnie W ea Thing," " Mary 
Morrison," "Green Grow The Rashes 0," "Scots Wha 
Hae" and "Auld Lang Syne" are too well-known to call 
for comment here. They speak most eloquently for them
selve!! .... 

Of Burns's many poems, " The Cottar's Saturday Night" 
is rightly acknowledged to be his greatest. Consider the 
wisdom and rare beauty of pe,rception in this stanza, which 
describes what was to him a well-loved scene--the simple 
family worship of the cottager: 

" Compar'd with this, how poor Religion's pride, 
In all the pomp of method and of art, 

When men display to congregations wide 
Devotion's ev'ry grace, except the heart I 

The Pow'r, incens'd the pageant will desert, 
The pompous strain, the sacerdotal stole; 

But haply, in some cottage far apart, 
May hear, well pleas'd, the language of the soul; 
And in His book of life the inmates poor enrol." 

Yes, many are the brilliant works that flowed from this most 
diligent of pens-lines such as "Tam 0' Shanter," 
"Hallowe'en," "The twa Dogs," "Address To The Deil" and 
" The Holy Fair," to name but a few. Yet in spite of the 
power, the wit, the sparkling satire contained in these various 
poems, I think the words that linger easiest in the minds of 
Burnsians everywhere are the plain, unaffected tho)Jghts set 
down by the poet after some commonplace daily happening. 
Such are his lines" To A Mouse," already referred to, which 

Page 786



A MESSAGE FOR TO-DAY 

Burns composed one day alter he had accidentally disturbed 
the nest of the tiny creature with the blade 01 his plough_ 
Has ever a truly generous and charitable nature found such 
'Complete expression as in these words 1 : 

"Wee, sleekit, cow'rin, tim'rous beastie, 
o what a panic's in thy breastie I 
Thou need no. start awa sae hasty, 

Wi' bickering brattle I 
I wad be laith to rin an' chase thee 

Wi' murd'ring pattle I 

I'm truly sorry man's dominion 
Has Ibroken Nature's social union, 
An' justifies that ill opinion 

Which makes thee startle 
At me, thy poor earth-born companion, 

An' fellow-mortal I" 

And the closing lines show Burns at his most philosophical. 
How strangely fitting these words sound to-day I : 

" Still thou art blest compar'd wi' me I 
The present only toucheth thee : 
But oh I I backward cast my e'e 

On prospects drear I 
An' forward tho' I canna see, 

I guess an' fear." 

That. Burns wrote mainly in his native dialect is a fortunate 
circumstance indeed; for here the rich beauties 01 the Doric 
are utilised to the full-and to the ear which responds to the 
~vergreen enchantment of the Scottish tongue, the songs and 
poems of Robert Burns must forever be a fountain of 
unlimited joy and inspiration .... 

That the influence of Scotia's beloved bard is worldwide 
is evidenced by the fact that on January 25th of each year, 
men of all races and creeds foregather at their various Clubs 
and Societies to pay homage to his memory. Annua1l1 too, 
there are regular pilgrimages to " the auld clay biggin " at 
Alloway where the poet first saw the light of day-as there 
are to the tiny dwelling-house at Dumfries where, 151 years 
ago, he departed from this life at the age of 37. . .. The 
fact that these hallowed spots can attract so many people of 
diverse origins and interests speaks volumes for the universal 
esteem in which Burns is held to-day-demonstrates far more 
-convincingly than words can ever do that the noble sentiments 

Page 787



A MESSAGE FOR TO·DAY 

of this gifted Ayrshire ploughman still have a place in the 
minds of countless men and women who put Humanity first 
and Nationality afterwards. (It is interesting to note,. in 
passing, that one of the poet's most enthusiastic admirers was 
another of history's great humanitarians, Abraham Lincoln.) 

Many references have been made in' the past to those 
wonderful lines, " A Man's A Man For A' That." Frequently 
it has been pointed out that within the compass of this single 
poem are contained all the aspirations and ideals for which 
free men everywhere have fo:ught and died through six war· 
torn years of struggle and anguish-for which indeed they are 
still striving at the present time. . . . On this occasion I 
offer no apology for making further reference to this mag
nificent piece of writing-for, to my mind, the ardent hopes 
of thinking men throughout the ages have never been so 
neatly yet adequately summarised as in the following lines: 

" Is there, for honest poverty, 
That hangs his head, and a' that 1 

The coward-slave, we pass him by, 
We dare be poor for a' that! 

For a' that, and a' that; 
Our toils obscure, and a' that; 

The rank is but the guinea-stamp; 
The man's the gowd for a' that. 

What tho' on hamely fare we dine, 
Wear hOOden-gray, and a' that1 

Gie fools their silks, and knaves their wine, 
A man's a man for a' that. 

For a' that, and a' that, 
Their tinsel show, and a' that; 

The honest man, tho' e'er sae poor, 
Is King 0' men for a' that. 

Then let us pray that come it may, 
As come it will for a' that; 

That sense and worth, o'er all· the earth, 
May bear the gree, and a' that. 

For a' that, and a' that, 
It's coming yet, for a' that, 

That man to man the warld o'er 
Shall brothers be for a'l that." 

la it too much to hope that mankind will one day see thing~ 
Robbie Burns's way 1 

LESLIE J. PHYTHIAN 

Page 788



BURNS'S" FIRST CLERIC CHARACTER 
I EVER SAW" 

BISHOP JOHN GEDDES 

When at Edinburgh in 1786-1787 Burns was introduced 
by Henry Erskine to Lord Monboddo, and was several times 
a guest at the law lord's supper parties at 13 St. John Street. 
At one of these he met the Roman Catholic Bishop, John 
Geddes, and a mutual liking seems at once to have arisen 
between them. , 

Two letters written by Geddes to a friend, John Thomson 
of the Scots College in Rome, show the measure of his admira
tion for Burns. These letters are printed in Dr. J. F. S. 
Gordon's Scotickronicon (1867), but seem to have escaped the 
notice of students of Burns and are not included in any 
Burnsiana. In the first of these, dated January 1787, Geddes 
wrote that " one Burns, an Ayrshire ploughman, has lately 
appeared as a very good Poet. One edition of his works has 
been sold rapidly, and another by subscription is in the 
press." In March of the same year he repeated the informa
tion: "There is an excellent Poet started JlP in Ayrshire, 
where he has been a ploughman; he has made many excellent 
poems in old Scotch, which are now in the press for the 
third time. I shall send them to you. His name is Burns. 
He is only twenty-eight years old; he is in town just now, and 
I supped with him once at Lor,d Monboddo's, where I 
conversed a good deal with him, and think him a man of 
uncommon genius; and he has, as yet, time, if he lives, to 
cultivate it." Geddes gave concrete form to this interest 
which he felt in Burns by entering five of the Scots Colleges 
abroad, including Valladolid where he himself had been rector 
for some years, in the subscription list to the Edinburgh 
edition of 1787. 

We do not know much about Geddes beyond the bare out
line of his life. He was born in Banffshire in 1735, entered 
the Scots College in Rome in 1750, was appointed Joint Vicar 
Apostolic of the Roman Catholic Church in Lowland Scotland 
in 1779, was consecrated Bishop of Morocco at Madrid in 
1780, and retired in 1797. He appears to have been univers
ally regarded as a man of great learning and social charm, 
and to have mixed widely in literary circles in the Capital. 

Page 789



BISHOP JOHN GEDDES 49 

That Burns greatly admired him and valued his friendship 
ill shown in a letter which the poet wrote to Mrs. D:un1op on 
24th November 1787. In this letter, after referring to 
Professor Dugald Stewart as the only man he had met who 
was completely free from social snobbishness and who 
regarded all men merely "as they act their parts," he 
continued-If to him I might perhaps add another instance, 
a Popish Bishop, Geddes; but I have outraged that gloomy, 
fiery Presbyterianism enough already, though I don't spit in 
her lugubrious face by telling her that the first Cleric char
acter I ever saw was a Roman Catholic." Burns wrote a 
letter to Gedd.es from Ellisland on 3rd February 1789, in 
which, after mentioning his own marriage and prospects in 
life, he expressed the hope that he would meet Geddes again 
in March of that year, and declared that, while he did not 
value the" merely great," he could not" lose the patronis
ing notice of the Learned and the Good without the bitterest 
regret." With this letter Burns returned to Geddes his copy 
of the Edinburgh edition of the Poems with additional poems 
written in by hand-a book which is now in the possession ot, 
the Huntington Library. In one of "Clarinda's" letters 
to B:urns--written in January 1788-there is a reference 
which shows that she shared Burns's admiration for Geddes 
and had herself felt the magnetism of his personality. 
"When you see Bishop Geddes," she wrote, "ask him if 
he remembers a lady at Mrs. Kemp's on a Sunday night, who 
listened to every word he uttered with the gaze of attention. 
I saw he observed me, and returned that glance of cordial 
warmth which assured me he was pleased with my delicate 
Battery." 

We do not know whether in fact Burnll did meet Geddes 
again in 178~ as he had hoped. Geddes does not appear in 
James Edgar's well-known picture of "Burns and his 
correspondents at Lord Monboddo's house," and he may not 
have been a frequent visitor there. It is quite likely that 
their paths did not again crO!ll!, and that no opportunity 
occurred for developing their friendship further. Geddes 
outlived Burns by several years, dying at Aberdeen in 1799. 

, C. ANOU8 

J) 

Page 790



LETTERS TO JOHNSON AND THOMSON 

QUESTIONS OF DATES 

In his edition of the Letters of Robert Burns (1931) Prof. 
J. De Lancey Ferguson felt it necessary, and it was indeed 
desirable, to assign dates to letters which Burns himself had 
not dated or where the dated part of a manuscript was miss
ing. This fixing can be done in many cases by considering 
internal evidence and references in the letters themselves; 
and if the precise day of an epistle cannot be ascertained, 
it is usually possible to be reasonably sure of the chronologi
cal order. In dealing with 700 letters, however, it is per
haps inevitable that some errors of judgment should occur, 
and the dates assigned by Professor Ferguson to at least two 
letters, Nos. III and 584, may be reconsidered. 

No. 111 is a fragment of a letter 'feferring to four songs, 
and the original manuscript is part of a page laid into 
Burns's copy of the Caledonian Pocket Cam'[Xl/nion, in the pos
session (1931) of Mr. Gabriel Wells of Ne,w York. Professor 
Ferguson says he first collected the letter and that it. was 
copied by permission of Mr. Wells. This was h~rdly neces
sary, for the references to the songs are to be found quoted 
by Jame!! C. Dick in the notes to his edition of the Songs 
(1903): the one to the" Lament" (" 0 thou pale Orb ") on 
page 374, that to "To daunton me" on page 411. The 
verse of "Wandering ·Willie" and Burns's remark about 
it are on page 399, but the first comment in the letter is 
valueless because of its lack of context. The title of the song 
to which it should be attached is on the missing half of the 
sheet. 

It is clear that the letter was to J ames Johnson about 
songs for the Scots Musical MUlJewm, for it names songs in 
volumes I and H. The date given to it by Professor Ferguson 
is "May ,or June 1787." He perhaps assumes that since 
Burns told Johnson there was room on the plate for another 
verse of " Here awa, there awa," a song in the first volume, 
this instruction was given before the volume was published. 
this is not the case. Burns's proprietary interest in the 
Scots Musical Muse'lllm developed with the preparation of the 
second volume, published in March 1788. Indeed he says 
quite definitely, with reference to volume I, "the first was 

Page 791



DATES OF BURNS LETTERS 51 

published before my acquaintance with him [J ohnson] ." 'l'his 
is in .a letter dated " Edinburgh, 20th Oct. 1787," written 
to Mr. J ames Hoy at Gordon Castle (Ferguson, NQ. 145), 
commending the Museum to his notice. It would therefore be 
more correct to date the note in question (No. 111) some 
months later, perhaps towards the end of 1787 (Oct.-Nov. 1), 
when Burns's relations with Johnson had advanced to the 
stage when he could freely issue his instructions about the 
work. 

What Burns meant Johnson to do about the extra verse 
to " Wandering Willie" can only be conjectured, but since 
Johnson was himself the engraver, Burns probably wanted 
him to put the verse on the plate with an eye to future 
editions. The verse actually appears, added to No. 57, in the 
subsequent editions of 1839 and 1853, published by 
Blackwood, though Stenhouse on page 59 of his lllustra.ti(}IJZ..~ 
of the Lyric Poetry and Music of Scotland, says that they are 
four silly lines which have " no earthly connexion with the 
preceding stanzas." 

In the next case, the letter involved is one in th~ 
series to George Thomson concerning "Scots wha hae." 
According to Professor Ferguson's date, the first copy of the 
ode was sent to Thomson in a letter (No. 582) "about 30 
August 1793." In letter No. 584 Burns answers some com
ments on it made by Thomson and the date is Se. 3, [1793J. 
This gives Thomson remarkably short time to receive the 
first letter, study the poem, make his remarks, and s(I[ld a 
reply to. Burns. In actual fact Thomson's letter is dated 
Sept. 5th, and in this letter he makes his suggested altera
tions to the last line o.f each verse to fit the tune he wanted 
to. print, "Lewie GOl·don." When Burns answered he dis
cussed the proposed changes in the letter No. 584-, but it if( 
impo.ssible that the date was Sept. 3rd. The likeliest da.te 
for the letter would be the 8th, and this seems the more reason
able since there is a letter of Thomson's, again referring to 
the ode, of Sept. 12th, to which Burns replied on the 15th 
(Ferguson, No. 587). The interchange of letters in which 
" Scots wha hae" is dealt with would then read:-

F. 582. Burns to Thomson, with the ode: about 30 Aug. 179:\ 
Thomson to Burns Sept. 5th 

F. 584. Burns to Thomson Sept. 8th 
Thomson to Burns Sept. 12th 

F. 587. Burns to Thomson Sept. 15th 
THOMAS LAW SON 

Page 792



THE MURISON BURNS COLLECTION 

LIBRARY AND P4USEUM 

The collecting of the various editions of the writings of 
a man of letters and of books dealing with his life and 
achievement is a favourite form of hero-worship; and it is 
only to be expected that many of his countrymen having 
electe~ Robert Burns as their hero, should devote leisure 
hours and money and energy to the foundation of a " Burns 
Collection." Most of these collectioDs are brought together 
only to be again dispersed-many of them, to be sure, 
deserve no better fate; but some have been more fortunate and 
are now available to st:udents. To the list of these public 
Burns libraries a notable addition was made in 1921 by the 
purchase of Mr. John Murison's Collection and its gift to 
the t;oyal burgh of Dunfermline by Sir Alexander Gibb, 
G.B.E., C.B. 

The Murison Collection, because of its great extent and 
its fine quality, forms one of the most striking tributes ever 
paid to the memory of any man. It is not quite so extensive 
as either the ~ollection in the Mitchell Library at Glasgow 
whose foundation was the 700 volumes brought together by 
J aD;les Gibson and utilised by him in the preparation of his 
Bibliography of Hobert Burns (1881)-or that other, housed 
since 1883 within the Burns Monument at Kilmarnock, whose 
nucleus was formed by James M'Kie, publisher there. These 
are probably the largest Burns libraries in existence; both, 
however, leave much to be desired in respect of the" state .. 
of their contents. Collections of Burns books were formed 
also by the late Colonel R. J. Bennett, of Glasgow, and by 
Mr. D. M'Na!J.ght, LL.D., of Kilmaurs; but neither of these 
is, or was intended to be, on the scale of those at Glasgow and 
Kilmarnock. 

The Collection which is now in Dunfermline was formed 
by Mr. John Murison, a native of Glasgow, though resident 
for many years at Hammersmith, in the vicinity of William 
Moris's Kelmscott House. Its 1750 volumes are the result 
of nearly forty years' assiduous collecting. To have brought 
together so many volumes on one subject-as a hobby, apart 
from business-is in itself no mean feat for one person; when 
the condition of these books is taken into consideration Mr. 

Page 793



THE MURISON COLLECTION 53 

Murison's achievement stands out as remarkable. He knew, 
as comparatively few collectors know, the" state" in which 
books ought to be collected; his ideal was not the ideal of 
James Gibson or of James M'Kie. Add to that knowledge a 
willingness and a readiness to give the dealer his price for 
items in desirable condition or uncommon, and we have the 
secret of his S).lccess. Like most collectors he found his reward 
in the pleasure of pursuit; unlike most he had the additional 
satisfaction of knowing that the results of that pursuit are 
safe from the tragedy of the auction-room. Fate is not often 
so kind. 

The Murison Collection includes over 600 editions of 
Burns's writings in poetry and prose. There is only an 
incomplete copy of the first edition of 1786, but the copyright 
editions of 1787 and following years are present in the finest 
possible condition-all of them nearly as clean as on the day 
they were issued, and all in their original boards. Later 
editions also are mostly perfect, clean, and in the publishers' 
bindings. The" Burnsiana " numbers nearly 1200 volumes; 
biographies of the poet, critical studies of his writings; books 
on his " Land," and works written by or on his predecessors 
in Scottish literature and his friends and contemporaries. 

But the Collection is more than a Burns Library; it is 
also a Burns Museum. It includes portraits of the poet and 
of members of his family, as well as illustrations of his poems 
and songs. These also are in exceptionally fine condition, and 
nearly 8 of them are glazed and handsomely framed. Among 
the portraits of Burns himself are the very rare first 
engraving (1798) of the drawing by Archibald Skirving; the 
beautiful mezzotint the .. private plate" of 1830-by 
William Walker and Samuel Cousins, R.A., of the bust
portrait in oils by Alexander N asmyth; and other reproduc
tions of the same painting by William Nicholson, John 
Zeitter, Edward Mitchell, and Sir Frank Short. Many relics 
of another, and no leS'E! interesting, kind should be mentioned : 
two beautiful busts of the poet; designed by Flaxman and 
Wyon and exec).lted by Josiah Wedgwood; a unique collection 
of nearly 30 jugs which carry illustrations of Burns's 
writings; and medallions issued to commemorate Burns 
celebrations. 

J. C. E. 

Page 794



HANDS ACROSS THE SEA 

There was a saying in Paisley in my early yea-rs that 
if one stood at the Cr068 and fired a stone in any direction 
it would hit a poet. Carrying the idea to the Dominion of 
Canada, if one were to stand in the centre of Montreal, 
Toronto, Winnipeg or Vancouver and throw a stone, one 
wQUld hit a Scot ~nd, of course, that Soot would be a lover 
o.f Robert Burns. 

The Scots brought their Bible and their Burns on the 
good ship Hector, the Mayflower of Canadian history, and 
to-day in Canada, wherever their wandering feet have taken 
them, as "The Twenty-Fifth" comes around Scots com-

'- mamorate the birthday 0.£ the lad that was born in Kyle 188 
years ago. 

In Vancouver, where this is written, Nichts wi' Burns in 
1947 put up a record for The Third City. In the old days 
" The 25th" in Scotland was usually given over to one day's 
celebration, beginning with the piper playing through the 
streets of the town, gathering a procession on the way to 
the home of the chairman of the dinner-dance. After seren
ading the chairman's family he played to the hotel where 
the birthday dinner and dance was held in the e.ening. 

The great city and port on the Paoifio Coast could not 
oompr~s its Hurns enthusiasm into one day this year (or 
any year). The celebration began on January 4 with the 
Gaelic Society-yes, one ha.s heard more Gaelic out here 
than in many parts of the Scottish Highland~starting the 
Inowball, and it rolled right up to the celebrations of the 
Burns Fellowship and the Glasgow and District Association 
on Saturday night, January 25. 

For good measure, Vancouver Burrard Liberal Associa
tion celebrated the Poet's birthday on January 29, ~nd 
Vancouver Heights P,resbyterian Church on January 31. 

A woman proposed "The Immortal Memory" at one 
gathering, a girl piped in the haggils in Shaughness.y Heights, 
while girls were standard bearers in the procession to the 
head table at St. Andrew's and Caledonian Societies' festival. 
Incidentally, the St. Andrew's and Caledonian and Sons. of 
Scotland Societies are as old-fiO years-as the oity named 
a.fter Capt-ain Vancouver, the British explorer. 

Notable among the organisations honouring "The 

Page 795



HANDS ACROSS THE SEA 55 

Immortal Memory" were the Vancouver churches, Presby
terian, United and others, revealing how forgiving is the 
mission of the churches. For Robert Burns said some very 
hard things about the kirk, its people and its ways. 

One had never in 30 years of sojourn in East and West 
Canada spent" A Nicht wi' Burns." But on the principle 
"that it's never too late to mend" one went to the St. 
Alldrew's and Caledonian Societies' celebration on January 
22. The old glad rags were dug out. They looked not at 
all bad after being in the moth balls for more than a decade. 

Having read of the difficulty of getting dinner jackets 
and dress shirts in Scotland, readers may be interested to 
know that quite two-thirds of the men in the company of 
1000 were in dinner j acketa. There were no "tails," but 
you should have seen the chairman, Mr. George N. 
GibBon, in Royal Stuart tartan, plaid and cairngorm OB 

big as ,an apple, and about a dozen others in MacGregor and 
other tartans, sporrans, dirks an' a'. A number of the 
young ladies too, were III tartan skirts and hose and smiles. 

Proudly the braw pipers and lady bearers of the Lion 
and Union Jack led the head table to the seats. The stirring 
strains of "0 Canada" floated over the great Commodore 
Ballroom, gaily festooned for the occasion. The Selkirk 
Grace, playing in the Haggis and the Addrees to the Haggis 
recalled nostalgic memories of Burns dinners in Glasgow, 
Paisley and Barrhead, when" we were young." 

The menu, what we'll dae, was in Scots-bubbly jock, 
bashed neeps, champ it tatties, haggis, even to farIs of oat
cakes and a wheen nick-nackets. The sweet son~s of the 
Poet caused a nostalgic feeling within, a feeling that 
increased in intensity when the floor was cleared for dancing 
and the old quadrilles, waltzes, Highland schottisches were 
danced to music arranged from Burns' popul~,r songs, just 
II!S one used to hear in tht' old days. One, however, missed the 
sprightly Scots reel from the list. 

But one goes too fast. "The Immortal Memory" W!l-8 

responded to by Professor G. F. Drummond of the Economics 
Department at University of British Columbia, who hails 
from The Kingdom. His surname recalled the name of 
another Professor Drummond who helped to spread the fame 
of The Second City and its great seat of learning on the 
bonnie banks of Clyde-Professor Henry Drummond. 

In the absence of a Henley or other critic to furnish a 
text for his address, Professor Drummond oompared the 
immortal Bard's work with Hollywood's productions and 
America's film capital was far awa' behin'. 

Page 796



HANDS ACROSS THE SEA 

Current moving picture entertainment, the speaker aa.id, 
lacked the durability and "biding truth" found in the 
work of Robert Burns. "Burns didn't resort to the stuff we 
see in moving l'ictures, particularly those of Hollywood. He 
reached into the inner spirit of men .and saw what WIW neces
sary for a man to live a complete life." 

rwo other points that impressed were the manly speech 
of Lieut.-Colonel Forin, O.B.E., E.D., who led the gallant 
Vancouver Seaforths in the Sicily and Italian campaigns in 
World War 11, in responding to " Canada: the Land we live 
in." The colonel quoted with arresting effect the remarks 
of Viscount Montgomery on love of one's country. 

The singing of " Auld Lang Syne" would have pleased 
Mr. Nicholson of the Scottish Tourist Society for order of 
words, proper stance and motions. 

SprIgs of purple and white heather adorned the breasts 
of the dancers, and hoochs-Iusty and spontaneous-marked 
the turns of the music, just like being at hame. Sir Harry 
Lauder's "Keep Right on to the End of the Road" Will! 

sung and danced to a waltz. 
And here is something for the Burns book. The writer 

was fortunate in striking up a dinner-table acquaintance 
with a family named Russell. Mr. Ruasell had been a Prairie 
farmer, but was now living in retirement (In the Pacific 
Coast. In an exchange of "Where we c~e frae" Mr. 
Russell told that he was from Kincardine--the same district 
from which William Burnes, Burns's father, came to 
Alloway. Mr. Russell said there were Burneses in his family; 
but he had never given the matter much thought. 

Vancouver St. Andrew's and Caledonian Society has a 
bard, Gilbert Sykes. Here is his inspired stanza from the 
programme: 

~oul of the Poet I wheresoe'er 
ReClaimed from earth, thy genius plume 
Her wings of immortality: 
Suspend thy harp in happier sphere, 
And with thine influence illume 
'l'he gladness of our jubilee. 

R. "A.. C. 

Page 797



THE SCOTTISH NATIONAL DICTIONARY 

During the past year work has been concentrated on the 
. final revision of material for Part 2 of Volume III of the 

Dictionary, and the copy for this Part, containing vocabulary 
COVENER-DEGUST, is now in the printer's hands. It is hoped, 
in spite of inevitable printing delays, to issue this new Part 
to subscribers before the end of 1947. The work of excerpt
ing and compiling material for subsequent Parts has con
tinued simultaneously, a good start having been made on the 
letter H and much revisionary work done on the letters G 
and J. 

The extensive advertising campaign carried on during the 
past two years under the energetic direction of Mr. John 
M'Vie, former Hon. Secretary of the Burns Federation, now 
President of the Dictionary Association, and Dr. David 
Lawson, the Chairman of the Association's Executive Council, 
has been most successful, resulting in a very satisfactory 
increase in the number of subscribers, which in 1946 and 1941 
averaged 164, compared with 18 in the five previous years. 
In June 194:7, 1054 of the edition of 2000 copies had been 
taken up. 

Inquiries and orders come in from all parts of the world, 
Russia, The Netherlands, Buenos Aires, Italy, Norway, 
Shanghai and Singapore, besides the Dominions and United 
States. The overseas campaign is to be intensified by the 
distribution of an illustrated booklet about the Dictionary 
among Scots abroad, to arouse their interest in all that is 
being done to preserve for posterity the language of their 
fathers. Members of the BJIrns Federation at home and 
abroad have already shown ample proof of their devotion to 
the cause of the Dictionary, and it is to be hoped that their 
support will continue in spite of many other appeals to their 
generosity. The price of the Dictionary (£20 for the complete 
work) is not an economic one, owing to the very heavy cost of 
producing a work of such a comprehensive nature. The price 
of paper and printing has almost trebled since the Dictionary 
was first planned and production expenses are also very 
heavy. The ASI:lociation therefore greatly appreciates the way 
in which Burns Clubs who have already paid in full for a 
copy of the Dictionary continue to contribute to its funds. 

The death of Dr. William Grant, the former Editor of the 
Scottish National Dictionary, in December 1946, was a great 

Page 798



58 BURNS IN THE AUCTION-ROOM 

loss to the Association_ It was due to his enthusiasm and 
devoted service to the cause of the Scottish tongue that the 
Dictionary was launched and carried on through repeated 
set-backs and financial diffic:ulties. His aim to produce a 
Dictionary with an appeal to scholar and ordinary lover of 
Scots alike has been faithfully carried out and will continue 
to inspire the remainder of the work. 

The Dictionary, which since its inception had been housed 
in Aberdeen Training Centre, has now found accommodation 
at King's College, A!berdeen, our new, and, it is to be hoped, 
permanent address. 

DAVID MURISON, Editor 

BURNS IN THE AUCTION-ROOM, 11947 

1. Burns's Poems: 2nd edition, Edinburgh, 1787, 8·; the 
blank spaces for the names on 20 pp. filled in by the 
author. (Sotheby, 23 June 1947, £145, purchased 
by Shaw.) 

2.-Another copy. (Sotheby, 23 June 1947, £32, Sawyer.) 
3.-Another copy: presentation copy from the author to 

William Smellie, printer of the book. (Sotheby, 23 
June 1947, £40, Maggs.) . 

4.-Another edition, Edinburgh, 1793, 2 vols., 8vo.; presenta
tion copy from the author to Lady Elizabeth 
Cunningham. (Sotheby, 23 June 1947, £80, Maggs.) 

5.-HoLOGRAPH POEMS: The Birks of Aberfeldie; Written in 
the Hermitage at Taymouth; Written at the Falls of 
Fyers; The Humble Petition of Bonar Water to the 
Noble Duke of Athole; Elegy on Sir J. H. Blair; 
Blythe was She; On Scaring some Water-fowl in Loch 
Turit; and an apparently unpublished song com
mencing " Here is to the King, Sir" : ,16 pp. in all, 
4to, bound with two other pieces in another hand. 
(Sotheby, 28 July 1947, £820, Maggs.) 

NOTII :-The "apparently unpublished song" was not composed 
by Burns; it was in 'print before the poet was born, and appears in 
Songs of Scotland 'prlOr to BUTns, edited by Robert Chambers. 

J. C. E. 

Page 799



SOVIET DELEGATES AT ALLOW AY 

BURNS CLUBS IN RUSSIA 

The suggestion that Robert Burns Clubs should be formed 
in Russia was made last year when the Soviet delegates 
visited the Alloway cottage where the poet was born. Sir 
Patrick Dollan, President of the Burns Federation, said 
it was an international organisation whose membership was 
opel). to men and women of all nationalities and creeds, 
provided they were prepared to work to realise the Burns 
ideal of world peace and brotherhood. 

The poems of Scotland's greatest democrat had been 
translated into many languages, and it was with pleasure 
they learned last winter that a number of his poems had 
been translated into Russian by Samuel Marshak, the Russian 
poet, who it was hoped would visit Scotland some time this 
year. 

The Burns Federation understood he was an authority 
on the life and works of Burns. The Russian writer Fadeev 
said that many attempts had been made to translate Burns 
into Russian, but Marshak was the only one to succeed. His 
translations had proved popular, and the Scottish poet was 
now known to a large n).1mber of readers in the Soviet Union. 

Burns wrote about the simple men and the simple things, 
and had always ).1pheld the dignity of the simple man. That 
was hO'W his poems were so well liked in Russia. 

Provost Tom Murray, Ayr, in a civic welcome said they 
were glad to have the Russians and he boped they would come 
more frequently. There could be no more suitable place for 
them to visit than the birthplace of Scotland's poet and 
social philosopher. 

Sir Patrick Dollan suggested a Burns Club should be 
formed in Moscow and other Russian towns so that there 
could be contact between Russian and Scottish admirers of 
the poet. 

The delegation included three Russian poets Bazhan, 
K. Simonov and V. Vekilov, all of whom expressed their 
great interest in the Burns cottage and museum and were 
surprised to learn that so many manuscript copies of his 
poems had been saved for posterity. Mr. John S. Clarke, 
ex-M.P., lectured to the visitors on some of the historical 
features of the cottage and museum. 

Communicated. 

Page 800



LOUISA FONTENELLE, ACTRESS 
AND 

JOHN BROWN WILLIAMSON 

Contemporary newspapers published at Charleston (South Carolina) and works on the American stage provide material for a corrective note to the .article on Burns's" simple, wild, enchanting elf " printed in the 1935 Bur~ Chrronicle. 
Miss Fontenelle met John Brown Williamson-an actor well-known to Burns, who introduced him as " Esppus" in his "Epistle from Esopus to Maria" --on the stage at Edinburgh. They were married, and early in 1796 migrated to America. They ac.ted at Boston, New York, and Charleston, and came from Boston to Charleston through a plan of exchange companies arranged by the managers of the theatres of the two cities. 'fhey became great favourites in the theatre world, Mrs. Williamson being frequently referred to as "the beautiful Mrs. Williamson" and she was obviously the toast of the young Charleston gallants. 
Mrs. Williamson died on 31st October 1799; her husband on 28th March 1802. The notices which follow appeared in local newspapers. 
"Thursday night, after an illness of only three days, died in her twenty-sixth year, Mrs. Louisa Williamson, wife of Mr. Williamson of the Theatre. As an actresl! the public has sustained an irreparable 10rSS. Her professional talents were universally allowed; her private virtUe£! were known only to a few in this country; but they have left an indelible impression on the minds m06t acquainted with them." 
" Died on Thursday evening, after a short illness, aged 26 years, Mrs. Louisa Williamson, wife of Mr: J. B. Williamson, of the CharIeston Company of Comedians. The early death' of this most accomplished actress is truly lamented by all who have enjoyed the pleasure of seeing her on the stage, where she shone unrivalled; in !t word, since she has been known in this city she has been the delight of 

o.llr Theatre." 
"Died last evening, after a long and painful illness, which he bore with Christian fortitude, John Brown Williamson, one of the managers of the Cha·rleston Theatre. He has left a large family to shed tears on his tom~a 

numerous acquaintance to lament his 106S." 

Robert Chambers was in er·ror in giving Williamson's 
Christian name as " J MnElS " ; and the GentlemAln/s MagaziIM was wrong in naming the persons" Wilkinson." 

J. C. E. 

Page 801



NOTICES OF NEW BOOKS 

Michael Bruce, Shepherd-Poet 01 th'C Lomond Braes,. by 
Thomas G. Snoddy. (Edinburgh: Blackwood, 10s. 6d.) 

'fhe lives and fortunes of Michael Bruce and Robert Burns 
present so many and such close parallels that the appearance 
of this authoritative, erudite and-what is equally valuable
discerning, vivid and highly readable study of Bruce is of 
considerable moment to all interested in the greater poet. 

The immediate predecessor of Burns, Bruce was, like the 
Ayrshire poet, born and bred in poverty, but in a home 
equally given to high thinking and to a reverence for learn
ing and literature. Both knew privation, toil, the struggle 
towards poetry. Both succumbed to ill-health and died all 
too soon. To both came posthumous fame. The Bruce Trust, 
though small compared with the Burns cult, is equally zealous 
for its poet's reputation. It has bought. the cottage in 
Kinnesswood where Bruce was born and died, and has set up 
a museum there and undertakes pilgrimages to it. It has 
instituted school essay competitions on subjects concerned 
with Bruee. 

That Bruce died at 21, having achieved only a fragment 
of what his promise foretold, gives further cause for Burnsians 
extending to his memory that interest which Burns himself 
showed on at least one recorded occasion. In IlIddition, con
troversies about Burns's personal career have as counterpart 
in Bruce's case the dispute that has swayed to and fro for 
nearly 180 years as to what poems Bruce actually wrote. 

When Bruce died in 1767 he left a manuscript " Poem
Book" whioh was entrusted by his father to a young fellow
student, John Logan, who edited it and in 1770 published 
Poem, on Several Occasicms by Michael Bruce The preface, 
after referring to Bruce's work, suddenly made the astonish
ing statement that "some poems wrote by different authors 
are inserted. . ., The reader of taste will easily distinguish 
them from those of Mr. Bruce." Readers, needless to say, did 
not, and when in 1781 Logan published as his own the prize
piece of the Bruce collection, "The Cu~k?o," a first-r~te 
literary problem was created. The ongmal manuscnpt 

Page 802



62 NOTICES OF NEW BOOKS 

papers disappeared, Bruce's father having been told by Logan 
that " he feared his servants had used them in singeing fowls 
for dinner." 

Because of this literary disaster the problem of Bruce 
became the problem of Logan, who has alternately been hailed 
as a poet of note and decried as Bruce's evil genius and" a 
cunning scoundrel." Mr. Snoddy, pro-Bruce in his well
weighed conclusions, sets himself as a principle not to 
attack, but to explain, Logan. His summary of evidence, 
which ranges from family and local tradition to near-con
temporary letters, is a masterly piece of well-digested scholar
ship which he sets in the wider perspective of a study of the 
literary habits of the time--a time in which Burns was so soon 
to refashion his country's traditional songs into lyrics to 
which his personal claim to authorship has never been 
questioned. Finally, he studies Bruce's known work with a 
clear and sensitive insight into what is in doubt, and deals 
at some length with the paraphrases, whose authorship also 
has been a matter of dispute. 

Burnsians are reminded by Mr. Snoddy's book that when 
Principal Baird was planning the second edition of Bruce's 
poems in 11791, he invited Burns to contribute some of his 
unpublished verse to this memorial volume, the proceeds of 
which were to go to Bruce's mother. B:urns responded with 
an unqualified offer of anything he could provide, but is 
believed to have put forward" Tam 0' Shanter," which was 
declined as unsuitable to the context. It should be noted, 
however, that the letter of Baird to Burns evidently regards 
the original volume as Bruce's work, not Logan's. 

While a final verdict on the vexed question of authorship 
is probably beyond the sphere of practical possibility, Mr. 
Snoddy's study of Bruce goes so fully and judiciously into the 
issues that it resolves many points of the controversy. 

This book is, moreover, by no means bounded by the 
limits of a literary dispute, but is also a substantial con
tribution to the interpretation of Scottish letters of the 
eighteenth century. 

Finally, it is an admirable tribute to a poet who enjoys 
the particularly tender regard of his countrymen, and whose 
appeal Mr. Snoddy sums up expressively by saying that " a 
lovely light lies across his page." 

ELIZABETH EWING 

Page 803



NOTICES OF NEW BOOKS 63 

A Ye'ar wi' Burns: 366 q'IWtations from his poems, songs 
and le'tters; compiled by E. MacKerchar, L.L.A. (44 pp., 
lB. 6d.) 

This is an unpretentious publication, attractively pro
duced. The quotations are grouped under the months of the 
year, one for each day. We note that the dates of letten 
from which quotations are taken have not been given. While 
the title of a poem or a song may be sufficient in the case of 
a verse quotation, the reader might have considerable trouble 
in tracing t{) its SOJIrce a quotation from one of Burns's 
communications to Mrs. Dunlop or some other correspondent 
to whom he wrote numerous letters. Still, a book of this kind 
is interesting to browse through, and is a source of refresh-· 
ment to the spirit in these troublous times. 

Miss MacKerchar published her booklet originally on 
behalf of the Mission to Lepers. She has now presented it to 
the Glasgow and District Burns Association, to be sold for 
the benefit of the Jean Armour Burns Houses at Mauchline; 
and copies may be had from the Secretary of the Association, 
Mr. Andrew Stenhouse, LL.B., 104 West Campbell Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

C. A. 

VISITORS TO ALLOWAY, 1946-47 

The number of visitors to the Cottage and the Monument 
at Alloway during the year ended 30th September 1947 was 
169,028: an increase of 10,760 on the number for the preced
ing year. To Burns's birthplace and the Museum the number 
who paid for admission was 105,115, compared with 91,342 
in the year 1945-46; to the Monument the number was 
63,913, compared with 66,926 in the year 1945-46. The 
number of visitors to the Cottage and Museum is the largest 
ever recorded in anyone year. 

STOTHARD'S ILLUSTRATIONS OF BURNS 

The Editor of the ButTn8 Chronicle regrets that space in 
this number of the annual has not been found for the second 
and third sections of the article on " Stothard's Illustrations 
of Burns." The first section of the article appeared in the 
issue for 1947; the second and third sections, it is hoped, will 
be published in the issue for 1949. 

Page 804



ADDRESS PRESENTED TO 
JOHN S. CLARKE, ESQ., J.P., PRESIDENT, 1943-1946 

The Clubs and Societies on the roll of The Burns Federa
tion take the occasion of your retirement from active partici
pation in its affairs to express its gratitude to you for the 
notable services which you have rendered to the Federation. 
These services have extended over a long period of years and 
from 1943-1946 as President. 

During these last years yO).1 have carried on the tradi
tion of the office by guiding the Federation with dignity, and 
taking keen interest in its manifold activities. Particularly 
valuable have been your services in encouraging the preserva
tion of the vernacular, the development of Scottish literature, 
and the holding of school children's competitions. You have 
been insistent, too, in pressing the claims of the ' Scottish 
National Dictionary,' the' Burns Chronicle,' and the numer
ous memorials associated with the Poet. 

For these services The Burns Federation asks you on your 
retirement to take with you its grateful thanks, and the 
expression of its members' sincere hope that, as an Honorary 
President, you may long continue to interest yourself in its 
affairs. 

On behalf of The Burns Federation: 
(S' n.ed) { P. J. DOLLAN, President 

~g ANDREW STENHOUSE, Hon. Secreta1'1/ 

OBITUARY 

MR. WILLIAM GRANT, M.A., LL.D., who died at Aberdeen 
on 3rd December 1946, was an Hon. President of the Burns 
Federation (elected at Elgin, 1936). He was the distinguished 
editor of the Scottish Naticmal Dictionary. 

MR. WILL lAM A. WEIR, who died at Winnipeg in October 
1946, had !been an Hon. President of the Federation since 
1940. 

Page 805



MOTTO-Cl A MAN'S A MAN FOR A THAT" 

THE BURNS FEDERATION 
INSTITUTED 1885 

Hon. President8. 

Sir ALBXANDER GIBB, G.B.E., C.B., LL.D.(Edin.), F.R.S., Queen 
Anne's Lodge, Westminster, London, S.W.I. 

WILLIAlI WILL, C.B.E., 171 Oakwood Court, Kensington, London, 
W.14. 

Colonel T. C. DUNLOP, A.D.C., T.D., D.L., Doonside, Alloway, Ayr. 
Sir RoB~RT BRucB, D.L., LL.D., Brisbane House, 9 Rowan Road, 

Glasgow, S.I. 

ALEXANDER G. McKNIGHT, 321 Providence Building, Duluth, 
Minnesota, U.S.A. 

J. C. EWING, 8 Royal Terrace, Glasgow, C.3. 

WM.. C. Cocoun, Holmwood, Uddingston. 
M. H. McKERRow, F.S.A.Scot., 43 Buccleuch Street, Dumfries. 

JOHN S. CLARKB, J.P., 2 Walmer Crescent, Glasgow, S.W.l. 

Hon. Vice-Pr88identa. 

J. TAYLOR GIBB, F.S.A.Scot., Mauchline. 
ANDUW M'CALLUM, 33 Hillside Road, Glasgow, S.3. 
JA.J4J11S McMuRDo, 86-71 144th Street, Jamaica, N.Y., U.S.A. 
RICHARD DOUGLAS, 1 Wall Street, New York, N.Y., U.S.A. 
JOHN R. FOTHERINGHAM, Orwell, Bent Road, Hamilton. 
GEORGE HUMPBREY, The Saughs, Newtongrange, Midlothian 
Lt.-Col. P. FLEHING Gow, D.S.O., I.M.S. (retired), 3 Argyle Street. 

Maryfield, Dundee. 
CHARLES CARMICHAEL. 54 Chatsworth Street, Derby. 
ALBXA.NDER EMSLIB, M.A., 6 Royal Avenue, Belfast 
JOB CURRIB, 20 Arboretum Street, Nottingham. 
WILLIA.M HAMILTON, Dunbar Street, Stockton, N.S.W. 

B 

Page 806



66 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

EXEOUTIVE OOMMUTEE. 

President-Sir PATRICK J. DOLLAN, D.L., LL.D., J.P., 1 Kingsley 
Avenue, Glasgow, S.2. 

Paat-President-JoHN S. CLARKE, J.P., 2 Walmer Crescent, Glasgow, 
S.W.I. 

Vice-Presidents-THoMAS B. GoUDlE, Ewanrigg, Burnbank, Hamilton. 
JOHN MCVIE, 13 Hillside Crescent, Edinburgh, 7. 

Hon. Secretary-WILL lAM. BLACK, Cardean, Eastfield Road, Dumfries. 
Hon. Treasurer-JAM.Es MACINTYRE, 17 New Road, Mauchline. 
Hon. Editor, "Burns Chronicle "- . 
Hon.SecretaryojSchoolOompetitions-FRED.J.BELFoRD,M.A.,F.E.I.S., 

-CO" <iW083 Park Grove, Liberton, Edinburgh, 9. 
A8sistant Hon. Secretary-AN DREW STENHOUSE, M.A., LL.B., 104 West 

Campbell Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

1Ji8trict Representatives. 
I. Ayrshzre-J. KEVAN McDowALL, F.S.A.Scot., 115 St. Vincent 

Street, Glasgow, C.2. 
THOMAS FINDLAY, JJeari~, Mauchline. 
JOHN NEILL, Bruaich, High Corton, Ayr. 

II. Edinburgh-J OHN W. OLIVER, M.A., D.Litt., Ramsay Cottage, 
West Barnton Terrace, Edinburgh. 

Ill. GlasgoW-WM. C. COCKBURN, Holmwood, Uddingston. 
THOMAS BEET, 16 Ardheg Street, Glasgow, S.2. 
WILLIAM F. COOKE,540 SandyhiIls Rd.,Glasgow,E.2. 

IV. Dumbarton and Argyll Shire8-WM. BoYLE, 22 Osborne Street, 
Clydebank. 

V. F'ife8hire-T. C. ANDERSON, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, 
Kelty, Fife. 

Provost D. THoMsoN KENNEDY, 1 Douglas Street, 
Dunfermline. 

VI. Lanarlcshire-J OHN R. FOTHERINGHAM, Orwell, Bent Road, 
Hamilton. 

THOMAS CRANE, 6 Douglas Street, High Blantyre. 
J OB'N HAPPLE, 4 Graham Avenue, Eddlewood, 

Hamilton. 
JAMES B. MATHEW, 23 Loanhead Crescent, 

N ewarthill, by Motherwell. 
J. M'LEAN, 374 Main Street, High Blantyre. 

VII. Mid and East Lothians and Borders-RoBERT W ATTERS, 103 
Lindores Drive, Tranent. 

JAMES JUNER. 2 Greenhall Crescent, Gorebridge. 
VIII. We8t Lothia'T1r-ALAN MACINTTRE, M.A., Redlands, Bo'nesa, 

West Lothian. 
IX. Renfrewshire-WILLIAM L. MORREN, M.A., 37a Union Street, 

Greenock. 
ARTHuR C. E. LEWIS, Vallorbe, 16 Rodney Road, 

Gourock. 
X. Stirling, Clackrnannan and West Perth 8hires-W. P. TURNBULL, 

. 13 Dollar A venue, Falkirk 
GEORGE J. SHERRIFF, County Clerk, Stirling. 

XI. Ea8t Perthshire, Angus and Kinro88-Lt.-Col. P. FLEMING Gow, 
D.S.O., I.M.S. (retired), 3 Argyle Street, 
Maryfield, Dundee. 

Page 807



THE BURNS FEDERATION 67 

XII. Northern Scottish Counties-ALEXANDER EMSLIE, M.A., 5 
Royal A venue, Belfast. 

XIII. Southern Scottish Counties-JAMES DENNISTON, F.E.I.S., 
Mossgiel, Cardoness Street, Dumfries. 

JOHN STURGEON, 7 Nellieville Terrace, Dumfries. 
XIV. London and South· Eastern England-JoHN M. SWAN, 17 

Roxborough Park, Harrow, Middlesex. 
XV. North-Eastern England-J. RENWICK VICKERS, Belvoir, 

St. Bedes, East Boldon, Co. Durham. 
XVI. North- Western England-JAMEs R. CRAWFORD, Stonehurst, 

Linden Road, Halifax. 
XVII. Midlands oj England-JoHN CURRIE, 20 Arboretum Street, 

Nottingham. 
W. G. McGREGOR, 10 Moor Oaks Road, Sheffield, 10. 

XVIII. South- Western England-GEoRGE HUlIPHREY, The Saughs, 
N ewtongrange, Midlothian. 

XIX. Wales-HECTOR McKELVIE, 3 Glanmor Road, Uplands, 
Swansea. 

XX. Ireland-A. M'SAVENY, 4 Wellington Park Avenue, Belfast. 
XXI. South Africa-DoNALD F. MACNAIR, 103 Fotheringay Road, 

Glasgow, S.1. 
XXII. Australia-T. ATHoLL ROBERTSON, F.R.G.S., F.S.A.Scot., 

Inveratholl, 179 Chase Side, Southgate, 
London, N.14. 

XXIII. New Zealand-Mrs. M. THOMSON, 21 Gilbertfield Road, 
Cambuslang. 

XXIV. Canacla-JAMEs ADAIR, 22 Newark Drive, Glasgow, S.1. 
XXV. India-ARTHUR McKERROW, Polmood, Biggar. 

XXVI. U.S.,A.-HERBERT C. REID, 1396 Fairbanks Avenue, S.W., 
Atlanta, Ga., U.S.A. 

JOHN R. Hurry, 9271 lS'eff Road RR. No. 1, 
Clio, Mich., U.S.A. 

ALEXANDER M. BUCHAN, 535 Dielman Road, St. 
Louis County, Missouri, U.S.A. 

XXVII. Near .East-HuGH M. MAcINTYRE, Elmsley, 7 Racecourse 
Road, Ayr. 

XXVIII. China-WM. C. FAULDS, .T.P., F.S.I., 367 London Road, 
Glasgow, S.E. 

BUB-COMMITTEES. 
Finance: Messrs. Humphrey (Convener), Cockburn, M'Dowall, 

Macnair, and Denniston. 
Memorials: Messrs. Clarke (Convener), Boyle, Findlay, Mathew, 

Neill, and Sturgeon. 
Scottish Literature: Messrs. Dollan (Convener), Belford, Lewis, 

Faulds, Fotheringham, McDowall, Morren, and Oliver. 
Ii''' Schools: Messrs. Belford (Convener), Alan MacIntyre, Denniston, 
Humphrey, Morren, OliveI', Mathew, and Happle; Co-opted 
members :-J. Douglas Cairns, M.A., 7 Wattfield Road, Ayr, and 
Dewar M. Robb, M.A., 55 Union Street, Greenock. 

AUDITORS., 

WILLIAM A. GOLD, Wallacethorn, Riccarton, Kilmarnock. 
GEORGE BROW~, M.A., Dunard, 52 Witch Road, Kilmarnock. 

Page 808



CONSTITUTION AND RULES 

CONSTITUTION AND RULBS. 

Name. 
1. The Association shall be called "The Burns Federation," 

with headquarters at Kilmamock. 

Object8. 
2. The objects of the Federation shall be 

(a) To strengthen and consolidate, by universal affiliation, 
the bond of fellowship amongst the members 
of Bums Clubs and kindred Societies. 

(b) To purchase and preserve manuscripts and other 
relics associated with Robert Bums. (Gifts of 
relics shall be reported by the Hon. Secretary 
at the next meeting of the Executive Committee 
following thereon.) 

(c) To mark with suitable inscriptions, repair, or renew 
buildings, tombstones, etc., interesting from their 
association with Robert Burns. 

d) To encourage institutiolls and movements in honour 
of Robert Burns. 

(e) To encourage and arrange School Children's Com
petitions in order to stimulate the teaching and 
study of Scottish history, literature, art and 
music. 

(f) To encourage the development of Scottish literature, 
art and music. 

Member8hip. 
3. (a) The Federation shall consist of affiliated Clubs and 

Societies. Bums Clubs and kindred Societies may be admitted to 
the Federation by the Executive Committee, on application iD 
writing to the Hon. Secretary, enclosing a copy of their Constitu
tion and List of Office-bearers. Such applications shall be con
sidered by the Executive Committee at its next meeting. 

(b) Clubs shall be grouped into Districts as shown in the 
subjoined Schedule, but Clubs on the borders of Districts shall 
have the right to elect to which District they wish to belong. 

(c) Ladies or gentlemen who have rendered conspicuous 
service to the Burns Movement may be elected by the Council 
to the position of Honorary President or Honorary Vice-President, 
on the recommendation of the Executive Committee. 

Council. 
4. The Council shall consist of the Hon. Presidents, the Hon. 

Vice-Presidents, the Executive Committee, the Auditors, and three 
members elected by each Club. 

Page 809



THE BURNS F~DERATIO:S 69 

Conference of the Council. 

5. (a) The Annual Conference of the Council shall be held, 
at such place as may be arranged, on the second Saturday of 
September, when the Annual Reports shall be submitted and 
Office-bearers for the ensuing year elected. 

(b) Clubs outwith the United Kingdom may be represented 
by proxy at the Conference. 

(0) Nominations for Offices shall be made by the Executive 
Committee or by Clubs. 

(d) Nominations of Office-bearers, Intimations of election of 
District representative members, a.nd Notices of motion shall be 
lodged in writing with the Hou. Secretary uot later than the 
second Saturday of June. But notwithstanding this, the Executive 
Committee shall have power at any of its meetings to formulate 
proposals on any subject it may deem necessary or expedient to 
be placed on the Agenda for discussion and decision at the Annual 
Conference. 

(e) The Agenda of the Conference and the Annual Reports 
shall be issued to Clubs by the Hon. Secretary not less than one 
month before the Conference. 

(f) No alteration shall be made in the "Constitution and 
Rules" except at the Conference of the Council, and then only 
by a two-thirds' majority of those voting. 

Executive Committee. 

6. (a) The Executive Committee shall consist of 
(1) President, Immediate Past-President, two Vice-Pre

sidents, Hon. Secretary, Hon. Treasurer, Hon. 
Editor of the Burns Cltronide, Hon. Secretary 
of School Children's Competitions, Assistant Hon. 
Secretary; and 

(2) Representative members elected by Districts, as 
shown in the subjoined Schedule. 

(b) The Office-bearers shall retire annually, and shall be 
eligible for re-election. ' 

(c) District representative members shall be elected 
annually by all Districts on the basis of one 
member for the first five Clubs, and one member for 
every additional ten Clubs, in each District; but for 
Edinburgh, London, Wales, Ireland, and Overseas 
Districts, one Club in each shall qualify for 
admission as a District. No District shall have 
more than one member unless the number of its 
Clubs exceeds fourteen. If a District fail to 
elect a representative member, the Executive Com
mittee shall have power to fill the vacancy. 

Page 810



70 CONSTITUTION AND RULES 

Meetings of the Executive Committee. 
7. (a) The Executive Committee shall conduct the business of 

the Federation, and shall meet on the third Saturdays of October, 
December, March and June, and when called by the Hon. 
Secretary. The place of each meeting shall be fixed at the 
previons meeting. 

(b) The Hon. Secretary shall give at least one week's notice of 
meetings, along with the Agenda. 

(c) Notices of motion and other business to appear in the 
Agenda should reach the Hon. Secretary at least a fortnight 
before the meeting. 

(d) Special meetings may be held on a writteu request to the 
Hon. Secretary signed by not fewer than ten members of the 
Committee and stating the business to be considered. 

(e) Ten shall form a quorum at meetings. 
(f) The President, the Vice-Presidents, the Hon. Secretary, 

and the Hon. Treasurer shall be ex officiis members of all 
Standing Sub-Committees. 

SubscriptiolLS. 
8. (a) Each Club, on admission to the Federation, shall pay a 

registration fee of One guinea, in addition to the annual 
Bubscription, which shall be One pound, ten shillings. 

(b) Clubs in arrear with their subscriptions shall not be 
entitled to be represented at the annual Conference of the 
Council. 

(c) Clubs failing to pay their subscriptions for two con
secutive years may be struck off the roll of the Federation. 

Finance. 
9. (a) The Sub-Committee on Finance shall consist of five 

members of the Executive Committee, three to form a quorum. 
(b) No accounts shall be paid without the authority of the 

Finance Committee, which shall submit the Minutes of its 
meetings to the quarterly meetings of the Executive Committee. 

(c) The Bank Account shall be kept in the name of the 
Federation, and shall be operated by the Hon. Treasurer for the 
time being. Deposit Receipts shall be taken out in the name 
of the Federation, to be drawn on the endorsement of the 
President, the Hon. Secretary, and the Hon. Treasurer, or any 
two of them. 

Honorary Secretary. 
10. The Hon. Secretary shall keep the Minute Book of 

the Federation, in which shall be recor4ed the proceedings of 
all meetings. He shall also conduct the correspondence of the 
Federation, convene all meetings, and issue Diplomas. He shall 

Page 811



THE BURNS FEDERATION 71 

prepare the Executive Committee's Report on the year's 
transactions, for submission to the Conference of the Council. 

Honorary Treasurer. 
11. The Hon. Treasurer shall have charge of all monies paid 

to the Federation, and shall pay all accounts authorised by the 
Finance Committee. He shall prepare a statement of his accounts 
for the year to 31st July, which shall be audited by two Auditors, 
who shall be appointed annually at the Conference of the Council, 
and who shall not be members of the Executive Committee. 

"Burns Chronicle." 
12. (a) The Burns Chronicle shall be an official publication 

of the Federation, and shall be published annually, not later 
than 1st January. It shall contain a Directory of the Clubs on 
the roll of the Federation, reports of the transactions of the 
Federation and of affiliated Clubs during the previous year, 
and such literary matter and illustl;ations as may be decided 
by the Hon. Editor. 

(b) The Hon. Editor shall be responsible for the publication 
of the BU1"1/,3 Chronicle, and shall submit annually a report on the 
sale of the latest issue. Estimates for the printing of the Burns 
Ohronicle and other publications of the Federation shall be 
approved by the Finance Committee. 

(c) The published price of the Burns Ohronicle shall be fixed 
by the Executive Committee. 

School Ohildren's Oompetitions. 
13. The Hon. Secretary of School Children's Competitions shall 

give assistance to affiliated Clubs in the organisation of their Com
petitions, and shall endeavour to co-ordinate the efforts of the 
various Clubs. He shall submit annually a report on the Com
petitions organised by the Clubs. 

Benefits. 
114. (a) Each Club, on affiliation, shall be supplied gratis 

with the Diploma of Membership of the Federation. 
(b) Members of affiliated Clubs shall be entitled to receive 

a Pocket Diploma on payment of One shilling. 
(c) Affiiliated Clubs shall be supplied gratis with three 

copies of the B'I1!r'1/,s Ohronicle alld with copies of newspapers 
containing reports of meetings, demonstrations, etc., organ
ised, conducted, or attended by the Federation. 

(d) Members of affiliated Clubs shall be entitled to be 
supplied, through the Secretaries of their respective Clubs, with 
copies of all works published by the Federation, at such 
discount as may be fixed by the Executive Committee. 

Page 812



LIST OF DISTRICTS 
(See Article No. Bc of "Constitution ") 

I. 
II. 

III. 
IV. 
V. 

VI. 
VU. 

VIII. 
IX. 
X. 

XI. 
XII. 

XIII. 
XIV. 

XV. 

XVI. 

XVII. 

XVIII. 

XIX. 
XX. 

XXI. 
XXII. 

XXIII. 
XXIV. 
XXV. 

XXVI. 
XXVII. 

XXVIII. 

Ayrshire. 
Edinburgh. 
Glasgow. 
Dumbarton, Argyll, and Bute Shires. 
Fifeshire. 
Lanarkshire. 
Lothians (Mid and East) and Borders. 
Lothian (West). 
Renfrewshire. 
Stirling, Clackmannan, and West Perth Shire.a 
East Perthshire, Angus and Kinross. 
Northern Scottish Counties. 
Southern Scottish Counties. 
London and South-Eastern England. 

Essex, Hertford, Middlesex, Berks, Bucki~ham, 
Oxford, Hampshire, Surrey, Sussex, Kent. 

North-Eastern England. 
Northumberland, Durh>\m, Y orbhire (except 

Sheffield, Rotherham, Doncaster) 
N orth-Western England. 

Cumberland, Westmorland, Lancashire, Cheshire 
Midlands of England. 

Derby, Nottingham, Lincoln, South Yorkshire, 
Leicester, Rutland 

Stafford, Shropshire, Worcester, Warwiok, North· 
ampton, Cambridge, Huntingdon, Bedford, 
Norfolk, Suffolk 

South-Western England. 
Hereford, Gloucester, Wilts, Somerset, Dorset, 

Devon, Cornwall, Monmouth 
Wales. 
Ireland. 
South Africa. 
Australia. 
New Zealand. 
Canada. 
India. 
United States of America 
Near East. 
China. 

Page 813



THE BURNS FEDERATION 73 

I. Ayrshire-36 Clubs: 3 Members. 
e Kilmarnock. 564 Ochiltree Winsome Willie. 

35 DaIry. 568 Darvel. 
45 Cumnock. 573 Croft Springside. 
1)6 Muirkirk Lapraik. 591 Lugar Water 

173 Irvine. 592 Benwhat. 
192 Ayrshire B.C.Assoc. 593 Barrmill. 
252 Alloway. 596 Glaisnock. 
256 Newton-on-Ayr. 605 Craigmark and Bumton. 
274 Troon. 608 Riccarton WaUace. 
275 Ayr. 609 Seaforth Highlanders. 
288 Beith Caledonia. 621 Scottish Aviation. 
310 Mauchline. 622 Coylton. 
365 Catrine. 623 Kilwinning. 
369 Maybole St. Crispin's. 632 Symington. 
377 Kilbirnie Rosebery. 634 Ardeer. 
435 Ayr Tam 0' Shanter. 639 Cumnock Dumfries Arms. 
406 Troon Masonic. 642 Beith Tam 0' Shanter. 
000 New Cumnock. 649 Auld Affieck, Catrine. 

Secretary: John M. Irving, 20 Melville Street, Kilmarnock. 

11. Edinburgh-9 Clubs: 1 Member. 
22 Edinburgh. 307 Edinburgh Ayrshire Assoc. 

124 Ninety. 314 Edinburgh Scottish. 
212 Portobello. 341 Leith. 
293 New Craighall. 378 Edinburgh B.C.Assoe. 

398 Colinton. 
Secretary: Fred. J. Belford, M.A., 3 Park Grove, Liberton, 

Edinburgh, 9. 
Ill. Glasgow-2B Clubs: 3 Members. 

3 Tam 0' Shanter. 103 Scottish. 
7 Thistle. 169 Glasgow B.C.Assoc. 
9 Royalty. 181 Primrose. 

33 Haggis. 213 Kingston. 
34 Carrick. 263 Masonic. 
36 Rosebery. 282 Glasgow Bowling Assoc. 
49 Bridgeton. 295 Burns House. 
53 Govan Fairfield. 477 Bellahouston. 
68 Sandyford. 484 Sheddens Ladies. 
72 Partick. 581 Cumbernauld. 
74: National Burns Memorial 5~5 Queen's Park Clarinda. 

Cottage Homes. 587 Budhill and Springboig. 
91 Shettleston. 6lO Royal Arch, Parkhead. 

139 National. 612 Torrance Masonic. 
653 Glasgow Ex-Senice Teachers. 

Secretary: Andrew Stenhouse, LL.B.. 104 West CampbeU Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

Page 814



74 LIST OF DISTRICTS 

IV. Dumbapton, Apgyll, and Bute Shipes-8 Clubs: t Member. 

2 Alexandria. 
10 Dumbarton. 

225 Helensburgh. 
244 Dalmuir. 

421 Arroohar and Tarbet. 
550 Dunoon Mary Campbell. 
580 Cumbrae. 
624 Oban. 

Secretary,' Wm. C. Cookburn, Holmwood, Uddingston. 

v. Fifeshire-28 Clubs: 2 Members. 

62 Cupar. 457 Kinglassie Ladies. 
85 Dunfermline. 459 Cowdenbeath West End 

184 Blairadam. Jolly Beggars. 
250 Cowdenbeath Tam 0' 478 Keltyand Blairadam Bonnie 

Shanter. Doon Ladies. 
262 Fife B.C.Assoo. 
283 Sinolairtown. 496 Auld Hoose, Burntisland. 
326 Bingry Ladies. 508 Auohterderran. 
330 Glenoraig "Bonnie Jean." 554 Bruoe, Falkland. 
345 Denbeath. 583 Loohgelly Pipe Band. 
402 High Valleyfield Highland 628 Steelend Jolly Beggars. 

Mary Ladies. 633 Lads 0' Buokhaven. 
447 Cowdenbeath Mountain 655 Kennoway Jolly Beggars. 

Daisy Ladies. 656 Dundonald "Jean Armour" 
452 Auohterderran Bonnie Jean Ladies. 

Secretary;,' T. C. Anderson, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, 
Kelty, Fife. 

VI. Lanapkshipe-8ee next page. 

VII. Mid and East Lothians and Bopdeps-25 Clubs: 2 Membeps 

96 Jedburgh. 552 Fawside, Tranent. 
108 East Calder. 600 Millerhill. 
198 Gorebridge Jolly Beggars. 602 Cookenzie Thorntree. 
199 Newbattle and Distriot. 603 The Tower. 
289 Hawiok. 613 Tranent No. 1. 
319 Fisherrow Masonio. 631 Penoaitland and Ormiston. 
338 Dalkeith and Distriot. 635 Jean Armour, Tranent. 
346 Oakbank Mossgiel. 641 Rose well. 
384 Pumpherston Bonnie Doon. 644 Heiton. 
400 Haddington. 650 Mid and East Lothians 
427 Gorebridge Glenoairn. a.nd Borders B.C.A. 
475 Tweeddale Ladies. 651 Dalkeith Plough 
516 The Airts, Prestonpans. 654 Ormiston Yew Tree 

Secretary.' J ames J uner, 2 Greenhall Cresoent, Gorebridge. 

Page 815



THE BURNS FEDERATION 75 

VI. Lanarkshire-50 Clubs: 40 Membel'S. 

20 Airdrie. 506 Dykehead Jean Armour. 
100 Hamilton Mossgiel. 509 Motherwell Masonic. 
121 Hamilton Junior. 520 Uddingston Lochlie Ladies. 
133 Newarthill. 522 Glenlee. 
152 Hamilton. 526 DYKehead Tam 0' Shanter. 
157 Baillieston. 529 William Mitchell. 
182 Stane Mossgiel. 533 Fauldhouse. 
207 Cambuslang Wingate. 537 Harthi1l: 
237 Uddingston Masonic. 542 Newarthill White Heather. 
266 Newton Jolly Beggars. 546 Oak, Hamilton. 
348 Newton Bonnie Jean. 547 Jolly Beggars, Coalburn 
356 Burnbank Masonic. 549 Bothwell Bonie Lesley 
372 Baillieston Jean Armour. Ladies. 
387 Mary Campbell (Cambus- 574 Holy town Blair Athole. 

lang). 577 Dalserf and Clydesdale. 
388 Kyle (Shotts) Ladies. 578 L/l.narkshire B.C.A. 
390 Meikle Earnock Jolly 595 Allanton Brig 0' Doon 

Beggars. Ladies. 
392 Whi!Ret. 598 Forth Jolly Beggars. 
424 Cambuslang Tam 0' Shanter 699 Larkhall Raploch. 
441 Temple, Shotts. 604 Bellshill No. 1. 
466 Dykehead Afton Water 614 Bellshill Caledonian. 

Ladies. 637 Larkhall Applebank. 
467 Gilbertfield Highland Mary 638 Stonehouse. 

Ladies. 640 Hamilton White Heather. 
468 High Blantyre. 643 Rutherglen. 
494 Motherwell United Services.647 Hillend, Airdrie. 
505 Wishaw Masonic. 652 Lanark Caledonian. 

Secrrtary -" Mrs. M. Thornson, 21 Gilbertfield Road, Cambuslang. 

VIII. West Lothlan-11 Clubs: 1 Member. 

125 Blackburn on Almond. 
160 Whitburn. 
429 Bathgate Jolly Beggars. 
432 Winchburgh. 
471 Rose of Grange (Bo'ness). 
579 Bathgate Tarn 0' Shanter. 

588 Atlas Tarn 0' Shanter 
( Armadale). 

607 Hadrian. 
611 Blackridge. 
615 West Lothian B.C.A. 
645 Bo'ness Jolly Beggars. 

Secretary: P. Glen, 41 Torphichen Street, Bathgate. 

Page 816



76 LIST OF DIS1'RICTS 

IX. Rent'Pewshire-17 Clubs: 2 Members. 

21 Greenock. 
48 Paisley. 
59 Gourock Jolly Beggars. 

161 Paisley Charleston. 
190 Port-Glasgow. 
209 Greenock St. John's. 
254 Greenock Victoria. 
383 Greenock Heather. 
430 Gourock. 

431 Inverkip. 
472 Renfrewshire B.C.A. 
524 Cronies, Paisley. 
538 Greenock &; District 

P.P. Assoc. 
540 J ohnstone Masonic. 
567 Paisley Newtown. 
576 Fort Matilda. 
586 Barrhead. 

Secretary: Arthur C. E. Lewis, Vallorbe, Rodney Road, Gourock. 

X. Stirling, Claekmannan, and West Pel"th Shires-
28 Clubs: 2 Members. 

4 Callander. 510 Scottish Dyes. 
37 Dollar. 541 Doune. 
60 Stirling. 543 Abbey Craig. 

126 Falkirk. 558 Cambusbarron. 
218 Bannockburn, 582 Higginsneuk. 
292 Grahamston. 590 Craigs Cronies. 
352 Grangemouth. 619 Bainsford Cross Road •. 
380 Falkirk Cross Keys. 620 Muirhead. 
399 St. Ringans. 630 Coalsnaughton. 
409 Stenhousemuir and District 646 Clear Winding Devon, Alva 
426 Sauchie. 648 Carron Bridge, Kilsyth. 
469 Denny Cross. 657 Fallin. 
1)03 Dunblane. 658 Larbert Bowlers. 

Secretary: Thomas R. Corrie, 36 Upper Craigs, Stirling. 

XI. East Pel"thshlPe, Angus and Kinross-9 Clubs: 1 Member. 

14 Dundee. 
26 Perth. 
44 Forfar. 
76 Brechin. 

82 Arbroath. 
242 Montrose. 
327 Perth St. Mark's. 
627 Kinross. 

659 Dundee Burn8 Society. 

Secretary: George Cumming, J. P., Lindsay Lane, Brechin. 

Page 817



THE BURNS FEDERATION 

~II. Northern Scottish Counties-7 Clubs: 1 Membe .... 
~o Aberdeen. 

149 Elgin. 
336 Peterhead. 

367 Domoch. 
403 Fraserburgh. 
458 Stonehaven. 

470 St. Giles (Elgin). 
Secretarv: Ifrank Robertson, 6 Upper Kirkgate, Aberdeen. 

XIII. Southe ... n Scottish Countles-17 Clubs: 1 Member. 
112 Dumfries Howft'. 536 Whitlhom. 
217 Eskdale. 562 Castle Douglas. 
226 Dumfries. 589 Solway. 
309 Annan. 616 Kirkconnel and Sanquhar. 
323 Kirkoudbright. 625 Lockerbie. 
393 Annan Ladies. 626 Moft'at and District. 
437 Dumfries Ladies. 629 Sanquhar. 
479 Queen of the South Ladies. 660 The Langholm Ladies. 

530 Southern Scottish Counties B.C.A. 

Secretary: John Sturgeon, 7 Nellieville Terrace, Dumfries. 

77 

XIV. London and South-Eastern England-o Clubs: 1 Member. 
1 Bums Club of London. 570 Scottish Clans Assoc. of 

481 London Ayrshire Sooiety. London. 
492 Harrow Cal. Soc. 617 Reading and District Ca!. 

Asscn. 
Secretary: John M. Swan, 17 Roxborough Park, Harrow, 

Middlesex. 

XV. North-Eastern England-11 Clubs: 1 Member. 
89 Sunderland. 531 Tees-side Cal. Soc. 

156 Newcastle. 534 Bedlington. 
HS8 Darlington. 544 Ashington. 
165 Wa.llsend-on-Tyne. 548 Leeds Ca.l. Soc. 
379 Hartlepools. 551 Scarborough Cal. Soc. 

555 Harrogate St. Andrew's Soc. 

Secretary: Matthew Neilson, 14 Percy Terrace, Sunderland. 

XVI. North·Western England-8 Clubs: 1 Member. 
71 Carlisle. 417 Bumley and District. 

236 Whitehaven. ~36 Walney Jolly Beggars 
363 Barrow, St. Andrew's Ladies. 

Society. 572 Chester Cal. Assoc. 
366 Liverpool. 618 Altrincham and Sale Caled. 

Socy. 

S,cretary: Miss Florence M. M'Leod, Rowanhill, 34 ChildwaU 
Mount Road, Liverpool, 16. 

Page 818



78 LIST OF DISi'RIOTS 

XVII. Midlands of England-17 Clubs: 2 Members. 
17 Nottingham. 454 Rotherham. 
55 Derby. 461 Leicester CaI. Soc. 

167 Birmingham. 528 Loughborough Soottish Soc. 
296 Walsall. 553 Wolverhampton CaI. Soc. 
329 Newark and Distriot. 556 Donoaster CaI. Soo. 
405 Sheffield CaI. Soo. 559 Coventry Cal. Soo. 
438 Chesterfield Cal. Soc. 563 Norfolk Cal. Soo. 
445 Bu.x:ton Cal. Soo. 584 Corby. 

606 Rockingham. 

8~cretary: John Currie, 20 Arboretum Street, Nottingham. 

XVIII. South-Westel'D England-4 Clubs: 1 Member. 

120 Bristol. 480 Falmouth. 
462 Cheltenham Scottish Soc. 535 Plymouth & District Cal. 

Soc. 

Secretary: F. W. Whitehead, Albion Chambers, Bristol. 

Hi Belfast. 

XIX. Wales-1 Club: 1 Member. 
444 Swansea and West Wales. 

XX. Il'eland-3 Clubs: 1 Member. 

183 Londonderry. 
406 Dublin St. Andrew's Soc. 

Secretary: George Roddick, A vondale House, Ballyolare, 
Co. Antrim, Nothem Ireland. 

XXI. South Afrlea-l Club: 1 Member. 

373 Red Hill, Natal. 

XXII. AustraUa-7 Clubs: 1 Member. 
324 Stockton. 523 Highland Society of N.S.W. 
511 Perth. 532 Cessnock. 
521 Waratah-Mayfield. 545 Parramatta. 

566 Scottish Soo. and Burns Club of Australia. 

XXIII. New Zealand-3 Clubs: 1 Member. 

449 Wellington. 497 St. Andrew (Wellington). 
636 Gisbome. 

Page 819



THE BURNS FEDERATION 79 

XXIV. Canada-12 Clubs: 1 Member. 

21) Winnipeg St. Andrew's Soc. 476 Border Cities (Ont.) 
197 Winnipeg. 501 GaIt (Ont.) 
303 Victoria (B.C.) St. 513 Fredericton St. Andre1\"s 

Andrew's Soc. Soc. 
301) New Waterford. 561 London (Ontario). 
325 Vancouver Fellowship(B.C.) 571 Edmonton. 
443 Burns Club of Victoria 575 Windsor (Ont.) Jean 

(B.c.) Armour. 

XXV. India-2 Clubs: 1 Member. 

355 Calcutta. 560 Cawnpore Ca!. Soc. 

XXVI. U.S.A.-26 Clubs: 3 Members. 

171 Chattanooga. 
208 Colorado Springs. 
220 St. Louis. 
238 Atlanta. 
271 Trenton. 
278 Clan Stewart. 
284 Philadelphia. 
320 Troy. 
331 Buffalo. 
354 Royal Order of Scottish 

·Clans. 
375 Holyoke. 
381 Greater New York Masonic 
391 Waterbury. 
412 Gary. 

413 San Francisco St. Andrew's 
Soc. 

453 Philadelphia Ladies' 
Auxiliary. 

464 Yakima Valley. 
493 Akron. 
498 Flint. 
507 Orange County. 
518 Ye Auld Cronies, Ohio. 
525 Flint Jolly Beggars. 
557 Atlanta Ladies. 
565 Robert Burns Circle of New 

York. 
594 Cuyahoga County. 
597 New York City. 

Secretary: James H. Baxter, 21 Bleecker Avenue, Troy, N.Y 
U.S.A. 

XXVII. Near East-3 Clubs: 1 Member. 

495 Baghdad Cal. Soc. 515 Abadan Cal. Soc. 
601 Palestine Cal. Soc. 

XXVIII. China-l Club: 1 Member 

514 Shanghai. 

Page 820



80 LIST OF PAST·PRESIDENTS 

LIST OF PAST-PRESIDENTS. 

181:15-1899 : Provost Peter Sturrock, Kilmarnock. 
1899-1906 : Provost David Mackay, Kilmarnock. 
1906·1907 : David Murray, M.A., B.Sc., Kilmarnock. 
1908·1909 : William Wallace, M.A., LL.D., Glasgow. 
1909·1910 : Captain David Sneddon, V.D., Kilmarnock. 
1910-1923 : Duncan M'Naught, LL.D., Kilmaurs. 
1923~1927 : Sir Robert Bruce, D.L., LL.D., Glasgow. 
1927-1930 : Sir Joseph Dobbie, S.S.C., Edinburgh. 
1930-1933 : Sir Alexander Gibb, G.B.E., C.B., London. 
1933-1937 : Ninian Macwhannell, F.R.LB.A., Glasgow. 
1937·1943 : M. H. McKerrow, F.S.A.Scot., Dumfries. 
1943-1946 : John S: Clarke, J.P., Glasgow. 

List of places at which the Annual Conference of 
the Council has been held. 

1885·93 Kilmarnock. 
1894 Glasgow. 
1895 Dundee. 
1896 Kilmarnock. 
1897 Greenock. 
1898 Mauchline. 
1899 Dumfries. 
1900 Kilmarnock. 
1901 Glasgow. 
1902 Greenock. 
1903 Edinburgh. 
1904 Stirling. 
1905 Hamilton. 
1906 Kilmarnock. 
1907 Sunderland. 
1908 St. Andrews. 
1909 Dunfermline. 
1910 Lanark. 
1911 Glasgow. 
1912 Carlisle. 
1913 Galashiels. 
1915·19 Glasgow. 

1920 London. 
1921 Dunfermline. 
1922 Birmingham. 
1923 Ayr. 
1924 Dumfries. 
1925 Edinburgh. 
1926 Perth. 
1921 Derby. 
1928 Aberdeen. 
1929 Troon. 
1930 Greenock. 
1931 Hawick. 
1932 Stirling. 
1933 London. 
1934 Glasgow. 
1935 Ayr and Kilmarnock. 
1936 Elgin. 
1937 Newcastle·upon·Tyne 
1938 Dumfries. 
1940·46 Glasgow. 
1947 Dunoon. 

The Council did not meet in 1914 and in 1939. 

Page 821



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF 
THE COUNCIL 

The Pavilion, 
Dunoon, 13th September, 1947. 

The Annual Conference of the Council of the Burns 
Federation was held here to-day at 10 a.m. 

The President, Sir P. J. DolIan, D.L .. , LL.D., J.P., 
occupied the chair and was accompanied on the platform by 
the other office-bearers. 

Apologies for absence were intimated from Messrs. J. C. 
Ewing, Hon. Editor; T. B. Crane, Alex. Emslie, W. C. 
Faulds, Thomas Findlay and John Neill, members of Execu
tive; and the Rev. Dr. R. S. Birch, President of the Burns 
Club of London. Apologies and greetings were submitted 
from the following clubs :-Annan Ladies, Montrose, and 
M~>untain Daisy, Cowdenbeath. 

The following 91 clubs were represented by 192 
delegates :-No. 0, Kilmarnock; 1, London; 2, Alexandria; 
3, Tarn 0' Shanter, Glasgow; 9, Royalty, Glasgow; 14, 
Dundee; 15, Belfast Association; 17, Nottingham Scottish 
Association; 21, Greenock; 22, Edinburgh; 36, Rosebery, 
Glasgow; 68, Sandyford; 82, Arbroath; 85, Dunfermline.; 
89, Sunderland; 112, Dumfries Burns Howff; 120, Bristol 
Caledonian Society; 121, Hamilton Junior; 124, The Ninety, 
Edinburgh; 133, Newarthill; 139, National; 153, Scottish, 
Glasgow; 156, Newcastle and Tyneside; 158, Darlington; 
169, Glasgow and District Association; 181, Primrose, 
Glasgow; 184, Blairadam Shanter; 190, Port Glasgow; 192, 
Ayrshire Association; 198, Gorebridge Twenty-five Jolly 
Beggars; 199, Newbattle and District; 209, Greenock St. 
John's; 217, Eskdale; 226, Dumfries; 237, Uddingston 
Masonic; 239, Hawick; 244, Dalmuir; 274, Troon; 275, 
Ayr; 292, Grahamston; 295, The Burns House Club, Ltd.; 
307, Edinburgh Ayrshire; 309, Annan; 310, Mauchline; 324, 
Stockton (N.S.W.); 355, Calcutta; 356, Burnbank and Dis
trict Masonic; 372, Baillieston Jean Armour; 373, Red 
Hill, Natal; 377, Kilbirnie Rosebery; 378, Edinburgh Dis
trict Association; 379, The Hartlepools; 380, Falkirk Cross 
Keys' 387, Mary Campbell, Cambuslang; 390, Meikle 
Earn~ck Jolly Beggars; 398, Colinton; 400, Haddington; 

F 

Page 822



82 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

405, Caledonian Society of Sheffield; 409, Stenhousemuir 
and District Plough; 426, Sauchie; 437, Dumfries La.dies 
N.o. 1; 438, Chesterfield and District CaJedonian Association; 
454, Rotherham and District Scottish Association; 467, Gil
bertfield Highland Mary; 469, Denny Cr.oss; 472, Renfrew
shire Association; 477, Bellahouston; 479, Queen .of the 
South Ladies; 497, St. Andrew's, Wellington (N.Z.); 501, 
GaIt (Ont.); 520, Uddingston Lochlie Ladies; 522, Glenlee; 
530, Southern Sc.ottish C.ounties Associati.on; 550, Dunoon 
Mary CampbeU; 566, Scottish Society and Burns Club .of 
Australia; 576, F.ort Matilda; 577, Dalserf and Clydesdale; 
580, Cumbrae; 581, Cumbernauld and District; 593, Barn
mill J.olly Beggars; 596, Glaisnock; 600, Millerhill; 604, 
Bellshill N.o. 1; 612, T.orrance Masonic; 613, Tranent No. 
1; 616, Kirkc.onnel and Sanquhar; 624, Oban; 630, Coals
naught.on; 636, Applebank; 642, Ruthergloo.; and 645, 
Clear Winding Devon, Alva. 

A civic welc.ome to the delegates was extended by 
Pr.ovost James Marshall, Dunoon, wh.o was cordially thanked 
.on the moti.on .of Mr. Th.omas B. Goudie, Senior Vice
President. 

In his .opening address, the President claimed that the 
Federati.on was .a comm.on meeting-place f.or all men and 
women .of goodwill, irrespective .of their p.olitics. It was 
f.or members to keep the Federati.on what its f.ounders meant 
it to be, a democratic .organisati.on which during the past 
62 years had kept the spirit .of dem.ocracy clean. 

The Minutes of last year's Conference at Glasg.ow-which 
are printed on pp. 70-83 ()f the 1947 Burn.s Clvronicle--were 
held as read and were appr.oved .on the moti.on .of Mr. 
Gall.oway, Sauchie, seconded by Mr. Thorpe, Hamilt.on 
Juni.or. 

H.oN. SECRETARY'S ANNUAL REPORT 

The H.on. Secretary submitted his rep.ort f.or the year 
1946-47 as foll.ows:-

F.or the past nine years the exigencies and aftermath .of 
war prevented us fr.om inviting .our delegates and friends 
t.o c.ombine pleasure with business at .our Annual C.onference. 
Ha.ppily, we have returned t.o m.ore .or less n.ormal times and 
it is therefore fitting that we sh.ould celebrate that return 
by deciding t.o c.ome " D.o.on the Watter " and select Dun.o.on 
f.or the first time in the history .of the Federati.on. The 
presence here to-day .of some 300 delegates sh.ows approTal 
.of .our selection and the pr.ogramme arranged with the 
co-.operati.on .of the T.own C.ouncil of Dunoon will, I feel c.on-

Page 823



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 83 

fident, add .one m.or~ t.o the list .of many mem.orable 
C.onferences. 

A year ag.o Mr. J.ohn S. Clarke demitted .office after having 
filled the Presidential Chair f.or three years with much 
acceptance. In his success.or, Sir Patrick D.ollan, we have a. 
President .of wide interests wh.o has the welfare and success 
.of the Federati.on at heart and it is with pleasure that I ha.ve 
t.o rep.ort c.ontinued pr.ogress under his guidance. 

We rec.ord with regret the deaths .of Dr. J. C. Smith, 
f.ormer Seni.or Inspector .of Sch.ools and j.oint-Edit.or with 
Mr. Th.omas Henders.on .of the series .of "Sc.ots Readers" 
sp.onsored by the Federati.on; Dr. William Grant, f.or many 
years Edit.or .of the Sc.ottish N ati.onal Dicti.onary and an 
H.on.orary President .of the Federati.on; and Mr. William A. 
Weir, Winnipeg, als.o .one .of .our H.on.orary Presidents. 

MEMBERSHIP 

During the year the foll.owing seventeen Clubs and 
S.ocieties were affiliated:-

Ardeer J .olly Beggars Burns Club. 
C.orby St. Andrew's S.ociety. 
Gisborne Burns Club, New Zealand. 
Ball.ochmyle B.urns Club. 
Jean Arm.our Burns Club, Tranent. 
Caled.onian Burns Club, Lanark. 
Larkhall Applebank Burns Club. 
St.oneh.ouse Burns Club. 
Heiton Burns Club. 
Hamilt.on White Heather Burns Club. 
R.osewell Burns Club. 
Beith Tam 0' Shanter Burns Club. 
Jolly Beggars Burns Club, B.o'ness. 
C.umnock Dumfries Arms Burns Club. 
The Clear Winding Dev.on Burns Club, Alva. 
Hillend District Burns Club, Airdrie. 
Carron Bridge Cr.onies Burns Club, Kilsyth. 

Restoration to full membership of Clubs which were 
dormant during the war c.ontinues. During the ;r.ear fifteen 
Clubs were re-affiliated. One of the .objects .of the Federati.on 
is to strengthen, by universal affiliati.on, the bond of fellow
ship amongst the members of Burns Clubs and kindred 
Societies and there can be little doubt that an increase in 
the number .of affiliati.ons w.ould pr.ove advantage.ous alike t.o 
the Federati.on and t.o the individual Cl.ubs and Societies. 
Y.our Executive accordingly appeal to all District Associations 

Page 824



84 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

to make an effort during the coming Winter Session to secure 
affiliation of all non-federated Burns Clubs and Societies 
in their areas. 

Clubs are reminded that lost Charters can be replaced on 
payment of five shillings-the actual cost to the Federation. 

There has again been a steady demand for Pocket Diplomas 
which are issued at one shilling each on application to the 
Hon. Treasurer. During the year 875 were issued. 

MEMORIALS 

The Grants Braes Memorial at Haddington, erected in 
1928 to mark the site of the house occupied by Gilbert Burns 
and his mother, was restored during the year. 

The direction sign at Ellisland was re-erected in a position 
sufficiently prominent to attract the attention of the passing 
motorist. 

BURNS GUEST HOUSE IN LANARKSHIRE 

It was reported that the Lanarkshire Association of Burns 
Clubs had decided to erect a permanent Memorial somewhere 
in Lanarkshire and it had been agreed that this Memorial 
take the form of a Burns Guest House. Your Executive 
commend this project and members are asked to assist in every 
way towards its completion. 

"BURNS CHRONICLE" 

Volume XXII of the Second Series of the Burm Chronicle 
was published in January and the increasing demand for 
copies was such that at the March meeting of the Executive 
it was decided that Clubs could not be supplied with addi
tional copies as it was not possible, due to lack of paper, for 
the printers to lmdertake reprinting. 

At their June meeting your Executive received with much 
regret intimation of the impending retiraI of the Hon. Editor 
of the Chronicle, Mr. James C. Ewing. Mr. Ewing has 
undertaken to complete the work for the 1948 issue. During 
his many years of Editorship, Mr. Ewing has produced work 
with discriminating and meticulous care. He is undoubtedly 
one of the leading Burns scholars and the increasing demand 
for copies of the Chronicle is due in no small measure to 
the excellence and high literary value of his( articles. Our 
best wishes are extended to him in his well merIted retirement. 

SCHOOLS COMPETITIONS 

The popularity of the Federation's Scottish Literature 
Competitions in schools contin).les and the Hon. Secretary 

Page 825



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE S5 

of these Competitions is to be congratulated on the growth 
in the number of children taking part. In this year's com
petitions there were 74,148 pupils, an increase of over 8,000 

SOOTTISH NATIONAL DICTIONARY 

The report submitted to the seventeenth annual general 
meeting of the Scottish National Dictionary Association, at 
Aberdeen, in May last, contains much of material interest to 
the Federation. Part 2 of Volume III of the Dictionary, 
comprising the remainder of the letter C and a portion of 
the letter D, has undergone final revision. Despite continued 
printing difficulties, initial revision has also been made on 
the letter I, and the letter J has been completed in first 
typescript. 

As a direct result of the vigorous publicity drive 
organised by our Vice-President, Mr. John M'Vie, the Bum 
of £3135 was received through the Federation in subscrip
tions and donations, and the number of subscribers increased 
by 239. This is indeed very gratifying. Another item of 
interest in the report is the appointment of Mr. M'Vie as 
President. This is a compliment alike to the Federation 
and to the onerous services rendered by Mr. M'Vie over 8. 

long period of years, and your Executive appeal to all Clubs 
and. Societies in the Federation to show appreciation of the 
honour conferred upon Mr. M'Vie by continuing on a 
no-less generous scale the financial support already 
commented on. 

At the March meeting of the Executive, opportunity was 
taken to recognise the services rendered by Mr. John S. 
Clarke, President for three. years, and Mr. John M'Vie, Hon. 
Secretary for fourteen years, both of whom retired at last 
Conference. In making the presentations, the President 
referred in appreciative terms to the work done by Mr. 
Clarke and Mr. M'Vie for the Federation. 

On the recommendation of the Finance Committee the 
Executive have decided that the published price of the 
Chronicle is to be fixed at 3s. instead of 2s., commencing with 
the 1948 Edition. 

Your Executive noted with interest the decision of certain 
local authorities in Scotland to include in their housing pro
grammes the provision of suitable cottages for old people. 

Charitable work was actively maintained by many Clubs 
and Societies and your Executive commend this ideal to all 
federated Clubs. During the year intimation was made to 
the Executive of bequests of £500 to the Burns Memorial 
Homes and £50 equally between the Memorial Homes and the 
Jean Armour Burns Hopses. 

Page 826



86 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENUE 

The Dublin Scottish Benevolent Society of St. Andrew 
were the recipients of a donation of £1000 from their 
Treasurer towards the cost of providing homes 'for deserving 
Scots in Dublin and the Society have asked for particulars 
of the schemes for the provision and upkeep of the Memorial 
Homes and Jean Armour Houses at Mauchline. 

SUNDERLAND BURNS CLUB 

It was intimated during the year that the Sunderland 
Burns Club celebrated its Jubilee on 24th January, 1947. 
Congratulations were sent by yOJIr Executive to the Club and 
to the Honorary Secretary, Mr. M. Neilson, who has occupied 
that position with distinction for the past fifty years. 

ARBROATH BURNS CLUB 

Intimation has been received that the Arbroath Burns 
Club propose to proceed with the erection of a Burns Statue 
in the town, for which the necessary funds have been 
collected. 

RALLY OF AYRSHIRE CLUBS 

A Rally of Burns Clubs in Ayrshire took place at Kilmar
nock on 19th July, 1947, during which Sir Patrick Dollan 
unveiled a Tablet marking the site of John Wilson's Printing 
Office in Waterloo Street. The Rally was well attended and 
was enjoyed by all who took part in it. 

(Signed) ANDREW STENHOUSE, Hon.. Secretary. 

In presenting the report, Mr. Stenhouse said he would 
like to make a personal eXflanation about his resignation 
from the honorary secretaryship. When he consented to 
accept this post he did so with the proviso that if he found 
the duties too onerous he should be allowed to resign. His 
profession~l duties had increased and he found himself 
unable to give Federation affairs the attention they deserved. 
It was for that reason only that he had now resigned. There 
was one thing which was not in the report, said Mr. Sten
house-the question of what wa,s variously called the Scottish 
National Theatre, the Burns Memorial Theatre and other 
things. As secretary he wished to say that he knew nothing 
about that because he had not received any sort of communi
cation about it. Lastly, a letter had been received from the 
Scottish Society and Burns Club of Australia to say that 
at their annual meeting a whip-round for a Britain Fund 
was inaugurated. The Society intended to forward parcels 

Page 827



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFlmENCE 87 

to each of. the affiliated .Clubs in .Great Britain and they had 

started wIth the first SIX Clubs In the " Burns Chronicle." 

That was a fine way of demonstrating the friendship 

between Burns Clubs all over the world. 
In reFly to a question by Mr. J. Kevan McDowall, 

Glasgow, the Hon. Treasurer stated that he had recently 

received instructions from the Office of Works to proceed 

with the erection of a new Fog-house at Ballochmyle and that 

plans are in course of preparation by an architect with an 

intense interest in Ballochmyle. 
In the course of discussion arising from report of the 

proFosal by Arbroath Burns Club to erect a statue of Burns, 

it was suggested that the Executive of the Federation should 

promote some scheme such aa a Cottage Home at Mauchline. 

The President pointed out that extension of the existing 

Mauchline Homes did not appear possible and suggested 

that the Federation might consult with the Town Council 

of Dunoon as to the erection in Dunoon of a Mary Campbell 

Home for aged spinsters and widows. The meeting accepted 

the President's suggestion and remitted to the Executive to 

consider the proposal and to report. 
On the motion of the President, the Annual Report was 

adopted. 

FINANCIAL RE,PORT 

Mr. J ames MacIntyre, in submitting the treasurer's 

report, said the first financial statement he made four or 

five yeare ago showed an income of less than £900. In the 

past year the income had been £3212. Annual subscriptions 

were slightly smaller than in the previous year; other items 

were much the same, and what had been resFonsible for the 

substantial increase was the £1000 donation by Mr. W. G. 

M'Aulay. During the year he had received one or two 

handsome donations through the good offices of Sir Patrick 

Dollan. He had handed over £50 which he received in 

donations and that had been divided between the National 

Burns Memorial Homes and the Jean Armour Houses. The 

sale of the" Burns Chronicle " had produced an income of 

£638, whereas the expediture on it was £574. T.hat i'ucce~s 

was largely due to Sir Patrick's effort to secure advertise

ments. The Scottish Literature Fund had a balance in hand 

of £428 which was an increase of £45; the Central Fund 

had ri8:n by over £30 to £299; the Joseph Laing Waugh 

Memorial Fund a180 showed a slight increase. The total 

financial assets of the Federation amounted to £1519. 

The President,in supplement of the Hon. Treasurer, 

referred to the necessity for increasing the price of the 

Page 828



88 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

" Burns Chronicle" and indicated that opportunity would 
shortly be taken of reconstituting and modernising the 
" Chronicle" and of producing another publication with 
a popular appeal. 

The report was adopted on the motion of Mr. Georga 
Humphrey. 

The Financial Statement is Frinted on pp. 94-95. 

" BURNS CHRONIOLE " REPORT 

In the absence of the Hon. Editor, the adoption of the 
report on the " Burns Chronicle" was moved by the Presi
dent. 

Proceeding, Sir Patrick Eoaid that Mr. Ewing had inti
mated his wish to retire from the editorship !tfter the publica
tion of the next" Chronicle." He considered Mr. Ewing to be 
the world's greatest authority on Robert Burns; he had 
done his job well, and they had all recognised that what 
appeared in the" Chronicle" was authoritative. It would be 
the wish of all that they should record in their minutes their 
appreciation of his great services on behalf of the Burns 
movement. (Applause.) With 360 Burns Clubs in the 
Federation the circulation of the " Chronicle" ought to be 
in the region of 10,000. If it were that, they would get 
finance and, mOore important still, they would have influence. 
The new editor must be a person who would have the confi
dence of every student and lover of Burns, and the appoint
ment must be considered very carefully. 

The President's motion was aFproved and the report, 
which is printed on page 98, was unanimously adopted. 

SCHOOL COMPETITIONS 

The report on school competitions was submitted by Mr. 
Fred J. Belford whOo said it would be noted with satisfaction 
that the number of comFetitors had increased by over 8000 
on last year's figures. There were still seven Education Com
mittees who did not come into the scheme. If some persuasion 
were exercised on these committees they might have 100,000 
children taking part. TiIle committee was now considering 
the issue of new certificates for children in the lower age 
category. One competition they felt was hardly good enough 
for 7-year-olds. Mr. Belford exprei>sed thanks to hiE! col· 
leagues on the examination board, Mr. J. Douglas Cairns, Mr. 
Dewar M. Robb and Dr. John W. Oliver, for their help in 
preparing the examination papers. These were models of 

Page 829



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 89 

their type and had received the greatest praise from the 
schools receiving them. 

The report, which is printed on pp. 96-97, was unanimously 
adopted. 

AMENDMEINT TO CONSTITUTION 

The following Amendment to the Constitution of the 
Federation, recommended by the Executive Committee, was 
unanimously approved on the motion of the President:
" That Rule 14 (C) be amended by substituting the word 
, three ' for the word ' five.' " 

ELEOTION OF OFFICE-BFARERS 

On the motion of Mr. Vallance (Ayrshire), seconded by 
Mr. T. Atholl Robertson (Australia), the following office
bearers were re-elected :-Sir P. J. Dollan, Glasgow, Presi
dent; Mr. Thomas B. Goudie, Hamilton, and Mr. John 
M'Vie, Edinburgh, Vice-Presidents; Mr. James MacIntyre, 
Mauchline, Hon. Treasurer; Mr. Fred. J. Belford, Edin
burgh, Hon. Secretary of School Competitions; and Messrs. 
William A. Gold and George Brown, M.A., Kilmarnock, 
Hon. Auditors. 

The President moved that Mr. William Black, Dumfries, 
be appointed Hon. Secretary in room of Mr. Stenhouse who 
had intimated his resignation. Mr. James R. Crawford, 
Halifax, seco;nded and paid a tribute to the work done by 
Mr. Stenhouse during the past year. . 

The President further moved that it be remitted to .the 
Executive, with power, to elect an Hon. Editor and an assis
tant Hon. Secretary. The meeting approved. 

The elections to the Executive Committee were intimated 
by the Hon. Secretary. 

NEXT ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

The meeting proceeded to consider the place of next Con
ference and the Hon. Secretary submitted invitations (1) 
from the Bristol Caledonian Society to hold the Conference 
at Bristol, (2) from Stirling, Clackmannan a;nd West Perth 
District to hold it at Stirling and (3) from Harrogate St. 
Andrew's Society to hold it at Harrogate. Mr. Barbour 
(Bristol), Mr. Turnbull (Falkirk) and Mr. Crawford (Hali
fax) having spoken in support of their respective invitations, 
the meeting remitted to the Executive Committee to consider 
the invitations and to fix the place of next year's Conference. 

Page 830



90 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

WELCOME TO OVERSEAS DELEGATES 

At this stage, the Chairman made s).litable reference to the 
presence of delegates from many Overseas Clubs and thereupon 
introduced Miss Pat Robertson, representing St. Andrew 
(Wellington N.Z.) Burns Club. Miss Robertson, who had 
a warm reception from the remaining delegates, conveyed 
greetings from her club in a felicitous speech. 

MINISTRY OF FOOD RESTRICTIONS 

Mr. J. Kevan McDowall, Glasgow, rejerred to the recent 
Ministry of Food intimations of restrictions a.s regards 
banquets and similar gatherings and on his suggestion it 
was agreed that the Hon. Secretary obtained from the 
Divisional Food Officer a ruling so far as these restrictions 
might affect the forthcoming Burns Anniversary Dinners. 

This concluded the busine8!l proceedings and on the motion 
of Mr. John McVie, a hearty vote of thanks was accorded 
Sir Patrick Dollan for presiding. 

In acknowledging, Sir Patrick stated that amongst the 
competitors at the Youth Service County Championship in 
Dunoon this afternoon were children from Islay and Tiree, 
some of whom were paying their first visit to the mainland, 
and suggested ~hat the delegates might undertake to pay 
the expenses of these children and thus make them the guests 
of the Federation during their stay in Dunoon. This was 
heartily approved and a retiring collection was taken with 
gratifying results. 

SOCIAL EVENTS 

On Friday evening delegates and their wives were the 
guests of Dunoon Town Council and were accorded a civic 
reception by Provost James Marshall in the Pavilion Ball
room-a beautiful setting for an entertainment. In the 
intervals of dancing to the music of Jimmy Couper and his 
band an excellent cabaret show was presented by Jamee 
Stoddart, entertainer and compere; Flo Dunsmuir, soprano; 
Christopher Headington, a brilliant young pianist, now a 
student at the Royal Academy of Music, London; Davallon, 
an expert card manipulator and conjuror; and a troupe of 
juvenile dancers, pupils of Miss Margaret Tait's and Miss 
Margaret Lauder's schools of dancing, the pipe music for 
whom was provided by Piper Neilly Henderson, of Dunoon 
Ballochmyle Pipe Band. Mr. Charles E. Robertson, manager 
of the Pavilion, had made efficient arrangements for the 

Page 831



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 91 

comfort of the guests, tQ which an admirable running buffet 
coJltributed not a little. At an interval in the programme 
Provost Marshall welcomed the delegates, whose thanks was 
voiced by Sir Patrick Dollan. 

After a short interval following the Business Meeting, 
the delegates again met in the Pavilion for the annual con
ference luncheon. Sir Patrick Dollan presided aJld was 
accompanied at the top table by Provost Marshall and his 
colleagues of Dunoon Town Council, and by the officials of 
the Federation. The Rev. G. Charles Smith of the High 
Kirk of Dunoon, said grace, and an excellent luncheon was 
enjoyed. 

Provost Marshall, in proposing the toast of " The Burns 
Federation," made a. comparison of our present-day life with 
that pictured by Burns. Let us think of our own " Saturday 
Night," he said, the football pools, the dogs, an.d similar 
attractions. From scenes like thelie can old Scotia's 
grandeur ever arise1 We have to pass on to future genera
tioDs BOme influence of our own time. Are we to be known 
as the generation that went iJl for pleasure only, or as the 
generation which sacrificed itself for the coming generation t 
That would Pe something understandable and something well 
worth while. COJltinuing the Provost referred to the pro
posal made that morning to inaugurate Mary Campbell 
Cottage Homes in Dunoon and expressed the hope that that 
would have a successful outcome. He paid tribute to the 
great work the Federation was doing and paid a graceful 
compliment to the president, Sir Patrick DoUan, whose 
determination and enthusiasm were invaluable in all Federa
tion projects. 

When Sir Patrick Dollan rose to reply the company joined 
in singing "He's a jolly good fellow." The FederatioD 
represented men and women in all countries, 'said Sijr 
Patrick. Fourteen countries were represented there that 
day. They had three Clubs in Palestine, two in China, one 
in Tokio, and he was hoping they would soon have one in 
Moscow. When there walj one there he hoped their first study 
would be "A man's a man for a' that." (Laughter and 
applause.) And he was hoping that by next year there would 
be one in Copenhagen. India was represented by their 
friend Lieut.-Col. Fleming Gow, and he thought that in some 
ways he represented at that meeting more than anybody else 
what the Burns Federation really meant. We were no longer 
the rulers of India but we thought we could be the servants 
of India, that we could help India, and we should be able 
to do that because of the British tradition in India. The 

Page 832



92 MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

Indians would want us there as their friends. Sir Patrick welcomed as hono:ured guests two of this predecessors in the presidency of the Federation-Mr. M. H. M'Kerrow, Dum
fries, and Mr. John S. Clarke-and went on to say that he was glad that his suggestion about the institution of Mary CampbelJ Homes in Dunoon had already met with a good response. He would like to see formed in his time a National Robert Burns Club, with all the various Burns ~femorials under one control, which control in his opinion should be vested in the Burns Federation with two or three other trustees who might be nominated because of their experience. All these memorials shouLd be co-ordinated and linked up so that everything in the name of Robert Burns should be under the control of this proposed club. 

The toast of " The Burgh of Dunoon " was proposed by Mr. Thomas B. Goudie, Vice-President, and replied to by Councillor Haigh. 
Mr. Belford then handed over to Provost Marshall a 

cheque to pay for the expenses of the children of Islay and Tiree who were to compete at the sports meeting that after
noon, and said that a further instalment would be forth
coming to bring the total donation to £21. Provost Marshall 
made grateful acknowledgment. 

The luncheon ended with a vote of thanks, proposed by 
the chairman, to Mr. Stenhouse and Mr. Black for their work in making arrangements for the conference, to the Provost of Dunoon and his colleagues for their generous co-operation, and to the luncheon caterers, MeRsrs. Phillips 
of the Windsor Hotel. 

On the invitation of Provost Marshall, the President and a number of delegates officially represented the Federation at the Youth County Championship Games in the Recrea
tion Park where they witnessed some stirring oontests amongst the youthful aspirants in all branehes of sport and 
games. 

A concert programme, arranged and presented by Mr. Alexander MacGregor, the well-known Scottish baritone, pro
vided delight on the Saturday evening. The concert was sponsored by the Federation, and delegates and their friends filled the Burgh Hall. The programme was an all Scottish one and maintained a high standard throughout. The artistes were Mr. Alex. MacGregor, baritone; Miss May John'ltone, soprano; Miss Marion MacGregor, contralto; Mr. William Hamilton, tenor; and Mr. James Breingan, accompanist. 

On Sunday morning the delegates worshipFed in the High Kirk of Dunoon. The congregation filled the church and the service was conducted by the Rev. G. Charles Smith, 

Page 833



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE 93 

M:C., ~ini8ter of the H,igh Kirk and formerly minister at 
KukmlChael. Mr. SmIth preached a sermon appropriate 
to the occasion and so impressed by it were the delegatee 
that it was arranged to have it printed as a pamphlet and 
circulated by the Federation. The praise, led by an excel
lent choir, with Mr. Harold G. Hartley at the organ, was 
inspiring. The" Old Hundredth," " Crimond " and" Kil
marnock" were numbered among the tunes. A retiring 
collection was taken for the National Burns Memorial Cot
tage Homes and the Jean Armour Burns Houses, Mauchline, 
and amounted to £17 168. 2d. 

The delegates enjoyed two motor drives. That on Satur
day afternoon was a sheer delight. The route--known as 
" Round the Hill "-ran by the shores of the Holy Loch and 
Loch Eck to Whistlefield, returning by Ardentinny and the 
shores of Loch Long. There was bright sunshine and the 
country looked its loveliest. Sunday afternoon's drive was 
to Loch Striven, but unfortunately there was continuous 
rain and poor visibility and the outing was cut short. 

On Sunday evening there was another excellent concert 
in the Pavilion. Included in the large audience were the 
delegates and their friends. The programme was again 
exclusively Scottish but wa.s completely different from that of 
the previous night. The artistes were Miss Mary Ferrier. 
soprano; Miss Minnie Craig, contralto; Mr. Elliot Dobie. 
baritone; Mr. John Tainsh, tenor; Miss Margaret Smart, 
violinist; Miss Jean Stoddart, elocutionist (who gave a 
highly dramatic rendering of "Tarn 0' Shanter"); and 
Miss Sybil Tait, accompanist. At the close of the Ferform
ance Sir Patrick Dollan voiced the appreciation of the 
audience. 

Dunoon can rightly claim to be added to the list of suc
cessful Conferences and the thanks {)f the Federation are due 
to the Provost, Magistrates, Councillors and Officials of the 
Burgh for their generous hospitality and assistance. In the 
absence of a local reception committee, the bulk of the 
arrangements was completed by Mr. Andrew Stenhouse, our 
former Hon. Secretary, whom we thank most sincerely for 
the excellent work carried out by him. 

WILLIAM BLACK, Hon Secretary 

Page 834



FINANCIAL STATEMENT for year ended 31st July, 1947 

INCOMB 
To Balance as per Statement, 31at July, 1946-

Current Account, ... £176 15 1 
Cash Account, 7 3 0 
Deposit Account, ... 475 7 4 

.. Annual Subscriptions, 

.. Subscriptions paid in advance, 

.. Arrears Paid, ... 

.. Affiliation Fees, 

.. Sale of BUlrm Chronicle, 
Sale of Pocket Diplomas, 

.. Subscriptions towards Commemora· 
tion Wreath, 

.. Miscellaneous, 

.. General Appeal Funds-

£256 4 0 
300 

24 3 0 
31 10 0 

£638 1 3 
42 8 0 

3 11 4 
500 

Scottish National Dictionary, £259 1 6 
National Burns Memorial and 

Cottage Homes, .. 80 11 7 
Jean Armour Burns Houses, 130 13 7 
Scottish Literature Fund, 20 14 1 
Central Fund-Donations from Clubs,23 10 0 
Niel Gow Fund (Donation from 

Lieut.·ColoneIP. FlemingGow), 2 0 0 
GIenbervie Memorial, ... ... 25 12 11 

.. W. G. M'AuJay, Esq., in trust for Jean Armour 
Houses, 

.. Bank Interest on Deposit Account, 

£659 5 5 

314 17 0 

689 0 7 

542 3 8 

1,000 0 0 
726 

BXPBNDITURB 
By Postages, ... . . 
.. Printing and Stationery, 
.. Bank Charges, 
.. Expenses of Meetings, 
.. Allowances to Officials, 
" Insurance and Income Tax, 
.. Travelling Expenses of Officials, 

Commemora.tion Wreath, 
.. Commemoration Expenses (Dumfries), 

Memorials-Leglen Wood, , .. 
Glenbervie, 
Highland Mary, 
Jessie Lewars, ... 
Brow Well, 

Conference Expenses. 
School Children's Competitions, 

£3 0 0 
30 15 0 
278 
5 14 8 
3 10 0 

.. Scottish National Dictionary Expenses, 
" Grant to Ayrshire Assn. of Burns Clubs, ... 
" l\liel Gow Fund, 
.. Scottish Council for Community Service, 

Bums Chronicle-
Wm. Hodge & Co., Ltd.-Print· 

ing, wrapping, and postages, .. £482 
Editor's allowance, ... 50 
Hundry Purchases ... 42 

" General Appeal Funds-
Scottish National Dictionary, £259 

6 3 
o 0 
1 3 

1 6 
Jean Armour Burns Houses, 
National Burns Memorial and 

130 13 7 

Cottage Homes, ". 

.. Miscellaneous Expenses, 

.. 8.;ott"lI Literature Fund
Donations from Clubs, 
Half of Affiliation Fees, 

8011 7 
---

£20 14 1 
15 15 0 ---

£50 0 6 
71 12 0 
4 18 0 

12 8 0 
158 4 0 

16 4 6 
6 19 3 
5 15 0 

107 19 8 

45 7 4 
32 0 10 
10 11 6 
911 0 

10 0 0 
200 
220 

574 7 6 

470 6 8 
482 

36 9 1 

P
age 835



To Balance in Glasgow Savings Bank (Kilmarnock 
Branch), 

" Half Affiliation Fees for 19~·47, 
" Donations from Clubs, 
" Interest to 20th November, 1946, ... 

To Balance at 31st July. 19'6, 
" Donations from Clubs, 
.. Interest to 31st January, 1947, 

.. Central Fund, ... 2310 0 

.. W. G. M'Aulay Trust: Tranalerred to Glasgow 
B.C.A., 1,000 0 0 

£3,212 9 2 

" Balance in Current Account, 
" Balance in Cash Account, 
.. Balance in Deposit Account, 

SCOTTISH LITERATURE FUND 

£72 6 10 
:2 17 6 

482 9 10 

By Balance in Glasgow Savings Bank (Kilmarnock 

657 I' 2 

£3,212 9 2 

£383 0 2 
15 15 0 
2014 1 
9 3 10 

Branch), £'28 13 1 

£428 13 1 

CgNTRAL FUND 

£268 3 9 
23 10 0 
7 14 6 

£299 8 3 

By Balance in Dumfries Savings Bank, 

U28 13 1 

£299 8 3 

£299 8 3 

JOSEPH LAING W AUGH MEMORIAL FUND 

To Balance at 31st July, 1946, ... 
" Interest to 31st January, 1947, 

£226 19 0 
6 14 2 

£233 13 2 

MAUOHLINE, ht A'UgUlt, 1947.-Examined and found oorrect. 

By Prizes, Laing Waugh Competition, 
" Balance in Dumfries Savings Batik, 

£5 19 0 
227 14 2 

£233 13 2 

(Signflt) JAMES MACINTYRE, Hon. Pr'lUurer 

(S~) 
WILLIAM A. GOLD 
GEORGB BROWN } .A ","le.,., 

P
age 836



SCHOOLS COMPETITIONS. 

The Scottish Literature Competition shows again a sub
stantial increase in the number of competitors, the figure 
reaching over 74,000 or 12.6 per cent. over last year's 
figures. 

From reports sent in by Head Teachers and Ph,e Teaching 
Staffs the study of the prescribed pieces seems to be enjoyed 
by both teachers and taught, most of the written papers 
showing a genuine love of the Scottish language and litera
ture. Great credit is due to the teachers for their willing 
co-operation in adding the study of this subject to their 
already full curriculum and to the pupils for their praise
worthy response. 

Apart from the Burns Federation scheme many Burns 
Clubs are also holding competitions which include the singing 
of Scottish songs. Very few of these Clubs forward their 
returns and thus the extent of the work done in this field is 
not fully available for p)..lblication. 

The Burns Federation thanks again all who have in any 
way contributed to make this annual competition a success. 

Competitions held by Burns Clubs: 

Schools Competitors 
Barrmill .Jolly Beggars ........ . 4 122 
Kilbirnie United Burns Clubs 4 137 
Kilmarnock Burns Club ........ . 11 1,800 
Newbattle and District Burns 

Club ......................•......... I 239 
Renfrewshire B.C.A ............ . 18 1,060 
Sauchie Burns Club .............. . 2 115 
Southern Scottish Counties 

Burns Association ........... . 19 811 

59 4,282 

Cops 
Book &nd/or Cert!· 

Prizes Medals f1caW. 

616 
16 2 6 
30 90 

12 3 3 
24 
26 

146 

260 

25 
8 

6 138 

Page 837



SCHOOLS COMPETITIONS 97 

SOOTTISH LITERATURE COMPETITION-l 94 7 
~ 

1 
I No. of Pupils 

- ~-~ 

0:: 
Ecluea£iou No. of 0 No. of .. 

~ to :3 
Committee Schools ~ " Csrtoitle&teot ... .. ~ = '" .. .. "" 

I 
.. :;a ·n 0= :§i 3 .~ _0 

O::Q S~ = -f~ ~ Cl. 0' ... 00 00 
~~ ----- ~-----

Aberdeen ... . .. 3 105 84 45 - - 234 13 
Dundee ... ... 20 3,535 582 620 - 25 4,762 178 
Edinburgh ... 63 9,866 3,326 3,121 134 55 16,502 442 
Glasgow ... ... 52 11,940 1,373 2,244 423 - 15,980 .83 
Aberdeenshire ... 16 984 327 156 20 12 1,499 97 
Angus ... ... 5 583 137 69 9 - 798 .7 
Argyllshire .,. 8 296 73 363 - - 732 47 
Ayrshire .,. ... 27 3,273 969 1,262 24 - 5,528 213 
Banffshire ... ... 18 341 225 354 180 - 1,028 61 
Berwickshire ... 4 27 16 8 - -

51 I 11 
Buteshire ... ... 1 18 3 - - - 21 5 
ClackmanDl~n8hire 6 239 108 413 - - 790 32 
Dunbartonshire ... 5 801 185 - - - 986 32 
East Lothian ... 3 222 112 617 52 - 1,003 36 
Fifeshire ... 36 4,904 1,079 2,246 277 - 8,5(6 283 
Kincardineshire ... 5 169 47 50 - - 266 23 
Kirkcu'l brightshire 4 210 63 - - - 273 17 
Lanarkshire ... 17 2,7~2 600 1,245 30 - 4,657 167 
Midlothian / .. 3 200 65 - - - 265 12 
Orknt'y .,. .. 2 6 12 12 - -- 30 I) 

Peeble&shire ... I 10 2 - - - 12 6 
Perth and Kinr088 18 544 212 357 30 - 1,143 71 
Renfrewshire .. , n 1,144 326 229 - - 1,699 73 
Roxburghshire ... II 720 2.'n 79 2 - 1,038 55 
Stirlingshire ... 21 3,850 850 1,048 271 - 6,019 194 
Wigtownshire ... 1 200 50 - - - 250 i 
Royal Caledonian 

Schools .. , ... 1 32 - 32 12 - 76 5 

---
~631-14,570 1,464 

'---- ~----

Total ... 362 47,001 92 7i,148 2,613 
~ . ~-~ 

FRHD. J. BELPORD, 

H on. Secretary School8 Competitions. 

G 

Page 838



"BURNS CHRONIOLE" 

The number of copies sold of the twenty-second issue of the 
Second Series of the Federation's annual publication was 
3288, an increase of more than 100 on the figure for the 
preceding year (3160). That total includes the five copies 
sent to each of those Cl:ubs which had paid the current year's 
subi;cription, in accordance with article 14 (c) of the" Consti
tution and Rules" ot the Federation, and also additional 
copies ordered by Clubs for their members; as well as thOIle 

purchased by individuals, the trade or libraries. 
The thanks of the Federation is hereby expressed to those 

Associations that continue their support of the annual, 
especially to the thirteen listed below which purchased 50 
or more copies. 

To its President the Federation is indebted for his valu
able assistance on the business side of the publication, 
particularly in bringing the annual to the notice of 
advertisers. 

Mauchline Club 205 copies 
Calcutta Club 125 

" Dumfries Club 110 
Border Cities Club 105 

" Scottish Club (Glasgow) 81 
" Flint (Michigan) Club 75 
" Belfast Association 65 
" Edinburgh Ayrshire Association 60 
" Dumfries Burns Howff CI.ub 56 
" Bridgeton (Glasgow) Club 55 
" Sandyford (Glasgow) Club - 55 
" Greenock Club 53 
" Atlanta (Georgia) Club 50 
" 

J. C. EWING, Hon. Editor. 

GLASGOW, 31st July, 1947. 

Page 839



BURNS CLUB NOTES 

0: KILMARNOOK BURNS OLUB 

The happy spirit that prompted a post-war resumption 
of BOCial activity has been well maintained. St. Andrew's 
Night and the AJlnual Dinner were enlivened with maximum 
attendances, and the Club membership now stands at 153. 

St. Andrew's Night 

This celebration was a very happy affair. The speeches, 
of which there were not too many, were uniformly good and 
entertaining, the music was particularly fine, the prelimin
ary feast seemed to lack nothing aJld the setting was beauti
fully done in Lauder's Emporium. Mr. Robert Rorrison, 
President, presided, and was accompanied by past Presidents 
of the Club with their wives. Mr. Joseph Macleod, managing 
director of Scottish Film Studios, formerly of the B.B.C., 
was Principal Guest, and proposed a toast to Scotland, pre
facing it with a "crack on Scottish themes." Taking as 
his text the first two lines of BJ,lrns's "Address to the 
Haggis" . . . "Fair fa' your honest, sonsie face, Great 
chief tan 0' the puddin-race," Mr. Macleod delighted his 
audience with a clever commentary on Scottish character 
and art, drawing amusing analogies between his text and 
his subject. It was a great pleasure to hear again his rich, 
well-modulated voice, so well remembered from his days as 
B.B.C. announcer, the only member of that body who took 
the final " r " out of " Indiar." Earlier in the day Mr. 
Macleod made a tour of the Glenfield & Kennedy works under 
the guidance of Mr. Henry Gardner, Managing Director, 
accompanied by officials of the Club. Mr. Macleod was a 
charming companion and made a most favourable impres
sion on all people whom he met. 

The Big Nichit 

Mr. Robert Fife, newly elected President, presided over 
a company widely representative of the business and pro
fessional sections of the community, the best attendance ever 
known in Kilmarnock on January 25th. 

Col. The Rt. Hon. Walter Elliot, M.P., one of our readiest 

Page 840



100 BURNS CLUB NOT1!:S 

and most resourceful speakers, was Principal Guest and 
Speaker. His" Immortal Memory," while making less sug
gestion of midnight oil than most speeches on a similar 
occasion, had the air as being as impromptu and unrehearsed 
as his contributions to the Brains Trust. The gusto with 
which he quoted extracts from works of the poet and the 
dramatic fervour of his renderings were distinctly refreshing. 

The remainder of the programme was not overladen with 
speeches. Good Music was the dominant feature of the 
evening. Mr. Alexander Carmichael, the well-known baritone 
singer, charmed his audience with expressive renderings of a 
nicely varied choice of Burns's Songs, and Dr. R. C. 
Hamilton, a former President of the Club and an accom
plished tenor singer, balanced the musical programme most 
suitably. 

W. Y. HAG GO, 

Hon. See1/. 

3 : TAM 0' SRANTER BURNS CLUB 

The Annual outing to Callander was well attended and 
enjoyed by members and friends. 

The 88th Anniversary Dinner held on Jan. 25th, 1947. 
was honoured by Vice Admiral Sir James A. G. Troup, 
K.B.E., C.B., who proposed" The Immortal Memory" to 
over 120 members and friends. Ex-Bailie Armstrong made 
the appeal for the Jean Armour Ho).lses. This realized ilie 
substantial sum of £29 5s., a record for the Club. 

The Whist Drives and Lecture held during the Session 
had the enthusiastic support of members and friends. 

The St. Andrew's supper under the Chairmanship of Mr. 
John P. Grindlay, our President, was well patronised. 
especially by our friends of the Rosebery Club. Mr. J. S. 
Smith, M.A., F.E.I.S., gave a brief historical survey of the 
life of St. An-drew. The musical entertainment was beyond 
praise. 

Eight new Life Members were admitted during the year. 

1947-Jul. 5. 
Nov. 27. 
Dec. 18. 

1948-1an. 17. 
Feb. 26. 
Mar. 31. 

Syllabus 1947-1948 

Annual Outing. 
St. Andrew's Dinner. 
Musical Evening. 
Anniversary Dinner. 
Lecture. 
Annual General Meeting. 

W. MoF ARLANE, 

Ran. Secy. 

Page 841



BURNS CLUB NOTES 101 

15: BELFAST BURNS ASSOCIATION 

During the session 19406-47 six meetings were held on 
Thursdays thro).lghout the Winter, with an average atten
dance of 136. 

Many members of the Association attended the Com-. 
memoration Service of the Death of Robert Burns, along 
with members of the Dublin Scottish Benevolent Society, at 
Dundalk on July 20th, 1946. 

At the opening Social Meeting on Oct. 17th a cheque for 
.£1)0 was handed to the Chairman of the Management Com
mittee of the Royal Victoria Hospital as an instalment to the 
Fund for the Endowment of a Robert Burns Memorial Bed. 

Other meetings were as follows:-

19~6-Nov. 17. "John Gait," by Rev. A. Wylie Blue, D.D. 
" 22. Whist Drive. 

Dec. 5. Table-Readings arranged by T. H. 
Roughead. 

1947-Jan. 9. "The Kailyard School of Literature," by 
J. R. Brown, M.A., B.Sc. 

" 23. Annual Dinner: " The Immortal Memory" 
by R. M. Smylie, Editor of the lr",sh 

Feb. 

" Mar. 

6. 
27. 

6. 

Times. 
Debate on the " Young Chevalier." 
Dinner-Dance. 
"Scottish journeys," by Rev. A. G. 

Jackson. 
" 27. Annual General Meeting. 

'ftle membership now numbers 400. 
J. R. BROWN, 

H(JIfI,. Secy. 

17: NOTTINGHAM SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION 

During the War period the normal activities of the Associ
ation were temporarily suspended, quite a number of the 
members being actively engaged in various branches of the 
services and voluntary drganisations. 

Under the genial presidency of Lieut.-Corn. J. G. 
Mackness, a series of afternoon gatherings was arranged and 
invitations extended to Scots quartered in the depots and 
camps in the city and neighbourhood, both men and women 
in all sections of the services. The functions were all well 
attended and proved a very beneficial help to all who partici
pated. Quite a number appeared in the national costume 
or ill service uniforms, and on more than one occasion 

Page 842



102 BURNS CLUB NOTES 

members of a Pipe Band from a Scottish camp some miles 
away added considerable assistance by giving their aervices 
in connection with the dances. 

The Association during the last season has had & very 
successful year, the events approximating the pre-war 
standard. All the functions were well attended, and the 
Council was able to donate a total sum of over .£200 in aid 
of not only local hospital and similar organisations, but 
also to a number of Scottish funds, including the MauCbline 
Homes, Jean Armour Houses, and Royal Caledonian Schools 
at Bushey. The prospects for the next year's events are 
indeed particularly good and the membership is extending 
rapidly. 

During the past few years a number of past members have 
passed over into the silent land and the Council desire to 
piace on record a sense of the loss the Association has sus
tained. One outstanding break occurred on the death of 
Mis!; Hepburn. She was a daughter of the Hon. Secretary 
of the former Scottish Society, which was amalgamated in 
the Association on the reconstitution in 1901. 

Another loss was that of Mr. Robert M'Kechan, a native 
of West Kilbride, in his 89th year. He had acted as Presi
dent of the Association. A big loss was sustained by the 
demise of Professor WiUiam Hutchison M'Millan, B.Sc., 
M.B.E. He was a very valuable member; and acted on the 
Council for a number of years, occupying the Presidential 
Chair for two years, and was also one of the Trustees. The 
members of the Association recollect with intense gratifica
tion all the help and assistance always un grudgingly and 
cheerfully accorded by him for the furtherance of Scottish 
matters in the area. It is somewhat pathetic that the M.B.E. 
honour was conferred upon him during his last illness, and 
that he was not spared to personally receive the decoration. 
More recently another break has been sustained by the death 
of Sir Arthur W. Black, at a very advanced age. He was the 
first President of the Association after its reconstruction in 
1902. 

JOHN CURRIE, 
Former P"esident and Secreta'1l 

20: AIRDRIE BURNS CLUB 

The Airdrie Burns Club, which was dormant during the 
war years, has now resumed its activities, and at the 
Anniversary Dinner, the first since 1940, which was held in 

Page 843



BURNS CLUB NOTES 103 

the, Sir John Wilson Town Hall, Airdrie, on 28th January 
1947, the President, Honorary Sheriff Jas. A. Reid, in a 
most interesting and thoughtful speech proposed " The Im
mortal Memory." His a.ddress was much appreciated by 
the 120 members and guests present. 

At the ann:ua) general meeting held on 28th April, Mr. 
Alex. H. Thomson, F.R.LA.S., Roberton, Airdrie, was elected 
President. 

With a live membership of 170 the Club is in a very 
healthy condition. 

It has been agreed to make a donation of £10 10s. towards 
the cost of the Scottish National Dictionary; and to foster 
an interest in Burns among the young it has been decided 
to donate £8 8s. for prizes in a competition open to pupils 
in Airdrie schools. A committee was formed to decide the 
nature of the competition. 

1947-Oct. 
Nov. 
Dec. 

1948-Jan. 

" Mar. 

G. R. HANSON, 

Secr~tarJ/ 

49: BRIDGBTON (GLASGOW) BURNS OLUB 

SyllabUB 191,.7-191,.8 

25. 
25. 
19. 
16. 
24. 

1. 

Hallowe'en Supper. 
Ladies' Night. 
Children's Choir Competition. 
Concert and Presentation of Prizes. 
Anniversary Dinner. 
" At Home": Musical Evening. 

C. GORDON BROWN, 
HQ1/,. Secy. 

68: SANDYFORD (GLASGOW) BURNS OLUB 

Under the Presidency of Mr. James Maxwell M'Phie, J.P., 
a year of steady progress was shown. 

Effort was made to bring the Roll up to date, and 
Circulars were issued to all Club Members with a recorded 
address in the Books. Replies received revealed a loss of 
26 Members through death from the date of the last Circular 
issued in 1940. 

Intimation of retiral from the Board of Directors was 
received with regret in the course of the year from Mr. David 
M. Hutchison, LL.B., and from Mr. James T. Wotherspoon. 
both Past-Presidents and each having a long record of service 

Page 844



104 BURNS CLUB NOTES 

00 the Club. Mr. Hutchison was particularly helpful in the 
framing of the ConstitutiQn and Rules of the Benevolent 
Fund. 

The Hallowe'en function held in the Marlborough Houae 
was again a highly successful function. The Anniversary 
Di~ner held in the Grosvenor Restaurant) on 24th January 
194:7 saw the restoration of some of the Club's pre-war glory
the Dance following the Dinner being re-introduced. The 
etandard of the speeches was well maintained. Speaking to 
the principal Toast, The Earl of Selkirk said that, despite 
his appeal for brotherly love and his outspoken comment. on 
liberty, Burns had never adopted an equalitarian creed. 
" I wonder," he continued, " what Burns would have written 
about our Government regulations to-day or, for that matter, 
a.bo~t the officials who operate them 1 Criticism and satire 
of the Burns quality is required in this age when a man 
cannot build his own house or buy his own food and clothing 
without permission. 

" The name ' dictatorship' arose long before this Govern
ment took office, before the last war, but it is even more 
serious now than it was then. Instead of inducing great 
principles such as Burns propounded, we make a flying 
catch at some big idea and then apply it in other people'. 
kitchens. 

" There is a morbid faith i~ the world to-day that fear 
of atomic energy will bring peace to the world. Peace will 
only come when people really want it for its own sake." 

The Schools' Competition was again highly succeBBful, 
and entries were made from four school9--an increase of one 
on the previous year. A high sta~dard was attained by the 
teaching staffs in the pupils presented for adjudication in all 
sections of the Compe,tition. Mr. Jack Barclay (Glasgow 
Orpheus Choir) again adj~dicated in the Solo and Choral 
Singing Sections, a~d Mr. Charles R. M. Brookes adjudi
cated in the Elocution Section. After very keen competition 
the Sandyford Trophy was gained by CloberhiU School with 
an average points score of 87.3, Knightswood School being 
a close second with 86.3. 

The restoration work on the stone erected by the Club on 
the burying place of Alexander Findlater in Anderston Bury
ing Ground, North Street, Glasgow, was carried through 
during the year and the cost met by Donations from Club 
members. 

At the Annual General Meeting held in March 1947 Bailie 
William Gordon Bennett was appointed President and Hr. 
Robert M. Battiaon, Vice-President. 

Page 845



BURNS CLUB NOTES 106 

Prevailing conditions occasion doubt of the Club having 
opportunity to proceed with an Anniversary Dinner in 1948 
or of pursuing any of the general activities. 

S. W. LOVE, 
Hon. Secy. 

89: SUNDERLAND BURNS OLUB 

The year 1947 marks the Jubilee of our Club, and our 
President, Mr. J. M'Nicol, with Mrs. M'Nicol, together with 
the Committee of Ladies and Gentlemen, have left no stone 
unturned to make the event worthy of the occasion. On 24th 
January a record gathering of members and friends assembled 
in the Seaburn Hotel. The President of the Club presided. 
Mr. Thos. B. Goudie, Senior Vice-President of the Burns 
Federation, in proposing the Toast of "The Immortal 
Memory," claimed that the Bard was perhaps the greatest 
spiritual force revealed in eighteenth century literature. 
Councillor A. W. Semple presented a wallet of Treasury notes 
to Mr. Neilson and a flowering plant to Mrs. Neilson on 
completing 50 years as Hon. Secy. Mr. Goudie on behalf of 
the Federation Council, handed a facsimile copy of the 
Kilmarnock edition of Burns's poems to Mr. Neil80n, and one 
to Councillor Semple on completing 39 years as Treasurer. 
Mr. J. D. M'Bain gave the" Lasses 0," to which Miss A. M. 
Shaw replied. The music part was sustained by Mr. J. 
Wick and Miss E. Ross, with Mrs. Tighe at the piano. Piper 
Robert Westwood piped the haggis, which was carried by 
J. Renwick V ickers, while Councillor Semple said grace in his 
own inimitable style. 

The President announced that the election as Honorary 
Life Member of the Club had been conferred on Mr. Neilson. 

On 26th May we had an outing to St. Mary's Loch, going 
via Wooler and Kelso, where lunch was served; St. B08well's, 
Selkirk to St. Mary's, and back via Hawick, where tea Wall 

served. A most enjoyable day and thoroughly enjoyed by 
all 

We have to record loss by death of Miss Marion Morrison 
and Coroner J. C. Morton; we are all the poorer by the 
passing of such honoured members. 

M. NEILSON, 

Hon. Secy. 

Page 846



100 BURNS OLUB NOTES 

IN APPRECIATION, 1897-194-7 

(Communicated by Coun. A. W. Semple) 

In eighteen hundred and ninety-seven, 
When Jan'war winds did blaw 

O'er frae the north 0' Wearmo'th Brig, 
An' cauld enough for snaw, 

A few douce lads 0' Sunderland 
Met in a certain " Hub," 

An' there they solemnly resolved 
Tae form the first Burns Club. 

For fifty years they've stood the test 
0' ups an' doons by turns, 

But aye were loyal tae the creed 
Proclaimed by Robert Burns. 

This nicht we meet in harmony, 
Frae care and trouble free, 

Tae honoJ}r Neilson and the Club 
This year 0' Jubilee. 

On 24th January last Sunderland Burns Club met in the 
Seaburn Hotel to celebrate their fiftieth year as an affiliated 
member of the Burns Federation and to honour their Hon. 
Secy., Mr. Ptfatthew Neilson, who has held office without a 
break since 1897, when the Club was instituted. All the 
office-bearers of that date, with the exception of Mr. Neilson, 
have " crossed the bourne." The success of the Club is'due 
largely to the efficient manner in whirh Mr. Neilson has 
served the Club. 

I have made an exhaustive search of the records, and find 
he holds the unique distinguished position of being the first 
and only secretary in the Burns world who has taken part 
in the combined jubilee celebrations of a federated Club and 
his own appointment as secretary: a distinction, I venture 
to say, that may well stand for all time. I have been 
Treasurer for 39 years, and have had ample opportunity of 
estimating his value to Club and members. His method of 
organising meetings and events connected with the Club is 
remarkable, his precision in recording the minutes goes with
out question, his advice in matters affecting the Club has 
been of great value and solved many problems. He has for 
many years contributed Club Notes to the Burns CMonicle. 
His attendance at Club meetings is a record; so far as I can 
remember he has missed only one since 1903, when he was 
indisposed. In session 1931 he was appointed President and 
Secretary, and discharged the duties of both to the satisfac-

Page 847



BURNS CLUB NOTES 107 

tion of Committee and members. When federated Clubs were 
divided into districts in 1924: he was appointed Secretary for 
North-Eastern England at its first meeting, a position which 
he still holds. Gifted with a keen sense of humour, hi. 
boisterous laugh is infectious; musical, he renders Burns'. 
songs in a good tenor voice. To sum up, he is a model 
Secretary, a model Burns Club time-table and almanack. He 
has won our admiration and our esteem and affection as a 
man of kindly feeling and sterling character. 

I end this tribute with what I said at the Dinner: "On 
behalf of the members of the Sunderland Burns Club I ask you 
to accept this wallet with Treasury notes as a token of our 
profound' gratitude and appreciation of the magnificent 
service you have rendered during your fifty years as Hon. 
Secretary of the Club. I have now to ask Mrs. Neilson to 
accept this beautiful flowering plant as a tribute of thanks 
for the help you have given to your husband and for your 
untiring attention which enabled him to carry out the duti6CII 
IiO efficiently . We trust that you and your husband may be 
long spared to enjoy together the fruits of a well spent life." 

112: DUMFRIES BURNS HOWFF CLUB 

Syllabus for 1946-1947 

I 94:6-0ct. 31. Mr. H. Spence Culbert, President, gave an 
interesting address on the traditions of Hallowe'en. 

194:6-Nov. 28. Mr. John Sturgeon, Past-President, was 
the principal speaker, and in a very able manner outlined 
the story of St. Andrew, our patron Saint, and the accom
plishments of the Soot abroad. 

194:7-Jan. 27. Mr. J. Kevan McDowall, a member of 
the Executive of the Burns Federation, was the principal 
guest at Anniversary Dinner, and in an eloquent address 
paid a high tribute to the Bard, acclaiming him the Apostle 
of World Democracy. 

1194:7-Jan. 29. On the suggestion of Past-President J. G. 
Mackenzie, the Executive decided to entertain the residents in 
Moorheads Hospital, and the ultimate selection of a Burns 
Dinner for the old folks was indeed a happy choice. It gave 
the Executive a great deal of pleasure to visit the Hospital 
and to have as their guests some twenty old Dumfriesiane. 
Mr. T. S. McCrorie, Curator of Burns House, proposed the 
" Immortal Memory," and members of the Executive con
tributed song and story to the apparent delight of the 

Page 848



108 BURNS CLUB NOTES 

residents. It is hoped that this pleasing and magnanimous 
function may become an annual event. 

1947-Feb. 113. Ladies' Night: This social function 
proved a bappy occasion and was attended by nearly 200 
members and friends. The function took the form of Whist, 
Supper, Harmony and Dancing, and invitations to repre
sentatives of other Clubs in town were extended and accepted. 

1947-Mar. 17. St. Patrick's Night: Sir P. J. Dollan, 
President of the Federation, had agreed to give an addre88 on 
this occasion, but the severe snowstorm at that time prevented 
Sir Patrick from travelling, and, following the usual tradi
tiQnal fare being served, the evening was spent in harmony. 

1947-Apl. 2. Mr. Andrew Young was the speaker at 
Closing Supper, and gave a most interesting and aporecia
tive address on " Lady N airne and her songs." 

N. LITTLE 

JOHN ANDREW 

Hon. Sea. 

153: THE SCOTTISH BURNS CLUB, GLASGOW 

Forfeuchen wi' wars alarms, an' sweert tae think 0' wair 
trachle, th' Cronies 0' th' Scottish Club ettled tae pass tb' 
f1eetin' hours wi' joy an' music pourin' forth. Didna Burns 
8ay:-

•• The weary night 0' care and grief 
May have a joyful morrow." 

Aweel! Burns wrote" may" not" shall." 
Ne'erless, th' twa an' fortieth 8essiop 0' the " ScoUhlh " 

was a gran' ane. 
In J anwar, in a stirrin' address tae ower five hunner 

Cronies an' their lassies, Joseph Macleod, ance 0' th' B.Jl.C., 
proposed "Th' Immortal Memory." In thankin' him Sir 

,Patrick Doll an, the Preses 0' th' Federation, "hacked and 
hash'd while braid swords clashed." In respondin', tae 
.. The Lassies," proposed by the Reverend Wm. T. Smellie, 
O.B.E., M.A., Naomi Mitchioon made a wheen original ,an' 
startlin' remarks. 

In October Cronie J amie Brown tell't 0' " The Seven Ages 
of Man." In November George P. Laidlaw crackit on " The 
Love Songs of Robert Burns." In December David Gordon 
George 0' th' American Embassy spak 0' Brito-American 
Relations. In Februar' Ex-Deacon J. Martin Baxter 0' th' 
Cordiners teU't the story 0' "The Trades Incorporations 0' 

Glesca." At th' Annual General Meetin' in March Preees 

Page 849



BURNS CLUB NOTES lot 

Jamie Adair was persu8ided tae haud till th' Chair for th' 
aught successive year. The membership 0' th' Club un'er his 
oouthie chairge is noo weel ower five hunner. 

J. KEVAN McDoWALL, 
Secretar 

199: NEWBATTLE AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB 

We have again to report a very successful session under 
ilie chairmanship of Mr. Robert Lauder. Our membership is 
still slightly ahead of last year, the number at present being 
200; Mr. John Stergeon of Dumfries, in proposing" The 
Immortal Memory," treated us to a delightful discourse on 
the life and works of the Bard, and received great applauee 
from the large number of members, who I think would be 
about 175. 

The Old Folks now number 270, the largest number we 
haTe ever had. They had their usual Xmas Dinner and a 
Gift of .£1 each, and also their summer drive round the 
Borders, and stopped at Inverleithen where they were served 
with tea. We proceeded to Peebles for two hours, and arrived 
home after a very enjoyable day which was appreciated by 
these Old Folks. There were 150, and along with the Dinner 
and the gift of £1 each, all in, it takes about .£4:00. 

The School Children's essay competition again proved a 
great success, and a Social Evening will be held to present 
the Cups and Prizes on 18th October 19·17 in the Rand Hall. 

ROBERT M'CATHIE, 
Secretary. 

226 : DUMFRIES BURNS CLUB 

We are able to report a very successful session under the 
PrMidency of Mr. John Irving. "The Immortal Memory" 
at the Anniversary Dinner was proposed by Rev. Harold A. 
Cockburn, Minister of St. Michael's Church, Dumfries, in 
terms of arresting merit which delighted an attendance of 
1117, one of the largest gatherings in recent years. 

An enjoyable Hallowe'en Meeting was also held on 31st 
October, when Mr. Lewis Spence of Edinburgh was the Guest 
Speaker and gave a very interesting address on " Burns and 
Hallowe' en." 

Delegates from the Club attended the Annual Conference 
of the Federation at Dunoon and also the annual Service at 

Page 850



HO BURNS CLUB NOTES 

the Church and Mausoleum on the occasion of the Poet's birth
day. 

The new President of the Club is ex-Provost K. Dobie .. 
H. G. MoKERROW, 

Hon. 8ec~. 

244: DALMUIR BURNS OLUB 

This Club, which cea8eCl to function in the black-out of 
war and whose members were scattered far and wide by the 
" blitz" of 1941, has now been revived and re-affiliated. 
Under the energetic Presidency of Mr. Wm. Boyle we 'have 
met with no small success in our endeavour to come up to our 
former status. Our first difficulty was in finding a meeting
place, most of the small halls suitable to our needs having 
been destroyed. The Public Library Hall has now been 
restored and redecorated, and the Clydebank Library Com
mittee have decided to let the same for literary meetings at a 
nominal fee. We have arranged for four such meetings, the 
first on 9th October when the Librarian, Mr. J. B. Pllrdie, 
F.L.A., will give an address on " Libraries and Reading." 
Three members of our Committee have arranged to give the 
other lectures. 

Preparations are well advanced for Hallowe'en, our 
Bairns' Nicht, and the St. Andrew Day celebration. 

The proposer of " The Immortal Memory" at our Annual 
Dinner in January is Mr. T. B. Goudie, Hamilton. Vice
President of t.he Federation. 

I 946-0ct. 116. 

Nov. 11. 
Dec. 11. 

JOHN R. S. LooKHART, 
Secretary. 

310: MAUOHLINE BURNS OLUB 

Syllabm 19.16-19P 

"The lesser-known songs of Burns," by 
T. A. Kerr. 

Address by John S. Clarke. 
" Burns all a. socia.l planner," by Sir P. 

J. Dollan. 

Page 851



BURNS CLUB NOTES III 

1947-Jan. 25. Annual Celebration: "The Immortal 
Memory" by the Right Hon. Lord 
M'Gowan. 

Feb. 10. "The lame, the halt, and the blind "; by 
Dr. James Dunlop. 

Mar. 12. Annual General Meeting and "Andra 
Crawford's Nicht," 

J AMES DUNLOP, 

H()IfI,. Secy. 

314: SCOTTISH BURNS CLUB, BDINBURGH 

Syllabm 19.1.7-191,8 

1947-0ct. 10. 

Nov. 

" Dec. 
1948-Jan. 

" 

14. 
28. 
12. 
9. 

30. 

Feb. 13. 

Mar. 12. 

Reminiscences of J oseph Laing Waugh, by 
Herbert Down. 

" Colour," by Alex Brown. 
Whist Drive. 
" The City Chambers," by Wm. Murray. 
"The Scottish Ballads," by Rev. Jas. 

Jardine, M.C. 
Anniversary Supper: "The Immortal 

Memory," by Herbert Down. 
"Mediterranean gateways," by Harold 

Skelton. 
Annual General Meeting; Scots Quiz. 

JOHN MALCOLM, 

Secretary 

377 : KILBIRNIE ROSEBERY BURNS CLUB 

1947-Jul. 19. 
Aug. 23. 
Oct. 17. 
Nov. 14. 

Dec. 19. 
1948-Jan. 24. 

Feb. 20. 
Mar. 19. 

Syllabus 19J,7-191,8 

Grand Rally at Kilmarnock. 
Bus tour of Southern Highlands. 
Address by Councillor T. A. Kerr. 
Social Evening: Address by Rev. James 

Barr, B.D. 
Address by Rev. D. Langlands Seath. 
Anniversary Supper. 
Annual General Meeting. 
Social Evening: Addre88 by E. Rosslyn 

Mitchell. 

A company of 102 participated in the Bus Tour of the 
Southern Highlands in August. The weather was ideal; and 
the first stop was made at Alloway, to see the Gardens and 

Page 852



112 BURNS CLUB NOTES 

the Auld Brig 0' Doon. Continuing towards Dumfries, the 
route was via Dalmellington, Carsphairn and DaIry (Kirk
cudbrightshire). This was new ground for most of the com
pany, and they thoroughly enjoyed the beautiful scenery. At 
Dumfries a visit was paid to St. Michael's Churchyard, where 
a wreath was laid in the Mausoleum by the President, Mr. 
James E. Shaw. The visitors' book being signed, most of 
the party took advantage of the church being open to inspect 
the interior, which has intimate associations with the Poet. 

After tea a start was made for home via Thornhill, Cum
nock and Kilmarnock. 

JAMES MOCARTNEY, 
Hon. Sec,. 

497: ST. ANDRHW BURNS OLUB (WELLINGTON, N.Z.) 

SyllabuB 19J7-19.1.8 

1947-Jul. 21. " Bonnie Prince Charlie," by J. R. Baird. 
Aug. 18. " Ambassadors of Scottish song," by Karl 

Atkinson. 
Sep. 15. " County of Angus," by A. Kettles. 
Oct. 20. " Scottish humour and sentiment," by W. 

J. M'Keon. 
Nov. 17. " Firth of Clyde," by J. M. Caldwell. 
Dec. 15. Members' Night. 

1948-Jan. 24. Poet's Night: Anniversary Dinner. 
Feb. 10. Address by D. Robertson. 
Mar. 15. Ladies' Night: " Something Scotch," by 

Dr. E. Bryson. 
Apl. 19. " Scott v. Burns," by C. A. Treadwell. 
May. 17. " More about the Shetlands," by Rev. J. 

Cumming. 
June. 21. Annual General Meeting. 

B. CLAnK, 
Secretary 

636: GISBORNE (NEW ZEALAND) BURNS OLUB 

In this, the first report of the most easterly Burns Club 
in the world, we wish to extend greetings to all fellow 
Burnsians. 

Established in 1938, the Club has grown from a few 
enthusiasts to its present strength of 120. 

Under the direction of the Chairman, Mr. W. B. Turbitt, 
the monthly meetings are well attended and thoroughly 
enjoyed. 

Page 853



BURNS CLUB NOTES 113 

The Club has donated to the local centre of the Piping 
and Dancing Associatioll of New Zealand, for annual com
petition, a shield made of 84 pieces of New Zealand woods 
with the centre piece the head and shoulders of the Poet in 
silver. Also, the Club sponsors each year a competition 
among amateurs for the best sung Burns song. 

We have received our first issue of the Chronicle, and 
must express our appreciation of the fine work it is doing in 
bringing the associated clubs more together, and also for 
the very interesting articles contained in its pages. 

R. HOWE, 

Hon. Secy. 

621: WARATAH-MAYFIELD BURNS CLVB 

This Club has sent a parcel of food, as a Christmas gift, 
to each of the ten Glasgow and District Burns Association 
beneficiaries living in the Jean Armour Burns Houses at 
Mauohline. The beneficiaries ask that the Club's welcome 
gift and their own grateful acknowledgments be recorded 
here. 

H 

Page 854



LIST OF THE 378 

BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

ON THE 

ROLL OF THE BURNS FEDERATION, 1948 

The Secretary of a Club is also its" Burns Chronicle" 
official, unless another name and address is given 

[Corrected to fdOth October; 194-7] 

O-KlLMARNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1808; federated 1885; 153 
members; President, Robert Fife, M.Llnst.Gas E.; Secretary 
and Treasurer, W. Y. Haggo, 3 Seaford Street, Kilmarnock. 

I-THlIl BURNS CLUB OF LONDON: instituted 1868; fede,rated 1885; 300 
members; President, Rev. R. S. Birch, M.A., Ph.D.; Secretary, 
Donald Munro, 35 EI~ar Avenue, Surbiton, Surrey; Treasurer, 
lan B. White, "Corne," Links Way, Woodhall Gate, Pinner, 
Middlesex; Burns Ohronicle official, John R. Watson, 5 Meadow 
Drive, Hendon, London, N.W.4. 

~ALEXANDRlA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1884; federated 1885; 54 
members; President, John Gilmour; Secretary, John Barton, 
Cedar Cottage, Middleton Street, Alexandria; Treasurer, Thomas 
Moncur, Argyll Terrace, Mitchell Street, Alexandria; Burns 
Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

~TAM O' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1858; federated 1885; 
106 members; President, John Williamson; Secretary, W. 
McFarlane, 41 Cumlodden Drive, Maryhill, Glasgow, N.W.; 
Treasurer, Ernest Russell, 37 CIouston Street, Glasgow, N.W.; 
Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

4-cALLANDER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1877; federated 1885; 50 mem
bers; President, J. G. Simpson; Secretary, Alex. D. Cumming, 
J.P., F.E.LS., Auchengower, Callander; Treasurer, Archibald 
Callanin, County Offices, CaIlander. 

'1-TH1STLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1882; federated 1885; 50 mem
bers; President, John W. Logan; Secretary, David Moffat, 19 
Park Road, Glasgow, C.4; Treasurer, John Morton, 69 Nicholson 
Street, Glasgow, C.5; Burns Olvronicle official, Treasurer. 

Page 855



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 116 

9-ROYALTY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1882; federated 1886; 115 
members; President, Andrew Pearson; Secretary and Treasurer, 
William M'Minn, 5 St. Vincent Place, Glasgow, C.l. 

10-DUMBARTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1857; federated 1886; 80 
members; President, AI3iStair M. Stewart; Secretary and Trea
surer, John Lithgow, Park Lea, Stirling Road, Dumbarton. 

14--DUNDEE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1860; federated 1886; 43 mem
bers; President, Adam J. Ingram; Secretary, H. R. Paton, 37 
Union Street, Dundee; Treasurer, Alexander McLoggan, 37 
Union Street, Dundee. 

IS-BELFAST BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1886; federated 1886; 400 
members; President, George Wilson; Secretary, James R. Brown, 
M.A., B.Sc., 32 Maryville Park, Balmoral, Belfast; Treasurer, 
Frank O'N eill, B.A., 1 Tennyson Avenue, Bangor, Co. Down; 
Burns Chronicle official, Thomas Forbes, 51 Marlborough Park 
Central, Belfast. 

17-NOTTINGHAM SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: im4ituted 1871; re-constituted 
1902; federated 1886; re-affiliated 1903; 300 members; President, 
A. E. Sutherland; Secretary, C. M. Logan; Treasurer, Mrs. 
H. M. Crowley, 12 Leahurst Road, West Bridgford, Nottingham; 
Burn<l Oh,Tonicle official, J. Currie. 

20-AIRDRIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1886; 176 mem
bers; President, Alex. H. Thomson; Secretary, George R. 
Hanson, 54 Motherwell Street, Airdrie; Treasurer, James H. 
Benson, Marionville, Airdrie. 

21-GREENOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1801; federated 1886; 200 
members; President, D. M. Fleming; Secretary, A., F. Macmillan, 
74 West Blackhall Street, Greenock; Treasurer, E. A. Pressley, 
74 West Blackhall Street, Greenock; Burns Ohronicle official, 
Nairn Richardson, c/o Park, 18 Robertson Street, Greenock. 

22-EDINBURGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1848; federated 1886; 150 
members; President, James Mullo Weir, S.S.C., F.S.A.(Scot.); 
Secretary and Treasurer, George Harris, F.A.S.A., 5 York Place, 
Edinburgh. 

2S-ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY OF WINNIPEG: instituted 1871; federated 
1886; 185 members; President, George Skinner; Secretary, John 
D. McKelvie, 751 Valour Road, Winnipeg, Canada; Treasurer, 
George M. Paton, 200 Dromore Avenue, Winnipeg; Burns 
Chronicle official, Robert Stevenson, 34 Martin Avenue, 
Winnipeg. 

26-PERTH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1873; federated 1886; 46 members, 
President, Andrew Arthur; Secretary, J. Livingstone Milne, 4 
King Edward Street, Perth; Treasurer, J. B. Monteith . 

.33--GLASGOW HAGGIS CLUB: instituted 1872; federated 1886; 70 
members; President, H. J. Marrian; Secretary and Treasurer, 
O. Lennox Dunley, M.C., C.A., 31 St. Vincent Place, Glasgow, 
C.l. 

Page 856



116 . BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

34-CARRlCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1859; federated 1887; 32 
members; President, Arthur E. CoUins; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Willi:am Allan, 5 Netherview Rood, Netherlee, Glasgow. 

35-DALRY (AYRSm) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1825; federated 1887; 
85 members; President, David Houston; Secretary, James D. 
Gordon, Solicitor, Dairy, Ayrshire, and William Wilson, M.A., 
Northfield, DaIry; Treasurer, James D. Gordon; Burn8 Chronicle 
official, William Wilson, M.A. 

36-ROSEBERY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1887; 120 
members; President, William C. Fletcher; Secretary, Archibald 
W. Alexander, 55 Glencoe Street,' Glaagow, W.3; Treasurer, 
William McMinn, 5 St. Vincent Place, Glasgow, C.1; Burn8 
Chronicle official, Treasurer. . , 

37-DOLLAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1887; 41 members; 
President, J. G. Shirreffs; Secretary, Peter Mitchell, 22 Cairn
park Street, Dollar; Treasurer, John Muckersie, Station Road, 
Dollar. 

, 
40-ABERDEEN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1889; 103 

members; President, Frank Robertson; Secretary, R. H. Watson, 
The Cottage, 271 George Street, Aberdeen; Treasurer, Miss 
Mary McKnight, The Aberdeen Bookshop, 8 Upper Kirkgate, 
Aberdeen; Burns Chronicle official, Treasurer. 

44-FORFAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1891; federated 1891; 153 mem
bers; President, James N. Strachan; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Norman W. Awburn, 33 Lour Road, Forfar. 

45-cUMNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federa,ted 1891; 105 
members; President, James Welsh, LL.B.; Secretary, G. 
Fredericks, Clydesdale Bank House, Cumnock; Treasurer, H. 
COl'mell, Westfield, Cumnock. 

48-PAISLEY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1805; federated 1891 ; 32 
members; President, Jeffrey B. McGlashan; Secretary and 
Treasurer, George B. Ballantyne, 9 Potterhill Avenue, Paisley. 

49-BRIDGETON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1870; federated 1891; 1600 
members; President, Edward Gibbon; Secretary and Treasurer, 
C. Gordon Brown, 569 London Road, Glasgow, S.E. 

50-STIRLING BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1892; 130 
members; President, Robert Graham; Secretary, Thos. R. Corrie, 
36 Upper Craigs, Stirling; Treasurer, Robert Graham, M.B.E., 
National Bank House, Stirling; Burns Chronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

53-GOVAN FAIRFIELD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1892; 
32 members; President, Douglas M. Hall; Secretary, Mrs. V. 
Douglas, 56 Strathcona Drive, Glasgow, W.3; Treasurer, David 
McCarren, 17 Burghead Drive, Glasgow, S.W.1; Burns Chronicle 
official, A. Macdonald, 15 N orthcroft Road, Springburn, 
Glasgow, N. 

Page 857



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 117 

55--DERBY ,sCOTTISH ASSOCIATION AND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1890; 
federa.ted 1893; 230 members; President, J. Dickson; Joint 
Secretaries, W. M. Wylie, and A. McGill, 12 Kedleston Road, 
Allestree, nr. Derby; Treasurer, P. C. McNee, 6 Elmwood 
Drive, Breadsall, nr. Derby; Burns Ohronicle official, A. McGill, 
22 Cleveland Avenue, Chaddesden, Derby. 

56--MUIRKIRK LAPRAIK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 1893; 
120 members; President, S. C. Matthews; Secretary, George 
ValIance, Station Road, Muirkirk; Treasurer, E. M. Kerr, 
Clydesdale Bank, Muirkirk; Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

5~OUROCK JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 
1893; 153 members; President, Arthur T. Russell; Secretary, 
J. L. Inglis, Golfhill, Gourock; Treasurer, William R. 
Drummond, 63 Shore Street, Gourock; Burns Chronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

62-CU~AR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 1893; 110 members; 
President, Sheriff-Substitute More; Secretary, William Wilson, 
Westlands, Cupar-Fife; Treasurer, R. G. Rutherford, National 
Bank, Cupar-Fife. 

68-SANDYFORD (GLASGOW) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 
1894; 556 members; President, Bailie William Gordon Bennett; 
Secretary and Treasurer, Samuel W. Love, The British Linen 
Bank, Knightswood Branch, 1986 Great Western Road, Glasgow, 
W.3; Burns ChTonicle official, Robert M. Battison, Duncan's 
Temperance Hotel, 59 Union Street, Glasgow, C.l. 

71-CARLISLE BURNS CLUB: federated 1895; 50 members; President, 
James Taylor; Secretary, J. J. Barnes, 141 Dalston Road, 
Carlisle; Treasurer, James Marr, 39 Moorhouse Road, Carlisle; 
Burns Chronicle official, Treasurer. 

72-PARTICK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1895; 82 mem
bers; President, J. Duncan Cran; Secretary and Treasurer, 
A. M. Ogilvie Robertson, 79 West Regent Street, Glasgow. C.2. 

74-NATIONAL BURNS MEMORIAL AND COTTAGE HOMES, MAUCHLINE: 
instituted 1888; federated 1895; President, Col.. A. D. MacInnes 
Shaw, D.S.O., J.P., D.L.; Secretary, David J. S. Harvey, 65 
Renfield Street, Glasgow, C.2; Treasurer, H. Plant Alexander, 
The Cottage, Eaglesham Park, Renfrewshire. 

76--BRECHIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1894; federated 1896; 75 
members; President, James S. Kinghorn; Secretary and 
Treasurer, George Cumming, J.P., Lindsay Lane, Brechin. 

82-ARBROATH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 1896; 80 
members; President, John Joss; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Thomas M. Paterson, 89 High Street, Arbroath. 

85--DUNFERMLINE UNITED BURNS CLUB: instituted 1812; federated 
1896; 80 members; President, D. Thomson Kennedy, J.P.; 
Secretary and Treasurer, W. A. Thexton, J.P., National Bank 
House, Dunfermline. 

Page 858



118 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

89-SUNDERLAND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 1897; 60 
members; President, Donald Gordon; Secretary, M. Neilson, 14 
Percy Terrace, Sunderland; Treasurer, Councillor A. W. Semple, 
105 Dunelm South, Durham Road, Sunderland. 

91-SHETTLESTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 1897; 150 
members; President, J. Richmond; Secretary, W. F. Cooke, 540 
Sandyhills Road, Sandyhills, Glasgow, E.2; Treasurer, J. L. 
Taylor, 247 Ardgay Street, Sandyhills, Glasgow, E.2. 

92-KILBOW1E JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 
1897; 75 members; President, George Abbott; Secretary, Joseph 
Ballantyne, 321 Kilbowie Road, Clydebank; Treasurer, Alexander 
Davidson, 28 Bannerman Street; Clydebank. 

96-JEDBURGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1869; federa,ted 1897; 50 
members; President, Councillor Andrew Moncur; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Andrew O. Clarkson, 11 The Bountrees, Jedburgh. 

lOO-HAMILTON MOSSGIEL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1892; federated 1898; 
40 members; President, John R. Fotheringham; Secretary, Peter 
Mackie, Netherside, Strathaven; Treasurer, John King, 21 
Neilsland Street, Hamilton. 

lOB-EAST CALDER AND DISTRICT JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1897; federated 1899; 86 members; President, John M. Wardlaw; 
Secretary, Alex. Henderson, 37 Langton Road, East Calder; 
Treasurer, James Glasgow, Main Street, East Calder. 

112-DUMFRIES BURNS HOWFF CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 1899; 
139 members; President, David Miller; Joint Secretaries, N. 
Little, 4 Cumberland Street, Dumfries, and John Andrew; Trea
surer, W. Cowan. Norgate, Rotchell Road, Dumfries; Burns 
Chronicle official, T. S. McCrorie, Burns House, Dumfries. , 

120-BRISTOL CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1820; federated 1900; 
297 members; President, J. E. Barbour; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Winifred Measdy, Albion Chambers, Bristol. 

121-HAMILTON JUNIOR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1901; 
47 members; President, J. Clarkson; Secretary, H. Towall, B 
Backmuir Crescent, Whitehill, Hamilton; Treasurer, G. 
McCulloch, 7 Burnblea Street, Hamilton. 

124--THI!I NINETY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1890; federated 1902; 80 
members; President, George H. Clark; Secretary, R. A. B. 
McLaren, 4 Mayfield Road, Edinburgh, 9; Treasurer, J. M. 
Osborne, 5 Albert Terrace, Musselburgh; Burns Chronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

125-BLACKBURN-ON-ALMOND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 
1902; 30 members; President, James W. Sangster; Secretary, 
George Millar, 1 Mosshall Place, Blackburn, by Bathgate, 
West Lothian; Treasurer, Robert Savage, Almond Inn, Black
burn, by Bathgate. 

Page 859



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 11' 

126-FALKIRK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1866; federated 1902; 200 
members; President, Dr. W. J. Logie; Secretary and Treasurer, 
R. H. Menzies, Princes Street, Falkirk. 

133-NBWARTHILL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1903; federated 1904; 16 
members; President, Thos. Law, J.P.; Secretary, Jas. B. 
Mathew, 23 Loanhead Crescent, N ewarthill; Treasurer, Alex. 
Ma.xwell, 171 High Street, N ewarthill; Burns 0 hronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

135---PARTICK WESTERN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1903; federated 1904; 
100 members; President, John Hunter; Secretary and Treasurer, 
W. J. Menzies. 

139-NATIONAL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1904; federated 1904; 100 mem
bers; President, John B. Calder; Secretary and Treasurer, 
WiIliam B. Harkness, C.A., 48 West Regent Street, Glasgow, 
C.2. 

149-BLGIN BUI\NS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1905; President, 
John Wittet; Secretary and Treasurer, William Wittet, Elgin. 

152-THE HAMILTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1877; federated 1906; 110 
members; President, Rev. John A. Fraser; Secretary, John 
Jackson, 54 Cadzow Street, Hamilton; Treasurer, Col. W. Martin 
Kay, C.M.G., C.B.E., Bank of Scotland Chambers, Hamilton; 
Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

153-SCOTTISH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1903; federated 1906; 530 mem
bers; President, James Adair, O.B.E.; Secretary and Treasurer, 
J. Kevan McDowall, 115 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

156-NEWCASTLE AND TYNESIDE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1864;' federated 
1906; 150 members; President, J. Renwick Vickers; Secretary 
and Treasurer, F. Ferry, 48 Bolbec Road, Fenham, Newcastle
upon-Tyne, 4; Burns Ohronicle officra,l, J. Renwick Vickers, 
.. Belvoir," St. Bede's, East Bolden, Co. Durham. 

157-BAILLIESTON CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1901; federated 
1906; President, John Scobbie; Secretary, Andrew Swa,n, 6 
Maxwell Street, Baillieston; Treasurer, Donald McFarlane, 35 
Ma,in Street, Baillieston; Burn,. Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

158-DARLINGTON BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1906; federated 1906; 
160 members; President, James Anderson, J.P.; Secretary, 
Alexander Furness, 3 The Rise, Woodvale Road, Darlington; 
Treasurer, William R. Vickerton, 25 High Row, Darlington. 

16O--wHITBURN BURNS CLUB: federated 1906; Secretary, William 
Ramsay, 21 Ma.nse Avenue, Whitburn, West Lothian. 

161-DHARLESTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1906; 50 
IT.embers; President, William Oanuth; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Archibald Thomson, Janeville, 37 Quarry Road, Lochfield, 
Paisley; Burns Ohronicle official, Andrew Shannon, 108 Neilston 
Road, Paisley. 

Page 860



lOO BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

165-WALLSEND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1907; 50 mem
bers ; President, J ames Sanderson; Secretary, G. Pringle, 3 
Rochdale Street, Wallsend; Treasurer, G. Gibbs, 21 Brillol"wood 
Crescent, Walkerville, Newcastle. 

167-BIB.llINGlIAM AND MIDLAND SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1888; 
federated 1907; 400 members; President, W. Ra~ph Purnell, 
O.B.E.; Secretary, R. G. Robertson, 84 Colmore Row, Birming
ham, 3; Treasurer, R. M'Kenzie, 50 Stirling Road, Edgbaston, 
Birmingham, 16; Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

169-GLASGOW AND DISTRICT BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1907 ; 
federated 1908; 28 members; President, Ernest RUMeU; Secre
tary, Andrew Stenhouse, 104 West Oampbell Street, Glasgow, 
C.2; Treasurer, A. Neil Campbell, 10 Lothian Gardens, Glasgow, 
N.W.; Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer . .. 

171-CHATTANOOGA BURNS SOCIETY: instituted 1907; federated 1908; 
President, Milton B. Ochs; Secretary and Treasurer, Col. R. B. 
Cooke, James Building, Chattanooga, Tennessee, U.S.A. 

173-mvINI!l BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; fpderated 1908; 333 
members; President, Rev. Angus M. Nicolson, M.A.; Secretary, 
William PhiIIips, M.A., 43 Bank Street, Irvine; Treasurer, J. 
Norval Murray, LL.B., Woodlands, Kilwinning Road, Irvine; 
Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

181-PIWmOSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1900; federated 1909; 100 
members; President, J ames Thomson; Secretary and Treasurer, 
George Calderwood, 151 TantaIlon Rood, Glasgow, S.1. 

182-STANE MOSSGlEL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1909; federated 1946; 
25 members; President, William Galloway; Secretary, John 
Dickson, 134 Torbothie Road, Shotts; Treasurer, George Todd, 
220 Torbothie Road, Shotts. 

183-LONDONDERRY BURNS CLUB AND CALEDONIAN SOCll!lTY: instituted 
1907; federated 1909; 29 members; President, George Sidebottom ; 
Secretary, WiIliam A. Dickie, 32 Great James Street, London
derry; Treasurer, John Murray, Glencairn, 39 Aberfoyle Cres
cent, Londonderry; Burns Ohronicle official, George P. Findlay, 
37 Marlborough Street, Londonderry. 

184-BLAIRADAM SHANTER BURNS CLUB : instituted 1907; federated 1909; 
30 members; President, Thos. Brown; Secretary, Thos. C. 
Anderson, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, Kelty, Fife: Treasurer, 
John Clarkson, 50 Blair Street, Kelty. 

lOO-PORT GLASGOW BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1910; 50 
members; Presid$l.t, Andrew M;acnab; Secretary, Corneli1l8 
Young, Benclutha, Clun{l Bra.e, Port Glasgow; Treasurer, 
William McTaggart, 57 Ardgowan Street, Port Glasgow. 

192-AYRSHIRE ASSOCIATION OF FEDERATED BURNS CLUBS: instituted 1908; 
federated 1910; 28 clubs; President, David McNab; Secretary 
and Treasurer, John M. Irving, 20 Melville Street, Kilmarnock. 

Page 861



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 121 

197-WINNIPEG BURNS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1911; 30 mem
bers; Hon. Patron, Alexander Jamieson; President, E. P. 
McConnachie; Vice-Presidents, W. N. Cameron, and A. C. B. 
Stewart; Secretary, Robert A. Sloan, 150 Garfield Street, 
Winnipeg, Man., Canada; Treasurer, John E. Sirett; Chaplain, 
Rev. Alexander Calder. 

198-GOREBRIDGE TWENTY-FIVE JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1906; federated 1911; 50 members; President, John Sheilds; 
Secretary, J ames J uner, 3 Greenhall Crescent, Gorebridge ; 
Treasurer, Thomas Rutherford, 35 Hunterfield Terrace, Gore
bridge. 

199-NEWBATTLE AND DLSTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 
1911; 200 members; President, Robert Lauder; Secretary, Robert 
McCathie, 88 Reed Drive, N ewtongrange ; Treasurer, George 
Temple, 30 Galadale Crescent, N ewtongrange. 

207-cAMBUSLANG WINGATE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1908; federated 
1912; 20 members; President, Adam Humphries; Secretary, 
Adam Humphries, 59a Mill Road, Halfway, Cambuslang; 
Treasurer, Robert Dalrymple, 14 Church Street, Cambuslang. 

208-ooLORADO SPRINGS AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 
1897; federated 1912; 12 members; President, John Ferguson; 
Secretary, John B. Wemyss, 1720 N. El Paso Street, Colorado 
Springs, Colorado, U.S.A.; Treasurer, Chas. S. Hamilton, clo 
Enterprise Tent and Awning Co., Colorado Springs, Colorado, 
U.S.A. 

209-GREENOCK ST. JOHN'S BURNS CLUB: instituted 1909; federated 
1912; 200 members; President, William G. Williamson; Secre
tary, John Campbell, 33 Lyle Street, Greenock; Treasurer, 
Robert Winter, 6a South Street, Greenock. 

212-PORTOBELLO BURNS CLUB: instituted 1892; federated 1913; 84 
members; President, R. M. Cavaye; Secretary, J. M. Bell, 
B. S. C., 3 Duddingston Crescent, Portobello, Midlothian; Trea
surer, A. Harris Horne, British Linen Bank, Portobello, 
Midlothian; Bums Ohronicle officia.l, Treasurer. 

213-KINGSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 1913; 80 
members; President, Robert Armour; Secretary, Alexander H. 
Fairley, 61 Pollock Street, Glasgow, C.5; Treasurer, Alexander 
C. Smith, 150 Arisaig Drive, Glasgow, S.W.2; Burns Ohronicle 
official, Mrs. J. Somerville, 204 Copland Road, Glasgow, S.W.!. 

217-ESKDALE BURNS CLUB: federated 1913; 43 members; President, 
Robert S. Morrison; Secretary, R. Dalgliesh, 1 Eskdaill Street, 
Langholm; Treasurer, Archibald Armstrong, 4 Douglas Terrace, 
Langholm. 

218-BANNOCKBURN EMPIRE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 
1913; 36 members; President, Thomas Hood; Secret~ and 
Treasurer, Andrew M 'Gilchrist, 18 Bruce Street, Bannockburn. 

Page 862



122 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETn~S 

220-BURN.s CLUB OF ST. LOUIS: instituted 1904; federated 1913; 28 
members; President, Irvin Mattick; Secretary and Treasurer, 
William Charles, 1221 Locust Street, St. Louis, 3, Missouri, 
U.S.A. 

225-HELENSBURGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1911; federated 191.3; 100 
members; President, Robert Brown; Secretary, Thomas Ferguson, 
104 West Princes Street, Helensburgh; Treasurer, Alex. Goodlet, 
45 East Princes Street, Helensburgh. 

226-DUMFRIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1820; federated 1913; 112 
members; President, Ex-Provost K. Dobie; Secretary, H. G. 
McKerrow, 43 Buccleuch Street, Dumfries; Treasurer, H. 
Cunningham, Glenlogan, Ardwall Road, Dumfries. 

236-WHITEHA\rEN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 1914; 60 
members; President, R. T. Bell; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Duncan Jamieson, 25 Lowther Street, Whitehaven. 

237-UDDINGSTON MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 
1914; 24 members; President, William K. MofIat; secretary, 
William Sharp, "Croftpoint," 106 Old Mill Road, U ddingston; 
Treasurer, Arthur Downie, 89 Woodlands Crescent, Bothwell. 

238-BURNS CLUB OF ATLANTA (GEORGIA): instituted 1896; federated 
1914; 58 members; President, Dr. R. E. Latta; Secretary, Robert 
Macdonald, 1024 Los Angeles Avenue, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia, 
U.S.A.; Treasurer, Eugene F. King, 10 Pryor Street Building, 
Atlanta. 

239-HAWICK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1878; federated 1914; 553 mem
bers; President, Ernest McGee; Secretary, J. E. Carl11e, 77 
Longcroft Crescent, Hawick; Treasurer, Alexander Pringle, 14 
Wellington Street. Hawick. 

242-MONTROSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1908; federated 1915; 100 
members; President, J ames Christison; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Duncan Fraser, 66 High Street, Montrose. 

244-DALMUIR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 1916; 80 mem
bers; President, William Boyle; Secretary and Treasurer, John 
R. S. Lockhart, 41e Thomson Street, Clydebank. 

250-cOWDENBEATH TAM o· SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1917; 
federated 1917; 20 members; President, John Duff; Secretary, 
William Easton, 2 Prospect Street, Cowdenbeath, Fife; Trea
surer, George MofIa!. 162 Faulford Road, Cowdenbeath, Fife. 

252-ALLOWAY BURNS CLUB : instituted 1908; federated 1918; 75 mem
ber.s; President, R. G. McDowall; Secretary and Treasurer, Dr. 
P. Hutchison, "F'ol.irholm," Greenfield Avenue, Alloway, Ayr. 

254--GREENOCK VICTORIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1915; federated 1918; 
80 members; President, Alexander Burns; Secretary, James T. 
Tomlinson, 17 Auchmountain Road, Greenock; Treasurer, Frank 
Cavers, 5 Moreton Terrace, Greenock. 

Page 863



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 123 

256-NEWTON-ON-AYR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1904; federated 1919; 
re-affiliated 1943; 93 members; President, Andrew Taylor; 
Secretary, Edward Leggat, 15 Back Hawkhill, Ayr; Treasurer, 
Alexander Borland, 31 Church Street, Ayr. 

262-FlFESHIRE BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1919; federated 1919; 
9 members (clubs); President, John M. Thomson; Secretary, 
Thos. C. Anderson, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, Kelty, Fife; 
Treasurer, Thos. Bain, 7 Union Street, Kelty, Fife. 

263-GLASGOW MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1918; federated 1919; 
290 members: President, John D. Templeman; Secretary, John 
Hunter, 48 West Regent Street, Glasgow, C.2; Treasurer, James 
Stark, 382 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, C.3; Burns Ollrontcle 
official, Treasurer. 

266-NEWTON JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 
1920; 10 members; President, Wm. Mclntosh; Secretary, A. 
Lightbody, 60 Pitt Street, Newton, Cambuslang; Treasurer, 
Thos. Hynd, 30 Dunlop Street, Newton, Cambuslang. 

271-TRENTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1919; federated 1920; 20 mem
bers; President, Alex. OsIer; Secretary, Neil A. Waugh, 656 
Schiller Avenue, Trenton, 10. N.J., D.S.A.; Treasurer, David 
Waugh, 267 Clover Avenue, Trenton. 

274-TROON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1920; 121 
members; President, Charles Gibb; Secretary, T. M. Brown, 36 
West Portland Street, Troon; Treasurer, N. McPherson, Bank 
of Scotland, Troon. 

275--AYR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1920; 200 members; 
President, D. J. Willison; Secretary, David McCreadie, B.Sc., 
F.R.I.C., Beechwood, 5 St. Leonard's Road, Ayr; Treasurer, 
Norman MacKinnon. C.A., 23 Barns Street, Ayr; Burns 
Ohronicle official, D. J. Willison, Gearholm, Ayr. 

278-cr.AN STEWART NO. 50 ORDER OF SCOTTISH CLANS: instituted 1888; 
federated 1920; 180 members; President, P. M. Young; Secre
nary, William Morrison, 1130 East 3rd Street, Duluth, 5, Minn., 
U.S.A.; Treasurer, Archie Brown, 108 Eden Lane, Duluth. 

282-GLASGOW AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUBS' BOWLING ASSOCIATION: insti
tuted 1899; federated 1920; members; President, James 
Ferguson; Secretary and Treasurer, George Calderwood, 151 
Tantallon Road, Glasgow, S.l. 

283-SINCLAIRTOWN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1920; 32 
members; President. James D. Henderson; Secretary, John D. 
Bease. 1 Dysart Road, Kirkcaldy; Treasurer, George S. Nicol, 
19& St. Clair Street, Kirkcaldy. 

284-PHILADELPHIA NORTH-EASTERN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1896; 
federated 1921; 60 members; President, John Montgomery; 
Secretary, Henry CoUins, 6540 l\farsden Street, Philadelphia, 
Penn., D.S.A.; Treasurer, Thomas Garland, 3415 N. Ella Street, 
Pqiladelphia; Burns Ohronicle official, Alexander MacDonald, 
4203 E. Barnett Street, Philadelphia. 

Page 864



124 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

288-BEITH CALEDONIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1911; federated 1921; 
26 members; President, S. McCutcheon; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Allan Gilmour, Muir Park, Beith. 

292-GRAHAMSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1921; 40 
members; President, William P. Turnbull; Secretary, Robert 
Mackie, 91 Main Street, Bainsford, FaJkirk; Treasurer, John S. 
McInnes, 23 Carronside Street, Falkirk; Burn8 Chronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

293--NEWCRAlGHALL DISTRICT POOSEY NANCY BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1921; federated 1921; 60 members; President, Andrew King; 
Secretary, William Blair, 8 Avenue Square, Newcraighall, Mussel
burgh; Treasurer, R. B. Brown, 15 Park Terrace, N ewcmighall, 
Musselburgh; Burn8 Chronicle official, Treasurer. 

~I!l BURNS HOUSE CLUB LIMITED: instituted 1920; federated 1921; 
121 members; President, Daniel Bain; Secretary and Tr8l!osurer, 
John Grant, C.A., 200 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

29&-WALSALL BURNS CLUB : instituted 1900; federated 1922; 80 mem
bers; President, Andrew M. Craig; Secretary, Dr. D. M. 
Macmillan, Great Barr Hall, Birmingham, 22a; Treasurer, H. 
Myatt, "Ashleigh," Lichfield Road, Rushall, Walsall. 

303-VICTORIA ST. ANDRI!lW'S AND CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1872; 
federated 1922; 106 members; President, J ames Berwick; Secre
tary, Miss Georgina Mackay, 1360 MeN air Street, Victoria, 
British Columbia, Canada; Treasurer, Mrs. Dirom, 830 Princess 
Avenue, Victoria, British Columbia. 

305--NEW WATERFORD BURNS CLUB, CANADA: federated 1922: re-affiliated 
1938; Secretary, W. R. Cameron, 417-10t,h Street, New Water
ford, Cape Breton, Nova Scotia, Canada. 

307-IIDINBURGH AYRSHIRE ASSOCIATION: instituted 1914; fedented 
1922; 230 members; President, Henry Barton; Secretary and 
Treasurer, John McVie, 13 Hillside Crescent, Edinburgh, 7. 

309-ANNAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1923; 87 members; 
President, Gabrill M. Brock; Secretary and Treasurer. K. G. 
Sutherland, Solicitor, Royal Bank Buildings, Annan. 

310-MAUCHLINE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1923; 200 
members; President, Andrew Y. Crawford; Secretary, James 
Dunlop, Oakbank, Mauchline; Treasurer, Andrew Smith, 
.. Alvaston," Mauchline. 

314-sCOTTlSH BURNS CLUB, EDINBURGH: instituted 1920; federated 
1923; 70 members; President, Alexander Brown; Secretary, John 
Malcolm, 74 Temple Park Crescent, Edinburgh, 11; Treasurer, 
William Kinnear, 22 Newington Road, Edinburgh, 9. 

319-nSHI!lRROW MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1924; 
20 members; President, John Robb; Secretary and Treasurer, 
John Heron, 33 Wellington Street, Portobello. 

Page 865



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETmS 125 

320-TROY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1903; federated 1924; 175 members; 
President, John T. Campbell; Secretary, James H. Baxter, 21 
Bleecker Avenue, Troy, New York, D.S.A.; Treasurer, William 
Miller; Burns Chumicle official, John R. Phillips. 

323--KIRKCUDBRIGHT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1918; federated 1924; 82 
members; President, J. Gilmour Baird; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Norman C. Macmillan, 32 St. Cuthbert Street, Kirkcudbright. 

324-STOCKTON (N.S.W.) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1924; 
30 members; President, William Miller; Secretary, W. Hamilton, 
102 Dunba,r Street, Stockton, N.S.W. : Treasurer, Mrs. D. James, 
51 Fullerton Street, Stockton, N.S.W. 

325-VANCOUVER BURNS FELLOWSHIP: instituted 1924; federated 1924; 
President, John Crawford; Secretary and Treasurer, Miss Jean 
Carrick, 5456 Blenheim Street, Vancouver, B.C., Canada. 

326-BINGRY JOLLY BEGGARS LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; 
federated 1924; 50 members; President, Mrs. J. Wood; Secre
tary, Mrs. M. Purdie, Ballengry Place, Lochore, Fife; Treasurer, 
Mrs. M. Dow, 170 Waverley Cottages, Lochore, Fife. 

327-PIIRTH ~T. MARK'S BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1924; 
40 members; Secretary, William Smith, 4 Hawarden Terrace, 
Jeanfield, Perth; Treasurer, David McRae, 33 Glover Street, 
Craigie, Perth. 

329--NEWARK AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1923; 
federated 1924; 90 members; President, Coun. Dr. P. Kinmont, 
J.P.; Secretary, James R. Henderson, 14 Winchilsea Avenue, 
Newark; Treasurer, lain McCrea, 13 Milner Street, Newark. 

33O-GLIINCRAIG BONNIE JEAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 
1925; 20 members; President, Mrs. John McCormack; Secretary, 
Mrs. John Lynas, Burns Cottages, Crosshill, Glencraig, Fife; 
Treasurer, Mrs. W. Justice, 7 Benarty Avenue, Crosshill, Glen
craig; Burns Chronicle official, Mrs. John Carson, 110 North 
Glencraig, Glencraig. 

331-ROBERT BURNS SOCIETY OF BUFFALO (N. y.): instituted 1913; 
federated 1925; 85 members; President, John C. Henderson; 
Secretary, Adam P. T. Milla-r, 165 Landon Street, Buffalo, 8, 
N.Y.; Treasurer, William James Key, 66 Buffam Street, Buffalo, 
10, N.Y. 

336-PIIITBRHEAD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; federated 1925; 150 
members; President, Rev. D. Findlay Clark; Secretary, John A. 
S. Glennie, 21 Broad Street, Peterhead; Treasurer, A. M. Ross, 
The National Bank of Scot1and, Ltd., Peterhead. 

338--DALKEITH AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 
1925; re-affiliated 1945; 28 members; President, Alex. Dow; 
Secretary, W. L. Anderson, 38 Woodburn Drive. Dalkeith; 
T_urer, David Adams, 8 Edinburgh Road, Dalkeith. 

Page 866



126 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

341-LEITH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; federated 1925; 77 members; 
President, Dugald Rose, S.S.C.; Secretary, J. S. Mackie, 6 Hope 
Street, Leith; Treasurer, R. L. T. Richardson, M.C., 26 Leith 
Walk, Leith. 

345-DENBEATH AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 
1925; re-affiliated 1945; 30 members; PJ'esident, Alexander 
Wilson; Secretary, R. Hudson, 332 Methilhaven Road, Methil, 
Fife; Treasurer, James Bennett, 17 Brown Crescent, Methilhill, 
by Leven; Burn8 Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

346--0AKBANK MOSSGIEL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1925; 
200 members; President, Robert M. Jamieson; Secretary, James 
Ovens, 165 Oakbank, Mid CaIder, Midlothian; Treasurer, Thomas 
McLuckie, Oakbank, Mid CaIder, Midlothian. 

348-NEWTON JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 
1925; 19 members; President, Mrs. P. Davie; Secretary, Mrs. C. 
Gilmour, 23 Clyde Street, Newton, Hallside; Treasurer, Mrs. J. 
Farrell, 24 Westburn Road, Cambuslang, near Glasgow. 

350--MARKINCH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1899; federated 1925; 160 
members; President, Dr. A. S. Gordon; Secretary and Treasurer, 
James Carnegie, 2 Mitchell Place, Markinch. 

3li2-GRANGEMOUTH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1922; federated 1926; 90 
members; President, Willillm Aitken; Secretary and Treasnrer, 
R. C. Thomson, 203 Bo'ness Road, Grangemouth. 

354--ROYAL CLAN, ORDER OF SCOTTISH CLANS: instituted 1878; federated 
1926; 18,638 members; President, Gilbert W. Carmicl)ael; Secre
tary, Thomas R. P. Gibb, 199 Washington Street, Boston, 8, 
Mass., U.S.A.; Treasurer, William Reid, 805 St. Mark's 
Avenue, Brooklyn, New York, N.Y. 

355-cALCUTTA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federa.ted 1926; 95 mem
bers; President, W. J. Younie; Secretary, W. F. Howe, clo 
Messrs. Bird & Co.. Post Box 46,' Calcutta; Treasurer, J. 
Findlay, clo Messrs. Bird & Co., Post Box 46, Calcutta. 

356--BURNBANK AND DISTRICT MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; 
federated 1926; 70 members; President, J. Gray; Secretary, 
Joseph Stannage, 20 High Blantyxe Road, Burnbank, Hamilton; 
Treasurer, J. Prentice, 1 Reid Street, Burnbank, Hamilton. 

363-BARROW ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY: instituted 1878; federated 1926; 
130 members; President, Sir James Callander; Secretary, W. J. 
Liddle, F.R.C.S.Ed., Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness; Treasurer, 
R. M. Robertson, Dunedin, 21 Grantley Road, Barrow-in-Furness. 

365-cATRINE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 1926; re-affiliated 
1945; 30 members; President, Thomas Auld; Secretary, David 
Paterson, 36 Sorn Street, Catrine; Treasurer, Hugh Ramsay, 1 
Ballochmyle Street, Catrine; Bwrns Ohronicle official John' M. 
Irving, 20 Melville Street, Kilmarnock. ' 

Page 867



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 127 

366-LIvERPOOL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 1926; 
members; Acting President, John Findlater; Secretary, 

Hamish H. Rae, 30 Rodney Street, Liverpool, 1; Treasurer, 
D. C. Wright, 7 Meadway Spital, Bromborough, Cheshire. 

367-DORNOCH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 1927, re
affiliated 1938; Treasurer, R. A. Murray, High Street, Dornoch. 

369-MAYBOLE ST. CRLSPIN'S BURNS CLUB: instituted 1896; federated 
1927; 50 members; President, John Fisher, J.P.; Secretary, 
James H. McKie, 31 Glebe Crescent, Maybole; Treasurer, 
Thomas Conkie, 11 Wellington Street, Maybole. 

372-BAILLIESTON JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federated 
1927; 70 members; President, Mrs. John Francis; Secretary, 
Mrs. Hugh Ramage, 25 George Street, Baillieston, Glasgow; 
Treasurer, Mrs. J. Skillin, 1 Nelson Street, Baillieston, Glasgow. 

373-RED HILL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1921; federated 1927; 66 mem
bers; Secretary and Treasurer, Harry Elliott, 50 Clyde Road, 
Red Hill, Natal, South Africa. 

375-HOLYOKE CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federated 
1927; 54 members; President, Charles Lovie; Secretary, Andrew 
Dougherty, 10 Glen Street, Holyoke, Massachusetts, U.S.A.; 
Treasurer, James Nicol, 19 Liberty Street, Easthampton, Massa· 
chusetts; Burns Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

377-KILBIRNIE ROSEBERY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1906; federated 
1927; 66 members; President, James E. Shaw; Secretary, James 
McCartney, 4 Craigton Road, Kilbirnie; Treasurer, James E. 
Shaw, Munro Drive, Kilbirnie; Burns Ohronicle official, 
Treasurer. 

378-EDINBURGH DISTRIar BURNS CLUBS' ASSOCIATION: instituted 1925; 
federated 1927; 9 clubs; President, John Mc Vie; Secretary, 
Fred. J. Belford, M.A., 3 Park Grove, Liberton, Edinburgh, 9; 
Treasurer, Gavin W. Brown, 16 Mertoun Place, Edinburgh. 

379-THE HARTLEPOOLS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federa.ted 1927; 
re-affiliated 1937; 44 members; President, J. Lackie; Secretary, 
James Watson, 6 Shakespeare Avenue, West Hartlepool; 
Treasurer, Fred Cross, 44 Brunswick Street, West Hartlepool. 

380-FALKIRK CROSS KEYS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federated 
1927; 48 members; President, Thomas Robertson; Secretary, 
Finlay McRae, 3 Griffiths Street, Falkirk; Treasurer, John Rae, 
79 Main Street, Bainsford, Falkirk. 

381--GREATER NEW YORK MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1927; 
federated 1927; 100 members; President, Robert Graham; Secre· 
tary and Treasurer, John Watson, 1960 50th Street, Brooklyn, 
New York, V.S.A. 

383--GREENOCK R.N.T.F. HEATHER. BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; 
federated 1927; 70 members; President, David Watson; Secre. 
tary, George Borla.nd, 1 Steel Street, Gourock; Treasurer, M. 
DoCherty, 15 Robertson Street, Greenock; Burn8 Ohronicle 
official, Treasurer. 

Page 868



128 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

384-PUMPHERSTON BONNIE DOON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; 
federated 1927; 85 members; President, James Dunlop; Secre
tary, Wm. Gowans, 91 East Road, Pumpherston, Midcalder; 
Treasurer, Thos. Stenhouse, New Rows, Pumpherston, Midcalder. 

387-l\lARY CAMPBELL BURNS CLUB (CAMBUSLANG): instituted 1927; 
federated 1927; 50 members; President, Mrs. Mary Thomson; 
Secretary, Mrs. J. McNeil, 4 Gateside Buildings, HalfWl&Y, 
Cambuslang; Treasurer, Mrs. E. Hughes, 5 Gateside Buildings, 
Halfway, Cambuslang; Burn8 Chronicle official, Treasurer. 

388-KYLE LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1927; federated 1927; 
President, Mrs. Alex. Neilson; Secretary, Mrs. James Anderson, 
200 Springhill Road, Shotts; Treaaurer, Mrs. William Boy, 
Springhill Buildings, Shotts. 

390-MEIKLE EARNOCK JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; 
federated 1928; 36 members; Presiden1;, John Happle; Secretary, 
Jacob Hodge, 31 Limekilnburn Road, Quarter; Treasurer, Janll'S 
Pollock, 26 N eilsland Street, Fairhill, Hamilton; Burns Chronicle 
official, Treasurer. 

391-WATERBURY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1928; 50 
members; President, William Sherriff; Secretary, Robert Currie, 
80 Pine Street, Wa.terbury, Conn., U.S.A.; Treasurer, James 
Littlejohn, 327 East Main Street, Waterbury. 

392-WHIFFLET BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1928; 35 mem
bers; President, Walter Loudon; Secre1;ary, William Webber 
Lees, 58 Lavelle Drive, Coatbridge; Treasurer, John A. W. 
Kirk, J.P., 6 Bank Street, Coatbridge. 

393-ANNAN LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 1928; 150 
members; President, Mrs. F. Wright; Secretary, Mrs. W. 
Simpson, 2 Thorbum Crescent, Annan; Treasurer, Mrs. A. C. 
Irving, 9 Waterfoot Road, Annan. 

398-cOLINTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1907; federated 1928; 50 mem
bers; President, J. McPhail Cant; Acting-Secretary, John Millar, 
J.P., "Torduff," 198 Colinton Road, Edinburgh, 11; Treasurer, 
William Swanson, 35 Redford Drive, Colinton, Edinburgh, 13. 

399-ST. RINGANS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1928; 150 
members; President, William Nimmo; Secretary, John 
McClumpha. 37 Milton Terrace, Whins of Milton, Stirling; 
Treasurer, William Cook, 47 Borestone Crescent, St. Nini<&ns, 
Stirling. 

400--HADDINGTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1889; federated 1928; 84 
members; President, John Cumming; Secretary and Treasurer, 
David C. Young. Dumpender, Haddington. 

402-HIGHLAND MARY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 
1928; 36 members; President, Mrs. James Reid; Secretary, Mrs. 
A. Guthrie, 29 Woodhead Street, High Valleyfield, Newmills, 
Fife; Treasurer. Mrs. James Nicol, 2 Valleyfield Avenue, High 
ValIeyfield. 

Page 869



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 129 

403-FRASERBURGH BURNS CLUB: federn.ted 1928; Secretary, A. S. 
Kelman, Saltoun Chambers, Fraserburgh. 

405-cALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF SHEFFIELD: instituted 1822; federated 
1929; 1000 members; President, S. Watt Smith; Secretary, W. 
Gregor McGregor, 10 Moor Oaks Road, Sheffield, 10; TreallUrer, 
Albert Forsyth, 75 Crescent .Road, Sheffield, 7. 

406-DUBLIN BENEVOLENT .sOCIETY OF ST. ANDREW: instituted 1831; 
federated 1929; 210 members; President, David Stewart, C.A.; 
Secretary, W. Morrison Milne, 4 Cremore Road, Glasnevin, 
Dublin; Treasurer, J. Hubbard Clark, J.P., Inverclyde, Iona 
Park, Dublin. 

409--STENHOUSEMUffi AND DISTRICT PLOUGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1929; federated 1929; 80 members; President, John C. Reid; 
Secretary, John McMahon, 122 King Street, Stenhousemuir; 
Treasurer, John Johnston, 15 Eastcroft Street, Larbert. 

412-GARY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 1929; 34 members; 
President, W'allace Bache; Secretary, George H. Knight, 829 
Johnston Street, Gary, Indiana, U.S.A.; Treasurer, Wilfrid 
Bell, 765 Virginia Street, Gary. 

413---ST. ANDREW SOCIETY OF SAN FRANCISCO: instituted 1863; federated 
1929; 200 members; President, John Craig; Secretary, Thomas 
C. Hunter, 414 Mason Street, San Francisco, California, U.S.A.; 
Treasurer, Wm. R. Carswell, 2076 Oakland Avenue, Pudmont 
Road, San Francisco. 

414-DALKEITH FOUNTAIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 1929; 
President, William M. Linton; Secretary, W. M. Linton, Relief 
Cottage, Dalkeith, Midlothian; Treasurer, Charles Dickson, 5 
Elmfield Park, Dalkeith, Midlothian. 

417-BURNLEY AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1924; 
federated 1929; 71 members; President, Dr. J. B. Aitken; 
Secretary, T. P. Butcher, 12 Rossendale Avenue, Burnley, Lancs.; 
Treasurer, Mrs. Horner, 21 Rosehill Avenue, Burnley. 

418-SKBGNESS .sCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1928; federated 1929; 68 
members; President, Major F. Conway Gordon; Secretarl: and 
Treasurer, J. Macdonald, Moray Hotel, North Parade, Skegness, 
Lincolnshire. 

421-ARROCHAR AND TARBET BURNS CLUB: 
1929 ; 66 members; President, A. 
Andrews, The Schoolhouse, Tarbet; 
Stevenson, The Manse, T'arbet; 
Treasurer. 

instituted 1929; federated 
Thomson; Seoretary, R. 

Treasurer, Rev. R. D. E. 
Burns Ohronicle official, 

424-cAMBUSLANG TAl\/[ 0' SRANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928 ; 
federated 1929; 20 members; President, George Johnstone; 
Secretary, George McLellan, 33 Park Street, Cambuslang j Trea
surer, John Fowler, 35 Westburn Road, Cambuslang. 
I 

Page 870



130 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

426-SAUCHIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1929; 60 mem
bers; President, Andrew Spence; Secretary aQd Treasurer, 
George Ga!l0way, 56 Main Street, Sauchie, Alloa. 

427-GOREBRlDGE GLENCAIRN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 
1929; 50 members; President, Alexander McN eil; Secretary, 
James Munro, Deanbank Cottage, Vogrie Road, Gorebridge, 
Midlothian; Treasurer, George Munro, Esperston Cottages, 
Esperston, Gorebridge. 

428-CHRYSTON BURNS CLUB : instituted 1924; federated 1929; 36 mem
bers; President, David Jackson; Secretary and Treaaurer, Allan 
McPherson, 72 Cumbernauld Road, Muirhead, Chryston. 

429-BATRGATE JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 
1929; 40 members; President, Capt. James Ritchie; Secretary 
and Treasurer, Patrick Glen, 41 Torphichen Street, Bathgate. 

43O-GoUROCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1929; 103 
members; President, George Webster; Secretary, F. T. Tarbet, 
11 Bath Street, Gourock; Treasurer, W. A. Thomson, Union 
Bank of Scotland, Gourock. 

431-INVERKIP BURNS CLUB : instituted 1907; federated 1929; 100 mem
bers; President, William Muir; Secretary and Treasurer, William 
Telfer, Langhouse Cottage, Inverkip. 

432-WINCHBURGR LEA RIG BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; federated 
1930; 110 members; President, Alexander Taylor; Secretary, 
Robert Findlay, 72 Main Street, Winchburgh, West Lothian; 
Treasurer, James McPhie, Canalside, Winchburgh, West Lothian. 

435--AYR TAM 0' SRANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1906; federated 
1930; 50 members; President, W. G. Thomson; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Henry Baxter, 11 Rozelle Terrace, Maybole Road, 
Ayr. 

436-WALNEY JOLLY BEGGARS LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; 
federated 1930; 70 members; President, Mrs. Jackson; Secretary, 
Mrs. L. Kersha,w, 11 Delhi Street, Walney, Barrow-in-Furness; 
Treasurer, Mrs. Mills, 90 Dominion Street, Walney, Barrow-in
Furness. 

437-DUMFRIES LADIES' BURNS CLUB, NO_ 1: instituted 1930; federated 
1930; 115 members; President, Mrs. McQueen; Secretary, Mrs. 
D. Bell, 52 Aldermanhill Road, Dumfries; Treasurer, Mrs. 
McCrorie, Burns House, Dumfries. 

438-cHESTERFIELD AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: instituted 
1910; federated 1930; 366 members; President, Mrs. C. A. 
Dauncey; Secretary, Mrs. Mina Nicholson, 3 Goldwell House, 
Ashgate Road, Chesterfield; Treasurer, Mrs. F. W. Broom, 12 
Whitecotes Lane, Chesterfield. 

441-TIIIMPLE BURNS CLUB : instituted 1930; federated 1930; 36 members; 
President, A. N eilson; Secretary, Mrs. Mary Tennant, 33 Easter 
Road, Dykehead, Shotts; Treasurer, J. Canning, 21 Bon Accord 
Crescent, Dykehead, Shotts. 

Page 871



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 131 

443-VICTORIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1922; federated 1931; 142 mem
bers; President, Edward M. Whyte; Secretary, Harry Wood, 
2058 Neil Street, Victoria, B.O., Canada; Treasurer, John Grant, 
460 Moss Street, Victoria. 

444-sWANSEA AND WEST WALES CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted ; 
federated 1931; 150 members; President, The Hon. Laurence P. 
Methuen·Campbell; Secretary, Alexander Kinloch Miller, 49 
Bryn Road, Brynmill, Swansea; Treasurer, W. Malcolm, 5 
Devon Terrace, Swansea. 

445--BUXTON CALEDONIAN SOCIETY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1927 ; 
federated 1931; 71 members; President, Gilbert Johnston, M.A.; 
Secretary and Treasurer, J. H. GilfilLan, Lyndrum, Park Road, 
Buxton. 

446-HEREFORDSHIRE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1931; 81 
members; President, Dr. J. R. Bulman; Secretary and Treasurer, 
J. S. Wilcox, 258 Ledbury Road, Hereford. 

447-JIIOUNTAIN DAISY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 
1931; re-affiliated 1947; 84 members; President, Mrs. Agnes 
Drysdale; Secretary, Mrs. Isabella Allan, 3 Primmer Place, 
Cowdenbeath; Treasurer, Mrs. Isabella Cowie, Rosehill Crescent, 
Cowdenbeath. 

449--WELLINGTON (N.Z.) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1931; 
120 members; President, R. H. Ni=o; Secretary and Treasurer, 
A. F. Dickson, 24 Evans Bay Road, Wellington, E.1, N.Z. 

452-AUCHTERDERRAN BONNIE JEAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; 
federated 1931; 40 members; President, Mrs. T. Reekie; Secre
tary, Mrs. T. Drylie, 37 Dundonald Park, Cardenden, Fife; 
Treasurer, Mrs. Blackwood, 153 Dundonald Park, Cardendell, 
Fife. 

453-NORTH-EASTERN BURNS CLUB OF PHILADELPHIA LADIES' AUXILIARY: 
instituted 1927; federated 1931; 67 members; President, Mrs. 
Hilda Highlands; Secretary, Elizabeth Hunter, 1238 Allegheny 
Avenue, Philadelphia, 33; Treasurer, Margaret Wallace, 6550 
Hegerman Street, Philadelphia, 35. 

454-ROTHERHAM AND DISTRICT SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: instituted 1924; 
federated 1931; 290 members; President, William Patrick; Secre
tary, William McCormick Hamilton, 10 Albion Road, Rotherham; 
Treasurer, James Gordon, 15 Middle Lane South, Rotherha.m. 

456-rnooN MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1932; 97 
members; President, Edward G. GaIt; Secretary, Malcolm H. 
Black, 13 Muirhead Crescent, Troon; Treasurer, David McClure, 
92 East Crescent, Troon. 

457-KINGLASSIE LADIES' mGHLAND JIIARY NO. 2 BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1932; federated 1932; 11 members; President, Mrs. Dewar; 
Secretary, Mrs. W. Driscoll, 91 Milna Crescent, Kinglassie, Fife; 
Treasurer, Mrs. J. Luth, 37 Milna Crescent, Kinglassie. 

Page 872



132 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

458-srONEHAVEN (FAmERLAND) BURNS CLUB: federated 1932; 100 mem
bers; President, A. J. Scrimgeour; Secretary and Treasurer, A. 
Hardie, 2 Fetteresso Terrace, Stonehaven. 

459-cowDENBEArH WEsr END JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1931; federated 1932; 44 members; President, Wm. Duncan; 
Secretary, Peter Falconer, 47 Primmer Place, Cowdenbeath, Fife; 
Treasurer, R. Walker, 6 Glenburn Place, Cowdenbeath; Burns 
Ohronicle official, John Bell. 

461-LEICEsrER CALEDONIAN SOCIEry: instituted 1877; federated 1932; 
267 members; President, J'ames Hobbs; Secretary, I. M. 
McCallum, 182 Glenfield Road, Leicester; Treasurer, William 
A. Campbell, 106 Colchester Road, Leicester: 

462-cHELrENHAM scorrISH SOCIEry: instituted 1930; federated 1932; 
180 members; President, Dr. David Clow; Secretary, Mrs. J. 
E. Webster, Handley Cross, Cheltenham; Treasurer, A. Milne, 
Fairlands, Leckhampton Road, Cheltenham. 

464-YAKIMA VALLEY BURNS CLUB: federated 1932; President, Wm. 
Tweedie; Secretary, Archie Wilson, 1211 Cherry Avenue, 
Yakima, Washington, U.S.A.; Treasurer, Thos. Jackson. 

466-DYKEHEAD AFrON WArER LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; 
federated 1932; 30 members; President, Mrs. Nelson; Secretary, 
Mrs. H. Keir, 9 Nithsdale Street, Dykehead, Shotts; Treasurer, 
Mrs. A. Stewart, 135 Shotts Kirk Road, Dykehead, Shotts. 

467--GILBERrFIELD HIGHLAND MARY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1932; federated 1932; 56 members; President, Mrs. Jean Soutar; 
Secretary, Mrs. Ja.net Porte, 6 Mill Road, Halfway, Cambus· 
lang; Treasurer, Mrs. Gebbie, 61 Bothwell Street, Cambuslang. 

468-HIGH BLAN'rYRE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; federated 1932; 52 
members; President, H ugh Gibson; Secretary, J ames McLean, 
374 Main Street, High Blantyre; Treasurer, Thomas Crane, 
6 Douglas Street, High Blantyre. 

469-DENNY CROSS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; federated 1932; 37 
members; President, Joseph H. Gmham; Secretary, Thomas 
Bryson, Holehouse Farm, Denny; Treasurer, William Bryson, 
WaIlace Crescent, Denny. 

470-sr. GILES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1932; 120 
members; President, W. Scott; Secretary and Treasurer, Bailie 
Robert Farquhar, Ingleside, West Road, Elgin. 

471-ROSE OF GRANGE BURNS CLUB: federated 1932; Secretary and 
Treasurer, John Lapsley, 7 Dugald Stewart Avenue, Bo'ness. 

472-RENFRIIlWSHmE ASSOCIArION OF BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; 
federated 1932; 41 members; President, Peter McCallum; Secre· 
tary and Treasurer, Arthur C. E. Lewis, Vallorbe, 16 Rodney 
Road, Gourock. 

Page 873



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 133 

475-TWEEDDALE LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; federated 1933; 
50 members; President, Mrs. C. C. Turnbull; Secretary, Mrs. 
E. Smith, 21 St. Andrew's Road, Peebles; Treasurer, Mrs. G. 
Davidson, Bridgegate. 

476-BORDER CITIES BURNS CLUB : instituted 1929; federated 1933; 120 
members; President, Leonard Harrop; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Alexander Barron, 462 Hall Avenue, Windsor, Ontario, Canada. 

477-BELLAHOUSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1933; 94 
members; President, Mrs. D. Graham; Secretary, Mrs. J. 
McComish, 38 Kenmure Street, Gla.sgow, S.l; Treasurer, R. S. 
Frame, 207 Paisley Road West, Glasgow, S.W.1; Burns Ohronicle 
official, Treasurer. 

478-BONNIE DOON LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1933; federated 
1933; 60 members; President, Mrs. T. Pryde; Secretary, Mrs. 
T. Penman, 96 Blair Street, Kelty, Fife; Treasurer, Mrs. 1. 
Morris, Grievesland Terrace, Kelty. 

479-QUEEN OF THE SOUTH LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; 
federated 1933; 120 members; President, Mrs. J. Clark; Secre
tary, Mrs. H. Coulson, 52 Friars Vennel, Dumfries; Treasurer, 
Mrs. W. MiIIar, Lockerbie Road, Dumfries. 

48~LENCAmN BURNS CLUB OF CORNWALL: instituted 1923; federated 
1933; 100 members; President, The Lord SemphiII; Secretary, 
J. A. Donald, Glencairn, Falmouth; Treasurer, W. Ca.meron, 
PopplewelI Royal Hotel, FaImouth. 

481-LONDON AYRSHmE SOCIETY: instituted 1897; federated 1933; 
President, Alexander Belch; Secretary, Robert Kean, Romney 
House, Tufton Street, London, S. W.1; Treasurer, John A. D. 
Paton, 105 Canfield Gardens, Hampstead, London, N.W.6. 

484-SHEDDENS LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1933; 
15 members; President, Mrs. Mary Logan; Secretary, Mrs. 
Janet Donaldson, 8 McEwan Street, Glasgow, E.1; Treasurer, 
Mrs. IsabelIa Paul, 682 Shettleston Road, Glasgow, E.2. 

486-JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB: federated 1934; President, Mrs. 
Duffin; Secretary, Mrs. J. Duffy, Sunnybraes Terrace, Steelend, 
Saline, by Dunfermline; Treasurer, Mrs. PalIan. 

492-HARROW AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1928; 
federated 1934; 425 members; President, Edward Grafton; Secre
tary, James O. Cumming, 38 The Lawns, Hatch End, Middlesex; 
Treasurer, A. G. Esslemont, 114 Kenton Lane, Harrow, 
Middlesex. 

493-AKRON BURNS CRONIES: instituted 1934; federated 1934; 22 
members; President, Mrs. Peter F. Young; Secretary, Mrs. 
George Bosomworth, 81 Sand Run Road, Akron, 13, Ohio, 
V.S.A.; Treasurer, Mrs. James Youngson, 453 S. Firestone, 
Boulev·a.rd, Akron. 

Page 874



134 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

494-MOTHERWELL UNITED SERVICES BURNS CLUB: federated 1934; 60 
members; President, Robert K. Hamilton; Secretary, Geoffrey 
Plumb, 41 Waverley Terrace, Motherwell; Treasurer, John 
Ormiston, Glencairn Street, Motherwell. 

495-BAGHDAD CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1922; federated 1934; 
70 members; President, J. Gilroy Baillie; Secretary, H. Camp
bell, cl 0 Stephen Lynch & Co., Ltd., Baghdad, Iraq; Treasurer, 
W. T. Kellie, clo The Imperial Bank of Ira.n, Baghdad, Iraq. 

496-THE AULD HOOSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1934; 
President, Ex·Provost Kinninmonth; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Thomas Chalmers, 1 Rossend Park, Burntisland, Fife. 

497-ST. ANDREW BURNS CLUB (WELLINGTON, N.Z.): instituted 1934; 
federated 1934; 160 members; President, H. McWhinnie; 
Secretary, Miss B. Clark, 282 Lambton Quay, Wellington, New 
Zealand; Treasurer, C. G. Cattanach. 

498-FLINT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1934; 65 members; 
President, Alexander Burnside; Secretary, Jos. M. Graham, 
2617 Sloan Street, Flint, 4, Mich., D.S.A.; Treasurer, Geo. Hill, 
702 Mason Street, Flint; Burns Ohronicle official, Geo. S. 
MacGregor, 1049 Chevrolet Avenue, Flint. 

500-NEW CUMNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1934; 60 
members; President, A. W. Mackay, B.Sc.; Secretary and Trea
surer, Dr. William Edgar, Oakdene, New Cumnock, Ayrshire. 

501-GALT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1908; federated 1935; 75 members; 
President, William Murphy; Secretary, John Leadbetter, 69 
G\lenmorris Street, GaIt, Ont., Canada; Treasurer, Wilfred 
Bonner, Sen., 63 Elliott Street, GaIt; Burns Ohronicle official, F. 
Hutchinson, 33 Grand Avenue South, GaIt. 

503-DUNBLANE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1935; 42 mem
bers ; President, Bailie Archibald MacDougall ; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Daniel Campbell, Finnartmore, Ramoyle, Dunblane. 

505-WISHAW MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1935; 
100 members; President, Godfrey Hill; Secretary, Alexander 
Reid, 95 Netherton Road, Wishaw; Treasurer, Robert Scott, 
Waverley Drive, Wishaw. 

506-JEAN ARMOUR LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1934; federated 
1935; 34 members; President, Mrs. Haddow; Secretary, Mrs. J. 
Moore, 87 Shottskirk Road, Dykehead; Treasurer, Mrs. J. 
Patterson, Shottskirk Road, Dykehead. 

507-BURNS SOCIETY OF ORANGE COUNTY (CALIFORNIA) : instituted 1935; 
federated 1935 ; 60 members; President, Robert L. Brown; 
Secretary, Alex. Brownridge, 1414 N. Main Street, Santa Ana, 
California; Treasurer, S. Jas. Tuffree, Placentia. 

508-AUCHTERDERRAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1935; 35 
members; President, John Dick; Secretary, Mrs. R. Morgan, 32 
16th Street, Bowhill, Cardenden, Fife; Treasurer, Stuart Boyd, 
Jamphlars Cottage, Oardenden. 

Page 875



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 135 

509-MOTHERWELL MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1911; federated 
1935; re-affiliated 1945; 400 members; President, Alexander 
Blair; Secretary, G. S. Barrie, 125 Camp Street, Motherwell; 
Treasurer, J. B. Clapperton, 33 McDonald Street, Motherwell; 
Burns Ohronicle official, W. Graham, Alma Place, Glencairn 
Street, Motherwell. 

510-SCOTrISH DYES RECREATION CLUB: federated 1935; President, 
E. O. Wisbey; Secretary, I. M. Halkett, c/o I.C.I. Ltd., 
Dyestuffs Division, Earl's Court, Grangemouth; Treasurer, G. F. 
Wood, same address as Secretary. 

511-PERTH (WEST AUSTRALIA) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1935; 80 members; President, Dr. T. C. Boyd, M.A.; Secretary, 
Mrs. Jessie Reid, 166 Seventh Avenue, Maylands, Perth, Western 
Australia; Treasurer, Mrs. M. Thompson, 317 Vincent Street, 
Leederville, Perth. 

513--FREDERICTON SOCIETY OF ST. ANDREW: instituted 1845; federated 
1935; Secretary, John H. Malcom, Bank of Nova Scotia, 
Fredericton, New Brunswick, Canada. 

514-SHANGHAI BURNS CLUB: federated 1936; Secretary, William Lyle, 
51 Canton Road, Shanghai, China. 

515-CALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF ABADAN: instituted 1824; federa.ted 1936; 
160 members; President, A. D. Foster; Secretary and Treasurer, 
William Jamieson, c/o Anglo-Iranian Oil Co., Ltd., Abadan, 
Iran. 

516-THE AIRTS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1933; federated 1936; 25 
members; President, John McLurg; Secretary, Charles Plain, 
96 N orthfield, Tranent; Treasurer, Thomas Davidson, 16 Schaw 
Road, Prestonpans. 

518-YE AULD CRONIES MASONIC BURNS CLUB (CLEVELAND, OHIO): 
instituted 1935; federated 1936; 15 members; President, James 
W. Logie; Secretary and Treasurer, Thomas Hair, 285 East 
218th Street, Euclid, Ohio, U.S.A. 

520-UDDINGSTON LOCHLIE LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; 
federated 1936; 65 members; President, Mrs. Sarah McBride; 
Secretary, Mrs. Isobel Downie, 89 Woodla,nds Crescent, Bothwell; 
Treasurer, Mrs. Janet Frew, 7 Russell Place, Tannochside, 
U ddingston. 

521-WARATAH-MAYFIELD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1936; 
50 members; President, Angus Smith; Secretary, James 
McGirvan, 13 Burnett Street, Mayfield West, Newcastle, N.S.W., 
Australia; Treasurer, Robert Bell. 

522-0LENLEE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1933; federated 1936; 25 mem
bers; President, James Allan; Secreta.ry, Murdoch Dyet, 9 
Glenlee Street, Burnbank, Hamilton; Treasurer, George Orr, 
10 King Street, Burnbank, Hamilton; Burns Chronicle official, 
Ja.mes Allan, 58 Sempie Street, Burnbank, Hamilton. 

Page 876



136 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

523-HIGHLAND SOCIETY OF NEW ,SOUTH WALES: instituted 1877; 
federated 1936; 1399 members; Pre&ident, Captain James R. 
Patrick; SecretJary, James Mackintosh, Scottish House, 19 
Bridge Street, Sydney, N.S.W., Australia; Treasurer, Jas. G. 
MacKee, C.A., 44 Margaret Street, Sydney. 

524-THE CRONIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1936; 30 
members; President, James McDonald; Secretary and Treasurer, 
A. H. F. Marshall, 8 Moss Street, Paisley. 

525-FLINT JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1937; 24 members; .President, William Piercy; Secretary and 
Treasurer, John R. Hurry, 9271 Neff Road, RI Clio, Michigan, 
U.S.A. 

526-DYKEHEAD TAM 0' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1937; 35 members; President, Andrew Inglis; Secretary, John C~ 
Weir, 33 Wilson Road, Allanton, Shotts; Treasurer, Thomas 
Rae, Hunter Place, Dykehead, Shotts. 

528-LOUGHBOROUGH SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: instituted 1930; federated 
1937; 100 members; President, Alderman A. Y. McElvie, J.P.; 
SecretJary, A. D. Telfer, 87 Middleton Place, Loughborough; 
Treasurer, D. MacEwen Lawson, C.A., Windyridge, Pantain 
Road, Loughborough. 

529-THE WILLIAM MITCHELL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1937; 27 members; President, William Kilpatrick; Secretary, 
Robert Cook, 27 Calder Drive, Mossend, Bellshill; Treasurer, 
Jamas B. Mitchell, 509 Main Street, Bellshill. 

53O-S0UTHERN SCOTTISH COUNTIES BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1937; 
federated 1937; 12 clubs; President, James Denniston, F.E.I.S.; 
Secretary and Treasurer, William Black, Cardean, Eastfield Road, 
Dumfries. 

531-TEEs·sIDE CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1899; federated 1937; 
120 members; President, A. H. Merrie; Secretary, Mrs. N. 
Leslie, Dunottar House, Dunottar Avenue, Eaglescliffe, Co. 
Durham; Treasurer, N. E. Wallace, 3 Grantham Road, Norton, 
Stockton-on-Tees; Burn8 Chronicle official, W. G. Wishart, 
Grangeholme, Imperial A venue, N orton, Stockton-on-Tees. 

532-CESSNOCK BURNS CLUB, N.S. W. : instituted 1935; federated 1937; 
members; President, J. Tomlinson; Secretary, WaIter W. 

Robertson, 63 Melbourne Street, Aberdare, Cessnock, New South 
Wales, Australia; Treasurer, A. Harrower. 

533-FAULDHOUSE CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1937; 50 members; President, Douglas Stirrit; Secretary, John 
Malcolm, 99 Barton Terrace, Fauldhouse; Treasurer, George 
Malcolm, 21 Scott Place, Fauldhouse. 

534-BEDLINGTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 1937; 84 
members; President, Jas W. Pooley; SecretJary, S. Pattinson, 
Stayros, Clovelly Gardens, Bedlington, Northumberland; Trea
surer, William Craigs, Sub·Postmaster, Post Office, Barrington, 
Bedlington Station; Burns Ohronicle official, Christopher Bergen, 
1 Jubilee Terrace, Bedlington Station. 

Page 877



BURNS CLUBS AND SOOTTISH SOCIETIES 137 

535-PLYMOUTH AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1927; 
federated 1937; 70 members; President, R. McDonald; Secretary, 
John Oommon, Cluden, Torland Road, Hartley, Plymouth; 
Treasurer, John Hutcheson, 37 Lynwood Avenue, Marsh Mills, 
Plymouth. 

536-WHITHORN AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1937; 50 members; President, Rev. Harry Law, M.A.; Secretary, 
and Treasurer, Thomas Latimer, The Clydesdale Bank, Ltd., 
Whithorn. 

537-HARTHILL AND DISTRICT YOUNG CRONIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1935; federated 1937; 30 members; President, Thomas 
Cunningham; Secretary, Charles Grahame, 18 Dunn Terrace, 
Harthill, Lanarkshire; Treasurer, David Grahame, 2 Muirhead 
Place, Eastfield, Harthill. 

538-GREENOCK AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUBS' PAST PRESIDENTS' ASSOCIA
TION: instituted 1937; federated 1937; 40 members; President, 
John R. Lynn; Secretary and Treas~rer, A. C. E. Lewis, Val
lorbe, 16 Rodney Road, Gourock. 

540-JOHNSTONE MASONIC BURNS CLUB : instituted 1930; federated 1937; 
65 members; President, Councillor James R. Walker, J.P.; 
Secretary, Archibald H. Caldwell, 12 Macdowall Street, John
stone; Treasurer, Ex-Provost Hugh McQueen, 12 Collier Street, 
Johnstone. 

541-DOUNE AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1938; 60 members; President, Bailie Masterton; Secretary a.nd 
Treasurer, Councillor John McTurk, Northlea, Doune. 

542-wHITE HEATHER BURNS CLUB; instituted 1936; federated 1938; 60 
members; President, James Cowan; Secretary, Archibald 
Armstrong, 64 Beechworth Drive, N ewarthill; Treasurer, William 
Johnson, 133 High Street, Newarthill. 

543-ABBEY CRAIG BURNS CLUB; instituted 1935; federated 1938; 81 
members; President, George Marshall; Secreta.ry, Duncan M. 
Muirhead, 20 Dunster Road, Causewayhead, Stirling; Treasurer, 
Alexander Marshall, Airthrey Road, Causewayhead, Stirling. 

544-ASHINGTON BURNS CLUB; instituted 1890; federated 1938; 40 mem
bers; President, J. F. R. Gairdner, M.B., M.R.C.S.; Secreta.ry, 
J. Hudson Ogle, 7 Ingleby Terrace, Lynemouth, Morpeth; 
Treasurer, R. Tweddle. 

545-PARRAMATTA AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB (NEW SOUTH WALES): 
instituted 1934; federated 1938; 53 members; President, Colin 
Cameron; Secretary, John Howie, 12 Gore Street, Parramatta, 
N.S.W., Australia; Treasurer, James Russell, 10 Isabella Street, 
North Parramatta. 

546-THE OAK BURNS CLUB (HAMILTON); instituted 1937; federated 
1938; 40 members; President, John Kane; Secretary, Robert 
Ritchie, 43 Bent Road, Hamilton; Treasurer, J ames Ritchie, 47 
Bent Road, Hamilton. 

/ 

Page 878



138 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

547-COALBURN JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB : instituted 1937; federated 
1938; 33 members; President, James Simpson; Secretary, James 
Logan, 2 Tinto View Terrace, Coalburn; Treasurer, William 
Morrison, Croft Terrace, Coalburn. 

548-LEEDS CALEDONIAN SOCIETY : instituted 1894; federated 1938; 650 
members; President, Col. A. D. Sharp, C.B., C.M.G., T.D., 
F.R.C.S.; Joint-Secretaries, W. Strachan, Drumnagarrow, Wel
lington Hill, Shadwell, Leeds, and W. Morgan, 39 Ridge Way, 
Leeds, 8; Treasurer, H. A. Gordon, Clynder, Creskeld Lane, 
Bramhope, Leeds. 

549-BOTHWELL BONNIE LESLEY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; 
federated 1938; 19 members; President, Mrs. Cain; Secretary, 
Mrs. Mary Duff, 8 Griqua Terrace, Bothwell; Treasurer, Mrs. 
May Chapman, 16 Croftbank Crescent, Bothwell. 

550-DuNOON MARY CAMPBELL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 
1938; 47 members; President, J. McDonald; Secretary, D. 
McBride, 6 Park Terrace, The Glebe, Dunoon; Treasurer, J. 
Agnew, "Glencairn," John Street, Dunoon. 

551-sCARBOROUGH CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1934; federated 
1938; 166 members; President, William Littlefair; Secretary, 
Frederick P. Macleod, M.R.C.V.S., 86 Scalby Road, Scar· 
borough; Treasurer, John G. Stewart, "Hill Crest," 61 Peas
holm Drive, Scarborough. 

552-FAWSIDE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 1938; 45 
members; President, P. Muirhead; Secretary, R. Ha,milton, 80 
N orthfield, Tranent; Treasurer, A. Davanna, N orthfield, 
Tranent; Assistant Treasurer, J. McDonald, clo Cross Keys Inn. 

553-WOLVERHAMPTON AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 
1938; federated 1938; 205 members; President, A. M. Hutcheson; 
Secretary, W. R. Robertson, 61 Birches Barn Avenue, Wolver
hampton; Treasurer, W. King, Commercial Union Assurnnce 
Company, 87 Darlington Street, Wolverhampton. 

554-BRUCE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 1938; 40 members; 
President, J ames CoIlins; Secretary, Charles Ross, 4 Black Dykes 
Terrace, Falkland, Fife; Treasurer, Charles F. Hawkins, Bruce 
Arms Hotel, Fa,lkland, Fife; Burn8 Ohronicle official, Treasurer. 

555-HARROGATE ST. ANDREW's SOCIETY: instituted 1921; federated 
1938; 90 members; President, Rev. Peter McCall; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Geo. S. M. Edward, 10 Woodlands Drive, Harrogate, 
Yorkshire. 

556-cALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF DONCASTER: federated 1938; President, 
J. M. Hain, M.B., Ch.E.; Secretary, W. Hall, A.M.LE.E., 15 
Manor Drive, Doncaster; Treasurer, David Galder, 183 Shady
side, Hexthorpe, Doncaster. 

557-LADIES' BURNS CLUB OF ATLANTA, GEORGIA: instituted 1937; 
federated 1938; President, Mrs. Ted R. Ray; Secretary, Mrs. 
Stanley H. Hastings, 506 Coventry Road, Atlanta, Georgia, 
U.S.A.; Treasurer, Mrs. Josiah T. Rose, 2640 Peachtree Road, 
N.W., Apt. 12, Atlanta. 

Page 879



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 139 

558-cAMBUSBARRON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1936; federated 1938; re

affiliated 1943; 45 members; President, Alexander Johnston; 

Secretary, William Miller, 27 North End Road, Stirling; Trea

surer, Thomas Sneddon, 37 North End Road, Cambusbarron. 

559-coVENTRY AND DlSTRIGr CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: federated 1938; 450 

members; President, Dr. Stuart Smith; Secretary, Robert S. 

Miller, 211 Leamington Road, Coventry; Treasurer, William Hill, 

9 Queens Road, Coventry. 

56O-cALEDONIAN SOCIETY, CAWNPORE: instituted 1936; federated 1939; 

113 members; President, 1. O. Hamilton, C.A.; Secretary and 

Treasurer, E. C. Caldwell, cJo British India Corporation, Ltd., 

Cawnpore, India. 

561-LONDON (ONTARIO) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 1939; 

58 members; President, Eldon Mitchell; Secretary and Treasurer, 

Arthur G. Lemery, 113 Elmwood Avenue, London, Ont., Canada. 

562-CASTLE DOUGLAS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; federated 1939; 50 

members; President, J. M. Welsh; Vice-President, John Borland; 

Secretary and Treasurer, H. A. P. Haugh, 11 Ernespie Road, 

Castle Douglas. 

563-NORFOLK CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1934; federated 1939; 

100 members; President, Miss J. A. Morton; Secretary, D. A. 

Grant, 36 Eaton Road, Norwich; Treasurer, W. M. Robson, 

Dunedin, Hillside Avenue, Thorpe, Norwich. 

564-WINSOME WILLIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 1939; 

60 members; President, James Hendry, Sen.; Secretary and 

Treasurer, George Douglas, 53 Main Street, Ochiltree, Burns 

Chronicle official, D. McNeil, Jun., Mill Street, Ochiltree. 

565-ROBERT BURNS cmCLE OF NEW YORK: instituted 1934; federated 

1939; 140 members; President, Robert MacGowan, M.A., D.D.; 

Secretary, Miss Jessie Strachan, 20-42 32nd Street, Astoria, Long 

Island, N.Y.; Treasurer, Mrs. J. D. Hughes, 1825 Riverside 

Drive, New York. 

566-sCOTTISH SOCIETY AND BURNS CLUB OF AUSTRALIA: instituted 1939; 

federated 1939; 80 members; President, R. M. Baxter; Secretary, 

Miss M. G. Barclay, 23 Bon Accord Avenue, Boudi Junction, 

Sydney, N.S.W.; Treasurer, Laurence Macaulay, 109 Elizabeth 

Street, Sydney. 

567-NEWTOWN BURNS CLUB (PAISLEY) : instituted 1938; federated 1939; 

60 members; President, Stuart McIntyre; Secretary, R. Atkinson, 

47 Causeyside Street, Paisley; Treasurer, John W. Henderson, 

4 Overton Crescent, Johnstone, Renfrew; Burns Chronicle official, 

Stuart McIntyre, 44 Kilnside Road, Paisley. 

568-DARVEL BURNS CLUB: federated 1939; President, W. Auld; Secre

tary and Treasurer, D. Hamilton, 57 West Main Street, Darvel. 

Page 880



140 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

57~ SCOTTISH CLANS ASSOCIATION OF LONDON LTD. : instituted 1898; 
federated 1939; President, Wm. Stewart Allan; Secretary, D. 
Oampbell Thomson, Benachie, 35 Medway Gardens, Wembley, 
Middlesex; Treasurer, G. S. Bonnyman, 'Z7 Munster Road, 
London, S.W.6. 

571-EDMONTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1918; federated 1939; 30 mem
bers; President, Alexander M. MacDonald; Secretary, Hamish 
H. Gillespie, 11648 95a Street, Edmonton, Alberta, Canada; 
Treasurer, Frank Heron, 7027 111th Avenue, Edmonton. 

572-cHEsTER CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: instituted 1885; federated 
1939; 150 members; President, Moa.lcolm B. Cooper; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Tennant B. Chapman, C.A., Killearn, Woodlands 
Road, Haugh Green, Chester. 

573--cRoFT SPRING SIDE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 1939; 
20 members; President, Frank E. Irvine; Secretary, William 
Williamson, 21 Springhill Terrace, Springside; Treasurer, Thomas 
McMillan, 43 Stoa.tion Drive, Springside; Burns Chronicle official, 
Archie Johnstone, 23 Springhill Terrace, Springside. 

574--HOLYTOWN BLAIR ATHOLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 
1939; 50 members; President, John Blair; Secretary, Samuel 
Cowan, 29 Loanhead Crescent, Newarthill; Treasurer, David 
Naismith, Sunnyside Avenue, Holytown. 

575-WINDSOR (ONTARIO) JEAN ARMOUR BURN,S CLUB: instituted 1939; 
federated 1940; 31 members; President, Mrs. Margaret Wilson; 
Secretary, Mrs. M'ary Lauder, 385 Elm Avenue, Windsor, 
Ontario, Canada; Treasurer, Mrs. Margaret McKenzie, 914 
Monmouth Road, Windsor. 

576-FORT MATILDA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1934; federated 1940; 100 
members; President, A. G. Paton; Secretary and Treasurer, 
R. E. Cunningham, .. Elbar," 19 Madeira Street, Greenock. 

577-DALSERF AND CLYDESDALE BURNS CLUB : instituted 1939; federated 
1940; 30 members; President, Adam Stronach; Secretary, George 
Spiers, 12 Douglas Drive, Ashgill, Larkhall; Treasurer, Alexander 
Wilson, 5 Prospect Drive, Ashgill, Larkhall. 

578-LANARKSHIRE ASSOCIATION OF BURNS CLUBS: instituted 1924; 
federated 1942; 43 clubs; President, James Mathew; Secretoa.ry, 
Mrs. Mary Thomson, 21 Gilbertfield Road, Cambuslang; Trea
surer, James McLean, 374 Main Street, High Blantyre. 

579-BATHGATE TAM 0' SRANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1941; federated 
1942; 45 members; President, Simon Terrett; Secretary, Jasper 
Thomson, 18 Wallace Road, Bathgate; Treasurer, Charles 
Aitchison, c! 0 Barr, Bathgate Inn, George Street, Bathgate; 
Burn8 Chronicle official, Robert Young, 36 Edinburgh Road, 
Bathgate. 

58O-cUMBRAE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1896; federated 1942; 140 mem
bers; President, Matthew Cullen; Secretary, Waiter Kerr, 17 
Miller Street, Millport; Treasurer, Thomas Shields, 29 Gloa.sgow 
Street, Millport; Burns Chronicle official, Waiter Kerr, 17 Miller 
Street, Millport. 

Page 881



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 14J 

581-cUMBERNAULD AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; 
federated 1943; 60 members; President, James Goodwin; Secre
tary and Treasurer, Daniel Millar, 15 Baronhill, Cumbernanld. 

582-HIGGINSNEUK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1942; federated 1943; 22 
members; President, George Jenkins; Secretary, Matthew 
Watson, 43 Quarrolhall Crescent, Blackmill, Falkirk; Treasurer, 
Joseph Forsyth, 22 Bothkinnar Road, Carronshore, Falkirk. 

583-LOCHGELLY PIPE BAND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 
1943; 40 members; President, R. Garmony; Secretary, George 
Findlay, 17 Walker Street, Lochgelly; Treasurer, J. C. Watson, 
4 Bain Street, Lochgelly. 

58~ORBY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 1943; 32 members; 
President, William Brown; Secretary, Charles Gibson, 17 
Stephenson Way, Corby, Northants; Treasurer, Percival Rae, 7 
Hazlewood Road, Corby; Burns Ohronicle official, James 
Stevenson, 147 Stephenson Way, Corby. 

585-QUEEN's PARK CLARINDA BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 
1943; 206 members; President, F. P. McLennan; Secretary and 
Treasurer, William Young, 50 Deanwood Avenue, Glasgow, S.4. 

586-BARRHEAD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1942; federated 1943; 35 
members; President, Tom Begg; Secretary, John Dalziel, 35 
Commercial Road, Barrhead; Treasurer, Andrew Allan, 7 Paisley 
Road, Barrhead; Burns Ohronicle official, Robert Duncan, Cross 
Arthurlie Street, Barrhead. 

587-BUDHILL AND SPRINGBOIG BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 
1943; 68 members; President, John Seymour; Secretary and 
Treasurer, Archibald D. Brown, 6 Budhill Avenue ,GlasgoW', E.2; 
Burns Ohronicle official, John Seymour, 98 Budhill Avenue, 
Glasgow, E.2. 

588-THE ATLAS TAM 0' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943 ; 
federated 1943; 40 members; President, Thomas Russell; Secre
tary, Abraham Macdonald, 65 Lower Bathville, Armadale ; 
Treasurer, John Smart, West Main Street, Armadale; Burns 
Ohronicle official, President. 

589-s0LWAY BURNS CLUB : federated 1944; President, O. Gibbs; Secre
tary and Treasurer, G. Beattie, 5 Hallmeadow Place, Annan. 

59~AIGS CRONIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1944; 
40 members; President, James Robinson; Secretary, John 
Hunter, 4 George Street, Stirling; Treasurer, William SeweIl, 8 
George Street, Stirling. 

591-LUGAR WATER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 60 
members; President, David Geekie; Secretary, James Fleming, 
Jun., 14 Craigston Holm, Lugar; Treasurer, Duncan Brodie, 
Brick Row, Lugar; Burns Ohronicle official, John Lindsay, 
Craigston Holm, Lugar. 

Page 882



142 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

592-BENWHAT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 85 mem
bers; President, William McCombe; Secretary, Andrew Galloway, 
112 Benwhat, Ayr; Treasurer, James Wallace, 59 Benwhat, Ayr. 

593-BARRMILL JOLLY BGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 
1944; 53 members; President, Thomas Boyd; Secretary, Edward 
B. Anderson, The Blocks, Barrmill, Beith; Treasurer, Willia.m 
McBeth, McHardy Crescent, Barrmill, Beith; Burns Olvronicle 
official, Matthew G. Boyd, Lugtonridge Farm, Barrmill, Beith. 

594--THE BURNS CLUB OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY, CLEVELAND, omo : instituted 
1934; federated 1944; 81 members; President, John Wintour; 
Secretary and Treasurer, Mrs. Donald C. Noble, 1466 E. l10th 
Street, Cleveland, 6, Ohio, U.S.A. 

595--ALLANTON "BRIG 0' nOON" LADIES' BURNS CLUB : instituted 1944; 
federated 1944; 36 members; President, Mrs. Mary McCue; 
Secretary, Mrs. Annie Thomson, 21 Kingshill Road, Allanton, 
Shotts; Treasurer, Mrs. Elizabeth Martin, 10 Houldsworth 
Crescent, Allanton, Shotts. 

596-GLAISNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 53 mem
bers; President, William Robertson; Secretary and Treasurer, 
James McKechnie, 18 Glaisnock Street, Cumnock; Burm 
Ohronicle official, James Shearer, John Allan Drive, Cumnock. 

597-BURNS SOCIETY OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK: instituted 1870; 
federated 1944; 100 members; President, Ed~rd B. Mackenzie; 
Secretary, Robert Graham, 105 East 22nd Street, New York, 10, 
N.Y., U.S.A.; Treasurer, James M. Forbes, 2 Park Avenue, 
New York, 16, N.Y. 

598-FORTH JOLLY BEGGARS BURN,S CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 
1944; 30 members; President, Richard Friel; Secretary, James 
Douglas, 25 The Neuk, Forth, Lanarkshire; Treasurer, William 
Hamilton, 19 The Neuk, Forth. 

599-LARKHALL RAPLOCH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 
54 members; President, James Craw; Secretary, William Dickson, 
13 Albert Drive, Larkhall; Treasurer, J. S. Simpson, Machan 
Road, Larkhall. 

600-MILLERHILL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 30 
members; President, Andrew Davidson; Secretary, David Moff'at, 
6 Dauderhall, Dalkeith; Treasurer, Andrew Davidson. 

601-CALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF PALESTINE: federated 1944; Chieftain, J. 
Bartholomew, C.A.; Hon. Secretary, G. W. Adam, P.O. Box 
273; Haifa, Palestine; Hon. Treasurer, J. A. Thompson, P.O. 
Box 309, Haifa. 

602-THORNTREE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 1945; 21 
members; President, Abraham Brown; Secretary, George 
Thomson, 52 High Street, Cockenzie; Treasurer, Adam Peden, 
Crown Square, Prestonpans. 

Page 883



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 143 

603---THE TOWER BURNS CLUB, TRANENT: instituted 1938; federated 
1945; 40 members; President, Capt. Donald Scrimingeour; Secre
tary and Treasurer, William Wood, 27 Muirpark Terrace, 
Tranent; Burns Ohronicle official, President. 

604-BELLSHILL BURNS CLUB, NO. 1 : instituted 1925; federated 1945; 50 
members; President, Alexander Bissett; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Robert Thomson, 76 North Road, Bellshill, Lanarkshire. 

605---cRAIGMARK AND BURNTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 
1945; 80 members; President, John McCormick; Secretary, 
Alexander Murphy, 58 Burnton, Dalmellington, Ayrshire; Trea
surer, William Henderson, 24 Burnton, Dalmellington. 

606-ROCKINGHAM BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 40 
members; President, William Montgomery; Secretary and 
Treasurer, S. Jeffrey, 96 Westfields Road, Corby, Northampton
shire. 

607-HADRIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 80 mem
bers; President, A. McKay; Secretary, Douglas Ironside, 21 
Little Carriden, Bo'ness, West Lothian; Treasurer, Charles 
Lothian, 113 Bridgeness Road, Bo'ness. 

608-RICCARTON W4LLACE BURNS CLUB : instituted 1945; federated 1945; 
54 members; President, George M'Broom; Secretary, Alexander 
Livingston, 41 Caprington Avenue, Kilmarnock; Treasurer, John 
Paterson, 33 Gilmour Street, Kilmarnock. 

609-SEAFORTH HIGHLANDERS ASSOCIATI6N (AYRSHIRl!l BRANCH) BURNS 
CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 200 members; President, 
Thomas Rodger; Secretary and Treasurer, Alan Gibson, 5 Wyllie 
Place, Stewarton, Ayrshire. 

61O-THE .. ROYAL ARCH" BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 
1945; 75 members; President, Thomas Dickie; Secretary, George 
J. Barr, 74 Gelston Street, Glasgow, E.2; Treasurer, William 
Steele, 5 Rowchester Street, Glasgow. 

/ 
611-BLACKRIDGE, WESTRIGG AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; 

30 members; President, Robert McLauchlan; Secretary, WaIter 
Sneddon, 58 Bedlormie Drive, Blackridge; Treasurer, James 
Adamson, 32 Bedlormie Drive, Blackridge; Burn8 Ohronicle 
official, Angus McMillan, 66 Bedlormie Drive, Blackridge. 

612-TORRANCE MASONIC SOCIAL AND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; 
federated 1945; 60 members; President, Alexander B. Wilson; 
Secretary, Andrew Sherriff, 5 Viola Place, Torrance; Treasurer, 
Alex'ander Kerr, 6 West Road, Torrance. 

613--TRANENT NO. 1 BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 32 
members; President, Robert L. Dow; Secretary, Alexander 
Grant, 104 Lindores Drive, Tranent; Treasurer, John Herkes, 
17 Lammermoor Terrace, Tranent. 

Page 884



144 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

614-BELLSIIILL CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 
1945; 70 members; Pr9.sident, William Anderson; Secretary, 
James McPhee, 36 rytith Drive, Bellshill; Treasurer, John 
McLean, 28 Thorndean Crescent, Bellshill. 

615--WEST LOTHIAN DISTRICT BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1945; 
federated 1945; 10 clubs; President, Ex-Provost Thomas Russell; 
Secretary, Robert Findlay, 12 Main Street, Winchburgh; 
Treasurer, Robert S. Brodie, c/o Meikle, 15 Academy Street, 
Bathgate. 

616-RIRKCONNEL AND SANQUHAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1917; 
federated 1945; 40 members; President, Samuel Laidlaw; Secre
tary and Treasurer, William McClanachan, 3 Glenaylmer Road, 
Kelloholm, Kirkconnel. 

617-READING AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: instituted 1906; 
federated 1946; 187 members; President, J. K. Kirkwood, 
F.A.I.; Secretary, William Callander, 20 Erleigh Court Gardens, 
Earley, Reading; Treasurer, J. Strang, Wickcroft Farm, Engle
field, Theale, Berkshire. 

618-ALTRINCHAM AND SALE CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1945; 432 
members; President, R. Brooks; Secretary, T. C. Lochhead, 77 
Ashley Road, Altrincham; Treasurer, J. C. Wallace, 250 Dane 
Road, Sale. 

619-BAINSFORD CROSS-ROADS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 
1945; 40 members; President, William Meldrum; Secretary, 
Hugh Hunter, 69. North Street, Bainsford, Falkirk; Treasurer, 
John Gillespie, 13 Foundry Street, Carron Road, Falkirk. 

62O-THE MUIRHEAD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1942; federated 1945; 
82 members; President, James WilsQn; Secretary, W. B. 
Drysdale, 29 Kerse Road, Grangemouth; Treasurer, A. Ballingall, 
Kerse Road, Grangemouth. 

621-sCOTTISH AVIATION BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 
81 members; President, Dr. J. Stevenson; Secretary, J. Maxwell, 
Scottish Aviation Limited, Prestwick Airport, Prestwick, Ayr
shire; Treasurer, R. Purdie, Scottish Aviation Limited, Prestwick 
Airport, Prestwick. 

622-cOYLTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1946; 80 mem
bers; President, D. G. Smith, M.A.; Secretary, James Thorn, 
"Learig," Joppa, Coylton, Ayr; Treasurer, Alfred McCracken, 
Sundrum Park, Joppa, CoylOOn, Ayr. 

623-KILWINNING BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 80 
members; President, Joseph JohnsOOn; Secretary and Treasurer, 
Samuel Black, 34 Claremont Crescent, Kilwinning, Ayrshire. 

624-BuRNS CLUB OF OBAN : federated 1946; Secretary, J. Fisken, Avon
dale, Oban. 

625--LOCRERBIE BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 1946; Secretary, 
George Stevenson, Solicitor, Lockerbie. 

Page 885



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 145 

626-MOFFAT AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 
1946; 93 members; President, Bailie Duncan; Secretary, James 
Shaw, M.A., F.E.LS., Glen Annan, Moffat; Treasurer, James 
Scott, Holm Street, Moffat. 

627-KINROSS JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 
1946; 60 members; President, Rev. William Paterson, B.D.; 
Secretary and Treasurer, T. McLeod, West Brachly, Kinross. 

628-STEELEND JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 53 members; President, J. Henry; Secretary, Mrs. M. 
Imrie, 4 Woodside Terrace, Steelend; Treasurer, Mrs. A. 
Muirhead, 47 Sunnybraes, Steelend. 

629-SANQUHAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 50 mem
bers; President, J. Stoddart; Secretary, A. B. Peden, 72 High 
Street, Sanquhar; Treasurer, J. I. Glencross, Eildon, Sanquhar. 

63O-cOALSNAUGHTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 
70 members; President, David Walker; Secretary, Thomas 
Keddie, 23 School Terrace, Coalsnaughton, Tillicoultry; Trea
surer, H. Hall, 140 High Street, Tillicoultry. 

\ 

631-PENCAITLAND AND ORMISTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935 ; 
federated 1945; 44 members; President, James Brown; Secre
tary, David Taylor, 22 George Crescent, Ormiston, East Lothian; 
Treasurer, Thomas McVie, 24 Trevlyan Place, Pencaitland. 

632-SYMINGTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1946; 120 
members; President, J. Percival Agnew; Secretary and Trea
surer, Donald Fraser, "Eudora," Symington, Kilmarnock. 

633--LADS 0' BUCKHAVEN BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 1946; 
Secretary, Angus Macdonald, 126 Wellesby Road, Buckhaven, 
Fife. 

634-ARDEER JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 60 members; President, J ames Mc William; Secretary, 
Robert Montgomery, 59 McGregor Avenue, Stevenston, Ayr
shire; Treasurer, Alexander Ramsay, 24 Carment Drive, 
Stevenston. 

635-JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB, TRANENT: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 30 members; President, Alexander Neill; Secretary, John 
C. Currie, "Collensdene," 335 West Granton Road, Pennywell, 
Edinburgh, 4; Treasurer, John Kerr, 26 Lindores Drive, Tranent, 
East Lothian; Burns Ohronicle official, Richard Park, 93 Lindores 
Drive, Tranent. 

636-GLSBORNE BURNS CLUB, NEW ZEALAND: federated 1946; President, 
W. B. Turbitt; Secretary, R. Howe, 103 Sheehan Street, Gis
borne, New Zealand. 

637-LARKHALL APPLEBANK BURNS CLUB: federated 1946; President, 
Hugh Inglis; Secretary, John AlIaI?-, 42 LogaI!:'s Buildings, Ed~le
wood Hamilton; Treasurer, Archlbald Harrls; Burn8 Ohromcle 
offici~l, James Nutt, Bridge-end, Millheugh, By Larkhall. 

K 

Page 886



146 BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

638-STONEHOUSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 20 
members; President, William Rae; Secretary, Robert Hamilton, 
45 Camnethan Street, Stonehouse, Lanarkshire; Treasurer, George 
Gourley, 79 Camnethan Street, Stonehouse. 

639-cuMNOCK DUMFRIES ARMS BURNS CLUB : federated 1947; Secretary, 
James Breakenridge, 61 Glaisnock Street, Cumnock, Ayrshire. 

640-HAMILTON WHITE HEATHER BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; 40 mem
bers; President, Robert Currie; Secretary, William Dorricott. 9 
Johnstone Street, Hamilton; Treasurer, Andrew Edgar. 26 Pr4>ry 
Street, Blantyre. 

641-ROSEWELL BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; 50 members; President, 
Robert Brown; Secretary, Andrew Hill, 14 Victori·a Street, Rose
well, Midlothian; Treasurer, James Millar, 22 Dalhousie Cottages, 
Bonnrigg, Midlothian. 

642-BEITH TAM 0' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 
1947; 41 members; President, T. Anderson; Secretary and Trea
surer, John Wallace, 4 Wardrop Street, Beith, Ayrshire. 

643-RUTHERGLEN BURNS CLUB : federated 1947; President, J. Wilkie; 
Secretary, R. S. McMillan, 153 Hamilton Road, Rutherglen. 

644-HEITON BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; 43 members; President, 
W. F. Scott-Ker; Secretary and Treasurer, Major Dawson 
Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

645-BO'NESS JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; President, 
George Auld; Secretary, Robert McLean, 161 Corbiehall, Bo'ness; 
Treasurer, William Grant, 30 Cadww Avenue, Bo'ness. 

646-THE CLEAR WINDING DEVON ALVA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; 
federated 1947; 50 members; President, Paul Kennedy; Secretary 
and Treasurer, Mr. William Comrie, 12 Alexander Drive, Alva. 

647-HILLEND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB, AIRDRIE: federated 1947; Secre
tary, John Anderson, 202 Main Street, Caldercruix, By Airdrie. 

648-cARRON BRIDGE CRONIES BURNS CLUB, KILSYTH: federated 1947; 
Secretary, J. Murphy, 65 Barlandfauld Street, Kilsyth. 

649-AULD AFFLECK BURNS CLUB, CATRINE: federated 1947; President, 
James Milgrew; Secretary, James Harvey, 9 Riverside Crescent, 
Catrine; Treasurer, Alexander Tanner. 

650-MID AND EAST LOTHIANS AND BORDER DISTRICT BURNS CLUBS 
ASSOCIATION: instituted 1947; federated 1947; Secretary, James 
Juner, 2 Greenhall Crescent, Gorebridge. 

651-DALKEITH PLOUGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 35 
members; President, John Kelly; Secretary, William Thomson, 
3 Woodburn Park, Dalkeith, Midlothian; Treasnrer, Thom-as 
Pryde. 

Page 887



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 147 

652-LANAlI.K CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 
50 members; President, John Fyfe Smith, M.A.; Secretary, 
Mellis S. M. Murray, Caledonian Hotel, Lanark; Treasurer, 
Finlay McKerracher, Spinningdale, Cleghorn Road, Lana.rk. 

653--GLASGOW EX-SERVICE TEACHERS' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; 
federated 1947; President, H. Lowther, M.C., M.A.; Secretary, 
Robert Neville, 28 The Quadrant, Clarkston; Treasurer, H. K. 
Frew, M.A., 15 Southampton Drive, Glasgow, W.2. 

654-THE YEW TREE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 30 
members; President, J. Brash; Secretary, John Brown, 8 Limey
lands Road, Ormiston, East Lothian; Treasurer, R. McLaren. 

655--KENNOWAY JOLLY BEGGAlI.S BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1947; 60 members; President, Major Robert Ballantine; Secre
tary, Lewis Waddell, Scalda, New Road, Kennoway, Fife; 
Treasurer, William Rogerson, Leven Road, Kennoway. 

656-DUNDONALD JIIlAN ARMOUR LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; 
federated 1947; 40 members; President, Mrs. B. Burns; Secre
tary, Mrs. JQmes Murdoch, 35 Denfield Gardens, Cardenden, 
Fife; Treasurer, Mrs. Forsyth, Denfield Drive, Cardenden. 

657-FALLIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; Secretary, 
John McBlain, 96 Fallin, Stirling. 

658-LARBERT IOWLERS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 
President, John McIntosh; Secretary, John Johnston, 15 East
croft Street, Larbert; Treasurer, James Cowan. 

659-DUNDEE BURNS SOCIETY: instituted 1896; federated 1947; 75 
members; President, Norman G. Brown; Secretary, Mrs. Janet 
R. Bruce, 9 Nelson Street, Dundee; Treasurer, Mrs. A. G. 
Haggart, 23 Brantwood Avenue, Dundee; BUTn8 CMronicle 
official, President. 

660-LANGHOLM LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 
50 members; President, Miss Bella Ewart; Secretary, Mrs. 
R. W. Irving, Warbla Cottage, 56b Henry Street, Langholm; 
Treasurer, Miss E. T. Hyslop, M.B.E., 31 Rosevale Street, 
Langholm. 

Page 888



ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 
ON TllE ROLL 

No. 
515 Abadan 
543 Abbey Craig 

40 Aberdeen 
20 Airdrie 

516 Airts 
493 Akron 

2 Alexandria 
595 Allan ton " Brig 0' Doon " Ladies 
252 Alloway 
618 Altrincham Ca.ledonian Soo. 
309 Annan 
393 -- Ladies 
82 Arbroath 

634 Ardeer Jolly Beggars 
421 Arrochar & Tarbet 
544 Ashington 
238 Atlanta 
557 -- Ladies 
588 Atlas Tarn 0' Shanter 
508 Auchterderran 
452 -- Bonnie Jean 
1649 Auld Affleck 
496 -- Hoose 
566 Australia, Scot. Soo. of 
275 Ayr 
4,35 -- Tarn 0' Shanter 
192 Ayrshire Assoc. 
495 Baghdad 
157 Baillieston Caledonian 
372 -- Jean Armour 
619 Bainsford Cross-Roads 
218 Bannookburn 
586 Barrhead 
593 Barrmill Jolly Beggars 
363 Barrow 
429 Bathgate Jolly Beggars 
579 -- Tarn 0' Shanter 
534 Bedlington 
288 Beith 
642 -- Tam 0' Shanter 

15 Belfast 
477 Bellahouston 
614 Bellshill Caledonian 
604 -No. 1 
592 Benwhat 
326 Bingry Ladies 
167 Birmingham 
125 Blackbnrn-on-Almond 
611 Blaokridge, Westrigg and 

Distriot 

No. 
184 Blairadam 
645 13o'ne8s Jolly Beggars 
47i! 130nnie Doon Ladies 
476 Border Cities (Ont.) 
549 Bo.h well Bonnie Lesley Ladies 

76 Breohin 
49 Bridgeton 

120 Bristol 
554 Bruce 
633 Buckhaven, Lads 0' 

587 Budhill and Springboig 
331 Buffalo 
356 Burnbank 
417 Burnley 
295 Burns House 
112 Burns Howff 
445 Buxton 
355 Calcutta 

4 Callander 
558 Cambusbarron 
424 Cambuslang Tam 0' Shanter 
207 -- Wingate 
71 Carlisle 
34 Carrick 

648 Carron Bridge Cronies 
562 Castle Douglas 
365 Catrine 
560 Cawnpore 
532 Cessnock 
161 Charleston 
171 Chattanooga 
462 Cheltenham 
572 Chester 
438 Chesterfield 
428 Chryston 
278 Clan Stewart 
646 Clear Winding Devon Alva 
547 Coal burn Jolly Beggars 
630 Coalsnaughton 
398 Colinton 
208 Colorado Springs 
584 Corby 
559 Coventry 
447 Cowdenbeath "Mountain 

Daisy" Ladies' 
250 -- Tarn 0' Shanter 
459 - West End 
622 Coylton 
605 Craigmark and Burnton 

i 590 CraigB Cronies 

Page 889



No. 
573 
524 
581 
580 

45 
639 

62 
594 
338 
414 
651 
244 

35 
577 
158 
568 
345 
469 
55 
37 

556 
367 
541 
406 

10 
226 
437 
503 
14 

659 
656 
85 

550 
466 
506 
526 
108 
22 

307 
378 
571 
149 
217 
126 
380 
657 
533 
552 
262 
319 
498 
525 
44 

576 
598 
403 
513 

ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 149 

Croft Springside 
Cronies 
Cumbernauld 
Cumbrae 
CumuQok 
-- Dumfries Arms 
Cupar 
Cuyahoga County 
Dalkeith 
-- Fountain 
-- Plough 
Dalmuir 
DaIry 
Dalserf 
Darlington 
Darvel 
Denbeath 
Denny Cross 
Derby 
Dollar 
Doncaster 
Dornoch 
Doune 
Dublin 
Dumbarton 
Dumfries 
-- Ladies No. 1 
Dunblane I 
Dundee I 
-- Burns Society 
Dundonald Jean Armour Ladies' 
Dunfermline 
Dunoon Mary CampbelJ 
Dykehead Afton Water 
-- Jean Armour 
-- Tarn 0' Shanter 
East Calder 
Edinburgh 
-- Ayrshire Assoc. 
-- District Assoc. 
Edmonton 
Elgin 
Eskdale 
Falkirk 
-- Cross Keys 
Fallin 
Fauldhouse 
Fawside 
Fifeshire Assoc. 
Fisherrow 
Flint 
-- Jolly Beggars 
Forfar 
Fort Matilda 
Forth Jolly Beggars 
Fraserburgh 
Fredericton 

No. 
501 GaIt 
412 Gary 
467 Gilbertfield Highland Mary 
636 Gisborne, ~ew Zealand 
596 Glaisnock 
169 Glasgow Assoo. 
282 -- Bowling Assoc. 
653 -- Ex-Service Teachers 
263 -- Masonic 

3 -- Tam 0' Shanter 
480 Glencairn 
330 Glencraig Bonnie Jean 
522 Glenlee 
427 Gorebridge Glenoairn 
198 -- Jolly Beggars 
430 Gourock 
59 -- Jolly Beggars 
53 Govan Fairfield 

292 Grahamst.on 
352 Grangemouth 

21 Greenock 
538 -- Past Pres. Assoc. 
383 -- R. N. T. F. Heather 
209 -- St. John's 
254 -- Victoria 
400 Haddington 
607 Hadrian 
33 Haggis 

152 Hamilton 
121 -- Junior 
100 -- Mossgiel 
640 -- White Heather 
555 Harrogate 
492 Harrow 
537 Harthill 
379 Hartlepools 
239 Hawiok 
644 Heiton 
225 Helensburgh 
446 Herefordshire 
582 Higgjnsneuk 
468 High Blantyre 
402 Highland Mary Ladies 
647 Hillend District, Airdrie 
375 Holyoke 
574 Holy town 
431 Inverkip 
173 Irvine 
372 Jean Armour (Baillieston) 
506 - (Dykehead) 
348 -- (Newton) 
486 - (Steelend) 
635 - (Tranent) 
575 -- (Windsor, Ont.) 

96 Jedburgh 
540 Johnstone 
655 Kennoway Jolly Beggars 

Page 890



150 ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 

No. 
377 Kilbirnie 
92 Kilbowie Jolly Beggars 
o Kilmarnock 

623 Kilwinning 
457 Kinglassie Ladies 
213 Kingston 
627 Kinross Jolly Beggars 
616 Kirkconnel and Sanquhar 
323 Kirkcudbright 
388 Kyle Ladies 
652 Lanark Caledonian 
578 Lanarkshire RC.A. 
660 Langholm Ladies 
658 Larbert Bowlers 
637 Larkhall Applebank 
599 -- Raploch 
548 Leeds 
461 Leicester 
341 Leith 
366 Liverpool 
583 Lochgelly Pipc Band 
520 Lochlie Ladies 
625 Lockerbie 

1 London 
481 -- Ayrshire Soc. 
570 -- ClaDs Assoc. 
561 London (Ontario) 
183 Londonderry 
528 Loughborough 
591 Lugar Water 
350 Markinch 
387 Mary Campbell 
310 Mauchline 
369 Maybole St. Crispin's 
390 Meikle Earnock 
650 Mid and East Lothian 
600 Millerhill 
626 Moffat and District 
242 Montrose 
509 Motherwell Masonic 
494 -- United Services 
620 Muirhead 

56 Muirkirk 
139 National 
74 National Memorial 

500 New Cumnock 
523 N.S.W. Highland Soc. 
305 New Waterford 
381 New York Masonic 
597 -- Burns Society 
565 -- Robert Burns Circle 
329 Newark 
133 N ewarthill 
542 -- White Heather 
199 Newbattle 
156 Newcastle 
293 N ewcraighall 

No. 
348 Newton Jean Armour 
266 -- Jolly Beggars 
256 Newton.on.Ayr 
567 Newtown 
124 Ninety 
563 Norfolk 

17 Nottingham 
546 Oak 
346 Oakbank 
624 Oban 
564 Ochiltree 
507 Orange County 
631 Ormiston 

48 Paisley 
601 Palestine Caledonian Soc. 
545 Parramatta. 
72 Partick 

135 -- Western 
631 Pencaitland 
26 Perth 

511 Perth (West Australia) 
336 Peterhead 
284 Philadelphia North·eastern 
453 -- Ladies 
535 Plymouth 
190 Port·Glasgow 
212 Portobello 
181 Primrose 
384 Pumpherston 
479 Queen of the South Ladies 
585 Queen's Park Clarinna 
617 Reading Caledonian AS8oc. 
373 Red Hill 
472 Renfrewshire Assoc. 
608 Riccarton W allace 
606 Rockingham 
471 Rose of Grange 

36 Rosebery (Glas.) 
641 Rosewell 
454 Rotherham 
610 "Royal Arch" 
354 Royal Clan 

9 Royalty 
643 Rutherglen 
470 St. Giles 
220 St. Louis 
327 St. Mark's 
399 St. Ringans 
618 Sale Caledonian Soc. 
413 San Francisoo 
68 Sandyford 

629 Sanquhar 
426 Sauchie 
551 Scarborough 
314 Scottish (Edin.) 
153 Scottish (Glas.) 
621 Scottish Aviation 

Page 891



ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 151 

No. 
510 Scottish Dyes Club 
609 Seaforth Highlanders 

(Ayrshire Branch) 
514 Shanghai 
484 Sheddens Ladies 
405 Sheffield 

91 Shettleston 
283 Sinolairtown 
418 Skegness 
589 Solway 
530 Southern Scot. Counties 
182 Stane Mos8giel 
486 Steelend Jean Armour 
628 -- Jolly Beggll.rs 
409 Stenbousemuir 
50 Stirling 

324 Stock ton 
458 Stonehaven 
638 Stonehouse 

89 Sunderland 
444 Swansea 
632 Syrnington 

3 Tarn 0' Shanter (Glas.) 
531 Tees-side 
441 Temple 

7 Thistle 
602 Thorutree 
612 Torrance Masonic 
603 Tower 
635 Tranent Jflan Armour 
613 - No. 1 
271 Trenton 

No. 
274 Troon 
456 -- Masonic 
320 Troy 
475 Tweeddale Ladies 
520 Uddingston Lochlie Ladies 
237 -- Masonic 
325 Vancouver Fellowship 
443 Victoria (E. C.) 
303 -- St. Andrew's Soc. 
165 Wallsend 
436 Walney Ladies 
296 Walsall 
521 Waratah.Mayfield 
391 Waterbury 
449 Wellington (N.Z.) 
497 -- St. Andrew 

, 615 West Lothian AIBoe. 
392 Whifflet 

: 160 Whitburn 
236 Whitehaven 

i 536 Whithorn 
529 Williarn Mitehell (The) 
432 Winchburgh 
575 Windsor (Ont.) Jean Armour 
197 Winnipeg 
25 -- St. Andrew's Soc 

1\64 Winsome Willie 
505 Wishsw Masonic 
553 Wolverhampton 
464 Y skims Vslley 
518 Ye Auld Cronies 
654 Yew Tree, Ormiston 

NOTICES 

Some of the volumes of the First Series, and all the volumes 
of. the Second Series, of the Bwrns Chronicle are in print, and 
may be purchased through the Hon. Treasurer of the Federa
tion-Mr. James Maclntyre, 117 New Road, Mauchline. 

Terms for advertisements may be obtained on application. 

TO SECRETARIES OF CLUBS 

Changes of address should be intimated at earliest con
venience to the Hon. Secretary of the Federation, Mr. William 
Black, Cardean, Eastfield Road, Dumfries. 

SCHOOL COMPETITIONS 

Copies of the Burns Federation medal may be obtained 
direct from Messrs. G. and G. Ponton, Ltd., Pontoprint 
Works, Hillington. Glasgow, S.W.2. Enquiries should be 
addressed to the firm. 

Page 892



j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
J 

j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 
j 

j 
j 
j 
j 
j 

j 
j 

j 

j 
j 
j 
j 

Page 893



.. BUBN8 CHBONICLlIl" ADVBBTISBB 

McLAREN 
for . 

MENS WEAR 

Equipped with a McLaren Weatherproof 
Coat you are proof against all changes 

of weather 

PELTINVAIN 
ALL WEATHER COATS 

Complete with Belt 

PELTINVAIN 
ALL.PURPOSE COAT 

With or without Belt 

Super Quality 

DETACHABLE 
FLEECE LININGS 

Can be fitted to any Coat 

McLAREN 
a SON (GLASGOW) LIMITED 

Gentlemens Outfitters 

42-50 Gordon Street 
GLASGOW 

Page 894



"BURNS CHRONICLE" ADVERTISER 

ON special occasions when 

a flne old Scotch Whisky 

can contribute so much you 

can with confldence depend on 

DEW ARtS "White Label" Whisky 

- it never varies. 

DEWAR'S 

"White Labef' 
Scotch Whisky 

- - il-nev.eA voJzks 

Page 895



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

www.rbwf.org.uk 

 

1951 (2) 

The digital conversion of this  

Burns Chronicle was sponsored by 

Leslie Strachan 

   

  
The digital conversion service was provided by DDSR Document Scanning 
by permission of the Robert Burns World Federation Limited to whom all 
Copyright title belongs. 

 

 

www.DDSR.com 

Limited 
 

Robert Burns World Federation 

Limited 
 

Page 897



THE 

BURNS FEDERATION 
YEAR BOOK 

THE BURNS FEDERATION 
KILMARNOCK 

Page 898



LIST OF CONTENTS 

(a) List of Hon. Presidents, Hon. Vice-Presidents, Executive 

Committee (Office-bearers and District Representa-

PAGE 

tives), Sub-Committees and Auditors - 1 

(b) Constitution and Rules 4 

(c) List of Districts - 8 

( d) List of Past Presidents 17 

(e) List of Places at which the Annual Conference has been 

held 
t7 

(f) Minutes of the Annual Conference, 1950; incorporating 

the Hon. Secretary's Annual Report 18 

(g) Burns Cottage, Alloway - 34 

(h) Burns House, Dumfries - 34 

(1) Annual Reports : 

( l) Burns Chronicle 35 

(2) School Competitions 36 

(3) Financial Statement 38 

(k) Burns Club Notes 40 

. {l) Numerical list of Clubs on the Roll - 61 

(m) Alphabetical list of Clubs on the Roll 88 

Page 899



Page 900



JOHN McVIE 

President Burns Federation 

Page 901



MOTTO-"A MAN'S A MAN FOR A THAT" 

THE BURNS .FEDERATION 
INSTITUTED 1885 

Hon Presidents. 
Sir ALEXANDBll GIBB, G.B.E., C.B., LL.D.(Edin.), F.R.S., Queen Anne'• 

Lodge, Westminster, London, S.W.1. 
WILLIAM W1LL, C.B.E., 171 Oakwood Court, Kensington, London, W.14. 
Colonel T. C. DUNLOP, A.D.C., T.D., D.L., Doonside, Alloway, Ayr. 
Sir RoBEllT B11.ucE, D.L., LL.D., Brisbane House, 9 Rowan Road, Glasgow, 

S.1. 
ALEXANDEll G. McKNIGHT, 321 Providence Building, Duluth, Minnesota, 

U.S.A. 
J. C. EWING, 15 Carlton Street, Edinburgh, 4. 
Wu. C. Coc1t11ullN, Holmwood House, Uddingston. 
M. H. McKERRow, F.S.A.(Scot.), 43 Buccleuch Street, Dumfries. 
JoHN S. CLARKE, J.P., 2 Walmer Crescent, Glasgow, S.W.1. 
JAMES T. P1cKEN, 265 Franklin Street, Melbourne, C.1, Australia. 

Hon. Vice-Presidents. 

ANDllEW M'CALLUM, The Commercial Hotel, Thornhill, Stirling. 
JAMES McMuRDO, 85-71 144th Street, Jamaica, N.Y., U.S.A. 
RICHARD DouGLAS, New York. 
JoHN R. FoTHERINGHAM, 200 Gavin Street, Motherwell. 
GEORGE HUMPHREY, The Saughs, Newtongrange, Midlothian. 
CHARLES CARMICHAEL, 54 Chatsworth Street, Derby. 
JoHN CURRIE, 20 Arboretum Street, Nottingham. 
Mrs. MARY THOMSON, 21 Gilbertfield Road, Cambuslang. 
JAMES MAclNTYRB, 17 New Road, Mauchline. 
THOMAS C. ANDERSON, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, Kelty. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. 
President-JOHN McVIE, 13 Hillside Crescent, Edinburgh, 7. 
Past-Presidents-THOMAS B. GouDIE, Ewanrigg, Burnbank, Hamilton. 

Sir PATRICK J. DoLLAN, D.L., LL.D., J.P., 1 Kingsley 
Avenue, Glasgow, S.2. 

JoHN S. CLARKE, J.P., 2 Walmer Crescent, Glasgow, S.W.1. 
M. H. M'KERRow, F.S.A.(Scot.), 43 Buccleuch Street, 

Dumfries. 
Sir ALEXANDER GIBB, G.B.E., C.B., LL.D.(Edin.), F.R.S., 

Queen Anne's Lodge, Westminster, London, S.W.1. 
Sir ROBERT B11.ucE, D.L., LL.D., Brisbane House, 9 Rowan 

Road, Glasgow, S.1. 

Vice-Presidents-JAMES R. CRAWFORD, F.S.A.(Scot.), "Callister Ha'," 432 
Unthank Road, Norwich. 

A 

J. KEVAN McDowALL, F.S.A.(Scot.), 202 Bath Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

Page 902



2 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

Han. Secraary-W1LLIAM BucK, Cardean, Eastficld Road, Dumfries. 
Han. Treasurer-JAMES MAclNTYRE, 17 New Road, Mauchline. 
Han. Editor, "Scots Chronicle"-W1u.1AM MoNTGOMERIE, M.A., II Castle 

Terrace, Broughty Ferry. 
Han. Seeretary of School Competitions-FRED. J. BELFORD, M.A., F.E.1.S., 

3 Park Grove, Libcrton, Edinburgh, 9. 
Assistant Han. Secretary-ANDREW STENHousE, LL.B., 104 West Campbell 

Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

District Representatives. 

I. Ayrshire-Bailie ANDREW Y. CRAWFORD, Roan Park, 23 Montgomerie 
Terrace, Ayr. 

JoHN M. IRVING, 20 Melville Street, Kilmarnock. 
A. WILSON BoYLE, C.A., 163 West George Street, Glasgow. 
JAMES SMITH, Torliosk, West Kilbride. 

n. Edinburgh-JOHN w. OLIVER, M.A., D.Litt., Ramsay Cottage, 
41 Barnton Terrace, Edinburgh, 4. 

III. Glasgow-WM. C. CocKBURN, Holmwood House, Uddingston. 
THOMAS BEET, 16 Ardbeg Street, Glasgow, S.2. 
A. NEIL CAMPBELL, F.C.C.S., 141 Craiglca Drive, 

Edinburgh. 

IV. Dunbarton and Argyll Shires-WM. BoYLE, 22 Osborne Street, 
Clydebank. 

V. Fifeshire-T. C. ANDERSON, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, Kelty, 
Fife. 

Mrs. C. T1NLINE, 5 Valleyficld Avenue, High Valleyficld, 
Newmills, Dunfermline. 

VI. Lanarkshire-Mrs. C. D. MAclNTOsH, 134 Kylepark Drive, Uddingston. 
JoHN WEIR, 75 Wilson Road, Allanton, Shotts. 
Mrs. E. DAVIE, 34 King's Crescent, Cambuslang. 
JAMES MATHEW, 23 Loanhead Crescent, Newarthill. 
JAMES McLEAN, 374 Main Street, High Blantyre. 

VII. Mid and East Loth1ans and Borders-JAMES JuNER, 2 Grecnhall 
Cre,cent, Gorebridge. 

ERNEST McGEE, 2 Myreslawgreen, Hawick. 

VIII. West Lothian-ALLAN MAc!NTYRE, M.A., Redlands, Bo'ness, West 
Lorhian. 

IX. Renfrew•hire-ARTHUR C. E. LEw1s, Vallorbe, 16 Rod~y Road, 
Gou rock. 

JoHN R. LYNN, 9 Lyle Street, Greenock. 

X. Stirling, Clackmannan and West Perth Shires-W. P. TURNBULL, 
13 Dollar Avenue, Falkirk. 

GEORGE GALLOWAY, 56 Main Street, Sauchie, Alloa. 
A. SPENCE, "Stanvil," Parkhcad Road, Sauchie, Alloa. 

XJ. Bast Perthshire, Angus and Kinross-GEORGE S. G. VERNON, 
"Oaklands," Connaught Terrace, Crielf. 

XII. Northern Scottish Counties-). B. HARDIE, " Ravenna," 26 Newark 
Drive, Pollokshidds, Glasgow, S.1. 

Page 903



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 3 

xm. Southern Scottish Counties-JAMES DENNISTON, F.E.I.S., Mossgicl, 
Cardoness Street, Dumfries. 

Mrs. M. CouLSoN, 52 Friars Venne!, Dumfries. 
XIV. London and South-Eastern England-JoHN M. SwAN, 17 Roxborough 

Park, Harrow, Middlesex. 
XV. North-Eastern England-J. RENWICK VICKERS, Bclvoir, St. Bedes, 

East Boldon, Co. Durham. 

XVI. North-Western England-HAMISH H. RAE, 9 Park View, Waterloo, 
Liverpool, 22. 

XVII. Midlands of England-JoHN CURRIE, 20 Arboretum Street, 
Nottingham. 

W. GREGOR McGREGOR, 10 Moor Oaks Road, Sheffield, 10. 
XVIII. South-Western England-GEORGE HUMPHREY, The Saughs, Newton-

grange, Midlothian. 

XIX. Wales-J. DouGLAS CAIRNS, M.A., 7 Wattfield Road, Ayr. 
XX. Ireland-Col. T. M. RIDDELL, 30 Jamaica Street, Glasgow. 
XXI. South Africa-DoNALD F. MACNAIR, 103 Fotheringay Road, Glasgow, 

S.1. 
XXII. Australia-T. ATHOLL ROBERTSON, F.R.G.S., F.S.A.(Scot.), 

Dunvorlich, Ewanficld, Cridf, Perthshire. 
XXIII. New Zealand-Mrs. M. THOMSON, 21 Gilbcrtficld Road, Cambuslang. 
XXIV. Canada-JAMES ADAIR, 22 Newark Drive, Glasgow, S.1. 
XXV. India-ARTHUR McKERRow, Rickerby, Lochanhead, Dumfries. 

XXVI. U.S.A.-HERBERT C. REID, 1396 Fairbanks Avenue, S.W., 
Atlanta, Ga., U.S.A. 

JoHN R. HuRRY, 9271 Ndf Road, RR. No. 1, Clio, Mich., 
U.S.A. 

ALEXANDER. M. BucHAN, 535 Dielman Road, St. Louis 
County, Missouri, U.S.A. 

XXVII. Near and Middle East-HuGH M. MAclNTYRE, Elmsley, 7 Racecourse 
Road, Ayr. 

SUB-COMMITTEES. 

Finance: Messrs. Macnair (Convener), Adair, CampbeM, Denniston, 
Hardie and Humphrey and Mrs. Macintosh. 

Memorials: Bailie Andrew Y. Crawford (Convener), Messrs. Beet, Wm. 
Boyle, Irving, Juner and Lynn and Mrs. Coulson. 

Scottish Literature: Messrs. Beet, Belford, Wilson, Boyle, Lewis, 
Allan Macintyre and Robertson and Dr. Oliver-Convener, the President. 

Schools: Messrs. Belford (Convener), Adair, Campbell, Denniston, 
Humphrey and Allan Macintyre and Dr. Oliver. Co-opted member:
}. Douglas Cairns, M.A., 7 Wattfield Road, Ayr. 

Development: Messrs. Adair, James R. Crawford, Goudie, Humphrey, 
Irving and Turnbull and Mrs. Macintosh, with the Hon. Secretary and Hon. 
Treasurer. 

AUDITORS. 

WILLIAM A. GoLD, Wallacethorn, Riccarton, Kilmarnock. 
GEoRGE B1towN, M.A., Dunard, 52 Witch Road, Kilmarnock. 

Page 904



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

CONSTITUTION AND RULES. 

Name. 
1. The Association shall be called "The Burns Federation," 

with headquarters at Kilmarnock. 
Objects. 

2. The objects of the Federation shall be 
(a) To strengthen and consolidate, by universal affilia

tion, the bond of fellowship amongst the 
members of Burns Clubs and kindred Societies. 

(b) To purchase and preserve manuscripts and other 
relics associated with Robert Burns. (Gifts of 
relics shall be reported by the Hon. Secretary 
at the next meeting of the Executive Committee 
following thereon.) 

(c) To mark with suitable inscriptions, repair, or renew 
buildings, tombstones, etc., interesung from their 
association with Robert Burns. 

(d) To encourage institutions and movements in honour 
of Robert Burns. 

(e) To encourage and arrange School Children's Com
petitions in order to stimulate the teaching and 
study of Scottish history, literature, art and 
music. 

(£) To encourage the development of Scottish literature, 
art and music. 

Membership. 
3. (a) The Federation shall consist of affiliated Clubs and 

Societies. Burns Clubs and kindred Societies may be admitted to 
the Federation by the Executive Committee, on application in 
writing to the Hon. Secretary, enclosing a copy of their Constitu
tion and List of Office-bearers. Such applications shall be con
sidered by the Executive Committee at its next meeting. 

(b) Clubs shall be grouped into Districts as shown in the 
subjoined Schedule, but Clubs on the borders of Districts shall 
have the right to elect to which District they wish to belong. 

(c) Ladies or gentlemen who have rendered conspicuous 
service to the Burns Movement may be elected by the Council 
to the position of Honorary President or Honorary Vice-President, 
on the recommendation of the Executive Committee. 

Council. 
4. The Council shall consist of the Hon. Presidents, the Hon. 

Vice-Presidents, the Executive Committee. the Auditors and three 
members elected by each Club. 

Conference of the Council. 
5. (a) The Annual Conference of the Council shall be held, 

at such place as may be arranged, on the second Saturday of 

Page 905



CONSTITUTION AND RULES 5 

September, when the Annual Reports shall be submitted and 
Office-bearers for the ensuing year elected. 

(b) Clubs outwith the United Kingdom may be represented 
by proxy at the Conference. 

(c) Nominations for Offices shall be made by the Executive 
Committee or by Clubs. 

(d) Nominations of Office-bearers, Intimations of election of 
District representative members, and Notices of motion shall be 
lodged in writing with the Hon. Secretary not later than the 
second Saturday of June. But notwithstanding this, the Executive 
Committee shall have power at any of its meetings to formulate 
proposals on any subject it may deem necessary or expedient to 
be placed on the Agenda for discussion and decision at the Annual 
Conference. 

( e) The Agenda of the Conference and the Annual Reports 
shall be issued to Clubs by the Hon. Secretary not less than one 
month before the Conference. 

(£) No alteration shall be made in the "Constitution and 
Rules" except at the Conference of the Councii, -and then only 
by a two-thirds' majority of those voting. 

Executive Committee. 
6. (a) The Executive Committee shall consist of 
(1) President, Past-Presidents, two Vice-Presidents, Hon. Secre

tary, Hon. Treasurer, Hon. Editor of the Scots Chronicle, Hon. 
Secretary of School Children's Competitions and Assistant Hon. 
Secretary; and 

(2) Representative members elected by Districts, as shown in 
the subjoined Schedule. 

(b) The office-bearers shall retire annually. The President 
shall not be re-elected except on the recommendation of the 
Executive Committee carried by two-thirds of their number voting 
at the appropriate meeting and approved by two-thirds of those 
voting at the Annual Conference of the Council. Other offi.ce
bearers shall be eligible for re-election. 

(c) District representative members shall be elected annually 
by all Districts on the basis of one member for the first five 
Clubs, and one member for every additional ten Clubs, in each 
District; but for Edinburgh, London, Wales, Ireland and Overseas 
Districts, one Club in each shall qualify for admission as a 
District. No District shall have more than one member unless 
the number of its Clubs exceeds fourteen. If a District fail to 
elect a representative member, the Executive Committee shall 
have power to fill the vacancy. 

Meetings of the Executive Committee. 
7. (a) The Executive Committee shall conduct the business of 

Page 906



BURNS FEDER:A TION YEAR BOOK 

the Federation, and shall meet on the third Saturdays of October, 
December, March and June, and when called by the Hon. 
Secretary. The place of each meeting shall be fixed at the 
previous meeting. 

(b) The Hon. Secretary shall give at least one week's notice of 
meetings, along with the Agenda. 

(c) Notices of motion and other business to appear in the 
Agenda should reach the Hon. Secretary at least a fortnight 
before the meeting. 

(d) Special meetings may be held on a written request to the 
Hon. Secretary signed by not fewer than ten members of the 
Committee and stating the business to be considered. 

(e) Ten shall form a quorum at meetings. 
(£) The President, the Vice-Presidents, the Hon. Secretary, 

the Hon. Treasurer and the Assistant Hon. Secretary shall be 
ez officiis members of all Standing Sub-Committees. 

Subscriptions. 
8. (a) Each Club, on admission to the Federation, shall pay a 

registration fee of One guinea, in addition to the annual 
subscription of Two pounds. 

(b) Clubs in arrear with their subscriptions shall not be 
entitled to be represented at the annual Conference of the 
Council. 

(c) Clubs failing to pay their subscriptions for two con
aecutive years shall be struck off the roll of the Federation. 

Finance. 
9. (a) The Sub-Committee on Finance shall consist of seven 

members of the Executive Committee, five to form a quorum. 
(b) No accounts shall be paid without the authority of the 

Finance Committee, which shall submit the Minutes of its 
meetings to the quarterly meetings of the Executive Committee. 

(c) The Bank Account shall be kept in the name of the 
Federation, and shall be operated by the Hon. Treasurer for the 
time being. Deposit Receipts shall be taken out in the name 
of the Federation, to be drawn on the endorsement of the 
President, the Hon. Secretary, and the Hon. Treasurer, or ·any 
two of them. All other securities, investments and properties 
shall be held in name of the President, Vice-Presidents, Hon. 
Secretary and Hon. Treasurer and their successors in office aa 
Trustees for the Federation. 

Honorary Secretary. 
10. The Hon. Secretary shall keep the Minute Book of 

the Federation, in which shall be recorded the proceedinf of 
all meetings. He shall also conduct the correspondence o the 
Federation, convene all meetings, and issue Diplomas. He shall 

Page 907



CONSTITUTION AND RULES 7 

prepare the Executive Committee's Report on the year'• 
transactions, for submission to the Conference of the Council. 

Honorary Treasurer. 
u. The Hon. Treasurer shall have charge of all monies paid 

to the Federation, and shall pay all accounts authorised by the 
Finance Committee. He shall prepare a statement of his accounts 
for the year to 31st July, which shall be audited by two Auditors, 
who shall be appointed annually at the Conference of the Council, 
and who shall not be members of the Executive Committee. 

Publications. 
12. (a) The Scottish Literature Committee shall be responsible 

to the Executive Committee for policy in connection with any 
publications issued by the Federation. 

(b) The Scots Chronicle shall be published to encourage the 
development of Scottish literature, art and music. It shall be 
issued annually at such time and at such price as the Executive 
Committee may decide. The Hon. Editor shall be responsible 
for its publication and shall submit annually a report on the sale 
of the latest volume. 

( c) The Hon. Secretary shall be responsible for the issue of 
the Burns Federation Year Book, which shall be published 
annually fl.Ot later than 1st January. It shall contain a Directory 
of Clubs on the Roll of the Federation and reports of the trans
actions of the Federation during the previous year. 

( d) Estimates for the printing of all publications shall be 
approved by the Finance Committee. 

School Children's Competitions. 
13. The Hon. Secretary of School Children's Competitions shall 

give assistance to affiliated Clubs- in the organisation of their Com
petitions, and shall endeavour to co-ordinate the efforts of the 
various Clubs. He shall submit annually a report on the Com
petitions organised by the Clubs. 

Benefits. 
14. (a) Each Club, on affiliation, shall be supplied gratis 

with the Diploma of Membership of the Federation. 
(b) Members of affiliated Clubs shall be entitled to receive 

a Pocket Diploma on payment of One Shilling. 
(c) Affiliated Clubs and Societies sh_all be supplied gratis with 

three copies of the Scots Chronicle, one copy of the Burns 
Federation Year Book and one copy of newspapers containing 
repons of meetings, demonstrations, etc., organised, conducted 
or attended by the Federation. 

( d) Members of affiliated Clubs shall be entitled to be 
supplied, through the Secretaries of their respective Clubs, with 
copies of all works published by the Federation, at such 
discount as may be fixed by the Executive Committee. 

Page 908



LIST OF DISTRICTS 

(See Article No. 6c of "Constitution") 

I. Ayrshire. 
II. Edinburgh. 

III. Glasgow. 
IV. Dunbarton, Argyll, and Bute Shires. 
V. Fifeshire. 

VI. Lanarkshire. 
VII. Lothians (Mid and East) and Borders. 

VIII. Lothian (West). 
IX. Renfrewshire. 
X. Stirling, Clackmannan, and West Perth Shires. 

XI. East Perthshire, Angus and Kinross. 
XII. Northern Scottish Counties. 

XIII. Southern Scottish Counties. 
XIV. London and South-Eastern England. 

Essex, Hertford, Middlesex, Berks, Buckingham, Oxford, 
Hampshire, Surrey, Sussex, Kent. 

XV. North-Eastern England. 
Northumberland, Durham, Yorkshire (except Sheffield, 

Rotherham, Doncaster). 
XVI. North-Western England. 

Cumberland, Westmorland, Lancashire, Cheshire. 
XVII. Midlands of England. 

Derby, Nottingham, Lincoln, South Yorkshire, Leicester, 
Rutland. 

Stafford, Shropshire, Worcester, Warwick, Northampton, 
Cambridge, Huntingdon, Bedford, Nodolk, Suffolk. 

XVIII. South-Western England. 
Hereford, Gloucester, Wilts, Somerset, Dorset, Devon, 

Cornwall, Monmouth. 
XIX. Wales. 
XX. Ireland. 

XXI. South Africa. 
XXII. Australia. 

XXIII. New Zealand. 
XXIV. Canada. 
XXV. India. 

XXVI. United States of America. 
XXVII. Near and Middle East. 

Page 909



LIST OF DISTRICTS 

I. Ayrshire--39 Clubs: 4 Members. 

o Kilmarnock.. 
35 Dairy. 
45 Cumnock. 
56 Muirkirk Lapraik. 
86 Winsome Willie, 

Old Cumnock. 
173 Irvine. 
192 Ayrshire B.C. Assoc. 
252 Alloway. 
274 Troon. 
275 Ayr. 

605 Craigmark and Burnton. 
6o8 Riccarton Wallace. 
621 Scottish Aviation. 
622 Coylton. 
623 Kilwinning. 
632 Symington. 
634 Ardeer. 
639 Cumnock Dumfries Arms. 
643 Beith Tam o' Shanter. 
649 Auld Affleck, Auchinleck. 
664 West Kilbride. 
666 Valley of Doon Ladies. 

9 

288 Beith Caledonia. 
310 Mauchline. 
377 Kilbirnie Rosebery. 
435 Ayr Tam o' Shanter. 
500 New Cumnock. 

671 St. Andrew's Cronies (Irvine}. 
68o Thistle, Saltcoats. 

364 Ochiltree Winsome Willie. 
592 Benwhat. 
593 Barrmill. 
sg6 Glaisnock. 

681 Cronies, Kilmarnock. 
682 Cumnock Jolly Beggars. 
~4 Brawling Coyle, Rankinston. 
705 St. Cuthbert's, Maybole. 
715 Irvine Eglinton. 
717 Gateside Jolly Beggars. 

Secretary: John M. Irving, 20 Melville Street, Kilmarnock. 

n. Edinburgh-10 Clubs: I Member. 

22 Edinburgh. 
65 Musselburgh. 

124 Ninety. 
212 Portobello. 
293 New Craighall. 

307 Edinburgh Ayrshire Assoc. 
314 Edinburgh Scottish. 
341 Leith. 
378 Edinburgh B.C. Assoc. 
398 Colinton. 

Secretary: Fred. J. Belford, M.A., F.E.I.S., 3 Park Grove, Liberton, 
Edinburgh, 9. 

ID. Glasgow-27 Clubs: 3 Members. 

3 Tam o' Shanter. 
7 Thistle. 
9 Royalty. 

33 Haggis. 
36 Rosebery. 
49 Bridgeton. 
53 Govan Fairfield. 
68 Sandyford. 

72 Partick. 
74 National Burns Memorial 

Cottage Homes. 
91 Shettleston. 

139 National. 
153 Scottish. 
169 Glasgow B.C. Assoc. 
181 Primrose. 

213 Kingston. 

Page 910



IO BURNS FEDER'A TION YEAR BOOK 

GLASGOW-tontinuea 

263 Masonic. 
282 Burns Bowling Association. 
295 Burns House. 
fi7 Bcllahouston. 

581 Cumbemauld. 
585 Queen's Park Clarinda. 
610 Royal Arch, Parkhead. 
612 Torrance Masonic. 

484 Sheddcns Ladies. 653 Glasgow Ex-Service Teachers. 
677 Plummet Masonic. 

Secretary : Andrew Stenhouse, LL.B., 104 West Campbell Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

IV. Dunbarton, Argyll, and Bute Shires---8 Clubs: I Member. 

2 Alexandria. 
10 Dumbarton. 

244 Dalmuir. 
421 Arrochar and Tarbet. 

550 Dunoon Mary Campbell. 
580 Cumbrae. 
624 Ohan. 
695 Kilmaronock (Dunbartonshire). 

' . Secretary: Wm. C. Cockburn, Holmwood House, Uddingston. 

V. Fifeshire-20 Clubs: 2 Members. 

62 Cupar. 
85 Dunfermline. 

184 Blairadam. 
262 Fife B.C. Assoc. 
283 Sinclairtown. 
345 Dcnbeath. 
402 High Valleyfield Highland 

Mary Ladies. 
447 Cowdcnbeath Mountain 

Daisy Ladies. 
452 Auchterderran Bonnie Jean. 
463 Kirkford Bonnie Jean. 
478 Kelty and Blairadam Bonnie 

Doon Ladies. 

496 Auld Hoose, Burntisland. 
628 Stedend Jolly Beggars. 
655 Kennoway Jolly Beggars. 

656 Dundonald "Jean Armour" 
Ladies. 

667 Thornton and District Tam 
o' Shanter. 

673 Highland Mary, 
Auchterderran. 

688 Poosie Nansie Ladies, 
Kirkcaldy. 

fxJ7 Ballochmyle, Comrie (Fife). 
709 A' The Airts, Halbeath. 

Secretary: T. C. Anderson, Rowan Cottage, Main Street, 
Kelty, Fife. 

Page 911



LIST OF DISTRICTS 

VI. Lanark~hire-46 Clubs: 5 Members. 

20 Airdrie. 
121 Hamilton Junior. 

133 Newarthill. 
152 Hamilton. 

533 Fauldhouse. 

537 Harthill. 
542 Newarthill White Heather. 

547 Jolly Beggars, Coalburn. 

II 

182 Stane Mossgiel. 
2cY] Cambuslaqg Wingate. 

237 Uddingston Masonic. 
348 Newton Bonnie Jean. 
356 Burnbank Masonic. 

549 Bothwell Bonnie Lesley Ladies. 

574 Holytown Blair Athole. 

372 Baillieston Jean Armour. 

387 Mary Campbell 
(Cambuslan g). 

388 Kyle (Shotts) Ladies. 

390 Meikle Earnock Jolly Beggars. 

392 Whiffiet. 
424 Cambuslang Tam o' Shanter. 

+fl Temple, Shotts. 

466 Dykehead Afton Water 
Ladies. 

467 Gilbertfield Highland Mary 
Ladies. 

494 Motherwell United Services. 

505 Wishaw Masonic. 
520 Uddingston Lochlie Ladies. 
526 Dykehead Tam o' Shanter. 

577 Dalserf and Clydesdale. 

578 Lanarkshire B.C.A. 

587 Budhill and Springboig. 

595 Allanton Brig o' Doon Ladies. 

598 Forth Jolly Beggars. 
614 Bellshill Caledonian. 
637 Larkhall Applebank. 
638 Stonehouse. 
640 Hamilton White Heather. 

642 Rutherglen. 
668 Harthill and Eastfield Ta~ 

o' Shanter. 

669 Coatbridge Home Guard. 
678 Douglas District. 
685 New Stevenston. 
700 Hamilton Jubilee. 
713 Kind Wife, Stonehouse. 

714 Polkemmet "Lea-Rig." 
724 Shotts. 

Secretary: Mrs. C. D. Macintosh, 134 Kylepark Drive, Uddingston. 

VII. Mid and East Lothians and Borders-15 Clubs: 2 Members. 

198 Gorebridge Jolly Beggars. 
199 Newbattle and District. 

239 Hawick. 
346 Oakbank Mossgiel. 
400 Haddington. 
427 Gorebridge Glencairn. 
516 The Airts, Prestonpans. 

613 Tranent No. 1. 

631 Pencaitland and Ormiston. 

635 Jean Armour, Tranent. 
641 Rosewell. 
644 Heiton. 
6so Mid and East Lothians and 

Borders B.C.A. 

651 Dalkeith Plough. 
654 Ormiston Yew Tree. 

Secretary: R. Pilmour, 21 Bryon's Avenue, Newtongrange. 

Page 912



12 BURNS FEDER'ATION YEAR BOOK 

VIII. West Lothian-S Clubs_: 1 Member. 

432 Winchburgh. 579 Bathgate Tam o' Shanter. 
471 Rose of Grange (Bo'ness). 615 West Lothian B.C.A. 

645 Bo'ness Jolly Beggars. 

Secretary: Robert Findlay, 72 Main Street, Winchburgh, West Lothian. 

IX. Rcnfrcwshirc-15 Clubs: 2 Members. 

21 Greenock. 
48 Paisley. 
59 Gourock Jolly Beggars. 

190 Port-Glasgow. 
209 Greenock St, John's. 
254 Grecnock Victoria. 
269 Johnstone Tam o' Shanter. 
383 Greenock Heather. 

430 Gourock. 
431 Inverkip. 
472 Renfrewshire B.C.A. 
538 Grecnock & District 

P.P. Assoc. 

567 Paisley Newtown. 
576 Fort Matilda. 
702 Greenock Foundry Masonic. 

Secretary: Arthur C. E. Lewis, Vallorbc, Rodney Road, Gourock. 

X. Stirling, Clackmannan, and West Perth S~7 Clubs: 
3 Members. 

4 Callander. 
50 Stirling. 

126 Falkirk. 
218 Bannockburn. 
292 Grahamston. 
380 Falkirk Cross Keys. 
399 St. Ringans. 
409 Stcnhousemuir and District. 
426 Sauchie. 
469 Denny Cross. 
503 Dunblane. 

582 Higginsneuk. 
619 Bainsford Cross Roads. 
620 Muirhead. 
630 Coalsnaughton. 
646 Clear Winding Devon, Alva. 
648 Carron Bridge, Kilsyth. 
657 Fallin. 
665 Gartmorn Ladies. 
6J6 Denny British Legion. 
679 Tullibody and Cambus. 
684 Hills of Dunipacc, Larbert. 
690 Pim Hall. 510 Scottish Dyes. 

558 Canibusbarron. 692 Brighton's Cronies. 
725 Ben Cleuch, Tillicoultry. 

Secret.ry: William P. Turnbull, 13 Dollar Avenue, Falkirk. 

Page 913



LIST OF DISTRICTS 

XI. East Perthshire, Angus and K.inros5-7 Clubs: 1 Member. 

14 Dundee. 
42 Strathearn. 
76 Brechin. 

82 Arbroath. 
242 Montrose. 
627 Kinross. 

659 Dundee Burns Society. 

Secretary: R. V. Fairweather, Jun., 47a John Street, Montrose. 

XII. Northern Scottish Counties-11 Clubs:· 1 Member. 

40 Aberdeen. 
149 Elgin. 
336 Peterhead. 
403 Fraserburgh. 
458 Stonehaven. 

470 St. Giles (Elgin). 
670 Strath (Kyleakin). 
686 Banchory. 
~1 Inverness. 
698 Turriff. 

723 Strathpeffer. 

Secretary: Frank Robertson, 6 Upper Kirkgate, Aberdeen. 

XIII. Southern Scottish Counties-18 Clubs: 2 Members. 

112 Dumfries Howff. 536 Whithorn. 
217 Eskdale. 562 Castle Douglas. 
226 Dumfries. 589 Solway. 
309 Annan. 616 Kirkconnel and Sanquhar. 
323 Kirkcudbright. 625 Lockerbie. 
393 Annan Ladies. 626 Moffat and District. 
437 Dumfries Ladies. 629 Sanquhar. 
479 Queen of the South Ladies. 660 The Langl>olm Ladies. 
530 Southern Scottish Counties B.C.A.~3 Masonic, Kirkcudbright. 

Secretary : Mrs. M. Coulson, 52 Friars V ennel, Dumfries. 

XIV. London and South-Eastern England--J Clubs: 1 Member. 

IJ 

I Burns Club of London. 
481 London Ayrshire Society. 
492 Harrow Cal. Soc. 

617 Reading and District Cal. Assoc. 
663 Bournemouth and District 

570 Scottish Clans Assoc. of 
London. 

Cal. Soc. 
719 Chelmsford and District Scottish 

Society. 

Secretary: John M. Swan, 17 Roxborough Park, Harrow, Middlesex. 

Page 914



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

XV. North-Eastern England-10 Clubs: 1 Member. 

119 Sunderland. 
158 Darlington. 
379 Hartlepool~. 
548 Leeds Cal. Soc. 
551 Scarboi;ough Cal. Soc. 

555 Harrogate St. Andrew's Soc. 
6<)6 Whitley Bay. 
699 Lord Clyde, Chappington. 
718 St. Andrew Society of York. 
722 Bridlington Cal. Society. 

Secretary : John D. McBain, 33 Humbledon Park, Sunderland. 

XVI. North-Western England-10 Clubs: 1 Member. 

71 Carlisle. 
236 Whitehaven. 
363 Barrow, St. Andrew's Society. 
366 Liverpool. 
417 Burnley and District. 
436 Walney Jolly Beggars 

618 Altrincham and Sale Cal. Soc. 

674 Manchester and Salford 
Cal. Assoc. 

687 Northwich and District Scots 
Society. 

Ladies. 708 Carlisle Highland Assoc. 
Secretary: Miss Florence M. M'Leod, Rowanhill, 34 Childwall 

Mount Road, Liverpool, 16. 

XVll. Midlands of England-23 Clubs: 2 Members. 

II Chesterfield Cal. Soc. 559 Coventry Cal. Soc. 
17 Nottingham. 563 Norfolk Cal. Soc. 
55 Derby. 584 Corby. 

167 Birmingham. 6o6 Rockingham. 
2~ Walsall. 661 Leamington and Warwick 
329 Newark and District. Cal. Soc. 
405 Sheffield \al. Soc. 683 Stratford-upon-Avon and 
439 Barnsley Scottish Soc. Di'frict C:il "'" 
454 Rotherham. 704 Evesham and District 
461 Leicester Cal. Soc. Caledonian Society. 
528 Loughborough Scottish Soc 7o6 North Lindsey Scots Society. 
553 Wolverhampton Cal. Soc. 707 Malvern Scots lub. 
556 Doncaster Cal. Soc. 720 Retford Cal. Soc. 

Secretary: John Currie, 20 Arboretum Street, Nottingham. 

XVIII. South-Western England-5 Clubs: 1 Member. 

120 Bristol. 535 Plymouth and District 
446 Herefordshire. Cal Soc 
462 Cheltenham Scottish Soc. 721 Plymouth Burns Club. 

Secretary: Miss Winifred Measdy, Albion Chambers, Bristol. 

Page 915



15 Belfast. 

LIST OF DISTRICTS 

XIX. Walcs-1 Club: 1 Member. 

444 Swansea and West Wales. 

XX. Ircland-3 Clubs: I Member. 

183 Londonderry. 
4o6 Dublin St. Andrew's Soc. 

Secretary : George Roddick. 
Langdale, 27 Chichester Road, Belfast. 

XXI. South Africa-2 Clubs: 1 Member. 

373 Red Hill, Natal. 675 Fed. Cal. Soc. of 
Southern Africa. 

324 Stockton. 
5n Perth. 

XXll. Australia-II Clubs: 1 Member. 

703 Mundijong and Districta 
Caledonian Society. 

521 Waratah-Mayfield. 711 Victorian Scottish Union. 
523 Highland Society of N.S.W. 
545 Parramatta. 712 N. and W. Melbourne Scottish 

Society. 566 Scottish Soc. and Bums Club 
of Australia. 716 Royal Cal. Society of Melbourne. 

726 Melbourne. 

XXllL New Zealand-4 Clubs: I Member. 

69 Dunedin. 
+49 Wellington. 

497 St. Andrew (Wellington). 
636 Gisborne. 

XXIV. Canarlll--9 Clubs: 1 Member. 

197 Winnipeg. 561 London (Ontario). 
303 Victoria (B.C.) St. 571 Edmonton. 

Andrew's Soc. 575 Windsor (Ont.) Jean 
443 Bums Club of Victoria (B.C.). Armour. 
476 Border Cities (Ont.). 689 Prince Rupert (B.C.). 

710 The Burns Literary Society of Toronto. 

XXV. lndia-1 Club: 1 Member. 

355 Calcutta. 

Page 916



16 BURNS FEDER.'ATION YEAR BOOK 

XXVI. U.S.A.-17 Clubs: 3 Members. 

220 St. Louis. 
238 Atlanta. 
271 Trenton. 
284 Philadelphia. 
320 Troy. 
331 Buffalo. 
354 Royal Order of Scottish 

Clans. 
381 Greater New York Masonic. 
413 San Francisco St. Andrew's 

Soc. 

453 Philadelphia Ladies' 
Auxiliary. 

493 Akron. 
49B Flint. 
518 Ye Auld Cronies, Ohio. 

525 Flint Jolly Beggars. 
557 Atlanta Ladies. 
594 Cuyahoga County. 

701 Detroit. 

Secretary: Robert E. Urquhart, no Canvass Street, Cohoes, New 
York, U.S.A. 

xxvn. Near and Middle East-I Club: I Member. 

495 Baghdad Cal. Soc. 

Page 917



LIST OF PAST PRESIDENTS 

LIST OF PAST PRESIDENTS. 

1885-1899 Provost Peter Sturrock, Kilmarnock. 
1899-1906 Provost David Mackay, Kilmarnock. 
1906-1907 David Murray, M.A., B.Sc., Kilmarnock. 
1908-1909 William Wallace, M.A., LL.D., Glasgow. 
1909-1910 Captain David Sneddon, V.D., Kilmarnock. 
1910-1923 Duncan M'Naught, LL.D., Kilmaurs. 
1923-1927 Sir Robert Bruce, D.L., LL.D., ·Glasgow. 
1927-1930 Sir Joseph Dobbie, S.S.C., Edinburgh. 
1930-1933 Sir Alexander Gibb, G.B.E., C.B., London. 
1933-1937 Ninian Macwhannell, F.R.l.B.A., Glasgow. 
1937-1943 M. H. M'Kerrow, F.S.A.(Scot.), Dumfries. 
1943-1946 John S. Clarke, J.P., Glasgow. 
1946-1948 Sir Patrick Dollan, D.L., LL.D., J.P., Glasgow. 
1948-1950 : Thomas B. Goudie, Hamilton. 

17 

List of places at which the Annual Conference of the Council 
has been held. 

1885-93 
1894 
1895 
1896 
1897 
1898 
1899 
1900 
1901 
1902 
1903 
1904 
1905 
1906 
1907 
1908 
1909 
1910 
1911 
1912 
1913 
1915-19 
1920 

Kilmarnock. 
Glasgow. 
Dundee. 
Kilmarnock. 
Greenock. 
Mauchline. 
Dumfries. 
Kilmarnock. 
Glasgow. 
Greenock. 
Edinburgh. 
Stirling. 
Hamilton. 
Kilmarnock. 
Sunderland. 
St. Andrews. 
Dunfermline. 
Lanark. 
Glasgow. 
Carlisle. 
Galashiels. 
Glasgow. 
London. 

1921 
1922 
1923 
1924 
1925 
1926 
1927 
1928 
1929 
1930 
1931 
1932 
1933 
1934 
1935 
1936 
1937 
1938 
1940-46 
1947 
1948 
1949 
1950 

Dunfermline. 
Birmingham. 
Ayr. 
Dumfries. 
Edinburgh. 
Perth. 
Derby. 
Aberdeen. 
Troon. 
Greenock. 
Ha wick. 
Stirling. 
London. 
Glasgow. 
Ayr and Kilmarnock. 
Elgin. 
Newcastle-upon-Tyne. 
Dumfries. 
Glasgow. 
Dunoon. 
Stirling. 
Mauchline. 
Bristol. 

The Council did not meet in 1914 and in 1939. 
B 

Page 918



MINUTES OF 

THE ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE COUNCIL 

MusEUM LECTURE RooM, QuEENs RoAD, 
BRISTOL, 9th September, 1950. 

The Annual Conference of the Council of the Burns Federation 
was held here to-day at 9.30 a.m. 

The President, Mr. Thomas B. Goudie, occupied the chair and 
was accompanied by Mr. John M'Vie and Mr. James R. Crawford, 
Vice-Presicfents; fourteen members of the Executive and the Hon. 
Secretary and the Hon. Treasurer. 

Greetings to the Council and apologies for absence were inti
mated from Mr. William Will, C.B.E., and Mr. William C. 
Cockburn, Hon. Presidents; Mr. John R. Fotheringham and Mr. 
Andrew M'Callum, Hon. Vice-Presidents; Dr. John W. Oliver 
and Messrs. A. Wilson Boyle, James Denniston, John Happle, 
William L. Morren, Arthur M'Kerrow, Donald F. Macnair, 
Hamish H. Rae, T. Atholl Robertson and George S. G. Vernon, 
members of the Executive; Mr. William Montgomerie, Hon. 
Editor; Mr. Fred J. Belford, Hon. Secretary of School Competi
tions; Mr. Andrew Stenhouse, Assistant Hon. Secretary; Mr. 
William Gold, Auditor; Mr. Tom M. Lyon, Editor of the 
"Kilmarnock Standard"; Sir Drummond Shiels, President, Burns 
Club of London; and the following Clubs :-St. Andrew Burns 
Club, Wellington, Prince Rupert Burns Club, North East::rn 
Burns Club of Philadelphia and Waratah-Mayfield Burns Club. 

A telegram was read from Mr. James T. Picken, Melbourne, 
an Hon. President, in the following terms :-"Please convey my 
warm greetings to Annual Conference. My thoughts arc 
constantly in the Land of Burns and my good wishes with the 
Federation." 

The following 56 Clubs were represented by 102 delegates : -
1, London; 11, Chesterfield; 17, Nottingham; 36, Rosebery; 55, 
Derby; 71, Carlisle; 85, Dunfermline; 89, Sunderland; 112, 
Dumfries Howff; 120, Bristol; 121, Hamilton Junior; 139, 
National; 153, Scottish Glasgow; 158, Darlington; 169, Glasgow 
and District; 184, Blairadam; 192, Ayrshire Association; 199, 

Page 919



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 19 

Newbattle; 20'], Cambuslang Wingate; 226, Dumfries; 237, 
Uddingston Masonic; 244, Dalmuir; 282, Burns· Bowling Associa
tion; 293, Newcraighall; 296, Walsall; 307, Edinburgh Ayrshire; 
310, Mauchline; 372, Baillieston Jean Armour; 377, Kilbirnie; 378, 
Edinburgh and District Burns Clubs Association; 379, Hartlepools; 
380, Falkirk Cross Keys; 383, Gourock R.N.T.F. Heather; 387, 
Cambuslang Mary Campbell; 400, Haddington; 405, Sheffield; 
435, Ayr Tam o' Shanter; 437, Dumfries Ladies No. 1; 454, 
Rotherham; 462, Cheltenham; 472, Renfrewshire Association; 476, 
Border Cities, Ontario; 500, New Cumnock; 520, Uddingston 
Lochlie; 525, Flint; 530, Southern Scottish Counties Association; 
538, Greenock and District P.P. Association; 549, Bothwell Bonnie 
Lesley; 561, London (Ontario); 563, Norfolk Caledonian Society; 
578, Lanarkshire; 596, Glaisnock; 616, Kirkconnel and Sanquhar; 
630, Coalsnaughton; 707, Malvern; 720, Retford. 

The President having extended a welcome to the delegates 
the Minutes of last year's Conference at Mauchline-which are 
printed on pp. 83 to 99 of the 1950 Burns Chronicle-were held 
as read and were approved on the motion of Mr. James Dunlop, 
Mauchline. 

HON. SECRETARY'S ANNUAL.REPORT 

The Hon. Secretary submitted his report for the year 1949-so 
as follows:-

lt will be a matter of much gratification to the members of our 
affiliated Clubs in the South-West of England and to some of the 
older members of other Clubs that the Executive have at length 
been able to respond to the invitation by the Bristol Caledonian 
Society, first extended in 1937, and accepted and unfortunately 
postponed in 1939. Facially, it may in some respects be a different 
Bristol from that of 1939, but time has not diminished the warmth 
of welcome awaiting us alike from the Caledonian Society and 
from the City and Corporation, on this our first visit to the West 
of England. Those who can extend their stay beyond the recog
nised Conference week-end will find much of interest in this 
thriving Capital of the West, set like a jewel in the incomparable 
beauty of the Western Counties. 

OBITUARY 

'since we last met we have lost three prominent Burnsians in 
the persons of Mr. Dewar M. Robb, M.A., Greenock, Mr. William 
Hamilton of Stockton, N.S.W., and Mr. George Cumming of 
Brechin. Those who came in contact with Mr. Robb will 
remember him best as one full of interest for the spreading of the 

Page 920



20 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

teachings of Burns amongst the children and for the valuable 
assistance he gave to the Federation as a co-opted member of the 
School Competitions Committee. Mr. Willie Hamilton may not 
have been so familiarly known except to correspondents but as 
one of the founders and for years Secretary of the Stockton Burns 
Club he did much to foster the Burns spirit in that community. 
He was elected one of our Hon. Vice-Presidents at the Diamond 
Jubilee Conference in 1945. Mr. George Cumming was for many 
years Secretary of the Brechin Burns Club and Area Secretary 
for the East Perthshire, Angus and Kinross District. We regret 
the passing of these gentlemen and record with gratitude the 
services rendered by them in their several spheres. 

MEMBERSHIP 

During the year the following twenty-one Clubs and Societies 
have been added to our Roll :-

Hamilton Jubilee Burns Club. 
The Detroit Burns Club. 
Greenock Foundry Association. 
Mundijong and District Caledonian Association, Western 

Australia. 
Evesham and District Caledonian Society. 
St. Cuthbert's Burns Club, Maybole. 
North Lindsey Scots Society, Scunthorpe. 
Malvern Scots Club. 
The Carlisle Highland Association. 
A' the Airts Burns Club, Halbeath. 
The Burns Literary Society of Toronto. 
Victorian Scottish Union, Melbourne. 
North and West Melbourne Scottish Society. 
Kind Wife Burns Club, Stonehouse. 
Polkemmet Learig Burns Club, Harthill. 
Irvine Eglinton Burns Club. 
Royal Caledonian Society of Melbourne. 
Gateside Jolly Beggars Burns Club, Beith. 
The St. Andrew Society of York. 
Chelmsford and District Scottish Society. 
The Retford and District Caledonian Society. 

It is worthy of note that the majority of affiliations are from 
Clubs and Societies outwith Scotland and that our interestl 
continue to develop in England and Overseas. 

Re-affiliation of twelve Clubs was reported during the year. 

Page 921



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 2r 

Of the 414 Clubs listed in the Directory in the 1950 Chronicle, 
57 are in arrear with the current year's subscription, 26 are two 
years in arrcar and 65, being three or more years in arrcar, may 
now be considered as lapsed. In addition, three secretaries when 
remitting their subscription intimated that their Clubs were now 
in abeyance owing to lack of membership. 

As was the case a year ago fewer sales of pocket diplomas is 
to be reported, the number sold being 319, a decrease of 133. On 
the other hand the demand for Federation badges and brooches 
continues and during the year 457 were purchased by members 
of Federated Clubs. ..., 

MEMORIALS 

It was found necessary during the year to repoint the Lcglen 
Wood Memorial. The work is being carried out under the 
supervision of the Convener of the Memorials Committee. 

The Burgh Surveyor of Ayr has reported in the following 
terms on the "Auld Brig":-

"The masonry of piers, abutments and parapets is all in good 
order, with the exception of projecting parts of the gargoyles for 
conducting water from the carriageway which has been mentioned 
in the Reports of previous years, but these do not interfere with 
the discharge of water from the carriageway. 

The granite sett paving surfacing of the bridge and approaches 
is in good order. 

The foundations of the abutments and piers arc also in good 
order and I consider the whole structure of the bridge is in a very 
satisfactory condition." 

Due to lack of financial support, the Glenbervie Memorials 
Committee had to depart from their original proposals for the 
restoration of the Burns Family tombstones and a more modest 
scheme for the preservation of the stones has been Undertaken. 

The Southern Scottish Counties Association arranged for the 
renovation of the Jean Armour Bums-Brown gravestone in St. 
Mary's Churchyard, Dumfries, and for keeping the grave in 
proper order. They also undertook financial responsibility for 
the correction of misquotations on the panels of the Burns Statue 
in Dumfries. 

Following representations by the Executive Committee against 
proposals by the Town Council of Ayr to erect a number of 
concrete standards for street lighting in Alloway, the Town 
Council recently decided in favour of metal lamp posts more in 
keeping with the amenities of Alloway and the Burns Cottage. 

Page 922



22 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

BURNS CHRONICLE 

It will be remembered that a year ago the question of the 
style and title of the Chronide was referred back for further 
consideration by the Executive. Under the supervision of our 
new Hon. Editor, Mr. Montgomerie, Volume XXV of the Second 
Series was published in January in the style of its predecessors. 

The Scottish Literature Committee devoted much time and 
deliberation to consideration of the style and title of future issues 
and finally recommended to the Executive that there should be 
two publications, viz. : -"Scots Chronicle" and "The Burns 
Federation Club Directory and Reports." 

SCHOOL COMPETITIONS 

The report to be submitted by the Hon. Secretary discloses 
increasing interest in this important branch of the activities of 
the Federation. It is, however, a matter for regret that many 
Secretaries fail to submit details of the competitions sponsored 
by their Clubs. 

CHARITABLE WORK 

It is pleasing to report that many of our Clubs and Societies 
continue to support charities in which we are interested, more 
especially the Homes and Houses at Mauchline. Additional to 
the amounts quoted in the Hon. Treasurer's statement, many 
donations are received direct by those charged with the administra
tion of these charities. Much more could, however, be achieved 
if each affiliated Club or Society arranged to take a collection for 
these charities at their Anniversary gatherings as recommended 
by the Executive Committee. 

A year ago I expressed the hope that the appeal for funds for 
the erection of the "Mary Campbell Memorial Home" would 
receive the support of Clubs during the past session. The result 
so far is disappointing-the sum remitted to the Hon. Treasurer 
during the year being only £u8 4s. 9d., bringing the total to 
£443 IOS. 6d. 

We are once more grateful to the Robert Burns Concert Com
mittee of San Francisco, who again organised a concert during 
the Anniversary Season and have sent us parcels for distribution 
amongst the Old Folks at Mauchline. 

SCOTTISH NATIONAL DICTIONARY 

New dialect correspondents for Banff, Moray, Dumfries and 
Nairn are required for the Scottish National Dictionary. Announc
ing this at the annual meeting of the Dictionary Association, the 

Page 923



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 23 

Editor, Mr. David Murison, said that thanks to the efforts of 
the new excerptors, 3500 slips had been added to the files during 
the past year. The lack of paper had temporarily delayed the 
issue of the latest addition to the Dictionary, Part 3, Volume III, 
but meantime nearly all the material for the succeeding part had 
been finally revised and there was a possibility that this would be 
issued early next year. The number of copies of the Dictionary 
subscribed for during the year was rather less than in the last few 
years, and though the financial position of the Association is 
quite satisfactory a greater flow of donations from those interested, 
at home and abroad, would be welcomed. Professor M'lntosh of 
Edinburgh University, who is in charge of the Linguistic Atlas 
of Scotland, has taken the place on the Executive Council of the 
late Very Rev. Dr. Lamont. 

DECLARATION OF SCOTTISH INDEPENDENCE 

With one exception, all the Directors of Education in Scotland 
accepted the Federation's offer to present to every Secondary 
School a facsimile of the Arbroath Declaration and for this 
purpose some 850 copies were issued. Appreciative letters of 
thanks have been received from many of the recipient authorities. 

BI-CENTENARY OF THE BIRTH OF ROBERT FERGUSSON 

Under the auspices of the Federation and the Edinburgh 
Branch of the Saltire Society, arrangements have been completed 
for a {;Ommemorative ceremony to mark the 20oth anniversary 
of the birth of Robert Fergusson, to be held in Edinburgh on 
2nd September. Amongst the wreaths to be laid at the grave of 
the poet will be one from the Federation. 

OVERSEAS VISITORS 

Earlier in my report I referred to the renovation of the Leglen 
Wood Memorial. It is with much gratification that I now report 
that the expense of this work will be met from a donation of £45 
received from the recently federated Prince Rupert Burns Club in 
appreciation of the kindness extended to their President on the 
occasion of his visit to the Burns Country last year. The Prince 
Rupert Club asked that the donation be used to the most needful 
memorial fund, with a preference to the Burns Memorial at Ayr. 

Burns Memorials throughout the country, more especially those 
at Alloway and Dumfries, are attracting an increasing number of 
overseas visitors and reports from the Curators of these Memorials 
indicate that the influence and power of Burns is becoming more 
and more felt. 

Page 924



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

In presenting his report, the Hon. Secretary intimated that 
since its preparation he had received notification of the death in 
May last of Mr; Hector M'Kelvie, Swansea, who had for some 
years represented Wales on the Executive Committee. 

Mr. John Currie, Nottingham, moved the adoption of the 
report. Mr. John M'Vie, Vice-President, in seconding, said that 
a matter that had been brought to their notice was the dilapidated 
state of the grave of Francis Grose outside Dublin. The Dublin 
Benevolent Society had been approached regarding the question 
of having the grave and tombstone renovated, and this work had 
now been done. It had been suggested that the Burns Federation 
should share the cost or pay it wholly, but the Dublin Society 
said it was an honour for them to do this for the Federation and 
for the friend of Burns. 

Continuing, Mr. M'Vie said that the bi-centenary of Robert 
Fergusson had been marked by a ceremony in the Canongate 
Churchyard, Edinburgh, organised by the Federation. They had 
the co-operation of the Lord Provost of Edinburgh and of the 
Saltire Society. Mr. Eric Linklater gave an appreciative address. 
There was a large attendance of members of the public and of 
the Burns Clubs in the east. He thought they should record 
their indebtedness to the Saltire Society and to the Lord Provost 
of Edinburgh for their co-operation in making that function a 
success. 

SCOTI'ISH NATIONAL DICTIONARY 

Mr. M'Vie went on to refer to the position with regard to the 
Scottish National Dictionary, the next part of volume three of 
which, he said, might be expected very shortly and the part 
following was ready for the printer. Anyone who knew the 
present paper situation and the state of the printing industry 
would appreciate the reasons for the delay, but everything possible 
was being done to expedite the work. The cost of production 
of the Dictionary continued to increase and it was expected that 
between £20,000 and £30,000 would still be needed to complete 
the undertaking. The Dictionary Association had had to rely 
on its own efforts for finding its funds, which was in marked 
contrast to the experiences of other dictionaries in this country 
and abroad. The New English Dictionary (1879-1933), which cost 
£300,000 in pre-war figures, was paid for by the Oxford University 
Press. The English Dialect Dictionary (1898-1905) was helped 
by an annual grant from the Royal Bounty Fund. The Dictionary 
of the Older Scottish Tongue (1927-onwards) was being financed 

Page 925



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 25 

the educational system of each country. The Scottish National 
Dictionary claimed a similar position as a national institution in 
Scotland. Dealing as it did with the whole o.ral and literary 
vocabulary and thus with every aspect of the life of Lowland 
Scotland since 1700, it set out to be the standard work of reference 
for the Scottish tongue, comprehending and superseding the work 
of all previous Scottish dictionaries, e.g., Jamieson, Wright and 
W arrack, and adding to and bringing up to date their informa
tion, a feature being the close attenton paid to present-day usage 
and pronunciation. A work of such magnitude was never likely 
to be attempted again in Scottish lexicography and the condition 
of Scots speech was now such that recording and publication must 
be pushed on with all speed antl completeness, and increased 
staff and funds were necessary to expedite the work. It would 
be deplorable and discreditable from academic considerations alone 
if the labours and scholarship of forty years should have to be 
abandoned or uselessly curtailed for want of money. The 
Dictionary, however, had an active part to play in the future of 
Scottish education, as had been recognised by the Advisory Council 
in its reports on primary and secondary education in Scotland. 
There they said: "In drawing attention to the Scottish National 
Dictionary on which so much good work has already been done, 
we express the view that it will be of great value to Scottish 
schools-but only if it is regarded as a guide to living study rather 
than a mausoleum." At last year's Conference they had approved 
of his communicating with clubs and giving them information 
about the Dictionary, but pressure of other work prevented him 
from doing so. In the very near future he hoped to communicate 
with them, and he hoped all clubs in the Federation would make 
a supreme effort this year on behalf of what was to-day the 
greatest work being done for Scottish literature. 

The annual report was approved. 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

Mr. James Macintyre, Mauchline, Hon.Treasurer, in submitting 
his annual financial statement, said they had started the year 
with a balance of £591 9s. rnd. Subscript?.ons paid during the 
year amounted to £373 16s. With new clubs joining they had 
eleven more subscriptions than last year and so far as that part 
of the revenue was concerned one might feel that it was 
satisfactory. So far as the sale of the "Burns Chronicle" was 
concerned he had again to report a very successful year. They 
finished with an approximate profit of £150, which was somewhat 

Page 926



.1.6 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

from national funds and were treated as essential enterprises in 
by the Universities of Chicago, Glasgow, Edinburgh and Aberdeen. 
Similar dictionaries in South Africa, Ireland, Denmark, 
Switzerland, Sweden and Russia were largely or wholly subsidised 
less than last year but nevertheless was a satisfactory position for 
the "Chronicle" to find itself in. They finished the year with a 
balance of £553 5s. 2d., showing a loss on the year's working of 
£38 4s. 8d. The total funds, however, amounted to £1491 7s. Sd. 

The report was adopted on the motion of Bailie Andrew Y. 
Crawford, Ayr, seconded by Mr. Robert Spiers, Glasgow. 

The Financial Statement is printed on pp. 38-39. 

THE 
11

BURNS CH).lONICLE
11 

The report on the "Burns Chronicle"-which is printed on 
p. 35-was submitted by the Hon. Sec,retary who read the 
following further report by Mr. Montgomerie, the Hon. Editor:-

The first two series of the "Robert Burns Chronicle" did very 
useful work in chronicling more than half a century of Burns 
study. It would now be a very difficult task for an editor to 
continue collecting the same kind of material annually, and to 
make the result either interesting or useful. 

They know not Burns who only Burns know. A wider and 
deeper knowledge can best be gained by a study of the poet's 
background, interpreting that in a very wide sense. This is now 
the middle of the twentieth century, and methods of research have 
been changing. There is a re-awakened interest in Scotland in 
our own literature, going back to Dunbar and Henryson before 
the Reformation, and rediscovering things like "The Three 
Estates" by David Lindsay of the Mount. We are also becoming 
aware that something has been done since Burns in poetry and 
prose. We are re-reading John Galt, Susan Ferrier, Douglas 
Brown, Lewis Grassie Gibbon. We are arguing about the possi
bility of writing in Scots in the twentieth century, and one or 
two poets are writing poems in Scots, a few of which are worth 
serious consideration. If they are at all promising, these con
temporary poets should be given some encouragement by the 
Burns Federation. Some poets are writing in English-Burns also 
wrote some poems, and all his prose, in English-so our encourage
ment should not be withheld there. Probably the finest poetry 
of any at the moment is being written in Gaelic, by Sorley 
Maclean. Even in English translation it is magnificent. 

All these things and others have been taken into consideration 
in the 1951 "Scots Chronicle," in which it is proposed to include a 

Page 927



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 27 

little of the work of these poets, so that readers can judge for 
themselves, and not have to rely on propaganda and letters to 
the editor for knowledge of what is being done. 

An effort has been made to bring together a varied selection 
of articles by authorities in several fields, and that effort has been 
successful in bringing together a most fascinating magazine. An 
Orkney ballad, unknown to the general public, is short enough 
to print. A neglected novel of genius, too long to print, has been 
described by a critic who knows that it is a work of genius, and 
tries to direct us to the book itself. There is a new short story 
by one of the best of our Scottish writers, Sir Richard Rees, 
former editor of the "Adelphi," and contributions by Professor 
John Orr of Edinburgh University, who is an expert on the 
Scottish dialects; Joseph Macleod, one of the best-known radio 
broadcasters of the war years; Dr. Robert Thornton of the U.S.A., 
a fine Burns scholar; Iona and Peter Opie, who are authorities 
on nursery rhymes; Crombie Saunders, former editor of "Scottish 
Art and Letters"; John M'Vie, our new President; Jane Lymburn, 
whose work of translation-including Hecht's "Life of Robert 
Burns"-is well known; and Robert Whyte, who has access to 
new official sources about Burns's life. All of them have 
co-operated to make a magazine, the "Scots Chronicle," which is 
an important addition to Scottish literature. 

In the past, sale of the Federation annual has been largely 
confined to club members. It is now time to appeal to a much ' 
wider public. A few people working enthusiastically have already 
done wonders in making the magazine of the Federation more 
widely known. If we could have the enthusiasm of dozens, where 
we now have a few individuals, all working together to make the 
new venture known to their friends, to bookshops, to all friends 
of Scottish literature, the new annual the "Scots Chronicle" would 
widen the knowledge of th~ Federation and its work all over the 
world. 

Mr. J. Kevan M'Dowall initiated a discussion in regard to the 
forthcoming issue of the "Scots Chronicle" and Mr. M'Vie, the 
Convener of the Scottish Literature Committee, gave an assurance 
that, from the advertising point of view, the financial success of 
the "Chronicle" was already assured and that the 1951 issue would 
be ready for publication not later than ISt December. 

Mr. M'Vie, seconded . by Mr. James Milgrew, Auchinleck, 
moved the adoption of the report. An amendment by Mr. 
M'Dowall that the "Burns Chronicle" be continued in its present 
form was ultimately withdrawn and the report was thereupon 
adopted. 

Page 928



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

SCHOOL COMPETITIONS 

In the absence of Mr. Fred J. Belford, Hon. Secretary of the 
School Competitions, the report was formally submitted by the 
Hon. Secretary. 

The report, which is printed on pp. 36-37, was approved on 
the motion of Mr. James Milgrew, seconded by Mr. Arthur C. E. 
Lewis, Gourock. 

PROPOSED ALTERATIONS TO CONSTITUTION 

The Conference proceeded to consider a number of proposed 
alterations to the Constitution recommended by the Executive 
Committee. 

The President, seconded by Mr. John M'Vie, moved, and the 
Council unanimously resolved : 

That Rule 6 (b) be deleted and the following substituted : -
The office-bearers shall retire annually. The President shall 

not be re-elected, except on the recommendation of the 
Executive Committee carried by two-thirds of their number 
voting at the appropriate meeting and approved by two
thirds of those voting at the annual conference of the Council. 
Other office-bearers shall be eligible for re-election. 

The President, seconded by Mr. James B. Hardie, moved: 
That Rule 8 (a) be deleted and the following substituted:

Each club on admission to the Federation shall pay a 
registration fee of one guinea in addition to an annual 
subscription of two pounds. 

Mr. J. Kevan M'Dowall, seconded by Bailie Andrew Y. 
Crawford, moved the following amendment on behalf of the 
West Kilbride Burns Club:-

That the words "which shall be one pound, ten shillings" 
be deleted and the following words substituted :-"which 
shall be two guineas for clubs entitled to one member on the 
Council; four guineas for clubs entitled to two members on 
the Council; and six guineas for clubs entitled to three 
members on the Council." 

On being put, the amendment was defeated by a large majority 
and the Council thereupon resolved in tcrmt of the motion. 

The President formally moved: 
That Rule 8 (c) be deleted and the following substituted:

Clubs failing to pay their subscriptions for two consecutive 
years shall be struck off the roll of the Federation. 

The motion was declared carried. 

Page 929



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 29 

The President, seconded by Mr. Beet, moved: 
That Rule 9 (a) be deleted and the following substituted:

The Sub-Committee on Finance shall consist of seven 
members of the Executive Committee, three to form a 
quorum. 

Mr. M'Vie suggested that, having regard to the size of the 
Finance Committee, the quorum be increased from three to five. 
The Council accepted Mr. M'Vie's suggestion and unanimously 
resolved in terms of the motion as now amended. 

The President, seconded by Mr. Lewis, moved: 
That Rule 12 be deleted and the following substituted:-

(a) The Scottish Literature Committee shall be responsible 
to the Executive Committee for policy in connection with 
any publications issued by the Federation. 

(b) The "Scots Chronicle" shall be published to encourage 
the development of Scottish Literature, art and music. 

It shall be issued annually at such time and at such price 
as the Executive Committee may decide. 

The Hon. Editor shall be responsible for its publication 
and shall submit annually a report on the sale of the latest 
volume. 

(c) The Hon. Secretary shall be responsible for the issue 
of the "Club Directory" which shall be published annually 
not later than 1st January. It shall contain a Directory of 
Clubs on the Roll of the Federation and reports of the trans
actions of the Federation during the previous year. 

(d) Estimates for the printing of all publications shall be 
approved by the Finance Committee. 

Mr. G. M'Kerrow, Dumfries, suggested altering the title of 
the "Club Directory" to "Burns Federation Year Book" and this 
was agreed to. Otherwise the amendments were unanimously 
approved as submitted. 

On C<,;msideration of recommendation by the Executive as to 
proposed alteration of Rule 14 (c), Mr. M'Vie said he did not think 
they should tie the hands of the Executive Committee as to what 
press reports were to be issued to clubs. He suggested that the 
rule should read : -

Affiliated clubs and societies shall be supplied gratis with 
three copies of the "Scots Chronicle," one copy of the "Burns. 
Federation Year Book," and one copy of newspapers con
taining reports of meetings, demonstrations, &c., organised, 
conducted or attended by the Federation. 

This was agreed to. 

Page 930



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

Mr. Kevan M'Dowall, seconded by Bailie Crawford, moved 
the following motion on behalf of the West Ki\bride Burns Club : 

Rule 4.-That the present rule be cancelled and the following 
substituted : -

4 (a) The Council shall consist of the Hon. Presidents, the 
Hon. Vice-Presidents, the Executive Committee and members 
elected by clubs. 

(b) Clubs with a membership not exceeding fifty shall elect 
one member; clubs with a membership exceeding fifty but 
not exceeding one hundred and fifty shall elect two members; 
clubs with a membership exceeding one hundred and fifty 
shall elect three members. 

On being put, the motion was declared rejected by a large 
majority. 

After some discussion, the following motion by the West 
Kilbride Burns Club was remitted to the Executive Committee 
for consideration : -

That the Burns Federation consider the appointment of a 
full-time secretary with necessary staff, with headquarters in 
Scotland, and that a report be submitted to the 1951 
Conference. 

ELECTION OF OFFICE-BEARERS 

The President formally moved the following recommendations 
by the Executive Committee : -
Hon. Vice-Presidents: -Mr. JAMES MAclNTYRE, Hon. Treasurer 

of the Federation; Mr. THOMAS C. ANDERSON, Kelty; and 
Mr. ToM M. LvoN, J.P., Editor of the Kilmarnock Standard. 

President:-Mr. JoHN M'Vrn, Edinburgh. 
Vice-Presidents:-Mr. JAMES R. CRAWFORD, F.S.A.(Scot.), Norwich; 

Mr. J. KEVAN M'DowALL, F.S.A.(Scot.), Glasgow. 
Hon. Secretary:-Mr. WILLIAM BLACK, Dumfries. 
Hon. Treasurer:-Mr. JAMES MAclNTYRE, Mauchline .• 
Hon. Editor:-Mr. WILLIAM MoNTGOMERIE, M.A., Broughty 

Ferry. 
Hon. Secretary af School Competitions:-Mr. FRED. J. BELFom, 

M.A., F.E.l.S., Edinburgh. 
Hon. Assistant Secretary :-Mr. ANDREW STENHOUSE, LL.B., 

Glasgow. 
Hon. Auditors:-Mr. WILLIAM A. Gow and Mr. GEORGE BRoWN, 

M.A., Kilmarnock. 
The recommendations were cordially and unanimously 

approved. 

Page 931



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 31 

INSTALLATION OF NEW PRESIDENT 

Mr. Goudie said that the time had come for him to retire 
from the position which he had enjoyed occupying during the . 
past two years. It was a high honour to hold office as President 
of the Burns Federation and he regretted leaving it but he hoped 
to be able to continue to take a keen interest in the affairs of the 
Federation and to attend the committee meetings as regularly 
as he had done for the past 26 or 27 years. He had great pleasure 
in asking the new President to take over the chair. 

After Mr. Goudie had invested Mr. M'Vie with the chain of 
office he remarked that the work the new President had done on 
behalf of the Federation in the past fully warranted his election 
to that high office. 

On taking the chair Mr. M'Vie said he thanked them for the 
honour they had done him in electing him President of the 
Burns Federation, and he would do his utmost to merit the 
confidence they had seen fit to place in him. If he derived as 
much pleasure during his year of office in the chair as he did 
during t:J:e 14 years he was Secretary, he would do very well 
indeed. In the course of its history the Burns Federation had had 
many vicissitudes. Periods of great activity had been succeeded 
by spells of marking time, which they charitably looked back on 
as breathing spaces for gathering strength for renewed effort. He 
trusted that, with good constructive teamwork on the part of all 
of them, the year that lay ahead might prove to be one of renewed 
effort. He had no new or spectacular proposals to put before 
them. He would rather try to put new life into existing schemes 
and increase the tempo of their achievement. It would therefore 
be his endeavour to stimulate, accelerate and, if possible, intensify 
the work of the Executive Committee with that end in view. 

THANKS 

Continuing, Mr. M'Vie said that Mr. Goudie had taken a very 
keen interest in the Federation for many years and he felt they 
would not wish him to demit office without recording their 
appreciation of his services both as President for the past two 
years and as a member of the Executive Committee for a long 
period. He also wished to express appreciation of the services 
rendered by the officials, both present and absent. He knew they 
appreciated the work done by Mr. Black and- Mr. Macintyre. For 
health reasons Mr. Black had been on the point of giving up the 
secretaryship but to their great relief he had agreed to carry on. 
Having had some experience of the post himself he knew the 

Page 932



32 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

amount of work the secretaryship entailed and also the trcasurcr
ship, but he did not think they had ever had such a good team 
as their present Secretary and Treasurer. Mr. M'Vie also referred 
to the services of Mr. Belford and Mr. Stenhouse, and with regard 
to Mr. Montgomerie he remarked that he had still to win his 
spurs, although he had produc:;.ed quite a good "Burns Chronicle" 
in the very short time that was given to him. When they saw 
the "Scots Chronicle" he thought they would agree that they had 
got the right man in the right place. 

The Hon. Secretary reported that vacancies in the Executive 
Committee had been filled by the appointment of the following 
District Representatives : -

Lanarkshire-Mrs. E. Davie and Messrs. James Mathew and 
James M'Lean; Renfrewshire-Mr. John R. Lynn; Stirling, 
Clackmannan and West Perth Shires-Mr. A. Spence; Southern 
Scottish Counties-Mrs. M. Coulson. 

NEXT ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

An invitation to the Federation from Montrose Burns Club to 
hold the next annual conference at Montrose was submitted and 
was unanimously accepted. 

THE B.B.C, AND BURNS 

Mr. Ian Hamilton, Darlington, asked the Federation to give 
consideration to the attitude of the B.B.C. towards programmes 
of a Scottish character and the President said the Executive 
Committee would take that matter up. 

BURNS CLUBS' BOWLING ASSOCIATION 

Mr. Speirs, Glasgow, appealed to local associations to send 
delegates to the Scottish Burns Clubs' Bowling Association, which 
was responsible for carrying through the competition for the 
M'Lennan Cup, one of the finest sporting trophies in the country. 
They wanted to get Burnsians in Ayrshire, Lanarkshire and in 
the districts around Glasgow to enter for this competition, which 
was played in Glasgow on a Tuesday afternoon. 

Mr. Black, Sanquhar, asked if it would not be possible to have 
the competition on a Saturday in place of a Tuesday. 

Mr. Speirs said they would consider that suggestion, but 
Saturday was a very bad day for obtaining rinks on the greens. 

At the close of the conference Mr. J. R. Crawford proposed a 

Page 933



MINUTES OF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 33 

vote of thanks to the past and present Presidents for their services 
in the chair during the conference, and Mr. W. B. Harkness 
expressed appreciation of the arrangements made for the occasion 
by the Bristol Caledonian Society. In replying, Mr. J.E. Barbour, 
Chairman of the committee of the society, said they were a 
happy Scottish family in Bristol and they were deriving a great 
deal of pleasure from the visit of the Federation. He mentioned 
particularly Mr. F. W. Whitehead, who was Secretary of the 
society for some years; Mrs. R. Courtney, and Miss Winifred 
Measdy, the present Secretary, as deserving thanks for their work 
in connection with the visit of the Federation. 

THE SOCIAL SIDE 

The Bristol Caledonian Society had made comprehensive 
arrangements for the entertainment of the delegates and their lady 
friends, and the social side of the conference was declared by 
those with long experience of such occasions to be among the best 
they had enjoyed. Pre-conference activities started off with a 
civic reception in the Art Gallery on Friday evening by the Lord 
Mayor (Alderman F. A. Parish) and members of Bristol Corpora
tion, and over a cup of tea the visitors had an opportunity of 
renewing acquaintance with old friends and making new ones. 
The Lord Mayor extended a cordial welcome to the delegates and 
their friends and the thanks of the guests was fittingly expressed 
by Mr. Goudie. The pleasant business of getting together was 
continued later in the evening at a supper and dance in the 
Berkeley Cafe, where the dance programme was practically an 
all-Scottish one and the kilt was much in evidence. At intervals 
in the dance a number of Burns's songs were rendered by Miss 
Morton and Mr. Roy Irwin, and at supper Mr. T. Edminston 
entertained the company with Scottish recitations. 

Following the business session on Saturday forenoon those 
attending the conference were the guests of the Caledonian Society 
at luncheon in the Berkeley Cafe. Mr. R. W. French, President 
of the society, occupied the chair. The toast of "The City of 
Bristol" was in the capable hands of Mr. James R. Crawford, 
Vice-President of the Federation, and the Lord Mayor responded. 
The Sheriff of Bristol (Mr. J. H. Bennett) submitted the toast of 
"The Burns Federation," to which the newly-elected President, 
Mr. John M'Vie, replied and took the opportunity of presenting an 
anthology of Scots poetry to the Lord Mayor and a book on 
Scotland to the Lady Mayoress. Mr. J. Kevan M'Dowall proposed 
the toast of "The Chairman." After lunch the visitors had a motor 

c 

Page 934



34 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

drive to Bath, where they toured the town under the guidance of 
members of Bath Caledonian Society and later viewed the famous 
Roman Baths, Pump Rooms, &c. A civic reception and tea were 
provided at the Guildhall, where the Mayor (Councillor Kathleen 
Harper) welcomed the company and Mr. M'Vie responded on 
their behalf. The President also presented the Mayor and the 
Lady Mayoress (sister of the Mayor) with copies of the same books 
as he had handed over at Bristol. 

On Sunday morning the delegates and friends attended divine 
~ervice in Trinity and St. James' Presbyterian Church, Bristol. 
The Rev. Peter M'Call, minister of the church, conducted the 
service and preached an appropriate sermon, and the lessons were 
read by Mr. M'Vie and Mr. French. A retiring collection on 
behalf of the National Burns Memorial Cottage Homes and the 
Jean Armour Burns Houses realised the handsome sum of £22 12s. 
In the afternoon, in bright sunshine, the delegates and friends 
enjoyed another motor driye, this time to the famous Cheddar 
gorge and caves and thence to Wells Cathedral and Chapter 
House. Tea was served at Cheddar. 

At the various social functions well-deserved thanks was 
extended to the officials and members of the Bristol Caledonian 
Society for their untiring efforts to ensure the success of the con
ference and the enjoyment of the delegates and their friends 
during their stay in the city. 

WILLIAM BLACK, Hon.-Secretary. 

BURNS COTTAGE, ALLOWAY 

During the 12 months ended 3oth September there were 104,966 
visitors to Burns Cottage, a decrease of 3986 compared with the 
previous year. Visitors to Burns Monument numbered 55,652. 

BURNS HOUSE, DUMFRIES 

The number of people who paid for admission to Burns House 
was 23,n4-a slight decrease from the previous year. This was 
no doubt accounted for by the phenomenally bad weather which 
had an adverse effect on the number of day trippers to the town. 

Additions have been made to the exhibits of Burns Relics in 
the Museum at the Observatory and consideration is being given 
to a suggestion that exhibits presently housed in other places might 
all be housed in the Museum. 

Page 935



"BURNS CHRONICLE." 

Only a few months were granted to the Honorary Editor to 
collect material for the 1950 Burns Chronicle. Despite this, it 
was an interesting number both in its contributors and in the 
quality of their work. The bulk of it was about Robert Burns's 
work and life. Two essays were included dealing from two 
different angles with the 20th century attempt to create 20th 
century poetry in the language used by Robert Burns. 

In this one number it was possible to restore to the Scottish 
anthology half a dozen interesting and important poems that 
have been forgotten for a long time, two of them probably by 
Burns. 

The 1951 number was advertised as the first of a new series 
to be called Unicorn. After discussion this was changed to Scots 
Chronicle. The word "Chronicle" keeps continuity with the 
Burns Chronicle. The name of the Burns Federation will be 
preserved on the title page, ensuring that the tradition of the 
Burns Chronicle will be preserved. The additional space for 
editorial matter will be used mainly to "encourage the develop
ment of Scottish literature, art and music," as stated in the 
Constitution 2 (£). 

Two factors necessary for success are sufficient advertisements 
and the active backing of the individual Clubs of the Federation. 
Sir Patrick Dollan's work in obtaining the first of these is very 
much appreciated. It is hoped that the Clubs will try to increase 
sales both to their members and outside. This can be done. 

Clubs who purchased 50 Chronicles and over:-
Mauchline 203 copies 
Calcutta - 153 ,, 
Dumfries 139 ,, 
Border Cities (Ontario) - 123 ,, 
Belfast 83 ,, 
Scottish (Glasgow) - 67 ,, 
Detroit 63 ,, 
Kilmarnock 63 ,, 
Burns Club of London - 53 ,, 
Sheffield - 53 ,, 
Sandyford 53 ,, 

Total of copies sold, 3433, an increase of 84 on last year. 
WM. MoNTGOMERIE, Hon. Editor. 

Page 936



SCHOOL COMPETITIONS. 

In submitting this annual report it is most satisfactory to note 
that not only has the number of competitors increased this year 
by about 500, chiefly in the Qualifying, Junior Secondary and 
Continuation Classes, but also the number of schools taking part 
has risen from 357 to 378. This has meant a consequent increase 
in the number of Burns F.s:deration Certificates awarded. Many 
of the written examination papers were sent in and the quality 
of the work in evidence there shows that a real advance has been 
made in the study of Scottish Literature. Not only do the pupils 
seem to enjoy the study but the teachers themselves are devoting 
a considerable amount of interest in the work. 

The number of Burns Clubs who report as having carried out 
competitions apart from the Burns Federation scheme has dropped 
but it must be assumed that many clubs have omitted to forward 
returns of their competitions. Many letters have been received 
asking for advice as to how Burns Competitions should be run 
and these have all been replied to. A new Certificate has been 
prepared and is to be awarded for singing only. 

Directors of Education, teachers and all those who organise 
these annual competitions are thanked for the energy they display 
in promoting the study of Scottish Literature. Thanks are also 
due to Mr. J. Douglas Cairns, Ayr, and to Dr. John W. Oliver 
for the assistance given in framing the questions set for 
examination. 

Competitions held by Burns Clubs : 

No. of No. of 
CLUB Schools Competitors 

Auld Hoose ........................ . 2 236 
Ayr .................................. . 12 2,300 
Coylton ............................. . 
Cumbrae ............................ .. 

1 40 
1 50 

Dumbarton ......................... . 4 600 
Kilbirnie ............................ . 4 145 
Kilmarnock ........................ . 11 1,986 
Lanarkshire B.C.A ............... . l 12 
Mauchline ......................... .. 1 24 
Newbattle and District ......... . 2 320 
N ewarthill .......................... . 1 40 
Primrose ............................ . 1 80 
Renfrewshire B.C.A ............. . 15 817 
Rutherglen ......................... . 6 600 
Sinclairtown ....................... . 2 480 
Southern Scottish Counties 

B.C.A ............................. . 20 835 
84 8,565 

Cups Certi
Book and/or flcati>s 

Prizes Medals awarded 
20 
47 
10 

13 
20 
32 

24 
12 
40 
30 
20 
42 

4 

64 
378 

2 

2 
4 

6 

14 

20 
48 
10 
10 
24 
6 

75 
12 

8 
12 
12 
4 

24 
42 
26 

34 
.367 

Page 937



SCHOOL COMPETITIONS 

SCOTTISH LITERATURE COMPETITION-1950 

I 

Education 
Committee 

----

Aberdeen ... . .. 
Dundee ... . .. 
Edinburgh ... 
Glasgow ... ... 
Aberdeenshire ... 
Angus ... ... 
Argyllshire ... 
Ayrshire ... ... 
Banffshire ... ... 
Clackmannanshire 
Dunbartonshire ... 
East Lothian ... 
Fife ... ... ... 
Kincardineshire ... 
Kirkcudbrightshire 
Lanarkshire ... 
Midlothian ... 
Orkney ... ... 
Peeblesshire ... 
Perth and Kinross 
Renfrewshire ... 
Roxburgh shire ... 
Stirlingshire ... 
West Lothian ... 
Wigtownshire ... 

Total ... 

I 

I No. of Pupils 

= No. of .. t' t' ~ Schools >. = .. :& .. ~ .. ~ =., 
ol 

~ C> = oc:i .s :ll 3 a ·~o ·a 8 §.; =.., ·i:: = "" "" 0 ll. ::/ ~'l2 Lifl 00 E-< 

12 2,324 397 376 - - 3,097 
14 1,548 318 189 54 34. 2,143 
65 10,594 3,748 3,187 259 - 17,788 
41 7,794 1,027 2,183 510 398 11,912 
19 698 318 628 .- - 1,644 
14 935 289 119 - - 1,343 
10 120 46 174 - - 340 
33 2,984 1,158 1,873 27 - 6,042 
15 623 333· 513 223 - 1,692 
9 408 249 565 - - 1,222 

12 1,049 264 324 - - 1,6:n 
7 898 275 1,026 100 - 2,299 

29 4,080 794 2,666 6!1 - .7,608 
6 238 121 293 156 - 808 
6 244 60 - - - 304 

24 1,4!!7 668 1,774 32 - 3,961 
7 460 169 80 - - 709 
2 11 6 5 3 - 25 
5 47 115 112 25 - 299 

13 593 144 142 - - 879 
8 558 220 248 - - 1,026 
6 660 197 76 10 - 943 

16 2,274 480 1,221 296 - 4,271 
l 350 99 - - - 449 
4 279 75 57 - - 411 

--- --- ------------
378 41,256 11,570 17,831 1,763 432 72,852 

FRED. J. BELFORD, 

Hon. Secretary School Competitions. 

37 

I 

No. of 
Certificates 
awarded 

I 

105 
83 

532 
457 
105 

73 
42 

231 
107 
48 
62 
81 

285 
29 
24 

157 
25 
10 
19 
57 
45 
47 

171 
17 
20 

2,382 

Page 938



FINANCIAL STATEMENT for year ended 31st July, 1950 
INCOIVIB 

To Balance at 3lst July, 1949-
0urrent Account, . . . .. . 
Cash Account, .. . 
Deposit Account, .. . 

,, Annual Subscriptions, ... 
,, Subscriptions pa.id in advance, 
,, Arrears, ... 
,, Affiliation Fees, 

,, Sale of Burns Chronicle, 
,, Sale of Pocket Diplomas, ... 
,, Sale of Badges and Brooches, 
,, Sale of Declaration of Arbroath, 
,, Conference Receipts, ... 
,, Income Tax Refunded-1949·50, 
,, Miscellaneous Receipts, 

,, General Appeal Funds-
Scottish National Dictionary, 
Jean Armour Burns Houses, ... 
National Burns Memorial and 

Cottage Homes, .. 
Mary Campbell Home, Dunoon, 
Scottish Literature Fund

Donations from Clubs, 
Central Fund-Donations from 

Clubs, 

,, Transferred from Scottish Literature 
Fund for purchase of Declaration 
of Arbroath, .. . . .. .. . 

,, Donations-Le1ilen Wood Fund, ... 
School Children's Competition, 

,, Interest on Deposit Account, 

£93 15 6 
0 13 4 

497 1 0 

£281 8 0 
14 14 0 
43 l 0 
34 13 0 

£850 5 4 
15 19 0 
57 2 6 
69 6 0 

195 14 9 
12 11 6 
3 4 10 

£11 13 6 
56 19 3 

36 8 2 
118 4 9 

21 12 4 

12 6 0 

£51 4 8 
10 10 0 

£591 9 10 

• 
373 16 0 

1,204 3 11 

257 7 0 

297 5 7 

61 14 8 
7 9 0 

BXPBNDITURE 
By Postages, .. . .. . 
,, Printing and Stationery, 
,, Bank Charges, ... 
,, Expenses of Meetings, 
,, Allowance to Officials, 
,, Insurance and lneome Tax, 
,, Travelling Expenses, .. . 
,, Conference Expenses, .. . 
,, School Children's Competition, .. . 
,, Memorials-Leglen Wood, ... .. . 

To Leglen Wood Fund, 
Grants Braes, ... 

, , Burns Ohronicle-
W m. Hodge & Co., Ltd.-Print-

£6 0 0 
51 4 8 
10 0 0 

ing, wrapping, and postages, . . . £585 9 2 
Editor's allowance, .. . .. . 50 0 0 
Contributions and Sundry Purchases, 66 6 11 

,, Purchases of Badges and Brooches, 
,, Donations - Royal Caledonian 

School, Bushey, .. . .. . 
Scottish Co~cil for Socia.I Service, ... 

5 5 0 
2 2 0 

,, Declaration of Arbroath; purchase for Schools, 
,, Miscellaneous Expenses, .. . . .. .. . .. . 
,, General Appeal Funds-

Scottish National Dictionary, ... £11 13 6 
Jean Armour Burns Houses, ... 56 19 3 
Nat. Burns Mem. and Cottage Homes, 36 8 2 
Mary Campbell Home, ... ... 118 4 9 

,, Scottish Literature Fund- -----
Donations from Clubs, .. . .. . £21 12 4 
Half Affiliation Fees, .. . ... 17 6 6 
From Sale of Declaration of Arbroath 69 6 0 

,, Central Fund, 
,, Cash in Hand, ... 
,, Cash in Current Account, 
,. Cash in Deposit Account, 

£5 12 3 
43 2 11 

504 10 0 

£92 12 7 
60 14 1 
4 0 3 

15 8 0 
153 15 0 

17 9 0 
26 0 1 

256 19 5 
127 0 0 

67 4 8 

701 16 1 
58 11 6 

7 7 0 
301 11 10 

5 11 10 

223 5 8 

108 4 10 
12 9 0 

553 5 2 
.ao '7n9 a. n 

P
age 939



SCOTTISH LITBRATUltlil FUND 

To Balance in Glasgow Savings Bank (Kilmarnock 
Branch), ... ... ... ... ... . .. £507 17 1 

17 6 6 
21 12 4 
69 6 0 
12 8 10 

By Transferred to General Fund for purchase of 
Declaration of Arbroath, .. . . .. . . . £297 5 7 

,, Hall Affiliation Fees for 1949·50, 
,, Dona.tionl!I from Clubs, ... 

By Balance in Glasgow Savings Bank (Kilmarnock 
Branch), . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . 331 5 2 

,, Sa.le of Declaration of Arbroath, 
,, Interest to 30th November, 1949, ... 

£628 10 9 
---.....,. 

Cl!;NTRA.L FUND 

To Balance in Dumfries Savings Bank at 3lst July, 
1949, ... ... .. 

,, Donations from Clubs, 
,, Interest to 28th January, 1950, 

£353 13 5 
12 9 0 
10 8 5 

£376 10 10 
-------

By Bala.nee in Dumfries Savings Bank, 

----------

JOSEPH LAING WAUGH MEMORIAL FUND 

To Ba.lance in Dumfries Savings Bank at 3lst July, 
1949, ... ... ... ... ... ... ... £223 12 6 

By Ba.lance in Dumfries Savings Bank, 

,, Interest to 28th January, 1950, ... ... ... 6 14 0 

£230 6" 6 -----
PROPOSED MARY CAMPBELL MEMORIAL HOME. 

To Balance in Union Bank, 
,, Subscriptions Received, 
,, Interest to 14th April, 1950, 

£320 13 10 
118 4 9 

4 11 11 

£443 10 6 
------

By Balance in Union Bank, 

.JAMES MACINTYRE, Hon. Trtalflllrer. 

KILMARNOCK, lat Auguat, 1950.-Examined and found OOl"rect. WILLIAM A. GOLD 
GEORGR BROWN } .AuditO'l"B 

£628 10 9 

£376 10 10 

£376 10 10 

£230 6 6 

£230 6 6 

£443 10 6 

£443 10 6 

P
age 940



BURNS CLUB NOTES 

0 : KILMARNOCK BURNS CLUB 

The membership is being retained and enthusiasm for the 
usual social meetings is high. The Schools Competition con
tinues to flourish under direction of Mr. George Brown, M.A., 
J.P. A record collection of £33 was forwarded last year for the 
Old F9lks in the Jean Armour Burns Homes, Mauchline. Mr. 
Tom M. Lyon, editor of the Kilmarnock "Standard," and a 
prominent Burnsian, is being much missed during his serious 
illness, but hope is strong that he will be with us once more 
before long. 

3: TAM o' SHANTER 

w. Y. HAGGO, 

Secretary. 

The annual 'bus outing to Girvan took place on Saturday, 25th 
June, 1949. The route was via Largs, Ayr and Girvan. The return 
journey was via Maybole and Kilmarnock to Glasgow. 

The St. Andrew's dinner in Reid's Restaurant, Gordon Street, 
Glasgow, was a great success. 

At the anniversary dinner in the Beresford Hotel, under the 
chairmanship of Mr. Norman M'Gilvray, the Immortal Memory 
was proposed by Mr. Alexander Mackay, M.A. The appeal by 
Bailie Armstrong for the Jean Armour Houses brought in £33 
(a record). 

Life Membership Cards were presented to Mr. Alexander 
Mackay, M.A., the Rev. William D. Drysdale, B.D., and Mr. 
James Crowe. 

The theatre night and the whist drives and lectures were 
greatly enjoyed. Mr. James Brown, past-president of the Scottish 
Burns Club, gave us a fine lecture. 

We are indebted to the National Burns Club, 21 India Street, 
for the use of a room. 

The competition in Scottish Literature was held in Dalmarnock 
Public School under the auspices of the club; 30 prizes were 
provided. 

W. McFARLANE, 
Hon. Secretary. 

Page 941



BURNS CLUB NOTES 

IO : DUMBARTON BURNS CLUB 

Under the able guidance of our president, Mr. Andrew 
Watson, jun., the club has had a very successful season. 

A "Tattie an' Herrin' " Supper took place in the Co-operative 
Restaurant, when there was an hour's entertainment by Bill Tait, 
whose topical cartoons-a popular feature in the "Glasgow 
Evening Citizen"-never fail to raise a laugh. 

A very successful St. Andrew's Night Supper was held in the 
Loch Lomond Hotel, Balloch, when Sir Edward MacColl gave 
an interesting address on "The Future of Scotland." A pro
gramme of music was supplied by members of the Glasgow 
Orpheus Club. 

The anniversary dinner took place in the City Bakeries 
Restaurant, when there was a record attendance of members 
present. The president, Mr. Watson, proposed "The Immortal 
Memory" and treated us to a delightful discourse on the life and 
works of the Bard. 

JoHN LITHGow, 

Secretary. 

20; AIRDRIE BURNS CLUB 

Mr. John Purdie, president for the year, has been a very busy 
man. In the autumn of 1949 the club produced "The Singing 
Furrow" (written by the secretary). For a week the play filled 
the local Town Hall. 

In November, 1949, at the St. Andrew's Night Dinner, the 
toast of "Scotland" was proposed by the Rev. James M'Connell. 

The anniversary dinner on 26th January was a great success. 
The president, Mr. John Purdie, proposed "The Immortal 
Memory." 

The school competitions were again very successful and a 
remarkable feature of the competition was that all three prizes 
for primary schools were won by pupils of Albert Primary School. 

G. R. HANSON, 

Secretary. 

• 21 : GREENOCK BURNS CLUB 

The club has again experienced a successful season under 
the able chairmanship of Mr. A. F. Macmillan, and we are 
greatly indebted to the various members and friends responsible 

Page 942



·.P BURNS FEDER'A TION YEAR BOOK 

for maintaining the excellence of our social meetings throughout 
the session. 'Bus outings were arranged to the Burns country, 
Dumfri~s and the Borders, and it is hoped to arrange similar 
outings throughout each session. 

We celebrated our 148th Annual Celebration on the 25th 
January, 1950, when we heard a most sincere tribute paid to 
the immortal memory of Robert Burns by the Rev. C. Arthur 
Murray, B.D. 

A cordial invitation is extended to any Burnsian if in Greenock 
at any time to visit our club room and examine our relics and 
treasures. 

GEORGE c. F1LSHIE, 

Hon. Secretary. 

22: EDINBURGH BURN~ CLUB 

Monthly meetings have been arranged during the winter 
months, when speakers will give addresses on some aspect of 
Burns or kindred subjects. At these meetings tea is served, and 
a musical programme of Burns songs, &c., given. The Annual 
Commemoration Dinner has been arranged for 25th January. 

GEORGE HARRIS, 

Secretary. 

36: ROSEBERY BURNS CLUB (GLASGOW) 

The Annual Outing in May to Arbroath was well attended 
and enjoyed by members and friends. 

At the Anniversary Dinner a sum of £21 IS. 6d. was collected 
for the "Jean Armour Burns Houses," and the annual visit to 
the old ladies in these Houses is looked forward to very much 
by our members. 

A most interesting and instructive syllabus has been arranged 
for this season. 

The Essay Competition is greatly appreciated by the schools 
participating. The sum of £4 is given to each of the three 
schools to purchase handsome leather-bound volumes of Burns 
poems to be given as prizes. 

The pre1ident this year is Mr. Arthur Downie. 

A. w. ALEXANDER, 

Hon. Secretary. 

Page 943



BURNS CLUB NOTES 43 

40 ; ABERDEEN BURNS CLUB 

A very satisfactory year. A pleasing feature of the monthly 
meetings during this session has been the high standard of 
speakers and artistes. Credit for this must be given to our very 
energetic and able chairman, Mr. Charles C. Easton, and our 
entertainments convener, Miss M. Davie, loyally supported by an 
enthusiastic Management Committee. 

Bailie H. W. Auchinachie, Banchory, proposed "The Immortal 
Memory" at a very successful annual supper, and George 
Rowntree-Harvey, M.A., gave an inspiring address on St. 
Andrew's Night. Three enjoyable drives were held during the 
summer. A. NoBLE, 

Hon. Secretary. 

62.; CUPAR BURNS CLUB 
As usual the club donated book prizes for the Burns Essay 

Competition organised by the Bell-Baxter School, Cupar. Large 
entries were forthcoming in both junior and senior sections. Many 
papers were of distinct merit. The competition was under the 
direct supervision of Mr. W. L. Lindsay, M.A., head of the 
English department in the school. 

J. G. RUTHERFORD, 
Secretary. 

68: SANDYFORD (GLASGOW) BURNS CLUB 

Session 1949-50, under the presidency of Mr. Alexander Beith, 
was highly successful-socially and financially. At the anniver
sary dinner held on 20th January, 1950, the principal speakers 
were Mr. W. Macdonald Daly, Mr. Colin Neil MacKay and Miss 
Lilian M'Donald, M.A.(Hons.). The sum of £81 10s. was uplifted 
for benevolent purposes. Other functions were a Hallowe'en 
dinner dance and a summer outing. 

Sheriff W. Boyd Berry, president for the current session, will 
preside at the annual celebration on 19th January, 1951, when 
the speakers will be : -

"The Immortal Memory"-Sir George R. Campbell, K.C.I.E. 
"The Lasses"-The Rt. Hon. The Earl of Eglinton and 

Winton, D.L., T.D. 
"The Reply"-Lady MacColl. 

S. W. LovE, 
Hon. Secretary. 

Page 944



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

124: NINETY BURNS CLUB 

The Ninety Burns Club celebrated its Diamond Jubilee in the 
Royal British Hotel, Princes Street, Edinburgh, on the 24th 
January, 1950. 

The meeting was under the chairmanship of Mr. W. J. King 
Gillies, president of the club. On this occasion Mr. Charles 
Hornal, county clerk of Aberdeenshire, proposed "The Immortal 
Memory." 

The club was also honoured by the presence of Sir Andrew 
H. A. Murray and Miss Rodney Murray, the Lord and Lady 
Provost of Edinburgh, and Sir James Fraser Cunninghame, 
president of the club in 1899 and 1900. 

During the evening the Lord Provost and Charles Hornal 
were presented with parchment scrolls of hon. membership of 
the dub. 

R. A. B. McLAREN, 

Hon. Secretary. 

153: THE SCO'ITISH BURNS CLUB (GLASGOW) 

Th' Cronies o' th' Scottish-sax hunner chiels an' lasses-
taigled John B. Bodie, J.P., as their Preses anither towmond. Wi' 
that sonsie chiel at their heid they're haein' a wheen gran' 
forgaithers. 

"Wi' joy unfeign'd brothers and sisters meet 
And each for others weelfare kindly speirs." 

Colonel W atty Elliot, parliamentar o' Kelvin grove, peyed 
homage o' th' "Immortal Memory," an' others wha spak were 
Dr. T. J. Honeyman, Eric de Banzie, Miss Williamina J. 
Mackintosh, an' Bailie Major E. J. Donaldson. 

On ither nichts forbye han'lin' th' Deil's beuks, th' Cronies 
harkened tae Dr. James D. Boyd on "Auld Glesca," Andrew 
Hannah on "The Burrell Collection," Rev. Robert Paterson on 
"Scots Humour," and aince Preses James Brown on "W. D. 
Cocker." There was aye a big turn-oot. 

J. KEVAN McDowALL, 

Secretar. 

158: DARLINGTON BURNS CLUB 

The Drama Section have been producing Scots plays, and in 
February they undertake their best venture "The Lady from 

Page 945



BURNS CLUB NOTES 45 

Edinburgh." The Dancing Classes teaching Highland Dancing 
have been very popular, a number of teachers attending who are 
now teaching the pupils at the schools. 

Their president this year, Dr. W. W. Forsyth (a native of 
Airdrie), is one of the most popular doctors in the town. A keen 
dramatist, a lecturer on the Burns Country with his lantern slides, 
he has been invited to a second year as president of the North
Eastern Area Burns Association. 

IAN HAMILTON, 

Secretary. 

167: THE BIRMINGHAM AND MIDLAND SCOTTISH SOCIETY 

The season 1949-50 proved highly successful. The various 
functions arranged by the Council were well supported, and 
provided considerable enjoyment to those who found it possible 
to attend. The membership of the Society continues to grow. 
I have to record with most sincere regret the death, during the 
year, of Mr. L. M'Gregor, a Council member of the Society. 

The Society contributed donations this year to the Burns 
Federation-Mary Campbell Homes for aged people at Dunoon, 
Caledonian Schools at Bushey, and to several other worthy local 
objects. 

On the .29th December, 1949, large numbers of children and 
their parents.--about 500 in all-gathered in the Grand Hotel for 
the Children's Christmas Party. 

The Hogmanay dance was well supported, over 6oo members 
and guests l:eing present. 

The Society paid tribute to our National Bard at the Burns 
Dinner and !Dance held on 25th January, 1950. Mr. W. Ralph 
Purnell, O.B.E., proposed "The Immortal Memory" in his own 
inimical fashion. His poetic rendering of the toast of the 
evening was a highlight of this event. 

The Caledonian Ball this season was preceded by a dinner 
in the Grand Hotel. One large happy and friendly family of 
over 400 members and guests participated. The Ball was an out
standing event in the Society's affairs. Dancing continued till 
l a.m., and it was particularly pleasing to note the large numbers 
who joined in traditional Scottish dances-like the "Eightsome 
Reel," the "Gay Gordons," and the "Dashing White Sergeant" 
to the music of the pipes. The Caledonian Ball by this standard 
augurs well for the future. It was a grand occasion. 

Page 946



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

This year the closing musical evening was brought forward, 
so that the Society might take advantage of a concert by the 
Kirkintilloch Junior Choir during its Easter tour. 

R. W. S. MAcKAY, 
Hon. Secretary. 

173: IRVINE BURNS CLUB 

On 25th January, 195I, under the presidency of Mr. A. M. 
Skinner, who will propose the "Immortal Memory," the club 
will hold its 125th annual celebration. Recent acquisitions to the 
club's relics of the poet have been received from Australia from 
a descendant of William Templeton. 

Gentlemen who accepted honorary membership in 1950 were 
Lord Boyd Orr of Brechin and Mr. A. B. Macdonald of South 
Africa. 

W. PHILLIPS, 
Secretary. 

181: PRIMROSE BURNS CLUB 

Jubilee Dinner, 25th January, 1950. President, William C. 
Simpson. "Immortal Memory" proposed by E. Rossl)'.n Mitchell, 
LL.D. "The Club" proposed by Rt. Hon. Lord Provost of 
Glasgow, Victor D. Warren, M.B.E., T.D. 

GEORGE CALDERWOOD, 

Secretary. 

197: WINNIPEG BURNS CLUB 

At our Anniversary Dinner at Fort Garry Hotel, 1950, Mr. 
Alistair Stewart, a Canadian M.P ., proposed "The Immortal 
Memory." Toast to "Oor Guid Neebor" was answered by Walter 
H. M'Kinney, American Consul General. George E. Cole 
responded to the toast to "The Lasses." Mr. A. L. Dysart, local 
barrister, voiced the appreciation. 

Wishing the federation further success. 

R. A. SLOAN, 

Hon. Secretary. 

Page 947



BURNS CLUB NOTES 47 

199 : NEWBATTI.E AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB 

The Old Folks' Dinner was a great event, 172 being catered 
for. The outstanding function of the season was the Anniversary 
Supper, at which we had a very large attendance. The 
Old Folks' Summer Drive was well patronised, 162 being there. 
The Children's Essay Competition was a great i.uccess; the children 
were all keen and the marks were high, four cups, four certificates 
and 12 lovely book prizes being presented by the Rev. Mr. 
Bradon's wife. Mr. Thomas Weighand, our president, was in 
the chair. Our membership is not very good and we cannot boast 
of a successful season, as it has been poor. 

JoHN CAMPBELL, 
Secretary. 

207: CAMBUSLANG AND DISTRICT WINGATE BURNS CLUB 

Meets once every month, October to March, in M'lntosh's 
Hall, Cambuslang. 

(Mrs.) lsABELLA JoHNsTONE, 
Secretary. 

218 ; BANNOCKBURN EMPIRE BURNS CLUB 

With the start of the new season we have had a gratifying 
number of new members joining the club. 

It is with deep regret we have to announce the passing away 
of one of our founder members, Mr. Thomas Whitelaw, Station 
Road, Bannockburn. 

JAMES CHAPMAN, 
Secretary. 

226 : DUMFRIES BURNS CLUB 

At the Anniversary Dinner on 25th January, 1950, Mr. J. A. 
Gibson, president of the club, presided over 105 members and 
their friends. "The Immortal Memory" was proposed by Mr. 
Tom M. Lyon, editor of the "Kilmarnock Standard," in an elo
quent and sincere address which deeply impressed. St. Andrew's 
Day was also celebrated with a dinner and Mr. J. Kevan M'Dowall 
was the guest of honour. 

Following usual custom, Provost, councillors and members of 
the local clubs attended the Mausoleum on 25th January, and 

Page 948



BURNS FEDER:ATION YEAR BOOK 

placed wreaths on the Poet's Tomb. This ceremony was preceded 
by a brief service in St. Michael's Church. 

Dr. John W. Oliver, M.A., D.Litt., of Edinburgh, will propose 
"The Immortal Memory" in January, 1951. 

H. G. McKERRow, 
Secretary. 

237: UDDINGSTON MASONIC BURNS CLUB 

The club held its first Annual Supper since 1939. Owing to 
catering difficulties it was decided early in the war to curtail all 
functions where special catering was required. The position · 
becoming much easier, it was decided to hold an Annual Supper 
in 1950. This was attended by about 50 members and friends and 
was most enjoyable. It is intended to proceed on the same lines 
in 1951. 

ARTHUR DoWNIE, 
Secretary. 

263 : GLASGOW MASONIC BURNS CLUB 

The club enjoyed a successful season, 26 new members being 
enrolled, and the high standard of the speakers was fully main
tained. The 31st Annual Dinner was held in the Club Rooms 
on 2Jth January, Bro. Thomas Beet, P.P., proposing "The 
Immortal Memory" in his own inimitable way. A full and com
prehensive syllabus has been arranged for the current session. 

w ILLIAM E. THOMAS, 

Secretary. 

282: THE BURNS BOWLING ASSOCIATION 

The 46th Annual Competition for the M'Lennan Cup took 
place on Glasgow bowling greens on Tuesday, 1st August, 1950, 
when 80 rinks competed for the most beautiful sporting trophy 
in the world. It was won by Queen's Park Clarinda Burns Circle 
with 38 shots up. In 1951 the competition· will be held on Glasgow 
greens on Tuesday, 7th August, at 2.30 p.m. The competition is 
open to all Burns Clubs and a strong appeal is made to every club 
in the federation to play for this cup. The association hope to have 

Page 949



BURNS CLUB NOTES 49 

matches next year with the federation districts and resolution is 
on agenda for A.G.M. in February, 1951, whereby each federation 
district will be represented on the Executive Committee of the 
association. All surplus funds of the association go to Jean Armour 
Burns Houses. 

JoHN B. BoD1E, 

Secretary. 

310 : MAUCHLINE BURNS CLUB 

The club under its new president, Mr. Cairns, is in good spirit 
and enjoying some fine monthly meetings, addresses being enjoyed 
from such capable speakers as Mr. Cairns, M.A., Ayr, Ian 
:Barrie, M.A., L.R.A.M., Ayr, C.R. M. Brookes, M.A., Glasgow, 
A. D. MacKinven, M.A., F.S.A.(Scot.), and James Veitch, Peebles. 

The Annual Celebration will be held again in its old home, 
Poosie Nansie's, and "The Immortal Memory" will be given by 
a gentleman by the name of "Nicol Jarvie." 

DAVID D. SMITH, 

Secretary. 

324: STOCKTON (N.s.w.) BURNS CLUB 

The club suffered a heavy blow by the passing of Willie 
Hamilton, a founder of the club, who held the office of secretary 
-and latterly treasurer-for 27 years. Willie was a most popular 
and enthusiastic member and office-bearer. He was also an hon. 
vice-president of the federation. 

ALEX. B. GARDEN, 

Scottish Representative. 

345 : DENBEATH AND DISTRICT 

The club mourns the loss of one of its staunchest members in 
the death of Mr. John Gardiner. John was a well kent singer and 
many a local organisation will share the club's loss. We salute his 
memory. 

D 

THOMAS BALLANTYNE, 

Secretary. 

Page 950



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

355 : CALCUTI'A BURNS CLUB 

For many years the annual function of our club consisted of 
a dinner on the 25th of January at which no laqies were present. 
Instead of these all-male dinners we now have mixed gatherings, 
to which wives and other lady guests are invited. Burns songs 
are sung, we dance the old Scottish Country dances, and toast 
"The Immortal Memory." 

This year, in the beautiful home of our president, M. H. C. 
Bannerman, 140 members and friends did honour to the memory 
of Robert Burns. Standing beside a bust of the Poet, Mr. Banner
man and his charming wife had a cheery greeting and a friendly 
handshake for everybody as they arrived, and very soon the 
spacious veranda and lounges were gay with chatter and good 
spirits, so typical of these unique gatherings. The company were 
invited to dance to a specially augmented orchestra. At intervals, 
an exhibition of two Scottish Country dances was given, the 
Reel of The 5Ist Division and The Glasgow Highlanders, per
formed by the Scottish Country Dance Club here. Mr. Bannerman 
proposed "The Immortal Memory." The president again offered 
the use of his house for our next gathering. 

380: FALKIRK CROSS KEYS BURNS CLUB 

The club has now removed from the Cross Keys Inn, Falkirk, 
to the Royal Hotel, High Street, Falkirk, where all future meetings 
will be held. 

THOMAS WILSON, 

Secretary. 

393 : ANNAN LADIES' BURNS CLUB 

Under the auspices of Annan Ladies' Burns Club a dance was 
held in the Victoria Hall, on 9th October, in aid of the Knock
shinnoch Colliery Disaster Fund. As a result the treasurer sent a 
cheque for £38 to the fund. 

Mrs. JAMES, 

Secretary. 

Page 951



BURNS CLUB NOTES SI 

409: STENHOUSEMUIR AND DISTRICT PLOUGH BURNS CLUB 

Social functions-Anniversary Celebrations, 26th January; 
General Meeting, March; Annual Outing, August; Hallowe'en 
Social, October. 

JoHN McMAHoN, 
Secretary. 

:436; WALNEY JOLLY BEGGARS LADIES' BURNS CLUB 

We are holding a 21st Birthday Dinner in February, 1951, 
Barrow St. Andrew's Band arranging the programme. 

Mrs. M. LouRXE, 
Secretary. 

444: SWANSEA AND WEST WALES CALEDONIAN SOCIETY 

Major functions-Dinner Dance, St. Andrew's Night. New 
Year's Ball-3ut December. Supper and Dance-25th January. 
Monthly socials during the winter season, at which Scottish dances 
are the main features. Annual meeting will be held in April or 
May, followed by a social evening. 

ALEC. KINLOCH MILLER, 
Secretary. 

446 : HEREFORDSHIRE BURNS Cl.UB 

After a period of inactivity during the years 1939 to 1949, the 
dub was revived in 1949 and the Anniversary Dinner took place 
in January, 1950. The membership of 64 is according to the pre
war list, less known resignations. There are 39 known members, 
the remainder being doubtful pending further circularisation. The 
annual meeting and dinner is now being arranged for 25th 

January, 1951. 
J. P. INGLIS, 

Secretary. 

458: STONEHAVEN (FATHERLAND) BURNS CLUB 

1950.-January 25: Burns Supper; 2nd March: Whist and 
Dance; 5th April: Annual General Meeting and Social Evening, 
.children entertaining; 4th June: 'Bus Outing; 5th July: 'Bus 

Page 952



52 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

Outing; 27th September: Whist and Dance; 25th October: 
Hallowe'en Party; 22nd November: Whist and Dance, also short 
address by the Rev. J. C. Campbell on "Saint Andrew"; 2Jth 
December: Christmas Party. The membership of the club is now 
over 200. 

Mrs. A. EDMONSTON, 
Secretary. 

463 : KIRKPORD BONNIE JEAN 

As this is our first year of membership I can only report our 
club shows good tendencies, and we intend to keep it up. Next 
year we hope to have more to show and report. 

GEORGE Hoon, 
Secretary. 

470: ST. GILES' BURNS CLUB 

On 3oth November, 1949 {St. Andrew's Night) the club held 
a Social Evening which took the form of a Whist Drive and Dance 
which was very well attended by members and their lady friends. 

On 20th January, 1950, the club celebrated their Annual Anni
versary Dinner of Robert Burns. The function was held in 
Murray's Tea Rooll1&, Elgin. A large company heard an inspiring 
address by the Rev. Stanley Forsyth, Urquhart, the guest of the 
evening. 

GEORGE BRODIE, 
Secretary. 

476 : BORDER CITIES BURNS CLUB 

The Border Cities Burns Club meets on the third Friday of 
each month at 8 p.m. in Hotel Norton Palmer Windsor. Among 
our 130 members will be found an Englishman, an Irishman, a 
Dane, an American, and four Canadians. The remainder of our 
members represent almost every district in Scotland-the Hebrides, 
Inverness, Aberdeen, Dundee, Arbroath and Edinburgh-though 
the greater number are natives of cities, towns and villages in 
Lanarkshire, Renfrewshire and Ayrshire. We extend a brotherly 
greeting to all members of the Burns Federation. 

ADAM PLENDERLEITH, 
Secretary. 

Page 953



BURNS CLUB NOTES 53 

555: THE HARROGATE ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY 
The St. Andrew's Society, with its ever-increasing member

ship, has a very full winter programme, including Scottish 
Country dancing weekly each Thursday evening, terminating early 
in April. A strong ladies' section also meets weekly on Monday 
evenings. Our major events, the St. Andrew's Dinner and Dance, 
the Ne'erday Ball, and our Burns Supper are always well 
attended. The club rooms of the society are at No. I Victoria 
A venue, Harrogate. We should be pleased to welcome any visitors 
to the town. D. BoGLE, 

Secretary. 

559: COVENTRY AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY 
· The Society opened its activities with a "Fraternal Nicht" 

on 22nd September, 1949, which gave us a good send off for 
the season. 

This was followed by Hallowe'en on :28th October, at which 
the usual customs were observed. The St. Andrew's Dinner 
and Dance on 25th November proved a huge success. A new 
departure was made in the form of a St. Andrew's Service, 
which was held in St. Columba's Presbyterian Church on Sunday, 
2j'th November. There was a large turn-out, and the sermon 
was preached by the Rev. D. M. Balsillie, M.A., a native of 
Cumnock. 

-The New Year commenced with a Children's Party on 7th 
January, followed by the Annual Burns Dinner on Saturday, 
28th January, when the principal speaker was Mr. J. K. 
Mackintosh of Birmingham. 

Another "Fraternal Nicht" was held on 24th February. 
In conjunction with the West Midland Caledonian Societies, 

a Highland Ball was held at Stratford-on-Avon. 
Another "Fraternal Nicht" on 31st March brought a busv 

session to a close. 
In addition to the usual activities, a Scottish Dancing class is 

held every week throughout the winter. 
ROBERT s. MILLER, 

Secretary. 

562: CASTLE-DOUGLAS BURNS CLUB 
Successful Solo Singing Competition held for school children; 

prizes donated by club. FARQUHAR J. GRAHAM, 

Secretary. 

Page 954



54 BURNS FEDER:A TION YEAR BOOK 

581: CUMBERNAULD BURNS CLUB 

At our annual general meeting Mr. Thomas Bryson, 35 Wigton 
Place, Cumbernauld, was elected the new president. We have 
had a very successful year. On 6th April, 200 of our old people 
enjoyed a supper and concert given by Jean Day and her party. 
Members' wives and friends travelled to Ohan on the first Sunday 
in June for our annual outing. 

DANIEL MILLAR, 

Secretary. 

582: SOLWAY BURNS CLUB 

During the past season the club suffered from the death of the 
president, Mr. Alex. Thomson. 

Thanks to the co-operation of Rector Houston, arrangements 
have now been made to present annually book prizes to pupils of 
Annan Academy, the prizes to be awarded for the best paper 
relating to Scottish literature and, or, the works of Robert Burns. 
The award is to be known as the "Thomson Memorial Prize." 

0. J. GIBBS, 

Secretary. 

5Bs : QUEEN'S PARK BOWLING AND TENNIS CLUB "CLARINDA
11 

BURNS CIRCLE 

The dub held its usual monthly meetings throughout the 
winter. Unfortunately owing to very inclement weather there was 
a poor attendance at some of the concerts. "The Immortal 
Memory"' was proposed by Bailie T. A. Kerr in a very able and 
interesting manner. 

A donation of £5 5s. was made to the Jean Armour Burns 
Houses and also £2 5s. for the children's competition at Langside 
school. 

Our Club this year had the unique experience of winning the 
McLennan Cup for the third time-1946, 1947, and 1950. 

WM. YouNG, 
Hon. Secretary. 

617: READING AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION 

The year's programme included a Social Evening to welcome 
new members, also Whist Drives, Dances and a Burns Night 
Dinner. We had the great honour to have "The Immortal 

Page 955



BURNS CLUB NOTES 55 

Memory" proposed by Mr. John McVie, then vice-president of 
the Burns Federation. Members of the society attended functions 
of the Harwell and Oxford Caledonian Associations, and we had 
the pleasure of return visits from their members. There is a great 
improvement in the performance of Scottish dances, a tribute to 
the local Scottish Dancing Society organised by St. Andrew's 
Presbyterian Church and to the smaller classes held in other parts 
of Berkshire. The society was represented at all the big functions 
in the South, and a real Highland Day was enjoyed by 40 of us 
at the Games at Harpenden on 17th June. 

Miss KENNETHINA MATHESON, 

Secretary. 

6J8: ALTRINCHAM AND SALE CALEDONIAN SOCIETY 

This society is going on very well indeed since its inception 
in 1945. Our monthly dances during the winter season arc excep
tionally well supported, with an average attendance of 320' to 350 
at each. Our annual Burns Supper usually has 120 to 130 
attending, but we have taken a larger room for the next supper 
and arc hoping for an attendance of 150. In between our larger 
monthly dances we have a programme of smaller social and 
intellectual functions such as dancing classes, concerts, debates, 
lectures and film shows which attract approximately 8o to 120. 

T. C. LoCHHEAD, 

Secretary. 

626 : MOFFAT AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB 

Since the formation of the club in 1945 the office-bearers feel 
that the success which has been attained has been largely due to 
the very eminent speakers which we have been able to procure 
during these years. We feel honoured that the president of the 
federation has found time to visit our club both this session and 
last year. Mr. McVie's visit to our opening meeting this session 
will no doubt be the means of creating that enthusiasm required 
to carry through another very successful year. 

GEORGE M. ScoTT, 

Secretary. 

Page 956



BURNS FEOERA TION YEAR BOOK 

630: COALSNAUGHTON BURNS CLUB 

24th September, 1949: Tullibody and Cambus Burns Club 
entertained. 4th November: Hallowe'en Party for members' 
wives and children. :z6th November: St. Andrew's Night 
Dinner; address by Provost Curran of Alva. 28th January, 1950: 
Anaiversary Dinner; Mr. John Sturgeon, Dumfries, proposed 
"The Immortal Memory," and was later presented with honorary 
membership. nth February: Club visit to Pantomime. On xoth 
March an "At Home" in aid of the School Fund realised £27 5s., 
while on 24th March a concert in aid of the same fund brought in 
£x4 3s. 4d., the total of £41 Ss. 4d. being handed to the head
master of Coalsnaughton School to be used for an outing for 
the pupils. 3oth April: Members' Drive to Arbroath. xoth June: 
Children's Drive to Perth. Monthly meetings first Sunday of 
every month from September to March. Fraternal greetings to 
all federated clubs. 

ALEX. C. CooK, 
Secretary. 

636: GISBORNE BURNS CLUB (N.z.) 

This club is the most easterly in the world. We have com
pleted a very successful year. The highlights for the year were 
the Dinner in January, Ladies' Night in June, and Hallowe'en. 

Our Anniversary Dinner on 28th January was an outstanding 
success. Our guest speaker was the Rt. Hon. Peter Fraser. 

Many thanks for greetings from the following clubs : Mauch
line, Glasgow and District Burns Association, Ninety Burns Club, 
Edinburgh, and Winnipeg, Canada. We heartily reciprocate the 
good wishes. 

New Zealand has four clubs-three in the North Island and 
one in the South Island-on the federation roll, with an approxi
mate membership of 1000. An effort should be made to bring the 
many Scottish Societies in New Zealand into the family circle of 
the Burns Federation. 

We note with pleasure that Mrs. Thomson is again the N.Z. 
delegate on Executive Committee. She is an old friend. We 
extend on behalf of the Gisborne Club best wishes to the Cambus
lang and district clubs. All good wishes to the president and 
Executive members. 

W. B. TuRBITT, 

President. 

Page 957



BURNS CLUB NOTES 57 

641 : ROSEWELL BURNS CLUB 

The club continues to function and the future looks bright. 
The past year's programme was admirably carried out by the 
officials under Richard Cochrane, jun., president, and Mr. Joseph 
Stafford, secretary. 

The annual Burns Supper held in Roslin was successful and 
the members present voted it a grand "nicht." For the wives 
and children of the members fortune was kind. The day for 
the Annual Drive dawned bright· and sunny, and Gullane on the 
East Coast was the ideal spot for such an outing. For the male 
members later in the year Hawick proved a good place for an 
outing. The children in both schools of the town were not 
forgotten, and this year there was strong competition for the 
book prizes presented by the Burns Club. 

The club sends its greetings to all Burns Clubs at home and 
overseas. 

THOMAS McLEAN, 

Secretary. 

642: RUTHERGLEN BURNS CLUB 

In this year's School Children's Competition six cups and two 
shields were awarded; 6oo children took part in the competition 
from six schools. The club members are visiting Dumfries on 
Monday, 26th March, 1951; Kirkoswald on 17th June; Arbroath 
on 2nd September. 

R. S. McMILLAN. 

648 : CARRONBRIDGE CRONIES BURNS CLUB 

The above club started a School Competition which was a 
great success. Prizes, shields and cups were presented by our 
dub and well-known Kilsyth business men. 

ARCHIE FISHER, 

Secretary. 

655: KENNOWAY JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB 

The Annual Excursion was highly successful. This year the 
venue was Kinloch Rannoch and the beauty of that part of the 
Highlands was much enjoyed. We had lunch at Coshieville 
Hotel and halts were made at Crieff, Pitlochry and Dunkeld. 

Page 958



BURNS FEDER:A TION YEAR BOOK 

At our Annual Supper the address of Dr. Sellars was one of 
the best we had ever heard. 

L. WADDELL, 
Secretary. 

663 : BOURNEMOUTH CALEDONIAN SOCIETY 

The Burns Oration was given by the President, Mr. J. M'Neil 
Campbell. 

R. PouLTNEY, 
Secretary. 

667: THORNTON (FIFE) TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB 

Annual Concert, with schools assisting in Essays, Singing 
and Recitations arranged in four groups, from five years to 
fifteen years, with eight Burns book prizes. Each entrant receives 
a small reward. Scone and <looking and whistling, with four 
adult singers giving a turn. Generally a packed hall. The 
balance handed to whatever may be considered the most deserving 
in the village. Lectures are held on the Works of Robert Burns 
and the Anniversary Supper is held each year. · 

JAMES COLVILLE, 
Secretary. 

683: STRATFORD-UPON-AVON AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY 

Hallowe'en Dance, St. Andrew's Night (Haggis Supper), 
Hogmanay Ball and Burns Dinner (Speaker, Mr. Ian Brow':l 
of "The Observer") celebrated. The First Annual West Midlands 
Highland Ball held at Stratford-upon-Avon (organisers, Stratford
upon-Avon Caledonian Society). Society won the Midland United 
Scottish Societies' Shield for Country Dancing at Leamington 
Music Festival. 

(Mrs.) E. M. SOMERVILLE, 
Secretary. 

6g1. INVERNESS BURNS CLUB 

The toast of "The Immortal Memory" at the Anniversary 
Dinner to be held on Thursday, 25th January, 1951, will be 
proposed by the Rt. Hon. Thomas Johnston. 

Page 959



BURNS CLUB NOTES 59 

Lectures are being given on Friday, 24th November, and 
Friday, 8th December, 1950, and also on Friday, 23rd March, 
1951. A concert will be held during February, 1951. 

Prizes to the value of £10 10s. have been gifted to the secondary 
schools in Inverness by the Club for competitions on Scottish 
literature. 

ALEX. CULLEN, 
Hon. Secretary. 

695: KILMARONOCK BURNS CLUB (DUNBARTONSHIRE) 

The Club year commenced with a Burns Supper on 27th 
January, when the Immortal Memory was proposed by Professor 
John Glaister. Delegates attended from Dalmuir, Dumbarton 
and Alexandria Clubs. A feature of the Annual Social and 
Business Meeting on 17th March was a Children's Competitio!1 
on the Songs and Poems of Burns. In July a successful outing 
took place to Burntisland, via Dunfermline. The syllabus for 
the ensuing session includes many interesting monthly features. 
Two recent outstanding events were a Hallowe'en Party for 
the children of the parish and a visit to Erskine Hospital, whe11 
a Concert was provided and gifts distributed by the Club. 

J. CoNACHER, 
Secretary. 

707: MALVERN SCOTS CLUB 

The season 1949-50 was one of the most successful this young 
Club has had. The fortnightly dances and- the St. Andrew·s 
and Caledonian Balls raised such enthusiasm amongst members 
that a demonstration team has been formed and trained to 
introduce new dances to the Club; while Scottish traditional 
ceremony and gaiety found full outlet at Hallowe'en, Christmas 
and Burns Night. Two new functions were added to the calendar 
during the year-a Hogmanay Dinner and Dance, and a St. 
Andrew's Service. 

There is no lack of initiative in the Club, for thirty members 
danced reels on an English common on Whit Monday; but we 
are sadly in need of a piper to help with the music. 

A. S. YouNG, 
Secretary. 

Page 960



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

/ 714: POLKEMMET "LEA-RIG" BURNS CLUB 

The above Club held its first Social Night in Viewfield 
House, Harthill. The guests who were invited included Mrs. 
Christine Maclntosh, President of Lanarkshire Association Burns 
Clubs, who gave a very interesting talk on Robert Burns. Also 
present was Mrs. Thomson, Hon. Vice-President of the Federation. 
After tea our members gave an hour of songs and recitation, and 
after the Harmony we had an hour of dancing. The Social 
closed with a vote of thanks to guests and also a vote of 
thanks to our chairman, Mr. D. Mcilwain .. 

Our members and their wives and guests felt that a good 
night had been had by all. 

GILMORE A. RANKIN, 

Secreta1'y. 

721 : THE PLYMOUTH BURNS CLUB 

At our Burns Anniversary Dinner we were fortunate in having 
Provost Thomas Bell of Dumfries as our principal guest and 
speaker. He and Mrs. Bell were given a civic reception by 
the Lord Mayor of Plymouth on arrival and we consider that 
Plymouth now has a link of friendship with Dumfries. 

Last February, in response to an invitation, several of our 
members visited Plymouth Arts Centre and one gave a talk 
on the life of Robert Burns, followed by another of our members 
reciting from the Poet's works. 

As judged from a reference to the Club's scrapbook, its 
various activities do not escape the attention of the local Press ! 

MARGARET s. ROWAN, 

Secretary. 

Page 961



LIST OF THE 352 

BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 

ON THE 

ROLL OF THE BURNS FEDERATION, 1951 

[Corrected to 16th December, 1950] 

0-KILMARNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted I8o8; federated 1885; 200 
members; Secretary, W. Y. Haggo, 3 Seaford Street, Kilmarnock. 

I-THE BURNS CLUB OP LONDON: instituted 1868; federated 1885; 200 
members; Secretary, Donald Munro, 5 Links Road, Epsom, Surrey. 

2-ALEXANDRIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1884; federated 1885; 40 
members; Secretary, John Barton, 126 Middleton Street, 
Alexandria. 

3-TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1858; federated 1885; 
137 members; Secretary, Walter McFarlane, 41 Cumlodden Drive, 
Maryhill, Glasgow, N.W. 

• 
4-CALLANDER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1877; federated 1885; 

re-affiliated 1950; members; Secretary, J. M. Prosser, 18 
Menteith Crescent, Callander. 

7-THISTLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1882; federated 1885; 50 members; 
Secretary, David Moffat, 19 Park Road, Glasgow, C+ 

<)-ROYALTY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1882; federated 1886; 121) 
members; Secretary William M'Minn, 5 St. Vincent Place, 
Glasgow, C.1. 

ro-DuMBARTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1859; federated 1886; Bo 
members; Secretary, John Lithgow, Park Lea, Stirling Road, 
Dumbarton. 

II-CHESTERFIELD AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: federated 
1886; reconstituted 1910; re-affiliated 1930; 391 members; 
Secretary, Mrs. Mina Nicholson, 3 Goldwell House, Ashgate Road, 
Chesterfield. 

Page 962



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

14-DUNDEE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1860; federated 1886; 40 members; 
Secretary, Harry Taylor, Dundee Burns Club, 37 Union Street, 
Dundee. 

15-BELPAST BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted I886; federated I886; 420 
members; Secretary, Edward R. Forgrave, 48 Bloomfield Road, 
Belfast. 

17-NOTTINGHAM SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: instituted 187I; reconstituted 
1902; federated 1886; re-affiliated 1903; 535 members; Secretary, 
Leslie B. Scott, National Provincial Bank, Valley Road, Basford, 
Nottingham. 

20-AIRDRIE BURNS CLUB: instituted I885; federated 1886; 174 mem
bers; Secretary, R. Bicknell, 48 Forrest Street, Airdrie. 

21-GREENOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1801; federated 1886; 195 
members; Secretary, George C. Filshie, 107 Eldon Street, 
Greenock. 

22-EDINBURGH. BURNS CLUB: instituted I848; federated 1886; 110 
members; Secretary, George Harris, F.A.S.A., 28 Hillside Street, 
Edinburgh, 7. 

33-GLASGOW HAGGIS CLUB: instituted I872; federated I886; 72 mem
bers; Secretary, J. Lawrence Grant, C.A., 13 Bogton Avenue, 
Glasgow, s+ 

35-DALRY (AYRSHIRE) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1825; federated 1887; 
79 members; Secretary, Douglass G. Gordon, National Bank 
Buildings, Dalry, Ayrsltre. 

36-llOSEBERY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1887; I29 mem
bers; Secretary, Archibald W. Alexander, 55 Glencoe Street, 
Glasgow, W.3. 

40-ABERDEEN BURNS CLUB: instituted I872; federated 18B9: 115 
members; Secretary, Andrew Noble, 48 Summerfield Terrace, 
Aberdeen. 

42-sTRATHEARN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1889; federated 1890; 
reaffiliated 1950; members; Secretary, John G. Moncrieff, 
I9 Sauchie Road, Crieff, Perthshire. 

45-cuMNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1891; IIO mem
bers; Secretary, G. Fredericks, Clydesdale Bank House, Cumnock. 

48-PAISLEY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1805; federated lB91; 30 
members; Secretary, George B. Ballantyne, Tweedsmuir, 9 
Potterhill Avenue, Paisley. 

Page 963



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 63 

4~RIDGETON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1870; federated 1891; 1700 
members; Secretary, C. Gordon Brown, 569 London Road, 
Glasgow, S.E. 

50-sTIRLING BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1892; 130 mem
bers; Secretary, Joshua Petty, 20 Barnton Street, Stirling. 

53-GOVAN PAIRPIELD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 189.z; 
53 members; Secretary, Mrs. V. Douglas, 42 Bradon Avenue, 
Clydebank. 

55-DERBY SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION AND BURNS CLUB: instituted I~O; 
federated 1~3; 400 members; Secretary, Miss A. W. Wylie, 12 
Kedleston Road, Allestree, Derby. 

56-MUIRKIRK LAPRAIK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 1893;• 
120 members; Secretary, George Vallance, Station Road, Muirkirk. 

59-GOUROCK JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 
1893; 160 members; Secretary, Lachlan A. Osborne, 5 McCallu•n 
Crescent, Gourock. 

62-cUPAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 1893; 121 members; 
Secretary, J. G. Rutherford, National Bank, Cupar, Fife. 

65-MUSSELBURGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1894; 
re-affiliated 1949; members; Secretary, Thomas Young, c/o 
Glass, Ravenshaugh Road, Levenhall, Musselburgh. 

68-sANDYPORD (GLASGOW) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1893; federated 
1894; 587 members; Secretary, Samuel W. Love, The British 
Linen Bank, Charing Cross Branch, 515 Sauchiehall Street, 
Glasgow, C.3. 

69--DUNEDIN BURNS CLUB, INC.: instituted 186!; federated 1~4; 600 
members; Secretary, A. A. McLennan, n8 Harbour Terrace, 
Dunedin, N.1, New Zealand. 

71-cARLISLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 18~; federated 1895; 53 members; 
Secretary, John Jordan, Grosvenor House, Warwick Square, 
Carlisle. 

72-PARTlCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1885; federated 1895; 80 memben; 
Secretary, W. S. Adams, 81 Bath Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

74-NATIONAL BURNS MEMORIAL AND COTTAGE HOMES, MAUCHLINE: 
instituted 1888; federated 1895; Secretary, David J. S. Harvey, 
65 Renfield Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

76-BRECHIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1894; federated 1896; 64 member~; 
Secretary, D. Young, 28 Cookston Road, Brechin. 

Page 964



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

82-ARBROATH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 18g6; IOI 

members; Secretary, John G. Young, Town House, Arbroath. 

85-DUNFERMLINE UNITED BURNS CLUB: instituted 1812; federated 18cti; 
80 members; Secretary, T. Spowart, M.A., 116 Dewar Street, 
Dunfermline. 

86-WINSOME WILLIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1856; federated 18g6; 
re-affiliated 1947; 30 members; Secretary, William Waugh, 14 
Nan's Terrace, Old Cumnock. 

89-1!UNDERLAND BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 1897; 75 
members; Secretary, Donald Gordon, 33 Chatsworth Street, 
Sunderland. 

91-SHETTLESTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1897; federated 1897; 150 
members; Secretary, R. Wright, 397 Amulree Street, Glasgow, E.2. 

112-DUMFRIES BURNS HOWFF CLUB: instituted 1889; federated 1899; 
120 members; Joint Secretaries, N. Little, 4 Cumberland Street, 
Dumfries, and John Andrew, 8 Murray Place, Dumfries. 

120-BRISTOL CALl!DONIAN SOCil!TY: instituted 1820; federated 1900; 575 
members; Secretary, Miss Winifred Measdy, Albion Chambers, 
Small Street, Bristol. 

121-HAMILTON JUNIOR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1901; 
50 members; Secretary, H. Towall, 8 Backmuir Crescent, 
Whitehill, Hamilton. 

124-THE NINETY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1890; federated 1902; 110 
members; Secretary, R. A. B. McLaren, 4 Mayfield Road, 
Edinburgh, 9. 

126-FALKIRK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1866; federated 1902; 80 
members; Secretary, Bailie R. H. Menzies, 14 Princes Street, 
Falkirk. 

133-NEWARTHILL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1903; federated 1904; 18 
members; Secretary, James B. Mathew, 23 Loanhead Crescent, 
Newarthill, Motherwell. 

13<)-NATIONAL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1904; federated 1904; 100 
members; Secretary, William B. Harkness, C.A., 48 West Regent 
Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

14<}-ELGIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1905; Secretary, 
C. B. Wilken, Bank Buildings, High Street, Elgin. 

152-THE HAMILTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1877; federated 19o6; 100 
members; Secretary, John Jackson, 54 Cadzow Street, Hamilton. 

Page 965



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES (.5 

153-scoTTISH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1904; federated 19o6; 600 
members; Secretary, J. Kevan McDowall, 202 Bath Street> 
Glasgow, C.2. 

158-DARLINGTON BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1go6; federated 19o6; 
200 members; Secretary, Ian Hamilton, I Feil.by Avenue, 
Darlington. 

167-BillMINGHAM AND MIDLAND SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1888; 
federated 1924; 850 members; Secretary, R. W. S. Mackay, 35 
Wycome Road, Hall Green, Birmingham, 28. 

169-GLASGOW AND DISTRICT BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1907; 
federated 1908; 27 members; Secretary, Andrew Stenhouse, LL.B., 
104 West Campbell Street, Glasgow, C.2. 

173-lllVINE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; federated lgo8; 395 members; 
Secretary, William Phillips, M.A., 43 Bank Street, Irvine. 

181-PRIMllOSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1900; federated 1909; 10() 
members; Secretary, George Calderwood, 151 Tantallon Road, 
Glasgow, S.1. 

18:2-STANE MOSSGIEL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1900; federated 1946; 
(re-affiliated); 25 members; Secretary, George McKay, 188 Spring
hill Road, Shotts. 

183-LONDONDEllRY BURNS CLUB AND CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1907; 
federated 1909; 100 members; Secretary, J. Gilmour, 31 Princess 
Street, Londonderry. 

184-BLAillADAM SHANTEil BURNS CLUB: instituted 1907; federated 1909; 
30 members; Secretary, Thos. C. Anderson, Rowan Cottage, 194 
Main Street, Kelty, Fife. 

Igo-PORT GLASGOW BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1910; 30 
membe.rs; Secretary, Duncan McGugan, 128 Drumprochar Road, 
Greenock. -

19:2-AYRSHlllE ASSOCIATION OF FEDERATED BURNS CLUBS: instituted 1903; 
federated 1910; 39 clubs; Secretary, John M. Irving, 20 Melville 
Street, Kilmarnock. 

197-WINNJPEG BURNS CLUB: instituted 1905; federated 1911; 60 mem
bers; Secretary, Robert A. Sloan, 150 Garfield Street, Winnipe5, 
Man., Canada. 

198-GoREBkIDGE TWENTY-FIVE JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 
19o6; federated 1911; 40 members; Secretary, John T. Scott, 45 
Newbyres Crescent, Gorebridge. 
E 

Page 966



66 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

199-NEWBATTLE AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 
19u; 63 members; Secretary, John Campbell, 4 Leighton Crescent, 
Easthouses, Dalkeith. 

20f'-CAMBUSLANG WINGATE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1go8; federated 1912; 

25 members; Secretary, Mrs. Isabella Johnstone, 21 Clyde Place, 
Halfway, Cambuslang. 

2og-GREENOCK ST. JOHN'S BURNS CLUB: instituted 1909; federated 1912; 

150 members; Secretary, R. S. Paul, 35 Royal Street, Gourock, 
Renfrewshire. 

212-PORTOBELLO BURNS CLUB: instituted 1892; federated 1913; 91 

members; Secretary, William H. Garvie, 7 Straiton Place, Porto
bello, Midlothian. 

213-KINGSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 1913; Bo mem
bers; Secretary, Alexander H. Fairley, 6J Pollok Street, Glasgow, 
C.5. 

217-ESKDALE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1913; 80 member~; 

Secretary, Mrs. Pool, 28 High Street, Langholm. 

218-BANNOCKBURN EMPIRE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 1913; 

40 members; Secretary, James Chapman, 7 Ontario Place, Cowie, 
Stirling. 

220-BURNS CLUB OP ST. LOUIS: instituted 1904; federated 1913; 27 

members; Secretary, Irvin Mattick, 1010 Pine Street, St. Lows, 
M.O., U.S.A. 

226-DUMPRIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1820; federated 1913; 142 
members; Secretary, H. G. McKerrow, 43 Buccleuch Street, 

'Dumfries. 

236-wHITEHAVEN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 1914; 75 
members; Secretary, John Davidson, 9 Edgehill Terrace, 
Whitehaven. 

237-UDDINGSTON MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 1914; 

30 members; Secretary, Arthur Downie, 89 Woodlands Crescent, 
Bothwell. 

238-BURNS CLUB OP ATLANTA (GEORGIA): instituted 1896; federated 1914; 

66 members; Secretary, Robert Macdonald, 1024 Los Angeles 
Avenue, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia, U.S.A. 

23g-HAWICK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1878; federated 1914; 550 memben; 
Secretary, David Graham, Hawick Burns Club, Albert Road, 
Ha wick. 

Page 967



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTI'ISH SOCIETIES 67 

242-MONTROSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1908; federated 1915; u6 
members; Secretary, R. V. Fairweather, jun., 47a John Street, 
Montrose. 

244-DALMUIR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1914; federated 1916; 80 member~; 
Secretary, John R. , S. Lockhart, 41 East Thomson Street, 
Clydebank. 

252-ALLOWAY BURNS CLUB: instituted 19o8; federated I918; 100 mem
bers; Secretary, Francis P. Welsh, Schoolhouse, Alloway. 

254-GREENOCK VICTORIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1915; federated 1918; 
40 members; Secretary, Archibald MacLeod, 58 Belville Street, 
Greenock. 

262-FIFESHIRE BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1919; federated 1919; 
25 members; Secretary, Thos. C. Anderson, Rowan Cottage, 
194 Main Street, Kelty, Fife. 

263-GLASGOW MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1919; federated 1919; 
1068 members; Secretary, William E. Thomas, 1298 Argyle 
Street, Glasgow, C.3. 

26g--JOHNSTONE TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 
1920; 65 members; Secretary, Archibald H. Caldwell, 12 
Macdowall Street, Johnstone. 

271-TRENTON BURNS CLUB: instituted: 1919; federated 1920; 20 mem
bers; Secretary, Neil A. Waugh, 656 Schiller Avenue, Trenton, 
10, N.J., U.S.A. 

274-TROON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1920; 160 members; 
Secretary, David K. Henderson, 24 Harling Drive, Troon. 

275-AYR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1886; federated 1920; 203 members; 
Secretary, David McCreadie, B.Sc., F.R.l.C., Beechwood, 5 St. 
Leonard's Road, Ayr. 

282-THE BURNS BOWLING ASSOCIATION: instituted 1898; federated 1920; 
26 clubs; Secretary, John B. Bodie, J.P., 124 St. Vincent Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

283-sINCLAIRTOWN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1920; 30 
members; Secretary, John D. Bease, 1 Dysart Road, Kirkcaldy. 

284-PHILADELPHIA NORTH-EASTERN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1896; 
federated 1921; 60 members; Secretary, Alexander Macdonald, 
4203 E. Barnett Street, Philadelphia, 35, Penn., U.S.A. 

288-BEITH CALEDONIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 19u; federated 1921; 
25 members; Secretary, H. Howells, 21 Braehead, Beith, Ayrshire. 

Page 968



68 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

292-GRAHAMSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted I920; federated 1921; 45 
members; Secretary, Thomas Clapperton, I62 Abbotsford Street, 
Bainsford, Falkirk. 

293-NEWCRAIGHALL DISTRICT POOSIB NANSY BURNS CLUB : instituted 1921; 
federated I921; 40 members; Secretary, William Blair, 8 Avenue 
Square, Newcraighall, Musselburgh. 

295-THE BURNS HOUSE CLUB LIMITED: instituted I920; federated 1921; 
I22 members; Secretary, John Grant, C.A., 65 Renfield Street, 
Glasgow, C.2. 

296-WALSALL BURNS CLUB: instituted I900; federated 1922; ~o 
members; Secretary, Dr. D. M. Macmillan, Great Barr Hall, 
Birmingham, 22a. 

303-VICTORIA ST. ANDREW'S AND CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1872; 
federated 1922; 1o6 members; Secretary, Mrs. Betty Marrs, 723 
Selkirk Avenue, Victoria, B.C., Canada. 

307-EDINBURGH AYRSHIRE ASSOCIATION: instituted 19I4; federated 1922; 
200 members; Secretary, Daniel Sharp, H.M. Register House, 
Edinburgh. 

309"-ANNAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1923; 104 members; 
Secretary, K. G. Sutherland, Solicitor, Royal Bank Buildings, 
Annan. 

3IO-MAUCHLINE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated I923; 200 
members; Secretary, David D. Smith, Main Street, Ochiltree, 
Ayrshire. 

3I4-SCOTTISH BURNS CLUB, EDINBURGH: instituted 1920; federated 1923; 
60 members; Secretary, D. A. Wilson, 7 Middleby Street, Edin
burgh, 9. 

32D-TR0Y BURNS CLUB: instituted I903; federated 1924; 150 members; 
Secretary, Robert E. Urquhart, no Canvass Street, Cohoes, 
New York, U.S.A. 

323-KIRKCUDBRIGHT BURNS CLUB: instituted 19I8; federated 1924; 64 
members; Secretary, Norman C. Macmillan, 32 St. Cuthbert Street, 
Kirkcudbright. 

324-sTOCKTON (N.s.w.) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1924; 
32 members; Secretary, Norman M'Laren, 4 Ross Street, Stockton, 
N.S.W. 

329-NEWARK AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1923; 
federated 1924; 180 members; Secretary, Jas. R. Henderson, 14 
Winchilsea Avenue, Newark, Notts. 

Page 969



BURKS CLUBS AND SCOTIISH SOCIETIES 6g 

331-ROBERT BURNS SOCIETY OF BUFFALO (N.Y.): instituted 1913; federated 
1925; 95 members; Secretary, John C. Henderson, n2 Cadman 
Drive, Williamsville 21, New York, U.S.A. 

336-PETERHEAD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; federated 1925; 130 

members; Secretary, Robert Neish, 2 Rose Street, Peterhead. 

341-LEITH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1826; federated 1925; IOO members; 
Secretary, H. S. Mitchell, 6 Hope Street, Leith. 

345-DENBEATH AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 
1925; re-affiliated 1938; 24 members; Secretary, Thomas Ballan
tyne, 7 Donaldson Road, Methilhill, Leven, Fife. 

346-oAKBANK MOSSGIEL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1925; 

200 members; Secretary, Thomas McLuckie, Oakbank, Mid Calder, 
Midlothian. 

348-NEWTON JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1925; 

25 members; Secretary, Mrs. J. McGeoch, 5 Graham Avenue, 
Halfway, Cambuslang. 

354-ROYAL CLAN, ORDER OF SCOTTISH CLANS: instituted 1878; federated 
1926; 19,461 members; Secretary, Thomas R. P. Gibb, 199 

Washington Street, Boston, 8, Mass., U.S.A. 

355-CALCUTTA BURNS CLUB : instituted 1926; federated 1926; 120 

members; Secretary, W. F. Howe, c/o Messrs. Bird & Co., Post 
Box 46, Calcutta. 

356-BURNBANK AND DISTRICT MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; 

federated 1926; 60 members; Secretary, Joseph Stannage, 20 High 
Blantyre Road, Burnbank, Hamil~n. 

363-BARROW ST. ANDREW'S SOCIETY: instituted 1878; federated 1926; 

165 members; Secretary,. W. J. Liddle, F.R.C.S.(Edin.), Abbey 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness. 

366-LIVERPOOL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1926; 200 

members; Secretary, Hamish H. Rae, 9 Park View, Waterloo, 
Liverpool, 22. 

372-BAILLIESTON JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB : instituted 1926; federated 
1927; 80 members; Secretary, Mrs. G. McGarrity, 27 George 
Street, Baillieston. 

373-RED HILL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1921; federated 1927; 56 
members; Secretary, Harry Elliott, 50 Clyde Road, Red Hill, 
Natal, South Africa. 

377-KILBIRNIE ROSEBERY BURNS CLUB: instituted 19o6; federated 192n 

65 members; Secretary, James E. Shaw, l Central Avenue, 
Kilbirnie. 

Page 970



10 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

378-EDINBURGH DISTRICT BURNS CLUBS' ASSOCIATION: instituted 1925; 
federated 1927; IO clubs; Secretary, Fred. J. Belford, M.A., 
3 Park Grove, Liberton, Edinburgh, 9. 

379-THE HARTLEPOOLS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federated 192n 
re-affiliated 193:z; 37 members; Secretary, Wm. S. Allen, St. 
Helier, 24 Oakland Avenue, West Hartlepool. 

380--FALKIRK CROSS KEYS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1926; federated 1927; 
50 members; Secretary, Thomas Wilson, The Bungalow, Kerse 
Lane, Falkirk. 

381-GREATER NEW YORK MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1927; federated 
1927; 100 members; Secretary, John Watson, 1958 5oth Street, 
Brooklyn, New York, U.S.A. 

383-GREENOCK R.N.T.F. HEATHER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 
1927; 70 members; Secretary, Arthur C. E. Lewis, Vallorbc, 16 
Rodney Road, Gourock. 

387-MARY CAMPBELL BURNS CLUB (cAMBUSLANG): instituted 192n 
federated 1927; 30 members; Secretary, Mrs. A. Rennie, 21 
Gilbertfield Road, Halfway, Cambuslang. 

388-KYLES LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 1927; 
Secretary, Mrs. Jeanie Anderson, 200 Springhill Road, Shotts. 

390--MEIKLE EARNOCK JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; 
federated 1928; 36 members; Secretary, Jacob Hodge, 31 Limekiln
burn Road, Quarter. 

392-WHIFFLET BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1928; 35 
members; Secretary, William Webber Lees, 58 Lavelle Driv'!, 
Coatbridge. · 

393-ANNAN LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 1928; 156 
members; Secretary, Mrs. James, 20 Waterfoot Road, Annan. 

398--coLINTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1907; federated 1928; 50 
members; Acting-Secretary, John Millar, J.P., "Torduff," 198 
Colinton Road, Edinburgh, 11. 

399-sT. RINGAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1920; federated 1928; 150 
members; Secretary, John McClumpha, 16 Milton Terrace, Whins 
of Milton, Stirling. ' 

400-HADDINGTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 1928; 84 
members; Secretary, Alexander H. Main, Solicitor, 27 High 
Street, Haddington. 

Page 971



BURKS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 71 

402-VALLEYFIELD HIGHLAND MARY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; 
federated 1928; 28 members; Secretary, Mrs. C. Parker, 22 Bums 
Street, High Valleyfield, Newmills, Fife. 

403-FRASERBURGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 1928; 100 
members; Secretary, A. S. Kelman, Saltoun Chambers, 
Fraserburgh. 

405-cALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF SHEFFIELD: instituted 1822; federated 1929; 
1016 members; Secretary, W. Campbell Heselwood, II High 
Storrs Road, Sheffield, II. 

406-DUBLIN BENEVOLENT SOCIETY OF ST. ANDREW: instituted 1831; 
federated 1929; 210 members; Secretary, W. Morrison Milne, 
4 Cremore Road, Glasnevin, Dublin. 

409-STENHOUSEMUIR AND DISTRICT PLOUGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; 
federated 1929; 75 members; Secretary, John McMahon, 122 
King Street, Stenhousemuir. 

41 J-ST. ANDREW SOCIETY OF SAN FRANCISCO: instituted 1863; federated 
1929; 200 members; Secretary, Wm. R. Carswell, 6o2 California 
Street, San Francisco, California, U.S.A. 

417-BURNLEY AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1924; 
federated 1929; 105 members; Secretary, Robert T. Buchanan, 2 
Western Avenue, Scott Park, Burnley. 

421-ARROCHAR AND TARBET BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1929; 
66 members; Secretary, R. Andrews, The Schoolhouse, Tarbet. 

424-<:AMBUSLANG TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 
1929; 25 members; Secretary, George McLellan, 33 Park Street, 
Cambuslang. 

426-sAUCHIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1929; 6o memben; 
Secretary, Wm. Paterson, 18 Duncanson Avenue, Falkirk. 

427--GOREBRIDGE GLENCAIRN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1928; federated 
1929; 30 members; Secretary, James Munro, Newland Burn 
Cottage, Gorebridge, Midlothian. 

430--GOUROCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1887; federated 1929; 1o6 
members; Secretary, Hamilton Lyons, 124 Albert Road, Gourock. 

431-INVERKIP BURNS CLUB: instituted 1907; federated 1929; 50 
members; Secretary, William Telfer, Langhouse Cottage, Inverkip. 

432-WINCHBURGH LEA RIG BURNS CLUB : instituted 1930; federated 1930; 
205 members; Secretary, Adam Paterson, 165 Millgate, Winch
burgh, West Lothian. 

Page 972



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

•J35-AYR TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 19o6; federated 1930; 
50 members; Secretary, Henry Baxter, 98 Belmont Avenue, Ayr. 

436-WALNEY JOLLY BEGGARS LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; 
federated 1930; 130 members; Secretary, Mrs. Mary Lourie, 46 
Bristol Street, Walney, Barrow-in-Furness. 

437-DUMFRIES LADIES' BURNS CLUB, NO. l: instituted 1930; federated 
1930; 134 members; Secretary, Mrs. M. Bell, 52 Aldermanhill 
Road, Dumfries. 

439-BARNSLEY AND DISTRICT SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1930; 
federated 1930; re-affiliated 1949; 70 members; Secretary, C. L. 
Sutherland, Woodleigh, Alverthorpe, Wakefield. 

441-TEMPLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; federated 1930; 36 members; 
Secretary, Mrs. Mary Tennant, 33 Easter Road, Dykehead, Shotts. 

443-VICTORIA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1922; federated 193I; 142 
members; Secretary, Harry Wood, 2058 Neil Street, Victoria, 
B.C., Canada. 

444-swANSEA AND WEST WALES CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1921; 
federated 1931; 150 members; Secretary, Alexander Kinloch Miller, 
49 Bryn Road, Brynmill, Swansea. 

446-HEREFORDSHIRE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1910; federated 1931; 
re-affiliated 1949; 64 members; Secretary, J. P. Inglis, 9 Folly 
Drive, Tupsley, Hereford. 

447-MoUNTAIN DAISY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 
1931; re-affiliated 1947; 55 members; Secretary, Mrs. Lily Brown, 
46 Main Street, Lumphinnans, by Cowdenbeath. 

449-WELLINGTON (N.z.) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated t931; 
120 members; Secretary, A. F. Dickson, 24 Evans Bay R~ad, 
Wellington, E.1, N.Z. 

452-AUCHTERDERRAN BONNIE JEAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; 
federated 1931; 23 members; Secretary, Mrs. John Herd, 278 
Carden Castle Park, Cardenden, Fife. 

453-NORTH·EASTERN BURNS CLUB OF PHILADELPHIA LADIES' AUXILIARY: 
instituted 1927; federated 1931; 58 members; Secretary, Elizabeth 
Hunter, 1238 West Allegheny Avenue, Philadelphia, 33. 

454-ROTHERHAM AND DISTRICT SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: instituted t924; 
federated 1931; 300 members; Secretary, William McCormick 
Hamilton, 10 Albion Road, Rotherham. 

Page 973



BURKS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 73 

458-sTONEHAVEN (FATHERLAND) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1925; federated 
1932; 192 members; Secretary, Mrs. A. Edmonston, 25 High 
Street, Stonehaven. 

461-LEICESTER CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1877; federated 1932; 

360 members; Secretary, Andrew Forrest, 3 Kilworth Drive, 
Leicester. 

462-CHELTENHAM SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1930; federated 1932; 

120 members; Secretary, J. Graham, 337 High Street, Cheltenham. 

463-KIRKFORD BONNIE JEAN BURNS CLUB: re-affiliated 1950; 18 members; 
Secretary, George Hood, 143 Foulford Road, Cowdenbeath, Fife. 

466-DYKEHEAD AFTON WATER LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; 

federated 1932; 30 members; Secretary, Mrs. H. Keir, 9 Nithsdale 
Street, Dykehead, Shotts. 

467-GILBERTPIELD HIGHLAND MARY LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; 

federated 1932; 50 members; Secretary, Mrs. Janet Porte, 6 Mill 
Road, Halfway, Cambuslang. 

46<}-DENNY CROSS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; federated 1932; 45 

members; Secretary, T. R. A. Fergus, 16o Stirling Street, Denny. 

470---ST. GILES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1932; re-affiliated 
1949; 108 members; Secretary, George Brodie, 19 Blantyre Place, 
Bishopmill, Elgin. 

471-ROSE OP GRANGE BURNS CLUB: federated 1932; 40 members; 
Secretary, Jas. Sinclair, 103 Main Street, Grangepans, Bo'ness. 

472-RENFREWSHIRE ASSOCIATION OF BURNS CLUBS: instituted 1929; 

federated 1932; 10 clubs; Secretary, Arthur C. E. Lewis, Vallorbe, 
16 Rodney Road, Gourock. 

476-BORDER CITIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1933; 123 

members; Secretary, Adam Plenderleith, 63 Huron Avenue, La 
Salle, Ontario, Canada. 

477-BELLAHOUSTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1933; 80 

members; Secretary, Mrs. J. McComish, 38 Kenmure Street, 
Glasgow, S.1. 

478-BONNIE DOON LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1933; federated 1933; 

40 members; Secretary, Mrs. T. Penman, ~ Blair Street, Kelty, 
Fife. 

479--QUEEN OP THE SOUTH LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1932; 

federated 1933; 16o members; Secretary, Mrs. M. Coulson, 52 

Friars Vennel, Dumfries. 

Page 974



74 BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

481-LONDON AYRSHIRE SOCIETY: instituted I897; federated 1933; 
Secretary, G. C. Wishart, Romney House, Tufton Street, London, 
S.W.1. 

484-sHEDDENS LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1933; 
15 members; Secretary, Mrs. Janet Donaldson, 8 McEwan Street, 
Glasgow, E.1. 

492-HARROW AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1928; 
federated 1934; 6o8 members; Secretary, James 0. Cumming, 25 
Park View, Hatch End, Middlesex. 

493-AKRON BURNS CRONIES: instituted 1934; federated 1934; 17 
members; Secretary, Alex. More, 2305 2oth Street, S.W., 
Kenmore 14, Akron, Ohio. 

494-MoTHERWELL UNITED SERVICES BURNS CLUB: federated 1934i 6o 
members; Secretary, W. Corbett, c/o 56 Airbles Road, Motherwell. 

495-BAGHDAD CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted I922; federated 1934; 70 
members; Treasurer, J. A. Jack, P.O. Box 17, Baghdad, Iraq. 

4g6-THE AULD HOOSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1934; 
108 members; Secretary, R. Cuthbert, Christie's Buildings, 
Kirkton, Burntisland. 

497-sT. ANDREW BURNS CLUB (WELLINGTON, N.Z.): instituted 1934; 
federated I934; 135 members; Secretary, Miss B. Clark, P.O. 
Box 1049, Wellington, New Zealand. 

498-PLINT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1931; federated 1934; 75 members; 
Secretary, Robert H. Weir, 417 W. Rankin Street, Flint, 4, 
Mich., U.S.A. 

500--NEW CUMNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1924; federated 1934; 60 
members; Secretary, Robert Knox, M.A., Bank Schoolhouse, 
New Cumnock, Ayrshire. 

503-DUNBLANE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1923; federated 1935; Secretary, 
W. D. Menzies, Commercial Bank, Dunblane. 

505-WISHAW MASONIC BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1935; 40 
members; Secretary, Thomas Shaw, 12 Caledonian Road, Wishaw. 

510--I.C.I. GRANGEMOUTH BURNS CLUB: federated 1935; 150 members; 
Secretary, I. M. Halkett, c/o I.C.I. Ltd., Dyestuffs Division, 
Earl's Road, Grangemouth. 

Sii-PERTH (WEST AUSTRALIA) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1935; 80 members; Secretary, Mrs. Jessie Reid, 166 Seventh 
Avenue, Maylands, Perth, Western Australia. 

Page 975



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 75 

516-THE AIRTS BURNS CLUB, CASTLEPARK: instituted 1933; federated 
· 1936; 30 members; Secretary, John McLurg, 14 Bankton Terrace, 

Preston pans. 

518-YE AULD CRONIES MASONIC BURNS CLUB (CLEVELAND, OHIO): instituted 
1935; federated 1936; 15 members; Secretary, Thomas Hair, 
285 East 218th Street, Euclid, 23, Ohio, U.S.A. 

S2~UDDINGSTON LOCHLIE LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1936; 52 members; Secretary, Mrs. Isobel Downie, 89 Woodlands 
Crescent, Bothwell. 

521-WARATAH-MAYFIELD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1936; 
100 members; Secretary, Mrs. S. Harris, 5 Windeyer Street, 
Mayfield West, Newcastle, N.S.W., Australia. 

523-HIGHLAND SOCIETY OF NEW SOUTH WALES: instituted 1877; federated 
I936; 1399 members; Secretary, James Mackintosh, Scottish 
House, 19 Bridge Street, Sydney, N.S.W., Australia. 

525-FLINT JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 1937; 
22 members; Secretary, John R. Hurry, 927I Neff Road, R1 Clio, 
Michigan, U.S.A. 

526-DYKEHEAD TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1937; 37 members; Secretary, John C. Weir, 75 Wilson Road, 
Allanton, Shotts. 

528-LOUGHBOROUGH SCOTTISH ASSOCIATION: instituted 1930; federated 
1937; 104 members; Secretary, A. McNeil Ford, 59 Westfiel<i 
Drive, Loughborough. 

53~SOUTHERN SCOTTISH COUNTIES BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1937; 
federated 1937; 14 clubs; Secretary, Mrs. M. Coulson, 52 Friars 
Vennel, Dumfries. 

533-FAULDHOUSE CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1937; 50 members; Secretary, John Thomson, 26 Breich Terrace, 
West Calder, Midlothian. 

535-PLYMOUTH AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1927; 
federated 1937; 100 members; Secretary, W. Struthers, 5 Houndis
combe Villas, Plymouth. 

536-wHITHORN AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1937; federated 
1937; 70 members; Secretary, Thomas Latimer, 46 George Street, 
Whithorn. 

537-HARTHILL AND DISTRICT YOUNG CRONIES' BURNS CLUB : instituted 
1935; federated 1937; 20 members; Secretary, Peter Paterson, 
7 Albert Street, Harthill, Lanarkshire. 

Page 976



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

538--GREENOCK AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUBS' PAST PRESIDENTS' 
ASSOCIATION: instituted 1937; federated 1937; 40 members; · 
Secretary, A. C. E. Lewis, Vallorbe, 16 Rodney Road, Gourock. 

542-WHITE HEATHER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1936; federated 1938; 
25 members; Secretary, John Galloway, 141 High Street, I\'ewart· 
hill, by Motherwell. 

545-PARRAMATTA AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB (NEW SOUTH WALES): insti
tuted 1934; federated 1938; 53 members; Secretary, S. Wilson, 
1 Jessie Street, West Mead, N.S.W., Australia. 

547-COALBURN JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB : instituted 1937; federated 
1938; 37 members; Secretary, James Logan, 72 Bellfield Road, 
Coalburn. 

548-LEEDS CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1894; federated 1938; 650 
members; Secretary, Arthur G. Wilson, A.C.I.I., Springfield, 
13 Caythorpe Road, Leeds, 6. 

549-BOTHWELL BONNIE LESLIE LADIES' BURNS CLUB : instituted 1937; 
federated 1938; 30 members; Secretary, Mrs. Agnes O'Hara, 13 
Castle Square, Bothwell. 

550-DUNOON MARY CAMPBELL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 
1938; 47 members; Secretary, J. King, Ashcraig, MacArthur 
Street, Dunoon. 

551-SCARBOROUGH CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1934; federated 
1938; 280 members; Secretary, A. Y. Smith, L.D.S., R.F.P.S., 
Central Hotel, The Crescent, Scarborough. 

553-woLVERHAMPTON AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 
1938; federated 1938; 3so members; Secretary, R. J. S. Linn, 
46 Newbridge Crescent, Wolverhampton. 

SSS-HARROGATE sT. ANDREW'S SOCIETY: instituted 1921; federated 1938; 
no members; Secretary, D. Bogle, 18 Harlow Moor Drive, 
Harrogate. 

5s6-cALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF DONCASTER: federated 1938; 280 members; 
Secretary, A. Menzies Campbell, "Allermuir," The Drive, Sprot
borough Park, Doncaster. 

5S7-LADIES' BURNS CLUB OF ATLANTA, GEORGIA: instituted 1937; 
federated 1938; Secretary, Miss Anna Kothe, 84s Briarcliff Road, 
N.E., Atlanta, 6, Georgia, U.S.A. 

558-CAMBusBARRON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1936; federated 1936; 30 
members; Secretary, William Miller, 27 North End Roa".!, 
Stirling. 

Page 977



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTIISH SOCIETIES 77 

55()-COVENTRY AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 19u;. 
federated 1938; 400 members; Secretary, Robert S. Miller, 2u 
Leamington Road, Coventry. 

561-LONDON (ONTARIO) BURNS CLUB: instituted 1938; federated 1939> 
65 members; Secretary, Eldon W. Mitchell, 171 Dundas Street, 
London, Ont., Canada. 

562-cASTLE DOUGLAS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1930; federated 1939; 6e> 
members; Secretary, Farquhar J. Graham, 34a Marie Street, 
Castle Douglas. 

563-NORFOLX CALEDONlAN SOCIETY: instituted 1934; federated 1939;. 
250 members; Secretary, J. B. Johnston, 98 Cecil Road, Norwich, 
Norfolk. 

564-WINSOME WILLIE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 1939; 
60 members; Secretary, John G. Hendry, 49 Broom Crescent, 
Ochiltree. 

566-scOTTISH SOCIETY AND BURNS CLUB OF AUSTRALIA: instituted 1939; 
federated 1939; 80 members; Secretary, Andrew Allan, 24 Windsor 
Road, Dulwich Hill, N.S.W. 

56]-NEWTOWN BURNS cl'.UB (PAISLEY): instituted 1938; federated 1939;. 
60 members; Secretary, R. Atkinson, 47 Causeyside Street, 
Paisley. 

57<r-THE SCOTTISH CLANS ASSOCIATION OF LONDON LTD.: instituted 1898;. 
federated 1939; Secretary, D. Campbell Thomson, Benachie, 35 
Medway Gardens, Wembley, Middlesex. 

571-EDMONTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1918; federated 1939; 33 
members; Secretary, Hamish H. Gillespie, n648 95a Street, 
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. 

574-HOLYTOWN BLAIR ATHOLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 
1939; 40 members; Secretary, Samuel Cowan, 29 Loanhead 
Crescent, Newarthill. 

575-wINDSOR (oNTARio) JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; 
federated 1940; 42 members; Secretary, Mrs. Vera Plenderleith, 63 
Huron Avenue, La Salle, Ontario, Canada. 

576-FORT MATILDA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1934; federated 1940; 100 
members; Secretary, R. E. Cunningham, "Elbar," 19 Madeira 
Street, Greenock. 

577-DALSERF AND CLYDESDALE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; federated 
1940; 30 members; Secretary, George Spiers, 12 Douglas Drive, 
Ashgill, Larkhall. 

Page 978



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

578---LANARKSHIRE ASSOCIATION OF BURNS CLUBS: instituted I924; federated 
I942; 43 clubs; Secretary, Mrs. Christine D. Macintosh, 134 
Kylepark Drive, Uddingston. 

579-BATHGATE TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1940; federated 
1942; 70 members; Secretary, Jasper Thomson, 18 Wallace Road, 
Bathgate. 

58o--cUMBRAE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1896; federated 1942; 172 
members; Secretary, Peter Darroch, I7 Glasgow Street, Millport. 

581-cuMBERNAULD AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 
1943; 50 members; Secretary, Daniel Millar, 15 Baronhill, 
Cumbernauld. 

582-HIGGINSNEUK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1942; federated 1943; 22 
members; Secretary, Matthew Watson, 43- Quarrolhall Crescent, 
Blackmill, Falkirk. 

584-coRBY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 1943; 30 members; 
Secretary, John Donald, 25 Rowlett Road, Corby, Northants. 

585-QUEEN's PARK .BOWLING CLUB CLARINDA BURNS CIRCLE: instituted 
1930; federated 1943; 180 members; Secretary, William Young, 
50 Deanwood Avenue, Glasgow, S+ 

587-BUDHILL AND SPRINGBOIG BURNS CLUB: instituted 1943; federated 
1943; 64 members; Secretary, John Seymour, 6I Springboig 
Avenue, Glasgow, E.2. 

589-SOLWAY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1921; federated 1944; 100 members; 
Secretary, 0. J. Gibbs, Auchlewan, Landheads, Annan. 

592-BENWHAT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 85 members; 
Secretary, James Wallace, 1 Corserine Terrace, Dalmellington, 
Ayr. 

593-BARRMILL JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 
1944; 50 members; Secretary, Edward B. Anderson, The Block,, 
Barrmill, Beith. 

594-THE BURNS CLUB OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY, CLEVELAND, OHIO: instituted 
1934; federated 1944; 140 members; Secretary, Mrs. Donald C. 
Noble, I6<YJ Rosewood Avenue, Lakewood, 7, Ohio, U.S.A. 

595-ALLANTON "BRIG o' DOON" LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; 
federated 1944; 40 members; Secretary, Mrs. Elizabeth Martin, 10 
Houldsworth Crescent, Allanton, Shotts. 

596--GLAISNOCK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1944; 62 
members; Secretary, James McKechnie, 18 Glaisnock Street, 
Cumnock. 

Page 979



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES 79 

598-FORTH JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB : instituted 1944; federated 1944; 
30 members; Secretary, James Douglas, 25 The Neuk, Forth, 
Lanarkshire. 

605-cRAIGMARK AND BURNTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 
1945; So members; Secretary, Alexander Murphy, 5S Burnton, 
Dalmellington, Ayrshire. 

6o6-ROCKINGHAM BURNS CLUB : 
members; Secretary, S. 
Northamptonshire. 

instituted 1945; federated 1945; 50 
Jeffrey, 27 Maple Grove, Corby, 

6oS-RICCARTON WALLACE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 
54 members; Secretary, A. Wallace, 9 Bruce Crescent, Riccarton, 
Kilmarnock. 

6IO-THE "ROYAL ARCH" BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1945; 
34 members; Secretary, Andrew Smith, 21 Hilary Drive, Garrow
hill, nr. Baillieston. 

612-TORRANCE MASONIC SOCIAL AND BURNS CLUB: instituted 192S; 
federated 1945; So members; Secretary, Tom Travers, 12 Hawthorn 
Street, Torrance. 

613-TRANENT NO. I BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1945; 32 
members; Secretary, George Livingstone, 5 John Street, Tranent. 

614-BELLSHILL CALEDONIAN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1945; 
50 members; Secretary, William Dickson, 12 Sykehead Avenue, 
Dean Street, Bellshill. 

615-wEST LOTHIAN DISTRICT BURNS ASSOCIATION: instituted 1945; 
federated 1945; ro clubs; Secretary, Robert Findlay, 12 Mam 
Street, Winchburgh. 

616-KIRKCONNEL AND SANQUHAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 191]; 
federated 1945; 40 members; Secretary, William McClanachan, 
3 Glenaylmer Road, Kelloholm, Kirkconnel. 

617-READING AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: instituted 1906; 
federated 1946; 230 members; Secretary, Miss Kennethina 
Matheson, B.Sc.(Agric.), St. Andrew's Hall, Reading. 

618-ALTRINCHAM AND SALE CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1945; 
federated 1946; 619 members; Secretary, T. C. Lochhead, "Corner 
Croft," Culcheth Road, Altrincham. 

61g-BAINSFORD CROSS-ROADS BURNS CLUB : instituted 1945; federated 
1945; 40 members; Secretary, John Gillespie, 13 Foundry Street, 
Carron Road, Falkirk. 

Page 980



80 BURNS FEDER:A TION YEAR BOOK 

620-THE MUIRHEAD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1942; federated 1945; 120 
members; Secretary, John H. Jarvie, 1 South Marshall Street, 
Grangemouth. 

621-scoTTISH AVIATION BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 
36 members; Secretary, J. F. Wilson, Scottish Aviation Limited, 
Prestwick Airport, Prestwick, Ayrshire. 

622-COYLTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1946; 80 members; 
Secretary, James Thom, 39 Carbieston, Coylton, Ayr. 

623-KILWINNING BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 50 
members; Secretary, William Peters, 14 Bankhead, Kilwinnng, 
Ayrshire. 

624-BURNS CLUB OF OBAN: instituted 1946; federated 1946; 80 members; 
Secretary, John L. McKean, 21 High Street, Ohan. 

625-LOCKERBIE BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 1946; Secretary, 
George Stevenson, Sol~citor, Lockerbie. 

626--MOFFAT AND DISTRICT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 
120 members; Secretary, George M. Scott, Station House, Beattock. 

627-KINROSS JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1888; federated 
1946; 50 members; Secretary, T. M. Tod, West Brackly, Kinross. 

628-sTEELEND JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 53 members; Secretary, Mrs. R. Salmond, 6 Sunnybraes 
Terrace, Steelend. 

629-8ANQUHAR BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 40 
members; Secretary, A. B. Peden, 72 High Street, Sanquhar. 

63o-coALSNAUGHTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 8o 
members; Secretary, Alex. C. Cook, 4 School Terrace, Coals
naughton, Tillicoultry. 

631-PENCAITLAND AND ORMISTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1935; federated 
1945; 40 members; Secretary, Henry Voy, Farm Cottages, 
Pencaitland, East Lothian. 

632-sYMINGTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1946; 40 
members; Secretary, Donald Fraser, "Eudora," Symington, 
Kilmarnock . 

. 634-ARDEER JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 60 members; Secretary, Alexander Ramsay, 24 Carment 
Drive, Stevenston. 

635-JEAN ARMOUR BURNS CLUB, TRANENT: instituted 1946; federated 
1946; 30 members; Secretary, Robert Watters, 26 Northfield East, 
Tranent. 

Page 981



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOlTISH SOCIETIES 81 

636-GISBORNE BUB.NS CLUB, NEW ZEALAND: federated 1946; Secretary, 
Miss June Hall, 46 Valley Road, Mangapapa, Gisborne, New 
Zealand. 

637-LARKHALL APPLEBANK BURNS CLUB: instituted 1944; federated 1946; 
20 members; Secretary, John Allan, 42 William Drive, Eddlewood, 
Hamilton. 

638-sTONEHOUSE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1946; 30 
members; Secretary, Robert Hamilton, 45 Camnethan Street, 
Stoneliouse, Lanarkshire. 

639-CUMNOCK DUMFRIES ARMS BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; Secretary, 
James Breckenridge, 6x Glaisnock Street, Cumnock, Ayrshire. 

640--HAMILTON WHITE HEATHER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 
1947; 60 members; Secretary, James Weir, 8 Grequa Terrace, 
Bothwell. 

641-ROSEWELL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 6o 
members; Secretary, Joseph Stafford, 38 Victoria Street, Rosewell, 
Midlothian. 

642-RUTHERGLEN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 45 
members; Secretary, Hector Miller, M.B.E., 384 Main Street, 
Rutherglen. 

643-BEITH TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 
1947; 40 members; Secretary, H. Allan, 24 Head Street, Beith, 
Ayrshire. 

644-HEITON BURNS &LUB: instituted 1910; federated 1947; 65 members; 
Secretary, Major Dawson Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

645-Bo'NESS JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: federated 194]; Secretary, 
Robert McLean, 16x Corbiehall, Bo'ness. 

646-THE CLEAR WINDING DEVON ALVA BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; 
federated 1947; 40 members; Secretary, William Comrie, 12 
Alexander Drive, Alva. 

64'!-cARRON BRIDGE CRONIES BURNS CLUB, KILSYTH: instituted 1941; 
federated 1947; 44 members; Secretary, A. Fisher, 47 Kingston 
Flats, Kilsyth. 

649-AULD AFFLECK. BUll.NS CLUB, AUCHINLECK: instituted 1947; federated 
1947; 42 members; Secretary, Thomas S. Murray, 213 Dalsalloch 
Houses, Auchinleck. 

650--MID AND EAST LOTHIANS AND BOii.DER DISTRICT BURNS Cl.UBS ASSOCIA· 
TloN: instituted 1925; federated 1947; Secretary, R. Pilmour, 
21 Bryon's Avenue, Newtongrange, Dalkeith. 
1' 

Page 982



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

651-DALKEITH PLOUGH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 

35 members; Secretary, William Thomson, 3 Woodburn Park, 
Dalkeith, Midlothian. 

653--GLASGOW EX-SERVICE TEACHERS' BURNS CLUB : instituted 1946; 

federated I946; 120 members; Secretary, Robert Neville, 28 The 
Quadrant, Clarkston, Glasgow. 

654-THE YEW TREE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 32 

members; Secretary, John Brown, 8 Limeylands Road, Ormiston, 
East Lothian. 

655-KENNOWAY JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 
1947; 60 members; Secretary, Lewis Waddell, Sealda, New Road, 
Kennoway, Fife. 

656-DUNDONALD JEAN ARMOUR LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; 

federated 1947; 40 members; Secretary, Mrs. James Murdoch, 
35 Denfield Gardens, Cardenden, Fife. 

657-PALLIN BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1947; 48 members; 
Secretary, James Morton, 3n Gordon Crescent, Stirling. 

65g-nuNDEE BURNS SOCIETY: instituted 1896; federated 1947; 121 

members; Secretary, A. E. Coutts, Rosebank, 1 Bradbury Street, 
Downfield, Dundee. 

660-LANGHOLM LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 

46 members; Secretary, Mrs. R. W. Irving, Warbla Cottage, 
Langholm. 

661-LEAMINGTON AND WARWICK CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1947; 

federated 1947; 200 members; Secretary, Archibald J. Inglis, J.P., 
2 Avondale Road, Lillington, Leamington Spa. 

663-BOURNEMOUTH AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1907; 

federated 1947; 205 members; Secretary, R. Poultney, J.P., 
"Dalziel," 51 Stokewood Road, Bournemouth. 

664-THE WEST KILBRIDE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1947; 

150 members; Secretary, Norman Bruce, "Morven," West Kilbride. 

665-GARTMORN LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1948; 

30 members; Secretary, Mrs. C. Fudge, 69 Gartmorn Road, 
Sauchie, Alloa. 

666'-VALLEY OP DOON LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 
1948; 45 members; Secretary, Mrs. G. Young, 29 Auchenroy 
Crescent, Dalmellington. 

Page 983



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTI'ISH SOCIETIES 83 

667-THORNTON AND DISTRICT TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB : instituted 
1901; federated 1948; 'J-0 members; Secretary, Jas. Colville, 7 
Hawthorn Terrace, Thornton, Fife. 

668--HAll.THILL AND EASTFIELD TAM o' SHANTER BURNS CLUB: instituted 
1948; federated 1948; 20 members; Secretary, Daniel McLelland, 
51 West Benhar Road, Eastfield, by Harthill. 

669-coATBll.IDGE HOME GUARD BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 
1948; 52 members; Secretary, Thomas McNab, 127 Whiffiet Street, 
Coatbridge. 

67o-sTRATH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 1948; 70 members; 
Secretary, Marcus Soper, The Pier, Kyleakin, Skye. 

671-sT. ANDREW'S CRONIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1948; 
110 members; Secretary, William Nelson, c/o Parker, 126 High 
Street, Irvine, Ayrshire. 

673-AUCHTERDERllAN HIGHLAND MARY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1936; 
federated 1948; 53 members; Secretary, Mrs. M. Martin, 41 White
hall Avenue, Cardenden, Fife. 

674-MANCHESTER AND SALFORD CALEDONIAN ASSOCIATION: instituted 1890; 
federated 1948; 250 members; Secretary, A. D. Crossgrove, '53 
Cringle Road, Levenshulme, Manchester, 19. 

675-THE FEDERATED CALEDONIAN SOCIETY OF SOUTHERN AFRICA: federated 
1948; 6942 members; Secretary, Geo. Wallace Mackenzie, 
C.A.(S.A.), P.O. Box 6237, Johannesburg. 

676-DENNY BRITISH LEGION BURNS CLUB: federated 1948; Secretary, 
D. L. Kane, 27 Gorrie Street, Denny. 

677-PLUMMET MASONIC BURNS CLUB: federated 1948; Interim Secretary, 
William T. Macmaster, 17 Kildonan Drive, Glasgow, W.1. 

678--DOUGLAS DISTRICT BURNS CLUB : federated 1948; Secretary, John 
Grant, 4a Castlehill, Currie's Close, Douglas, Lanarkshire. 

679-TULLIBODY AND CAMBUS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 
1948; 85 members; _Secretary, Mrs. W. G. Stewart, South View, 
Tullibody, by Alloa. 

680-THISTLE BURNS CLUB, SALTCOATS: instituted 1947; federated 1948; 
28 members; Secretary, James Goodall, JO St. Lawrence Place, 
Saltcoats. 

681-THE CllONIES' BURNS CLUB, KILMARNOCK: instituted 1948; federated 
1948; 32 members; Secretary, James Muir, 110 Bonnyton Road, 
Kilmarnock. 

Page 984



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

682--CUMNOCK JOLLY BEGGARS BU(NS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 
1948; 36 members; Secretary, John Buchan, 77 Wylie Crescent, 
Cumnock. 

683-STRATFORD-VPON·AVON AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 
1947; federated 1948; 112 members; Secretary, Mrs. E. M. 
Somerville, 97 Albany Road, Stratford-on-Avon. 

684-HILLS o' DUNIPACE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 1948; 
100 members; Secretary, D. J. Graham, 10 Old Denny Road, 
Larbert, Stirlingshire. 

685-mw STEVENSTON ALLOWAY BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 
1948; Secretary, Peter Russell, 59 Jerviston Street, New Stevenston. 

686-BANCHORY BURNS AND SOCIAL CLUB: instituted 1947; federated 1948; 
156 members; Secretary, Alexander Anderson, Newsagent, High 
Street, Banchory. 

687-NoRTHWICH AND DISTRICT SCOTS SOCIETY; instituted 1948; federated 
1~48; 150 members; Secretary, H. Carswell, l Park Road, Winning
ton, Northwich, Cheshire. 

688-KIRK.C•LDY POOSIE NANSIE LADIES' BURNS CLUB: instituted 1939; 
federated 1949; 50 members; Secretary, Mrs. Ella Wishart, 151 
Links Street, Kirkcaldy. 

689--PRINCE RUPERT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1949; federated 1949; 40 
. members; Secretary, James S. Irvine, P.O. Box 254, Prince Rupert, 

B.C., Canada. 

690---PIRNHALL BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 1949; 55 
members; Secretary, George S. Brown, Newlands, Bannock.burn. 

6g1-INVERNESS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1949; federated I949; 85 
members; Secretary, Col. Alex. Cullen, O.B.E., F.R.I.B.A., 
Drumclog, Southside Road, Inverness. 

692-BRIGHTON's CRONIES BURNS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1949; 
IOO members; Secretary, Alex. Henderson, 17 St. Catherine, 
Maddiston, Falkirk. 

693-MASONIC BURNS CLUB, KIRK.CUDBRIGHT: instituted 1949; federated 
1949; 85 members; Secretary, Hugh Little, 16 Mersecroft, 
Kirkcudbright. 

694-RANKINSTON BRAWLING COYLE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1949; federated 
1949; 42 members; Secretary, Alex. F. Nutt, 14 Cairntable, Patmi, 
Ayr. 

695-KILMARONOCK BURNS CLUB (DUNBARTONSHIRE): instituted 1949; 
federated 1949; 142 members; Secretary, James Conacher, Aber 
Cottage, Gartocharn, Alexandria, Dunbartonshire. 

Page 985



BURNS CLUBS AND SCOTTISH SOCIETIES . .,, 

6~WHITLEY BAY AND DISTRICT SOCIETY OF ST. ANDREW: instituted 1930; 
federated 1949; 274 members; Secretary, Harry S. Kerr, 97 Links 
Avenue, Monkseaton, Whitley Bay. 

69J-BALLOCHMYLE BURNS CLUB, COMRIE (FIFE): instituted ; federated 
1949; 40 members; Secretary, John Bell, 43 Rintoul Avenue. 
Blairhall, Dunfermline. 

698-TURRIFF BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 1949; Secretary, 
John G. Lawson, Elmbank, Manse Terrace, Turriff. 

699-LORD CLYDE BURNS CLUB, CHAPPINGTON, NORTHUMBERLAND: ins_ti
tuted 1949; federated 1949; 56 members; Secretary, Robert Moody, 
IO Chapel Street, Barrington, Bedlington, Northumberland. 

JOO-HAMILTON JUBILEE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1946; federated 1949; 
40 members; Secretary, Quinton McQuater, "Jubilee," Baillie'• 
Causeway, Hamilton. 

701-THE DETROIT BURNS CLUB: instituted 1912; federated 1949; ,. 
members; Secretary, Malcolm McNiven, 10744 Foley, Detroit, 
Michigan, U.S.A. 

702-GREENOCK FOUNDRY MASONIC ASSOCIATION: instituted 1945; federated 
1949; 100 members; Secretary, H. Niven, 1 Ashburn Gate, 
Gourock. 

703-MUNDIJONG AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY : instituted I 
federated 1949; Interim Secretary, William Taylor, J.P., Dunmore 
Friesian Stud Farm, Taylor Road, Mundijong, Western Australia. 

704-EVESHAM AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1948; 
federated 1949; 44 members; Secretary, }as. W. Chirnside, II 
Victoria Avenue, Evesham, Worcestershire. 

705-sT. CUTHBERT's BURNS CLUB, MAYBOLE: instituted 1949; federated 
1949; Secretary, W. C. Adams, St. Cuthbert's Bar, Maybole. 

7o6-NORTH LINDSEY SCOTS SOCIETY: instituted 1927; federated 1949; 
252 members; Secretary, John G. Lindsay, 135 Church Lane, 
Scunthorpe, Lines. 

]OJ-MALVERN SCOTS CLUB: instituted 1945; federated 1949; 100 member!; 
Secretary, Alex. S. Young, 7 Malvern House, Abbey Road, 
Malvern, W ores. 

708-THE CARLISLE HIGHLAND ASSOCIATION: instituted ; federated 
1949; members; Secretary, T. Dempster, 99 Scotland Roact_ 
Carlisle. 

709-A' THE AIRTS BURNS CLUB, HALBEATH: instituted 1949; federated 
1949; 25 members; Secretary, Robert Macdonald, 22 Fod Street, 
Halbeath, by Dunfermline. 

Page 986



86 BURNS FEDER:A TION YEAR BOOK 

710-BURNS LITl!RARY SOCIETY OP TORONTO: instituted ; federated 
1950; members; Secretary, Duncan McCowan, 33 Hartley 
Avenue, Toronto, Ont., Canada. 

711-THE VICTORIAN SCOTTISH UNION: instituted 1905; federated 1950; 

members; Secretary, J. McKerral, 3 Bracken Road, Caulfield, 
Victoria, Australia. 

712-NORTH AND WEST MELBOURNE SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted ; 
federated, 1950; 16o members; Secretary, J. A. Dyall, 45 Davies 
Street, East Brunswick, N.10, Victoria, Australia. 

713-KIND WIPE BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated, 1950; 

members; Secretary, Robert Bell, 52 Lockhart Street, Stonehouse, 
Lanarkshire. 

714-POLKEMMET "LEA-RIG" BURNS CLUB: instituted 1950; federated 1950; 

25 members; Secretary, Gilmore D. Rankin, 2 Croft Road, 
Harthill, Lanarkshire. 

715-IRVINE EGLINTON BURNS CLUB: instituted 1950; federated 1950; 

members; Secretary, Thomas Hunter, Eglinton Arms Hotel, 
Irvine. 

716-ROYAL CALEDONIAN SOCIETY OP MELBOURNE: instituted 1856; 

federated 1950; 400 members; Secretary (Vacancy). 

717-GATESIDE JOLLY BEGGARS BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 
1950; members; Secretary, W. R. Brackenridge, 9 Main Street, 
Beith, Ayrshire. 

718-THE ST. ANDREW SOCIETY OP YORK: instituted 18~rH federated 1950; 

200 members; Secretary, H. Hutchison, 28 Beech Grove, Acomb, 
York. 

71g-cHELMSPORD AND DISTRICT SCOTTISH SOCIETY: instituted 1934; 

federated 1950; 250 members; Secretary, D. W. Cobb, M.P.S., 
Kiloran, Baddow Hall Avenue, Great Baddow, Chelmsford. 

720-RETPORD AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted 1949; 

federated 1950; 88 members; Secretary, E. McGhee Rattray, 10 

Woodbeck, Retford, Notts. 

721-THE PLYMOUTH BURNS CLUB: instituted 1948; federated 1950; 

150 members; Secretary, Miss Margaret G. Rowan, 37 Browning 
Road, Milehouse, Plymouth. 

722--BRIDLINGTON AND DISTRICT CALEDONIAN SOCIETY: instituted ; 
federated 1950; members; Secretary, A. B. Mitchell, M.A., 
17 Savage Road, Bridlington, E. Yorks. 

Page 987



BURNS CLUBS AND SCO'M'ISH SOCIETIES 87 

723-sTllATHPEPPER BURNS CLUB: instituted 1929; federated 1950; 8o 
members; Secretary, William Fairholm, Ardival Terrace, Strath
peffer, Ross-shire. 

724-SHOTTS BURNS CLUB: instituted 1950; federated 1950; 45 members; 
Secretary, Thomas Gray, M.A., 17 Windsor Street, Shotts. 

725-BEN CLEUCH BURNS CLUB: instituted ; federated 1950; 

members; Secretary, R. M. Murray, 40 Stirling Street, Tillicoultry. 

726-MELBOURNE BURNS CLUB: instituted 1950; federated 1951; 87 
members; Secretary, J. A. Dyall, 45 Davies Street, East Brunswick, 
N.ro, Victoria, Australia. 

Page 988



No. 
709 
40 
20 

516 
493 

2 

595 
252 
618 
309 
3~ 
634 
421 
238 
557 
452 
'73 
649 
496 
566 
275 
435 
192 
495 
372 
619 

~ 
218 
439 
593 
363 
579 
288 
643 

15 
477 
614 
725 
592 
167 
184 
645 
478 
476 
549 
663 
694 

ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 

ON TCIE ROLL 

A' the Airts, Halbeath 
Aberdeen 
Airdrie 
Airts (Castlepark) 
Akxon 
Alexandria 
Allanton "Brig o' Doon" Ladies 
Alloway 
Altrincham Caledonian Soc. 
Annan 

Ladies 
Arbroath 
Ardeer Jolly Beggars 
Arrochar & Tarbet 
Atlanta 
-- Ladies 
Auchterderran Bonnie Jca 1 

-- Highland Mary 
Auld AfBcck 
-- Hoose 
Australia, Scot. Soc. of 
Ayr 
-- Tam o' Shanter 
Ayrshire Assoc. 
Baghdad 
Baillieston Jean Armour 
Bainsford Cross-Roads 
Ballochmyle, Comrie (1 re; 
Banchory 
Bannock burn 
Barnsley 
Barrmill Jolly Beggars 
Barrow 
Bathgate Tam o' Shani 
Bcitli 
-- Tam o' Shantcr 
Belfast 
Bellahouston 
Bellshill Caledonian 
Ben Cleuch 
Ben what 
Birmingham 
Blairadim 
Bo'ness Jolly Begprs 
Bonnie Doon Ladies 
Border Cities (Ont.) 
Bothwell Bonnie Lesley Ladiea 
Bournemouth 
Brawling Coyle, Rankinston 

Brcchin 
Bridgeton 
Bridlington 
Brighton's Cronies, Maddiston 
Bristol 
Budhill and Springboig 
Buffalo 
Burnbank 
Burnley 
Burns Bowling Association 
Burns House 
Burns Howif 
Calcutta 
Callander 
Cambus (Tullibody) 
Cambusbarron 
Cambuslang Tam o' Shanter 
-- Wingate 
Carlisle 
Carlisle Highland Assoc. 
Carron Bridge Cronies 
Castle Douglas 
Chelmsford 
Cheltenham 
Chesterfield 
Clear Winding Devon Alva 
Coalburn Jolly Beggars 
Coalsnaughton 
Coatbridge Home Guard 
Colinton 
Corby 
Coventry 
Cowdenbcath "Mountain Daisy" 

Ladies 
Coylton 
Craigmark and Burnton 
Cumbernauld 
Cum brae 
Cumnock 
-- Dumfriea Arms 
-- Jolly Beggars 
-- Winsome Willie 
Cu par 
Cuyahoga County 
Dalkeith Plough 
Dalmuir 
Dairy 
Dalserf 
Darlin pm 

Page 989



ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS ll9 
No. No. 

345 Dcnbeath 702 Grccnock Foundry Masonic Assoc. 
469 Denny Cross 538 -- Past Prcs. Assoc. 
6'J6 -- British Lc&ion 383 -- R. N. T. F. Heather 
55 Derby 209 -- St. John's 

701 Detroit 254 -- Victoria 
556 Doncaster 400 Haddington 
678 Douglas 33 Haggis 
4o6 Dublin 152 Hamilton 

10 Dumbarton 700 -- Jubilee 
226 Dumfries 121 -- Junior 
437 -- Ladies No. 1 640 -- White Heather 
503 Dunblane 555 Harrogate 

14 Dundee 492 Harrow 
659 -- Burns Society 537 Harthill Young Cronies 
656 Dundonald Jean Armour Ladies' 668 Harthill and Eastficld 
69 Dunedin N .z. 379 Hartl~ls 
85 Dunfermline 239 Hawi 

550 Dunoon M~ Campbell 644 Heiton 
466 Dykehead ton Water 446 Herefordshire 
5o6 -- Jean Armour 582 Higginsneuk 
526 -- Tam o' Shanter 402 H1ihland Mary Ladies 
22 Edinburgh 684 H' ls of Dunipacc, Larbcrt 

307 -- Ayrshire Assoc. 574 Holytown 
378 -- District Assoc. 341 Inverkip 
571 Edmonton 691 Inverness 
149 Elgin 173 Irvine 
470 -- St. Giles 715 Eglinton 
217 Eskdale 372 Jean Armour (Baillicston) 
704 Evesham and District Calcd. 348 -- (Newton) 

Society 635 -- (Tranent) 
126 Falkirk ~ 

-- (Windsor, Ont.) 
380 -- Cross Keys Johnstone Tam o' Shantcr 

657 Fallin 655 Keanoway Jolly Beggars 
377 Kilbirnie 533 Fauldhousc 

Kilmarnock 262 Fifeshire Assoc. 0 

498 Flint 681 -- Cronies 

525 -- Jolly Beggars 695 Kilmaronock (Dunbartonshire) 
576 Fort Matilda 623 Kilwinni~ 
598 Forth Jolly Beggars 713 Kind w· c 

403 Fraserburgh 213 Kingston 
627 Kinross Jolly Beggars 

665 Gartmorn Ladies 616 Kirkconncl and Sanquhar 
717 Gateside Jolly Bef:gars 323 Kirkcudbright 
467 Gilbcrtficld High and Mary 693 Kirkcudbright Masonic 
636 Gisborne, New Zealand 463 Kirkford Bonnie Jean 
59' Glaisnock 388 Kyle Ladies 
169 Glasgow Assoc. 670 Kyleakin 
653 -- Ex-Service Teachers 578 Lanarkshire B.C.A. 
263 -- Masonic 66o Langholm Ladies 

3 -- Tam o' Shanter ~lr Larkhall Applcbank 
427 Gorebridge Glencairn Leamington and Warwick 
198 -- Jolly Beggars 548 Leeds 
430 Gourock 461 Leicester 
59 -- Jolly Beggars 341 Leith 
53 Govan Fairfield 366 Liverpool 
~ Grahamston 520 Lochlie Ladies 

21 Grecnock 625 Lockcrbie 

Page 990



BURNS FEDERATION YEAR BOOK 

London 
-- Ayrshire Soc. 
-- Clans Assoc. 
London (Ontario) 
Londonderry 
Lord Clyde, Chappington 
Loughborough 
Malvern Scots Club 
Manchester and Salford 
Mary Campbell (Cambuslang) 
Mauchline 
Maybole St. Cuthbert's 
Meikle Earnock 
Melbourne 
-- North and West Scots 

Society 
-- Royal Caledonian Society 
Mid and East Lothian 
Moffat and District 
Montrose 
Motherwell United Services 
Muirhead 
Muir kirk 
Mundijong and District Caled. 
Society 

Mussclburgh 
National 
National Memorial 
New Cumnock 
New Stevenston 
N.S.W. Highland Soc. 
New York Masonic 
Newark 
Newarthill 
-- White Heather 
Newbattle 
Ncwcraighall 
Newton Jean Armour 
Newtown (Paisley) 
Ninety 
Norfolk 
North Lindsey Scots Society 
Northwich and District 
Nottingham 
Oakbank 
Ohan 
Ochiltree 
Ormiston 
Paisley 
Parramatta 
Partick 
Pencaitland 
Perth (West Australia) 
Peterhead 
Philadelphia North-eastern 
-- Ladies 
Pirn Hall 

No. 

677 
721 
535 
714 
688 
190 
212 
181 
689 
479 
585 
617 
373 
472 
720 
608 
6o6 
471 
36 

641 
454 
610 
354 

9 
642 
671 
470 
220 

399 
618 
680 
413 
68 

629 
426 
551 
314 
153 
621 
510 
484 
405 
91 

724 
283 
589 
53° 
675 
182 
628 
409 

50 
324 
458 
638 
683 
670 

Plummet Masonic 
Plymouth 
Plymouth Caledonian Society 
Polkemmet 
Poosie Nansie Ladies, Kirkcaldy 
Port-Glasgow 
Portobello 
Primrose 
Prince Rupert (B.C.) 
Queen of the South Ladies 
Queen's Park Clarinda 
Reading Caledonian Assoc. 
Red Hill 
Renfrewshire Assoc. 
Rctford 
Riccarton Wallace 
Rockinfham 
Rose o Grange 
Rosebery (Glas.) 
Rosewell 
Rotherham 
"Royal Arch" 
Royal Clan 
Royalty 
Rutherglen 
St. Andrew's Cronies, Irvine 
St. Giles 
St. Louis 
St. Ringans 
Sale Caledonian Soc. 
Saltcoats Thistle 
San Francisco 
Sandyford 
Sanquhar 
Sauchie 
Scarborough 
Scottish (Edin.) 
Scottish (Glas.) 
Scottish Aviation 
Scottish Dyes Club 
Sheddens Ladies 
Sheffield 
Shettleston 
Shotts 
Sinclairtown 
Sol way 
Southern Scot. Counties 
Southern Africa 
Stane Mossgiel 
Stcclend Jolly Beggars 
Stenhouscmuir 
Stirling 
Stockton 
Stonehavcn 
Stonehouse 
Stratford upon Avon 
Strath, Kyleakin 

Page 991



ALPHABETICAL LIST OF CLUBS 91 

No. 
42 Strathearn 

723 Strathpeffer 
8g Sunderland 

444 Swansea 
632 Symington 

3 Tam o' Shanter (Glas.) 
441 Temple 

7 Thistle 
667 Thornton 
710 Toronto 
612 Torrance Masonic 
635 Tranent Jean Armour 
613 -- No. 1 
271 Trenton 
274 Troon 
320 Troy 
679 Tullibody and Cambus 
6g8 Turriff 
520 Uddingston Lochlie Ladies 
237 -- Masonic 
666 Valley of Doon Ladies 
443 Victoria (B.C.) 
303 -- St. Andrew's Soc. 

No. 
7u Victorian Scottish Union 
436 Walney Ladies 
296 Walsall 
521 Waratah-Mayfield 
449 Wellington (N .z.) 
497 -- St. Andrew 
664 West Kilbride 
615 West Lothian Assoc. 
392 Whifflct 
236 Whitehaven 
536 Whithorn 
6g6 Whitley Bay and District 
432 Winchburgh 
575 Windsor (Ont.) Jean Armour 
197 Winnipeg 
564 Winsome Willie, Ochiltree 

86 -- Old Cumnock 
505 Wishaw Masonic 
553 Wolverhampton 
518 Ye Auld Cronies 
654 Yew Tree, Ormiston 
718 York St. Andrew Society 

Page 992



.... 

Page 993



Page 994



Printed by William Hodge & Company, Limited, Glasgow and Edinburgh. Page 995



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 997



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

Mr Mark Graham 
per PD Architecture 
16 Riverside View 
East Broomlands 
KELSO 
Scottish Borders 
 

Please ask for: 
 
 

Euan Calvert 
01835 826513 

Our Ref: 20/01327/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 2nd June 2021 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of dwellinghouse 
 
APPLICANT:  Mr Mark Graham 
 
 

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   
 
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 
 

Page 999

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 
 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

 

Application for Planning Permission   Reference : 20/01327/FUL 

 

To :     Mr Mark Graham per PD Architecture 16 Riverside View East Broomlands KELSO Scottish 
Borders TD5 7UG  

 
With reference to your application validated on 3rd November 2020 for planning permission under the Town 
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 
 

 
Proposal :   Erection of dwellinghouse 
 

 

 
at :   Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton  Scottish Borders   

 

 
The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached 
schedule. 
 
Dated 28th May 2021 
Regulatory Services 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE     
TD6 0SA   

                   
   John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 1000

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


 

                                                                                                                                                                                

                  Regulatory Services 
 

 

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
 

         

 
APPLICATION REFERENCE :  20/01327/FUL 
 
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused: 
 
Plan Ref   Plan Type   Plan Status 

 
A LOCATION PLAN Location Plan   Refused 
009   Proposed Site Plan  Refused 
010   Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused 
006   Proposed Plans   Refused 
007   Proposed Elevations  Refused 
008   Proposed Roof Plan  Refused 
 
 
 REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1 The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: 

Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in 
additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular 
and pedestrian, and it has not been demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the 
access, as specified, can be carried out.  

 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 
 
  
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice.  
 
The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The Local 
Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells. 
TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk.  The standard form and guidance notes can 
be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision.  Appeals to the Local Review Body can also be made via the 
Scottish Government Planning and Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD 
 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 
 
  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 1001

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
mailto:localreview@scotborders.gov.uk
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/20050/planning_applications/533/appeal_a_planning_decision
https://www.dpea.scotland.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



From: Hayward, Julie 

Sent: 27 May 2021 15:13 

To: Calvert, Euan 

Subject: RE: 20/01327/FUL 

 

Hi 

 

I agree the recommendation. 

 

Thanks 

 

Julie 

 

Julie Hayward 

Team Leader  

Development Management 

Planning, Housing and Related Services  

Corporate Improvement and Economy 

Scottish Borders Council 

 

Tel: 01835 825585 

 

E-mail: jhayward2@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

Please do not print this e-mail unless absolutely necessary - SAVE PAPER 

 

Find out more about Scottish Borders Council: Web | Twitter | Facebook | 

Flickr | YouTube 

 

From: Calvert, Euan <ECalvert@scotborders.gov.uk>   

Sent: 24 May 2021 10:27  

To: Hayward, Julie <JHayward2@scotborders.gov.uk>  

Subject: 20/01327/FUL 

 

Dear Julie 

Please find a report of handling in the system for your consideration. 

I will send a ppa to the agent to let them know of a decision being 

issued before the end of this week. 

Many thanks 

 

Euan Calvert 

Assistant Planning Officer (Development Management) 

Planning, Housing & Related Services 

Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, 

MELROSE, TD6 0SA 

Tel: 01835 826513 | ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Page 1003



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 

                                                     John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager               

 

  

 
 

Mr Mark Graham 
per PD Architecture 
16 Riverside View 
East Broomlands 
KELSO 
Scottish Borders 
 

Please ask for: 
 

Euan Calvert  
 01835 826513 

Our Ref: 20/01327/FUL 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail: ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
Date: 4th November 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 
PLANNING APPLICATION AT:  Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of dwellinghouse 
 
I refer to the Planning Application for the above site registered on 3rd November 2020. 
 
Please be advised that, in terms of current Planning Policy, it would provisionally appear that the 
following Development Contributions are required in respect of your Planning Application: 
 

 Education and Lifelong Learning 
 
This requirement currently totals £2,978, though the amount to be settled may change over time as 

some contributions are indexed annually with effect from 1 April. 
 
Applicants for developments exceeding 16 residential units will be required to provide a proportion 
of them as Affordable Housing in compliance with Scottish Borders Council’s Affordable Housing 
Policy Guidance. 
 
Please note that this comprises a provisional indication of contribution requirements. 
Additional service provision, such as for play facilities or road improvements for example, 
may also be sought, these being identified in the course of processing the application. The 
necessity for and level of contributions required may change. I will write to you again 
should that be the case. 

 
A Legal Agreement to govern the terms of contribution settlement will therefore need to be 
concluded, in the event that the application is approved. Please find below Summary Guidance 
notes to assist you with this matter. 
 
Please contact me within the next 21 days to confirm: 
 

 The type of Legal Agreement (i.e. Section 69 or Section 75) the applicants will 
enter into 

 The applicant’(s’) full name, including all middle names, and current address 
if different to the address stated on the planning application form 

 Contact details of the applicant’(s’) solicitor (if a Section 75 agreement) 

 If on-site affordable housing is a requirement noted above, then please 
confirm the mechanism the applicant(s) propose for delivering affordable 
housing and its location within the site. 

 
A Planning Processing Agreement will also be required to cover the additional time required to 
process the Legal Agreement, unless a PPA has been entered into for this application to cover 
other matters.  
 

Page 1005

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

 
 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk 

 
 

 

I will contact you again in due course, depending on the progress of the Planning Application, to 
advise you further on the need for a PPA. The Planning Authority will only instruct a Legal 
Agreement where a Planning Processing Agreement is in place which specifies agreed timescales 
that cover the processing and conclusion of the Legal Agreement.   
 
In the meantime, I would be grateful if you could provide the information required above within 21 
days of the date of this letter.  
 

To view Planning Application information on-line visit: 
http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ 
To view other Planning information visit: www.scotborders.gov.uk 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
John Hayward 
 
Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 1006

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


 

 
 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 

Development Contributions 
Introduction 

 

This note provides brief guidance on Development Contributions which Scottish Borders Council 

(SBC) may require Planning Applicants to agree to settle in respect of their development proposals. 

More detailed information can be found in Guidance Notes on the Council website, hard copy 

supplied upon request, and applicants are encouraged to access and familiarise themselves with 

them accordingly. 

 

Before submitting any Application for Planning Permission you should check whether it 

complies with all relevant planning policies and guidance.  A development proposal that does 

not satisfy Planning Policy and guidance will not be supported just because a Development 

Contribution is agreed to be settled. 

 

The need for Development Contributions 

 

Development Contributions help the Council to provide proper, and necessary, infrastructure, 

services and facilities.  They can allow developments to proceed that might otherwise have to be 

refused Planning Permission were there insufficient existing infrastructure, service and facility 

capacity to support the development proposal.   

 

Where there is no identified infrastructure, service or facility expansion requirement, Development 

Contributions will not be sought. 

 

Examples of infrastructures, services and facilities for which contributions may be required include, 

but are not restricted to, Affordable Housing, Waverley Line Project, school extension or new 

provision, transport projects, access provision, play facility enhancement and open space. 

 

SBC Development Contribution policy reflects Scottish Government (SG) policy. The main 

document setting out SG policy on this matter is Planning Circular 3-2012 - Planning Obligations 

and Good Neighbour Agreements. 

 

More details on SBC Development Contribution policy, including current Waverley Line and 

School contribution rates, are published in Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 

Complying with Development Contribution Policy 

 

Where a Planning Application is identified to generate a requirement for Development 

Contributions a Legal Agreement shall need to be concluded between the Applicant, Landowner if 

different, the Council and any other party with an interest. The Legal Agreement will set out what 

contributions shall be paid and when. It will also specify for what purpose the Council can spend 

the contributions and within what timeframes. The consequences of not conforming with the 

associated obligations for parties to the Legal Agreement will also be detailed. 

 

Planning Permission will not be released by the Authority until the Legal Agreement process is 

completed. Where a necessary Legal Agreement is not concluded within 3 months of the 

commencement of negotiations, the Planning Authority will review its decision. 

Page 1007

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/download/92/development_contributions
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2012/12/1885/0
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/14/supplementary_planning_guidance/category/28


 

 
 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 

The Council offers applicants two Legal Agreement options to settle Development Contributions - 

Section 69 (s69) and Section 75 (s75) Legal Agreements. Links to more information on the 

differences between, and implications of, these Legal Agreement types are detailed below. All 

potential Planning Applicants are strongly encouraged to read and consider these Guidance 

Notes accordingly. 

 

Essentially, s69s are quicker and cheaper to conclude than s75s and do not attract SBC Legal Fees 

or Recording Dues. However, the Applicant is required to make full settlement of identified 

contributions prior to the release of Planning Permission and the commencement of the proposed 

development. 

 

S75s allow contribution settlement to be deferred to a mutually agreeable point in the future e.g. 

upon completion, occupation, habitation or sale of houses. The contributions can therefore be 

settled once cash-flow is realised from the proposed project or borrowing capacity achieved. 

However, these are more complex legal documents than s69s, need to be registered as a burden 

against title, and consequently attract SBC Legal Fees (£315 - £525) and Recording Dues (£60). 

They also take longer to complete than s69s therefore potentially impacting on the time taken to 

release Planning Permission, this authorising the development to start.  

 

As a result, SBC encourages the drafting of Legal Agreements prior to the Application’s 

determination and Applicants are asked to enter into an associated Processing Agreement. Although 

not legally binding, these will set out the dates by which key actions necessary to conclude the 

Legal Agreement process will be undertaken by the respective parties to it. Where appropriate, 

these target dates can, by mutual agreement, be amended. 

 

SBC only seeks settlement of Legal Fees where the associated Planning Application is 

approved. 

 

Information Resources 

 

Scottish Borders Council’s Website provides a wide range of information to assist your decision 

making should you consider applying for Planning Permission for a development proposal. 

 

Internet 

Information on the Website is available free of charge.   

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/161/planning-and_building_standards 

 

More detailed information on SBC Development Contribution policy, Legal Agreements and 

Affordable Housing policy can be obtained from the SBC Website. 

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/14/supplementary_planning_guidance/category/28 

 

Planning Briefs provide information on SBC’s guidelines and requirements, including Developer 

Contributions, of a particular key site or collection of sites. 

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/15/planning_briefs/category/30 

 

If you do not have access to a computer at home, internet accessible computers are available to use 

free of charge in all SBC libraries.  Booking of this service is advisable.  Contact Library 

Headquarters for more information.  Tel:  01750 726400. 

 

Page 1008

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/info/161/planning-and_building_standards
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/14/supplementary_planning_guidance/category/28
http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/directory/15/planning_briefs/category/30


 

 
 

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk 

 
 

 

Hard copies of the Structure Plan, Local Plan and Supplementary Planning Guidance notes 

may be obtained from: 

Planning and Regulatory Services 

Council Headquarters 

Newtown St Boswells 

Melrose 

TD6 0SA 

 

Tel:  0300 100 1800 

Email: localplan@scotborders.gov.uk 

 

There will normally be a charge for these documents. 

Hard copies of these documents are available for inspection at SBC libraries as well as 

Council HQ – contact Library Headquarters for more information. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1009

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:localplan@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1011



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

1
1

1 1

1
1

1

2 2

2

2

2 2

2 2

3
3 3 3

3

3
3

3
3 3

3

3

3 3

3

4 44

4
4

4

4

4 4

4

4

5

5

5

5

6
7 7

7
7

77

6

6

6

66

6 6

8

8 8

9
9

9 9
9

9 9
9 9 9

9

9

9 9

9

10

10

10

11

12

12

12

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE LAYOUT Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

007

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SOUTH, EAST + WEST Elevations.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 009.

P
age 1013



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

joe@brownshore.co.uk

From: John Patterson <john@patterson-architecture.co.uk>
Sent: 19 January 2021 09:12
To: Calvert, Euan
Subject: 20/01327/FUL HEITON
Attachments: 2001327FUL Amended 19-01=2021.pdf

CAUTION: External Email  

 
Morning Euan, 
 
I trust you are well? 
 
Please find attached, copy of the amended drawings for the above Planning Application. The following amendments 
are indicated on the attached drawings: 

 Window removed from Bedroom 3, replaced with a VELUX combination window, Vertical element to be 
gazed with obscure glass, as indicated on the drawings. 

 Window facing Hillcrest in the Master Bedroom to be glazed with obscure glass. 
 A new BEECH Hedge 1800mm high, to be planted along the East and North boundaries, as privacy and 

overlooking screening. 
 The Conifer tree to be felled. 

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Thanks, 

John. 

--  

Kind regards, 

John Patterson 
Architectural Consultant> 

 

16, Riverside View, KELSO, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.  
M: 07850 327 677 
T: 01573 226553 
www.patterson-architecture.co.uk 
Also at Lowestoft, Suffolk, England 
T: 01502 806989 
E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

Page 1015



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1017



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bed 1500 x 2000

Shower
1700
x 700

w.c.

w.h.b.

w.h.b.

w.c.

Bath
1700

Family
Bathroom

Shower
1600
x 700

83
8

83
8

w.h.b.
838

83
8

76
2

76
2

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs

C
oa

ts

83
8

Fully Glazed Screen

Fully Glazed Screen

838 Fu
lly

 G
la

ze
d

 S
cr

ee
n

838 Sliding Doors

Bed 1400 x 2000

wardrobehwc

Bed 1400 x 2000

83
8

76
2

83
8

83
8

76
2

Po
ck

et
 S

lid
in

g 
D

oo
r

w.c.

w.h.b.





C
oa

ts
 +

 B
oo

ts

Linen

Master
Bedroom

Bed 3

Bed 2

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs
83

8
83

8
83

8

762 762

762

w
ar

dr
ob

e

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

sink

Hob

sink

wc

83
8

Oven

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs

WM
under

Wall Cupds
over

Sl
id

in
g 

D
oo

rs
76

2
76

2

Lounge

Kitchen

Dining

Utility

800

800

Solid Fuel BurnerPa
tio

 D
oo

rs

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Fridge/
Freezer

1
13

3 3

3

3 3

4

4

4 4

5

6

6

2

2

7
7

8

9

9 9 9 9

10

11

12

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

6100

14
60

0

7600

79
00

48
00

7900

19
00

5800

13700

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE LAYOUT Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

006

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevation.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION  PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 009.

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

P
age 1019



T
his page is intentionally left blank



    
 
 

 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 
 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF CASE 

Application Ref: 20/01327/FUL 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, 
Heiton, Scottish Borders  

Page 1021



 
 

Page 2 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 

 

 

 

TYPE OF DOCUMENT (VERSION) PUBLIC 

 

PROJECT NO. V.1 

OUR REF. JN/HEITON/1.1 

 

DATE: JULY 2021 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Brownshore Management Ltd 
M54 Space Centre 
Halesfield 9 
Telford 
TF7 4QN 
 

Page 1022



 
 

Page 3 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

DOCUMENT REVIEW  
 

Issue/Revision Report Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 

Comments     

Date  JULY 2021    

Prepared by JN    

Signature     

Checked by JN    

Signature     

Authorised by JN    

Signature     

 

Page 1023



 
 

Page 4 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

CONTENTS 
 

 

Document Review ...................................................................................................... 3 

Contents ..................................................................................................................... 4 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................... 5 

2. Planning Application ............................................................................................ 7 

3. Grounds of Appeal ............................................................................................... 8 

4. Conclusion ......................................................................................................... 13 

 

  

Page 1024



 
 

Page 5 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Background  

1.1. This Statement of Case is prepared by Joe Nugent MRTPI of Brownshore 

Management (“the Agent”) against the refusal by Scottish Borders Council (“the 

LPA”) of an application for the erection of a dwelling house (“the development”) 

on land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders (“the Appeal 

site”). 

Personal Statement 

1.2. This Statement of Case has been written by Joe Nugent MRTPI. Town Planning 

experience has been gained over 20 years in both the public (Development 

Control, Policy, and Planning Enforcement) and private sectors. 

 

1.3. For reference purposes the planning application details on the Council’s Public 

Access state: 

 

APPLICATION NO.: 20/01327/FUL 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Erection of dwellinghouse 

LOCATION: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders 

Planning History  

1.4. R127/94 

The Officer Report states: In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the 

site was granted and subsequently lapsed in 1999. The Planning Committee 

approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and 

Transportation. The Planning Committee stated, "the bungalow is (would be) 

located on an in-fill site which has already demonstrated its ability to 

accommodate a house when used for the chalet." 

 

1.5. 04/01984/OUT 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage 

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Kelso Scottish Borders 

Decision: Approved 

 

1.6. 05/00012/REM 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and garage 

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Kelso Scottish Borders 

Decision: Approved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1025



 
 

Page 6 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 Development Plan 

1.7 In preparing this appeal statement, full regard has been had to the relevant 

policies in the Development Plan. 

Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016 

PMD2: Quality Standards 

PMD5: Infill Development 

HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

EP13: Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows 

IS2: Developer Contributions 

IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 

IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Developer Contributions, April 2015 

Guidance on Householder Developments, July 2006 

Placemaking and Design, 2010 

Landscape and Development, 2008 

 

 

 

  

Page 1026



 
 

Page 7 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

2. PLANNING APPLICATION 

Application Documents 

2.1. The planning application was received by the LPA on 3 November 2020 and 

accompanied by the necessary level of documents including: 

a) Application Form 

b) Location Plan 

c) Certificate of Ownership 

d) Supporting Documentation 

• Site Layout Plan 

• Site Plan Sections 

• Elevations 

• Floor Plans 

• Elevations and Roof Plan 

• Privacy and Overlooking Plan 

• Roof Plan 

• Site photographs (illustrating the residential use and character of the 

site) 

 

2.2. Following submission to the LPA, Brownshore Management was instructed as 

Planning Agent with the aim to discuss, mediate and mitigate matters with the 

Case Officer and the LPA. 

 

2.3. Additional supporting statements were submitted by the Planning Agent during 

discussions with the Case Officer and prior to the determination of the planning 

application. 

  

Page 1027



 
 

Page 8 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

3. GROUNDS OF APPEAL 

Main Issues 

3.1. The Decision Notice letter was issued on 2 June 2021 (the decision is dated 28 

May 2021). 

 

3.2. The Decision Notice issued by the LPA states one refusal reason. 

 

1. The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality 

Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 

2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a 

substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and 

pedestrian, and it has not been demonstrated that the improvements 

required to upgrade the access, as specified, can be carried out. 

 

Refusal Reason - Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) 

3.3 Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) focuses upon four criteria; sustainability, 

placemaking & design, accessibility, and greenspace, open space & biodiversity. 

3.4 The refusal reason by the Case Officer is wholly focused upon vehicular traffic and 

access, therefore criteria o) to s) of Policy PMD2 are relevant (accessibility). 

3.5 In terms of the criteria these include: 

 o) – The development would directly connect to the existing vehicular access that 

provided for the previous residential dwelling at the site. This right of vehicular 

access is within the Land Registry Deeds1 for the land and remains a civil right of 

access. 

 

p) – The access retains the ability for access for those with mobility issues in 

terms of width and gradient of the access. 

q) – This matter is debated by the LPA who consider the development would 

“result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of 

road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian”. 

 

 

 
1 Appendix 1 

Page 1028



 
 

Page 9 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Scottish Water 

The material consideration is that the site for a significant period (and prior to the 

neighbouring dwellings) accommodated a residential dwelling (Named: Khinsper) 

and correspondence from Scottish Water2 during the Reserved Matters application 

(05/00012/REM) states that the; 

“plan confirmed that the above proposed development and the rebuild of 

Khinsper property is in the same location.  

 Furthermore; 

“…the property has an existing sewer connection therefore we will permit the use 

of the existing connection for domestic purposes only” 

 The correspondence from Scottish Water confirms that the development was to 

rebuild the former residential dwelling (Name: Khinsper) and this would connect 

to the existing water and sewer infrastructure that serviced Khinsper. 

 It is reasonable to establish that existing residential water and sewer connection 

would be in situ if they served a residential property. 

 The previous residential property (Khinsper), and the site is served by the 

Scottish Water and demonstrates the established residential use of the site. 

 Planning Application 04/01984/OUT 

 Following discussions and a request to the Case Officer, the following information 

was provided. This included the Planning Committee text for 04/01984/OUT, and 

this states; 

Planning approval for neighbouring houses was obtained in the mid 1970's and 

four houses subsequently built, with the application site being land containing a 

chalet which was removed, although the cleared site has remained undeveloped. 

“…the Director of Planning’s advice to the Committee in 1994 was that "the 

bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill site which has already demonstrated 

its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet.  The determining 

issue with this application is that of the access road.  While I share some of the 

concern of the Director of Roads and Transportation, I believe that this application 

is not creating a worse situation to that which existed when the original chalet 

was in use.  I therefore do not believe that there are sufficient grounds upon 

which to justify refusal of the application" 

The discussions, advice from the Director of Planning, and the decision of the 

Planning Committee recognised that the site is in-fill site and had already 

demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet, also 

that the application is not creating a worse situation to that which existed when 

the original chalet was in use. 

 

 

 
2 Appendix 2 

Page 1029



 
 

Page 10 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Conclusion 

Therefore, the Council and the LPA, Scottish Water, and the Director of Planning 

during the Planning Committee all acknowledge that the site is the rebuild of an 

existing residential dwelling. The development is that of a brownfield site with an 

established residential use. 

Therefore, the vehicular access to the site has been confirmed as accepted for 

residential use, accepted for utility companies to access for installation and 

repairs, and is a legal right of the landowner within their Land Registry Deeds. 

r) – Is not considered relevant in this instance. 

s) – Requires adequate space for the turning of vehicles, including those for 

waste collection purposes. Firstly, the site is an establish residential site and has 

maintained suitable access and turning areas for vehicles, furthermore the plans 

for the development were updated by the Architect and demonstrate the vehicles 

at the site can turn access, turn, and egress. 

Refusal Reason - Policy PMD5 (Infill) 

3.6 The LPA use PMD5 as a refusal reason. This policy relates to infill development 

and includes criteria a) to f). 

3.7 In this instance, the development: 

a) Accords with the established land use of the area (residential); 

b) The dwelling is of a scale, mass, and design compatible with the local character 

of the residential area; 

c) The redevelopment of the site will re-establish a residential dwelling and 

achieve infill development. 

d) The dwelling is of a scale, mass, and design compatible with the local character 

of the residential area; 

e) The factor in this criterion is whether adequate access can be achieved. It has 

been established in this document that the Council and the LPA, Scottish Water, 

and the Director of Planning during the Planning Committee all acknowledge that 

the site is the rebuild of a previous residential dwelling. 

The development is that of a brownfield site with an established residential land 

use, with an established vehicular access and egress. 

Therefore, the vehicular access at the site has been confirmed as accepted for 

residential use, accepted for utility companies to access for installation and 

repairs, and is also a legal right of the landowner within their Land Registry 

Deeds. 

f) Updated plans have been confirmed with the Case Officer and the LPA to affirm 

there would be no loss of sunlight or privacy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 1030



 
 

Page 11 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

Officer Report 

3.8 The Case Officer report states: 

1) The proposal does not conflict with the established land use; 

2) The site has previously been an acceptable infill development opportunity. In 

terms of design, the building presented would be a suitable addition to the 

neighbouring built form, both appearing modern but retaining similar form as the 

neighbouring bungalows. I am satisfied that development would appear 

contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours, specifically noting that 

Craimar opposite features 1.5 storey form. 

3) A further residential dwelling would contribute to sustaining the social and 

economic infrastructure of Heiton. 

4) I am satisfied that the building to plot ratio are within the margins of 

acceptability in terms of scale, form, design, materials and density and are not 

dissimilar to the previous approval. 

6) I do not identify any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to 

neighbouring properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking (owing to the 

appropriate choice of floor level, cut into the slope). 

3.9 Within the Case Officer report 5 out of 6 sections demonstrate support for the 

development. Section 5 refers to the discussions with the Agent that the previous 

permission was implemented, information was discussed with the Case Officer 

that planning permission 04/01984/OUT/ and the promptly submitted 

05/00012/REM have been implemented and development commenced. 

 Commencement of Development 

3.10 The Application (and landowner) confirmed that plant equipment (including a 360 

excavator) had been brought to the site for drainage, demolition, and clearance 

operations to be carried out at site, therefore constituting development. 

3.11 The Case Officer refers to the Building Warrant, this matter has been discussed 

with the Council’s Building Standards Officer and they confirm that a Building 

Warrant is not required for drainage, demolition, and clearance operations. A 

building Warrant is focused upon the development of a habitable building. 

3.12 A development is phased, and the initial operations require drainage, demolition, 

and clearance operations. Operations then progress onto the dwelling. In this 

instance the planning permission was granted (2004) and the reserved matters 

granted (2005) and the development commenced with material operations 

including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations. 

3.13 The material operations including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations 

do not require a Building Warrant and this has been confirmed by the Council’s 

Building Standards Officer. The Council’s Building Standards Officer confirms that 

development can commence at a site without requiring a Building Warrant, and 

this took place at the site in this instance. 

3.14 The material operations including drainage, demolition, and clearance operations 

constitute commencement of development. It was confirmed to the Case Officer 

that the Applicant (landowner) would submit an Affidavit to legally demonstrate 

their case on this matter, this was not invited by the Case Officer. 

Page 1031



 
 

Page 12 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

 Residential Property 

3.15 In terms of the site being accommodated by a residential dwelling, copies of the 

Burns Chronicles (1948)3 on Page 199 of the PDF state: 

644-HEITON BURNS CLUB: federated 1947; 43 members; President, W. F. Scott-

Ker; Secretary and Treasurer, Major Dawson Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

 The property referred to in the Burns Chronicles is the property at this site and 

the property referred to by Scottish Water and the Planning Committee in 2004. 

3.16 This information is further substantiated as the Burns Chronicles (1951)4, Page 86 

of the PDF state: 

644-HEITON BURNS &LUB: instituted 1910; federated 1947; 65 members; 

Secretary, Major Dawson Bowman, Khanspur, Heiton, Kelso. 

3.17 The site included a residential property, and the occupier/resident was Major 

Dawson Bowman. 

3.18 The planning history confirms that LPA states the development is “located on an 

in-fill site which has already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house”. 

3.19 The Case Officer states there is no evidence that the site was previously occupied 

as a dwellinghouse (described as a chalet in 1994). However, this is contested as 

• OS Plans for the site illustrate a residential property; 

• The Burns Chronicles (1948 and 1952) confirm the Secretary and 

Treasurer (Major Dawson Bowman) resided at the residential property; 

• Scottish Water confirm the established infrastructure at the site serving 

the residential property; 

• The planning history confirms the LPA in their assessments and Planning 

Committees accept the site had a residential property; 

• The site retains a residential garage on the site requiring vehicular access; 

• The Land Registry Deeds confirm the right of vehicular access to the site. 

This is based upon the residential use of the land. 

3.20 The evidence available demonstrates the site accommodated a residential 

property and the development of the site is for a replacement residential dwelling 

utilising the established access and infrastructure in situ. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
3 Appendix 3 
4 Appendix 4 

Page 1032



 
 

Page 13 of 13 
JULY 2021  PUBLIC 

4. CONCLUSION 
 

4.1 To provide a conclusion and having considered the appropriate national and local 

planning policies and guidance the proposed development accords with each of 

the policies assessed and with planning guidance. 

 

4.2 On balance, the Case Officer in their officer report identify one reason for refusal 

and this relates to highways. 

 

4.3 There are several material considerations set out within the planning application 

and this Statement of Case that demonstrate material consideration weighing in 

support of the development. 

 

4.4 It has been demonstrated in the planning application, and within this Statement 

of Case, that the site has accommodated a residential dwelling and the 

redevelopment of the site is to replace the former dwelling with a replacement 

dwelling. 

 

4.5 The replacement dwelling will utilise the existing site and curtilage. It will use the 

established vehicular access and egress used by the previous residential dwelling, 

and this access is granted in perpetuity in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

4.6 The residential highways use at the site would directly accord with the lawful use 

set out in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

4.7 It has also been demonstrated that the 2004 planning permission, and the 2005 

reserved matters, was commenced by the drainage, demolition, and clearance 

operations carried out at site, therefore constituting development. 

 

4.8 In terms of a conclusion, the development of a replacement dwelling has 

previously been positively supported by the Council and the LPA. The evidence 

demonstrating the residential dwelling at the site, planning history, 

commencement of development, and the lawful use of the access in the Land 

Registry Deeds, is considered to weigh the planning balance in favour of the 

development. 

 

4.9 It is therefore kindly requested that the application / appeal be approved. 

Page 1033



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1035



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1037



Page 1038



Page 1039



Page 1040



Page 1041



Page 1042



Page 1043



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1045



This page is intentionally left blank



Bed 1500 x 2000

Shower
1700
x 700

w.c.

w.h.b.

w.h.b.

w.c.

Bath
1700

Family
Bathroom

Shower
1600
x 700

83
8

83
8

w.h.b.

838

83
8

76
2

76
2

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

C
oa

ts

83
8

Fully Glazed Screen

Fully Glazed Screen

838 Fu
lly

 G
la

ze
d

 S
c

re
e

n

838 Sliding Doors

Bed 1400 x 2000

wardrobehwc

Bed 1400 x 2000

83
8

76
2

83
8

83
8

76
2

Po
c

ke
t S

lid
in

g
 D

o
o

r

w.c.

w.h.b.

VQYGN�TCKN

VQYGN�TCKN

C
oa

ts
 +

 B
oo

ts

Linen

Master
Bedroom

Bed 3

Bed 2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

83
8

83
8

83
8

762 762

762

w
ar

dr
ob

e

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

sink

Hob

sink

wc

83
8

Oven

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

WM
under

Wall Cupds
over

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

76
2

76
2

Lounge

Kitchen

Dining

Utility

800

800

Solid Fuel BurnerPa
tio

 D
o

o
rs

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Fridge/
Freezer

1
13

3 3

3

3 3

4

4

4 4

5

6

6

2

2

7
7

8

9

9 9 9 9

10

11

12

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

6100

14
60

0

7600

79
00

48
00

7900

19
00

5800

13700

VELUX roof
window over

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.

3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.

4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.

Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each

12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

006

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevation.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION  PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1047



Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

1
1

1 1

1
1

1

2 2

2

2

2 2

2 2

3
3

3

3

3
3

3
3 3

3

3

3 3

3

4 44

4
4

4

4

4 4

4

4

5

5

5

5

6
7 7

7
7

77

6

6

6

66

6 6

8

8 8

9 9

9 9
9 9 9

9

9

9 9

9

10

10

10

11

12

12

12
16

75

14

13

15

15

9

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.

Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

007

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SOUTH, EAST + WEST Elevations.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1048



5

5

5

5

5

11

11

12

7

7

7

7

7 7

8

8
13

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

15

Tandarra

13

2

13

13
b

23

108.2m

8

29
a

Carnlea

29

31

Recreation

Hillcrest

27

11

Ground

37
12

50

630750

630800

37
13

00

Je
db

ur
gh

 - 
A

69
8 

 - 
 K

el
so

Existing Access Road

HEITON

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Date: Scale:

008

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1
1:1250 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
ROOF Plan +
Location Plan

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

Location Plan.

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

25M.0mm

True Scale at 1:1250.

50M. 75M. 100M. 125M. 150M.

Scale: 1:1250 @ A31.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1049



2929a

27

Hillcrest

Tandarra

Existing Access Road

SITE AREA = Approx 560m²
                      Approx 0.056ha

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof
Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

Pa
th

Pa
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Garage Carnlea

Garage

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

To A698 Main Kelso - Jedburgh Road.

IC

Temporary Datum on
existing BT Inspection
Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing
manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening
to be planted along West + North Boundary as
indicated on the drawings.

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

New Hedge 1800 high

Existing Conifer Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

18
00

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy
screening to be planted along West
+ North Boundary as indicated on
the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:
Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout
Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to
dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS
PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:
Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.
Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking
and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.
Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:
Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units
secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast
monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.
Standard to BS 8500-2.
Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.
Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-
From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for
sub-base thickness as below:-
Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.
Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.
Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 
material than is required to help hold the stone together.
Natural gravel.
Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.
Execution:-
Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:
Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm
thick [ maximum ].
Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or
deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take
particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling
has taken place.
Compaction of sub-base:
Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.
Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.
After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed
and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.
Blinding:-
Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.
Protection:-
Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.
Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.
Geotextile sheet:
Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.
e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.
Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].
FINISHES:-
DRIVE
Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.
General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.
PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-
Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp
To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x
60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse
6-2mm open graded crushed rock.
Copaction:
Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,
joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:
Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS
Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.
Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture
content that will give maximum compaction.
Execution:-
Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,
Blinding: all as above.
Geotextile sheet: all as above.
Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,
level and profile.
Falls: To prevent ponding.
Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.
Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce
uniform thickness and support for paving units.
Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.
Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.
Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and
adjoining finishes.
PROTECTION:-
Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to
cause damage.
Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.
Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.
Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:
The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping
above.
Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be
imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than
50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges
of new drive and finish with turf.
Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding
and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent
kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.
Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into
topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,
and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.
PRIVACY SCREENING:
1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North
boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.
FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.
DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.
DATUM -  100.000m
FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m
GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-
Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-
Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.
Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage
area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha
                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021 Suffix:

30th October
2020

SITE Plan. Date: Scale:

009

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

Scale: 1:100
1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SITE Plan + Section 01-01.

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1050



Hillcrest

Existing Access Road

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof

Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

P
a

th
P

a
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Garage

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

IC

Temporary Datum on

existing BT Inspection

Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing

manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

71°

Window

Window

Window

Door

71°

89°

108°

8850

Existing Conifer Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

113625

11900

87°

69°

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

New Hedge 1800 high

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening

to be planted along West + North Boundary as

indicated on the drawings.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

1
8
0
0

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy

screening to be planted along West

+ North Boundary as indicated on

the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:

Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout

Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to

dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS

PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:

Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.

Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking

and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.

Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:

Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units

secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast

monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.

Standard to BS 8500-2.

Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.

Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-

From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for

sub-base thickness as below:-

Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.

Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.

Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 

material than is required to help hold the stone together.

Natural gravel.

Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.

Execution:-

Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:

Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm

thick [ maximum ].

Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or

deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take

particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling

has taken place.

Compaction of sub-base:

Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.

Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.

After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed

and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.

Blinding:-

Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.

Protection:-

Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.

Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.

Geotextile sheet:

Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.

e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.

Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].

FINISHES:-

DRIVE

Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.

General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.

PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-

Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp

To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x

60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse

6-2mm open graded crushed rock.

Copaction:

Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,

joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:

Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS

Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.

Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture

content that will give maximum compaction.

Execution:-

Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,

Blinding: all as above.

Geotextile sheet: all as above.

Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,

level and profile.

Falls: To prevent ponding.

Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.

Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce

uniform thickness and support for paving units.

Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.

Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.

Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and

adjoining finishes.

PROTECTION:-

Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to

cause damage.

Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.

Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.

Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:

The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping

above.

Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be

imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than

50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges

of new drive and finish with turf.

Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding

and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent

kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.

Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into

topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,

and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.

PRIVACY SCREENING:

1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North

boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.

FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.

DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.

DATUM -  100.000m

FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m

GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-

Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-

Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.

Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage

area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha

                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:

No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and

are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021
Suffix:

19th January

2021

Date: Scale:

010

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,

Roxburghshire,

TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
Privacy + Overlooking Plan

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is

not a Construction drawing.

Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers

PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.

T:  01573 226553.

M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:

T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :

DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.

Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting

out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any

shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and

must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written

consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.

Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified

is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to

construction on site. Construction should only proceed from

drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written

consent is obtained.

Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the

works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or

components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE

drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at

their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the

project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational

and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and

does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or

neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.

The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted

with the building's and surroundings and undertake any

investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full

and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into

account all eventualities.

Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no

additional payments shall be countenanced for any

amendments to the work.

The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with

the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of

Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and

Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.

All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out

in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no

risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.

The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to

cover the prevention of accidents and injury.

All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,

suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,

good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist

subcontract recommendations and services supply and

installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be

kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for

presentation to the client.

Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and

CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all

notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.

Building Control and submit materials as required to the local

Authority Planning Department.

Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies

to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.

Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and

notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to

proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance

Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.

Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification

Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The

Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1051



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bed 1500 x 2000

Shower
1700
x 700

w.c.

w.h.b.

w.h.b.

w.c.

Bath
1700

Family
Bathroom

Shower
1600
x 700

83
8

83
8

w.h.b.

838

83
8

76
2

76
2

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

C
oa

ts

83
8

Fully Glazed Screen

Fully Glazed Screen

838 Fu
lly

 G
la

ze
d

 S
c

re
e

n

838 Sliding Doors

Bed 1400 x 2000

wardrobehwc

Bed 1400 x 2000

83
8

76
2

83
8

83
8

76
2

Po
c

ke
t S

lid
in

g
 D

o
o

r

w.c.

w.h.b.

VQYGN�TCKN

VQYGN�TCKN

C
oa

ts
 +

 B
oo

ts

Linen

Master
Bedroom

Bed 3

Bed 2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

83
8

83
8

83
8

762 762

762

w
ar

dr
ob

e

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

sink

Hob

sink

wc

83
8

Oven

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

WM
under

Wall Cupds
over

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

76
2

76
2

Lounge

Kitchen

Dining

Utility

800

800

Solid Fuel BurnerPa
tio

 D
o

o
rs

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Fridge/
Freezer

1
13

3 3

3

3 3

4

4

4 4

5

6

6

2

2

7
7

8

9

9 9 9 9

10

11

12

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

6100

14
60

0

7600

79
00

48
00

7900

19
00

5800

13700

VELUX roof
window over

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.

3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.

4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.

Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each

12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

006

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevation.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION  PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1053



Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

1
1

1 1

1
1

1

2 2

2

2

2 2

2 2

3
3

3

3

3
3

3
3 3

3

3

3 3

3

4 44

4
4

4

4

4 4

4

4

5

5

5

5

6
7 7

7
7

77

6

6

6

66

6 6

8

8 8

9 9

9 9
9 9 9

9

9

9 9

9

10

10

10

11

12

12

12
16

75

14

13

15

15

9

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.

Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

007

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SOUTH, EAST + WEST Elevations.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1054



5

5

5

5

5

11

11

12

7

7

7

7

7 7

8

8
13

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

15

Tandarra

13

2

13

13
b

23

108.2m

8

29
a

Carnlea

29

31

Recreation

Hillcrest

27

11

Ground

37
12

50

630750

630800

37
13

00

Je
db

ur
gh

 - 
A

69
8 

 - 
 K

el
so

Existing Access Road

HEITON

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Date: Scale:

008

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1
1:1250 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
ROOF Plan +
Location Plan

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

Location Plan.

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

25M.0mm

True Scale at 1:1250.

50M. 75M. 100M. 125M. 150M.

Scale: 1:1250 @ A31.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1055



2929a

27

Hillcrest

Tandarra

Existing Access Road

SITE AREA = Approx 560m²
                      Approx 0.056ha

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof
Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

Pa
th

Pa
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Garage Carnlea

Garage

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

To A698 Main Kelso - Jedburgh Road.

IC

Temporary Datum on
existing BT Inspection
Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing
manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening
to be planted along West + North Boundary as
indicated on the drawings.

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

New Hedge 1800 high

Existing Conifer Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

18
00

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy
screening to be planted along West
+ North Boundary as indicated on
the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:
Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout
Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to
dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS
PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:
Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.
Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking
and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.
Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:
Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units
secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast
monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.
Standard to BS 8500-2.
Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.
Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-
From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for
sub-base thickness as below:-
Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.
Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.
Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 
material than is required to help hold the stone together.
Natural gravel.
Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.
Execution:-
Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:
Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm
thick [ maximum ].
Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or
deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take
particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling
has taken place.
Compaction of sub-base:
Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.
Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.
After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed
and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.
Blinding:-
Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.
Protection:-
Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.
Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.
Geotextile sheet:
Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.
e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.
Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].
FINISHES:-
DRIVE
Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.
General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.
PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-
Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp
To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x
60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse
6-2mm open graded crushed rock.
Copaction:
Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,
joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:
Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS
Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.
Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture
content that will give maximum compaction.
Execution:-
Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,
Blinding: all as above.
Geotextile sheet: all as above.
Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,
level and profile.
Falls: To prevent ponding.
Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.
Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce
uniform thickness and support for paving units.
Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.
Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.
Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and
adjoining finishes.
PROTECTION:-
Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to
cause damage.
Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.
Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.
Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:
The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping
above.
Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be
imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than
50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges
of new drive and finish with turf.
Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding
and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent
kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.
Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into
topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,
and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.
PRIVACY SCREENING:
1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North
boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.
FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.
DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.
DATUM -  100.000m
FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m
GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-
Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-
Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.
Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage
area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha
                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021 Suffix:

30th October
2020

SITE Plan. Date: Scale:

009

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

Scale: 1:100
1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SITE Plan + Section 01-01.

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1056



Hillcrest

Existing Access Road

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof

Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

P
a

th
P

a
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Garage

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

IC

Temporary Datum on

existing BT Inspection

Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing

manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

71°

Window

Window

Window

Door

71°

89°

108°

8850

Existing Conifer Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

113625

11900

87°

69°

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

New Hedge 1800 high

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening

to be planted along West + North Boundary as

indicated on the drawings.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

1
8
0
0

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy

screening to be planted along West

+ North Boundary as indicated on

the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:

Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout

Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to

dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS

PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:

Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.

Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking

and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.

Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:

Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units

secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast

monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.

Standard to BS 8500-2.

Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.

Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-

From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for

sub-base thickness as below:-

Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.

Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.

Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 

material than is required to help hold the stone together.

Natural gravel.

Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.

Execution:-

Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:

Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm

thick [ maximum ].

Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or

deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take

particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling

has taken place.

Compaction of sub-base:

Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.

Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.

After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed

and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.

Blinding:-

Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.

Protection:-

Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.

Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.

Geotextile sheet:

Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.

e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.

Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].

FINISHES:-

DRIVE

Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.

General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.

PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-

Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp

To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x

60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse

6-2mm open graded crushed rock.

Copaction:

Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,

joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:

Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS

Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.

Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture

content that will give maximum compaction.

Execution:-

Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,

Blinding: all as above.

Geotextile sheet: all as above.

Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,

level and profile.

Falls: To prevent ponding.

Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.

Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce

uniform thickness and support for paving units.

Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.

Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.

Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and

adjoining finishes.

PROTECTION:-

Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to

cause damage.

Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.

Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.

Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:

The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping

above.

Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be

imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than

50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges

of new drive and finish with turf.

Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding

and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent

kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.

Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into

topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,

and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.

PRIVACY SCREENING:

1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North

boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.

FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.

DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.

DATUM -  100.000m

FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m

GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-

Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-

Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.

Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage

area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha

                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:

No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and

are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021
Suffix:

19th January

2021

Date: Scale:

010

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,

Roxburghshire,

TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
Privacy + Overlooking Plan

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is

not a Construction drawing.

Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers

PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.

T:  01573 226553.

M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:

T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :

DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.

Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting

out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any

shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and

must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written

consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.

Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified

is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to

construction on site. Construction should only proceed from

drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written

consent is obtained.

Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the

works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or

components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE

drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at

their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the

project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational

and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and

does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or

neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.

The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted

with the building's and surroundings and undertake any

investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full

and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into

account all eventualities.

Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no

additional payments shall be countenanced for any

amendments to the work.

The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with

the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of

Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and

Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.

All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out

in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no

risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.

The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to

cover the prevention of accidents and injury.

All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,

suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,

good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist

subcontract recommendations and services supply and

installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be

kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for

presentation to the client.

Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and

CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all

notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.

Building Control and submit materials as required to the local

Authority Planning Department.

Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies

to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.

Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and

notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to

proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance

Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.

Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification

Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The

Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1057



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1059



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Keith Patterson 
Roads Planning Officer 

kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826637 

Date of reply 17th December 2020 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01327/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr Mark Graham  

Agent PD Architecture 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

There is a history of applications and approvals on this site, all of which the roads 
planning service have objected to on road safety grounds. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment I am unable to support this proposal. The existing private access is very 
constrained with no formal turning area. When I visited the site I had to use part of 
this plot in order to turn my vehicle. The junction with the public road is 
exceptionally constrained both in terms of geometry and visibility. The junction area 
is only wide enough for one vehicle with no radii and visibility in both directions is 
effectively zero with a vehicle having to encroach significantly into the running 
carriageway before any form of visibility splays are afforded. 
 
Given the above I must object to this proposal. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Reason for refusal The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that it would be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to 
the detriment of road safety.   

 

AJS 

Page 1061

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

RE-CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Roads Planning Service 
 

Contact e-mail/number: 

Officer Name and 
Post: 

Keith Patterson 
Roads Planning Officer 

kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826637 

Date of reply 1st March 2021 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

20/01327/FUL Case Officer: 
Euan Calvert      

Applicant Mr Mark Graham  

Agent PD Architecture 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

This is a reconsultation following the submission of amended drawings. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment I refer to the amended site layout plan. I appreciate the effort to include a turning 
area for the private access, the lack of which was one of the reasons for refusal in 
my original consultation response. The location of the turning area will rely upon the 
use of the driveway for Hillcrest being used when reversing out of the turning area, 
should gates or other obstruction be placed on the driveway for Hillcrest, then the 
turning area would no longer function. A solution to this would be to move the 
turning area East to approximately the midpoint of the site frontage, space could be 
freed up within the site by removing the internal turning area and simply having two 
nose-in parking spaces either side by side or nose to tail. 
 
The above solution would remove my concerns with regards to the ability of 
vehicles to enter and exit the private access in a forward gear, however I would still 
be unable to support the proposal given the sub-standard access onto the public 
road. The access would have to be widened to 5.5m wide with 6m radii and visibility 
splays of 2.4m by 43m in either direction as well as being surfaced to my 
specification before I would be able to support this proposal. The land required to 
implement these improvements would appear to be out with the control of the 
applicant and as such I must continue to object. 
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Reason for refusal The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that it would be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to 
the detriment of road safety.   

 

AJS 
 

Page 1063

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1065



T
his page is intentionally left blank



5

5

5

5

5

11

11

12

7

7

7

7

7 7

8

8

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

1
5

Tandarra

1

3

2

1
3

1
3
b

2
3

108.2m

8

2
9
a

Carnlea

2
9

3
1

Recreation

Hillcrest

2
7

1
1

Ground

37
12

50

630750

630800

37
13

00

Je
db

ur
gh

 - 
A

69
8 

 - 
 K

el
so

Existing Access Road

HEITON

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE LAYOUT Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Suffix:

30th October
2020

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Date: Scale:

008

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1
1:1250 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
ROOF Plan +
Location Plan

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

Location Plan.

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

25M.0mm

True Scale at 1:1250.

50M. 75M. 100M. 125M. 150M.

Scale: 1:1250 @ A31.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 009.

P
age 1067



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1069



Page 1070



Page 1071



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/01327/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Mark Graham 

 
AGENT :   PD Architecture 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of dwellinghouse 
 
LOCATION:  Land Adjacent Carnlea 

Main Street 
Heiton 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
A LOCATION PLAN  Location Plan Refused 
009  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
010  Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused 
006  Proposed Plans Refused 
007  Proposed Elevations Refused 
008  Proposed Roof Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 6  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
12 neighbours were notified.  
 
Two comments were received noting no objection but requiring confirmation of ownership of a mutual 
boundary and recommending a turning circle be provided. Trees were requested to be retained and 
privacy issues highlighted. 
 
Three Objections were received raising the following planning issues: 
 
o Sunlight and daylight would be considerably diminished as a result of the roof pitch height. 
 
o Potential first floor accommodation in future. 
 
o Density of the site, the design is too large for the plot, over-development. 
 
o Height of the development. 
 
o Inadequate access and increased traffic.  
 
o Overlooking. 

Page 1073



 
o Overshadowing. 
 
Consultations: 
 
Scottish Water: No objection. 
 
Community Council: Object. Too close to neighbouring houses and insufficient vehicular access.  The 
development would require adoption of the road. 
 
Roads Planning:  
 
First response: Unable to support the proposal.  The existing private access is very constrained with 
no formal turning area. 
 
Second response: A turning area has been demonstrated. This requires the use of a driveway for 
Hillcrest, which is unacceptable.  A solution avoiding this would be to move the turning area east to the 
midpoint of the site. This solution would remove concerns with regards to the ability of vehicles to enter 
and exit the private access in a forward gear.  
 
However the objection is sustained until: 
 
1. The sub-standard access onto the public road is widened to 5.5m wide with 6m radii and  
2. Visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m in either direction are provided. 
3. Access surfaced with a bound surface. 
 
The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it would 
be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to the detriment of road safety. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
SBC Local Development Plan 2016  
 
PMD2 Quality Standards 
PMD5 Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
Developer Contributions, April 2015 
Guidance on Householder Developments, July 2006 
Placemaking and Design, 2010 
Landscape and Development, 2008 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Euan Calvert  (Assistant Planning Officer) on 24th May 2021 
 
This is a full planning application for the erection of a dwellinghouse on a vacant site in Heiton, Kelso. 
  
Site  
 
This is a vacant site within a cu-de-sac of four neighbouring houses dating from approval in the mid1970s.  
This site was said to be occupied by a chalet at this time however the site was cleared and has remained 
undeveloped since. 
 
Planning History 

Page 1074



 
R127/94 
 
In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the site was granted and subsequently lapsed in 1999.  
The Planning Committee approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and 
Transportation.  The Committee stated ""the bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill site which has 
already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet."  
 
04/01984/OUT and 05/00012/REM 
 
These applications were also for the erection of one house on the site. The Director of Roads and 
Transportation maintained their objection.  Access to the main street was deemed an unsuitable standard to 
accommodate a fifth house and visibility on to the main A class road was inadequate (the access 
entrance/exit was required to be widened to allow two cars to pass at the junction and the visibility splays of 
2.5 x 100 metres were required in both directions).  
 
The Planning Officer's report noted the site was of sufficient size to accommodate a house, having 
previously accommodated a dwellinghouse and that the land is within a residential area. The Officer 
recommended approval to the Cheviot Area Committee, overruling The Director of Roads and 
Transportation, noting that road widening and improved visibility were all dependent on third party land who 
would incur loss of garden area and the need to move a boundary retaining wall.  The mitigating 
circumstances were stipulated as "traffic calming measures for the village are in prospect" and that there 
was "history of the site in residential use". 
 
Proposals 
 
The site and layout has been designed to be similar to the previously approved building.  It is a T-planned 
footprint featuring a projection on the principal elevation of similar scale to the approved bungalow.  The 
main roof of this proposal would have a higher ridge than that previously approved, which would 
accommodate a vaulted ceiling over the public lounge and kitchen areas. 
 
Amendments have been provided throughout the course of application: 
 
o Window removed from Bedroom 3, replaced with a Velux combination window, the vertical element 
to be gazed with obscure glass. 
o Window facing Hillcrest in the Master Bedroom to be glazed with obscure glass. 
o A new beech hedge 1800mm high, to be planted along the East and North boundaries, as privacy 
and overlooking screening. 
o The Conifer tree is to be felled. 
 
Amended elevations have been provided to demonstrate the relationship of this building to the neighbour, 
Hillcrest.  The residential amenity impacts have been considered in respect of overlooking, privacy, 
daylighting, sunlight and overshadowing impacts. 
 
Planning Policy  
 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards  
 
Requires all development to be of high quality and be compatible with the character and neighbouring built 
form.  Boundary treatments are considered essential to ensure proper effective assimilation with the wider 
surroundings. 
 
The Placemaking and Design 2010 SPG seeks for new development to contribute to the locally distinctive 
built character. 
 
Policy PMD5: Infill Development  
 
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within Development 
Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following criteria are satisfied: 
 

Page 1075



a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and economic 
infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or 'town and village cramming'; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and drainage and 
schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining properties as a result of 
overshadowing or overlooking. 
 
All applications will be considered against the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking 
and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as appropriate. 
 
Policy IS7 
 
The Roads Planning Officer makes comment with regard to road safety standards, access and parking 
accommodation. 
 
Policy HD3 
 
Siting, scale and location of development is considered with regard to protecting neighbouring residential 
amenity. 
 
Policy EP13 
 
Seeks to protect trees and hedgerows from development. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Principle 
 
The Local Development Plan 2016 identifies this site falling within the Development Boundary, but not 
allocated and it is therefore appropriate to consider Policy PMD5: Infill Development. 
 
I find the site to satisfy several but not all of the infill policy criteria: 
 
1. The proposal does not conflict with the established land use. The land is vacant and it has previously 
been confirmed by the Council that the change to private residential use will not conflict with neighbouring 
use;   
 
2. This is a tight site but the choice of design and rear location from the Main Street would avoid any 
adverse impacts to the character and amenity of Heiton. The site has previously been an acceptable infill 
development opportunity. In terms of design, the building presented would be a suitable addition to the 
neighbouring built form, both appearing modern but retaining similar form as the neighbouring bungalows.  I 
am satisfied that development would appear contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours, specifically 
noting that Craimar opposite features 1.5 storey form; and 
 
3. A further residential dwelling would contribute to sustaining the social and economic infrastructure of 
Heiton.  Developer Contributions Policy would require contribution to Kelso High School in accordance with 
policy IS2. However, contributions have not been agreed or reconciled because of overarching issues 
arising from the Road Planning Officer's sustained objection to a house on this site.  The site is considered 
to be over-development. The site does not satisfy visitor parking, visibility and junction requirements 
currently; and 
 
4. I am satisfied that the building to plot ratio are within the margins of acceptability in terms of scale, form, 
design, materials and density and are not dissimilar to the previous approval; and 
 
5. There are material concerns over vehicular safety in accessing this site and these have been 
irreconcilable throughout prolonged discussions.  The agent has insisted that the previous permission was 
implemented, 04/01984/OUT/ 05/00012/REM, however the Planning Authority cannot accept this as no 

Page 1076



evidence has been presented of operational development or that the site was previously occupied as a 
dwellinghouse (described as a chalet in 1994) or of commencement in terms of the Building Warrant.  
Through the passage of time the land use has reverted to vacant land, not a site of a dwellinghouse.  The 
agent contends that drainage, demolition and clearance of site constituted development however these 
operations may have been undertaken outwith the requirements of planning permission.  
 
In accordance with Policy IS7, the Roads Planning Officer requires three items to be secured to achieve 
future support to development of this dwellinghouse: 
 
1. Access onto the public road is currently substandard for a 5th dwelling and it must be widened to 5.5m 
wide with 6m radii and; 
2. Visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m must be provided in either direction; 
3. This access to be surfaced with bound surface; 
4. Provision of visitor turning and parking within the cul-de-sac. 
 
Without these items being provided, the development is contrary to both Policy PMD2 and parking standards 
within Policy IS7, in that the extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access would be to the detriment of 
public road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
Public mains water is proposed and waste water to the mains sewer. Both would be acceptable in this 
village location; and 
 
6 I do not identify any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to neighbouring properties as a result of 
overshadowing or overlooking (owing to the appropriate choice of floor level, cut in to the slope).  Locations 
of windows, overshadowing and privacy matters have been considered.  I have assessed the distance to the 
nearest neighbour and the choice of window locations.  It has been demonstrated that the amendments 
would ensure neighbouring residential amenity in accordance with overlooking and loss of privacy guidance. 
Obscure glass would protect privacy of the habitable bedroom in the front projection.  A 1.8m privacy hedge 
would be added behind the existing west boundary to introduce further privacy between plots. This hedge 
would compensate for the loss of (relatively juvenile) trees shown to be removed. 
 
The principle of the development of one dwelling on this site has not been adequately demonstrated.  Policy 
PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 2016 requires means of access to the public road network to be 
satisfactory achievable to standards identified above. The road improvements  cannot be secured by a 
suspensive as the land is outwith the control of the applicant. 
 
External Appearance: Materials, Fabrics and Colours 
 
The proposed external finishes would be quite appropriate to the location within the estate and in 
accordance with Placemaking and Design SPG, 2010. 
 
Landscaping 
 
A condition would be required in the event of approval to ensure the boundary treatments (the proposed 
hedge) were implemented in accordance with a full specification. 
 
Three objections have been received. I have addressed the points concerning loss of neighbouring 
residential amenity above. I do not identify any significant adverse impacts on the nearest neighbours.  The 
density/ plot ratio would be high but not harmful to daylight or privacy standards of neighbours.  The density 
would be similar to and therefore reflective of the neighbouring built form in this residential estate.  The 
proposal is therefore not considered to be an incongruous addition. 
 
The Community Council and the objectors' concerns over suitable safe vehicular access and egress (and 
visitor parking) are noted and are reasons for refusal. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill 
Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional 

Page 1077



vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and 
it has not been demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the access, as specified, can be 
carried out.  
  
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: 

Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in 
additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular 
and pedestrian, and it has not been demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the 
access, as specified, can be carried out.  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 1078



Page 1079



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

To find out more about connecting your  

property to the water and waste water supply visit: 

www.scottishwater.co.uk/business/connections 

SW Public 

General 

Friday, 06 November 2020 
 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
 
SITE: Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton 
PLANNING REF: 20/01327/FUL  
OUR REF: DSCAS-0025953-PPX 
PROPOSAL: Erection of dwellinghouse 
 
 

Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 
 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should 
be aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced 
and would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 There is currently sufficient capacity in the Roberton Water Treatment Works to 
service your development. However, please note that further investigations may be 
required to be carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us. 
 
 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 This proposed development will be serviced by Heiton Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to 
allow us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a 
Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via 
our Customer Portal or contact Development Operations. 

 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 1081

https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

To find out more about connecting your  

property to the water and waste water supply visit: 

www.scottishwater.co.uk/business/connections 

SW Public 

General 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

 
Asset Impact Assessment  
 
According to our records, the development proposals impact on existing Scottish Water 
assets.  
 
The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water assets and contact our 
Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal to apply for a diversion.  
 
The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified may be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction. Please note the disclaimer at the end of this 
response.  

 
 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 

Page 1082

https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
http://www.sisplan.co.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

To find out more about connecting your  

property to the water and waste water supply visit: 

www.scottishwater.co.uk/business/connections 

SW Public 

General 

adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non Dom Property: 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

Page 1083

https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
https://developerportal.scottishwater.co.uk/
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

To find out more about connecting your  

property to the water and waste water supply visit: 

www.scottishwater.co.uk/business/connections 

SW Public 

General 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Planning Application Team 
Development Operations Analyst 
developmentoperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
 

 
 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then 
you should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the 
ground and to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree 
that Scottish Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or 
from carrying out any such site investigation." 
 

 

Page 1084

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/
http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:developmentoperations@scottishwater.co.uk


Page 1085



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1087



P
age 1088



P
age 1089



P
age 1090



P
age 1091



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 1093



P
age 1094



P
age 1095



P
age 1096



P
age 1097



P
age 1098



P
age 1099



P
age 1100



P
age 1101



P
age 1102



P
age 1103



P
age 1104



P
age 1105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2929a

27

Hillcrest

Tandarra

Existing Access Road

SITE AREA = Approx 560m²
                      Approx 0.056ha

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

Pa
th

Pa
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y Ex
ist

in
g 

St
on

e 
Bo

un
d

ar
y 

to
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed

Garage Carnlea

Garage

Ex
ist

in
g 

St
on

e 
Bo

un
da

ry
 to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

To A698 Main Kelso - Jedburgh Road.

IC

Temporary Datum on
existing BT Inspection
Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

Ex
ist

in
g 

St
on

e 
Bo

un
d

ar
y 

to
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing
manhole

Existing Conifer Tree to
be trimmed and
retained.

Existing Deciduous Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:
Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout
Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to
dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS
PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:
Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.
Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking
and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.
Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:
Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units
secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast
monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.
Standard to BS 8500-2.
Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.
Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-
From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for
sub-base thickness as below:-
Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.
Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.
Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 
material than is required to help hold the stone together.
Natural gravel.
Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.
Execution:-
Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:
Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm
thick [ maximum ].
Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or
deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take
particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling
has taken place.
Compaction of sub-base:
Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.
Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.
After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed
and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.
Blinding:-
Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.
Protection:-
Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.
Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.
Geotextile sheet:
Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.
e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.
Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].
FINISHES:-
DRIVE
Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.
General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.
PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-
Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp
To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x
60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse
6-2mm open graded crushed rock.
Copaction:
Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,
joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:
Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS
Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.
Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture
content that will give maximum compaction.
Execution:-
Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,
Blinding: all as above.
Geotextile sheet: all as above.
Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,
level and profile.
Falls: To prevent ponding.
Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.
Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce
uniform thickness and support for paving units.
Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.
Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.
Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and
adjoining finishes.
PROTECTION:-
Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to
cause damage.
Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.
Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.
Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:
The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping
above.
Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be
imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than
50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges
of new drive and finish with turf.
Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding
and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent
kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.
Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into
topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,
and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.
FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.
DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.
DATUM -  100.000m
FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m
GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-
Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-
Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.
Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage
area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha
                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

Suffix:

30th October
2020

SITE Plan. Date: Scale:

009

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

Scale: 1:100
1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SITE Plan + Section 01-01.

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 009.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

P
age 1107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Comments for Planning Application 20/01327/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01327/FUL

Address: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Gillian Harrop

Address: Hillcrest, Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders TD5 8JR

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Density of site

  - Height of .....

  - Inadequate access

  - Loss of light

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

Comment:With regard to the proposed construction of a 3 bedroom bungalow on land adjacent to

Learn Ref. No: 20/01327/FUL

Having given all the documents considered thought we object to this application.

From the plans it can be seen that the design has a considerably larger footprint than the original

structure / home, that stood here. One wouldn't necessarily expect a new development to be of the

same size but this is much larger and is an attempt at over-development. We question if the

existing services can accommodate a property of this size with particular regards to the additional

waste water and sewerage.

This building would have a significant impact on the adjoining properties at Carnlea and ourselves

at Hillcrest. The position of the building would lead to the west elevation blocking out significant

amounts of sunlight from our property, especially during the winter months, when light is at a

premium. If this is a bungalow, then the increased roof height running from the east to the west is

totally unnecessary and again would impact the adjacent properties. If this has been done to

incorporate what can only be described as an upper level window in the east gable elevation, then

it is not necessary and further impacts on the residents of Carnlea, making them overlooked. It is

clear why the design incorporates an elevated double window and a vaulted roof design - to

incorporate more light into the property. However the elevated roof design will cause us to

experience the very issue which is attempting to be alleviated in the new build. In essence sunlight
Page 1109

Agenda Item 7b



and daylight into our home will be considerable diminished in an attempt to gain light into the new

build. We feel that as a result of this we will suffer an unacceptable loss of light to habitable rooms.

Additionally the increase in roof height creates the impression of a 'house' and one worries that if

granted and built, this sets a precedent. Also what would stop an additional application to create

'upstairs' rooms. All the remaining properties within this 'cul-de-sac' are single storey 'true'

bungalow designed structures.

The access to the main A698 is a considerable issue.

It has always been understood by ourselves and neighbours that there is a 'turning circle' located

at the top of the shared driveway. This is at the northern elevation of the proposed build. This is to

enable any vehicles visiting any of the properties, i.e. delivery vehicles, emergency vehicles,

trades people etc, to turn and egress safely onto the A698 facing forwards. The plans do not

appear to have allowed for this. Indeed on the plans this area is shown as grassed. Obviously,

grass can be driven over, however what if a wall or hedge is installed?

Under no circumstance should the egress onto the A698 be attempted in reverse. It is

EXTREMELY DANGEROUS.

Again, if planning is granted, the access to the shared, communal driveway must be kept available

at all times during construction. It should also be reinstated to a usable, clean and level existence

concurrent to the build and at the eventual conclusion of the build.

If there are plans to install mains gas at the property then this will necessitate the digging of a

trench from the A698 up to it. This will cause a great amount of disruption to all existing properties.

Consideration should be given to keeping all residents informed of all proposed works as the

residents at Tandarra and Hillcrest will effectively be 'marooned' at the west end of the driveway.

The proposed removal of the large, coppiced sycamore 'trees' These are not on our land but

immediately adjacent to our boundary wall. If planning is granted then it should be stipulated that

the removal is carried out by suitably qualified and insured arborists. These are very tall, large

mature trees and if not removed correctly, by professionals, then significant damage could be

caused to our existing boundary wall and, more importantly to the property at Hillcrest itself, our

home.

From plans we can see the approximate siting of windows. The Master bedroom west elevation

window looks into our dining room, so we object to the position of this corner window.

It is also clear that windows in bedroom 3 overlook our kitchen.

We would respectfully request that the master bedroom doesn't have a corner window overlooking

us. Also, if planning is passed, that a condition be stipulated that the positions of bedroom 3 and

the family bathroom with opaque glass, be exchanged. Whilst still facing towards our property the

position of conifers in our garden would then afford privacy to both parties.

For the sake of accuracy it should be noted that an uncovered drain appears to have been missed

off the plan drawings. To give an approximate location, looking at the document Full Site Plan

Section Through - 3406517 it is sited within the area of the proposed marked turning space and

driveway.

In conclusion, we object to the proposed plans for the fact that:

- The proposed property design is too large for the plot.

- It is an attempt at over-development.
Page 1110



- The build overshadows neighbours, causing significant loss of sunlight and daylight.

- The added roof height is unnecessary, again causing significant loss of light and the potential to

set a precedent.

- The apparent removal of the turning circle and the resultant danger of vehicles having to egress,

in reverse, onto the A698 impacts considerably on highway safety.

- The build and position of windows overlooks other homes, causing loss of privacy

 

 

 

 

Page 1111



Page 1112



Comments for Planning Application 20/01327/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01327/FUL

Address: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Andrew Hunter

Address: Ladyrig Farmhouse Heiton, Kelso, Scottish Borders TD5 8JP

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Density of site

  - Inadequate access

  - Increased traffic

Comment:It is clear that, to add a dwelling of this size, with three double bedrooms, ie 6 people

potentially, will add very considerably to the usage of the access road. Further, it will severely limit

the ability of present residents at the top and their visitors/services vehicles to turn safely when

departing. The exit onto Heiton main street has restricted view already and no vehicle should ever

be forced to reverse out onto the main road.

Page 1113



Page 1114



Page 1115



Page 1116



Page 1117

Agenda Item 7c



Page 1118



Page 1119



Page 1120



Page 1121



Page 1122



    
 
 

 
September 2021  PUBLIC 
 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT 

Application Ref: 20/01327/FUL 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, 
Heiton, Scottish Borders  

Page 1123



 
 

Page 2 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

 

 

 

 

TYPE OF DOCUMENT (VERSION) PUBLIC 

 

PROJECT NO. V.1 

OUR REF. JN/HEITON/1.1 

 

DATE: September 2021 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Brownshore Management Ltd 
M54 Space Centre 
Halesfield 9 
Telford 
TF7 4QN 
 

Page 1124



 
 

Page 3 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

DOCUMENT REVIEW  
 

Issue/Revision Report Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 

Comments     

Date  September 2021    

Prepared by JN    

Signature     

Checked by JN    

Signature     

Authorised by JN    

Signature     

 

Page 1125



 
 

Page 4 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

CONTENTS 
 

 

Document Review ...................................................................................................... 3 

Contents ..................................................................................................................... 4 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................... 5 

2. Supplementary Statement ................................................................................... 6 

3. Conclusion ........................................................................................................... 8 

 

  

Page 1126



 
 

Page 5 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Background  

1.1. This Supplementary Statement is prepared by Joe Nugent MRTPI of Brownshore 

Management (“the Agent”) against the refusal by Scottish Borders Council (“the 

LPA”) of an application for the erection of a dwelling house (“the development”) 

on land adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders (“the Appeal 

site”). 

 

1.2. The Statement of Case has been submitted with the planning appeal. This 

document is submitted in response to additional representations made to the 

Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 1127



 
 

Page 6 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

2. SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT 

Background 

2.1 The Council notified the Client and their Agent on 14 September 2021 that 

additional representations had been received relating to the planning appeal. 

 

2.2 The additional representations have been received from Gill Harrop on 3 

September 2021. 

 

Rebuttal Statement – Site Layout 

 

2.3 In terms of the comments submitted by Gill Harrop a rebuttal statement is 

considered necessary. 

 

2.4 The revisions to the design of proposed development were undertaken with the 

Case Officer in the Planning Dept. The revisions were amended and agreed with 

the Case Officer to be acceptable in principle. 

 

2.5 The amendments were reconsulted, the additional response from the Highways 

Officer states their objection can be addressed. Their advice is that: A solution to 

this would be to move the turning area East to approximately the midpoint of the 

site frontage, space could be freed up within the site by removing the internal 

turning area and simply having two nose-in parking spaces either side by side or 

nose to tail. 

 

2.6 The comments from Gill Harrop that the vehicle space is of insufficient size are 

considered technically incorrect as the Highway Officer has confirmed the method 

to address their objection and mitigate any issues. 

 

2.7 The requirements advised by the Highways Officer are invited to be attached as a 

planning condition as part of the planning appeal assessment. 

 

Rebuttal Statement – Dwelling Type 

 

2.8 Comments submitted by Gill Harrop refer to the dwelling type. The proposal on 

the planning application form is for the “erection of 3 bed bungalow”. Therefore, 

the scale, mass and design of the property relate to a bungalow. 

 

2.9 The designs forming part of the planning application were discussed and agreed 

with the Case Officer of the Planning Dept, the designs were agreed as 

acceptable. 

 

2.10 The comments from Gill Harrop in this instance are inaccurate. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1128



 
 

Page 7 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

Rebuttal Statement – Highway 

 

2.11 The comments from Gill Harrop refer to the suitability of the highway access. This 

matter has previously been set out and clarified within the Statement of Case. 

 

2.12 The planning application relates to the Red Line Boundary and this boundary only 

relates to the site of the residential dwelling. 

 

2.13 The planning application is solely for the erection of a residential dwelling 

(replacing the previous dwelling). 

 

2.14 The planning application, as illustrated on the Red Line Boundary, does not relate 

to the access road from the site to the A698, the planning application does not 

relate to a new or revised access from the A698. 

 

2.15 Access and egress from the site are provided by the existing right of access from 

the A698 to the site and these were established by the previous residential 

dwelling at the site. 

 

2.16 This right of vehicular access and egress is established in the Title Deeds for the 

land and the development site, and these form the legal land rights to the site. 

 

2.17 Notwithstanding the decision of the planning application, the right of vehicular 

access and egress to the site will remain established and extant. 

 

  

Page 1129



 
 

Page 8 of 8 
September 2021  PUBLIC 

3. CONCLUSION 
 

3.1 To provide a conclusion and having considered the appropriate national and local 

planning policies and guidance the proposed development accords with each of 

the policies assessed and with planning guidance. 

 

3.2 On balance, the Case Officer in their officer report identify one reason for refusal 

and this relates to highways. 

 

3.3 There are several material considerations set out within the planning application 

and this Statement of Case that demonstrate material consideration weighing in 

support of the development. 

 

3.4 It has been demonstrated in the planning application, and within this Statement 

of Case, that the site has accommodated a residential dwelling and the 

redevelopment of the site is to deliver a replacement dwelling. 

 

3.5 The replacement dwelling will utilise the existing site and curtilage. It will use the 

established vehicular access and egress used by the previous residential dwelling, 

and this access is granted in perpetuity in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

3.6 The planning application relates to the site of the residential dwelling and does 

not project onto the access road or to the A698. The existing highways use at the 

site would directly accord with the lawful use set out in the Land Registry Deeds. 

 

3.7 It has also been demonstrated that the 2004 planning permission, and the 2005 

reserved matters, was commenced by the drainage, demolition, and clearance 

operations carried out at site, therefore constituting development. 

 

3.8 In terms of a conclusion, the development of a replacement dwelling has 

previously been positively supported by the Council and the LPA. The evidence 

demonstrating the residential dwelling at the site, planning history, 

commencement of development, and the lawful use of the access in the Land 

Registry Deeds, is considered to weigh the planning balance in favour of the 

development. 

 

3.9 It is therefore kindly requested that the application / appeal be approved. 

Page 1130



Comments for Planning Application 20/01327/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/01327/FUL

Address: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Peter Gillespie

Address: 13 Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders TD5 8JR

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Local Member

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Increased traffic

  - No sufficient parking space

  - Overlooking

  - Privacy of neighbouring properties affec

  - Road safety

  - Trees/landscape affected

Comment:1) Access to this site has always been a problem.

2) the issue of delivery vans,post van etc will now be a major problem with no turning circle

available.These delivery vehicles have used what has been waste ground as a turning circle for

years and the proposal as it stand would possibly see those delivery vans parking on the main

street or god forbid reverse out of driveway on to the Main Street.

2 trees on the site must be kept. ( Heiton has very few trees) The proposal to remove limbs from

the existing conifer would a tree that is already small in its form.

Looking at the proposal,there are privacy issues to be addressed with windows looking on to

neighbouring house windows.

There is an issue of severe restriction to a driveway of one neighbour that would also need

addressing.

Page 1131

Agenda Item 7d



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1133

Agenda Item 7e



Page 1134



Bed 1500 x 2000

Shower
1700
x 700

w.c.

w.h.b.

w.h.b.

w.c.

Bath
1700

Family
Bathroom

Shower
1600
x 700

83
8

83
8

w.h.b.

838

83
8

76
2

76
2

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

w
ar

dr
ob

e

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

C
oa

ts

83
8

Fully Glazed Screen

Fully Glazed Screen

838 Fu
lly

 G
la

ze
d

 S
c

re
e

n

838 Sliding Doors

Bed 1400 x 2000

wardrobehwc

Bed 1400 x 2000

83
8

76
2

83
8

83
8

76
2

Po
c

ke
t S

lid
in

g
 D

o
o

r

w.c.

w.h.b.

VQYGN�TCKN

VQYGN�TCKN

C
oa

ts
 +

 B
oo

ts

Linen

Master
Bedroom

Bed 3

Bed 2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

83
8

83
8

83
8

762 762

762

w
ar

dr
ob

e

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

sink

Hob

sink

wc

83
8

Oven

76
2

76
2

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

WM
under

Wall Cupds
over

Sl
id

in
g

 D
o

o
rs

76
2

76
2

Lounge

Kitchen

Dining

Utility

800

800

Solid Fuel BurnerPa
tio

 D
o

o
rs

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Fridge/
Freezer

1
13

3 3

3

3 3

4

4

4 4

5

6

6

2

2

7
7

8

9

9 9 9 9

10

11

12

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

VELUX Roof Windows over

Line of Vaulted Ceiling over

6100

14
60

0

7600

79
00

48
00

7900

19
00

5800

13700

VELUX roof
window over

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.

3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.

4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.

Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each

12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

006

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevation.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION  PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1135



Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Vaulted Ceiling Level: 4000

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

1
1

1 1

1
1

1

2 2

2

2

2 2

2 2

3
3

3

3

3
3

3
3 3

3

3

3 3

3

4 44

4
4

4

4

4 4

4

4

5

5

5

5

6
7 7

7
7

77

6

6

6

66

6 6

8

8 8

9 9

9 9
9 9 9

9

9

9 9

9

10

10

10

11

12

12

12
16

75

14

13

15

15

9

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.

Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

Date: Scale:

007

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SOUTH, EAST + WEST Elevations.

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1136



5

5

5

5

5

11

11

12

7

7

7

7

7 7

8

8
13

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural Stone basecoarse as indicated on Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External walls to be covered with Derbyshire Spar Render.
3. Reinforced Pre-cast concrete cill: Colour - Portland.
4. 200mm wide Plain Cement bands and 100mm wide ingoes + feature panels: Colour - Portland.
5.
6.

Roof Finish: CEDRAL Trutone Textured Fibre cement slates: Colour - Blue-Black.
Fascias, Soffits + Barge Boards: MARLEY Eternet plain fibre cement cladding : colour - Grey Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double Glazed Powder coated aluminium Windows : Colour - Dark Grey RAL 7015

11. VELUX Double Glazed Top Hung Roof Window, size 780w x 1398h each
12.

LINDAB Metal Rianwater Goods:
125mm half round gutters + 75mm Ø downpipes: Colour Dark Grey

9.
Lead Flashings, Valley Gutters etc minimum Code 5: Colour - Natural.

Double Glazed Hardwood External doors + Glazed Screens.

FLUE from Log Burner: Twin Wall Stainless Steel metal flue: Natural.

13.
14.

13-14 VELUX Double Glazed  Combination Windows, Coprising 1 No VELUX Double Glazed
centre pivot Roof Window, size 942w x 1178h + 1 No VELUX Double Glazed top hung Vertical
window element, size 942w x 942h,

15. Obscure Gazing

15

Tandarra

13

2

13

13
b

23

108.2m

8

29
a

Carnlea

29

31

Recreation

Hillcrest

27

11

Ground

37
12

50

630750

630800

37
13

00

Je
db

ur
gh

 - 
A

69
8 

 - 
 K

el
so

Existing Access Road

HEITON

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.
PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.
1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

Suffix:

30th October
2020

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Date: Scale:

008

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50 @ A1
1:1250 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
ROOF Plan +
Location Plan

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

Location Plan.

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

25M.0mm

True Scale at 1:1250.

50M. 75M. 100M. 125M. 150M.

Scale: 1:1250 @ A31.

A1

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1137



2929a

27

Hillcrest

Tandarra

Existing Access Road

SITE AREA = Approx 560m²
                      Approx 0.056ha

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof
Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

Pa
th

Pa
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Garage Carnlea

Garage

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

To A698 Main Kelso - Jedburgh Road.

IC

Temporary Datum on
existing BT Inspection
Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

Ex
ist

in
g

 S
to

ne
 B

o
un

d
a

ry
 to

 b
e

 re
ta

in
e

d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing
manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening
to be planted along West + North Boundary as
indicated on the drawings.

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

N
ew

 H
ed

g
e 

18
00

 h
ig

h

New Hedge 1800 high

Existing Conifer Tree
To be felled and tree
stumps removed complete.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

18
00

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy
screening to be planted along West
+ North Boundary as indicated on
the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:
Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout
Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to
dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS
PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:
Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.
Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking
and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.
Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:
Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units
secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast
monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.
Standard to BS 8500-2.
Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.
Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-
From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for
sub-base thickness as below:-
Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.
Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.
Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 
material than is required to help hold the stone together.
Natural gravel.
Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.
Execution:-
Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:
Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm
thick [ maximum ].
Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or
deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take
particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling
has taken place.
Compaction of sub-base:
Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.
Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.
After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed
and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.
Blinding:-
Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.
Protection:-
Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.
Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.
Geotextile sheet:
Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.
e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.
Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].
FINISHES:-
DRIVE
Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.
General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.
PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-
Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp
To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x
60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse
6-2mm open graded crushed rock.
Copaction:
Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,
joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:
Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS
Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.
Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.
Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture
content that will give maximum compaction.
Execution:-
Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,
Blinding: all as above.
Geotextile sheet: all as above.
Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,
level and profile.
Falls: To prevent ponding.
Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.
Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce
uniform thickness and support for paving units.
Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.
Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.
Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and
adjoining finishes.
PROTECTION:-
Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to
cause damage.
Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.
Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.
Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:
The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping
above.
Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be
imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than
50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges
of new drive and finish with turf.
Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding
and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent
kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.
Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into
topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,
and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.
PRIVACY SCREENING:
1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North
boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.
FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.
DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.
DATUM -  100.000m
FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m
GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-
Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-
Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.
Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage
area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha
                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:
No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan
SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.
1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and
are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021 Suffix:

30th October
2020

SITE Plan. Date: Scale:

009

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

Scale: 1:100
1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,
Roxburghshire,
TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
SITE Plan + Section 01-01.

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is
not a Construction drawing.
Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers
PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.
T:  01573 226553.
M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:
T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :
DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.
Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting
out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any
shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-
This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and
must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written
consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.
Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified
is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to
construction on site. Construction should only proceed from
drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written
consent is obtained.
Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the
works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or
components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE
drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at
their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the
project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational
and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and
does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or
neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.
The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted
with the building's and surroundings and undertake any
investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full
and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into
account all eventualities.
Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no
additional payments shall be countenanced for any
amendments to the work.
The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with
the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of
Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and
Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.
All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out
in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no
risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.
The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to
cover the prevention of accidents and injury.
All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,
suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,
good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist
subcontract recommendations and services supply and
installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be
kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for
presentation to the client.
Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and
CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all
notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.
Building Control and submit materials as required to the local
Authority Planning Department.
Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies
to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.
Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and
notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to
proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance
Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.
Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification
Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The
Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1138



Hillcrest

Existing Access Road

Family
Bathroom

Master
Bed

Bed 3

Bed 2

En-Suite

Porch

Hall

wc

Lounge

Kitchen
Dining

Utility

Linen

Coats

Coats

WardWard

Ward

W
ar

d

hwc

VELUX Roof

Window over

Up
 2

R
am

p 
1:

15

Drive

2No Parking Spaces
each 5000 x 2500

Turning Space

Path

P
a

th
P

a
th

Path

Garden

Patio

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y

Boundary

Boundary

B
ou

nd
ar

y
B

ou
nd

ar
y

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Garage

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Existing Timber Panel and Post Fence to be Retained

Garden

2 No Recycle Bins

Path

Path

Garden

Garden

IC

Temporary Datum on

existing BT Inspection

Cover: =100.00m

FFL - 99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Improve existing vehicular access to site.

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

to
n

e
 B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Approx line of existing Foul Water Drain

Rotary Clothes Dryer

Demolish existing Garage.

B
ou

nd
ar

y

IC

Existing

manhole

Existing Deciduous Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

71°

Window

Window

Window

Door

71°

89°

108°

8850

Existing Conifer Tree

To be felled and tree

stumps removed complete.

113625

11900

87°

69°

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

N
e

w
 H

e
d

g
e

 1
8
0
0
 h

ig
h

New Hedge 1800 high

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy screening

to be planted along West + North Boundary as

indicated on the drawings.

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

1
8
0
0

New 1800 high BEECH Hedge privacy

screening to be planted along West

+ North Boundary as indicated on

the drawings.

PERMEABLE Areas to perimeters of HOUSE and PATHS:

Minimum 200mm wide, positioned as indicated on site layout

Formed with minimum 300mm thick recycled crushed stone to dust, on imported graded 40mm to

dust and finished with 50mm thick gravel, to drive as indicated, colour to be agreed.

HARD LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY, PARKING, TURNING SPACE, RAMP and FOOTPATHS

PERMEABLE CONSTRUCTION

Excavations:

Excavate  for Drive, Parking, Turning Space and footpaths as shown on drawings.

Supply and install precast concrete edgings to BS EN 1340 size 150 x 50 x 915mm to Drive, Parking

and Turning Space, as indicated on the drawings.

Bedding and backing of units, either of the following:

Bedded on mortar laid on hardened concrete base. Bedding mortar allowed to set and units

secured with a continuous haunching of concrete.

Bedded on fresh concrete races to BS 7533-6, secured with backing concrete cast

monolithically with concrete race.

Concrete for foundations and haunching.

Standard to BS 8500-2.

Designated mix: Not less than GEN10 or standard ST1 or better, low workability.

Motar bedding 1:3 cement sand as section Z21.

Bed thickness 12 - 40mm.

GRAVEL DRIVE, PARKING + TURNING SPACE:-

From gravel drive with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Excavate to vehicular access road and footpaths as shown on drawings, to depths required for

sub-base thickness as below:-

Sub-base to Drive, Parking and Turning areas be minimum 150mm thick granular sub-base.

Sub-base to footpaths to be minimum 100mm thick granular sub-base.

Granular material:

Crushed rock [ other than argillaceous rock ] or quarry waste with not more binding 

material than is required to help hold the stone together.

Natural gravel.

Natural sand.

No frost susceptible material.

Execution:-

Preparation/ compacting of subgrades:

Soft or damaged areas: Excavate and replace with sub-base material, compacted in layers 300mm

thick [ maximum ].

Compaction: Thoroughly, by roller or other suitable means, adequate to resist subsidence or

deformation of the subgrade during construction and of the completed pavings when in use. Take

particular care to compact fully at intrusions, perimeters and where local excavation and backfilling

has taken place.

Compaction of sub-base:

Preparation: Remove loose soil, rubbish and standing water.

Laying: Spread and level in layers. As soon as possible thereafter thoroughly compact each layer.

After compaction and immediately before overlaying, the sub-base must be uniformly well closed

and free from loose material, cracks, ruts or hollows.

Blinding:-

Finish: Vibrate to provide a close, smooth surface.

Protection:-

Sub-bases: As soon as practicable, cover with subsequent layers, specified elsewhere.

Prevent degradation by construction traffic, construction operations and inclement weather.

Geotextile sheet:

Lay geotextile sheet overlay, over blinding coarse, fit neatly at edge restraints and other features.

e.g. drainage fittings, channels, manholes and kerbs.

Width: 1000mm [ minimum ].

FINISHES:-

DRIVE

Bonded chippings: Standard: to BS EN 13043.

General: Loose laid and racked to a uniform 50mm thickness.

PARKING, TURNING AREAS and RAMP:-

Parking + Turning Areas + Ramp

To be finished with Permeable finish, MARSHALLS Driveline Priora ( colour Charcol ) size 200 x 100 x

60mm thick sets laid in a regular pattern, or similar approved. Laid on a 50mm thick laying coarse

6-2mm open graded crushed rock.

Copaction:

Compaction should be undertaken with a plate vibrator. Prior to final compaction of the surface ,

joints should be filled with the same grading of materials as that used for the laying course.

PAVING:

Including FOOTPATHS and PATIO AREAS

Form concrete flag paving with concrete edges as indicated on the plans.

Standards: Concrete flags 900x600x38mm to BS EN 1338.

Laying course sand or sand bedded concrete flags to BS 7533-4 maintained at even moisture

content that will give maximum compaction.

Execution:-

Sub-base: 100mm thick all as specified above,

Blinding: all as above.

Geotextile sheet: all as above.

Laying pavings general: Appearance, smooth and even with regular joints and accurate to line,

level and profile.

Falls: To prevent ponding.

Bedding of paving units: Firm so that no rocking or subsidence does not occur or develop.

Bedding/ Laying course: Consistently and accurately graded, spread and compacted to produce

uniform thickness and support for paving units.

Slopes: Lay paving units upwards from bottom of slopes.

Paving units: Free of mortar and sand stains.

Cutting: Cut units cleanly and accurately, without spalling, to give neat junctions with edgings and

adjoining finishes.

PROTECTION:-

Cleanliness: Keep paving clean and free from mortar droppings, oil and other materials likely to

cause damage.

Materials storage: Do not overload pavings with stacks of materials.

Handling: Do not damage paving unit corners, arrises or previously laid paving.

Access: Restrict access to paved areas to prevent damage from site traffic and plant.

SOFT LANDSCAPING
GRASSED AREAS:

The Ground Areas around the new dwelling house that is not detailed under hard landscaping

above.

Reuse existing top soil removed from excavations to house and drive. Should top soil have to be

imported, this shall be to BS 3882 with classification of slightly stony, or less. No stone greater than

50mm in any dimension shall be acceptable. Cover areas as required round house and to edges

of new drive and finish with turf.

Topsoil shall be spread and lightly rolled to a finished compacted thickness of 150mm for seeding

and 100mm for turfing, all grassed areas to be initially set to a level 40mm above adjacent

kerbs/edgings to allow for compaction.

Areas to be turfed, turves shall comply with BS 3969. They shall be laid to bond and tamped into

topsoil bed. The contractor shall ensure that the grass is properly and regularly watered and cut,

and cleared of grass cuttings to ensure proper growth.

PRIVACY SCREENING:

1800mm high new BEECH hedge privacy screen, to be planted along the East and North

boundaries, as indicated on the plans.

FLOOR AREA:
All floor areas are measured net internal in Square Meters.

FLOOR AREA -  133 m²
FLOOR LEVELS:
Provisional Floor Levels as follows, subject to on site check.

DATUM existing inspection cover as indicated on Site Layout Plan.

DATUM -  100.000m

FLOOR LEVEL - 99.550m

GROUND LEVEL at House perimeter- 99.250m

BIN STORAGE AREA:-

Form Bin Storage Area  as follows:-

Form hard standing with paving, all as specified above under PAVING.

Erect new treated timber post and timber panel fence 1800mm high, to 3 sides of the Bin Storage

area, as indicated on the plans.

SITE AREA:
Approximately -  560 m²
                           -  0.056 ha

                           -  0.138 Acre

PDK-20-137-006

Drawing TITLE:Drawing:

No:

FLOOR Plan + NORTH Elevations.

Drawing List:

PDK-20-137-007 SOUTH + EAST + WEST Elevations.

PDK-20-137-008
PDK-20-137-009

ROOF Plan + Location Plan

SITE Layout Plan + SECTION Through Site.

Scale:

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 @ A1.

1:50 + 1:1250 @ A1.

1:100 @ A1.

The above Numbered drawings are for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and

are  not Construction Drawings.

Date:

31-10-2020

Amended:

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

31-10-2020

PDK-20-137-010 Privacy + Overlooking Plan. 1:100 @ A1. 19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021

19-01-2021
Suffix:

19th January

2021

Date: Scale:

010

Drawing Number:

John H Patterson.

Drawn By:

PDK-20-137

Project Ref Number:

All dimensions to be checked on site

All dimensions are in millimeters

Drawing Title:

Project Address:

Client Name:

for Mr + Mrs Graham

1:100 @ A1

Proposed Bungalow at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON, Kelso,

Roxburghshire,

TD5 8JR.

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE and must not be reproduced in part or whole without written consent. Any unauthorised copying could result in legal action being taken.

Planning:
Privacy + Overlooking Plan

This drawing is for PLANNING PERMISSION PURPOSES  only and is

not a Construction drawing.

Drawing to be read in conjuction with drawing numbers

PDK-20-137-006 to 010.

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16, Riverside View, KELSO,
Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG.

T:  01573 226553.

M: 07850 327677.

LOWESTOFT, Suffolk, England:

T:   01502 806989.

E: info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES :

DO NOT SCALE from this drawing.

Contractors must verify all dimensions on site before setting

out,commencing work, ordering materials or making any

shop drawings.

COPYRIGHT :-

This drawing is the copyright of Patterson ARCHITECTURE, and

must not be copied, re-issued or loaned without prior written

consent of Patterson ARCHITECTURE.

Any discrepancies and or conflicting information or specified

is to be notified to Patterson ARCHITECTURE, prior to

construction on site. Construction should only proceed from

drawings issued for construction purposes unless prior written

consent is obtained.

Should any site personnel, or those employed to carry out the

works on their behalf choose alternative materials, or

components to those specified on Patterson ARCHITECTURE

drawings, without prior written agreement then they do so at

their own risk.

This drawing and design is for use solely in connection with the

project described below.

The information contained in this drawing is representational

and has been compiled, from a dimensional survey only and

does not warrant nor certify the structure of the buildings or

neighbouring structures at the time of contraction.

The contractor is to visit the site to make himself acquainted

with the building's and surroundings and undertake any

investigation work or make all allowances to ensure that a full

and final quotation for the works will be submitted, taking into

account all eventualities.

Failure to do so will be at the contractors own risk and no

additional payments shall be countenanced for any

amendments to the work.

The contractor is to carry out all works in full compliance with

the Health and Safety Commission's Approved Code of

Practice "Managing Construction for Health and Safety" and

Construction ( Design and Management) Regulations 1994.

All work and working practices on the site shall be carried out

in accordance with the above and to ensure that there is no

risk to the site operatives, visitors or public.

The contractor is to include all preliminary allowances to

cover the prevention of accidents and injury.

All works are to be carried out to comply with manufacturers,

suppliers and industry guidelines, local authority regulations,

good standards, fire safety recommendations, specialist

subcontract recommendations and services supply and

installation regulations. All manufacturers literature is to be

kept on site. Provide all relevant guarantees in duplicate for

presentation to the client.

Allow all necessary attendance and liaison with CA's ( and

CA personnel ) specialist subcontractor trades. Ensure all

notifications are submitted to the Local Authority.

Building Control and submit materials as required to the local

Authority Planning Department.

Carefully examine the drawings and notify any discrepancies

to the CA for instruction prior to proceeding.

Check all dimensions on site prior to ordering materials and

notify any discrepancies to the CA for instruction prior to

proceeding.

N.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

Reproduced from Superplan Data by permission of Ordnance

Survey® on behalf of the Controller of Her Majest's Stationery
Office. All rights reserved.

Licence No: 100022432.

A1

No Responsibility For Any Error Or Omission In This Specification

Will Be Recognised Unless Brought To The Attention Of The

Client Or His Agent Prior To Signing The Contracts.

1.      19-01-2021  JHP      Amendments for Planning.

01

P
age 1139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1141



Page 1142



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

1 

 

Local Review Reference: 21/00019/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 20/01327/FUL 
Development Proposal:  Erection of dwellinghouse  
Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton 
Applicant: Mr Mark Graham 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
 
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS 
 
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with 
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to 
integrate with its landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all 
development are that: 
 
Sustainability  
a)  In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer 

has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise 
the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable 
energy and resources such as District Heating Schemes and the 
incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in accordance with 
supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, 
with at least half of this target met through the use of low or zero carbon 
technology, 

b)  it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure, 
c)  it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall 

provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and 
maintenance, 

d)  it encourages minimal water usage for new developments, 
e)  it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage 

and presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and 
recycling and, depending on the location, separate provision for composting 
facilities, 

f)  it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including 
structural or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its 
surroundings and the wider environment and to meet open space 
requirements. In some cases agreements will be required to ensure that 
landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development and that 
appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open 
space maintenance, 

g)  it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and 
spaces. 

 
Placemaking & Design 
h)  It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear 

understanding of the context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders 
architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or 
innovative design, 

i)  it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings 
and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building, 

j)  it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an 
extension or alteration, the existing building, 

Page 1143

Agenda Item 7f



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

2 

 

k)  it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, 
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form, 

l)  it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site, 
m)  it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 

development that will help integration with its surroundings, 
n)  it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, 

in accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’. 
 
Accessibility  
o)  Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with 

existing street patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where 
appropriate in order to minimise the need for turning heads and isolated 
footpaths, 

p)  it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties, 
q)  it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited 

to the site access, 
r)  it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking 
where possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged 
to support more sustainable travel patterns, 

s)  it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including 
those used for waste collection purposes. 

 
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity 
t)  It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing 

open spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards 
pending preparation of an up-to-date open space strategy and local 
standards. In some cases a developer contribution to wider neighbourhood 
or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by appropriate 
arrangements for maintenance, 

u)  it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the 
amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate 
mitigation or replacements. 

 
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs 
and landscape plans as appropriate. 
 
POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT 
 
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied: 
a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking. 

Page 1144



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

3 

 

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate. 
 
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and 
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against: 
 
a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space 

that would be lost; and 
b)  the details of the development itself particularly in terms of: 
(i)  the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential 
area, 
(ii)  the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding 

properties particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting 
provisions. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden 
ground or ‘backland’ development,  

(iii)  the generation of traffic or noise, 
(iv)  the level of visual impact. 
 
POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS 
 
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value. 
 
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should: 
 
a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and 
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and 
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource. 
 
POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require 
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.   
 
Contributions may be required for one or more of the following: 
 
a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance); 
b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;  
c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and 
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in 
accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan; 

Page 1145



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

4 

 

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site; 
e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance; 
f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any losses and/or alternative 
provision; 
g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the 
storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision of street 
furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure. 
 
Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments. 
 
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS 
 
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards.  
 
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety. 
 
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to  
promote the use of sustainable travel modes. 
 
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN 
DRAINAGE 
 
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS 
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority: 
 
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that: 
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that: 
c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that: 
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater. 
 

Page 1146



Local Review Body – List of Policies 
 

5 

 

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied. 
 
Development will be refused if: 
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements, 
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure. 
  
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features. 
 
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 
2011 

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 
2008 

 
 
 

 

Page 1147



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Submissions by Planning Officer and Roads Planning Officer to new information and response from applicant
	Item No. 4(a) - PRT 2 - 21_00013_RCOND-ROADS_PLANN_OFFICER-3529360
	Item No. 4(a) - PRT 3 - 21_00013_RCOND-APPLICANT_RESPONSE-3537748

	4b Review Papers
	NOR 2 - LOCAL_REVIEW_STATEMENT-3492564
	NOR 3 - DETAILED_PLANS_AND_ELEVATIONS-3492566
	NOR 4 - APPLICATION_FORM-3492561
	NOR 5 - CONSULTATION_RESPONSE-3492568
	NOR  6 - DECISION_NOTICE-3492563
	NOR 7 - REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3492567

	4c Papers referred to in Officers Report
	Item No. 4(c) - PRT 2 - Decision Letter
	Item No. 4(c) - PRT 3 -OFFICERS_REPORT-3414900
	Item No. 4(c) - PRT 4 - LOCATION_PLAN-3409420

	4d Consultation Replies
	4e List of Policies
	5a Submissions by Planning Officer and Chief Social Work Officer to new information and response from applicant
	Item No. 5(a) - 21_00015_RREF-OFF_RESPONSE_TO_LRB_QUEST-
	Item No. 5(a) - 21_00015_RREF-APPLINT_RESPONSE_TO_DDL_CA
	Item No.5(a) - 21_00015_RREF-LETTR_OF_SUPP-DAVIDMUNDELL
	Item No. 5(a) - 21_00015_RREF-PEEBLES_COMMUNITY-3540947
	Item No. 5(a) - 21_00015_RREF-HSCP_E-MAIL_TO_DDL-3540945
	Item No. 5(a) -21_00015_RREF-LETTERS-3540944

	5b Review Papers
	NOR 2 - SCHEDULE_OF_SUBMISSION_DOCUMENTS-3502015
	NOR 3 - APPLICANT_STATEMENT_FOR_THE_LOCAL_REVIEW_BODY-3501996
	NOR 4 - APPLICATION_FORM-3504412
	NOR 5 - LOCATIONPLAN-3502008
	NOR 6- SITE_PLAN-3502016
	NOR 7 - GROUND_FLOOR_EXISTING_PLAN-3502006
	NOR 8 - GROUND_FLOOR_PROPOSED_PLAN-3502007
	NOR 9 - FIRST_FLOOR_PLAN_PROPOSED-3502005
	NOR 10 - ELEVATIONS_EXISTING-3502003
	NOR 11 - ELEVATIONS_PROPOSED-3502004
	NOR 12 - DDL_CARE_HUB_APPLICATION_SUPPORTING_STATEMENT-3502001
	NOR 13 - CAVALRY_PARK_LIST_OF_COMPANIES-3501999
	NOR 14 - DDL_CARE_HUB_LTD_BUSINESS_PLAN-3502002
	NOR 15 - SBC_PRE-APPLICATION_ADVICE-3502013
	NOR 16 - REFUSAL_NOTICE-3502010
	NOR 17 - REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3502011
	NOR 18 - SBC_FORWARD_PLANNING_CONSULTATION_RESPONSE-3502012
	NOR 19 - SBC_ROADS_CONSULTATION_RESPONSE-3502014

	5c Papers referred to in Officers Report
	5(c) - PRT 2 - 05_02146_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICE-3515159
	5(c) - PRT 3 - 05_02146_FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3515164
	5(c) - PRT 4 - 06-02165-FUL APPROVED-3212671
	5(c) - PRT 5 - 06_02165_FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3513529
	5(c) - PRT 6 - 08-01525-FUL APPROVED-2123250
	5(c) - PRT 7 - 08_01525_FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3513538
	5(c) - PRT 8 - 18-01756-FUL Decision Notice
	5(c) - PRT 9 - 18-01756-FUL OFFICERS_REPORT-3082246

	5d Consultation Replies
	5e List of Policies
	6a Notice of Review
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 2 - 21_00018_RREF-APPEAL_STATEMENT-3516792
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 3 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_1__20_01620_PPP_-_DECISION_NOTICE-3516794
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 4 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_1__20_01620_PPP_-_OFFICER_REPORT-3516795
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 5 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_2__LOCATION_PLAN-3516799
	1279_pl_00 Location Plan

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 6 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P1__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516805
	1279_Garage_01 Gargae Elevations

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 7 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P2__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516800
	1279_HT_A House Type A

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 8 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P3__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516801
	1279_HT_B House Type B

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 9 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P4__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516802
	1279_pl_01  Rev F   block plan

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 10 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P5__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516803
	1279_Scheme.2_01 block plan

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 11 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_3_P6__PROPOSED_PLANS-3516804
	1279_Scheme.3_01 block plan

	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 12 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_4__HOUSING_AUDIT_ANALYSIS-3516806
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 13 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC5_P1_TRANS_STATE_AND_TRACK_PLANS-3518370
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 14 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_5_P2__TRANS_STATEMENT_AND_TRACK PLANS-3516807
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 15 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_5_P3__TRANSPORT_STATE - TRACKING_PLANS-3516808
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 16 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_6__LANDSCAPE_AND_VISUAL_APPRAISAL-3516810
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 17 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_7__CULVERT_SECTIONS-3516811
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 18 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_7__FLOOD_RISK_ASSESSMENT-3516812
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 19 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_8__TOPO_SURVEY-3516813
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 20 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_9__ENVIRONMENTAL_MANAGEMENT_PLAN-3516814
	Item No. 6(a) - NOR 21 - 21_00018_RREF-CORE_DOC_9__HABITAT_SURVEY-3516815

	6b Papers referred to in Officer's report
	6c Objection Comments
	6d Further Objection Comments and Applicant Response
	Item No. 6(d)  - PRT 2 - 21_00018_RREF-APPLICANTS_RESPONSE-3537753

	6e Additional Information
	Item No. 6(e) - 21_00018_RREF-16_01461_PPP_-_REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3535013 (1)
	Item No. 6(e) - 21_00018_RREF-16_01461_PPP_-_DECISION_NOTICE-3535014
	Item No. 6(e) - 21_00018_RREF-17_01526_FUL_-_REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3535015
	Item No. 6(e) - 21_00018_RREF-17_01526_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICE-3535016
	Item No. 6(e) - 21_00018_RREF-20_01620_PPP_-_APPLICATION_FORM-3518386

	6f Consultation Replies
	c5.pdf

	6g Correspondence
	Item No. 6(g) - 21_00018_RREF-DEPT_EMAIL_TO_AGENT-3538175

	6h List of Policies
	7a Notice of Review
	Item No. 7(a) - 21_00019_RREF-STATEMENT_OF_CASE-3519003
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 1 -21_00019_RREF-04_01984_OUT_-_CASE_OFFICER_EMAIL-3519020
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 2 - 21_00019_RREF-05_00012_REM_-_SCOTTISH_WATER-3519014
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 3 - 21_00019_RREF-PHOTO_-_ACCESS-3519004
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 4 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_APPLICATION_FORM-3518886
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 5 - 21_00019_RREF - APPENDIX 3 - BURNS CHRONICLES
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 6 - 21_00019_RREF-APP_4_-_BURNS_CHRONICLES__1951-2_-3519008
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 7 -21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_COMM_COUNC_CONSULTA_REPLY-3518900
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 8 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_DECISION_NOT-3518898
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 9 - RE 2001327FUL - DM Manager Agreement
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 10 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_EDUC_CONS REPLY-3518915
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 11 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_ELEVAT__CURRENT_-3518917
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 12 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_ELEVAT__SUPERSE_-3518937
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 13 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_EMAIL_-_AMEND_PLANS-3518938
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 14 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_FLOOR_PL__CURR_-3518920
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 15 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_FL_PLAN__SUPERS_-3518935
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 16 - Heiton - Statement of Case (July 2021)
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 17 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_LOCATION_PLAN-3518940
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 18 - 21_00019_RREF-APPENDIX_1_-_LAND_REGISTRY_DEEDS-3518996
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 19 - Land Registry Deeds - Location Plan
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 20 - Plan Amended 19-01-2021
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_PRIV_OVERLOOK_PLAN__SUPERSEDED_-3
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 22 -21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_PRIV - OVERLOOK PLAN__CURR_-3518
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 23 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_ROADS_CONSUL_REPLY_
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 24 -21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_RDSCONSUL_REPLY_2-3518943
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 25 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_ROOF_PLAN__CURR_-3518926
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 26 - 21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_ROOF_PL__SUPER_-3518931
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 27 - 21_00019_RREF-SBC_BUILDING_WARRANT__2005_-3519006
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 28 -  21_00019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3518946
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 29 -21_00019_RREF-APPX_2_-_SCOTT_WATER_LETT_20_APRIL_2004-3518966
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 30 - 2100019_RREF20_01327_FUL_-_SCOT_WAT_CONS_REPL-3518951
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 32 - 21_00019_RREF-2001327_FUL-SITE_PHOTO_PINETREE-3518952
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 33 - 21_00019_RREF-SITE_PHOTO_1-3518959
	Item No. 7(a) - NOR 34 - 21_00019_RREF-SITE_PHOTO_2-3518963
	Item No. 7(a)  NOR 35 - 2100019RREF-20_01327_FUL-SITE_LAYOUT_PLAN_CURR-3518927
	Item No. 7(a) -NOR 36 -21_00019RREF-20_01327FUL_-_SITE_PLAN_SECTION_THROUGH_SUPERS_-35

	7b Objections
	7c Further Objection Comments and Applicant Response
	Item No. 7(d) - 21_00019_RREF-APPLICANT_S_RESPONSE-3537745

	7d General Comment
	7e Other Information
	Item No. 7(f) -21- 0019_RREF-20_01327_FUL_-_E-MAIL_RE__PLAN_AMENDED-3518955
	Item No. 7(e) - 21_00019_RREF-R127-94_94_00906_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICEOFFICERS_REPO

	7f List of Policies



